
 

1 

 

     RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
April 10, 2018       

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
        
   

1.        OPEN SESSION                   4:30 p.m.  
 CALL TO ORDER, PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session. 

 
3.1 Public Employees Performance Evaluations- Superintendent 
           (Government Code Section 54957) 
 
3.2 Conference with Labor Negotiators, Gov. Code 54957.6 

  Agency Designated Representative – Cynthia Evers 
  Unrepresented Employee:  Superintendent 

 
3.3 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6): 
  

3.3 a  Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association 
(represented certificated employees) 

 

3.3 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 

 



 

2 

 

3.4 Conference with Legal Counsel –Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code 54956.9 
  -One potential case 
 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 ROLL CALL 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be  
 moved to the Action Item section) 
 

7.1 Minutes of March13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
 

 7.2 Williams Settlement Quarterly Report – January 1- March 31, 2018 
  Board of Trustees will approve the Williams Settlement Quarterly Complaint  
  Summary, January 1 – March 31, 2018. 
  
 7.3 Citizens’ Oversight Committee Member Resignation 

The Board will accept the resignation of Joe Ruppe as a member of the Measure 
F Bond Citizens’ Oversight Committee. 

 
 7.4 Change Order – Village Elementary School Phase 1 

Approval of Change Order 002 for Village Elementary School Phase 1, dated 
March 30, 2018. 
 

7.5 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  This represents purchase orders dated March 1 through April 1, 2018. 
 

7.6 Approval of Warrants 
  This represents warrants dated March 1 through April 1, 2018. 
   

8. PUBLIC HEARING – Developer Fee Increase     6:02 p.m. 
The Board will accept comments from the public on the proposed adoption of a 
Developer Fee Justification Study for the District and an increase in the statutory school 
facility fee (“Level I Fee”) on new residential and commercial/industrial developments as 
approved by the State Allocation Board on January 24, 2018 to fund the construction or 
reconstruction of school facilities. 

 
 



 

3 

 

9. PUBLIC HEARING – Solar         6:03 p.m. 
The Board will accept comments from the public regarding the intention of the 
Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District to consider entering into an energy 
service contract with Sun Light & Power to design and install solar photovoltaic 
generating facilities at the District Office and Village Elementary School, pursuant to  
the terms of Government Code Section 4217.12. 
 

10. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
   
      RVUTA Negotiations  April 12, 8:00 – 3:00 p.m., District Office 
 
  
 
      Board/Admin Retreat  April 20 
      8:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m., Saddle Club 
 
      Apple Blossom Parade  April 21 
  
      GATE Mini Camp   April 21, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 noon, Village   

 
Board Agenda Setting  April 24 

      District Office, 5:00 p.m. 
       

     RVEF Arts and Science  May 2, 4:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
             Showcase   Friedman Center 
 
      Spring Concert   May 3, Santa Rosa Bible Church 
  Village and Matanzas  6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
       Binkley and Madrone  7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
            Honor Choir     
 
          Spring Concert   May 4, Santa Rosa Bible Church 
  Austin Creek    6:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
  Sequoia and Whited  7:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
           Abracajazz    
 
      Human Race   May 5 
 
      Spring Orchestra Concert May 7 –  Austin Creek 
  Binkley /Madrone  5:45 –  6:45 
  Austin Creek/Sequoia 6:45 –  7:45 
  Whited  
  Village/Matanzas  7:45 – 8:45 
  Honor Orch. 
 
      Board Meeting   May 8, 6:00 p.m. 
      Closed Session – 4:30 p.m., District Office 



 

4 

 

  
    Site Visits              May 9 
            9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 
 

   RVCS Spring Concert  May 9, 6:30 – 8:30 p.m. 
      Sequoia Gym 
 
    District End of Year  May 10, 4:00 – 5:30 p.m. 
       Celebration              Friedman Center 
 
    RV Ed. Foundation  May 14, 7:00 p.m. 
      District Office 
 
     Special Board Meeting  May 15, 9:30 a.m. 
      RVCS Matanzas, Room 24 
 
     Diane Moresi   May 18, 8 – 12 
     District Track Meet  Montgomery High School 
  

    Open House Dates:  May 17, Austin Creek and Whited 
      May 22, Spring Creek and Binkley 
      May 23, Village and Sequoia 
      May 24, Madrone and Matanzas 
 
 11. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.   
 

If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 
12.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 

13. AWARDS / SPECIAL RECOGNITION   
      

13.1 Classified Employee of the Month 
Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Diana Cavallero 
Classified Employee of the Month of April, 2018 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick  



 

5 

 

 

13.2 Certificated Employee of the Month 
Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Kristine Warren 
Certificated Employee of the Month of April, 2018 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick    

 

14. INFORMATION 
 

14.1 Food Service Report 
Mrs. Alison Smith, Food Service & Operations Supervisor, will give an annual 
report on the District’s Food Service Program. 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo/Mrs. Alison Smith  
 
 Instruction    

 
14.2 Curriculum and Instruction Report 

Dr. Metzger will report on the following: 
14.2a Summer School Plan 
14.2b District Curriculum Committee Update 

 --Dr. Terry Metzger 
 
 14.3 Student Services Report 
  Mrs. Myhers will give an update on the following: 

   14.3a    District Behavior Committee update 
   14.3b    Student Survey 

  --Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
 
 Fiscal 
 
 14.4 District Budget Committee Update 

Dr. Pandolfo will give an update on the work of the District Budget Committee. 
  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

Governance 
 

 14.5 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
  Dr. Roehrick will review the district’s updated Local Control and Accountability  
  Plan. 
  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 14.6 Policy Updates – CSBA March 2018  

The Board will review and discuss the following recommended CSBA March 
2018 policy revisions: 
---Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 
 



 

6 

 

Adopt Revised: 
BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complaint Procedures 
AR 3230, Federal Grand Funds 
AR 3514.2, Integrated Pest Management 
BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
BP/AR 3553, Free and Reduced Price Meals 
BP 4111/4211/4311, Recruitment and Selection 
BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11, Sexual Harassment 
AR 4161.1/4361.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8, Family Care and Medical Leave 
AR 4261.1, Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
BP/AR 5022, Student and Family Privacy Rights 
BP/E 5145.6, Parental Notifications 
BP 6162.5, Student Assessment 
BP/AR 6171, Title I Programs 
 

15. ACTION           
  
 Fiscal 
 

15.1 Adopting Developer Fees, Resolution #04-18-18 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving by roll call vote Resolution #04-18-18, 
 adopting development fees in residential and commercial and industrial 

development to fund construction or reconstruction of school facilities pursuant to 
Government Code 6062 (a). 

 --Dr. Joe Pandolfo  
 
15.2 Approval of Resolution #04-18-19 and Contracts with Sun Light and Power 
 Board of Trustees will consider approving the following contracts and Resolution, 

entering into an energy service contract with Sun Light & Power to design and 
install solar photovoltaic generating facilities at the District Office and Village 
Elementary School: 

a. Design Build Solar Contract 
b. Exhibit D to Sun Light and Power Contract 
c. Solar Operations and Maintenance Agreement 
d. Solar Performance Guarantee Agreement 
e. Resolution #04-18-19 

  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 Governance 
 

15.3 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Application Renewal 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
application renewal, effective July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2023. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 



 

7 

 

 15.4 Safe Schools Plans 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the Safe Schools Plan for Austin 
Creek, Madrone, Spring Creek Matanzas and RVCS Matanzas, Sequoia and 
RVCS Sequoia, Village, and Whited. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

16. PERSONNEL 
  
 16.1 Certificated – Temporary Teacher Promoted to Probationary Status 

 Casey Wilson, Teacher, Village, effective March 16, 2018 
 

16.2 Certificated – Job Shares Approved 
 Ashley Klaus/Melissa Harryman, Austin Creek, 1st Grade 
 Alicia Hildebrandt/Erika Noone, Binkley, 4th Grade 
  Melissa Rodda/Celia Dippel, Madrone, Transitional Kindergarten 
 Jaime Ives/Morgan Langlois, Madrone, 2nd  Grade 
 Megan Byrum/Shannon Palmer, Sequoia, 1st Grade 
 Heather Conneely/Kasey Rush, Spring Creek, Kindergarten 
 Jill Dennler/Clare Shubel, Village, Kindergarten 
 Debbie Perry/Andree Moll, Whited, 3rd Grade 

 
16.3 Certificated – Leave of Absence Requests 

 Celia Dippel, Teacher, Madrone, effective May 21, 2018 – October 31, 2018 
 Nicole Rinehart, Teacher, Village, effective August 8, 2018 – January 4, 2019 

 
16.4 Certificated – Resignation 

 Jennifer Killam, RSP Teacher, Madrone, effective June 1, 2018 
 
16.5 Classified – New Hires 

 Manyvanh Phalavong, Substitute Cashier, District, effective March 5, 2018 
 Mary Denise Alvear, Co-Volleyball Coach, Austin Creek, effective March 15, 

2018 
 Joanne Reed, Co-Volleyball Coach, Austin Creek, effective March 15, 2018 
 Kampy Pongkhamsing, Substitute Custodian, District, effective April 9, 2018 
 Kay Reed, Substitute Cashier, District, effective April 9, 2018 

 
16.6 Classified – Retirements 

 Diana Cavallero, Computer Tech/Day Care Assistant, Village, effective July 
31, 2018 

 Mark Cleveland, Maintenance III, District, effective September 30, 2018 
 

16.7 Classified – Resignations  
 Lakshmi Acharya, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 
 Alicia Graves, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective June 1, 2018 
 Mark Newall, Computer Tech, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 
 Debra Winkelman, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective June 1, 2018 

 



 

8 

 

17. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 

18. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR  
  INFORMATION 
 

 Site Visits 
 
19. NEXT BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

 GATE Report 

 Arts Participation 

 Professional Development Summary 

 Home Study Report 

 RVEF Final Report 

 Student Climate Survey 

 Student Support Summary 

 Enrollment Projection 2018-19 – all grades 

 Education Protection Account 

 Public Hearing – Preliminary Budget 

 Public Hearing- LCAP 

 Community Input Summary Report 

 Community Service Recognition 

 Board Goals 

 Resolution for Employees of the Year 

 Declaration of Need 
 
20.   ADJOURN 



 

1 
 

     RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
                                                               March 13, 2018 
    
 

MINUTES 
                 
Present:              Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 

      Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
   
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent of Business  
      Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum 

         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Assistant Superintendent of Student Services 
          
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
   
1.        OPEN SESSION                     
 CALL TO ORDER, PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Mrs. Evers called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 None 
        
3. CLOSED SESSION 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to recess to closed session at 4:34 p.m. to 
discuss the following:  Unanimous. 
 
3.1 Public Employees Performance Evaluations- Superintendent 
           (Government Code Section 54957)  

 
3.2 Conference with Labor Negotiators, Gov. Code 54957.6 

  Agency Designated Representative – Cynthia Evers 
  Unrepresented Employee:  Superintendent 

 
3.3 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony  
 Roehrick, regarding Gov. Code 54957.6: 
  

3.3 a  Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association 
(represented certificated employees) 

 

3.3 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 
Chapter #284 



 

2 
 

 
3.4 Conference with Legal Counsel—Anticipated Litigation, Gov. Code Section 

54956.9 
 --One potential case 

 
3.5 Request for Leaves and Shared Contract for 2018-2019 school year, 
 Gov. Code 54957 

 
 3.6      Resolution #03-18-16, Public Employee-Discipline/Dismissal/Release,   

Notice of Non-Reelect Temporary Certificated Employees (75% or more),  
Gov. Code 54957 

 
The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law. 
  
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 ROLL CALL 

Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 
open session at 6:04 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Evers announced the following action was taken in closed session: 
  

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve Resolution #03-18-16, Public 
Employee  Discipline/Dismissal/Release, Notice of Non-Reelect Temporary Certificated 
Employees (75% or more), Gov. Code 54957:  Unanimous. 
 

6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 The Board will return to closed session at the end of the regular meeting open session. 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to approve the agenda and following 
consent items:  Unanimous. 

 
7.1 Minutes of February 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
 Minutes of February 22, 2018, Special Board Meeting 

  
7.2 Redwood Empire Schools’ Insurance Group Financial Audit  

This is RESIG’s financial audit for the years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016.  The 
RESIG Executive Committee reviewed and approved the report on January 18, 
2018. 
 

7.3 Approval of Purchase Orders 
 This represents purchase orders dated 2/1/18 -2/28/18. 
 



 

3 
 

7.4 Approval of Warrants 
 This represents warrants dated 2/1/18- 2/28/18. 

 
7.5 Adoption of Board Policy Revisions from December 2017 
 
 Adopt Revised: 

  BP/AR 0420.4, Charter School Authorization 
  BP 1325, Advertising and Promotion 

BP 3100, Budget 
  BP 3515.7, Firearms on School Grounds 
  AR, 3517, Facilities Inspection 
  AR 3517, Facilities Inspection 
  BP 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21, Professional Standards 
  AR 4144/4244/4344, Complaints 
  BP/AR 4200, Classified Personnel 
  BP 5144, Discipline 
  BP/AR 5144.1, Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 
  AR 5148.2, Before/After School Programs 
 
  Delete: 
  E(1)/E(2) 3515.7, Firearms on School Grounds 
  BP 3517, Facilities Inspection 
  
8. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
 Mrs. Evers announced the following:      

RVUTA Negotiations  March 15, 7:30 am – 3:00 p.m., District Office 
 
Future Chef Competition  March 15, 3:30 – 5:00, Village 
 
Wii Bowling -  RVEF  March 17, Austin Creek 
 
CSEA Negotiations   March 27, 11 – 4 p.m. – District Office 

 
Spring Break    April 2 - 5 

 
Agenda Setting   March 29, 8:00 a.m., District Office 
 
Site Visits    March 29, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. 

 
  RVEF Meeting   April 9, 7:00 – 8:00 pm, District Office 
 

Regular Board Meeting  April 10, 2018, 6:00 pm, District Office 
 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 None 
 
 



 

4 
 

10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 Dr. Roehrick commented on the following: 
 

 The District concluded its Request for Proposals for Phase II work at Village.  
While three firms initially responded and participated in the walk through, only 
one firm submitted a proposal.  This was Arntz Construction.  The facility 
committee made a determination to begin negotiations with Arntz for this 
proposal.  We are asking for multiple bids for each of the subs trades. 

 
11. AWARDS          
 

11.1 Certificated Employee of the Month 
Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to approve the Resolution for 
Virginia Pressler, Certificated Employee of the Month of March, 2018: 
Unanimous. 

 
  Mr. Gospe read the resolution.  Ms. Lynch, Austin Creek Principal, read her letter 

commending Virginia Pressler for her 20 years of teaching kindergarten in 
Rincon Valley. Virginia’s number one priority is to provide her students with 
everything they need to be successful.  She goes the extra mile to be sure they 
are well supported, cared for, and doing their personal best.  Nothing will stand in 
her way to educate children.  She has attended GATE conferences, assisted on 
report card and curriculum adoption committees, and pushed herself to take 
professional development courses in technology, language arts, and 
mathematics.   Virginia is a professional educator who cares deeply about her 
students, families, and school community. 

 
11.2 Classified Employee of the Month 

Mrs. Wood moved and Mr.Gospe seconded to approve the Resolution for Kathy 
Poznanovich, Classified Employee of the Month of March, 2018:  Unanimous. 

 
Mrs. Wood read the resolution.  Ms. Lindeman, Director Extended Care, read her 
letter describing  Kathy Poznanovich as being truly an exceptional human; she is 
bright, positive, and always sees the best in people and life.  Kathy is the anchor 
for our childcare program and has an amazing capability to support and mentor 
staff.  She works on the accounts, intersessions, summer and whatever else the 
program needs.  She is a valued assistant and is thanked for all she does for our 
district and those she encounters. 

 
12. INFORMATION          

 
 12.1 Citizens’ Oversight Committee Annual Report to the Board 

Ellen Turner presented the Prop 39 Measure F Bond Citizens’ Oversight 
Committee Annual Report.   The Committee met twice this past year.  The report 
summarizes the financial expenses and activity associated with the Measure F 
bond proceeds.  The Citizens’ Oversight Committee report as well as the 
performance  and financial audit reports indicate that the District is spending 



 

5 
 

bond funds in accordance with Measure F and other state requirements.  A 
postcard with a web link to the 2017 COC reports will be sent out this week.  If 
any member of the community would like a hard copy, they will be provided one 
at the District Office.  Information will be shared on Facebook and Next Door.   

  Note:  Bond funds are not used for the Oak Park property. 
   
 Instruction: 
 

 12.2   Curriculum and Instruction Report 
 Dr. Metzger reported on the following curriculum and instruction goals: 
 

12.2a Tech Summary Report  
The district added a significant number of computers and mobile devices at all 
elementary schools from 2013 to 2017.  We developed an instructional 
technology plan which included a tech skills progression for grades K-8.  
This year we reintroduced Illuminate to both principals and teachers. We’ve 
held two full-day trainings about assessments, reports, and report cards. Due 
to the first year implementation of our new K-6 ELA/ELD program, we haven’t 
provided a lot of additional technology training for teachers. We will provide 
more Benchmark Universe training for teachers in the summer.  We also 
hope to add more devices next year to better facilitate small group instruction 
and plan to continue our work with the Illuminate teacher leaders and refocus 
our attention to the tech skills progression.  

 
12.2b ELA/Math 
In ELA, there is an upward trend from Trimester 1 and from this time last 
year. Also, there are several areas of good gains for our English Learners. In 
Math, students in grades 1-3 are doing well on the End-of-Module  
assessments. Our grade 6-8 English Learners continue to struggle. Many of 
these students are Long-term English Learners (LTELs) and EL Coordinator, 
Hilary Kjaer, has been working with site administrators and teachers to put 
specific plans in place for these students. Almost every EL in grades 6-8 
has either met or is very close to meeting the language criteria for 
reclassification, but does not have high enough reading scores. 

 In Math, our grade 4-8 students are not doing nearly as well as the primary 
grade students. Upper grade teachers have requested additional training and 
support with the curriculum and with providing intervention for a very broad 
range of learners in their classrooms. This training is scheduled for late 
March.  It’s critical that we keep providing teacher-to-teacher support for the 
adopted programs in ELA and Math.  

We will be working on ELA and Math implementation plan, curriculum map 
and assessment adjustments for next year. We are also planning summer 
professional development for teachers, classified, preferred substitutes, and 
administrators. 

 
 



 

6 
 

12.2c District Curriculum Committee Update 
The District Curriculum Committee has been formed and held a workday on 
March 5, 2018. We discussed student achievement and then spent time in work 
teams to discuss English Language Arts, English Language Development, Math, 
and High Quality Instruction.  The Board reviewed the notes from each team as 
well as the agenda and guiding questions used by the work teams. The 
committee hoped to also discuss “maximizing instructional time” but will revisit 
that topic in April.  The group identified Math as the content area of most need, 
and English  Learners and Students with Disabilities as the two subgroups that 
should remain a focus for our district. With a focus on ELs the last two years, we 
are seeing gains.  

 We are working on 2018-19 implementation plans for ELA/ELD and Math.  With 
a third of our teaching staff and 70% of our administrative staff being relatively 
new to our district, we will be working with the principals to determine how we 
best proceed with developing a common language and understanding of High 
Quality Instruction (perhaps through our work with the Center for Educational 
Leadership). 

 12.3  Student Services Report 
 Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Student Services Director, reported on the following: 
 

 District Behavior Committee Update 
 A district level committee was formed this year to look at the interventions 

that we have in place around student behavior and to determine what is 
needed to support students and staff around “Behavior”.   The focus of the 
district has been on Tier I level interventions and proactive skill building.   
The committee is made up of 3 administrators, 4 teachers and 3 
specialists.The committee met on February 28th.  Discussion centered 
around a common understanding of “Behavior”, what can lead to negative 
behaviors and what the most important impacts negative student behavior 
has on each of the groups?  Some of the challenges that the group faced 
and will continue to face is in keeping the discussion tied to the focus 
questions and in making sure that the next steps are manageable.   
Training and support will need to be centered on ALL staff having the skills 
to support each program.  

  
 The product of our first meeting was 4 key practices/programs that should 

make up our Tier I interventions in the district.  The committee agreed that 
these 4 programs, when supported through the appropriate training and 
implemented with fidelity, would give all students the basic skills they 
need.  The 4 practices/programs are: 

1. Time to Teach 
2. Playworks 
3. Kimochis 
4. Restorative Practices 



 

7 
 

 The committee will meet again in March and the focus is on identifying 
Tier II needs and discussing the interventions that are currently in place.   

Fiscal: 
 
 12.4 District Budget Committee Update  

The Board received an update on the District Budget Committee configuration 
and purpose.  It was suggested that the committee look at long-term goals and 
the affects that STRS, PERS, and minimum wage increases will have on the 
budget.  Mr. Gospe shared an outline of Santa Rosa City Schools’ Budget 
Advisory Committee.  The Rincon Valley Budget Committee will meet on March 
22, 3:30 p.m.  The Board will receive an update at the April Board meeting. 

   
 Governance: 
 
 12.5 State of Schools Report  

Dr. Roehrick reported on the “State of Schools” regarding opportunities to 
increase participation and communication with staff and parents through various 
committees and information evenings.  Within the annual board goals are several 
that strengthen communication and our partnerships with our parent community.  
They include the following: 
 “Provide opportunities for parent participation in leadership groups, such as 

PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District Advisory Committees, 
and ELAC/DELAC, that consult and advise individual schools and the 
District.”   

 “Provide ongoing school-based activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as Back to School Night, Open House, 
Family Math Night, Family Literacy Night, and other site-based community 
events”, and “Provide networking opportunities for parents to engage and 
learn from one another”.   

 “Provide parent education that provides strategies for families to support 
reading skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and comprehension, for their 
children”.   

 “Provide parent education that strengthens parent understanding of the 
mathematical concepts and practices embedded within the new California 
State standards”.   

  “Provide parents of English learners support and resources  in order for 
them to assist their children with homework”, and “Provide adult English 
classes for parents who are English learners”.   

 
Our use of Facebook this year as a communication tool is increasing our ability 
to reach wide audiences in a manner that aligns with how many of our parents 
prefer to receive information.  This communication tool allows us to have 
discussion and gives us the opportunity to dispel rumor and gossip. 
We have also begun an extensive review of our district-wide emergency 
protocols.  We will focus on training of our employees and students on matters 
such as active shooter training and student release protocols.   



 

8 
 

 12.6 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Renewal 
The Board reviewed and discussed a draft of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
Renewal.  The renewal application has been updated to incorporate current 
California State Education Code requirements.  In addition, minor adjustments to 
the document have been amended to align to current district instructional efforts.  
The renewal document will return to the Board in April for approval.  Once 
approved, the document will be filed with the California Department of Education. 

 
 12.7 Oak Park Property Update 
  The Board received an update on the Oak Park property. 

The Oak Park property has been cleaned from the fire debris from 
the burnt buildings.  However, the soil certification has not been completed.  This 
is the last step before the district may proceed with finalizing the purchase.  Once 
the property is transferred, there are several immediate steps required to secure 
and make the property safe.  The purpose for the formation of the Oak Park 
Property Committee is to create a plan and oversight to ensure the property is 
secure and safe until the District is ready to start the planning process related to 
its use and development.  Steps the District takes to ensure security and safety 
on the property should be fiscally responsible so the District’s current facilities 
improvement efforts are not jeopardized. 

 
The District Superintendent is forming this committee to address the following 
items and develop specific recommendations concerning each item: 

1. Security of the property to include ensuring that infrastructure is in 
place to prevent trespassing and unlawful/unauthorized use of the 
property. 

2. Liability and insurance coverage to limit the District’s liability, to the 
degree possible, for unforeseen circumstances with appropriate 
insurance to cover such incidents. 

3. Use of the two residences to include steps needed to rent the 
residences including potential Board action and possible 
improvements to the homes. 

4. Determine if there is any interim educational use of the property 
(e.g., habitat study or community service opportunities for 
students). 

5. Establish a communication plan that provides information to 
neighbors, District residents, and other stakeholders on the 
District’s Oak Park website and via Facebook. 
 

Once the soil certification is complete, the final steps of the sale will be taken.   
                      The following representatives shall be members of the committee: 

1. Two trustees as selected by the Governing Board (Gospe & Cook) 
2. The Deputy Superintendent for Business 
3. The District Superintendent (Chair) 
4. One representative from RVUTA as selected by the association 
5. One representative from CSEA as selected by the association 

  



 

9 
 

13. ACTION           
 

Fiscal: 
 
13.1 2nd Interim Rincon Valley Union School District Budget 2017-2018 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to approve  2nd Interim Budget 
2017-18:  Unanimous. 
Dr. Pandolfo reported that the Second Interim Budget is relatively stable from the 
First Interim Budget Report.  Although revenues from the state are fairly strong, 
increases in pension obligations and declining enrollment are amongst several 
factors putting stress on District’s budget.    Dr. Pandolfo highlighted some funds 
that need to be watched, which are Fund 09-Rincon Valley Charter School, Fund 
12-Daycare, and Fund 13-Child Nutrition.  Dr. Pandolfo also reviewed the multi-
year projections.  FY2019 indicates the District’s budget will have a balanced 
budget, but no increase to the salary guide has been allocated.  In addition, the 
effect the October Wildfires will have on the District’s enrollment is unknown.  
The housing shortage will have a negative impact on future projected enrollment 
growth and the District will need to monitor this situation carefully.  

 
 13.2 Developer Fee Waiver – Resolution #03-18-17 

Mr.Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to approve Resolution #03-18-17, 
waiving  developer fees for the first 500 sq. ft. of construction beyond the original 
footprint for families that are rebuilding their homes that were lost in the wildfires: 
This resolution is in effect for 36 months. 
Roll Call Vote:  Evers-aye, Gospe-aye. Wood-aye, Rafanelli-aye, Cook-aye 

 
 Human Resources: 
 

13.3    Request for Leaves and Shared Contract for 2018-2019 school year 
 Mrs. Wood moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the requests for leaves 

and shared contracts for the 2018-19 school year:  Unanimous. 
 Dr. Roehrick reported that the action approves the applications that have been 

submitted for shared contracts, but the assigned site and grade level will be 
determined by administrators. 

 
 Governance: 
 

13.4 Rincon Valley Union School District Academic Calendars for 2018-2019 
Mr.Cook moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the RVUSD academic 
calendars for 2018-2019:  Unanimous.   

 
14. PERSONNEL 
 Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to approve the following personnel items: 

Unanimous.  Mrs. Evers gave a special thank you to our retirees.  
 

14.1  Certificated – Retirements 
 Sallie Brady, Teacher, Spring Creek, effective June 1, 2018 



 

10 
 

 Matt Vallerga, Teacher, Madrone, effective June 1, 2018 
 Diane Wagner, RSP Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective June 1, 2018 

 
14.2 Certificated – Resignations 

 Lindsey Barnes, SDC Teacher, Madrone, effective March 1, 2018 
 DiAnne Wilcox, Teacher, Village, effective June 1, 2018 

 
14.3 Certificated – Leave of Absence Requests 

 Julianne Hendricks, Speech & Language Therapist, RVP, request 50% leave 
of absence, effective August 8, 2018 – May 31, 2019 

 Justin Kornfein, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, request 40% leave of absence,  
effective August 8, 2018 – May 31, 2019 

 
14.4 Classified – New Hires 

 Alexis Casado, Day Care Assistant, Village, effective February 14, 2018 
 Paige Hile, Sp. Ed. Instructional Assistant II, Madrone, effective March 1, 

2018 
 Dana Williams, Sp. Ed. Instructional Assistant II, Sequoia, effective March 1, 

2018 
 Bianca Campos, Day Care Assistant,  Whited, effective March 5, 2018 
 Kiana Vincent, Day Care Assistant, Spring Creek, effective March 5, 2018 
 John Roach, Noon Duty II, Village, effective March 6, 2018 
 Lynda Douglass, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective March 7, 2018 

 
14.5 Classified – Resignations  

 Philip Lane, Noon Duty II, Binkley, effective February 9, 2018 
 
15.      CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 RVUTA:  Thank you to Terry Metzger for presenting the LCAP goals to RVUTA. 

Thank you to Tony Roehrick for scheduling an informational meeting for 
March 29 regarding the 24:1 enrollment model. 

 
16. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
 
  Mrs. Evers:  

 Enjoyed the recent site visits and appreciate everyone’s hard work. 
 

Mr. Cook:   
 Asked the Board if anyone would like to participate in the Wii Tournament 

this Saturday, March 17, 10:00 a.m.   
 Recently attended a parent club meeting and was asked many questions 

about the 24:1 enrollment model.  He asked if a message could go out to 
parents. 

 
Dr. Roehrick will be putting together information and a FAQ regarding the 
24:1 after the March 15 RVUTA negotiations. 



 

11 
 

 
17. NEXT BOARD MEETING AGENDA ITEMS 

 Summer School Plan 
 Curriculum Committee Update 
 Site Visits Report 
 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Renewal  
 LCAP Review and Update 
 Food Service Report 
 Student Health Initiatives 
 Behavior Committee Update 
 Budget Committee Update 
 Williams Quarterly Report 

 
18. CLOSED SESSION 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Wood seconded to return to closed session at 8:30 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 

 
19. OPEN SESSION 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 
open session at 9:36 p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 

20. ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 Mrs. Evers announced that no further action was taken in closed session. 
 
21. ADJOURN 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to adjourn the meeting at 9:37 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 



4/08 
 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Williams Settlement 

Quarterly Uniform Complaint Report Summary 
 

Education Code §35186(d): A school district shall report summarized data on the nature and 
resolution of all complaints on a quarterly basis to the county superintendent of schools and the 
governing board of the school district.  The summaries shall be publicly reported on a quarterly 
basis at a regularly scheduled meeting of the governing board of the school district.  The report 
shall include the number of complaints by general subject area with the number of resolved and 
unresolved complaints.  The complaints and written responses shall be available as public 
records. 
 
Reporting Period: 
 

  January 1 – March 31, 2018  April 1 – June 30, 2018 
  July 1 – September 30, 2018  October 1 – December 31, 2018  

 
No complaints were received during the above time period.  
 
If you received any complaints during the above time period, please complete the 

following table. Enter “0” in any cell that does not apply. 
 

General Subject Area Complaints 
Received 

 

Complaints 
Resolved 

Unresolved 
Complaints 

Instructional Materials 
 

0 0 0 

Facilities 
 

0 0 0 

Teacher Vacancy and/or 
Mis-assignment 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

CAHSEE Intensive 
Instruction and Services 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Total 

 
0   

 
0 

 
0 

 
 
 
Board meeting date: 4/10/18 
Date sent to County Superintendent of Schools: 4/11/18  
Sonoma County Office of Education 
5340 Skylane Blvd.  
Santa Rosa, CA 95403  
 





 

1 

CHANGE ORDER 

March 30, 2018 
 

Project Name Village Elementary School 
Phase 1 

Change Order # 002 

Owner Rincon Valley Union School 
District 

Issuance Date 3/30/18 

Contractor Arntz Builders, Inc. DSA Application # 01-115745 

Architect Dan Hardin DSA File # 49-101 

The work shall be carried out in accordance with the following additional project requirements issued in accordance with the Contract 

Documents.  All changes in Contract Sum or Contract Time are as included in this document. 

1. PCO# 03.1 
Title: Added Roof Drains K Bldg. 
Reason: Add 2 More Drains 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $1,330.92 
Contract Time: 0 days 
Reference Documents: RFI 23 
 

2. PCO# 012 
Title: K Bldg. Security Camera Infrastructure 
Reason: Add 6 Exterior Security Cameras 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows:  
Contract Sum: $5,841.23 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 48 
 

3. PCO# 014 
Title: Instahot Water Heater Power 
Reason: Add Power Source to Instahot Water Heaters 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $10,152.17 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 43 
 

4. PCO# 15.1 
Title: Classroom Back Door Hardware 
Reason: Scope Change 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: ($4,743.75) 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: CCD 08R1 
 
 

5. PCO# 16 
Title: Added Casework Locks 
Reason: Additional 33 Locks Added to Rooms 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to the contract sum as follows: 
Contract Sum: $6,479.66 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: Fremont RFI 



 

2 

6. PCO# 17 
Title: A Bldg. Temp Fire Alarm System 
Reason: Relocate Fire Alarm to Temp Admin Office 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $15,864.02 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI’s 51 & 52 
 

7. PCO# 019 
Title: Added Heat Detector Above K4 
Reason: Add Heat Detector in Crawl Space Above Room K4 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $603.42 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 45 
 

8. PCO# 020 
Title: K3 Corridor Wainscot 
Reason: Install Wainscoting & Maple Trim 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $3,720.54 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: CCD 09 
 

9. PCO# 023 
Title: A Bldg. VCT Abatement 
Reason: Containment for Abatement of Unforeseen VCT Floor Tile & Tile Adhesive 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $6,787.20 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 58 
 

10. PCO# 026 
Title: ( E ) High Voltage Conduit Room A3 
Reason: Relocate Exposed 2” High Voltage Conduit in to Wall Stud Bay Cavity 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $2,756.24 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 60 
 

11. PCO# 029 
Title: Condensate Pumps K Bldg. 
Reason: Provide & Install 2 Little Giant Condensate Pumps 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $2,546.26 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 56.1 
 

12. PCO# 031 
Title: Added PIM Cabling  
Reason: Provide & Install Added 3/4" Conduit Runs 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $11,907.29 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 63 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

13. PCO# 033 
Title: A Bldg. Ext. Wall Insulation  
Reason: Supply & Install R-13 Paper Faced Fiberglass Insulation at all A Bldg. Admin. Exterior Walls 
Requested By: Owner 
Net change to contract sum As follows: 
Contract Sum: $3,308.76 
Contract Time: 0 Days 
Reference Documents: RFI 63 
 

Original Contract Sum was:       $ 6,847,833.00 
New Change by Previously Authorized Change Orders    $ 61,730.79 
The Contract Sum prior to this Change Order was:     $ 6,909,563.79 
The Contract Sum will be increased by this change order by:    $ 66,553.96 
The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be:    $ 6,976,117.75 
Total percentage of the Change Order Amounts to the original contract sum to date:             1.8% 
The Contract Completion Date is:  8/05/18 
New Completion Date change by previously authorized change orders  0 days 
Number of days added/subtracted by this change order:  0 days 
Revised contract Completion Date  8/05/18 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ______________________________             _____________________________ 

Architect                                                                    Contractor                                                                  Owner 

 
___________________________________       __________________________________             __________________________________ 

By:                                                                             By:                                                                             By: 
 
 

___________________________________        _________________________________               __________________________________ 
Date:                                                                          Date:                                                                          Date: 

 
 
 





















NOTICE OF HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED ADOPTION OF A 

DEVELOPER FEE STUDY AND THE INCREASE OF THE STATUTORY 

SCHOOL FEE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley 

Union School District will hold a hearing and consider input from the public on the 

proposed adoption of a Developer Fee Justification Study for the District and an 

increase in the statutory school facility fee (“Level I Fee”) on new residential and 

commercial/industrial developments as approved by the State Allocation Board on 

January 24, 2018.  The adoption of the Study and the increase of the Level I Fee 

are necessary to fund the construction of needed school facilities to accommodate 

students due to development. 

 

Members of the public are invited to comment in writing, on or before APRIL 10th 

2018, or appear in person at the hearing at 6:00 PM on APRIL 10th 2018, at the 

following location:   

 

1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

 

Materials regarding the Study and the Level I Fee are on file and are available for 

public review at the District Office located at the above address.   

 

Dated: March 14, 2018 

  March 21, 2018 
 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

ON RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  

ENTERING INTO AN 

ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of the intention of the Board of Trustees of the 

Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) to consider entering into an energy 

service contract (“Contract”) with Sun Light & Power to design and install solar 

photovoltaic generating facilities at the District Office and Village Elementary School, 

pursuant to the terms of Government Code section 4217.12. 

 

The time and place set for the public hearing on the intention of the 

Board of Trustees to consider entering into the Contract is Tuesday, April 10, 

2018, at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable, at the District Office 

located at 1000 Yulupa Avenue in Santa Rosa, California, 95405.  At such time, 

the testimony of all interested persons for or against the proposed Contract will be 

heard.  Any protest pertaining to the regularity or sufficiency of the proceedings shall 

be in writing and shall clearly set forth the irregularities and defects to which the 

objection is made.  Any written protest shall be filed with Jeff Gospe, Clerk of the 

Board, on or before the time set for the hearing.  The District may waive any 

irregularities in the form or content of any written notice; and, at the hearing may 

correct minor defects in the proceedings.  Written protests may be withdrawn, in 

writing, at any time before the conclusion of the hearing. 

 

DATED: Thursday, March 22, 2018 

 

 

      

Joseph Pandolfo 

Deputy Superintendent of Business Services, 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

 



April 2018 
 
Diana Cavallero 
March Employee of the Month  
 
Diana Cavallero has demonstrated that she highly deserves to be recognized as April Classified 
Employee of the Month for many reasons.  The reasons she was selected is for her willingness 
to always be of assistance to Village teachers and staff, her ability to be flexible, and her fun 
and loving attitude towards events and children.  
 
Diana is always willing to help out wherever she can to be supportive of teacher needs involving 
the computer lab.  She is supportive of teachers’ needs to be of assistance not only in the 
computer lab but will go help out a teacher in the classroom with computer issues.  She is very 
organized in how the computer lab is set up and helps set up a viable schedule for teachers, 
which isn’t always easy.  If the schedule needs to change, she is very flexible and thoughtful to 
all parties involved.  With the high stakes testing, Diana has been instrumental in helping 
teachers learn how to navigate the many tools available with the interim tests.  She even set up 
folders for the teachers, put in a lock herself to have the materials secure, and assists with 
students who need extra time after testing.  Diana makes herself available to be of help, and I 
personally am going to miss her next year when testing comes around.  
 
Diana is also extremely flexible.  This year while in construction and with the fires,  I was moving 
music around, and it was causing a lot of stress with the music teacher.  I went to Diana with my 
dilemma, and we came up with the possibility of having music in the computer lab after lunch. 
Diana said we can just move this desk and they can set up right here in the back.  She had to 
rearrange the computer schedule to make this happen, but it has been working great.  Not ideal, 
but it has benefitted music and has helped out so that music teachers can teach.  Thank you so 
much Diana for being so flexible and being a team player with allowing music to happen in the 
computer lab.  
 
I love how Diana is with children.  She is loving yet firm with them.  She teaches students how to 
be respectful and thoughtful.  When there have been issues, I can always count on Diana’s 
help.  Diana can also be very funny and looks at things in a very unique Diana way that makes 
me laugh.  The computer lab isn’t going to be the same without you next year, and we will all 
miss you.  
 
Cecilia Franco Holt, 
Principal 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Francis A. Binkley 

Elementary School 
4965 Canyon Drive, Santa Rosa, CA 95409-3299    Phone (707) 539-6060      

 
March 30, 2018  

 

Dear RVUSD Board of Trustees, 

 

It is my pleasure to recognize Kristine Warren for Rincon Valley Union School District Teacher 

of the Month in April 2018. Kristine has taught in 3rd grade at the Matanzas campus and Spring 

Creek campus and in 5th grade at Binkley. 

 

When you walk into Kristine’s classroom, students are always busy learning, and frequently they 

are working collaboratively. Kristine has belief in each of her students that they can meet high 

expectations. They know she believes in them, and they work very hard for her day in and day 

out. With so much to cover in 5th grade, Kristine is savvy about integrating lessons. Read-

alouds of books like Wonder helps foster a classroom culture of empathy. Kristine draws out her 

scholars by learning their strengths and purposefully designing lessons and activities where 

those strengths are shared with their classmates.   

 

Kristine jumps at the chance to attend conferences and trainings to further her professional 

growth. She is very creative with taking curricular materials and strategies and putting them to 

practice in her classroom. Last year she attended an Engage New York math conference, and 

revamped her math lesson design and delivery with great success. This year, she is constantly 

seeking ways to more efficiently and effectively utilize our Benchmark Advance program, and 

has seen great success with her productive group work routines.  

 

Kristine shares her talents and strengths with the school and district. She runs our student 

council, and works in collaboration with Safe Routes to School to do Walk and Roll to School 

Days each month. Kristine has been involved in Latino Family Literacy from her first year of 

teaching. A long-standing tradition at Binkley is our annual talent show. Kristine writes a very 

entertaining script for the announcers, which makes us wonder if she has a future as a comedy 

writer in Hollywood. Kristine is an advocate in our advocacy program and a Safe School 

Ambassador mentor. Kristine is on our school’s instructional leadership team, meeting each 

month with the team to analyze school data and create action plans as we work to meet our 

school goals. She helps at Literacy Night and the Science Fair. She is a teacher representative 

on Site Council. Kristine joins district curricular committees as well. She is very tech savvy, so 



frequently joins district trainings and committees focused on technology. She is our site GATE 

liaison and CTA representative.  

 

Even through some extremely difficult life challenges recently, Kristine brings to school her high 

energy and her urgency for her students to learn. She continues to give of her time and talents 

making a positive impact at Binkley.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

Kelly Lister 

Principal  

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.1 

Subject: Food Service Report 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent 
   Mrs. Alison Smith, Food Service and Operations Supervisor 
 
Background: In the spring, the Food Service Department provides an annual report to the board. 
 
Highlights: The department has worked diligently on planning and over time will improve the 

departments quality and financial bottom line 

Challenges: The District has declined in enrollment the last few years, which decreases sales 
and has made it more difficult to balance the budget. 

Analysis: The food service staff has several thoughts on how to address the current financial 
challenge.   Please see the attached report. 

Next Steps: The board may provide direction to the Food Service Staff for any suggested 
changes. 

 
Attachments: Food Service Overview Report 
 Sodexo analysis report 
 
Fiscal Impact:  NA 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



RVUSD Food Service Department Board Report 
2017-18 

 

Background 
The Rincon Valley Union School District has partnered with Sodexo for the past seven years to 
better provide nutritious meals to the district’s student population. Together we are proud to 
offer whole grain, trans-fat free meals that meet the standards of the Health Hunger Free Kids 
Act of 2010. 
 
Financial Summary 
Fund 13 is projected to have an operating loss of $80,000 for the 2017-18 school year. This loss 
is in part due to the 2017 Northern California Wildfires. The fires caused the district to be 
closed for 11 days therefore losing sales for exactly half the month of October. This loss is an 
estimated total of $45,500.00.   
 
The approved Free and Reduced percentage is currently at 49%, which is about a 14% increase 
from the 2016-17 SY. This was mainly due to a one-time anomaly in the direct certification by 
the State of California. We also saw an increase due to the new housing status of many of our 
2017 wildfire victims.  
 
Our year to date state commodity usage is at $39,950.  Participating in the USDA commodity 
program benefits us financially by reducing the cost of foods purchased through our processors. 
 
Business Review 
A team of 5 Sodexo consultants performed a review of the Food Service Department January 
2018. It was determined our key areas of focus should be: 

- Financials 
o Increase meal prices 
o Implement 26 MPLH and above in all of our kitchens 

- Staffing 
o Advertise using school menus, school newsletters and flyers 
o Provide staff with more extensive onboarding and training to decrease 

turnover 
- Compliance 

o Site Monitoring Review’s done three times per year beginning 2018-19 SY 
o Compliance related training for staff  

- Meal Growth/Increased Participation 
o Notify families of non-participating students and gather feedback 
o Implement Captured program 

 
Accomplishments 

 All sites successfully passed Site Monitoring Reviews and County Health Inspections for 
the current school year 



 Introducing more fresh baked items to the kitchens  

 New freezer installed at Matanzas Elementary 

 Monthly staff meetings were held to work on training, staff development, safety, 
mission statement development and strategic planning 
 

Promotions 

 Build Your Own Burger Bar – all sites 

 Taco Tuesday’s – all sites  

 Nacho Bar – all sites  

 Pizza Party – all sites 

 Thanksgiving Feast at Matanzas – November 18th, 2017 

 Fresh baked holiday cookies: Halloween, Thanksgiving, Christmas, Dr. Seuss Day, Cookie 
Day, etc. 

 Future Chef Competition – March 15th, 2018 

 April: Nacho Bar 

 May: BBQ’s   
 



RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BUSINESS REVIEW 

 
 
This document compiles the outcomes and recommendations of the 2017-2018 Business Review at 

RVUSD. 

  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 1 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

On January 15th, we had a team of 5 Sodexo consultants perform a business review of the Nutrition 

Services Department.  Over the past few years we have seen a decrease in meal participation and in 

profitability.  The task of the business review group was to look at all aspects of the business including, 

but not limited to: participation, customer service, staffing, financials, compliance, quality of food/menu, 

principal feedback, and opportunities.   

Over two days information was gathered.   It was determined that four areas needed to be a focus for 

the department.  These four areas are: 

 Financials 

 Staffing 

 Compliance 

 Meal Growth 

 
FINANCIALS

Over the past three years, Rincon Valley has seen a decrease in participation.   

 

* Year end forecast 

 

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

1,200

1,400

1,600

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18 *

Meal Participation - Average Daily Participation (ADP) 

Breakfast Lunch Non-Reimburseable



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 2 

Enrollment and free and reduced percentage has had a slight decrease over the years, which has 

contributed to the decrease in participation.  In 17-18 USDA changed the way they looked at direct 

certified families, by now adding Medicaid families.  Free and Reduced increased to 53%, but this has 

not translated into more meal participation.  We think this is due to several factors: direct certification 

process, communication to families and families opting out. 

 

 

* Year end forecast 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3200

3250

3300

3350

3400

3450

3500

3550

3600

3650

3700

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18*

Free and Reduced % and Enrollment 

Free Reduce Enrollment



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 3 

Below is a breakdown of each category.  Free eligibility is skewed based on new process of Direct 

Certification picking up Medicaid families.  It is still undetermined if these families are aware of the 

recent changes. 

 

 

 

 

56% 

53% 

22% 

% of Students Participating in Lunch 

Free Reduced Paid

36% 

34% 

10% 

% of Students Participating in  
Breakfast 

Free Reduced Paid



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 4 

Last year the food service fund lost $23K and projecting another loss for 17-18.  The loss in 14-15 was 

due to modernization of Village Kitchen.  The loss for the this year is projected to be higher than last 

year due to loss of service days caused by the October wildfires.  

 

Recommendations: 

1.  Increase your breakfast and lunch meal prices by $0.25 per meal for 18-19.  This will bring in an 

additional $30,406 of revenue. 

2.  FCMAT is recommending 30 Meals per Labor Hour (MPLH).  Below is your current MPLH: 

School Meals/Month MPLH 
 

Hours 

Austin Creek 1,984 19.08 6.5 

Binkley 3,333 24.50 8.5 

Sequoia + Charter 2,714 16.15 10.5 

Madrone 3,200 23.53 8.5 

Matanzas + Charter 3,446 22.67 9.5 

Spring Creek 3,336 26.06 8.0 

Village  3,896 27.83 8.75 

Whited 4,084 29.17 8.75 

MPLH 25,992 23.62 69 
 

 

 

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18

Profit/(Loss) -121031 24299 -23094 -73881

-140000

-120000

-100000

-80000

-60000

-40000

-20000

0

20000

40000

Profit/(Loss) 

14-15 15-16 16-17 17-18



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 5 

 To make your kitchens more efficient, we are recommending the following actions: 

School Meals/Month MPLH 
 

Hours 

Austin Creek 1,984 20.66 6.0 

Binkley 3,333 26.04 8.0 

Sequoia + Charter 2,714 22.61 7.5 

Madrone 3,200 26.67 7.5 

Matanzas + Charter 3,446 25.34 8.5 

Spring Creek 3,336 26.06 8 

Village  3,896 27.83 8.75 

Whited 4,084 29.17 8.75 

MPLH 25,992 25.55 63 
 

3.  In an effort to trim unnecessary labor, we recommend removing early breakfast at Sequoia Elementary. 

Children will still have the option of coming in at Second Chance Breakfast (10:00am) for the same menu 

offerings. This is currently being done at Austin Creek Elementary. The chart below shows the number of 

children served per day at early morning breakfast using a two week average: 

   

School 
Children 

Served/Day 

Austin Creek No early breakfast 

Binkley 25.3 

Sequoia + Charter 2.8 

Madrone 15.9 

Matanzas + Charter 23.6 

Spring Creek 41.4 

Village  43.6 

Whited 22.8 
 

STAFFING:

Concerns: Kitchens are understaffed. This puts stress on the entire system. It causes inaccurate orders, an 

inconsistency in the meals prepared at the affected sites, increased stress and a decrease in employee moral 

for the employees who are affected by the absences, and so on.  

 

Recommendations:  

 Add job postings to Craigslist, Food Service menus and school newsletters to attract more candidates  

 Provide staff with more extensive onboarding and training to decrease turnover 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 6 

 Hang flyers at local businesses 

 Develop a recognition program to help retention and increase morale. 

 Safety training to help reduced W/C expenses and absenteeism. 

 

  

Updates:  

 Postings have been added to Craigslist, school menu, and school newsletters 

 Four subs have been hired  

 Any schools who had a 1% increase in meal counts from January to February will be rewarded March 

16  

 

 

COMPLIANCE

 

Concerns: The key issues regarding non-compliance is staff not requiring students to take a fruit or vegetable 

with lunch and a fruit at breakfast. The concern with this is that reimbursement can be taken from the district if 

an auditor witnesses this, as any meal served without a fruit/vegetable is considered non-compliant.  

 

Recommendations:  

 Provide staff with more training related to compliance and WHY it is important.  

 Site Monitoring Reviews to be conducted once per month at each site to ensure sites are continuing to 

comply with federal and state guidelines.  

 Review previous audit reports 

 Customer Service Training on a monthly basis 

 

Updates:  

 Provided compliance training at the January and February meetings 

 Customer service training with Joe Pandolfo scheduled for March 2018 

 Site Monitoring Reviews have been completed for January and February  

 

MEAL GROWTH

 

Concerns: F/R eligible parents may not be aware of their eligibility. This can cause a decrease in 

participation.   

 

Recommendations:  

 Notify all families of F/R eligibility by letter 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 7 

 Place calls home to F/R students who have not participated in the past month and gather detailed 

data as to why they choose not to participate 

 The feedback gathered from these calls will allow the department to improve their services 

 Menu Re-engineering 

 School Newsletter 

 Student Surveys 

 Captured:  

o Customers (students) document their experience through photos and discuss the specifics with 

us. The result is a much more in depth understanding of their opinions far beyond what any 

pencil and paper survey can provide.  

o Start by identifying the school, then the participants. Ideally you will select 3-5 pairs of 

students. 

o Day 1 – Brief the students before the service period, give then their cameras, and then allow 

them to document the serve. Students are encouraged to take as many pictures as they would 

like. After the serve as they eat their lunch they must narrow down to the 5 most relevant 

photos depiciting1 thing we do really well, and 4 that they see as opportunity for 

improvement for us 

o Day 2 – Each teams photos are put into PowerPoint presentation beforehand and we discuss 

what they were thinking, feeling, and doing when they took the submitted photos. This leads to 

open dialog and probing questions that provide a whole new level of insight. With pictures of 

what your business looks like through your customer’s eyes it allows you to improve on the 

problems that are most important to them. Pictures also allow you to better work with your 

staff on these opportunities. There is invaluable insight gained by what your customers can 

show you! 

 

Updates:  

 Phone calls have been made to 4 of the 8 school sites and will continue until they are complete  

 Letters have been sent to 3 of the 8 sites 

 Captured cameras have been ordered 

 Data collected from the 171 phone calls home is pictured below:  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Business Review 

Page 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Left Message/Invalid Number
(107)

Picky/Prefers Home
Lunch/Allergies (37)

Not Aware of Eligibility (14)

Will Talk to Child (7)

Does Not Like Food (4)

Long Lines (2)



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.2a 

Subject: Summer School Plan 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum 

 
Background: Each summer we offer a summer intervention program for students who need a 

“jumpstart” before the regular school year starts. We also offer a summer ELD 
Academy for students at the Intermediate level of English language proficiency. 

 
Highlights: When we review academic performance data on students who attend the ELD 

academy almost half of them (47-48%) each year made the jump from 
Intermediate to Early Advanced or Advanced (thus achieving a critical step to 
reclassification).  

Challenges: One challenge with Summer School is that students who attend the jumpstart 
summer intervention program do not tend to show significant gains. However, 
most of them are able to at least maintain their academic standing from the 
previous year. For example, a student who was receiving 2s in Math on the report 
card, will continue to perform in the 2 range. Empirical research supports our 
findings (Hattie, 2009, .23 ES). 

 A second challenge is a temporary one, yet impacts what services we are able to 
offer during the summer. Thanks to the generosity of our voters, our bond 
construction program is in full swing. Just as was the case last summer, there are 
significant renovation projects happening at nearly all of our schools over the 
summer. This year, the installation of windows and air conditioning creates unsafe 
conditions for students. 

Analysis: Based on the student achievement data, we will prioritize the ELD Academy this 
summer. It is our intent to reinstate Summer School in 2019. 

Next Steps: We have secured 6 classrooms, plus some office space, at Madrone Elementary to 
operate the ELD Academy from July 9-26, 2018. Approximately 120 English 
Learners will be served in the program (including about 20 incoming 
kindergarteners). 

Attachments: none 
 
Fiscal Impact: Approx. $20,000, already budgeted from LCFF Supplemental Funds 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.2b 

Subject: District Curriculum Committee Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum 

 
Background: The District Curriculum Committee has continued to develop recommendations for 

further implementation of high quality instruction in the areas of ELA, ELD, and 
Math. 

 
Highlights: Representatives from the committee will be present at the Board meeting to make 

formal recommendations in each of the areas studied. 

Challenges: n/a 

Analysis: n/a 

Next Steps: n/a 

 
Attachments: n/a 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Allocation of funds based on committee’s recommendations 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.3a 

Subject: Behavior Committee 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent, Student Services 

 
Background: A district level committee was formed this year to look at the interventions that we 

have in place around student behavior and to determine what is needed to support 
students and staff around “Behavior”.   The focus of the district has been on Tier I 
level interventions and proactive skill building.  The committee will be tackling the 
following areas: 

1. What are our district-wide Tier I interventions and how should they be 
universally implemented? 

2. What are our district-wide Tier II interventions and how should they be 
universally implemented? 

3. What are our district-wide Tier III interventions and how should they 
be universally implemented? 

4. Creating an In School Suspension Program 
The committee is made up of 3 administrators, 4 teachers and 3 specialists. 

 
Highlights: The Behavior Committee has met two times.  The first meeting resulted in 

agreement on 4 practices/programs that should be provided to ALL students to 
give them the basic tools needed positively participate in the school setting.   The 
second meeting focused on roles of different staff in supporting the successful 
implementation of Tier I programs and in identifying Tier II supports.     

Challenges: The committee spent a significant amount of time on outlining the process for 
when a student moves from Tier I to needing Tier II interventions.  Some of the 
challenges were seen around the time needed to collect accurate data and then 
collaboratively create a plan.  With a plan, the committee then discussed the 
challenges of gathering the necessary materials to support the plan.   

Analysis: It was expected that day 2 would be the most challenging in creating a shared 
understanding/agreement of how students would move from Tier I to Tier II and 
what supports are a part of Tier II.  There was great discussion about what was 
“doable” and what might be overwhelming to staff.  Committee members agreed to 
start with the following Tier II steps: 

 Collection of data on the behaviors including antecedents, 
frequency, duration and consequences.   

 Collaborative creation of a plan to address 1-2 behaviors at a time 
 Home to School communication system to support the plan 
 Two-three-week review of the plan implementation and efficacy 
 Ongoing review and adjustments to the plan 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
 
 
     

Next Steps: The Committee will meet again on April 23rd.   The focus of this meeting will be to 
review the documents that were generated/modified from the last meeting and to 
discuss Tier III interventions.  It is the hope of the committee to also start a 
discussion on creating an In School Suspension (ISS) Program.     

 
Attachments: None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None yet 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.3b 

Subject: Student Survey 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent, Student Services 

 
Background: The Student Climate Survey is given to students in grades 3-8 each spring.  The 

information that is received from it is critical to the planning of programs and 
services.  There are 11 questions and students are asked to rate their response as 
Always, Often, Sometimes or Never.  Some questions ask for students to explain 
their response.   

 
Highlights: An area of positive growth can be seen in the percentage of students indicating that 

the school rules are fairly enforced for all students.  The percentage of students 
who reported always/often increased from 73.8% to 75.5%.   Students reporting 
being happy to be at their school increased also.   The increase was from 78.2% to 
80%.   

Challenges: The survey represents the stressors that have been felt this year.  Many areas on the 
survey showed a decline in positive responses.  While it is not surprising that 
students are feeling more unsettled, this year, it is disappointing.  4% of students 
report that they never feel safe or happy at school.   

Analysis: The results indicate that we are on the right path with the District Behavior 
Committee.  It is important that we continue to work with staff and students to 
ensure that they have the tools to understand and regulate emotions.   Students 
reported that other students treat them and others with respect always/often only 
65.3% of the time.  There is work to be done in that area.   

Next Steps: The data will be shared with the Principals and Counselors to discuss how the 
programs that we currently have in place need to change to support student needs.   

 
Attachments: Student Survey Summary for Board Report Spring 2018 
 
Fiscal Impact: None at this time  
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



RVUSD Student Survey Results Spring 2018

K‐6  16/17  K‐6 17/18 7‐8 16/17 7‐8 17/18 K‐8 16/17 K‐8 17/18

My teacher(s) helps me or makes sure that I get extra help when I need it.

Always 46.4% 38.2% 34.0% 42.7% 43.9% 39.1%

Often 28.3% 31.0% 41.5% 39.7% 30.9% 32.7%

Sometimes 23.1% 29.3% 23.5% 17.5% 23.2% 27.0%

Never 2.3% 1.5% 1.0% 0.0% 2.0% 1.2%

My teacher encourages me to work hard and follow school rules.

Always 74.6% 72.9% 58.5% 62.9% 71.4% 70.9%

Often 15.8% 16.3% 28.5% 27.3% 18.3% 18.5%

Sometimes 7.9% 8.8% 12.0% 9.3% 8.7% 8.9%

Never 1.8% 2.0% 1.0% 0.5% 1.6% 1.7%

I feel safe at school.

Always 52.9% 50.0% 51.5% 46.8% 52.6% 49.4%

Often 25.0% 26.5% 31.0% 34.5% 26.2% 28.1%

Sometimes 18.4% 19.4% 15.0% 13.9% 17.7% 18.3%

Never 3.8% 4.2% 2.5% 4.8% 3.5% 4.3%

There is an adult on campus who I feel comortable going to when I have a problem.

Always 37.8% 35.2% 35.0% 34.9% 37.3% 35.1%

Often 24.5% 24.5% 25.0% 24.2% 24.6% 24.5%

Sometimes 27.7% 30.0% 23.0% 22.2% 26.8% 28.4%

Never 10.0% 10.3% 17.0% 18.8% 11.4% 12.0%

Most students at my school treat me and others with respect.

Always 21.9% 20.8% 20.0% 22.5% 21.5% 21.2%

Often 40.4% 42.3% 42.0% 51.0% 40.7% 44.1%

Sometimes 33.5% 34.5% 33.0% 23.9% 33.4% 32.4%

Never 4.3% 2.3% 5.0% 2.6% 4.4% 2.4%

I feel safe on the playground/school yard.

Always 50.6% 47.6% 54.5% 50.9% 51.4% 48.3%

Often 31.6% 30.6% 32.5% 37.6% 31.8% 32.0%

Sometimes 15.1% 18.4% 10.0% 9.2% 14.1% 16.6%

Never 2.6% 3.4% 3.0% 2.3% 2.7% 3.2%

The school rules are fairly enforced for all students.

Always 48.3% 50.7% 32.0% 33.6% 45.0% 47.2%

Often 27.0% 26.5% 36.0% 35.7% 28.8% 28.3%

Sometimes 20.1% 18.3% 26.5% 25.0% 21.4% 19.6%

Never 4.6% 4.6% 5.5% 5.7% 4.8% 4.8%



RVUSD Student Survey Results Spring 2018

The principal and other staff at my school care about me.

Always 64.1% 72.0% 55.0% 67.5% 62.3% 71.1%

Often 22.3% 14.1% 29.0% 17.8% 23.6% 14.8%

Sometimes 11.1% 11.0% 11.5% 11.8% 11.2% 11.1%

Never 2.5% 3.0% 4.5% 2.9% 2.9% 3.0%

Staff treat students fairly and with respect.

Always 53.6% 51.6% 45.0% 43.5% 51.9% 50.0%

Often 31.4% 30.6% 32.0% 36.9% 31.5% 31.9%

Sometimes 12.3% 15.5% 20.5% 17.9% 13.9% 16.0%

Never 2.8% 2.3% 2.5% 1.7% 2.7% 2.2%

I feel as though I am part of my school and that there are activities that I can particpate in.

Always 50.3% 49.0% 46.0% 50.9% 49.4% 49.4%

Often 28.3% 30.9% 30.0% 29.3% 28.6% 30.5%

Sometimes 17.8% 17.2% 19.5% 16.3% 18.1% 17.0%

Never 3.8% 3.0% 4.5% 3.5% 3.9% 3.1%

I am happy to be at this school.

Always 58.4% 57.6% 41.5% 47.5% 55.0% 55.6%

Often 20.5% 23.6% 34.0% 27.7% 23.2% 24.4%

Sometimes 16.9% 15.2% 18.5% 19.0% 17.2% 16.0%

Never 4.3% 3.6% 6.0% 5.8% 4.6% 4.1%



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.4 

Subject: District Budget Committee Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Business 

 
Background: The District budget committee last met on March 22, 2018 
 
Highlights: Both CTA and CSEA sent representatives to the meeting and it was articulated that 

they found the meeting informative.  Also in attendance were board members Jeff 
Gospe and Mike Cook as well as Dr. Roehrick and myself.    There were other 
members who were not able to attend. 

Challenges: The information shared to the committee, was essentially the same information 
presented to the board on March 13th for the Second Interim Report.  In addition to 
the challenges to balancing the general fund caused largely by increased pension 
system obligations and declining enrollment, there was discussion on the 
challenges with the Day Care and Food Service Budget. 

Analysis: The budget has some challenges to maintain a good financial standing especially in 
the FY 2019 food service and day care funds. 

Next Steps:  The board will need to provide direction regarding the day care and food service 
program to reduce or eliminate there operating deficits. 

 
Attachments: None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Discussion Only 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.5 

Subject: LCAP Update 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

 
Background: The District has followed its extensive process to assess our progress in meeting 

the current year’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) goals, to gather input 
from stakeholders on our goals, and on shaping the new LCAP.  Our Annual 
Update began in August with the release of the state testing results.  Due to the 
October wildfires, our initial site-based outreach was delayed, but all meetings 
were held.  The results were then analyzed to identify emerging themes.  The first 
draft of the LCAP goals and actions/services was developed and shared through 
face-to-face meetings and through a survey.  The result is the current document 
presented at this meeting to the Governing Board. 

 
Highlights: The 2018-19 LCAP carries over our goals and various means to achieve the goals 

from the 2017-18 plan.  Two goals were consolidated for efficiency. Goal #2 
addresses access to core courses.  This element is a high school issue where a 
diversity of course work is provided, such as advanced placement, whereby not all 
students have access.  All students in RVUSD have access to every core course 
offered.  Therefore, it makes sense to add this area to Goal #1, where all other 
foundational LCAP elements are contained. 

Challenges: For the second year, the leading input from all stakeholders is to increase 
counseling at our schools.  Our challenge to meet this desire is fiscal as the 
District’s resources continue to be eroded by the ongoing increases to support 
employee State retirement plans. 

Analysis: The proposed LCAP identifies our greatest areas for focus and provides a blueprint 
of actions and services to meet our goals.   

Next Steps: Proposed changes to the document will be incorporated into the next version of the 
document.  In addition, as final budget information is received, and the proposed 
2018-19 district budget is developed, financial information in the goals and 
summary sections will be updated.  The LCAP will return to the May 8 meeting 
for a public hearing.  If any changes are needed, they will be incorporated in to the 
document to return to the June 12 Board meeting for adoption. 

 
Attachments: RVUSD 2018-19 Draft #1 LCAP 
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 



Page 1 of 147

LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 
 

            2018-19    

 
 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics [Note: this text will be hyperlinked to the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubric web page when it becomes available.]: 
Essential data to support completion of this LCAP. Please analyze the 
LEA’s full data set; specific links to the rubrics are also provided within 
the template. 
 

 
LEA Name 

Rincon Valley Union School 
District            

Contact Name and Title 

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.            
Superintendent 

Email and Phone 

troehrick@rvusd.org            
(707) 542-7375 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Rincon Valley Union School District is primarily a TK through 6th grade elementary district.  The 
district also operates a charter 7-8 middle school program housed on two campuses.  The district is 
located in the eastern portion of Santa Rosa.  The district community consists of mostly residential 
housing, with the typical commercial properties to support residential living.  The significant 
business, shopping, and industrial portions of Santa Rosa are located outside of the district's 
boundaries.  Santa Rosa is the county seat for Sonoma County and is located in the North Bay 
Area, approximately 54 miles north of San Francisco.  Sonoma County is well know for its wine and 
tourism industries. 
 
Enrollment for district in 2016-17 was 3,552 students.  Of these, 57% self-identified as White, not 
Hispanic, 28% self-identified as Hispanic, 5% self-identified as Asian, not Hispanic, and 3% self-
identified as African American, not Hispanic.  The remaining 7% of students self-identified as other 
ethnicities.  In terms of language demographics, 78% of students are English only, 12% are English 
learners, 6% are reclassified English learners, and 3% are initial reclassified English learners.  33% 
of the district's students are eligible for the free and reduced lunch program. 
 
The district operates ten school programs located on eight campuses.  Seven of the programs are 
organized as district operated charter schools.  The schools include Austin Creek (K-6), Binkley 
Charter (TK-6), Madrone (TK-6), Sequoia (K-6), Spring Creek/Matanzas Charter (TK-6, operated on 
two campuses), Village Charter (K-6), Whited Charter (K-6), Rincon Valley Charter School-Matanzas 
(7-8), and Rincon Valley Charter School-Sequoia (7-8).  The district maintains TK-3 class sizes 
under 24 and staffs grade 4-8 class size at 30:1.  The district does not configure combination 
classes, resulting in all general education classes of a single grade level.  Each school is provided 
with a site administrator, an office manager, office support staff (TK-6 schools), bilingual family 
liaison, a support coordinator to manage interventions programs, a dedicated counselor and a 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/49708960000000/3/EquityReport


Page 2 of 147

counselor intern.  Special Education support includes RSP teachers and support staff, Special Day 
Classes (K-6), school psychologists, behaviorists, speech and language teachers, and other 
ancillary support staff as designated by student IEPs.  Schools are also provided English learner 
instructional support and interventions specialists.  The district employs a number of Consulting 
Teachers to provide support for teachers in ELA, math, technology, GATE, and English learner 
services. 
 
         

 
 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

The 2017-18 RVUSD LCAP builds upon our prior year goals and initiatives.  We have consolidated 
two goals (Basic Supports with Full Range of Courses), though have retained the essence of our 
original six that address the State's eight priority areas.  In doing so, we have made adjustments to 
our annual measurable outcomes to incorporate the new California School Dashboard 
accountability metrics.  RVUSD has take the approach to weave parent involvement throughout our 
goals.  We have defined parent involvement to comprise of three components: 
1. Parents as leaders (e.g., site council, ELAC/DELAC, Parent Advisory) 
2. Parents as partners (e.g., attending parent/teacher conferences, parent organizations) 
3. Parents as learners (e.g., parent education) 
 
Goal #1 addresses the foundational aspects of effective schools (Basic Supports) to include: 
1. Highly qualified teachers 
2. Standards aligned instructional materials 
3. Facilities in good repair 
4. Access to the full range of core courses 
5. Deep involvement of parents as leaders 
 
Items 1 - 3 above are required by the State to address.  Item #4 is our former Goal #2.  Access to 
the full range of core courses has been folded in this goal because we consider this to as 
foundational as the other items included in Goal #1.  RVUSD has added parent leadership as an 
additional foundational pillar because we know that deep involvement by parents in leadership roles 
is a key indicator of a healthy and vibrant learning community.  In the prior LCAP year, our outcome 
was to ensure each school had a functioning parent organization, a site council, and for those 
schools with 50 or more English learners, an English Learner Advisory Council (ELAC).  This LCAP 
year requires schools to have these leadership groups fully constituted as measured by each 
groups' bylaws. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 3 of 147

Goal #3 addresses safe and positive school environments.  This has been an area of emphasis for 
the District.  In 2015-16, we committed extensive fiscal resources to bring full-time counselors to 
our schools.  We also created an office clerk position to assist us better monitor and address 
attendance issues.  Other efforts include expanding school-wide programs that intentionally provide 
students with the tools they need to be thoughtful and respectful members of our society.  We 
believe we have made tremendous progress in this area.  We are now moving beyond the 
implementation phase of our efforts to fine-tuning how we use our new resources to ensure 
students continue to experience safe and nurturing learning environments. 
 
Goal #4 addresses our expectations concerning language arts achievement.  Our metrics include 
State assessment results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we 
are attentive to the progress of all of our students, we have specifically identified being at grade 
level at the end of 3rd grade as our overarching goal.  We have done this because of the extensive 
research clearly linking end of 3rd grade status in reading as an indicator of future success as 
learners. 
 
Goal #5 addresses our expectations concerning mathematics achievement.  Our metrics include 
State assessment results on the CAASPP, as well as local benchmark assessments.  Though we 
are attentive to the progress of all of our students, we have specifically identified being at grade 
level at the end of 6th grade as our overarching goal.  We know that if students are not at grade 
level by the end of 8th grade, they will be unable to complete all of the required math coursework in 
high school to be eligible for a four year college.  However, since our middle school population 
represents only a small percentage of our elementary students (most attend the comprehensive 
middle schools in the secondary district) we are using 6th grade as our key grade. 
 
Goal #6 addresses the progress of our English learners in attaining English proficiency.  In the prior 
LCAP year, our metrics were tied to the former State English learner accountability model.  We 
have adjusted our metrics to align with the California Dashboard.  However, with the change in the 
State assessment that measures English learner progress in attaining English, the California 
School Dashboard will be in a holding pattern during much of the three years this LCAP represents. 
         
 

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other 
information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that 
success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
The LCFF Rubrics that are the underpinning of the California School Dashboard provide status and 
change information based on the spring 2016 and 2017 results.  As a district, we are in the Green 
zone for English language arts (ELA) for all students with a Status of High (33.8 pts. above Level 3) 
and a Change of Maintained (-0.24 pts.).  For ELA, our socio-economically disadvantaged students 
Maintained.  In Mathematics, we are in the Green zone for all students with a Status of High (18.4 
pts. above level 3) and a Change of Increased (+ 3.5 pts.).  In Mathematics, all of our subgroups 
either Maintained or Increased over the following year. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 4 of 147

Our California School Dashboard results for English learner progress was also promising.  This 
measure the percent of students who have made increased one level on the CELDT from the prior 
year.  Our Status was High (84.3%) and our Change was Increased Significantly (19.2%).  This 
placed us in the Blue zone on the LCFF Rubric.  Other measures attest to our solid gains in English 
learner progress.  Our reclassification rate, based on the October 2017 census, shows 14.8% of 
English learners were reclassified.  Our LCAP goal for 2017-18 was 15%. 
 
 

 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which 
overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not 
Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined 
need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What 
steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for improvement?  
 
Greatest Needs 
For English Language Arts, there are four subgroups in the Orange zone (English learners, socio-
economically disadvantaged, students with disabilities, and Hispanic students).  We have adopted a 
new ELA program that includes a comprehensive ELD component.  This program includes specific 
materials and strategies for differentiation of curriculum for varying groups of students.  We have 
provided extensive professional development for our teachers and will provide additional 
professional development this summer. 
 
In Mathematics, English learners are in the Orange zone.  We identified improvement in 
Mathematics as a key initiative for the LCAP years this plan addresses.  Additional Professional 
development designed to ensure greater consistency in instruction occurs.  We have also provided 
extensive professional development for our principals in both the components of our math program 
and also in strategies to collect data on program implementation and coaching for teachers.  Our 
overall focus on increasing principal capacity as instructional leaders is a key aspect of our efforts. 
 
For Suspension /Rate, here are two subgroups in the Orange zone (socio-economically 
disadvantaged and two or more races).  The increases in suspensions from year to year is due to an 
internal recording protocol of suspensions.  Suspensions were over-reported last year.  We expect 
this area to rectify itself in future years. 
 
 
 

 
Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
For English Language Arts, there are four subgroups in the Orange zone (English learners, socio-
economically disadvantaged, students with disabilities, and Hispanic students) that are two levels 
below the all students result of being in the blue zone.  We have adopted a new ELA program that 
includes a comprehensive ELD component.  This program includes specific materials and strategies 
for differentiation of curriculum for varying groups of students.  We have provided extensive 
professional development for our teachers and will provide additional professional development this 
summer. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 5 of 147

In Mathematics, English learners (Orange zone) are the only subgroup to be two levels below the all 
students in the Green zone.  We identified improvement in Mathematics as a key initiative for the 
LCAP years this plan addresses.  Additional Professional development designed to ensure greater 
consistency in instruction occurs.  We have also provided extensive professional development for 
our principals in both the components of our math program and also in strategies to collect data on 
program implementation and coaching for teachers.  Our overall focus on increasing principal 
capacity as instructional leaders is a key aspect of our efforts. 
 
 

 
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve 
services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth. 
 
Increased or Improved services 
The key improved service for English learners is the provision of a comprehensive and daily 
designated ELD program that will be delivered to English leaners based on their current status on 
the continuum of acquiring English.  Extensive professional development for all teachers occurred 
last the summer.   Site and district administrators have also received this training and are therefore, 
better equipped to guide the implementation of our new new ELA/ELD curriculum.  We also have 
two full-time consulting teachers that will assist teachers.  Our administrative team will continually 
review their observations of practice so we understand the success of our implementation.  While 
none of this improved service is funded through supplemental funding, it does demonstrate the 
District's commitment to closing our achievement gap and accelerating reclassification for our 
English learners.   
 

 

Budget Summary 
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics. 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total General Fund Budget Expenditures For LCAP Year $30,375,152.00 

 

Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to 
Meet The Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year 

$8,771,500.00 

 
The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget 
Expenditures. Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP 
year not included in the LCAP. 

All of the district's expenditures that support our LCAP goals are embedded with each goal.  
Additional General Fund expenditures support our core mission as an educational organization.  
these include, but are not limited to clerical, custodial, maintenance, food service, and other related 
administrative costs.         
 
 
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT 
Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year $11,752,122.00 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 6 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, and facilities in good repair (Basic 
Supports).          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly qualified 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to the 
California State adopted standards as supported by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form 
submitted by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Each school has full parent leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 50 or more English learners, as 
defined by each groups bylaws. 
        

 1. Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by 
an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2. Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in all 
core 
subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria as verified 
by the 
Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each teacher. 
3. Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for being 
in 
good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4. Parents participate in a number of site-based decision-making groups that 
include Site Council, PTA/PTO, and ELAC.  The percent of parent 
participation in Site Council, as defined by their bylaws, is 100%.  The 
percent of parent participation in PTA/PTO, as defined by their bylaws, is 
100%.  The percent of parent participation in ELAC, as defined by their 
bylaws, is 100%. 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 7 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Every teacher providing core instruction is classified as highly qualified 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student is provided core instructional materials that align to the 
California State adopted standards as supported by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form 
submitted by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and learning facility operated by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Parent groups have multiple opportunities to advise individual schools 
and the District as evidenced by school and district calendared events. 
        
Baseline 
1.  Every student received all core instruction from highly qualified teachers 
as defined by the State of California's Highly Qualified teacher criteria and 
measured by an audit of all teacher credentials. 
2.  Every student was provided standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas as supported by the State textbook adoption criteria 
as verified by the Instructional Materials Order Form submitted by each 
teacher. 
3.  Every student was housed in facilities that meet the State criteria for 
being in good repair as verified by annual FIT site inspections. 
4.  Parents were provided multiple opportunities to participate in leadership 
groups including  PTA/PTO, School Site Council, School and District 
Advisory Committees, and ELAC/DELAC,  that consult and advise individual 
schools and the District. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Ensure every student receives all 
core instruction from highly 
qualified teachers. 

 Every student received all core 
instruction from highly 
qualified teachers. 
 

 Kindergarten Assistants salary 
and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-
3) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 
$52,000  

 Kindergarten Assistants salary 
and benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-
3) 0000: Unrestricted LCFF 
$47,869 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 8 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $5,800,000  

 Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj. 11-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $5,871,700 

District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $208,000  

 District staff salary and benefits 
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $224,643 

Action 2 
Ensure every student is provided 
with standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Every student was provided 
standards aligned instructional 
materials in all core subject areas. 

 Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $100,000  

 Obj 4110 MGMT 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $73,297 

Action 3 
Ensure every student is housed in 
facilities that meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair.   

 Every student was housed in 
facilities that meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair. 

 8150  LCFF $1,500,000   8150  LCFF $1,493,140 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 9 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent 
groups, site councils, and ELACS 
for schools with 50 or more English 
learners. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Every school had a site council, an 
active parent group, and for those 
sites with the requisite number of 
English learners, an ELAC.  In 
addition, every school's parent 
group described above was fully 
constituted with parent 
participation as defined by each 
group's bylaws. 

 No additional costs      No additional costs    

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The actions and services for this goal were fully implemented and every goal achieved. Our annual analysis of teacher assignments 
revealed that all teachers are highly qualified and possess the appropriate credentials for their assignments. Our annual sufficiency 
resolution, as adopted by the Governing Board verified that every student was in possession of all adopted core instructional 
materials.  This was after each teacher verified they had sufficient instructional materials for every one of their assigned students. Our 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 10 of 147

annual inspections of individual school facilities noted that all campuses were in either good or exceptional condition. As in past years, 
individual schools and the district have been successful in garnering parent participation on school and district leadership committees 
and groups.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The district's actions and services to meet this goal and metrics have been fully met, therefore, the stated actions and services were 
highly effective.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
The only material difference is for action #2 whereby we budgeted $100,000 for standards aligned instructional materials.  Our 
estimated actual expenditures were $73,297, which is $26,703 less than budgeted and is 73% of what was anticipated.  This was due 
to our ability to purchase more of the anticipated items in the prior fiscal year than was anticipated during the LCAP development 
process.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Analysis: The District has met all of the its Williams Act indicators. As a result, the district can assert that it continues to attract and hire 
highly qualified and appropriately credential teachers for all vacancies. Core adopted instructional materials are available in sufficient 
supply to ensure each student is provided with all core adopted materials. The district continues to provide school facilities that are in 
great condition as evidenced by our annual site inspections and lack of concern as reported by our greater community. Parents 
continue to be deeply involved in site and district leadership committees and groups. 
 
Change: Since the District is meeting its Williams Act indicators, no changes to the revised LCAP have been made in these areas.  
However, for 2018-19, the current goal #2 has been collapsed within Goal #1.  The reasons for this are outlined in the 2018-19 goals 
section. 
         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 11 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Participation of students in the District's GATE, special education, and 
advanced coursework programs mirror the demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as measured by an audit of the sub-group 
participation in each program.          

17-18 
Participation of students in the District's GATE, special education, and 
advanced coursework programs mirror the demographics of the District's 
students, especially for English learner and socio-economically 
disadvantaged students as measured by an audit of the sub-group 
participation in each program.          

 The District has mistakenly interpreted the State's definition of course access 
to include specialized programs, rather than limit to subject matter courses.  
The programs in this goal are provided based on district, state, and federal 
criteria for participation, therefore not all students will have access to our 
special education or GATE programs.  The advanced coursework referenced 
for our middle school was a one year experiment (2016-17) and was not 
continued in the current year.  As noted in the goals section, this goal as 
been collapsed into Goal #1 for the 2018-19 school year. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 12 of 147

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Every student in the Rincon Valley Union School District has access to the 
full range of courses offered by the District.  As a core K-6 district, courses 
are provided through grade level classes.  In the charter middle school 
(grades 7-8), every student maintains a similar schedule, differing by 
elective choice.  Programs such as GATE, advanced coursework (grades 7-
8), and special education are only offered to students who meet predefined 
criteria. 
 
An examination of students who are identified as gifted revealed three 
subgroups are underrepresented based on the demographics of our district 
as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total population, 11% of the GATE 
population), English Learners (10% of our total population, 0% of the GATE 
population), and Economically Disadvantaged students (33% of our total 
population, 14% of the GATE population). 
 
An examination of students who have been identified as being eligible for 
special education and related services revealed over representation of two 
subgroups of students:  English Learners (10% of the total population, 18% 
of the special education population) and Economically Disadvantaged 
students (33% of the total population, 44% of the special education 
population).  The examination also identified an under represented group: 
White (58% of our total population, 43% of our special education 
population). 
 
An examination of students who were identified for Advanced Coursework in 
middle school revealed two subgroups are underrepresented based on the 
demographics of the school as a whole: Hispanic/Latino (27% of our total 
population, 8% of the Advanced Coursework population) and Economically 
Disadvantaged students (27% of our total population, 11% of the Advanced 
Coursework population). 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Implement any changes to the 
District's GATE identification 
process found to unfairly identify 

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 13 of 147

students based on any 
demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 2 
Implement any changes to the 
District's special education 
identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on 
any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

Action 3 
Implement any changes to the 
District's special education 

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 14 of 147

identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on 
any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, 
culture, or socio-economic 
background. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Identify middle school students 
eligible for advanced coursework 
at the beginning of each school 
year based on quantitative 
(placement test) and qualitative 
(prior teacher recommendation, 
observation of student critical 
thinking/problem solving) 
measures.  
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 N/A  No additional costs      No additional costs    

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 15 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Section N/A:  The actions and services noted in this goal are irrelevant to the State's intend of course access as special education and 
GATE are programs with defined access criteria.  In addition, the advanced coursework planned for this LCAP year was not provided.  
Therefore, this goal has been collapsed into Goal #1.         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 16 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.           

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 17 of 147

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Maintain district-wide P-2 attendance rate at 96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for 
all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
6.  Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 82% of students reported being happy at school "often/always". 
 
As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates do not 
apply. 
        

 1.  P-2 attendance rates are not available at this time.  This information will 
be added once the data is available. 
It is expected that P-2 data is collected in April and will applied to actual 
outcomes once it is available. 
2.Same 
3.Same 
4.Same 
5.Same 
6. Students self-identify they attend a school with a positive school climate as 
measured by the district-wide local student climate survey (77% of students 
report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 80% of students reported 
being happy at school "often/always". 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 18 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase district-wide P-2 attendance rate to 96.5% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide P-2 chronic absenteeism rate to below 5% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide P-2 charter middle school drop-out rate at 0% for 
all students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide P-2 pupil suspension rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-
economically disadvantaged, and special education students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide P-2 pupil expulsion rate at 0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to include English learner, socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and special education students. 
6.  Increase the number of students who self-identify they attend a school 
with a positive school climate as measured by the district-wide local student 
climate survey (79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at 
school and 78% of students reported being happy at school "often/always". 
 
As an elementary district, high school drop-out and graduation rates do not 
apply. 
        
Baseline 
The number of students who self-identify they attend a school with a positive 
school climate as measured by the district-wide local student climate survey 
was 79% of students report "often"/"always" feeling safe at school and 78% 
of students reported being happy at school "often/always".        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Maintain counseling programs at 
each school. 

 Counseling programs have been 
maintained at each school 

 MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $165,000  

 MNGMT 6150 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $119,525 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 19 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

Action 2 
Maintain clerical attendance 
support for each school. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Clerical support for attendance has 
been maintained at each school 

 MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $235,500  

 MGMT OFFC 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $240,106 

Action 3 
Expand school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 Restorative Practices and 
Restorative Conferencing have 
been expanded to include training 
for classified staff and new 
teachers to 4th-6th grade.   

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $30,000  

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $30,000 

MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $14,005  

 MGMT MAAD 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $564 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 20 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 4 
Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.  
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Playworks continues to be an area 
of need and focus.  Staffing has 
been the biggest challenge to this 
action.   

 Part of designated reserve 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF 0  

 Part of designated reserve 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF 0 

Action 5 
Provide ongoing school-based 
activities that promote school to 
home/school collaboration such as 
Back to School Night, Open 
House, Family Math Night, Family 
Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 The District has continued to offer 
Back to School Nights, Open 
House, Math Nights and Gate 
Camp.  A large district-wide parent 
event had been planned for the fall 
of 2017 and was displaced due to 
the October Wildfires and the need 

 No additional costs      No additional costs    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 21 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

to provide resources to our 
community.   

Action 6 
Continue district-wide efforts to 
implement culturally responsive 
teaching practices. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Schools showcase their cultural 
diversity through events and 
providing families opportunity to 
participate in parent organizations.  
Teachers embed culturally relevant 
material into their instruction and 
projects throughout the year.  

 MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $12,000  

 MGMT 5200 OBJ 5200 0000: 
Unrestricted LCFF $9,860 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All of the actions/services were implemented during the 2017-18 LCAP year.  Counseling and attendance clerk positions were 
maintained.  Restorative practices training was expanded to classified employees.  Schools continue to provide many opportunities for 
enhancing cultural awareness and celebrations.  Our challenges have been to hire classified staff to fill all of the Yard Duty II positions 
to provide the PlayWorks program.  The October fires canceled our hallmark parent engagement event, though several other trainings 
were held.          

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 22 of 147

 

 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
This section to be updated once P-2 data is available.         
 

 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were two material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for Goal #3.  The first was in 
action #1 where $165,000 was allocated, though only $119,525 was expended.  This is a difference of $45,475 and 72% of the 
budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was there were classified counseling stipends budgeted in unrestricted for 
$56,000 in the prior year. In 2017/18 we decreased the stipend amount to $27,000 and are paying it out of Medi-Cal funds.  The 
second was in action #3 where $14,005 was allocated, though only $564 was expended.  This is a difference of $13,441 and 4% of 
the budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was there were originally teacher extra duties that were budgeted for 
that were not needed.           
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
This section to be updated once P-2 data is available.         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 23 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP English language arts 
standard with special attention to 3rd grade students.            

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 60%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 3rd students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 30%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 
50%. 
4.  60% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each trimester. 
 
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high 
school students. 
        

 1. 61% of all 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP 
standard for language arts. 
2. 19% percent of English learner 3rd grade students met or exceeded the 
2017 CAASPP standard for language arts. 
3. 38% percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade students met 
or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP standard for language arts. 
4. 79% percent of 3rd grade students met or exceeded local reading 
benchmarks at Trimester 2. 
 
The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard designates the District as 
High (33.8 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Maintained (-2.4 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric color is Green. 
 
The Academic Performance Index, UC/CSU/CTE courses, AP test 
participation, and EAP do not apply as the district does not serve high school 
students. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 24 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase the percent of all 3rd grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for language arts to 70%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learners 3rd students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 40%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 3rd grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP standard for language arts to 
60%. 
4.  65% of students will meet or exceed local benchmarks at each trimester. 
        
Baseline 
Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was 
adopted, therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual 
outcomes will be included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated 
into the 2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report 
designates the District as Medium (8.2 pts. above Level 3) for our Status 
and Maintained (+0.2 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Yellow.  
However, these results are relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address. 
 
Trimester 2 local benchmark (STAR Reading) data: 
 
District-wide:  68% of all students met benchmark; 29% of English learners 
met benchmark; 53% of economically disadvantaged students met 
benchmark. 
Third grade: 64% of all students met benchmark; 40% of English learners 
met benchmark; 57% of economically disadvantaged students met 
benchmark. 
 
Early literacy screening (DIBELS) data for K-1: 
70% of all students ready for "core" instruction, 51% of English learners 
ready for "core instruction; 56% of economically disadvantaged students 
ready for "core" instruction. 
 
Kindergarten Readiness (READY) data:  52% of all students entered 
Kindergarten "ready to go", 28% of English earners entered Kindergarten 
"ready to go"; (economically disadvantaged status was not tracked for this 
data. 
        
 

 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 25 of 147

Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Maintain a systematic reading 
instructional program (K-3 SIPPS). 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 SIPPS has been fully implemented 
across the district. This year all 
schools provided refresher courses 
for SIPPS to grade K-3 teachers to 
re-calibrate the instructional 
routines and procedures. 

 No additional Cost      No additional Cost    

Action 2 
Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered 
System of Support (MTSS) for 
students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

 Each school operates a Multi-
Tiered System of Support (MTSS) 
to identify students who do not 
meet state and/or local 
benchmarks. Schools are assigned 
a Student Support Coordinator 
who trains/manages a team of 
interventionists to provide support 
for students. 

 Intervention Budgets (MGMT 
0652-0653) 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $240,000  

 Intervention Budgets (MGMT 
0652) 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $221,523 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 26 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 3 
Participate in the Sonoma County 
READY Program to measure 
school readiness of all 
Kindergarten students. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: 

Kindergarten         

 All kindergarten teachers 
participated in the READY project 
in Aug/Sept 2017. Teachers used 
the information to communicate 
with parents and provide additional 
support for students who scored in 
the "not ready" zone on the 
assessment/observation tool. 

 No additional Cost      No additional Cost    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 27 of 147

Action 4 
Provide a summer school program 
for primary grade students not on 
track to meet 3rd grade CAASPP 
ELA targets. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
 Specific Student Groups: 

Special Education        
 
Location(s) 
 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 Due to construction projects 
across the district (which created 
unsafe conditions for students on 
campuses), we did not offer 
summer school in July 2017. It is 
our intent to continue this action, 
pending the availability of safe 
campuses, in 2018 or 2019. 

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $35,000  

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $9,203 

MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $8,000  

 MGMT 0650 0000: Unrestricted 
LCFF $0 

Action 5 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the 
California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 We have provided professional 
development towards full ELA/ELD 
standards alignment through 
buyback days, District Wednesday 
inservices, Consulting Teacher 
coaching and support, and optional 

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds     

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 28 of 147

For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

after school workshops. Principals 
embarked on a year-long study of 
the 5 Dimensions of Teaching and 
Learning (Center for Educational 
Leadership). 

Action 6 
Provide a Technology Summer 
Institute to train staff in effective 
integration of technology into ELA 
instruction. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Technology integration was 
embedded into the Benchmark 
Advance summer trainings. 

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds     

 No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds    

Action 7 
Provide parent education that 
provides strategies for families to 
support reading skills, such as, 
decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  
 

 Schools hosted family literacy 
night events and offered parent 
workshops in early literacy. 

 Included in Student Support 
Budget      

 Included in Student Support 
Budget    

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 29 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions and services, except summer school, were implemented. There was some variation between schools in the level of parent 
education that was provided. For example, all schools held a family literacy event, but at some schools offered a series of parent 
workshops while other schools offered only one class. Additionally, the implementation of a new ELA/ELD program in 2017-18 has 
provided structure and support for the actions and services described herein.         
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Districtwide, we saw an overall gain of 4% in the percent of students scoring Met or Exceeded Standard on the 2017 ELA CAASPP. 
Local assessments also continue to show an increasing number of students who are meeting or exceeding benchmark.          
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There was a material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for action #4, where $43,000 was 
allocated, though only $9,203 was expended.  This is a difference of $33,977 and 21% of the budgeted amount.  The reason for the 
material difference was that due to summer construction, the only summer school program held was our ELD Academy designed for 
English learners.           
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Our success in meeting our local and LCFF evaluation rubric goals gives us confidence in our plan to increase student achievement in 
English Language Arts.  Therefore, we will continue with the same actions/services for the 2018-19 LCAP year.         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 30 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 5 
Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special 
attention to 8th grade students.            

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. 
        

 1. 46% of all 6th grade students met or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP 
standard for math. 
2. 8% percent of English learner 6th grade students met or exceeded the 
2017 CAASPP standard for math. 
3. 20% percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade students met 
or exceeded the 2017 CAASPP standard for math. 
4. We are piloting two local benchmark assessments to ensure students are 
on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. The calculation of a baseline 
and decisions about cut scores for "met standard" will be determined after the 
third trimester. 
 
The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard designates the District as 
High (18.4 pts. above Level 3) for our Status and Increased (+3.5 pts.) for our 
Change.  Our rubric color is Green. 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 31 of 147

Expected Actual 

17-18 
1.  Increase the percent of all 6th grade students meeting or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent of English learner 6th students grade meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP standard for math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent of socio-economically disadvantaged 6th grade 
students meeting or exceeding the CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline for local benchmark assessments to ensure 
students are on track to meet 6th grade CAASPP standard. 
        
Baseline 
Spring 2017 CAASPP results are unavailable at the time the LCAP was 
adopted, therefore the districts progress in meeting the expected annual 
outcomes will be included in the 2016-17 Annual Update that is incorporated 
into the 2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP results, the California School Dashboard report 
designates the District as Medium (-17.0 pts. above Level 3) for our Status 
and Declined (-1.3 pts.) for our Change.  Our rubric color is Orange.  
However, these results are relevant to the 2015-16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this update is intended to address. 
 
2016-17 Local Measures 
 
We piloted a new local benchmark this year and our goal was to establish a 
baseline. The platform we piloted proved difficult to manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could not be compared to Trimester 1 due to concerns 
about validity of scores in Trimester 1). If we set the benchmark at 70% 
correct for Trimester 2: District-wide:  37% of all students met benchmark; 
12% of English learners met benchmark; 22% of economically 
disadvantaged students met benchmark. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 32 of 147

Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark targets. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 Each school operates a Multi-
Tiered System of Support (MTSS) 
to identify students who do not 
meet state and/or local 
benchmarks. Schools are assigned 
a Student Support Coordinator 
who trains/manages a team of 
interventionists to provide support 
for students. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 2 
Provide a summer school program 
for intermediate grade students not 
on track to meet 8th grade 
CAASPP Math targets. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
 Specific Student Groups: 

Special Education        
 
Location(s) 
 

 Due to construction projects 
across the district (which created 
unsafe conditions for students on 
campuses), we did not offer 
summer school in July 2017. It is 
our intent to continue this action, 
pending the availability of safe 
campuses, in 2018 or 2019. 

 No additional cost - Included in 
Goal 4 #2     

 No additional cost - Included in 
Goal 4 #2    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 33 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

Action 3 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for 
teachers and principals towards full 
alignment of instruction to the 
California State Math standards. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 We have provided professional 
development towards full Math 
standards alignment through 
District Wednesday inservices, 
Consulting Teacher coaching and 
support, and optional after school 
workshops. Principals embarked 
on a year-long study of the 5 
Dimensions of Teaching and 
Learning (Center for Educational 
Leadership). 
 
2017-18 actions included a 
renewed focus on the adopted 
Math program, including additional 
training and support for teachers; 
creation and revision of 
assessments; and curriculum 
maps to help with pacing, key 
standards, and grading. 
 

 No additional Cost       No additional Cost     

Action 4 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 34 of 147

Provide a Technology Summer 
Institute to train staff in effective 
integration of technology into Math 
instruction. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 Technology integration was 
embedded into the Engage New 
York Math summer trainings. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 5 
Provide training to teachers and 
principals in the implementation of 
a new local math benchmark 
assessment. 
For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to 
meeting the Increased or 
Improved Services 
Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X All        
 
Location(s) 
X All Schools        

 The Math Consulting Teacher 
provided support and direction for 
teachers in the administration of 
the assessments, and worked with 
teacher representatives throughout 
the year to create and/or revise 
end-of-module assessments. 
Principals received limited training 
this year, but will spend time at the 
end of the year examining student 
performance from beginning to end 
of year, discussing our baselines 
and cut scores, and developing a 
plan for improving the use of 
assessment results to drive 
classroom instruction. 

 No additional cost      No additional cost    

Action 6 
Provide parent education that 
strengthens parent understanding 
of the mathematical concepts and 
practices embedded within the 
California State standards. 
 

 Each school held a Family Math 
(or STEAM) night. 

 Immaterial cost       Immaterial cost    

 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 35 of 147

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
All actions and services for Goal 5, except summer school, were implemented this year.         
 

 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Examination of local math assessment results through the end of the second trimester indicate that about 60% of students in grades 
kindergarten through grade 3 are performing at or above "met standard." This percentage shrinks considerably in the intermediate 
grades. In response to this data, we have provided additional support and training for our intermediate grade math teachers.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were no material differences between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures.         
 

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
2017-18 actions included a renewed focus on the adopted Math program, including additional training and support for teachers; 
creation and revision of assessments; and curriculum maps to help with pacing, key standards, and grading. This focus is not called 
out separately in the LCAP, but is reflected in the Actual Actions/Services portion of this Annual Update. This focus will continue in 
2018-19 and be reflected in the Actions/Services section.         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 36 of 147

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2017-18 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 6 
Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or LPAC) and is on target and 
within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
1.  The California Dashboard will show a Status of High, with 75% or more 
of English learners demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT, representing an Increase towards Change. 
2.  15% of English learners district wide will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
        
17-18 
1.  The California Dashboard will show a Status of High, with 75% or more 
of English learners demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT, representing an Increase towards Change. 
2.  15% of English learners district wide will be reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
        

 1. The Fall 2017 update of the California Dashboard shows a Status of High, 
with 84.3% or more of English learners demonstrating at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, resulting in a Change of Significant over the prior year 
of 19.2%. 
2. 14.8% of English learners district wide were reclassified as Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP). 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 37 of 147

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
The California Dashboard results show the percentage of English learners, 
plus RFEP students, demonstrating at least one level of growth on the 2015 
CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%.  This represents a status of 
Medium.  These results were a Decline from the previous year of 6.4% 
(75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level of growth on the 
CELDT. 
 
The percent of English learners reclassified at the October census for the 
2016-17 school year was 17.2%.  This is a four year high and an increase of 
4.8% over the prior year. 
        
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 
Implement designated ELD 
programs and adopt for the 2017-
18 school year. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 First-year implementation of 
Benchmark Advance Designated 
ELD began in September 2017. 

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$22,000  

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$22,000 

ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)  
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $59,215  

 ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $84,309 

Action 2 
Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and 

 Integrated ELD strategies has 
been embedded into mandatory 

 No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness      

 No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness    

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 38 of 147

principals with full implementation 
of integrated ELD. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

professional development sessions 
this year and several optional 
workshops have been offered for 
interested teachers and principals. 

Action 3 
Provide a summer ELD academy 
that targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to 
accelerate their acquisition of 
English toward reclassification 
thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term 
English learner. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 A two-week ELD Academy was 
offered in July 2017. 
Approximately 100 students from 
across the district maintained 
regular attendance in the program. 

 MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $25,000  

 MGMT ELDA 0000: Unrestricted 
Supplemental $19,283 

Action 4 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 39 of 147

Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for 
them to assist their children with 
homework. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 English Learner Advisory 
Committees (ELACs), Pasitos, 
Latino Family Literacy, and 
Homework Clubs have been 
utilized to provide support for 
parents to assist their children with 
school/homework. 

 Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost     

 Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost    

Action 5 
Provide adult English classes for 
parents who are English learners. 
For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

 We began a partnership with 
Santa Rosa Junior College in 
September 2017. Parents and 
community members can attend 
adult English classes twice per 
week, with open enrollment 
throughout the year. 

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$25,000  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$26,186 

Action 6 
Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

 The EL Coordinator provides 
monthly training for EL Assistants. 
Topics include high leverage 
strategies for language acquisition, 

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$16,500  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 
$16,500 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 40 of 147

For Actions/Services included 
as contributing to meeting the 
Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement: 
 
Students to be Served 
X English Learners        
 
Scope of Services 
X LEA-wide        
 
Locations 
X All Schools        

working with teachers, supporting 
ELs in reading and mathematics, 
and examining student CELDT 
data. This has allowed our EL 
Assistants to provide more 
structured support for English 
Learners. 

Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $5,986  

 Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF $189 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
The actions/services for this goal were fully implemented during the 2017-18 LCAP year.  Our most significant step this year was the 
implementation of comprehensive, district-wide designated ELD instruction.           
 
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
Our actions/services for this goal have been consistent over the past three years.  Therefore, our success in significantly increasing 
the percent of ELs advancing at least one level on the CELDT is connected to our plan described under this goal.         
 
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There were two material difference between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual expenditures for Goal #6.  The first was in 
action #1 where $59,215 was allocated, though $84,309 was expended.  This is a difference of $25,094 and 142% of the budgeted 
amount.  The reason for the material difference was that originally only salaries were budgeted.  The larger amount expended includes 
the associated benefits.  The second was in action #6 where $5,986 was allocated, though only $189 was expended.  This is a 
difference of $5,797 and 3% of the budgeted amount.  The reason for the material difference was an inability to hire for a vacant 
position.           
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 41 of 147

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Our success in meeting our local and LCFF evaluation rubric goals gives us confidence our plan to increase English language 
acquisition among our EL students is working.  Therefore, we will continue with the same actions/services for the 2018-19 LCAP year.         
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 42 of 147

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

Introduction 
The Rincon Valley Union School District is committed to meaningful stakeholder engagement and understand this is an integral part 
in developing an effective strategic plan.  As such, the Rincon Valley Union School District used a variety of site and district-based 
meetings and events to involve and hear from our stakeholders.  These included a series of site-based meetings for each of our 
stakeholder groups led by our principals throughout the Annual Update, a series of site-based meetings, co-presented by the 
principals and the superintendent, to review the initial draft of the new LCAP, and a series of district-wide meetings with other 
stakeholder groups, such as employees (CTA, CSEA, non-represented), District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC), 
Parent Advisory Committee (PAC), and students. 
        
 
Austin Creek held three stakeholder sessions on December 6, 2017 (Site Council), December 11, 2017 (Parent Community), and 
December 18, 2017 (Student Council).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP 
Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or 
actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Binkley held four stakeholder sessions on November 14, 2017 (Binkley Boosters Parent Group), November 15, 2017 (Classified 
Employees), November 26, 2017 (ELAC), and December 1, 2017 (Site Council).  These meetings were principal led based on a 
script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  
Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Madrone held three stakeholder sessions on December 4, 2017 (Site Council), December 18, 2017 (ELAC), and December 18, 2017 
(Parent Community).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based 
input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were 
encouraged. 
        

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 43 of 147

 
Rincon Valley Charter School held five stakeholder sessions on November 11, 2017 (Executive Committee), November 15, 2017 
(Students), November 16, 2017 (Students), November 28, 2017 (Parents' Association), and November 28, 2017 (Staff). These 
meetings were vice-principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group 
discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Spring Creek-Matanzas held three stakeholder sessions on November 2, 2017 (Staff), November 15, 2017 (PTA), and November 17, 
2017 (Site Council and ELAC).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for 
site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services 
were encouraged. 
        
 
Sequoia held two stakeholder sessions on December 4, 2017 (Site Council), December 18, 2017 (ELAC), and December 18, 2017 
(Parent Community).  These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based 
input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were 
encouraged. 
        
 
Village held four stakeholder sessions on November 1, 2017 (Parents' Club), November 2, 2017 (Site Council), November 3, 2017 
(Teachers), and November 16, 2017 (ELAC).   These meetings were principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP 
Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or 
actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Whited School held two stakeholder sessions on December 7, 2017 (PTO) and December 21, 2017 (ELAC).  These meetings were 
principal led based on a script developed by the District LCAP Committee for site-based input.  Each group discussed progress in 
meeting current goals.  Suggestions for modifying goals and/or actions/services were encouraged. 
        
 
Administrative Council, including site and district administrators and bargaining unit representation, met on December 19, 2017 and 
February 20, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations 
concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 44 of 147

District English Learner Advisory Council met on January 31, 2018.  The group reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting 
goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next 
three years. 
        
 
Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee met on February 8, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward 
meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the 
next three years. 
        
 
The District held two community-wide LCAP input meetings on February 20, 2018 (Matanzas) and March 7, 2017 (Austin Creek).  
The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of 
goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
Parent Advisory Committee met on March 7, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 
and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
The District conducted a stakeholder survey from March 5 through March 12, 2018.  Included were the following stakeholder groups:  
Parents/guardians of enrolled students, certificated, classified, and administrative employees, and middle school students.  The 
survey was conducted in English and Spanish.  Participants reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and 
made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
The District met with our teachers' association, RVUTA, on March 13, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress made toward 
meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the 
next three years. 
        
 
The District met with our classified employees association, CSEA, On March 15, 2018.  The group  reviewed reviewed progress 
made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and 
actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 45 of 147

Governing Board met on April 10, 2018.  Trustees  reviewed reviewed progress made toward meeting goals in 2016-17 and made 
recommendations concerning draft of goals, measurable outcomes, and actions/services for the next three years. 
        
 
Governing Board met on May 8, 2018.  Trustees held a Public Hearing on the 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20 LCAP.  At the same 
meeting, there was a public hearing on the 2017-18 Budget. 
        
 
Governing Board met on June 12, 2018.  Trustees approved the 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 LCAP and 2018-19 Budget. 
        

         
 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

 
Austin Creek stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the variety of supervised activities provided students during recess 
• Appreciate teachers willingness to hold regular (weekly) circles 
• Appreciate support for students in writing and math 
 
Austin Creek stakeholder suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Ongoing support for families with GATE students 
        
 
Binkley stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate having a full-time counselor 
• Appreciate the routine students have developed to participate in the supervised recess activities 
• Appreciate the site's town hall meetings 
• Appreciate the results shown for students with SIPPS 
• Appreciate the role of the support coordinator in organizing and delivering intervention 
• Appreciate the establishment of a homework club 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Provide additional training for classified classroom assistants in the new ELA and math programs. 
• Focus on deepening involvement of parents when students are in Kindergarten 
• Develop more ways to support second language parents support their children with homework at home 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 46 of 147

        
 
Madrone stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the new facility and field/track 
• Appreciate the counselors, especially following the fires 
• Appreciate the role of the office clerks in reducing truancy 
• Appreciate the positive impact of Restorative Circles and Kimochis 
• Appreciate the extra support for struggling students 
• Appreciate the support that EL assistants provide English leaners 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP to include: 
• Recommend training in NGSS for teachers 
• Recommend to continue the provision of daycare for Back-to-School Night 
• Establish a homework club 
• Recommend that Family Math Night provide more opportunities for parents to learn more about the math program 
• Recommend that adult English classes be offered at night 
        
 
RVCS stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the hard work the teachers provide on behalf of students 
• Appreciate the quality of the school facilities 
• Appreciate the focus on Project Based Learning 
• Appreciate the availability of counseling 
• Appreciate circles 
• Appreciate Fall Festival as a community building event 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Recommend providing teachers with professional development aimed at challenging GATE students within the context of the daily classroom 
• Recommend ongoing training in ELD 
• Recommend additional counseling time 
• Recommend more dances and game nights 
• Recommend more support for struggling students, e.g., student support coordinator, older students as tutors 
• Recommend moving away from the block schedule for math instruction 
• Recommend more planning time focused on aligning classroom assessments to standards 
        
 
Spring Creek-Matanzas stakeholders feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the counselor remains consistent between the two sites 
• Appreciate the Restorative Practices program 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 47 of 147

• Appreciate having organized activities for students at recess 
• Appreciate having Spanish language support for parents at conferences 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Consistent practices among staff for homework 
• Increase and find new ways to communicate to the community about school-based activities and parent meetings 
• Increase counseling time 
• Provide access to technology beyond school hours with families that lack these resources at home 
• Open computer labs and library as options for students at recess 
• Minimize the impact of losing out on classroom instruction and activities for students pulled for various support programs 
• Look at scheduling options for translators for conferences 
        
 
Sequoia stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the process for identifying GATE students that has expanded beyond the Raven 
• Appreciate opportunities, such as Family Math Night, when parents can learn alongside their children 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provision of resources and training for parents in math 
        
 
Village stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the high level of instruction provided students by the teachers 
• Appreciate the facility improvements being made that will improve classrooms and playground options for students 
• Appreciate the level of school-to-home communication 
• Appreciate the use of non-traditional instruments being used to identify GATE students 
• Appreciate the contributions of the counselors 
• Appreciate evening programs such as Story Night 
• Appreciate additional support efforts and the communication with parents about these options 
• Appreciate the Engage NY math training last summer 
• Appreciate the designated ELD time 
• Appreciate the work of the ELD Coordinator in assisting families support English language acquisition of students 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more support and materials for teachers to implement NGSS 
• Increase counseling and dedicate time for SEL instruction into the classroom routine 
• Recommend more assemblies that teach about cultural differences 
• Recommend increasing classroom push-in support 
• Increase communication from the classrooms on how to support students with math at home 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 48 of 147

        
 
Whited stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate the counselor program 
• Appreciate the school's homework club 
• Appreciate the focus on designated ELD program 
• Appreciate Kimochis and Restorative Practices 
• Appreciate the PlayWorks program 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Increasing counseling time 
• Provide more information to families about the social/emotional programs 
• Provide an indoor play option for students in the morning 
• Increase after school tutoring options for student 
• Send math activities home for parents to work on with their children 
• Provide more individualized instruction for students learning English 
• Provide the GATE curriculum to all students 
• Provide the GATE as a pull-out program 
• Recommend monthly evening events for families 
        
 
Administrative Council stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate support for students not meeting grade level expectations 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Expand counseling services, ultimately to one full-time counselor per school 
• Review the local metrics for ELA and math that are used to measure student progress during the school year to ensure they both inform 

instruction and predict student success on the SBAC 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The council did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted responded 
to in writing. 
        
 
The District English Learner Advisory Council feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate Counseling resources for students 
• Appreciate academic resources and support for English learners 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 49 of 147

Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide after school homework and tutoring options for students 
• Provide ongoing parent education to prepare parents to support the learning of students at home 
 
All questions were answered at the meetings.  The DELAC did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
The Superintendent's Student Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate the PlayWorks program that provides various activities at recess 
• Appreciate the extra support students receive when needed 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more than one game option each day under the PlayWorks program 
• Provide indoor recess options such as opening the library or for chess clubs 
• Provide students an anonymous way to provide their teachers feedback or state concerns 
• Adjust instructional activities that activate each students' curiosity, thus increasing interest and motivation to learn 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
The Parent Advisory Committee stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate communication efforts through One-Call-Now and Facebook 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide on going parent education, especially in the areas of strategies to monitor a child's social media interactions and in transitioning to 

middle school 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The committee did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
Community-wide LCAP stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• Appreciate counseling services 
• Appreciate support for students not meeting grade level expectations 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 50 of 147

 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Incorporate the Art Docent program as a parent partnership opportunity within parent engagement 
• Suggest that high achieving and GATE students are identified for services within the LCAP 
• Provide a summer program for GATE students 
• Provide parents training in the Kimochi program 
 
All questions were answered at the various meetings. 
        
 
Parent community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 85% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
* Provide school-based activities such as Family Math night, etc. 
 
Parent community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• More resources for struggling students in the upper grades 
• Options for students who are quick learners in math as the instructional pace can frustrate them 
• Strengthen resources to eliminate bullying behavior, such as counseling 
• Increase site-based community events as they are more successful and useful than district-wide ones 
 
English learner parent community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• This survey only received two submissions, therefore the results are not valid 
 
English learner parent community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• N/A 
 
Employee community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 95% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
* Provide school-based activities such as Family Math night, etc. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 51 of 147

 
Employee community community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Keep Writing By Design as core writing program 
• Maintain small class sizes in primary grades 
• Provide additional resources to supplement ENY; intervention and 1st instruction 
• Full-time counselors at each school site 
• Additional classroom support during DELD instruction 
 
Middle school student community LCAP stakeholder survey result feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• All proposed actions and services received support of at least 85% of the respondents 
• The actions/services receiving the highest level of support were (in order): 
* Maintain counseling services 
* Strengthen intervention support in primary grades in ELA 
* Strengthen support for all students in math 
* Strengthen tools to measure student growth in meeting math standards 
* Provide instructional support for English learners 
 
Middle school student community community suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• Provide more time during the school day for students to read 
• Additional teacher time for students who are struggling 
• Add opportunities for parent to be in classrooms 
 
Results were posted on the district website. 
        
 
RVUTA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district 
 
Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• RVUTA did not provide specific suggestions 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
CSEA stakeholder feedback concerning the 2017-18 goals included: 
• The association generally supports the goals and actions/services proposed by the district 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 52 of 147

Suggestions for the 2018-19 LCAP include: 
• CSEA suggested we conduct a survey during the Annual Update portion of our process as well as the one held to receive feedback on our 

first draft of actions/services. 
 
All questions were answered at the meeting.  The association did not provide any written comments to the District they wanted 
responded to in writing. 
        
 
At the April 10, 2018 Regular meeting, Trustees reviewed the draft LCAP for the 2018-19 school year.  Trustees appreciated the 
incorporation of the California Dashboard into the document. 
        
 
At the May 8, 2018 Regular meeting, The Governing Board provided an opportunity for community comment. 
        
 
At the June 12, 2018 Regular meeting, the Governing Board approved the 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-19 LCAP as presented. 
        

         
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 53 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional materials, facilities in good repair (Basic 
Supports) and to the full range of course offered by the District.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Every student benefits when they are provided core instruction from highly qualified teachers, are provided standards aligned 
instructional materials, and are housed in facilities in good repair.  The Rincon Valley Union School District consistently provides every 
student with these Basic Supports and is committed to continue to do so.  As a primarily TK-6 grade district, every student in the 
Rincon Valley Union school District is provided the full range of core instructional subjects offered by the District to include English 
Language Arts, Math, Science, Social Science/History, and Physical Education. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every student 
received all core 
instruction from highly 
qualified teachers as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

 1.  Every teacher 
providing core 
instruction is classified 
as highly qualified as 
defined by the State of 
California's Highly 
Qualified teacher criteria 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 54 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Each school has full 
parent leadership 
participation on parent 
groups, site councils, 
and ELACS for schools 
with 50 or more English 
learners, as defined by 
each groups bylaws. 
        

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student was 
provided standards 
aligned instructional 
materials in all core 
subject areas as 
supported by the State 
textbook adoption 
criteria as verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every student was 
housed in facilities that 
meet the State criteria 
for being in good repair 
as verified by annual FIT 
site inspections. 
4.  Parents were 
provided multiple 
opportunities to 
participate in leadership 
groups including  
PTA/PTO, School Site 
Council, School and 
District Advisory 
Committees, and 
ELAC/DELAC,  that 
consult and advise 
individual schools and 
the District. 
 
 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 
 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Every student has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District to include 
English Language Arts, 
Math, Science, Social 
Science/History, and 
Physical Education. 
5.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 

and measured by an 
audit of all teacher 
credentials. 
2.  Every student is 
provided core 
instructional materials 
that align to the 
California State adopted 
standards as supported 
by the State textbook 
adoption criteria as 
verified by the 
Instructional Materials 
Order Form submitted 
by each teacher. 
3.  Every school and 
learning facility operated 
by the District meets the 
State's criteria of good 
repair as verified by 
annual FIT site 
inspections. 
4.  Every student has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District to include 
English Language Arts, 
Math, Science, Social 
Science/History, and 
Physical Education. 
5.  Parent groups have 
multiple opportunities to 
advise individual 
schools and the District 
as evidenced by school 
and district calendared 
events. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 55 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

  
 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers.        

 Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers. 

 Ensure every student receives all core 
instruction from highly qualified teachers. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 56 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 
        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $52,000  $53,000  $54,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits (mgmt KIND, OBJ 2-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Kindergarten Assistants salary and 
benefits 

Amount        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 
        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $5,800,000  $5,900,000  $6,000,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

Amount        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 
        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $208,000  $209,000  $210,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
District staff salary and benefits  
(MGMT 5100, obj. 1-3) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 57 of 147

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas.        

 Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas. 

 Ensure every student is provided with 
standards aligned instructional materials in 
all core subject areas. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 
        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $100,000  $102,000  $104,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Maintain highly qualified teachers 
and site staff– salary and benefits 
(Mgmt 0100, Obj.  11-3)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
Obj 4110  MGMT 5200 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 58 of 147

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.          

 Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.   

 Ensure every student is housed in facilities 
that meet the State criteria for being in 
good repair.   

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 
        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $1,500,000  $1,600,000  $1,700,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
8150 

  
8150 

  
8150 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 59 of 147

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
50 or more English learners.        

 Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
21 or more English learners. 

 Ensure each school has full parent 
leadership participation on parent groups, 
site councils, and ELACS for schools with 
21 or more English learners. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

Action 5 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 6 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 60 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 61 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 62 of 147

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 63 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 64 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Beginning with the 2018-19 school year, this goal has been incorporated within Goal #1 (Basic Supports).  Access to the full range of 
courses is as foundational to each students' educational experience as highly qualified teachers, access to instructional materials, 
adequate facilities, and involved and engaged parents.  In RVUSD, our foundation is strong and each of these Basic Supports are in 
place. 
 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Participation of students 
in the District's GATE, 
special education, and 
advanced coursework 
programs mirror the 
demographics of the 
District's students, 
especially for English 

 Every student in the 
Rincon Valley Union 
School District has 
access to the full range 
of courses offered by 
the District.  As a core 
K-6 district, courses are 
provided through grade 

 Participation of students 
in the District's GATE, 
special education, and 
advanced coursework 
programs mirror the 
demographics of the 
District's students, 
especially for English 

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 65 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

learner and socio-
economically 
disadvantaged students 
as measured by an audit 
of the sub-group 
participation in each 
program.          

level classes.  In the 
charter middle school 
(grades 7-8), every 
student maintains a 
similar schedule, 
differing by elective 
choice.  Programs such 
as GATE, advanced 
coursework (grades 7-
8), and special 
education are only 
offered to students who 
meet predefined criteria. 
 
An examination of 
students who are 
identified as gifted 
revealed three 
subgroups are 
underrepresented based 
on the demographics of 
our district as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 
11% of the GATE 
population), English 
Learners (10% of our 
total population, 0% of 
the GATE population), 
and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(33% of our total 
population, 14% of the 
GATE population). 
 
An examination of 
students who have been 

learner and socio-
economically 
disadvantaged students 
as measured by an audit 
of the sub-group 
participation in each 
program.   

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 66 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

identified as being 
eligible for special 
education and related 
services revealed over 
representation of two 
subgroups of students:  
English Learners (10% 
of the total population, 
18% of the special 
education population) 
and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(33% of the total 
population, 44% of the 
special education 
population).  The 
examination also 
identified an under 
represented group: 
White (58% of our total 
population, 43% of our 
special education 
population). 
 
An examination of 
students who were 
identified for Advanced 
Coursework in middle 
school revealed two 
subgroups are 
underrepresented based 
on the demographics of 
the school as a whole: 
Hispanic/Latino (27% of 
our total population, 8% 
of the Advanced 
Coursework population) 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 67 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and Economically 
Disadvantaged students 
(27% of our total 
population, 11% of the 
Advanced Coursework 
population). 
 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
GATE identification process found to 
unfairly identify students based on any 
demographic factor such as English 

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 68 of 147

language proficiency, culture, or socio-
economic background.        
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X New Action        
X Modified Action        

    

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
special education identification process 
found to unfairly identify students based 
on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or 
socio-economic background.        

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 69 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement any changes to the District's 
special education identification process 
found to unfairly identify students based 
on any demographic factor such as 
English language proficiency, culture, or 
socio-economic background.        

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 70 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action            
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Identify middle school students eligible for 
advanced coursework at the beginning of 
each school year based on quantitative 
(placement test) and qualitative (prior 
teacher recommendation, observation of 
student critical thinking/problem solving) 
measures.         

 Not Applicable  Not Applicable 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
 

  
 

Action 5 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 71 of 147

 

Action 6 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 72 of 147

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 73 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 74 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 75 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results in a safe learning environment.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Rincon Valley Union School District has high attendance rates, low chronic absenteeism rates, and has no history of its charter middle 
school student dropping out of school.  The District also benefits from an extremely low suspension and expulsion rates in recent 
years.  The most recent Student Survey indicates that 79% of students often/always feel safe at school while 82% are often/always 
happy to be at their school. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate at 
96% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 The number of students 
who self-identify they 
attend a school with a 
positive school climate 
as measured by the 
district-wide local 
student climate survey 
was 79% of students 

 1.  Increase district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate to 
96.5% for all students 
and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 1.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate to 
96.75% for all students 
and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 

 1.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 attendance rate at 
97% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 76 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

special education 
students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

report "often"/"always" 
feeling safe at school 
and 78% of students 
reported being happy at 
school "often/always". 
 

special education 
students. 
2.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

special education 
students. 
2.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

special education 
students. 
2.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 chronic 
absenteeism rate to 
below 5% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
3.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 charter middle 
school drop-out rate at 
0% for all students and 
significant subgroups to 
include English learner, 
socio-economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students as measured 
by CALPADS. 
4.  Reduce district-wide 
P-2 pupil suspension 
rate below 1.1% for all 
students and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
5.  Maintain district-wide 
P-2 pupil expulsion rate 
at 0% for all students 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 77 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 82% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
        

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

and significant 
subgroups to include 
English learner, socio-
economically 
disadvantaged, and 
special education 
students. 
6.  Increase the number 
of students who self-
identify they attend a 
school with a positive 
school climate as 
measured by the district-
wide local student 
climate survey (79% of 
students report 
"often"/"always" feeling 
safe at school and 78% 
of students reported 
being happy at school 
"often/always". 
 
As an elementary 
district, high school 
drop-out and graduation 
rates do not apply. 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 78 of 147

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain counseling programs at each 
school.        

 Maintain counseling programs at each 
school. 

 Maintain counseling programs at each 
school. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 
        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $165,000  $167,000  $169,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MNGMT 6150 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 79 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school.        

 Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school. 

 Maintain clerical attendance support for 
each school. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 
        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $235,500  $237,500  $240,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT OFFC 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 80 of 147

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Expand school site participation in 
Restorative Practices.        

 Maintain school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 Strengthen school site participation in 
Restorative Practices. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 
        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $30,000  $35,000  $37,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

Amount        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 
        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $14,005  $16,000  $18,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT MAAD 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 81 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.         

 Maintain the PlayWorks program to 
increase student participation.  

 Strengthen recess activity programs to 
increase student participation.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        0  0  0 
        0  0  0 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        0  0  0 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Part of designated reserve 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 82 of 147

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events.        

 Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 Provide ongoing school-based activities 
that promote school to home/school 
collaboration such as Back to School 
Night, Open House, Family Math Night, 
Family Literacy Night, and other site-
based community events. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

  
No additional costs 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 83 of 147

Continue district-wide efforts to implement 
culturally responsive teaching practices.        

 This action has been discontinued.  This action has been discontinued. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $12,000     
        $12,000     Source        LCFF     
        $12,000     Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 5200  OBJ 5200 

  
 

  
 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 84 of 147

 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 85 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 86 of 147

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 87 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 88 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Ensure that all students, including significant subgroups, demonstrate growth year to year as measured by the ELA CAASPP 
assessments and reflected on the status and change placement on the California School Dashboard.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Obtaining grade level expectations for reading by 3rd grade is a key indicator of subsequent student success in English language arts.  
Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 52% of all Rincon Valley 3rd grade students met or exceeded the standard for English 
language arts.  For 6th grade, the last year in the district for most students, 58% of all students met the grade level criteria.  For 
English learners, 14% of 3rd and 46% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-economically disadvantaged students, 
35% of 3rd and 37% 6th graders met or exceeded this standard. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 Spring 2017 CAASPP 
results are unavailable 
at the time the LCAP 
was adopted, therefore 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 3rd grade students 
meeting or exceeding 
the CAASPP standard 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 89 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

for language arts to 
60%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 30%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%. 
4.  60% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 
The Academic 
Performance Index, 
UC/CSU/CTE courses, 
AP test participation, 
and EAP do not apply 
as the district does not 
serve high school 
students. 
        

the districts progress in 
meeting the expected 
annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP 
results, the California 
School Dashboard 
report designates the 
District as Medium (8.2 
pts. above Level 3) for 
our Status and 
Maintained (+0.2 pts.) 
for our Change.  Our 
rubric color is Yellow.  
However, these results 
are relevant to the 2015-
16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this 
update is intended to 
address. 
 
Trimester 2 local 
benchmark (STAR 
Reading) data: 
 
District-wide:  68% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 29% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 53% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 

for language arts to 
70%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 40%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%. 
4.  65% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

for language arts to 
80%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 50%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 70%. 
4.  70% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

for language arts to 
85%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learners 3rd 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 60%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 3rd 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
language arts to 80%. 
4.  75% of students will 
meet or exceed local 
benchmarks at each 
trimester. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 90 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Third grade: 64% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 40% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 57% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 
 
Early literacy screening 
(DIBELS) data for K-1: 
70% of all students 
ready for "core" 
instruction, 51% of 
English learners ready 
for "core instruction; 
56% of economically 
disadvantaged students 
ready for "core" 
instruction. 
 
Kindergarten Readiness 
(READY) data:  52% of 
all students entered 
Kindergarten "ready to 
go", 28% of English 
earners entered 
Kindergarten "ready to 
go"; (economically 
disadvantaged status 
was not tracked for this 
data. 
 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 91 of 147

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS).        

 Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS). 

 Maintain a systematic reading instructional 
program (K-3 SIPPS). 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost 

  
No additional Cost 

  
No additional costs 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 92 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered System 
of Support (MTSS) for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets.        

 Maintain and utilize a Multi-tiered System 
of Support (MTSS) for students not 
meeting CAASPP and/or local benchmark 
assessment targets. 

 Utilize a Multi-tiered System of Support 
(MTSS) for students not meeting CAASPP 
and/or local benchmark assessment 
targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 
        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $240,000  $245,000  $250,00 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Intervention Budgets (MGMT 0652-
0653) 

Action 3 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 93 of 147

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 Specific Grade Spans: Kindergarten         

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students.        

 Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students. 

 Participate in the Sonoma County READY 
Program to measure school readiness of 
all Kindergarten students. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost 

  
No additional Cost 

  
No additional costs 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 94 of 147

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here]         

  [Add Location(s) selection here]         

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets.        

 Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets. 

 Provide a summer school program for 
primary grade students not on track to 
meet 3rd grade CAASPP ELA targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 
        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $35,000  $35,000  $36,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

Amount        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 
        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $8,000  $10,000  12,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT 0650 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 95 of 147

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards.        

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State ELA/ELD 
standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 96 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into ELA instruction.        

 Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into ELA instruction. 

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 97 of 147

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

  X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.         

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 Provide parent education that provides 
strategies for families to support reading 
skills, such as, decoding, fluency, and 
comprehension, for their children.  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Included in Student Support Budget  

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

  
Included in Student Support Budget  

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 98 of 147

 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 99 of 147

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 100 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 101 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 102 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 5 
Ensure that all students, including significant subgroups, demonstrate growth year to year as measured by the Math CAASPP 
assessments and reflected on the status and change placement on the California School Dashboard.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Obtaining grade level expectations for math by 8th grade is a key indicator of student success in high school math courses.  As a 
primarily TK-6th grade district, students entering 7th grade that meet or exceed the 6th grade CAASPP standard are best equipped to 
continue their success in math through middle school.  Spring 2016 CAASPP results reveal that 43% of all Rincon Valley 6th grade 
students met or exceeded the standard for math.  For English learners, 41% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard.  For socio-
economically disadvantaged students, 20% of 6th graders met or exceeded this standard. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 Spring 2017 CAASPP 
results are unavailable 
at the time the LCAP 
was adopted, therefore 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

 1.  Increase the percent 
of all 6th grade students 
meeting or exceeding 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 103 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
        

the districts progress in 
meeting the expected 
annual outcomes will be 
included in the 2016-17 
Annual Update that is 
incorporated into the 
2018-19 LCAP. 
 
Based on CAASPP 
results, the California 
School Dashboard 
report designates the 
District as Medium (-
17.0 pts. above Level 3) 
for our Status and 
Declined (-1.3 pts.) for 
our Change.  Our rubric 
color is Orange.  
However, these results 
are relevant to the 2015-
16 LCAP year, not the 
2016-17 LCAP year this 
update is intended to 
address. 
 
2016-17 Local 
Measures 
 
We piloted a new local 
benchmark this year and 
our goal was to 
establish a baseline. 
The platform we piloted 
proved difficult to 
manage and our 
Trimester 2 data could 
not be compared to 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 55%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
students grade meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 55%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 35%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 70%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 70%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 50%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

the CAASPP standard 
for math to 85%. 
2.  Increase the percent 
of English learner 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP standard for 
math to 85%. 
3.  Increase the percent 
of socio-economically 
disadvantaged 6th 
grade students meeting 
or exceeding the 
CAASPP math to 65%. 
4.  Establish a baseline 
for local benchmark 
assessments to ensure 
students are on track to 
meet 6th grade 
CAASPP standard. 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 104 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Trimester 1 due to 
concerns about validity 
of scores in Trimester 
1). If we set the 
benchmark at 70% 
correct for Trimester 2: 
District-wide:  37% of all 
students met 
benchmark; 12% of 
English learners met 
benchmark; 22% of 
economically 
disadvantaged students 
met benchmark. 
 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
 Specific Student Groups: Students not meeting standards        

 X All Schools        

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 105 of 147

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets.        

 Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets. 

 Maintain intervention programs for 
students not meeting CAASPP and/or 
local benchmark targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
 Specific Student Groups: Students not meeting standards        

 X All Schools        

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 106 of 147

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 8th grade CAASPP Math targets.        

 Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math targets. 

 Provide a summer school program for 
intermediate grade students not on track 
to meet 6th grade CAASPP Math targets. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

  
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

  
No additional cost - Included in Goal 
4 #2 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 107 of 147

Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards.        

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards. 

 Continue to provide support and 
professional development for teachers and 
principals towards full alignment of 
instruction to the California State Math 
standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

  
No additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness Funds 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 108 of 147

Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into Math instruction.        

 Provide a Technology Summer Institute to 
train staff in effective integration of 
technology into Math instruction. 

 Continue to support teachers and 
principals in the effective use of the local 
math benchmark assessment. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide training to teachers and principals 
in the implementation of a new local math 
benchmark assessment.        

 Provide training to teachers and principals 
in the implementation of a new local math 
benchmark assessment. 

 This action will have been met. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 109 of 147

Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

  
No additional cost 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Scope of Services selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

  X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards.        

 Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards. 

 Provide parent education that strengthens 
parent understanding of the mathematical 
concepts and practices embedded within 
the California State standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Immaterial cost  

  
Immaterial cost  

  
Immaterial cost  

Action 7 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 110 of 147

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 111 of 147

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 112 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 113 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 114 of 147

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Modified Goal        
 

Goal 6 
Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and 
within timelines, as defined by State and local criteria, to be Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP)         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
The California Dashboard results show that the percentage of English learners, plus RFEP students, demonstrating at least one level 
of growth on the 2015 CELDT from the 2014 CELDT was 69.4%.  This represents a status of Medium.  These results were a Decline 
from the previous year of 6.4% (75.8%) of English learners demonstrated at least one level of growth on the CELDT.  The percent of 
English learners reclassified at the October census for the 2016-17 school year was 17.2%.  This is a four year high and an increase 
of 4.8% over the prior year. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

1.  The California 
Dashboard will show a 
Status of High, with 75% 
or more of English 
learners demonstrating 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, 
representing an 

 The California 
Dashboard results show 
the percentage of 
English learners, plus 
RFEP students, 
demonstrating at least 
one level of growth on 
the 2015 CELDT from 

 1.  The California 
Dashboard will show a 
Status of High, with 75% 
or more of English 
learners demonstrating 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT, 
representing an 

 1.  The California School 
Dashboard English 
learner indictors will be 
frozen for at east two 
years due to the 
transition from the 
CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is 

 1.  The California School 
Dashboard English 
learner indictors will be 
frozen for at east two 
years due to the 
transition from the 
CELDT to the ELPAC.  
Therefore, the District is 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 115 of 147

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Increase towards 
Change. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
        

the 2014 CELDT was 
69.4%.  This represents 
a status of Medium.  
These results were a 
Decline from the 
previous year of 6.4% 
(75.8%) of English 
learners demonstrated 
at least one level of 
growth on the CELDT. 
 
The percent of English 
learners reclassified at 
the October census for 
the 2016-17 school year 
was 17.2%.  This is a 
four year high and an 
increase of 4.8% over 
the prior year. 
 
 

Increase towards 
Change. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

only including 
reclassification rates as 
the sole indicator for 
these two years. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

only including 
reclassification rates as 
the sole indicator for 
these two years. 
2.  15% of English 
learners district wide will 
be reclassified as Fluent 
English Proficient 
(RFEP). 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 116 of 147

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Implement designated ELD programs and 
adopt for the 2017-18 school year.        

 Maintain designated ELD programs and 
deepen Implementation. 

 Maintain designated ELD programs and 
deepen Implementation. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 
        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $22,000  $25,000  $27,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Amount        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 
        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $59,215  $60,000  $61,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC)  

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

 0000: Unrestricted 
ELD Coordinator (MGM ELDC) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 117 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD.        

 Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD. 

 Maintain support and professional 
development for teachers and principals 
with full implementation of integrated ELD. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness 

  
No Additional Cost - Educator 
Effectiveness  

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 118 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner.        

 Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner. 

 Provide a summer ELD academy that 
targets English learners at the 
intermediate CELDT level to accelerate 
their acquisition of English toward 
reclassification thereby preventing their 
classification as a long term English 
learner. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 
        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $25,000  $26,000  $28,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

 0000: Unrestricted 
MGMT ELDA 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 119 of 147

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework.        

 Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework. 

 Provide parents of English learners 
support and resources in order for them to 
assist their children with homework. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Budget 
Reference        

 
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

  
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

  
Included in MGMT 0652 - no 
additional cost 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 120 of 147

 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners.        

 Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners. 

 Provide adult English classes for parents 
who are English learners. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 
        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $25,000  $27,000  $28,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4201 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         
Students to be Served:         
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]           [Add Location(s) selection here]         
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served:         
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18         

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services         2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants.        

 Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

 Provide instructional support to EL 
students with EL Assistants. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 121 of 147

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18          2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 
        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $16,500  $17,500  $18,500 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

Amount        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 
        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 Source        LCFF  LCFF  LCFF 
        $5,986  $6,500  $7,000 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

 0000: Unrestricted 
Resource 0000, MGMT 4203 

Action 7 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 8 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 9 
 

OR 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 122 of 147

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 10 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 11 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 12 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 123 of 147

Action 13 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 14 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 15 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 16 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 124 of 147

Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 17 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 18 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 19 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

Action 20 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 125 of 147

Actions/Services 
 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
 

 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 126 of 147

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$  % 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

 
 
------- 
------- 

 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$382,590  3.5% 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 127 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

The District does not receive Concentration funds.  Supplemental funds for the 2018-19 school year will be used for our Multi Tiered 
System of Support (MTSS) programs.  The components of our MTSS program funded with supplemental funding include a range of 
intervention support, an ELD Summer Academy, to support a district-wide ELD coordinator, support the district's restorative practices 
program, fund a summer learning program, fund a portion of our family liaisons, and fund a portion of our EL assistants.   (Averill & 
Rinaldi, 2011; California Department of Education, 2015) 
 
Intervention Programs:  These resources are principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction to 
students who are not meeting grade level CAASPP and/or local assessment targets.  While these services are not strictly limited to 
our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise the majority of students benefiting from the services.  Intervention services are 
provided within an extensive MTSS system that includes Student Support Coordinators, classroom teachers, and intervention 
teachers.  Student Support Coordinators provide direct instruction to students, monitor the progress of all students being served with 
support services and meet with grade level teams and principals to review the progress of groups and individuals.  English language 
arts and mathematics are the targeted subjects for identifying and supporting students.  Supplemental funds are used for Student 
Support Coordinator and intervention teachers' salaries and benefits.  (California Department of Education, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Intervention Programs charged to Supplemental Funds:  $222,240, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management 
Codes 0652) 
 
Summer ELD Academy:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing direct instruction and 
monitoring of student progress within our overall system of supports.  Students participating in the Summer ELD Academy are English 
learners at the Intermediate level as measured by CELDT.  The goal of this service is to accelerate English language acquisition so 
that English learners do not become long term ELs.  Summer EL Academy classroom teachers provide the instruction.  Supplemental 
funds are used for Summer ELD Academy classroom teachers' and classified employees' salaries and benefits and instructional 
materials. (Ward-Singer, 2007; California Department of Education, ELD Standards Appendix C, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Summer ELD Academy charged to Supplemental Funds:  $20,307, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 (Management 
Code ELDA) 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 128 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
EL Coordinator:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by coordinating and monitoring of EL student 
progress within our overall system of supports. Supplemental funds are used for EL Coordinator salary and benefits. (Schmoker, 
2006) 
 
Cost of the EL Coordinator charged to Supplemental Funds:  $105,961, Resource Code 0000 & 0016, Object 1000-6000 
(Management Code ELDC) 
 
Restorative Practices:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related 
services.  While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of 
students benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are used to support the training for certificated and classified personnel in 
the use of the Restorative Practices protocols.  This effort will result in district-wide implementation of this practice.  (International 
Institute for Restorative Practices, 2007) 
 
Cost of Maintaining Restorative Practices charged to Supplemental Funds:  $44,005, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-6000 
(Management Code MAAD) 
 
Summer Learning:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing counseling related services.  
While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students 
benefiting from the services.  Supplemental funds are used for Summer Learning classroom teachers' and classified employees' 
salaries and benefits. (Smith, ASCD, 2012) 
 
Cost of the Summer Learning program charged to Supplemental Funds:  $0, Resource Code 0000 Object 1XXX (Management Code 
0650) 
 
Family Liaison:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing school-to-home related services.  
While these services are not strictly limited to our unduplicated students, these subgroups comprise a significant subset of students 
benefiting from the services.  Family Liaisons provide an important link between our schools and families.  These individuals provide 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 129 of 147

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 
support for families across a wide range of school attendance, social/emotional needs, and connecting to community-wide resources.  
Supplemental funds are used for classified employees' salaries and benefits. (Breiseth, Robertson & Lafond, 2015) 
 
Cost of the Family Liaisons charged to Supplemental Funds:  $26,085, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3000 (Management Code 
4201) 
 
EL Assistants:  This program is principally directed to serve our unduplicated students by providing instructional services.  EL 
Assistants provide direction instructional support to our newcomer EL students.  Supplemental funds are used for classified 
employees' salaries and benefits. (Robertson & Ford, 2013) 
 
Cost of the EL Assistants charged to Supplemental Funds:  $22,486, Resource Code 0000 Object 1000-3000 (Management Code 
4203) 
 
Note: Although the minimum is $426,176, the District is spending  approximately $15K over the minimum. 
 
 
The District is increasing services by directing all new Supplemental funds to services that are principally directed towards our 
unduplicated students.  All new and ongoing Supplemental funding is directed towards our Multi Tiered System of Support services.  
Detailed information concerning the use of these funds are included in Section 3:A.  ------- 
------- 
 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 130 of 147

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 131 of 147

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 
Annual Update 
Stakeholder Engagement 
Goals, Actions, and Services 
Planned Actions/Services 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or 
include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual 
expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board 
of Education under EC Section 52064.5.   
 
Budget Summary 

The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows: 

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the 
LEA’s total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year 
means the fiscal year for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General 
Fund is the main operating fund of the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for 
in another fund. All activities are reported in the General Fund unless there is a compelling 
reason to account for an activity in another fund. For further information please refer to the 
California School Accounting Manual (http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some 
charter schools that follow governmental fund accounting, this amount is the total budgeted 
expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund. For charter schools that follow 
the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total budgeted expenses, such as those 
budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.) 

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP 
for the LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


Page 132 of 147

the actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in 
the LCAP. To the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under 
more than one goal, the expenditures should be counted only once. 

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above 
for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in 
total General Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for 
planned actions/services for the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned 
actions/services may include funds other than general fund expenditures.) 

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of 
LCFF funding the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for 
school districts and charter schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as 
implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 133 of 147

in the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 
charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.  

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 134 of 147

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 135 of 147

Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter “LEA-wide.” 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 136 of 147

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  
 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 

the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 137 of 147

 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 138 of 147

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 139 of 147

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 140 of 147

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 141 of 147

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 

academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” 
means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when 
the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is 
enrolled and school was actually taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and 
school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays 
and Sundays. 

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 
the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in 5 CCR Section 1039.1. 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 
“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an 

adult education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency 
Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-
time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who 
transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 
NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 142 of 147

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1)  How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 143 of 147

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016 

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 144 of 147

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
LCFF  8,165,202.00 8,159,706.00 8,361,000.00 8,575,000.00 25,095,706.00 
Supplemental  344,695.00 393,500.00 410,500.00 199,500.00 1,003,500.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 145 of 147

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
 1,500,000.00 1,493,140.00 1,500,000.00 1,600,000.00 1,700,000.00 4,800,000.00 
0000: Unrestricted 7,053,206.00 7,016,757.00 7,053,206.00 7,171,500.00 7,074,500.00 21,299,206.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 146 of 147

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2017-18 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 8,553,206.00 8,509,897.00 8,553,206.00 8,771,500.00 8,774,500.00 26,099,206.00 
 LCFF 1,500,000.00 1,493,140.00 1,500,000.00 1,600,000.00 1,700,000.00 4,800,000.00 
0000: Unrestricted LCFF 6,659,706.00 6,672,062.00 6,659,706.00 6,761,000.00 6,875,000.00 20,295,706.00 
0000: Unrestricted Supplemental 393,500.00 344,695.00 393,500.00 410,500.00 199,500.00 1,003,500.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Page 147 of 147

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2017-18 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2017-18 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 7,660,000.00 7,710,649.00 7,660,000.00 7,864,000.00 8,068,000.00 23,592,000.00 

Goal 2   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 3 456,505.00 400,055.00 456,505.00 455,500.00 464,000.00 1,376,005.00 

Goal 4 283,000.00 230,726.00 283,000.00 290,000.00 73,000.00 646,000.00 

Goal 5   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 6 153,701.00 168,467.00 153,701.00 162,000.00 169,500.00 485,201.00 

Goal 7   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 8   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 10   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Goal 12   0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections.

DRAFT: April 10, 2018



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Information Item 14.6 

Subject: Policy Updates – CSBA March 2018 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

 
Background: The District contracts with the California School Boards Association (CSBA) for 

Policy services.  CSBA, through their GAMUT portal, provides four updates per 
year of recommended changes to Board Policy and Administrative Regulations.  
The policies and administrative regulations this month represent the March 2017 
CSBA update.  

 
Highlights: Behind this cover sheet is CSBA’s summary of the changes included in each 

policy and administrative regulation.  This will allow trustees to easily identify the 
changes that are included.   

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: Changes to these documents reflect new laws and regulations and ensures the 
district is compliant with these new requirements.  

Next Steps: The attached documents, with any recommended changes, will return in May for 
Board adoption. 

Attachments: CSBA Update Guidesheet, March 2017 
 Recommended Board Policy and Administrative Regulations 
  
 
Fiscal Impact:   None 
  
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
March 2018 
Page 1 of 3 

 
 

Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 
board bylaws, and/or exhibits. Editorial changes have also been made. Districts and county offices of education 
should review the sample materials and modify their own policies accordingly. 

 
BP/AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to list all state and federal programs subject to the uniform complaint procedures (UCP) as 
specified in the Federal Program Monitoring instrument, reflect NEW LAW (AB 699) which includes 
immigration status as a prohibited basis for discrimination, and reflect NEW LAW (AB 365) which 
authorizes the use of UCP for alleged noncompliance with certain educational rights of children of military 
families. Policy also revised to clarify that, although complaints of employment discrimination are not subject 
to UCP, the district has an obligation to investigate such complaints using other district procedures. 
Regulation updated to reflect a requirement in AB 365 that the annual UCP notice include the educational 
rights of children of military families. Regulation also clarifies that any individual, public agency, or 
organization may file a complaint alleging violation of law regarding applicable state or federal programs, 
and deletes references to Office of Civil Rights resources on sexual violence which have been withdrawn.  

 
AR 3230 - Federal Grant Funds 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to clarify that any federal formula or discretionary grant funds awarded to the district, 
including a federally funded child nutrition program according to NEW LAW (SB 544), must comply with 
the federal Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards. Regulation also reflects NEW FEDERAL REGULATION (82 Fed. Reg. 22609) which delays, 
until July 1, 2018, the date by which districts must comply with the procurement standards in the Uniform 
Guidance. 

 
AR 3514.2 - Integrated Pest Management 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to clarify the applicability of integrated pest management requirements to child care 
facilities, delete an outdated date by which the annual training requirement became effective, and add 
requirement for pesticide-specific training. Regulation also reflects NEW STATE REGULATION 
(Register 2017, No. 45) which prohibits growers from making certain agricultural pesticide applications 
within one-quarter mile of a school site between 6:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. on weekdays and requires such 
growers to annually notify the principal regarding pesticides it expects to use during the year. 

 
BP/AR 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 250) which requires districts to make their meal charge policy 
public and ensure that students with unpaid meal fees are not shamed or treated differently than other 
students. Section on "Procurement of Foods, Equipment, and Supplies" reflects NEW LAW (SB 730) which 
requires the California Department of Education (CDE) to provide information about the Buy American 
provision, NEW LAW (AB 822) which requires a preference for California-grown agricultural products with 
specified exceptions, and NEW LAW (SB 544) which clarifies that procurements in federally funded 
nutrition programs are subject to the procurement standards of the federal Uniform Guidance. Regulation 
updated to reflect provisions of SB 250 which require districts to notify parents/guardians within 10 days of 
a negative balance in their child's school meal account and to exhaust all options to enroll the student in the 
free and reduced-price meal program if he/she is eligible. Regulation also adds new section reflecting NEW 
LAW (SB 557) which authorizes donation of unused, unopened foods to a food bank or other nonprofit 
charitable organization. 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
March 2018 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 
BP/AR 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 138) which requires districts to apply by September 1, 2018, for a 
federal universal meal service for "very high poverty schools," as defined, for the purpose of providing 
breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to all students enrolled at the school. An exception exists for districts 
whose board adopts a resolution stating the district is unable to comply due to fiscal hardship. Regulation 
updated to reflect a provision of SB 138 which requires direct certification of students' eligibility for free or 
reduced-price meals based on their Medi-Cal participation. In both BP and AR, section related to 
confidentiality and allowable purposes for sharing students' free and reduced-price meal eligibility 
information revised to reflect the elimination of Title I program improvement. 
 

BP 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to expand discussion of possible recruitment incentives, including subsidized housing 
programs for teachers and other employees and NEW LAW (AB 99) which establishes the California 
Educator Development grant program to assist districts with attracting and supporting the preparation and 
continued learning of teachers, principals, and other school leaders. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (AB 
168) which prohibits districts from seeking salary history information about an applicant and from relying 
on salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment or the salary to offer 
an applicant, unless the salary information is disclosable under state or federal law or the applicant voluntarily 
discloses the information without prompting.  

 
BP/AR 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to provide a strong statement of the board's commitment to provide a safe work environment 
that is free of sexual harassment and intimidation and to align the process for filing complaints of sexual 
harassment with AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW 
(SB 396) which requires districts to post a Department of Fair Employment and Housing poster on 
transgender rights and, if the district has 50 or more employees, to provide training to supervisors regarding 
harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual orientation. 

 
AR 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 63) which extends the requirement to grant parental leave to 
an eligible employee for the purpose of bonding with a child after the birth, adoption, or foster care placement 
of the child to any district that employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of the worksite where the employee 
requesting the leave is employed. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 731) which entitles an 
employee who is a military veteran or current member of the California National Guard or federal reserve 
component to 10 days of additional sick leave for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a 
qualifying military service-connected disability, effective on either the date the U.S. Department of Veterans 
Affairs rates the employee's disability or on the first day the employee begins or returns to employment after 
active duty, whichever is later. 

 
AR 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1556) which deletes gender-specific references with regard 
to pregnancy disability leave and clarifies that all employees are protected against pregnancy discrimination 
regardless of their gender identity. Regulation also reflects NEW LAW (SB 63) which extends the 
requirement to grant parental leave to any district that employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of the 
worksite where the employee requesting the leave is employed. 



POLICY GUIDE SHEET 
March 2018 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
AR 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave 
(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 63) which extends the requirement to grant parental leave to 
any district that employs 20-49 employees within 75 miles of the worksite where the employee requesting 
the leave is employed. Regulation also updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 731) which entitles an employee 
who is a military veteran or current member of the California National Guard or federal reserve component 
to 12 days of additional sick leave for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment for a qualifying military 
service-connected disability, effective on either the date the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs rates the 
employee's disability or on the first day the employee begins or returns to employment after active duty, 
whichever is later. 

 
BP/AR 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights 
(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to add options formerly in AR regarding the disclosure of students' personal information for 
marketing purposes. Policy also reflects state law which prohibits the collection of social security numbers 
or the last four digits of social security numbers for such purposes and NEW LAW (AB 699) which prohibits 
the collection of information regarding the citizenship or immigration status of students or their families. 
Regulation reflects NEW LAW (AB 677) which prohibits the removal of questions pertaining to sexual 
orientation and/or gender identity from a voluntary survey that already contains such questions. 
 

BP/E 5145.6 - Parental Notifications 
(BP/E revised) 

Policy updated to reflect federal law applicable to districts participating in certain federal programs which 
requires that parental notifications be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. Policy also revised to reflect state law 
requiring that parental notifications be written in the primary language, in addition to English, whenever 15 
percent or more of the students enrolled in a school speak a single primary language other than English. 
Exhibit updated to reflect notices required by NEW LAW, including notices related to students' right to a 
free public education regardless of immigration status or religious beliefs (AB 699), the employee code of 
conduct related to employee interactions with students (AB 500), the district's meal payment policy (USDA 
Memorandum SP-23-2017), a student's identification as a long-term English learner (AB 81), a negative 
balance in a student's meal account (SB 250), educational rights of children of military families (AB 365), 
and any excessive level of lead found in drinking water (AB 746). Two legal cites renumbered pursuant to 
federal law and regulations. 
 

BP 6162.5 - Student Assessment 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1035) which addresses the use and purpose of interim and 
formative assessments that are part of the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, 
prohibits their use for high-stakes purposes as defined, and requires that teachers who administer the 
assessments have access to all pertinent functions and information. 

 
BP/AR 6171 - Title I Programs 
(BP revised) 

Policy updated to address (1) the requirement to use federal Title I funds to supplement, not supplant, funds 
available from state and local sources; (2) use of the district's local control and accountability plan to fulfill 
requirements for the Title I local educational agency plan; and (3) methods for demonstrating the 
comparability of services between Title I and non-Title I schools. Regulation updated to reflect amendments 
by the Every Student Succeeds Act related to schoolwide programs, targeted assistance programs, and 
participation by private school students. 



Community Relations BP 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that the district has the primary responsibility to ensure 
compliance with applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. The Board encourages early resolution of complaints whenever possible. To 
resolve complaints which may require a more formal process, the Board adopts the uniform 
system of complaint processes specified in 5 CCR 4600-4670 and the accompanying 
administrative regulation. 
 
Complaints Subject to the UCP 
 
The district's uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve 
the following complaints: 
 
1. Any complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or 

regulations governing adult education programs, After School Education and Safety 
programs, agricultural vocational education, American Indian education centers and 
early childhood education program assessments, bilingual education, peer assistance 
and review programs for teachers, career technical and technical education and 
training programs, child care and development programs, child nutrition programs, 
compensatory education, consolidated categorical aid programs, Economic Impact 
Aid, English learner programs, federal education programs in Title I-VII, migrant 
education, Regional Occupational Centers and Programs, school safety plans, special 
education programs, State Preschool Programs, Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 
programs, and any other district-implemented program which is listed in Education 
Code 64000(a) 

 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program) 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6178.1 - Work-Based Learning) 
(cf. 6178.2 - Regional Occupational Center/Program) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
2. Any complaint alleging the occurrence of unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) against any student, employee, 
or other person participating in district programs and activities, including, but not 
limited to, those programs or activities funded directly by or that receive or benefit 
from any state financial assistance, based on the person's actual or perceived  
 



 BP 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 characteristics of race or ethnicity, color, ancestry, nationality, national origin, 

immigration status, ethnic group identification, age, religion, marital status, 
pregnancy, parental status, physical or mental disability, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender, gender identity, gender expression, or genetic information, or any other 
characteristic identified in Education Code 200 or 220, Government Code 11135, or 
Penal Code 422.55, or based on his/her association with a person or group with one or 
more of these actual or perceived characteristics  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 
3. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirement to provide 

reasonable accommodation to a lactating student on school campus to express breast 
milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other breastfeeding-related needs of the 
student  (Education Code 222) 

 
(cf. 5146 - Married/Pregnant/Parenting Students) 
 
4. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the prohibition against requiring 

students to pay fees, deposits, or other charges for participation in educational 
activities  (5 CCR 4610) 

 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 3320 - Claims and Actions Against the District) 
 
5. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with legal requirements related to the 

implementation of the local control and accountability plan  (Education Code 52075) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
6. Any complaint, by or on behalf of any student who is a foster youth, alleging district 

noncompliance with any legal requirement applicable to the student regarding 
placement decisions, the responsibilities of the district's educational liaison to the 
student, the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in another school 
or district, school transfer, or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements (Education Code 48853, 48853.5, 49069.5, 51225.1, 
51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
 
7. Any complaint, by or on behalf of a homeless student as defined in 42 USC 11434a, a 

former juvenile court school student, or a child of a military family as defined in  
 



 BP 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 Education Code 49701 who transfers into the district after his/her second year of high 

school, alleging district noncompliance with any requirement applicable to the 
student regarding the award of credit for coursework satisfactorily completed in 
another school or district or the grant of an exemption from Board-imposed 
graduation requirements  (Education Code 51225.1, 51225.2) 

 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
8. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the requirements of Education 

Code 51228.1 and 51228.2 that prohibit the assignment of a student in grades 9-12 to 
a course without educational content for more than one week in any semester or to a 
course the student has previously satisfactorily completed, without meeting specified 
conditions (Education Code 51228.3) 

 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
 
9. Any complaint alleging district noncompliance with the physical education 

instructional minutes requirement for students in elementary school  (Education Code 
51210, 51223) 

 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
 
10. Any complaint alleging retaliation against a complainant or other participant in the 

complaint process or anyone who has acted to uncover or report a violation subject to 
this policy 

 
11. Any other complaint as specified in a district policy 
 
The Board recognizes that alternative dispute resolution (ADR) can, depending on the nature 
of the allegations, offer a process to reach a resolution to the complaint that is acceptable to 
all parties. ADR such as mediation may be offered to resolve complaints that involve more 
than one student and no adult. However, mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any 
complaint involving sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the 
mediation would feel compelled to participate. The Superintendent or designee shall ensure 
that the use of ADR is consistent with state and federal laws and regulations. 
 
The district shall protect all complainants from retaliation. In investigating complaints, the 
confidentiality of the parties involved shall be protected as required by law. For any 
complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the Superintendent or designee shall keep the identity of the  
 
 



 BP 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
complainant, and/or the subject of the complaint if he/she is different from the complainant, 
confidential when appropriate and as long as the integrity of the complaint process is 
maintained. 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
When an allegation that is not subject to the UCP is included in a UCP complaint, the district 
shall refer the non-UCP allegation to the appropriate staff or agency and shall investigate 
and, if appropriate, resolve the UCP-related allegation(s) through the district's UCP. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide training to district staff to ensure awareness 
and knowledge of current law and related requirements, including the steps and timelines 
specified in this policy and the accompanying administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of all UCP complaints and the 
investigations of those complaints in accordance with applicable law and district policy. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Non-UCP Complaints 
 
The following complaints shall not be subject to the district's UCP but shall be referred to the 
specified agency:  (5 CCR 4611) 
 
1. Any complaint alleging child abuse or neglect shall be referred to the County 

Department of Social Services, the County Protective Services Division, and the 
appropriate law enforcement agency. 

 
(cf. 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting) 
 
2. Any complaint alleging health and safety violations by a child development program 

shall, for licensed facilities, be referred to Department of Social Services and shall, 
for licensing-exempt facilities, be referred to the appropriate Child Development 
regional administrator. 

 
3. Any complaint alleging fraud shall be referred to the Legal, Audits and Compliance 

Branch of the California Department of Education. 
 



 BP 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Any complaint alleging employment discrimination or harassment shall be investigated and 
resolved by the district in accordance with the procedures specified in AR 4030 - 
Nondiscrimination in Employment. 
 
Any complaint related to sufficiency of textbooks or instructional materials, emergency or 
urgent facilities conditions that pose a threat to the health or safety of students or staff, or 
teacher vacancies and misassignments shall be investigated and resolved in accordance with 
the procedures in AR 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures.  (Education Code 
35186) 
 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
222  Reasonable accommodations; lactating students 
8200-8498  Child care and development programs 
8500-8538  Adult basic education 
18100-18203  School libraries 
32280-32289  School safety plan, uniform complaint procedures 
33380-33384 California Indian Education Centers 
35186  Williams uniform complaint procedures 
44500-44508  California Peer Assistance and Review Program for Teachers 
48853-48853.5  Foster youth 
48985  Notices in language other than English 
49010-49013  Student fees 
49060-49079  Student records 
49069.5  Rights of parents 
49490-49590  Child nutrition programs 
49701 Interstate Compact on Educational Opportunity for Military Children 
51210  Courses of study grades 1-6 
51223  Physical education, elementary schools 
51225.1-51225.2  Foster youth, homeless children, former juvenile court school students, and military-
connected students; course credits; graduation requirements 
51226-51226.1  Career technical education 
51228.1-51228.3  Course periods without educational content 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE (continued) 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan, especially: 
52075  Complaint for lack of compliance with local control and accountability plan requirements 
52160-52178  Bilingual education programs 
52300-52462 Career technical education 
52500-52616.24  Adult schools 
54000-54029  Economic Impact Aid 
54400-54425  Compensatory education programs 
54440-54445  Migrant education 
54460-54529  Compensatory education programs 
56000- 56865  Special education programs 
59000-59300  Special schools and centers 
64000-64001  Consolidated application process 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
11135  Nondiscrimination in programs or activities funded by state 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
104420  Tobacco-Use Prevention Education 
PENAL CODE 
422.55  Hate crime; definition 
422.6  Interference with constitutional right or privilege 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11023  Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
3080  Application of section 
4600-4687  Uniform complaint procedures 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1221  Application of laws 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1681-1688  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 
6301-6576  Title I basic programs 
6801-7014  Title III language instruction for limited English proficient and immigrant students 
7101-7184  Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities Act 
7201-7283g  Title V promoting informed parental choice and innovative programs 
7301-7372  Title V rural and low-income school programs 
12101-12213  Title II equal opportunity for individuals with disabilities 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
794  Section 504 of Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000e-17  Title VI and Title VII Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
2000h-2-2000h-6  Title IX of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
6101-6107  Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.107  Nondiscrimination on basis of disability; complaints 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
100.3  Prohibition of discrimination on basis of race, color or national origin 
104.7  Designation of responsible employee for Section 504 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.8  Designation of responsible employee for Title IX 
106.9  Notification of nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
110.25  Notification of nondiscrimination on the basis of age 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Sample UCP Board Policies and Procedures 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS 
Dear Colleague Letter:  Title IX Coordinators, April 2015 
Dear Colleague Letter: Bullying of Students with Disabilities, August 2013 
Dear Colleague Letter: Harassment and Bullying, October 2010 
Revised Sexual Harassment Guidance: Harassment of Students by School Employees, Other Students, 
or Third Parties, January 2001 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE PUBLICATIONS 
Guidance to Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title VI Prohibition Against National 
Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Family Policy Compliance Office: http://familypolicy.ed.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/ocr 
U.S. Department of Justice: http://www.justice.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Community Relations AR 1312.3(a) 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 
 
 
Except as the Governing Board may otherwise specifically provide in other district policies, 
these uniform complaint procedures (UCP) shall be used to investigate and resolve only the 
complaints specified in BP 1312.3. 
 
(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees) 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Compliance Officers 
 
The district designates the individual(s) identified below as the employee(s) responsible for 
coordinating the district's response to complaints and for complying with state and federal 
civil rights laws. The individual(s) also serve as the compliance officer(s) specified in AR 
5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment as the responsible employee(s) to handle complaints 
regarding unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying). The individual(s) shall receive and coordinate the investigation of complaints and 
shall ensure district compliance with law. 
 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

  
Superintendent 
1000 Yulupa Ave. 
Santa Rosa  CA  95405 
(707) 542-7375 

 
The compliance officer who receives a complaint may assign another compliance officer to 
investigate and resolve the complaint. The compliance officer shall promptly notify the 
complainant and respondent, if applicable, if another compliance officer is assigned to the 
complaint. 
 
In no instance shall a compliance officer be assigned to a complaint in which he/she has a 
bias or conflict of interest that would prohibit him/her from fairly investigating or resolving 
the complaint. Any complaint against a compliance officer or that raises a concern about the 
compliance officer's ability to investigate the complaint fairly and without bias shall be filed 
with the Superintendent or designee who shall determine how the complaint will be 
investigated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(b) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that employees assigned to investigate and 
resolve complaints receive training and are knowledgeable about the laws and programs at 
issue in the complaints to which they are assigned. Training provided to such employees 
shall cover current state and federal laws and regulations governing the program, applicable 
processes for investigating and resolving complaints, including those alleging unlawful 
discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), applicable 
standards for reaching decisions on complaints, and appropriate corrective measures.  
Assigned employees may have access to legal counsel as determined by the Superintendent 
or designee. 
 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9124 - Attorney) 
 
The compliance officer or, if necessary, any appropriate administrator shall determine 
whether interim measures are necessary during and pending the result of an investigation. If 
interim measures are determined to be necessary, the compliance officer or the administrator 
shall consult with the Superintendent, the Superintendent's designee, or, if appropriate, the 
site principal to implement one or more interim measures. The interim measures shall remain 
in place until the compliance officer determines that they are no longer necessary or until the 
district issues its final written decision, whichever occurs first. 
 
Notifications 
 
The district's UCP policy and administrative regulation shall be posted in all district schools 
and offices, including staff lounges and student government meeting rooms.  (Education 
Code 234.1) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide written notification of the district's 
UCP to students, employees, parents/guardians of district students, district advisory 
committee members, school advisory committee members, appropriate private school 
officials or representatives, and other interested parties. The notification shall include 
information regarding the prohibition of discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and 
bullying; unlawful student fees; local control and accountability plan (LCAP) requirements; 
and requirements related to the educational rights of foster youth, homeless students, former 
juvenile court school students, and children of military families.  (Education Code 262.3, 
48853, 48853.5, 49010-49013, 49069.5, 51225.1, 51225.2, 52075; 5 CCR 4622) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(c) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6173.2 - Education of Children of Military Families) 
(cf. 6173.3 - Education for Juvenile Court School Students) 
 
The notice shall: 
 
1. Identify the person(s), position(s), or unit(s) responsible for receiving complaints 
 
2. Advise the complainant of any civil law remedies that may be available to him/her 

under state or federal antidiscrimination laws, if applicable 
 
3. Advise the complainant of the appeal process, including, if applicable, the 

complainant's right to take a complaint directly to the California Department of 
Education (CDE) or to pursue remedies before civil courts or other public agencies, 
such as the U.S. Department of Education's Office for Civil Rights (OCR) in cases 
involving unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying). 

 
4. Include statements that: 
 

a. The district has the primary responsibility to ensure compliance with 
applicable state and federal laws and regulations governing educational 
programs. 

 
b. The complaint review shall be completed within 60 calendar days from the 

date of receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an 
extension of the timeline. 

 
c. A complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) must be filed not later 
than six months from the date it occurred, or six months from the date the 
complainant first obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful 
discrimination. The time for filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the 
Superintendent or designee for good cause upon written request by the 
complainant setting forth the reasons for the extension. 

 
d. Complaints should be filed in writing and signed by the complainant. If a 

complainant is unable to put his/her complaint in writing, for example, due to 
conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district staff shall assist him/her in 
the filing of the complaint. 

 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(d) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 

 
e. If a complaint is not filed in writing but the district receives notice of any 

allegation that is subject to the UCP, the district shall take affirmative steps to 
investigate and address the allegations, in a manner appropriate to the 
particular circumstances. 

 
 If the allegation involves retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 

discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying) and the investigation 
confirms that discrimination has occurred, the district will take steps to 
prevent recurrence of discrimination and correct its discriminatory effects on 
the complainant, and on others, if appropriate. 

 
f. A student enrolled in a public school shall not be required to pay a fee for 

his/her participation in an educational activity that constitutes an integral 
fundamental part of the district's educational program, including curricular 
and extracurricular activities. 

 
g. The Board is required to adopt and annually update the LCAP in a manner 

that includes meaningful engagement of parents/guardians, students, and other 
stakeholders in the development and/or review of the LCAP. 

 
h. A foster youth shall receive information about educational rights related to 

his/her educational placement, enrollment in and checkout from school, as 
well as the responsibilities of the district liaison for foster youth to ensure and 
facilitate these requirements and to assist the student in ensuring proper 
transfer of his/her credits, records, and grades when he/she transfers between 
schools or between the district and another district. 

 
i. A foster youth, homeless student, former juvenile court school student, or 

child of a military family who transfers into a district high school or between 
district high schools as applicable shall be notified of the district's 
responsibility to: 
 
(1) Accept any coursework or part of the coursework that the student has 

satisfactorily completed in another public school, juvenile court 
school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency, and to issue full 
or partial credit for the coursework completed 

 
(2) Not require the student to retake any course or a portion of a course 

which he/she has satisfactorily completed in another public school, 
juvenile court school, or a nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency 

 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(e) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 

 
(3) If the student has completed his/her second year of high school before 

the transfer, provide the student information about district-adopted 
coursework and Board-imposed graduation requirements from which 
he/she may be exempted pursuant to Education Code 51225.1 

 
j. The complainant has a right to appeal the district's decision to CDE by filing a 

written appeal within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision. 
 

 In any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the respondent also shall have the right 
to file an appeal with CDE in the same manner as the complainant, if he/she is 
dissatisfied with the district's decision. 

 
k. The appeal to CDE must include a copy of the complaint filed with the district 

and a copy of the district's decision. 
 

l. Copies of the district's UCP are available free of charge. 
 
The annual notification, complete contact information of the compliance officer(s), and 
information related to Title IX as required pursuant to Education Code 221.61 shall be posted 
on the district web site and may be provided through district-supported social media, if 
available. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all students and parents/guardians, including 
students and parents/guardians with limited English proficiency, have access to the relevant 
information provided in the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices concerning the 
UCP. 
 
If 15 percent or more of students enrolled in a particular district school speak a single 
primary language other than English, the district's policy, regulation, forms, and notices 
concerning the UCP shall be translated into that language, in accordance with Education 
Code 234.1 and 48985. In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all 
relevant UCP information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
District Responsibilities 
 
All UCP-related complaints shall be investigated and resolved within 60 calendar days of the 
district's receipt of the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to an extension of 
the timeline.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 



 AR 1312.3(f) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the district shall inform the respondent when the complainant 
agrees to an extension of the timeline for investigating and resolving the complaint. 
 
The compliance officer shall maintain a record of each complaint and subsequent related 
actions, including steps taken during the investigation and all information required for 
compliance with 5 CCR 4631 and 4633. 
 
All parties involved in the allegations shall be notified when a complaint is filed and when a 
decision or ruling is made. However, the compliance officer shall keep all complaints or 
allegations of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying) confidential except when disclosure is necessary to carry out the 
investigation, take subsequent corrective action, conduct ongoing monitoring, or maintain the 
integrity of the process.  (5 CCR 4630, 4964) 
 
All complainants shall be protected from retaliation. 
 
Filing of Complaints 
 
The complaint shall be presented to the compliance officer who shall maintain a log of 
complaints received, providing each with a code number and a date stamp. 
 
All complaints shall be filed in writing and signed by the complainant.  If a complainant is 
unable to put a complaint in writing due to conditions such as a disability or illiteracy, district 
staff shall assist him/her in the filing of the complaint.  (5 CCR 4600) 
 
Complaints shall also be filed in accordance with the following rules, as applicable: 
 
1. A complaint alleging district violation of applicable state or federal law or regulations 

governing the programs specified in the accompanying Board policy (item #1 of the 
section "Complaints Subject to the UCP") may be filed by any individual, public 
agency, or organization.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
2. Any complaint alleging noncompliance with law regarding the prohibition against 

requiring students to pay student fees, deposits, and charges or any requirement 
related to the LCAP may be filed anonymously if the complaint provides evidence, or 
information leading to evidence, to support an allegation of noncompliance. A 
complaint about a violation of the prohibition against the charging of unlawful 
student fees may be filed with the principal of the school or with the Superintendent 
or designee. However, any such complaint shall be filed no later than one year from 
the date the alleged violation occurred.  (Education Code 49013, 52075; 5 CCR 4630) 

 
 



 AR 1312.3(g) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
3. A complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 

intimidation, or bullying) may be filed only by a person who alleges that he/she 
personally suffered the unlawful discrimination or by a person who believes that an 
individual or any specific class of individuals has been subjected to it. The complaint 
shall be initiated no later than six months from the date when the alleged unlawful 
discrimination occurred, or six months from the date when the complainant first 
obtained knowledge of the facts of the alleged unlawful discrimination. The time for 
filing may be extended for up to 90 days by the Superintendent or designee for good 
cause upon written request by the complainant setting forth the reasons for the 
extension.  (5 CCR 4630) 

 
4. When a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) is filed anonymously, the compliance officer 
shall pursue an investigation or other response as appropriate, depending on the 
specificity and reliability of the information provided and the seriousness of the 
allegation. 

 
5. When the complainant of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 

harassment, intimidation, or bullying) or the alleged victim, when he/she is not the 
complainant, requests confidentiality, the compliance officer shall inform him/her 
that the request may limit the district's ability to investigate the conduct or take other 
necessary action. When honoring a request for confidentiality, the district shall 
nevertheless take all reasonable steps to investigate and resolve/respond to the 
complaint consistent with the request. 

 
Mediation 
 
Within three business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, he/she may 
informally discuss with all the parties the possibility of using mediation. Mediation shall be 
offered to resolve complaints that involve more than one student and no adult. However, 
mediation shall not be offered or used to resolve any complaint involving an allegation of 
sexual assault or where there is a reasonable risk that a party to the mediation would feel 
compelled to participate. If the parties agree to mediation, the compliance officer shall make 
all arrangements for this process. 
 
Before initiating the mediation of a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
(such as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall 
ensure that all parties agree to make the mediator a party to relevant confidential information.  
The compliance officer shall also notify all parties of the right to end the informal process at 
any time. 
 
If the mediation process does not resolve the problem within the parameters of law, the 
compliance officer shall proceed with his/her investigation of the complaint. 



 AR 1312.3(h) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The use of mediation shall not extend the district's timelines for investigating and resolving 
the complaint unless the complainant agrees in writing to such an extension of time. If 
mediation is successful and the complaint is withdrawn, then the district shall take only the 
actions agreed upon through the mediation. If mediation is unsuccessful, the district shall 
then continue with subsequent steps specified in this administrative regulation. 
 
Investigation of Complaint 
 
Within 10 business days after the compliance officer receives the complaint, the compliance 
officer shall begin an investigation into the complaint. 
 
Within one business day of initiating the investigation, the compliance officer shall provide 
the complainant and/or his/her representative with the opportunity to present the information 
contained in the complaint to the compliance officer and shall notify the complainant and/or 
his/her representative of the opportunity to present the compliance officer with any evidence, 
or information leading to evidence, to support the allegations in the complaint. Such evidence 
or information may be presented at any time during the investigation. 
 
In conducting the investigation, the compliance officer shall collect all available documents 
and review all available records, notes, or statements related to the complaint, including any 
additional evidence or information received from the parties during the course of the 
investigation. He/she shall individually interview all available witnesses with information 
pertinent to the complaint, and may visit any reasonably accessible location where the 
relevant actions are alleged to have taken place. At appropriate intervals, the compliance 
officer shall inform both parties of the status of the investigation. 
 
To investigate a complaint alleging retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the compliance officer shall interview 
the alleged victim(s), any alleged offenders, and other relevant witnesses privately, 
separately, and in a confidential manner. As necessary, additional staff or legal counsel may 
conduct or support the investigation. 
 
A complainant's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other 
evidence related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the 
investigation, or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in the 
dismissal of the complaint because of a lack of evidence to support the allegation. Similarly, 
a respondent's refusal to provide the district's investigator with documents or other evidence 
related to the allegations in the complaint, failure or refusal to cooperate in the investigation, 
or engagement in any other obstruction of the investigation may result in a finding, based on 
evidence collected, that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of a remedy in favor of 
the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(i) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
In accordance with law, the district shall provide the investigator with access to records and 
other information related to the allegation in the complaint and shall not in any way obstruct 
the investigation. Failure or refusal of the district to cooperate in the investigation may result 
in a finding based on evidence collected that a violation has occurred and in the imposition of 
a remedy in favor of the complainant.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
The compliance officer shall apply a "preponderance of the evidence" standard in 
determining the veracity of the factual allegations in a complaint. This standard is met if the 
allegation is more likely to be true than not. 
 
Report of Findings 
 
Unless extended by written agreement with the complainant, a final decision shall be sent to 
the complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's receipt of the complaint. Within 30 
calendar days of receiving the complaint, the compliance officer shall prepare and send to the 
complainant a written report, as described in the section "Final Written Decision" below. If 
the complainant is dissatisfied with the compliance officer's decision, he/she may, within five 
business days, file his/her complaint in writing with the Board. 
 
The Board may consider the matter at its next regular Board meeting or at a special Board 
meeting convened in order to meet the 60-day time limit within which the complaint must be 
answered. When required by law, the matter shall be considered in closed session.  The 
Board may decide not to hear the complaint, in which case the compliance officer's decision 
shall be final. 
 
If the Board hears the complaint, the compliance officer shall send the Board's decision to the 
complainant within 60 calendar days of the district's initial receipt of the complaint or within 
the time period that has been specified in a written agreement with the complainant.  (5 CCR 
4631) 
 
In resolving any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the respondent also shall be sent the district's 
decision and, in the same manner as the complainant, may file a complaint with the Board if 
dissatisfied with the decision. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(j) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
Final Written Decision 
 
The district's decision on how it will resolve the complaint shall be in writing and shall be 
sent to the complainant and respondent.  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
In consultation with district legal counsel, information about the relevant part of a decision 
may be communicated to a victim who is not the complainant and to other parties who may 
be involved in implementing the decision or are affected by the complaint, as long as the 
privacy of the parties is protected. In a complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying), notice of the district's decision to the 
alleged victim shall include information about any sanction to be imposed upon the 
respondent that relates directly to the alleged victim. 
 
If the complaint involves a limited-English-proficient student or parent/guardian and the 
student involved attends a school at which 15 percent or more of the students speak a single 
primary language other than English, then the decision shall also be translated into that 
language.  In all other instances, the district shall ensure meaningful access to all relevant 
information for parents/guardians with limited English proficiency. 
 
For all complaints, the decision shall include:  (5 CCR 4631) 
 
1. The findings of fact based on the evidence gathered. In reaching a factual 

determination, the following factors may be taken into account: 
 
a.  Statements made by any witnesses 
 
b.  The relative credibility of the individuals involved 
 
c.  How the complaining individual reacted to the incident 
 
d.  Any documentary or other evidence relating to the alleged conduct 

 
e.  Past instances of similar conduct by any alleged offenders 
 
f. Past false allegations made by the complainant 

 
2. The conclusion(s) of law 
 
3. Disposition of the complaint 
 
4. Rationale for such disposition 
 
 



 AR 1312.3(k) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 

For complaints of retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the disposition of the complaint shall include a 
determination for each allegation as to whether retaliation or unlawful discrimination 
has occurred. 
 
The determination of whether a hostile environment exists may involve consideration 
of the following: 
 
a. The manner in which the misconduct affected one or more students' education 
 
b. The type, frequency, and duration of the misconduct 
 
c. The relationship between the alleged victim(s) and offender(s) 
 
d. The number of persons engaged in the conduct and at whom the conduct was 

directed 
 
e. The size of the school, location of the incidents, and context in which they 

occurred 
 
f. Other incidents at the school involving different individuals 

 
5. Corrective action(s), including any actions that have been taken or will be taken to 

address the allegations in the complaint and including, with respect to a student fees 
complaint, a remedy that comports with Education Code 49013 and 5 CCR 4600 
 
For complaints of unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), the decision may, as required by law, include: 
 
a. The corrective actions imposed on the respondent 
 
b. Individual remedies offered or provided to the complainant or another person 

who was the subject of the complaint, but this information should not be 
shared with the respondent. 

 
c. Systemic measures the school has taken to eliminate a hostile environment 

and prevent recurrence 
 
6. Notice of the complainant's and respondent's right to appeal the district's decision to 

CDE within 15 calendar days, and procedures to be followed for initiating such an 
appeal 

 
 



 AR 1312.3(l) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
The decision may also include follow-up procedures to prevent recurrence or retaliation and 
for reporting any subsequent problems. 
 
For complaints alleging unlawful discrimination based on state law (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, and bullying), the decision shall also include a notice to the 
complainant that: 
 
1. He/she may pursue available civil law remedies outside of the district's complaint 

procedures, including seeking assistance from mediation centers or public/private 
interest attorneys, 60 calendar days after the filing of an appeal with CDE.  
(Education Code 262.3) 

 
2. The 60 days moratorium does not apply to complaints seeking injunctive relief in 

state courts or to discrimination complaints based on federal law.  (Education Code 
262.3) 

 
3. Complaints alleging discrimination based on race, color, national origin, sex, gender, 

disability, or age may also be filed with the U.S. Department of Education, Office for 
Civil Rights at www.ed.gov/ocr within 180 days of the alleged discrimination. 

 
Corrective Actions 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, the compliance officer shall adopt any appropriate 
corrective action permitted by law. Appropriate corrective actions that focus on the larger 
school or district environment may include, but are not limited to, actions to reinforce district 
policies; training for faculty, staff, and students; updates to school policies; or school climate 
surveys. 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate remedies that may be offered to the victim 
but not communicated to the respondent may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Counseling 
 
2. Academic support 
 
3. Health services 
 
4. Assignment of an escort to allow the victim to move safely about campus 
 
5. Information regarding available resources and how to report similar incidents or 

retaliation 
 



 AR 1312.3(m) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
6. Separation of the victim from any other individuals involved, provided the separation 

does not penalize the victim 
 
7. Restorative justice 
 
8. Follow-up inquiries to ensure that the conduct has stopped and there has been no 

retaliation 
 
9. Determination of whether any past actions of the victim that resulted in discipline 

were related to the treatment the victim received and described in the complaint 
 
For complaints involving retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying), appropriate corrective actions that focus on a student 
offender may include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 
1. Transfer from a class or school as permitted by law 
 
2. Parent/guardian conference 
 
3. Education regarding the impact of the conduct on others 
 
4. Positive behavior support 
 
5. Referral to a student success team 
 
6. Denial of participation in extracurricular or co-curricular activities or other privileges 

as permitted by law 
 
7. Disciplinary action, such as suspension or expulsion, as permitted by law 
 
When an employee is found to have committed retaliation or unlawful discrimination (such 
as discriminatory harassment, intimidation, or bullying), the district shall take appropriate 
disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal, in accordance with applicable law and 
collective bargaining agreement. 
 
The district may also consider training and other interventions for the larger school 
community to ensure that students, staff, and parents/guardians understand the types of 
behavior that constitute unlawful discrimination (such as discriminatory harassment, 
intimidation, or bullying), that the district does not tolerate it, and how to report and respond 
to it. 
 
When a complaint is found to have merit, an appropriate remedy shall be provided to the 
complainant or other affected person. 



 AR 1312.3(n) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
If a complaint alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, deposits, and 
other charges, physical education instructional minutes for students in elementary schools, or 
any requirement related to the LCAP is found to have merit, the district shall provide a 
remedy to all affected students and parents/guardians subject to procedures established by 
regulation of the State Board of Education.  (Education Code 49013, 51223, 52075) 
 
For complaints alleging noncompliance with the laws regarding student fees, the district shall 
attempt in good faith, by engaging in reasonable efforts, to identify and fully reimburse all 
affected students and parents/guardians who paid the unlawful student fees within one year 
prior to the filing of the complaint.  (Education Code 49013; 5 CCR 4600) 
 
Appeals to the California Department of Education 
 
Any complainant who is dissatisfied with the district's final written decision of a complaint 
regarding any specified federal or state educational program subject to the UCP may file an 
appeal in writing with CDE within 15 calendar days of receiving the district's decision.  
(Education Code 222, 48853, 48853.5, 49013, 49069.5, 51223, 51225.1, 51225.2, 51228.3, 
52075; 5 CCR 4632) 
 
When a respondent in any complaint alleging unlawful discrimination (such as 
discriminatory harassment, intimidation, and bullying) is dissatisfied with the district's final 
written decision, he/she, in the same manner as the complainant, may file an appeal with 
CDE. 
 
The complainant or respondent shall specify the basis for the appeal of the decision and how 
the facts of the district's decision are incorrect and/or the law has been misapplied. The 
appeal shall be sent to CDE with a copy of the original locally filed complaint and a copy of 
the district's decision in that complaint.  (5 CCR 4632) 
 
Upon notification by CDE that the complainant or respondent has appealed the district's 
decision, the Superintendent or designee shall forward the following documents to CDE:  (5 
CCR 4633) 
 
1. A copy of the original complaint 
 
2. A copy of the written decision 
 
3. A summary of the nature and extent of the investigation conducted by the district, if 

not covered by the decision 
 
4. A copy of the investigation file including, but not limited to, all notes, interviews, and 

documents submitted by the parties and gathered by the investigator 
 



 AR 1312.3(o) 
 
 
UNIFORM COMPLAINT PROCEDURES  (continued) 
 
 
5. A report of any action taken to resolve the complaint 
 
6. A copy of the district's uniform complaint procedures 
 
7. Other relevant information requested by CDE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3230(a) 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS 
 
 
To ensure the lawful expenditure of any federal formula or discretionary grant funds awarded 
to the district, the Superintendent or designee shall comply with the requirements of the 
Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (the "Uniform Guidance"), as contained in 2 
CFR 200.0-200.521 and Appendices I-XII. 
 
Allowable Costs 
 
Prior to obligating or spending any federal grant funds, the Superintendent or designee shall 
determine whether a proposed purchase is an allowable expenditure in accordance with 2 
CFR 200.400-200.475 and the terms and conditions of the award. He/she shall also determine 
whether the expense is a direct or indirect cost as defined in 2 CFR 200.413 and 200.414 and, 
if the purchase will benefit other programs not included in the grant award, the appropriate 
share to be allocated to the federal grant. 
 
(cf. 3350 - Travel Expenses) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall review and approve all transactions involving federal 
grant funds and shall ensure the proper coding of expenditures consistent with the California 
School Accounting Manual. 
 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3314 - Payment for Goods and Services) 
 
Period of Performance 
 
All obligations of federal funds shall occur on or between the beginning and ending dates of 
the grant project and shall be paid no later than 90 days after the end of the funding period, 
unless specifically authorized by the grant award to be carried over beyond the initial term of 
the grant.  (2 CFR 200.77, 200.308, 200.309, 200.343) 
 
Procurement 
 
When procuring goods and services with a federal grant, the Superintendent or designee shall 
comply with the standards contained in 2 CFR 200.317-200.326 and Appendix II of Part 200, 
or with any applicable state law or district policy that is more restrictive. 
 
As appropriate to encourage greater economy and efficiency, the Superintendent or designee 
shall avoid acquisition of unnecessary or duplicative items, give consideration to 
consolidating or breaking out procurements, analyze lease versus purchase alternatives, 
consider entering into an interagency agreement for procurement of common or shared goods 
and services, and/or use federal excess or surplus property.  (2 CFR 200.318) 
 
 
 



 AR 3230(b) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
The procurement of goods or services with federal funds shall be conducted in a manner that 
provides full and open competition in accordance with state laws and district regulations and 
the following requirements: 
 
1. Any purchase of supplies or services that does not exceed the "micro-purchase" 

threshold specified in 48 CFR 2.101 may be awarded without soliciting competitive 
quotes, provided that the district considers the price to be reasonable and maintains 
written evidence of this reasonableness in the record of all micro-purchases.  (2 CFR 
200.67, 200.320) 

 
2. For any purchase that exceeds the micro-purchase threshold but is less than the bid 

limit required by Public Contract Code 20111, the Superintendent or designee shall 
utilize "small-purchase" procedures that include obtaining price or rate quotes from 
an adequate number of qualified sources.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
3. Contracts for goods or services over the bid limits required by Public Contract Code 

20111 shall be awarded pursuant to California law and AR 3311 - Bids, unless 
exempt from bidding under the law. 

 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
 
4. If a purchase is exempt from bidding and the district's solicitation is by a request for 

proposals, the award may be made by either a fixed-price or cost-reimbursement type 
contract awarded to the entity whose proposal is most advantageous to the program, 
with price and other factors considered.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
 
5. Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole sourcing) may be used only when the 

item is available exclusively from a single source, the need or emergency will not 
permit a delay resulting from competitive solicitation, the awarding agency expressly 
authorizes sole sourcing in response to the district's request, and/or competition is 
determined inadequate after solicitation of a number of sources.  (2 CFR 200.320) 

 
6. Time and materials type contracts may be used only after a determination that no 

other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the contractor 
exceeds at its own risk.  Time and materials type contract means a contract for which 
the cost is the sum of the actual cost of materials and direct labor hours charged at 
fixed hourly rates that reflect wages, general administrative expenses, and profit.  
(200.328) 

 
For any purchase of $25,000 or more, the Superintendent or designee shall verify that any 
vendor which is used to procure goods or services is not excluded or disqualified by the 
federal government.  (2 CFR 180.220, 200.213) 



 AR 3230(c) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
All solicitations shall incorporate a clear and accurate description of the technical 
requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured. Such description shall not, 
in competitive procurements, contain features which unduly restrict competition. The 
description shall avoid detailed product specifications to the extent possible, but may include 
a statement of the qualitative nature of the material, product, or service to be procured and, 
when necessary, shall set forth those minimum essential characteristics and standards to 
which it must conform if it is to satisfy its intended use. When it is impractical or not 
economical to make a clear and accurate description of the technical requirements, a brand 
name or equivalent description may be used to define the performance or other salient 
requirements of procurement, clearly stating the specific features of the named brand which 
must be met by offers. In addition, every solicitation shall identify all requirements which the 
offer must fulfill and any other factors to be used in evaluating bids or proposals.  (2 CFR 
200.319) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain sufficient records to document the 
procurement, including, but not limited to, the rationale for the method of procurement, 
selection of the contract type, contractor selection or rejection, and the basis for the contract 
price.  (2 CFR 200.318) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all contracts for purchases using federal 
grant funds contain the applicable contract provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 - 
Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards.  (2 CFR 
200.326) 
 
Capital Expenditures 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall obtain prior written approval from the awarding agency 
before using federal funds to make capital expenditures, including the acquisition of land, 
facilities, equipment, and intellectual property and expenditures to make additions, 
improvements, modifications, replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations, or 
alterations to capital assets that materially increase their value or useful life.  (2 CFR 200.12, 
200.13, 200.20, 200.33, 200.48, 200.58, 200.89, 200.313, 200.439) 
 
Conflict of Interest 
 
No Governing Board member, district employee, or district representative shall participate in 
the selection, award, or administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he/she has a 
real or apparent conflict of interest, such as when he/she or a member of his/her immediate 
family, his/her partner, or an organization which employs or is about to employ any of them 
has a financial interest in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. 
Such persons are prohibited from soliciting or accepting gratuities, favors, or anything of 
monetary value from contractors or subcontractors unless the gift is an unsolicited item of 
nominal value.  (2 CFR 200.318) 



 AR 3230(d) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
Employees engaged in the selection, award, and administration of contracts shall also comply 
with BB 9270 - Conflict of Interest. 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
Cash Management 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure the district's compliance with 2 CFR 200.305 
pertaining to payments and cash management, including compliance with applicable methods 
and procedures that minimize the time elapsing between the transfer of funds to the district 
and the district's disbursement of funds.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
When authorized by law, the district may receive advance payments of federal grant funds, 
limited to the minimum amounts needed and timed in accordance with the actual immediate 
cash requirements of the district for carrying out the purpose of the program or project. 
Except under specified conditions, the district shall maintain the advance payments in an 
interest-bearing account. The district shall remit interest earned on the advanced payment to 
the awarding agency on an annual basis, but may retain interest amounts specified in 2 CFR 
200.305 for administrative expenses.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
When required by the awarding agency, the district shall instead submit a request for 
reimbursement of actual expenses incurred. The district may also request reimbursement as 
an alternative to receiving advance payments.  (2 CFR 200.305) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain source documentation supporting the 
expenditure of federal funds, such as invoices, time sheets, payroll stubs, or other appropriate 
documentation. 
 
Personnel 
 
All district employees who are paid in full or in part with federal funds, including employees 
whose salary is paid with state or local funds but is used to meet a required match or in-kind 
contribution to a federal program, shall document the amount of time they spend on grant 
activities.  (2 CFR 200.430) 
 
Records 
 
Except as otherwise provided in 2 CFR 200.333, or where state law or district policy requires 
a longer retention period, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all 
other district records related to a federal award shall be retained for a period of three years 
from the date of submission of the final expenditure report or, for a federal award that is 
renewed quarterly or annually, from the date of the submission of the quarterly or annual 
financial report.  (2 CFR 200.333) 
 



 AR 3230(e) 
 
 
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Audits 
 
Whenever the district expends $750,000 or more in federal grant funds during a fiscal year, it 
shall arrange for either a single audit or a program-specific audit in accordance with 2 CFR 
200.507 or 200.514.  (2 CFR 200.501) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the audit meets the requirements specified 
in 2 CFR 200.500-200.521. 
 
Specified records pertaining to the audit of federal funds expended by the district shall be 
transmitted to the clearinghouse designated by the federal Office of Management and Budget 
and shall be made available for public inspection. Such records shall be transmitted within 30 
days after receipt of the auditor's report or within nine months after the end of the audit 
period, whichever is sooner, unless a longer period is agreed to in advance by the federal 
agency or a different period is specified in a program-specific audit guide.  (2 CFR 200.512) 
 
In the event that the audit identifies any deficiency, the Superintendent or designee shall 
promptly act to either correct the identified deficiency, produce recommended improvements, 
or demonstrate that the audit finding is invalid or does not warrant action.  (2 CFR 200.26, 
200.508, 200.511) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3514.2(a) 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT 
 

 
Definitions 
 
Integrated pest management (IPM) means a strategy that focuses on long-term prevention or 
suppression of pest problems through a combination of techniques such as monitoring for 
pest presence and establishing treatment threshold levels, using nonchemical practices to 
make the habitat less conducive to pest development, improving sanitation, and employing 
mechanical and physical controls.  (Education Code 17609; Food and Agricultural Code 
13181) 
 
(cf. 3510 - Green School Operations) 
 
School site means any facility used as a child day care facility or for kindergarten, 
elementary, or secondary school purposes and includes the buildings or structures, 
playgrounds, athletic fields, vehicles, or any other area of property visited or used by 
students.  (Education Code 17609) 
 
Program Components 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an employee at the district office and/or 
school site to develop, implement, and coordinate an IPM strategy that incorporates effective, 
least toxic pest management practices. 
 

The IPM coordinator shall prepare and annually update a districtwide or school site IPM plan 
based on the template provided by the California Department of Pesticide Regulation (DPR). 
 

The IPM plan shall include the name of the district and/or school IPM coordinator, the 
pesticides expected to be applied at the school site by district employees and/or pest control 
applicators, and a date that the plan shall be reviewed and, if necessary, updated.  (Education 
Code 17611.5) 
 

The district shall use pesticides that pose the least possible hazard and are effective in a 
manner that minimizes risks to people, property, and the environment. Such pesticides shall 
only be used after careful monitoring indicates they are needed according to pre-established 
guidelines and treatment thresholds.  (Food and Agricultural Code 13181) 
 

The IPM plan and this administrative regulation shall not apply to reduced-risk pesticides, 
including self-contained baits or traps, gels or pastes used for crack and crevice treatments, 
antimicrobials, and pesticides exempt from registration by law.  (Education Code 17610.5; 3 
CCR 6147) 
 

The district's program shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following 
components: 
 

1. Identifying and monitoring pest population levels and identifying practices that could 
affect pest populations.  Strategies for managing the pest shall be influenced by the 
pest species and whether that species poses a threat to people, property, or the 
environment. 



 AR 3514.2(b) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
2. Setting action threshold levels to determine when pest populations or vegetation at a 

specific location might cause unacceptable health or economic hazards that would 
indicate corrective action should be taken. 

 
3. Modifying or eliminating pest habitats to deter pest populations and minimize pest 

infestations. 
 

4. Considering a full range of possible alternative cost-effective treatments. Such 
alternative treatments may include taking no action or controlling the pest by 
physical, horticultural, or biological methods. Cost or staffing considerations alone 
will not be adequate justification for the use of chemical control agents. 

 
5. Selecting nonchemical pest management methods over chemical methods whenever 

such methods are effective in providing the desired control or, when it is determined 
that chemical methods must be used, giving preference to those chemicals that pose 
the least hazardous effects to people and the environment. 

 

No pesticide that is prohibited by DPR or the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 
as listed on the DPR web site, shall be used at a school site.  (Education Code 
17610.1) 

 
6. Limiting pesticide purchases to amounts needed for the year.  Pesticides shall be 

stored at a secure location that is not accessible to students and unauthorized staff.  
They shall be stored and disposed of in accordance with state regulations and product 
label directions. 

 
(cf. 3514 - Environmental Safety) 
(cf. 3514.1 - Hazardous Substances) 
 
7. Informing parents/guardians and employees regarding pesticide use as described in 

the sections "Notifications" and "Warning Signs" below. 
 

8. Ensuring that persons applying pesticides follow label precautions and are sufficiently 
trained in the principles and practices of IPM as described in the section "Training" 
below. 

 

9. Evaluating the effectiveness of treatments to determine if revisions to the IPM plan 
are needed. 

 
Training 
 

The IPM coordinator and any employee or contractor who may be designated to apply a 
pesticide at a school site shall annually complete a DPR-approved training course on IPM 
and the safe use of pesticides in relation to the unique nature of school sites and children's 
health.  (Education Code 17614; Food and Agricultural Code 13186.5) 



 AR 3514.2(c) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
 
Any district employee who handles pesticides shall also receive pesticide-specific safety 
training prior to applying pesticides and annually thereafter in accordance with 3 CCR 6724. 
 
Notifications 
 
Staff and parents/guardians of students enrolled at a school site shall be annually notified, in 
writing, regarding pesticide products expected to be applied at the school site in the 
upcoming year. The notification shall include at least the following:  (Education Code 17612) 
 
1. The name of each pesticide product expected to be applied in the upcoming year and 

the active ingredient(s) in it 
 
2. The Internet address (http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/schoolipm) used to access information 

on pesticides and pesticide use reduction developed by the DPR pursuant to Food and 
Agricultural Code 13184 

 
3. If the school has posted its IPM plan, the Internet address where the plan may be 

found 
 
4. The opportunity to view a copy of the IPM plan in the school office 
 
5. An opportunity for interested persons to register to receive prior notification of each 

application of a pesticide at the school site 
 
6. Other information deemed necessary by the IPM coordinator 
 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 3517 - Facilities Inspection) 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
Whenever a person registers to receive notice of individual pesticide application pursuant to 
item #5 above, the IPM coordinator shall notify such registered persons of individual 
pesticide applications at least 72 hours prior to the application. The notice shall include the 
product name, the active ingredient(s) in the product, and the intended date of application.  
(Education Code 17612) 
 
If a pesticide product not included in the annual notification is subsequently intended for use 
at a school site, the IPM coordinator shall provide written notification of its intended use to 
staff and parents/guardians of students enrolled at the school, at least 72 hours prior to the 
application.  (Education Code 17612) 
 



 AR 3514.2(d) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
If a school chooses to use a pesticide not exempted pursuant to Education Code 17610.5, it 
shall post the school or district IPM plan on the school's web site or, if the school does not 
have a web site, then on the district web site. If neither the school nor district has a web site, 
then the IPM plan shall be included with the annual notification sent to staff and 
parents/guardians pursuant to Education Code 17612 as described above. When not required, 
the IPM coordinator may post or distribute the IPM plan at his/her discretion.  (Education 
Code 17611.5) 
 
Whenever the IPM coordinator deems that the immediate use of a pesticide is necessary to 
protect the health and safety of students, staff, or other persons at the school site, he/she shall 
make every effort to provide the required notifications prior to the application of the 
pesticide.  (Education Code 17612) 
 
Warning Signs 
 
The IPM coordinator shall post a warning sign at each area of the school site where 
pesticides will be applied that shall be visible to all persons entering the treated area. The 
sign shall be posted at least 24 hours prior to the application and shall remain posted until 72 
hours after the application. The warning sign shall prominently display the following 
information:  (Education Code 17612) 
 
1. The term "Warning/Pesticide Treated Area" 
 
2. The product name, manufacturer's name, and the EPA's product registration number 
 
3. Intended areas and dates of application 
 
4. Reason for the pesticide application 
 
When advance posting is not possible due to an emergency condition requiring immediate 
use of a pesticide to protect the health and safety of students, staff, or other persons or the 
school site, the warning sign shall be posted immediately upon application and shall remain 
posted until 72 hours after the application.  (Education Code 17609, 17612) 
 
Records 
 
At the end of each calendar year, the IPM coordinator shall submit to DPR, on a form 
provided by DPR, a copy of the records of all pesticide use at the school site for that year, 
excluding any pesticides exempted by law and any pesticide use reported by the pest control 
operator pursuant to Food and Agricultural Code 13186. The IPM coordinator may submit 
more frequent reports at his/her discretion.  (Education Code 17611) 
 
 



 AR 3514.2(e) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
Each school site shall maintain records of all pesticide use at the school for four years, and 
shall make the information available to the public, upon request, in accordance with the 
California Public Records Act. A school may meet this requirement by retaining a copy of 
the warning sign posted for each pesticide application with a recording on that copy of the 
amount of the pesticide used.  (Education Code 17611) 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Pesticide Use near School Site 
 
Upon receiving notification pursuant to 3 CCR 6692 that a grower expects to use  
agricultural pesticides within one-quarter mile of a school site Monday through Friday from 
6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., the principal or designee shall notify the Superintendent or designee, 
IPM coordinator, staff at the school site, and parents/guardians of students enrolled at the 
school. 
 
The principal or designee may communicate with any grower within one-quarter mile of the 
school to request that the grower not apply pesticides during evenings or weekends when 
school activities are scheduled. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 3514.2(f) 
 
 
INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
17366 Legislative intent (fitness of buildings for occupancy) 
17608-17614  Healthy Schools Act of 2000 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
48980.3  Notification of pesticides 
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE 
8593.2  Licensed pest control operators; training requirements 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURAL CODE 
11401-12408  Pest control operations and agricultural chemicals 
13180-13188  Healthy Schools Act of 2000 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
3543.2  Scope of representation; right to negotiate safety conditions 
6250-6270  California Public Records Act 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 3 
6147  Pesticides exempted from registration requirements 
6690-6692  Pesticide use near school sites 
6724  Training of employees handling pesticides 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 8 
340-340.2  Employer's obligation to provide safety information 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 7 
136-136y  Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodentcide Act 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF PESTICIDE REGULATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School IPM Model Program Guidebook 
Healthy Schools Act Requirements for Public K-12 Schools 
School District Integrated Pest Management Plan Template 
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
Pest Control in the School Environment: Implementing Integrated Pest Management (IPM), May 2017 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education:  http//www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Pesticide Regulation, School IPM:   http://www.cdpr.ca.gov/schoolipm 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Integrated Pest Management at Schools:  
https://www.epa.gov/managing-pests-schools 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations  BP 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 
 
The Governing Board intends that school food services shall be a self-supporting, nonprofit 
program. To ensure program quality and increase cost effectiveness, the Superintendent or 
designee shall centralize and direct the purchasing of foods and supplies, the planning of 
menus, and the auditing of all food service accounts for the district. 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
(cf. 3311 - Bids) 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all food service personnel possess the 
required qualifications and receive ongoing professional development related to the effective 
management and implementation of the district's food service program in accordance with 
law. 
 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
At least once each year, food service administrators, other appropriate personnel who 
conduct or oversee administrative procedures, and other food service personnel shall receive 
training provided by the California Department of Education (CDE).  (42 USC 1776) 
 
Meal Sales 
 
Meals may be sold to students, district employees, Board members, and employees or 
members of the fund or association maintaining the cafeteria.  (Education Code 38082) 
 
In addition, meals may be sold to nonstudents, including parents/guardians, volunteers, 
students' siblings, or other individuals, who are on campus for a legitimate purpose. Any 
meals served to nonstudents shall not be subsidized by federal or state reimbursements, food 
service revenues, or U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) foods. 
 
Meal prices, as recommended by the Superintendent or designee and approved by the Board, 
shall be based on the costs of providing food services and consistent with Education Code 
38084 and 42 USC 1760. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish strategies and procedures for the collection of 
meal payments, including delinquent meal payments. Such procedures shall conform with 2 
CFR 200.426 and any applicable CDE guidance. The Superintendent or designee shall 
clearly communicate these procedures to students and parents/guardians, and shall make this 
policy and the accompanying administrative regulation available to the public. 
 
 



 BP 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a student whose parent/guardian has unpaid 
school meal fees is not overtly identified, shamed, treated differently, or served a meal that 
differs from the meal served to other students.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 
Students who are enrolled in the free or reduced-price meal program shall receive meals free 
of charge or at a reduced price in accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative 
regulation. Such students shall not be overtly identified or treated differently from other 
students. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a cafeteria fund independent of the district's 
general fund. 
 
The wages, salaries, and benefits of food service employees shall be paid from the cafeteria 
fund.  (Education Code 38103) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that state and federal funds provided through 
school meal programs are allocated only for purposes related to the operation or 
improvement of food services and reasonable and necessary indirect program costs as 
allowed by law. 
 
(cf. 3230 - Federal Grant Funds) 
(cf. 3400 - Management of District Assets/Accounts) 
(cf. 3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
Contracts with Outside Services 
 
With Board approval, the district may enter into a contract for food service consulting 
services or management services in one or more district schools.  (Education Code 45103.5; 
42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Procurement of Foods, Equipment and Supplies 
 
To the maximum extent practicable, foods purchased for use in school meals by the district 
or by any entity purchasing food on its behalf shall be domestic commodities or products. 
Domestic commodity or product means an agricultural commodity that is produced in the 
United States and a food product that is processed in the United States substantially using 
agricultural commodities that are produced in the United States.  (42 USC 1760; 7 CFR 
210.21) 
 
A nondomestic food product may be purchased for use in the district's food service program 
only as a last resort when the product is not produced or manufactured in the United States in 
sufficient and reasonable quantities of a satisfactory quality, or when competitive bids reveal 
the costs of a United States product are significantly higher than the nondomestic product. In 
such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall retain documentation justifying the use of 
the exception. 
 
Furthermore, the district shall accept a bid or price for an agricultural product grown in 
California before accepting a bid or price for an agricultural product grown outside the state, 
if the quality of the California-grown product is comparable and the bid or price does not 
exceed the lowest bid or price of a product produced outside the state.  (Food and Agriculture 
Code 58595) 
 
Bid solicitations and awards for purchases of equipment, materials, or supplies in support of 
the district's child nutrition program, or for contracts awarded pursuant to Public Contract 
Code 2000, shall be consistent with the federal procurement standards in 2 CFR 200.318-
200.326. Awards shall be let to the most responsive and responsible party. Price shall be the 
primary consideration, but not the only determining factor, in making such an award.  (Public 
Contract Code 20111) 
 
Program Monitoring and Evaluation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board, at least annually, financial reports 
regarding revenues and expenditures related to the food service program. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all necessary documentation required for the 
Administrative Review conducted by the CDE to ensure compliance of the district's food 
service program with federal requirements related to maintenance of the nonprofit school 
food service account, meal charges, paid lunch equity, revenue from nonprogram goods, 
indirect costs, and USDA foods. 
 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BP 3551(d) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
38080-38086  Cafeteria, establishment and use 
38090-38095  Cafeterias, funds and accounts 
38100-38103  Cafeterias, allocation of charges 
42646  Alternate payroll procedure 
45103.5  Contracts for management consulting services; restrictions 
49490-49493  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49554  Contract for services 
49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 
49580-49581  Food recovery program 
FOOD AND AGRICULTURE CODE 
58595  Preference for California-grown agricultural products 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
113700-114437  California Retail Food Code 
PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 
2000-2002 Responsive bidders 
20111  Contracts 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch programs 
1771-1791  Child nutrition, including: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
200.56  Indirect costs, definition 
200.318-200.326  Procurement standards 
200.400-200.475  Cost principles 
200 Appendix VII  Indirect cost proposals 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.1-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 
250.1-250.70  USDA foods 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3551(e) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
California School Accounting Manual 
Food Distribution Program Administrative Manual 
Storage and Inventory Management of U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods, NSD Management 
Bulletin, FDP-01-2018, January 2018 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, Clarification on Collection of Delinquent Meal 
Payments, and Excess Student Account Balances, NSD Management Bulletin, SNP-03-2017, April 
2017 
Clarification for the Use of Alternate Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast 
Programs, Bad Debt Policies, and the Handling of Unpaid Meal Charges, NSD Management Bulletin, 
USDA-SNP-06-2015, May 2015 
Cafeteria Funds--Allowable Uses, NSD Management Bulletin, NSD-SNP-07-2013, May 2013 
Paid Lunch Equity Requirement, NSD Management Bulletin, USDA-SNP-16-2012, October 2012 
Adult and Sibling Meals in the National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, NSD 
Management Bulletin 00-111, July 2000 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
FAQs About School Meals 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Indirect Costs: Guidance for State Agencies and School Food Authorities SP 60-2016, September 2016 
Overcoming the Unpaid Meal Challenge: Proven Strategies from Our Nation's Schools, September 
2016 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Local Meal Charge Policies, SP 46-2016, July 2016 
Compliance with and Enforcement of the Buy American Provision in the National School Lunch 
Program, SP 24-2016, February 2016 
Discretionary Elimination of Reduced Price Charges in the School Meal Programs, SP 17-2014, 
January 2014 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California School Nutrition Association: http://www.calsna.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3551(a) 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND 
 
 
Payments for Meals 
 
With the exception of students who are eligible to receive meals at no cost, students may pay 
on a per-meal basis or may submit payments in advance. The Superintendent or designee 
shall maintain a system for accurately recording payments received and tracking meals 
provided to each student. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
At the beginning of the school year, and whenever a student enrolls during the school year, 
parents/guardians shall be notified of the district's meal payment policies and be encouraged 
to prepay for meals whenever possible. The Superintendent or designee shall communicate 
the district's meal payment policies through multiple methods, including, but not limited to: 
 
1. Explaining the meal charge policy within registration materials provided to 

parents/guardians at the start of the school year 
 
2. Including the policy in print versions of student handbooks, if provided to 

parents/guardians annually 
 
3. Providing the policy whenever parents/guardians are notified regarding the 

application process for free and reduced-price meals, such as in the distribution of 
applications at the start of the school year 

 
4. Posting the policy on the district's web site 
 
5. Establishing a system to notify parents/guardians when a student's meal payment 

account has a low or negative balance 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In any school that uses a system of meal tickets or other similar medium of exchange rather 
than an electronic point-of-sale system, the Superintendent or designee shall develop a 
process for providing replacement tickets to any student who reports his/her tickets as lost or 
stolen. However, whenever any student reports an excessive number of lost or stolen tickets, 
the Superintendent or designee shall notify the parent/guardian and may provide an 
alternative method of tracking meal usage for that student. 
 
In order to avoid potential misuse of a student's food service account by someone other than 
the student in whose name the account has been established, the Superintendent or designee  
 



 AR 3551(b) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
shall verify a student's identity when setting up the account and when charging any meal to 
the account. The Superintendent or designee shall investigate any claim that a bill does not 
belong to a student or is inaccurate, shall not require a student to pay a bill that appears to be 
the result of identity theft, and shall open a new account with a new account number for a 
student who appears to be the subject of identity theft. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
Any payments made to a student's food service account shall, if not used within the school 
year, be carried over into the next school year or be refunded to the student's 
parents/guardians. 
 
Unpaid and Delinquent Meal Charges 
 
No later than 10 days after a student's school meal account has reached a negative balance, 
the Superintendent or designee shall so notify the student's parent/guardian. Before sending 
this notification, the district shall exhaust all options and methods to directly certify the 
student for free or reduced-price meals. If the district is not able to directly certify the 
student, the notice to the parent/guardian shall include a paper copy of, or an electronic link 
to, an application for free or reduced-price meals and the Superintendent or designee shall 
contact the parent/guardian to encourage submission of the application.  (Education Code 
49557.5) 
 
The district may attempt to collect unpaid school meal fees from a parent/guardian, but shall 
not use a debt collector.  (Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may enter into an agreement with a student's parent/guardian 
for payment of the student's unpaid meal charge balance over a period of time. As necessary, 
the repayment plan may allow the unrecovered or delinquent debt to carry over into the next 
fiscal year. 
 
The district shall not direct any action toward a student to collect unpaid school meal fees.  
(Education Code 49557.5) 
 
The district's efforts to collect debt shall be consistent with district policies and procedures, 
California Department of Education (CDE) guidance, and 2 CFR 200.426. The district shall 
not spend more than the actual debt owed in efforts to recover unpaid meal charges. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the efforts made to collect unpaid 
meal charges and, if applicable, financial documentation showing when the unpaid meal 
balance has become an operating loss. 
 



 AR 3551(c) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Reimbursement Claims 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the number of meals served each 
day by school site and by category of free, reduced-price, and full-price meals.  The 
Superintendent or designee shall submit reimbursement claims for school meals to CDE 
using the online Child Nutrition Information and Payment System. 
 
Donation of Leftover Food 
 
To minimize waste and reduce food insecurity, the district may provide sharing tables where 
students and staff may return appropriate unused cafeteria food items to be made available to 
students during the course of a regular school meal time. If food on the sharing tables is not 
taken by a student, the school cafeteria may donate the food to a food bank or any other 
nonprofit charitable organization.  (Health and Safety Code 114079) 
 
Food that may be donated includes prepackaged, nonpotentially hazardous food with the 
packaging still intact and in good condition, whole uncut produce, unopened bags of sliced 
fruit, unopened containers of milk that are immediately stored in a cooling bin maintained at 
41 degrees Fahrenheit or below, and perishable prepackaged food if it is placed in a proper 
temperature-controlled environment. The preparation, safety, and donation of food shall be 
consistent with Health and Safety Code 113980.  (Health and Safety Code 114079) 
 
Cafeteria Fund 
 
All proceeds from food sales and other services offered by the cafeteria shall be deposited in 
the cafeteria fund as provided by law. The income and expenditures of any cafeteria 
revolving account established by the Governing Board shall be recorded as income and 
expenditures of the cafeteria fund.  (Education Code 38090, 38091) 
 
(cf. 3100 - Budget) 
(cf. 3300 - Expenditures and Purchases) 
 
The cafeteria fund shall be used only for those expenditures authorized by the Board as 
necessary for the operation of school cafeterias in accordance with Education Code 38100-
38103, 2 CFR Part 200 Appendix VII, and the California School Accounting Manual. 
 
Any charges to, or transfers from, a food service program shall be dated and accompanied by 
a written explanation of the expenditure's purpose and basis.  (Education Code 38101) 
 
(cf. 3110 - Transfer of Funds) 
 
Indirect costs charged to the food service program shall be based on either the district's prior 
year indirect cost rate or the statewide average approved indirect cost rate for the second 
prior fiscal year, whichever is less.  (Education Code 38101) 



 AR 3551(d) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
Net cash resources in the nonprofit school food service shall not exceed three months average 
expenditures.  (2 CFR 220.14) 
 
U.S. Department of Agriculture Foods 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that foods received through the U.S. Department 
of Agriculture (USDA) are handled, stored, and distributed in facilities which:  (7 CFR 
250.14) 
 
1. Are sanitary and free from rodent, bird, insect, and other animal infestation 
 
2. Safeguard foods against theft, spoilage, and other loss 
 
3. Maintain foods at proper storage temperatures 
 
4. Store foods off the floor in a manner to allow for adequate ventilation 
 
5. Take other protective measures as may be necessary 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain inventories of USDA foods in accordance 
with 7 CFR 250.59 and CDE procedures, and shall ensure that foods are used before their 
expiration dates. 
 
USDA donated foods shall be used in school lunches as far as practicable. USDA foods also 
may be used in other nonprofit food service activities, including, but not limited to, school 
breakfasts or other meals, a la carte foods sold to students, meals served to adults directly 
involved in the operation and administration of the food service and to other school staff, and 
training in nutrition, health, food service, or general home economics instruction for students, 
provided that any revenues from such activities accrue to the district's nonprofit food service 
account.  (7 CFR 250.59) 
 
Contracts with Outside Services 
 
The term of any contract for food service management or consulting services shall not exceed 
one year. Any renewal of the contract or further requests for proposals to provide such 
services shall be considered on a year-to-year basis.  (Education Code 45103.5; 7 CFR 
210.16) 
 
Any contract for management of the food service operation shall be approved by CDE and 
comply with the conditions in Education Code 49554 and 7 CFR 210.16 as applicable. The 
district shall retain control of the quality, extent, and general nature of its food services, 
including prices to be charged to students for meals, and shall monitor the food service  
 



 AR 3551(e) 
 
 
FOOD SERVICE OPERATIONS/CAFETERIA FUND  (continued) 
 
 
operation through periodic on-site visits.  The district shall not enter into a contract with a 
food service company to provide a la carte food services only, unless the company agrees to 
offer free, reduced-price, and full-price reimbursable meals to all eligible students.  
(Education Code 49554; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 210.16) 
 
Any contract for consulting services shall not result in the supervision of food service 
classified staff by the management consultant, nor shall it result in the elimination of any 
food service classified staff or position or have any adverse effect on the wages, benefits, or 
other terms and conditions of employment of classified food service staff or positions. All 
persons providing consulting services shall be subject to applicable employment conditions 
related to health and safety as listed in Education Code 45103.5.  (Education Code 45103.5) 
 
(cf. 3312 - Contracts) 
(cf. 3515.6 - Criminal Background Checks for Contractors) 
(cf. 3600 - Consultants) 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 4212 - Appointments and Conditions of Employment) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations BP 3553(a) 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that adequate nutrition is essential to the development, 
health, and learning of all students. The Superintendent or designee shall facilitate and 
encourage the participation of students from low-income families in the district's food service 
program. 
 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
(cf. 5030 - Student Wellness) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
 
The district shall provide at least one nutritionally adequate meal each school day, free of 
charge or at a reduced price, for students whose families meet federal eligibility criteria.  
(Education Code 49550, 49552) 
 
To provide optimal nutrition and reduce the administrative burden of food service operations, 
the Superintendent or designee shall assess the eligibility of district schools to provide 
breakfast and/or lunch free of charge to all students at the school under a federally funded 
universal meal service provision, such as Provision 2 or the Community Eligibility Provision, 
pursuant to 42 USC 1759a. 
 
If any district school meets the criteria for a "very high poverty school" through its eligibility 
for the federal Community Eligibility Provision reimbursement rate pursuant to 42 USC 
1759a, the district shall apply to the California Department of Education (CDE) to operate a 
universal meal service, unless the Board adopts a resolution stating that the district is unable 
to comply with this requirement due to fiscal hardship. The resolution shall be part of the 
public agenda for at least two consecutive Board meetings, first as an information item and 
then as an action item. The Board shall reconsider the resolution at least once every four 
years.  (Education Code 49564; 42 USC 1759a) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that meals provided through the free and 
reduced-price meals program meet applicable state and/or federal nutritional standards in 
accordance with law, Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
 
Schools participating in the Special Milk Program pursuant to 42 USC 1772 shall provide 
milk at no charge to students who meet federal eligibility criteria for free or reduced-price 
meals. 
 
The Board shall approve, and shall submit to the CDE for approval, a plan that ensures that 
students eligible to receive free or reduced-price meals and milk are not treated differently 
from other students.  (Education Code 49557) 
 



BP 3553(b) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment) 
 
Confidentiality/Release of Records 
 
All applications and records related to eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program 
shall be confidential and may not be released except as provided by law and authorized by 
the Board or pursuant to a court order.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
The Board authorizes designated employees to use individual records pertaining to student 
eligibility for the free and reduced-price meal program for the following purposes:  
(Education Code 49558) 
 
1. Disaggregation of academic achievement data 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
2. Identification of students eligible for services under the federal Elementary and 

Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576 
 
(cf. 6171 - Title I Programs) 
 
If a student transfers from the district to another district, charter school, county office of 
education program, or private school, the Superintendent or designee may share the student's 
meal eligibility information to the other educational agency to assist in the continuation of 
the student's meal benefits. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to another school district, charter 
school, or county office of education that is serving a student living in the same household 
for purposes related to program eligibility and data used in local control funding formula 
calculations.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release the name and eligibility status of a student 
participating in the free or reduced-price meal program to the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction for purposes of determining allocations under the local control funding formula 
and for assessing accountability of that funding.  (Education Code 49558) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may release information on the school lunch program 
application to the local agency that determines eligibility for participation in the Medi-Cal 
program if the student has been approved for free meals or, if included in the agreement with  
 



 BP 3553(c) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
the local agency, for reduced-price meals. He/she also may release information on the school 
lunch application to the local agency that determines eligibility for CalFresh or another 
nutrition assistance program authorized under 7 CFR 210.1 if the student has been approved 
for free or reduced-price meals. Information may be released for these purposes only if the 
student's parent/guardian consents to the sharing of information and the district has entered 
into a memorandum of understanding with the local agency which, at a minimum, includes 
the roles and responsibilities of the district and local agency and the process for sharing the 
information. After sharing information with the local agency for purposes of determining 
eligibility for that program, no further information shall be shared unless otherwise 
authorized by law.  (Education Code 49557.2, 49557.3, 49558) 
 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
48980  Notice at beginning of term 
49430-49434  Pupil Nutrition, Health, and Achievement Act of 2001 
49490-49494  School breakfast and lunch programs 
49500-49505  School meals 
49510-49520  Nutrition 
49530-49536  Child Nutrition Act of 1974 
49547-49548.3  Comprehensive nutrition service 
49550-49564.5  Meals for needy students 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
15510  Mandatory meals for needy students 
15530-15535  Nutrition education 
15550-15565  School lunch and breakfast programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Federal Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
6301-6576 Elementary and Secondary Education Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1751-1769j  School lunch program 
1771-1791  Child nutrition, especially: 
1773  School breakfast program 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
210.1-210.31  National School Lunch Program 
220.10-220.21  National School Breakfast Program 
245.1-245.13  Determination of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals and free milk 

 
 
 
Management Resources: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 3553(d) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Monitoring for Success: A Guide for Assessing and Strengthening Student Wellness Policies, 2012 
Student Wellness: A Healthy Food and Physical Activity Policy Resource Guide, 2012 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Direct Certification Implementation ChecklistFree and Reduced-Price Meals: Universal Meal Service, 
Nutrition Services Division Management Bulletin SNP-01-2018, January 2018 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Eligibility Manual for School Meals:  Determining and Verifying Eligibility, July 2015 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS (continued) 
Provision 2 Guidance: National School Lunch and School Breakfast Programs, Summer 2002 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Nutrition Services Division: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/nu 
California Food Policy Advocates: https://cfpa.net 
California Project LEAN (Leaders Encouraging Activity and Nutrition): 
http://www.californiaprojectlean.org 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov/cnd 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Business and Noninstructional Operations AR 3553(a) 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS 
 
 
Applications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the district's application form for free and 
reduced-price meals and related materials include the statements specified in Education Code 
49557 and 7 CFR 245.5. The district's application packet shall include the notifications and 
information listed in Education Code 49557.2. 
 
(cf. 3550 - Food Service/Child Nutrition Program) 
(cf. 3551 - Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund) 
(cf. 3552 - Summer Meal Program) 
 
The application form and related information shall be distributed in paper form to all 
parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year and shall be available to students at all 
times during the school day.  (Education Code 48980, 49520; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.5) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
In addition, the district application form for free and reduced price meals shall be available 
online. The online application form shall require completion of only those questions 
necessary for determining eligibility, contain clear instructions for families that are homeless 
or migrant, and comply with other requirements specified in Education Code 49557. 
 
An application form and related information shall also be provided whenever a new student 
is enrolled. 
 
At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall send a public 
release, containing the same information supplied to parents/guardians and including 
eligibility criteria, to local media, the local unemployment office, and any major employers 
in the district attendance area contemplating large layoffs. Copies of the public release shall 
be made available upon request to any interested person.  (7 CFR 245.5) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall determine students' eligibility for the free and reduced-
price meal program based on the criteria specified in 42 USC 1758 and 1773 and 7 CFR 
245.1-245.13 and made available by the California Department of Education. 
 
Participants in the CalFresh, California Work Opportunity and Responsibility to Kids 
(CalWORKS), and Medi-Cal programs shall be directly certified for enrollment in the free 
and reduced-price meal program without further application. Participants in other state or 
federal programs may be directly certified when authorized by law.  (Education Code 49561, 
49562; 42 USC 1758; 7 CFR 245.6) 
 
 
 



 AR 3553(b) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children) 
(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth) 
(cf. 6175 - Migrant Education Program) 
 
Verification of Eligibility 
 
Not later than November 15 of each year, the Superintendent or designee shall verify the 
eligibility of a sample of household applications approved for the school year in accordance 
with the sample sizes and procedures specified in 42 USC 1758 and 7 CFR 245.6a.  (42 USC 
1758; 7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
If the review indicates that the initial eligibility determination is correct, the Superintendent 
or designee shall verify the approved household application. If the review indicates that the 
initial eligibility determination is incorrect, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (42 USC 
1758; 7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
1. If the eligibility status changes from reduced price to free, make the increased 

benefits immediately available and notify the household of the change in benefits 
 
2. If the eligibility status changes from free to reduced price, first verify the application, 

then notify the household of the correct eligibility status, and, when required by law, 
send a notice of adverse action as described below 

 
3. If the eligibility status changes from free or reduced price to paid, send the household 

a notice of adverse action as described below 
 
If any household is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits as a result of verification 
activities, or if the household fails to cooperate with verification efforts, the Superintendent 
or designee shall reduce or terminate benefits, as applicable, and shall properly document and 
retain on file in the district the reasons for ineligibility. He/she also shall send a notice of 
adverse action to any household that is to receive a reduction or termination of benefits. Such 
notice shall be provided 10 days prior to the actual reduction or termination of benefits. The 
notice shall advise the household of:  (7 CFR 245.6a) 
 
1. The change and the reasons for the change 
 
2. The right to appeal, when the appeal must be filed to ensure continued benefits while 

awaiting a hearing and decision, and instructions on how to appeal 
 
3. The right to reapply at any time during the school year 
 
 
 
 



 AR 3553(c) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
Confidentiality/Release of Records 
 
The Superintendent designates the following district employee(s) to use individual records 
pertaining to student participation in the free and reduced-price meal program for the purpose 
of disaggregation of academic achievement data and/or the provision of services under the 
federal Elementary and Secondary Education Act pursuant to 20 USC 6301-6576. 
 

_____________________________________ 
(title or position) 

 
In using the records for such purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that:  
(Education Code 49558) 
 
1. No individual indicators of participation in the free and reduced-price meal program 

are maintained in the permanent records of any student if not otherwise allowed by 
law. 

 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
2. Information regarding individual student participation in the free and reduced-price 

meal program is not publicly released. 
 
(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
 
3. All other confidentiality provisions required by law are met. 
 
4. Information collected regarding individual students certified to participate in the free 

and reduced-price meal program is destroyed when no longer needed for its intended 
purpose. 

 
Nondiscrimination Plan 
 
The district's plan for students receiving free or reduced-price meals shall ensure the 
following:  (Education Code 49557; 42 USC 1758) 
 
1. The names of the students shall not be published, posted, or announced in any 

manner, or used for any purpose other than the National School Lunch and School 
Breakfast Programs, unless otherwise provided by law. 

 
2. There shall be no overt identification of any of the students by the use of special 

tokens or tickets or by any other means. 
 
3. The students shall not be required to work for their meals or for milk. 



 AR 3553(d) 
 
 
FREE AND REDUCED PRICE MEALS  (continued) 
 
 
4. The students shall not be required to use a separate dining area, go through a separate 

serving line or entrance, or consume their meals or milk at a different time. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 3555 - Nutrition Program Compliance) 
 
When more than one lunch, breakfast, or type of milk is offered, the students shall have the 
same choice of meals or milk as is available to those students who pay the full price.  
(Education Code 49557; 7 CFR 245.8) 
 
Prices 
 
The maximum price that shall be charged to eligible students for reduced-price meals shall be 
40 cents for lunch and 30 cents for breakfast.  (42 USC 1758, 1773) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



All Personnel BP 4111(a) 
 4211 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION 4311 
 
 
The Governing Board is committed to employing suitable, qualified individuals to effectively 
carry out the district's vision, mission, and goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 4100 - Certificated Personnel) 
(cf. 4200 - Classified Personnel) 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall develop equitable, fair, and transparent recruitment and 
selection processes and procedures that ensure individuals are selected based on 
demonstrated knowledge, skills, and competence and not on any bias, personal preference, or 
unlawful discrimination. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4111.2/4211.2/4311.2 - Legal Status Requirement) 
 
When a vacancy occurs, the Superintendent or designee shall review the job description for 
the position to ensure that it accurately describes the major functions and duties of the 
position.  He/she shall also disseminate job announcements to ensure a wide range of 
candidates. 
 
The district's selection procedures shall include screening processes, interviews, 
recommendations from previous employers, and observations when appropriate, as necessary 
to identify the best possible candidate for a position. 
 
(cf. 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may establish an interview committee to rank candidates and 
recommend finalists. During job interviews, applicants may be asked to describe or 
demonstrate how they will be able to perform the duties of the job. All discussions and 
recommendations shall be confidential in accordance with law. 
 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
 
No inquiry shall be made with regard to any information prohibited by state or federal 
nondiscrimination laws. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall not inquire, orally or in writing, in regard to an 
applicant's salary history information, including compensation and benefits. He/she shall also 
not rely on salary history information as a factor in determining whether to offer employment 
to an applicant or the salary to offer. However, the Superintendent or designee may consider  
 



 BP 4111(b) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
salary information that is disclosable under state or federal law or that the applicant discloses 
voluntarily and without prompting. Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall 
provide the applicant the pay scale for the position to which he/she is applying.  (Labor Code 
432.3) 
 
For each position, the Superintendent or designee shall present to the Board one candidate 
who meets all qualifications established by law and the Board for the position. No person 
shall be employed by the Board without the recommendation or endorsement of the 
Superintendent or designee. 
 
(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification) 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 4112.8/4212.8/4312.8 - Employment of Relatives) 
(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment) 
(cf. 4312.1 - Contracts) 
 
Incentives 
 
With Board approval and in accordance with district needs, the district may provide 
incentives to recruit teachers, administrators, or other employees, such as signing bonuses, 
assistance with beginning teacher induction and/or credential costs, mentoring, additional 
compensation, and/or subsidized housing. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4111(c) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
35035 Responsibilities of superintendent 
44066  Limitations on certification requirement 
44259  Teaching credential; exception; designated subjects; minimum requirements 
44750  Teacher recruitment resource center 
44830-44831  Employment of certificated persons 
44858  Age or marital status in certificated positions 
44859  Prohibition against certain rules and regulations re: residency 
45103-45139  Employment (classified employees) 
49406  Examination for tuberculosis 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
815.2  Liability of public entities and public employees 
6250-6276.48 Public Records Act 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, including: 
12940-12957  Discrimination prohibited; unlawful practices 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
53570-53574 Teacher Housing Act of 2016 
LABOR CODE 
432.3 Salary information 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 5 
552 Freedom of Information Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 8 
1324a  Unlawful employment of aliens 
1324b  Unfair immigration related employment practices 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000d-2000d-7  Title VI, Civil Rights Act of 1964 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended 
12101-12213  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 28 
35.101-35.190  Americans with Disabilities Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.51-106.61  Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or 
activities 
COURT DECISIONS 
C.A. v William S. Hart Union High School District et al., (2012) 138 Cal.Rptr.3d 1 

 
 
 
Management Resources: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4111(d) 
 4211 
 4311 
 
 
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA COUNTY SUPERINTENDENTS EDUCATIONAL SERVICES ASSOCIATION 
PUBLICATIONS 
Teacher Recruitment in California: An Analysis of Effective Strategies, Research Brief, Veritas 
Research and Evaluation Group, October 2017 
WEB SITES 
California County Superintendents Educational Services Association: http://ccsesa.org/recruit 
California Department of Education: https://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing: http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov 
Education Job Opportunities Information Network: http://www.edjoin.org 
Teach USA:  https://culturalvistas.org/programs/us/teach-usa 
U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



All Personnel BP 4119.11(a) 
 4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 
 
 
The Governing Board is committed to providing a safe work environment that is free of 
harassment and intimidation. The Board prohibits sexual harassment against district 
employees and retaliatory behavior or action against any person who complains, testifies, or 
otherwise participates in the complaint process established for the purpose of this policy. 
 
Sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, harassment that is based on the gender, 
gender identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation of the victim. 
 
This policy shall apply to all district employees and to other persons on district property or 
with some employment relationship with the district, such as interns, volunteers, contractors, 
and job applicants. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
 
Any district employee who engages or participates in sexual harassment or who aids, abets, 
incites, compels, or coerces another to commit sexual harassment in violation of this policy is 
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including dismissal. 
 
(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports) 
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall take all actions necessary to ensure the prevention, 
investigation, and correction of sexual harassment, including but not limited to: 
 
1. Providing training to employees in accordance with law and administrative regulation 
 
2. Publicizing and disseminating the district's sexual harassment policy to employees 

and others to whom the policy may apply 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Ensuring prompt, thorough, and fair investigation of complaints 
 
4. Taking timely and appropriate corrective/remedial action(s), which may require 

interim separation of the complainant and the alleged harasser and subsequent 
monitoring of developments 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the district's 
strategies to prevent and address harassment. Such evaluation may involve conducting 
regular anonymous employee surveys to assess whether harassment is occurring or is 
perceived to be tolerated, partnering with researchers or other agencies with the needed  
 
 



 BP 4119.11(b) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
expertise to evaluate the district's prevention strategies, and using any other effective tool for 
receiving feedback on systems and/or processes. As necessary, changes shall be made to the 
harassment policy, complaint procedures, or training. 
 
Sexual Harassment Reports and Complaints 
 
Any district employee who feels that he/she has been sexually harassed in the performance of 
his/her district responsibilities or who has knowledge of any incident of sexual harassment by 
or against another employee shall immediately report the incident to his/her direct supervisor, 
another supervisor, the district's coordinator for nondiscrimination, the Superintendent, or, if 
available, a complaint hotline or an ombudsman. A supervisor or administrator who receives 
a harassment complaint shall promptly notify the coordinator. 
 
Complaints of sexual harassment shall be filed and investigated in accordance with the 
complaint procedure specified in AR 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment. An 
employee may bypass his/her supervisor in filing a complaint where the supervisor is the 
subject of the complaint. 
 
All complaints and allegations of sexual harassment shall be kept confidential to the extent 
necessary to carry out the investigation or to take other subsequent necessary actions.  (2 
CCR 11023) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 4119.11(c) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination on the basis of sex 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12900-12996  Fair Employment and Housing Act, especially: 
12940  Prohibited discrimination 
12950  Sexual harassment; distribution of information 
12950.1 Sexual harassment training 
LABOR CODE 
1101  Political activities of employees 
1102.1  Discrimination:  sexual orientation 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11009  Employment discrimination 
11021 Retaliation 
11023 Harassment and discrimination prevention and correction 
11024  Sexual harassment training and education 
11034  Terms, conditions, and privileges of employment 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
4900-4965  Nondiscrimination in elementary and secondary education programs receiving state 
financial assistance 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1681-1688 Title IX prohibition against discrimination 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000e-2000e-17  Title VII, Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
106.1-106.9 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or activities 
106.51-106.61 Nondiscrimination on the basis of sex in employment in education program or activities 
COURT DECISIONS 
Department of Health Services v. Superior Court of California, (2003) 31 Cal.4th 1026 
Faragher v. City of Boca Raton, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2275 
Burlington Industries v. Ellreth, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 2257 
Gebser v. Lago Vista Independent School District, (1998) 118 S.Ct. 1989 
Oncale v. Sundowner Offshore Serv. Inc., (1998) 118 S.Ct. 998 
Meritor Savings Bank, FSB v. Vinson et al., (1986) 447 U.S. 57 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY COMMISSION PUBLICATIONS 
Promising Practices for Preventing Harassment, November 2017 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
Equal Employment Opportunity Commission:  http://www.eeoc.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/index.html 

 

 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



All Personnel AR 4119.11(a) 
 4219.11 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT 4319.11 
 
 
This administrative regulation shall apply to all allegations of sexual harassment involving 
employees, interns, volunteers, and job applicants, but shall not be used to resolve any 
complaint by or against a student. 
 
Definitions 
 
Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, 
unwanted requests for sexual favors, or other unwanted verbal, visual, or physical conduct of 
a sexual nature made against another person of the same or opposite sex in the work or 
educational setting when:  (Education Code 212.5; Government Code 12940; 2 CCR 11034) 
 
1. Submission to the conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of the 

individual's employment. 
 
2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for an employment 

decision affecting the individual. 
 
3. Submission to or rejection of the conduct is used as the basis for any decision 

affecting the individual regarding benefits, services, honors, programs, or activities 
available at or through the district. 

 
Prohibited sexual harassment also includes conduct which, regardless of whether or not it is 
motivated by sexual desire, is so severe or pervasive as to unreasonably interfere with the 
victim's work performance or create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment. 
 
Examples of actions that might constitute sexual harassment in the work or educational 
setting, whether committed by a supervisor, a co-worker, or a non-employee, include, but are 
not limited to: 
 
1. Unwelcome verbal conduct such as sexual flirtations or propositions; graphic 

comments about an individual's body; overly personal conversations or pressure for 
sexual activity; sexual jokes or stories; unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, 
innuendoes, derogatory comments, sexually degrading descriptions, or the spreading 
of sexual rumors 

 
2. Unwelcome visual conduct such as drawings, pictures, graffiti, or gestures; sexually 

explicit emails; displaying sexually suggestive objects 
 
3. Unwelcome physical conduct such as massaging, grabbing, fondling, stroking, or 

brushing the body; touching an individual's body or clothes in a sexual way; 
cornering, blocking, leaning over, or impeding normal movements 

 
 
 



 AR 4119.11(b) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
Training 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all employees receive training regarding the 
district's sexual harassment policies when hired and periodically thereafter.  The training 
shall include how to recognize prohibited or harassing conduct, the procedures for reporting 
and/or filing complaints involving an employee, employees' duty to use the district's 
complaint procedures, and employee obligations when a sexual harassment report involving a 
student is made to the employee. The training shall also include information about processes 
for employees to informally share or obtain information about harassment without filing a 
complaint. 
 
(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment) 
 

Every two years, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that supervisory employees 
receive at least two hours of classroom or other effective interactive training and education 
regarding sexual harassment. All such newly hired or promoted employees shall receive 
training within six months of their assumption of the new position.  (Government Code 
12950.1) 
 

A supervisory employee is any employee having the authority, in the interest of the district, 
to hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other 
employees, or the responsibility to direct them, adjust their grievances, or effectively 
recommend such action, when the exercise of the authority is not of a merely routine or 
clerical nature, but requires the use of independent judgment.  (Government Code 12926) 
 
(cf. 4300 - Administrative and Supervisory Personnel) 
 
The district's sexual harassment training and education program for supervisory employees 
shall be aimed at assisting them in preventing and effectively responding to incidents of 
sexual harassment, as well as implementing mechanisms to promptly address and correct 
wrongful behavior. The training shall include, but is not limited to, the following:  
(Government Code 12950.1; 2 CCR 11024) 
 
1. Information and practical guidance regarding federal and state laws on the 

prohibition, prevention, and correction of sexual harassment, the remedies available 
to sexual harassment victims in civil actions, and potential district and/or individual 
exposure or liability 

 
2. The types of conduct that constitute sexual harassment and practical examples which 

illustrate sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation using training modalities  
 



 AR 4119.11(c) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
 such as role plays, case studies, and group discussions, based on factual scenarios 

taken from case law, news and media accounts, and hypotheticals based on workplace 
situations and other sources 

 
3. A supervisor's obligation to report sexual harassment, discrimination, and retaliation 

of which he/she becomes aware and what to do if the supervisor himself/herself is 
personally accused of harassment 

 
4. Strategies for preventing harassment, discrimination, and retaliation and appropriate 

steps to ensure that remedial measures are taken to correct harassing behavior, 
including an effective process for investigation of a complaint 

 
5. The essential elements of the district's anti-harassment policy, including the limited 

confidentiality of the complaint process and resources for victims of unlawful sexual 
harassment, such as to whom they should report any alleged sexual harassment, and 
how to use the policy if a harassment complaint is filed 

 
6. A copy of the district's sexual harassment policy and administrative regulation, which 

each participant shall acknowledge in writing that he/she has received 
 
7. The definition and prevention of abusive conduct that addresses the use of derogatory 

remarks, insults, or epithets, other verbal or physical conduct that a reasonable person 
would find threatening, intimidating, or humiliating, and the gratuitous sabotage or 
undermining of a person's work performance 

 
8.  Practical examples of harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and 

sexual orientation 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall retain for at least two years the records of any training 
provided to supervisory employees. Such records shall include the names of trained 
employees, date of the training, the type of training, and the name of the training provider.  (2 
CCR 11024) 
 
Notifications 
 
A copy of the Board policy and this administrative regulation shall:  (Education Code 231.5) 
 
1. Be displayed in a prominent location in the main administrative building, district 

office, or other area of the school where notices of district rules, regulations, 
procedures, and standards of conduct are posted 

 
 



 AR 4119.11(d) 
 4219.11 
 4319.11 
 
 
SEXUAL HARASSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
2. Be provided to every district employee at the beginning of the first quarter or 

semester of the school year or whenever a new employee is hired 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
3. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school's or district's 

comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct 
 
All employees shall receive a copy of an information sheet prepared by the California 
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH) or the district that contains, at a 
minimum, components on:  (Government Code 12950) 
 
1. The illegality of sexual harassment 
 
2. The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law 
 
3. A description of sexual harassment, with examples 
 
4. The district's complaint process available to the employee 
 
5. The legal remedies and complaint process available through DFEH and the Equal 

Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC) 
 
6. Directions on how to contact DFEH and the EEOC 
 
7. The protection against retaliation provided by 2 CCR 11021 for opposing harassment 

prohibited by law or for filing a complaint with or otherwise participating in an 
investigation, proceeding, or hearing conducted by DFEH and the EEOC 

 
In addition, the district shall post, in a prominent and accessible location, the DFEH poster on 
discrimination in employment and the illegality of sexual harassment and the DFEH poster 
regarding transgender rights.  (Government Code 12950) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Certificated Personnel AR 4161.1(a) 
 4361.1 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 
 
 
Certificated employees employed five school days per week are entitled to 10 days' leave of 
absence with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per school year of service.  
Employees who work less than five school days per week (part-time employees) shall be 
granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work.  However, any part-time employee 
who is entitled to less than three days of paid sick leave per year due to the amount of time 
worked shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if he/she is eligible.  
(Education Code 44978; Labor Code 245-249) 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 
 
Use of Sick Leave 
 
Certificated employees may use sick leave for absences due to: 
 
1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of 

employment; quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a 
contagious disease during the employee's performance of his/her duties; or temporary 
inability to perform assigned duties because of illness, accident, or quarantine 
(Education Code 44964) 

 
(cf. 4157.1/4257.1/4357.1 - Work-Related Injuries) 
 
2. Pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and related recovery (Education Code 44965, 

44978) 
 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
3. Personal necessity  (Education Code 44981) 
 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
 
4. Medical and dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 
 
5. Industrial accidents or illnesses when leave granted specifically for that purpose has 

been exhausted  (Education Code 44984) 
 
(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
6. Need of the employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, 

adoption, or foster care placement (parental leave) (Education Code 44977.5; 
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112)  

 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(b) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for 

the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care 
(Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in 

Labor Code 230(c) and/or 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee 
or his/her child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
For the purposes specified in items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the 
amount of sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of 
entitlement.  (Labor Code 233) 
 
An employee may take sick leave at any time during the school year, even if credit for sick 
leave has not yet been accrued.  (Education Code 44978) 
 
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of 
his/her termination. 
 
Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation.  
(Education Code 44978) 
 
At the beginning of each school year, employees shall be notified of the amount of sick leave 
they have accumulated. 
 
The district shall not require new employees to waive leave accumulated in a previous 
district.  (Education Code 44979, 44980) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any certificated employee who leaves the district 
after at least one school year of employment that if the employee accepts a certificated 
position in another district, county office of education, or community college district within 
one year, he/she may request that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to the 
new employer.  (Education Code 44979, 44980) 
 
Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 
In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a certificated employee who is a 
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the 
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with 
pay of up to 10 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental 
health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or more by the  
 



 AR 4161.1(c) 
 4361.1 
 
 

PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 

U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five days 
per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she works. (Education 
Code 44978.2) 
 

The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee 
receives confirmation of the submission of his/her disability application to the U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to 
employment after active duty, whichever is later.  When the employee receives his/her 
disability rating decision, he/she shall report that information to the Superintendent or 
designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time 
used before the decision shall be counted toward the 10-day maximum leave. If the disability 
rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick 
leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.  
(Education Code 44978.2) 
 

The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section 
"Verification Requirements" below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a 
military service-connected disability. 
 

Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the 
first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be 
carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 44978.2) 
 

Notification of Absence 
 
An employee shall notify the district of his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is 
known, so that substitute services may be secured. This notification shall include an estimate 
of the expected duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the 
employee shall so notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than 
estimated, the employee shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon 
of the day preceding the day on which he/she intends to return to work. If the employee fails 
to notify the district and the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the 
substitute shall be deducted from the employee's pay. 
 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
 
Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 
 
During each school year, when a certificated employee has exhausted all available sick leave, 
including all accumulated sick leave, and, due to illness or accident, continues to be absent 
from his/her duties for an additional period of up to five school months, the employee shall  
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(d) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
receive his/her regular salary minus the actual cost of a substitute to fill the position. If the 
district has made every reasonable effort to secure the services of a substitute and has been 
unable to do so, the amount that would have been paid to a substitute shall be deducted from 
the employee's salary.  (Education Code 44977) 
 
An employee shall not be provided more than one five-month period per illness or accident. 
However, if the school year ends before the five-month period is exhausted, the employee 
may take the balance of the five-month period in a subsequent school year.  (Education Code 
44977) 
 
Absence Beyond Five-Month Period/Reemployment List 
 
If a certificated employee is not medically able to resume his/her duties after the five-month 
period provided pursuant to Education Code 44977, the employee shall be placed either in 
another position or on a reemployment list. Placement on the reemployment list shall be for 
24 months for probationary employees or 39 months for permanent employees and shall 
begin at the expiration of the five-month period. If during this time the employee becomes 
medically able, he/she shall be returned to employment in a position for which he/she is 
credentialed and qualified.  (Education Code 44978.1) 
 
(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
Parental Leave 
 
During each school year, a certificated employee may use all available sick leave, including 
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period up to 12 work weeks.  
The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick 
leave, taken during a period of such parental leave. (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the 
previous 12 months. (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, 
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the 
remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 44977.5) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(e) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 44977.5 shall run concurrently with the 
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate 
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education 
Code 44977.5; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6) 
 
Verification Requirements 
 
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall verify the absence by 
submitting a completed and signed district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence 
record shows chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after 
weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is 
not related to illness or injury. 
 

In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician 
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical 
condition of the employee. The report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for 
further leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to return to 
work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued 
absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny 
further leave. 
 

Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the 
district should not contain the employee's genetic information. 
 

Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as 
a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel 
file, and shall not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 

Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or 
extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating 
that he/she is able to return to duty and stipulating any necessary restrictions or limitations. 
 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 

Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 
No employee shall be denied the right to use accrued sick days, and the district shall not in 
any manner discriminate or retaliate against an employee for using or attempting to use sick 
leave, filing a complaint with the Labor Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor 
Code 245-249. 



 AR 4161.1(f) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee 
shall: 
 
1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that 

includes the following information: 
 
a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 
b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 
c. The terms of use of paid sick days 

 
d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or 

using sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file 
a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or 
retaliates against him/her 

 
2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to 

use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable 
request 

 
3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued 

with their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by 

each eligible employee for three years 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.1(g) 
 4361.1 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44964  Power to grant leave of absence in case of illness, accident, or quarantine 
44965  Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth 
44976  Transfer of leave rights when school is transferred to another district 
44977  Salary deduction during absence from duties up to five months after sick leave is exhausted 
44977.5  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 
44978  Provisions for sick leave of certificated employees 
44978.1  Inability to return to duty; placement in another position or on reemployment list 
44978.2  Leave for military service connected disability 
44979  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to another district 
44980  Transfer of accumulated sick leave to a county office of education 
44981  Leave of absence for personal necessity 
44983  Exception to sick leave when district adopts specific rule 
44984  Industrial accident or illness 
44986  Leave of absence for disability allowance applicant 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
LABOR CODE 
220  Sections inapplicable to public employees 
230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 
230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, 
right to time off 
233  Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
234  Absence control policy 
245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
5601  Transfer of accumulated sick leave 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
COURT DECISIONS 
Veguez v. Governing Board of Long Beach Unified School District, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 406 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



All Personnel AR 4161.8(a) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE 
 
 
The district shall not deny any eligible employee the right to family care, medical, or 
pregnancy disability leave (PDL) pursuant to the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA), 
the California Family Rights Act (CFRA), or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (FEHA) 
nor restrain or interfere with the employee's exercise of such right. In addition, the district 
shall not discharge an employee or discriminate or retaliate against him/her for taking such 
leave or for his/her opposition to or challenge of any unlawful district practice in relation to 
any of these laws or for his/her involvement in any related inquiry or proceeding.  
(Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11094; 29 USC 2615) 
 
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment) 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4033 - Lactation Accommodation) 
 
Definitions 
 
The words and phrases defined below shall have the same meaning throughout this 
administrative regulation except where a different meaning is otherwise specified. 
 
Child (son or daughter) means a biological, adopted, or foster child; a stepchild; a legal 
ward; or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, as long as the child is under 
18 years of age or an adult dependent child.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611) 
 
Eligible employee for FMLA and CFRA purposes means an employee who has been 
employed with the district for at least 12 months and who has at least 1,250 hours of service 
with the district during the previous 12-month period. However, these requirements shall not 
apply when an employee applies for PDL.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.110) 
 
Employee disabled by pregnancy means an employee whose health care provider states that 
the employee is:  (2 CCR 11035) 
 
1. Unable because of pregnancy to perform any one or more of the essential functions of 

the job or to perform any of them without undue risk to the employee or other persons 
or to the pregnancy's successful completion 

 
2. Suffering from severe "morning sickness" or needs to take time off for prenatal or 

postnatal care, bed rest, gestational diabetes, pregnancy-induced hypertension, 
preeclampsia, postpartum depression, childbirth, loss or end of pregnancy, recovery 
from childbirth or loss or end of pregnancy, or any other pregnancy-related condition 

 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(b) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Parent means a biological, foster, or adoptive parent; a stepparent; a legal guardian; or 
another person who stood in loco parentis to the employee when the employee was a child. 
Parent does not include a spouse's parents.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.122) 
 
Serious health condition means an illness, injury (including, but not limited to, on-the-job 
injuries), impairment, or physical or mental condition of the employee or his/her child, 
parent, or spouse, including, but not limited to, treatment for substance abuse, that involves 
either of the following:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087, 11097; 29 USC 2611; 29 
CFR 825.113-825.115) 
 
1. Inpatient care in a hospital, hospice, or residential health care facility, any subsequent 

treatment in connection with such inpatient care, or any period of incapacity 
 
A person is considered an inpatient when a health care facility formally admits 
him/her to the facility with the expectation that he/she will remain overnight and 
occupy a bed, even if it later develops that the person can be discharged or transferred 
to another facility and does not actually remain overnight. 
 
Incapacity means the inability to work, attend school, or perform other regular daily 
activities due to a serious health condition, its treatment, or the recovery that it 
requires. 

 
2. Continuing treatment or continuing supervision by a health care provider, including 

one or more of the following: 
 
a. A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive full days 
 
b. Any period of incapacity or treatment for such incapacity due to a chronic 

serious health condition 
 
c. Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care under FMLA 
 
d. Any period of incapacity which is permanent or long term due to a condition 

for which treatment may not be effective 
 
e. Any period of absence to receive multiple treatments, including recovery, by a 

health care provider 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(c) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Spouse means a partner in marriage as defined in Family Code 300, including same sex 
partners in marriage, or a registered domestic partner within the meaning of Family Code 
297-297.5.  (Family Code 297, 297.5, 300; 2 CCR 11087; 29 CFR 825.122) 
 
Eligibility 
 
The district shall grant FMLA or CFRA leave to eligible employees for any of the following 
reasons:  (Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112) 
 
1. The birth of a child of the employee or placement of a child with the employee in 

connection with the employee's adoption or foster care of the child (parental leave) 
 
2. To care for the employee's child, parent, or spouse with a serious health condition 
 
3. The employee's own serious health condition that makes him/her unable to perform 

one or more essential functions of his/her position 
 
4. Any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, child, or 

parent is a military member on covered active duty or call to covered active duty (or 
has been notified of an impending call or order to covered active duty) 

 
5. To care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or illness if the covered 

servicemember is the employee's spouse, child, parent, or next of kin, as defined 
 
In addition, the district shall grant PDL to any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, 
childbirth, or other related medical condition.  (Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11037) 
 
Terms of Leave 
 
An eligible employee shall be entitled to a total of 12 work weeks of FMLA or CFRA leave 
during any 12-month period, except in the case of leave to care for a covered servicemember 
as provided under "Military Caregiver Leave" below. To the extent allowed by law, CFRA 
and FMLA leaves shall run concurrently.  (Government Code 12945.2; 29 USC 2612) 
 
This 12-month period shall be measured forward from the date the employee's first family 
care and medical leave begins.  (29 CFR 825.200) 
 
 AR 4161.8(d) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 



 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
In addition, any employee who is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or other related 
condition shall be entitled to PDL for the period of the disability not to exceed four months. 
For a part-time employee, the four months shall be calculated on a proportional basis.  
(Government Code 12945; 2 CCR 11042) 
 
PDL shall run concurrently with FMLA leave for disability caused by an employee's 
pregnancy. At the end of the employee's FMLA leave for disability caused by pregnancy, or 
at the end of four months of PDL, whichever occurs first, a CFRA-eligible employee may 
request to take CFRA leave of up to 12 work weeks, for the reason of the birth of a child or 
to bond with or care for the child.  (Government Code 12945, 12945.2; 2 CCR 11046, 11093) 
 
Leave taken for the birth or placement of a child must be concluded within the 12-month 
period beginning on the date of the birth or placement of the child. Such leave does not need 
to be taken in one continuous period of time.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
If both parents of a child work for the district, their family care and medical leave related to 
the birth or placement of the child shall be limited to a combined total of 12 work weeks. 
This restriction shall apply regardless of the legal status of both parents' relationship.  
(Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 2 CCR 11088; 29 USC 2612) 
 
Use/Substitution of Paid Leave 
 
OPTION 1:  An employee shall use his/her accrued vacation leave, other accrued time off, 
and any other paid time off negotiated with the district for any otherwise unpaid FMLA or 
CFRA leave not involving his/her own serious health condition. For PDL, CFRA, or FMLA 
leave due to an employee's own serious health condition, the employee shall use accrued sick 
leave and may use accrued vacation leave and other paid time off at his/her option.  
(Government Code 12945, 12945.2, 12945.6; 2 CCR 11044; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The district and employee may also negotiate for the employee's use of any additional paid or 
unpaid time off instead of using the employee's CFRA leave.  (2 CCR 11092) 
 
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement) 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.1/4361.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4261.1 - Personal Illness/Injury Leave) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(e) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Intermittent Leave/Reduced Work or Leave Schedule 
 
PDL and family care and medical leave for the serious health condition of an employee or 
his/her child, parent, or spouse may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave 
schedule when medically necessary, as determined by the health care provider of the person 
with the serious health condition. However, the district shall limit leave increments to the 
shortest period of time that the district's payroll system uses to account for absences or use of 
leave provided it is not to be greater than one hour.  (2 CCR 11042, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 
The basic minimum duration of leave for the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of a 
child shall be two weeks.  However, the district shall grant a request for such leave of less 
than two weeks on any two occasions.  (2 CCR 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
The district may require an employee to transfer temporarily to an available alternative 
position under any of the following circumstances:  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
1. The employee needs intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule that is 

foreseeable based on a planned medical treatment for the employee or family 
member. 

 
2. A medical certification is provided by the employee's health care provider that, 

because of pregnancy, the employee has a medical need to take intermittent leave or 
leave on a reduced work schedule. 

 
3. The district agrees to permit intermittent leave or leave on a reduced work schedule 

due to the birth, adoption, or foster care placement of the employee's child. 
 
The alternative position must have equivalent pay and benefits and must better accommodate 
recurring periods of leave than the employee's regular job, and the employee must be 
qualified for the position. Transfer to an alternative position may include altering an existing 
job to better accommodate the employee's need for intermittent leave or a reduced work or 
leave schedule.  (2 CCR 11041, 11090; 29 USC 2612) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(f) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Request for Leave 
 
The district shall consider an employee's request for PDL or family care and medical leave 
only if the employee provides at least verbal notice sufficient to make the district aware of 
the need to take the leave and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave.  (2 CCR 
11050, 11091) 
 
For family care and medical leave, the employee need not expressly assert or mention 
FMLA/CFRA to satisfy this requirement. However, he/she must state the reason the leave is 
needed (e.g., birth of child, medical treatment).  If more information is necessary to 
determine whether the employee is eligible for family care and medical leave, the 
Superintendent or designee shall inquire further and obtain the necessary details of the leave 
to be taken.  (2 CCR 11091) 
 
The district shall respond to requests for leave as soon as practicable, but no later than five 
business days after receiving the employee's request.  (2 CCR 11091) 
 
Based on the information provided by the employee, the Superintendent or designee shall 
designate the leave, paid or unpaid, as FMLA/CFRA qualifying leave and shall give notice of 
such designation to the employee. Failure of an employee to respond to permissible inquiries 
regarding the leave request may result in denial of CFRA protection if the district is unable to 
determine whether the leave is CFRA qualifying.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
When an employee is able to foresee the need for PDL or family care and medical leave at 
least 30 days in advance of the leave, the employee shall provide the district with at least 30 
days advance notice before the leave. When the 30 days notice is not practicable because of a 
lack of knowledge of when leave will be required to begin, a change in circumstances, a 
medical emergency, or other good cause, the employee shall provide the district with notice 
as soon as practicable. Failure of an employee to provide required notice may result in a 
denial of leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
In all instances, the employee shall consult with the Superintendent or designee and make a 
reasonable effort to schedule, subject to the health care provider's approval, any planned 
appointment or medical treatment or supervision so as to minimize disruption to district 
operations.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11050, 11091) 
 
Certification of Health Condition 
 
Within five business days of an employee's request for family care and medical leave for 
his/her own or his/her child's, parent's, or spouse's serious health condition, the  
 



 AR 4161.8(g) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Superintendent or designee shall request that the employee provide certification by a health 
care provider of the need for leave. Upon receiving the district's request, the employee shall 
provide the certification within 15 days, unless either the Superintendent or designee 
provides additional time or it is not practicable under the particular circumstances, despite the 
employee's diligent, good faith efforts.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.305) 
 
The certification shall include the following:  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11087; 29 
USC 2613) 
 
1. The date on which the serious health condition began 
 
2. The probable duration of the condition 
 
3. If the employee is requesting leave to care for a child, parent, or spouse with a serious 

health condition, both of the following: 
 
a. Statement that the serious health condition warrants the participation of the 

employee to provide care, such as by providing psychological comfort, 
arranging for third party care, or directly providing or participating in the 
medical care of the child, parent, or spouse during a period of the treatment or 
supervision 

 
b. Estimated amount of time the health care provider believes the employee 

needs to care for the child, parent, or spouse 
 
4. If the employee is requesting leave because of his/her own serious health condition, a 

statement that due to the serious health condition, he/she is unable to work at all or is 
unable to perform one or more essential functions of his/her job 

 
5. If the employee is requesting leave for intermittent treatment or on a reduced work or 

leave schedule for planned medical treatment, a statement of the medical necessity for 
the leave, the dates on which treatment is expected to be given, the duration of such 
treatment, and the expected duration of the leave 

 
When an employee has provided sufficient medical certification to enable the district to 
determine whether the employee's leave request is FMLA/CFRA-eligible, the Superintendent 
or designee shall notify the employee within five business days whether the leave is 
FMLA/CFRA-eligible.  The Superintendent or designee may also retroactively designate 
leave as FMLA/CFRA leave as long as appropriate notice is given to the employee and there 
is no harm or injury to the employee.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.301) 
 



 AR 4161.8(h) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
If the Superintendent or designee doubts the validity of a certification that accompanies a 
request for leave for the employee's own serious health condition, he/she may require the 
employee to obtain a second opinion from a district-approved health care provider, at district 
expense. If the second opinion is contrary to the first, the Superintendent or designee may 
require the employee to obtain a third medical opinion from a third health care provider 
approved by both the employee and the district, again at district expense. The opinion of the 
third health care provider shall be final and binding.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 
11091; 29 USC 2613) 
 
For PDL, the Superintendent or designee shall request that the employee provide certification 
by a health care provider of the need for leave at the time the employee gives notice of the 
need for PDL, or within two business days of giving the notice. If the need for PDL is 
unforeseen, the Superintendent or designee shall request the medical certification within two 
business days after the leave commences. The Superintendent or designee may request 
certification at some later date if he/she has reason to question the appropriateness of the 
leave or its duration.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 
For PDL that is foreseeable and for which at least 30 days notice has been given, the 
employee shall provide the medical certification before the leave begins. When this is not 
practicable, the employee shall provide the certification within the time frame specified by 
the Superintendent or designee which must be at least 15 days after the request, unless it is 
not practicable under the particular circumstances despite the employee's diligent, good faith 
efforts.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 

Medical certification for PDL purposes shall include a statement that the employee needs to 
take the leave because the employee is disabled by pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical 
condition, the date on which the employee became disabled because of pregnancy, and the 
estimated duration of the leave.  (2 CCR 11050) 
 
If additional PDL or family care and medical leave is needed when the time estimated by the 
health care provider expires, the district may require the employee to provide recertification 
in the manner specified for the leave.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11050; 29 USC 
2613) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall not request any genetic information related to an 
employee except as authorized by law in accordance with the California Genetic Information 
Nondiscrimination Act of 2011. 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(i) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Release to Return to Work 
 
Upon expiration of an employee's PDL or family care and medical leave taken for his/her 
own serious health condition, the employee shall present certification from the health care 
provider that he/she is able to resume work. The certification shall address the employee's 
ability to perform the essential functions of his/her job. 
 
(cf. 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations) 
 
Rights to Reinstatement 
 
Upon granting an employee's request for PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave, the Superintendent or 
designee shall guarantee to reinstate the employee in the same or a comparable position when 
the leave ends.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11043, 11089; 29 USC 2614) 
 
However, the district may refuse to reinstate an employee returning from FMLA or CFRA 
leave to the same or a comparable position if all of the following apply:  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11089; 29 USC 2614) 
 
1. The employee is a salaried "key employee" who is among the highest paid 10 percent 

of district employees who are employed within 75 miles of the employee's worksite. 
 
2. The refusal is necessary to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to 

district operations. 
 
3. The district informs the employee of its intent to refuse reinstatement at the time it 

determines that the refusal is necessary, and the employee fails to immediately return 
to service. 

 
(cf. 4117.3 - Personnel Reduction) 
(cf. 4217.3 - Layoff/Rehire) 
 
The district may also refuse to reinstate an employee to the same or a comparable position if 
the FMLA/CFRA leave was fraudulently obtained by the employee.  (2 CCR 11089; 29 CFR 
825.216) 
 
The district may refuse to reinstate an employee to the same position after taking PDL if, at 
the time the reinstatement is requested, the employee would not otherwise have been 
employed in that position for legitimate business reasons unrelated to the employee's PDL.  
(2 CCR 11043) 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(j) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Maintenance of Benefits/Failure to Return from Leave 
 
During the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, he/she 
shall maintain his/her status with the district and the leave shall not constitute a break in 
service for purposes of longevity, seniority under any collective bargaining agreement, or any 
employee benefit plan.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11092; 29 USC 2614) 
 
For up to a maximum of four months for PDL and 12 work weeks for other family care and 
medical leave, the district shall continue to provide an eligible employee the group health 
plan coverage that was in place before he/she took the leave. The employee shall reimburse 
the district for premiums paid during the leave if he/she fails to return to district employment 
after the expiration of all available leaves and the failure is for a reason other than the 
continuation, recurrence, or onset of a serious health condition or other circumstances beyond 
his/her control.  (Government Code 12945.2; 2 CCR 11044, 11092; 29 USC 2614; 29 CFR 
825.213) 
 
(cf. 4154/4254/4354 - Health and Welfare Benefits) 
 
In addition, during the period when an employee is on PDL or family care and medical leave, 
the employee shall be entitled to continue to participate in other employee benefit plans 
including life insurance, short-term or long-term disability insurance, accident insurance, 
pension and retirement plans, and supplemental unemployment benefit plans to the same 
extent and under the same conditions as would apply to an unpaid leave taken for any other 
purpose.  However, for purposes of pension and retirement plans, the district shall not make 
plan payments for an employee during any unpaid portion of the leave period and the leave 
period shall not be counted for purposes of time accrued under the plan.  (Government Code 
12945.2; 2 CCR 11044, 11092) 
 
Military Family Leave Resulting from Qualifying Exigencies 
 
An eligible employee may take up to 12 work weeks of unpaid FMLA leave, during each 12-
month period established by the district in the section entitled "Terms of Leave" above, for 
one or more qualifying exigencies while his/her child, parent, or spouse who is a military 
member is on covered active duty or on call to covered active duty status.  (29 USC 2612; 29 
CFR 825.126) 
 
Covered active duty means duty during the deployment of a member of the regular Armed 
Forces to a foreign country or duty during the deployment of a member of the National 
Guard or Reserves to a foreign country under a call or an order to active duty in support of a 
contingency operation pursuant to law.  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.126) 
 



 AR 4161.8(k) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Qualifying exigencies include time needed to:  (29 CFR 825.126) 
 
1. Address issues arising from short notice deployment of up to seven calendar days 

from the date of receipt of call or order of short notice deployment 
 
2. Attend military events and related activities, such as any official ceremony or family 

assistance program related to the covered active duty or call to covered active duty 
status 

 
3. Arrange child care or attend school activities arising from the covered active duty or 

call to covered active duty, such as arranging for alternative child care, enrolling or 
transferring a child to a new school, or attending meetings 

 
4. Make or update financial and legal arrangements to address a military member's 

absence 
 
5. Attend counseling provided by someone other than a health care provider 
 
6. Spend time (up to 15 days of leave per instance) with a military member who is on 

short-term, temporary, rest and recuperation leave during deployment 
 
7. Attend to certain post-deployment activities, such as arrival ceremonies or 

reintegration briefings 
 
8. Care for a military member's parent who is incapable of self-care when the care is 

necessitated by the military member's covered active duty 
 
9. Address any other event that the employee and district agree is a qualifying exigency 
 
The employee shall provide the Superintendent or designee with notice of the need for the 
qualifying exigency leave as soon as practicable, regardless of how far in advance such leave 
is foreseeable.  (29 CFR 825.302) 
 
An employee who is requesting leave for qualifying exigencies shall provide the 
Superintendent or designee with a copy of the military member's active duty orders, or other 
documentation issued by the military, and the dates of the service. In addition, the employee 
shall provide the Superintendent or designee with certification of the qualifying exigency 
necessitating the leave. The certification shall contain the information specified in 29 CFR 
825.309. 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(l) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
The employee's qualifying exigency leave may be taken on an intermittent or reduced work 
or leave schedule basis.  (29 CFR 825.302) 
 
During the period of qualified exigency leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use 
of his/her accrued vacation leave and any other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified 
in the section "Use/Substitution of Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Military Caregiver Leave 
 
The district shall grant an eligible employee up to a total of 26 work weeks of leave during a 
single 12-month period, measured forward from the first date the leave is taken, to care for a 
covered servicemember with a serious illness or injury.  In order to be eligible for such 
military caregiver leave, the employee must be the spouse, son, daughter, parent, or next of 
kin of the covered servicemember. This 26-week period is not in addition to, but rather is 
inclusive of, the 12 work weeks of leave that may be taken for other FMLA qualifying 
reasons.  (29 USC 2611, 2612; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Covered servicemember may be:  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
1. A current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or 

Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy; is otherwise 
in outpatient status; or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list for a 
serious injury or illness 

 
2. A veteran who was discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at 

any time during the five-year period prior to the first date the eligible employee takes 
FMLA leave to care for the covered veteran 

 
Son or daughter of a covered servicemember means the biological, adopted, or foster child, 
stepchild, legal ward, or a child of any age for whom the covered servicemember stood in 
loco parentis.  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Parent of a covered servicemember means the covered servicemember's biological, adopted, 
step, or foster parent, or any other individual who stood in loco parentis to the covered 
servicemember (except "parents in law").  (29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Next of kin means the nearest blood relative to the covered servicemember, or as designated 
in writing by the covered servicemember.  (29 USC 2611, 2612) 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(m) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
Outpatient status means the status of a member of the Armed Forces assigned to a military 
medical treatment facility as an outpatient or a unit established for the purpose of providing 
command and control of members of the Armed Forces receiving medical care as outpatients.  
(29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
Serious injury or illness means:  (29 USC 2611; 29 CFR 825.127) 
 
1. For a current member of the Armed Forces, an injury or illness incurred by the 

member in the line of duty on active duty, or that existed before the beginning of the 
member's active duty and was aggravated by the member's service in the line of duty 
while on active duty in the Armed Forces, and that may render the member medically 
unfit to perform the duties of the member's office, grade, rank, or rating. 

 
2. For a veteran, an injury or illness incurred or aggravated by the member's service in 

the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces, including the National Guard or 
Reserves, that manifested itself before or after the member became a veteran and that 
is at least one of the following: 
 
a. A continuation of a serious injury or illness incurred or aggravated while the 

veteran was a member of the Armed Forces and rendered him/her unable to 
perform the duties of his/her office, grade, rank, or rating 

 
b. A physical or mental condition for which the veteran has received a U.S. 

Department of Veterans Affairs (VA) Service-Related Disability Rating of 50 
percent or greater, based wholly or partly on that physical or mental condition 

 
c. A physical or mental condition that substantially impairs the veteran's ability 

to secure or follow a substantially gainful occupation by reason of one or 
more disabilities related to his/her military service or that would do so but for 
treatment received by the veteran 

 
d. An injury, including a psychological injury, on the basis of which the veteran 

has been enrolled in the VA's Program of Comprehensive Assistance for 
Family Caregivers 

 
The employee shall provide reasonable and practicable notice of the need for the leave in 
accordance with the procedures in the section entitled "Request for Leave" above. 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(n) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
An employee requesting leave to care for a covered servicemember with a serious injury or 
illness shall provide the Superintendent or designee with certification from an authorized 
health care provider of the servicemember that contains the information specified in 29 CFR 
825.310. 
 
The leave may be taken intermittently or on a reduced work or leave schedule when 
medically necessary. An employee taking military caregiver leave in combination with other 
leaves pursuant to this administrative regulation shall be entitled to a combined total of 26 
work weeks of leave during a single 12-month period. When both spouses work for the 
district and both wish to take such leave, the spouses are limited to a maximum combined 
total of 26 work weeks during a single 12-month period.  (29 USC 2612) 
 
During the period of military caregiver leave, the district's rule regarding an employee's use 
of his/her accrued vacation leave and other accrued paid or unpaid time off, as specified in 
the section "Use/Substitution of Paid Leave" above, shall apply. 
 
Notifications 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide the following notifications regarding state and 
federal law related to PDL or FMLA/CFRA leave: 
 
1. General Notice: Information explaining the provisions of the FEHA/PDL and 

FMLA/CFRA and employee rights and obligations shall be posted in a conspicuous 
place on district premises, or electronically, and shall be included in employee 
handbooks.  (2 CCR 11049, 11095; 29 USC 2619) 

 
The general notice shall also explain an employee's obligation to provide the 
Superintendent or designee with at least 30 days notice of the need for the requested 
leave, when the need is reasonably foreseeable at least 30 days prior to the start of the 
leave.  (2 CCR 11050, 11091) 

 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
2. Eligibility Notice: When an employee requests leave, including PDL, or when the 

Superintendent or designee acquires knowledge that an employee's leave may be for 
an FMLA/CFRA qualifying reason, the Superintendent or designee shall, within five 
business days, provide notification to the employee of his/her eligibility to take such 
leave.  (2 CCR 11049, 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 

 
3. Rights and Responsibilities Notice:  Each time the eligibility notice is provided to 

an employee, the Superintendent or designee shall provide written notification  
 



 AR 4161.8(o) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 explaining the specific expectations and obligations of the employee, including any 

consequences for a failure to meet those obligations. Such notice shall include, as 
applicable:  (29 CFR 825.300) 
 
a. A statement that the leave may be designated and counted against the 

employee's annual FMLA/CFRA leave entitlement and the appropriate 12-
month entitlement period, if qualifying 

 

b. Any requirements for the employee to furnish medical certification of a 
serious health condition, serious injury or illness, or qualifying exigency 
arising out of active duty or call to active duty status and the consequences of 
failing to provide the certification 

 
c. The employee's right to use paid leave, whether the district will require use of 

paid leave, conditions related to any use of paid leave, and the employee's 
entitlement to take unpaid leave if the employee does not meet the conditions 
for paid leave 

 
d. Any requirements for the employee to make premium payments necessary to 

maintain health benefits, the arrangement for making such payments, and the 
possible consequences of failure to make payments on a timely basis 

 
e. The employee's status as a "key employee" if applicable, potential 

consequence that restoration may be denied following the FMLA leave, and 
explanation of the conditions required for such denial 

 
f. The employee's right to maintenance of benefits during the leave and 

restoration to the same or an equivalent job upon return from leave 
 
g. The employee's potential liability for health insurance premiums paid by the 

district during the employee's unpaid FMLA leave should the employee not 
return to service after the leave 

 
Any time the information provided in the above notice changes, the Superintendent or 
designee shall, within five business days of his/her receipt of an employee's first 
notice of need for leave, provide the employee with a written notice referencing the 
prior notice and describing any changes to the notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
4. Designation Notice: When the Superintendent or designee has information (e.g., 

sufficient medical certification) to determine whether the leave qualifies as  
 



 AR 4161.8(p) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 FMLA/CFRA leave, he/she shall, within five business days, provide written 

notification designating the leave as FMLA/CFRA qualifying or, if the leave will not 
be so designated, the reason for that determination.  (2 CCR 11091; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
If the amount of leave needed is known, the notice shall include the number of hours, 
days, or weeks that will be counted against the employee's FMLA/CFRA entitlement. 
If it is not possible to provide that number at the time of the designation notice, 
notification shall be provided of the amount of leave counted against the employee's 
entitlement upon request by the employee and at least once in every 30-day period if 
leave was taken in that period.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
If the district requires paid leave to be used during an otherwise unpaid family care 
and medical leave, the notice shall so specify.  If the district requires an employee to 
present a release to return to work certification that addresses the employee's ability 
to perform the essential functions of the job, the notice shall also specify that 
requirement.  (2 CCR 11091, 11097; 29 CFR 825.300) 
 
Any time the information provided in the designation notice changes, the 
Superintendent or designee shall, within five business days, provide the employee 
with written notice referencing the prior notice and describing any changes to the 
notice.  (29 CFR 825.300) 

 
Records 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records pertaining to an individual employee's 
use of family care and medical leave in accordance with law.  (Government Code 12946; 29 
USC 2616; 42 USC 2000ff-1; 29 CFR 825.500) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4161.8(q) 
 4261.8 
 4361.8 
 
 
FAMILY CARE AND MEDICAL LEAVE  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
44965  Granting of leaves of absence for pregnancy and childbirth 
FAMILY CODE 
297-297.5  Rights, protections, and benefits under law; registered domestic partners 
300  Validity of marriage 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12926  Fair employment and housing act, definitions 
12940  Unlawful employment practices 
12945  Pregnancy; childbirth or related medical condition; unlawful practice 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
12946  Fair Employment and Housing Act: discrimination prohibited 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
11035-11051  Sex discrimination: pregnancy, childbirth and related medical conditions 
11087-11098  California Family Rights Act 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 1 
7  Definition of marriage 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-1-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
COURT DECISIONS 
United States v. Windsor, (2013) 699 F.3d 169 
Faust v. California Portland Cement Company, (2007) 150 Cal.App.4th 864 
Tellis v. Alaska Airlines, (9th Cir., 2005) 414 F.3d 1045 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR PUBLICATIONS 
Military Family Leave Provisions of the FMLA Frequently Asked Questions and Answers 
WEB SITES 
California Department of Fair Employment and Housing:  http://www.dfeh.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Labor, FMLA:  http://www.dol.gov/whd/fmla 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Classified Personnel  AR 4261.1(a) 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE 
 
 
Classified employees employed five days a week are entitled to 12 days' leave of absence 
with full pay for personal illness or injury (sick leave) per fiscal year. Employees who work 
less than a full fiscal year or fewer than five days a week (part-time employees) shall be 
granted sick leave in proportion to the time they work.  However, any part-time employee 
whose work hours are so few as to entitle him/her to less than 24 hours of paid sick leave per 
fiscal year shall be granted sick leave pursuant to Labor Code 246, if he/she is eligible.  
(Education Code 45191; Labor Code 245-249) 
 
(cf. 4161/4261/4361 - Leaves) 
(cf. 4161.9/4261.9/4361.9 - Catastrophic Leave Program) 
 
Use of Sick Leave 
 
A classified employee may use sick leave for absences due to: 
 
1. Accident or illness, whether or not the absence arises out of or in the course of 

employment, or by quarantine which results from contact with other persons having a 
contagious disease during the employee's performance of his/her duties  (Education 
Code 45199) 

 
2. Pregnancy, childbirth, and recovery  (Education Code 45193) 
 
(cf. 4161.8/4261.8/4361.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
3. Personal necessity as specified in Education Code 45207 
 
(cf. 4161.2/4261.2/4361.2 - Personal Leaves) 
 
4. Medical or dental appointments, in increments of not less than one hour 
 
5. Industrial accident or illness when leave granted specifically for that purpose has been 

exhausted  (Education Code 45192) 
 
(cf. 4161.11/4261.11/4361.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
 
6. Need of an employee to bond with a child within one year of the child's birth, 

adoption, or foster care placement (parental leave)  (Education Code 45196.1; 
Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6; 29 USC 2612; 29 CFR 825.112) 

 
7. Need of the employee or his/her family member, as defined in Labor Code 245.5, for 

the diagnosis, care, or treatment of an existing health condition or for preventive care 
(Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(b) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
8. Need of the employee to seek or obtain any relief or medical attention specified in 

Labor Code 230(c) and 230.1(a) for the health, safety, or welfare of the employee, or 
his/her child, when the employee has been a victim of domestic violence, sexual 
assault, or stalking  (Labor Code 233, 246.5) 

 
For the purposes specified in items #7-8, an employee may use, in any calendar year, the 
amount of sick leave he/she would accrue during six months at his/her current rate of 
entitlement.  (Labor Code 233) 
 
An employee may take leave for personal illness or injury at any time during the year, even if 
credit for such leave has not yet been accrued. However, a new full-time classified employee 
shall not be entitled to more than six days of sick leave until he/she has completed six months 
of active service with the district.  (Education Code 45191) 
 
Unused days of sick leave shall be accumulated from year to year without limitation. 
(Education Code 45191) 
 
An employee shall reimburse the district for any unearned sick leave used as of the date of 
his/her termination. 
 
The district shall not require newly employed classified employees to waive leave 
accumulated in a previous district. However, if the employee's previous employment was 
terminated for cause, the transfer of the accumulated leave shall be made only if approved by 
the Governing Board.  (Education Code 45202) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify any classified employee whose employment with 
the district is terminated after at least one calendar year for reasons other than for cause that, 
if he/she accepts employment in another district, county office of education, or community 
college district within one year of the termination of employment, he/she shall be entitled to 
request that the district transfer his/her accumulated sick leave to his/her new employer.  
(Education Code 45202) 
 
Additional Leave for Disabled Military Veterans 
 
In addition to any other entitlement for sick leave with pay, a classified employee who is a 
former active duty member of the U.S. Armed Forces or a former or current member of the 
California National Guard or a federal reserve component shall be entitled to sick leave with 
pay of up to 12 days for the purpose of undergoing medical treatment, including mental 
health treatment, for a military service-connected disability rated at 30 percent or higher by 
the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs. An eligible employee who works less than five 
days per week shall be entitled to such leave in proportion to the time he/she works. 
(Education Code 45191.5) 
 



 AR 4261.1(c) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
The amount of leave shall be credited to the employee either on the date the employee 
receives confirmation of the submission of his/her disability application to the U.S. 
Department of Veterans Affairs or on the first day the employee begins or returns to 
employment after active duty, whichever is later.  When the employee receives his/her 
disability rating decision, he/she shall report that information to the Superintendent or 
designee. If the disability rating decision makes the employee eligible for the leave, the time 
used before the decision shall be counted toward the 12-day maximum leave. If the disability 
rating decision makes the employee ineligible for the leave, the district may change the sick 
leave time used before the disability rating decision to an alternative leave balance.   
(Education Code 45191.5) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification, in accordance with the section 
“Verification Requirements” below, that the employee used the leave to obtain treatment of a 
military service-connected disability. 
 
Leave for military-service connected disability shall be available for 12 months following the 
first date that the leave was credited. Leave not used during the 12-month period shall not be 
carried over and shall be forfeited.  (Education Code 45191.5) 
 
Notification of Absence 
 
An employee shall notify the Superintendent or the designated manager or supervisor of 
his/her need to be absent as soon as such need is known so that the services of a substitute 
may be secured as necessary. This notification shall include an estimate of the expected 
duration of absence. If the absence becomes longer than estimated, the employee shall so 
notify the district. If the duration of absence becomes shorter than estimated, the employee 
shall notify the district not later than three o'clock in the afternoon of the day preceding the 
day on which he/she intends to return to work. If the employee fails to notify the district and 
the failure results in a substitute being secured, the cost of the substitute shall be deducted 
from the employee's pay. 
 
Continued Absence After Available Sick Leave Is Exhausted/Differential Pay 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(d) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
Each year, each regular classified employee shall be credited with no fewer than 100 working 
days of paid leave for personal illness or accident, including current year and accumulated 
days of leave. When the current year and accumulated days at full pay are exhausted, the 
remainder of the 100 days shall be compensated at 50 percent of the employee's regular 
salary. Any of the 100 days of leave not used during the year in which they are credited shall 
be forfeited and shall not accumulate from year to year. This paid leave shall be exclusive of 
any other paid leave, holidays, vacation, or compensatory time to which the employee may 
be entitled.  (Education Code 45196) 
 
Parental Leave 
 
During each school year, a classified employee may use all available sick leave, including 
accumulated sick leave, for the purpose of parental leave for a period up to 12 work weeks. 
The 12-week period shall be reduced by any period of sick leave, including accumulated sick 
leave, taken during a period of such parental leave.  (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
Eligibility for such leave shall not require 1,250 hours of service with the district during the 
previous 12 months. (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
An employee who has exhausted all available sick leave, including accumulated sick leave, 
and continues to be absent on account of parental leave shall receive differential pay for the 
remainder of the 12 work weeks.  (Education Code 45196.1) 
 
Parental leave taken pursuant to Education Code 45196.1 shall run concurrently with the 
parental leave taken pursuant to Government Code 12945.2 or 12945.6, and the aggregate 
amount of parental leave shall not exceed 12 work weeks in a 12-month period. (Education 
Code 45196.1; Government Code 12945.2, 12945.6) 
 
Extension of Leave 
 
A permanent employee who is absent because of a personal illness or injury and who has 
exhausted all available sick leave, vacation, compensatory overtime, and any other paid leave 
shall be so notified, in writing, and offered an opportunity to request additional leave. The 
Board may grant the employee additional leave, paid or unpaid, for a period not to exceed six 
months and may renew this leave for two additional six-month periods or for lesser periods. 
The total additional leave granted shall not exceed 18 months. (Education Code 45195) 
 
(cf. 4216 - Probationary/Permanent Status) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(e) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
If the employee is still unable to resume his/her duties after all available paid and unpaid 
leaves have been exhausted, the employee shall be placed on a reemployment list for a period 
of 39 months. If during this time the employee becomes able to resume the duties of his/her 
position, he/she shall be offered reemployment in the first vacancy in the classification of 
his/her previous assignment. During the 39 months, the employee's reemployment shall take 
preference over all other applicants except those laid off for lack of work or lack of funds, in 
which case the employee shall be ranked according to his/her seniority. (Education Code 
45195) 
 
Verification Requirements 
 
After any absence due to illness or injury, the employee shall submit a completed and signed 
district absence form to his/her immediate supervisor. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may require verification whenever an employee's absence 
record shows chronic absenteeism or a pattern of absences immediately before or after 
weekends and/or holidays or whenever available evidence clearly indicates that an absence is 
not related to illness or injury. 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee may require an employee to visit a physician 
selected by the district, at district expense, in order to receive a report on the medical 
condition of the employee. The report shall include a statement as to the employee's need for 
additional leave of absence and a prognosis as to when the employee will be able to return to 
work. If the report concludes that the employee's condition does not warrant continued 
absence, the Superintendent or designee may, after giving notice to the employee, deny the 
request for additional leave. 
 
Any district request for additional verification by an employee's physician or a district-
selected physician shall be in writing and shall specify that the report to be submitted to the 
district should not contain the employee's genetic information. 
 
Any genetic information received by the district on behalf of an employee shall be treated as 
a confidential medical record, maintained in a file separate from the employee's personnel 
file, and shall not be disclosed except in accordance with 29 CFR 1635.9. 
 
Before returning to work, an employee who has been absent for surgery, hospitalization, or 
extended medical treatment may be asked to submit a letter from his/her physician stating 
that he/she is able to return to work and stipulating any recommended restrictions or 
limitations. 
 
(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation) 
(cf. 4113.4/4213.4/4313.4 - Temporary Modified/Light-Duty Assignment) 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(f) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
Short-Term and Substitute Employees 
 
 
Except for a retired annuitant who is not reinstated to the retirement system, any short-term 
or substitute employee who works for 30 or more days within a year of his/her employment 
shall accrue, on a regular basis, paid sick leave of up to 24 hours by the 120th calendar day of 
his/her employment or each calendar year or 12-month period. Accrued paid sick days shall 
carry over to the following year of employment, up to a maximum of 48 hours.  (Labor Code 
246) 
 
Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act Requirements 
 
No employee, including a short-term or substitute employee, shall be denied the right to use 
accrued sick days and the district shall not in any manner discriminate or retaliate against an 
employee for using or attempting to use sick leave, filing a complaint with the Labor 
Commissioner, or alleging district violation of Labor Code 245-249. 
 
To ensure the district's compliance with Labor Code 245-249, the Superintendent or designee 
shall: 
 
1. At a conspicuous location in each workplace, display a poster on paid sick leave that 

includes the following information: 
 
a. That an employee is entitled to accrue, request, and use paid sick days 
 
b. The amount of sick days provided by Labor Code 245-249 
 
c. The terms of use of paid sick days 
 
d. That discrimination or retaliation against an employee for requesting and/or 

using sick leave is prohibited by law and that an employee has the right to file 
a complaint with the Labor Commissioner if the district discriminates or 
retaliates against him/her 

 
2. Provide at least 24 hours or three days of paid sick leave to each eligible employee to 

use per year and allow eligible employees to use accrued sick leave upon reasonable 
request 

 
3. Provide eligible employees written notice, on their pay stub or other document issued 

with their pay check, of the amount of paid sick leave they have available 
 
(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications) 
 
 
 



 AR 4261.1(g) 
 
 
PERSONAL ILLNESS/INJURY LEAVE (continued) 
 
 
4. Keep a record documenting the hours worked and paid sick days accrued and used by 

each eligible employee for three years 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
45103 Substitute employees 
45190 Leaves of absence and vacations 
45191 Leaves of absence for illness and injury 
45191.5  Leave for military service connected disability 
45193 Leave of absence for pregnancy (re use of sick leave under certain circumstances) 
45195 Additional leave for nonindustrial accident or illness; reemployment preference 
45196 Salary; deductions during sick leave 
45196.1  Differential pay during parental leave up to 12 weeks after sick leave is exhausted 
45202 Transfer of accumulated sick leave and other benefits 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
12945.1-12945.2  California Family Rights Act 
12945.6  Parental leave 
LABOR CODE 
230  Jury duty; legal actions by domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, right to time off 
230.1  Employers with 25 or more employees; domestic violence, sexual assault and stalking victims, 
right to time off 
233 Illness of child, parent, spouse or domestic partner 
245-249  Healthy Workplaces, Healthy Families Act of 2014 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 29 
2601-2654  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993, as amended 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
2000ff-2000ff-11  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 29 
825.100-825.800  Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
1635.1-1635.12  Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
COURT DECISIONS 
California School Employees Association v. Colton Joint Unified School District, (2009) 170 
Cal.App.4th  957 
California School Employees Association v. Tustin Unified School District, (2007) 148 Cal.App.4th 
510 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
53 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 111 (1970) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Students BP 5022(a) 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS 
 
 
The Governing Board respects the rights of district students and their parents/guardians with 
regard to the privacy of their personal beliefs and the confidentiality of their personal 
information. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents) 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information) 
(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may collect, disclose, or use students' personal information 
for the exclusive purpose of developing, evaluating, or providing educational products or 
services for or to students or educational institutions, such as the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. College or other postsecondary education recruitment or military recruitment 
 
2. Book clubs, magazines, and programs providing access to low-cost literary products 
 
3. Curriculum and instructional materials used by elementary and secondary schools 
 
4. Tests and assessments to provide cognitive, evaluative, diagnostic, clinical, aptitude, 

or achievement information about students (or to generate other statistically useful 
data for the purpose of securing such tests and assessments) and the subsequent 
analysis and public release of the aggregate data from such tests and assessments 

 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
5. The sale by students of products or services to raise funds for school-related or 

education-related activities 
 
(cf. 1321 - Solicitation of Funds from and by Students) 
 
6. Student recognition programs 
 
(cf. 5126 - Awards for Achievement) 
 
The Superintendent or designee is prohibited from collecting, disclosing, or using a student's 
individually identifiable information, including his/her name, parent/guardian's name, home 
or other physical address, telephone number, or social security number, for the purpose of 
marketing or selling that information or providing the information to others for that purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5022(b) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with parents/guardians regarding the 
development of regulations pertaining to other uses of personal information, which shall, at a 
minimum, address the following:  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. Arrangements for protecting student privacy when collecting, disclosing, or using 

students' individually identifiable information for any purpose 
 
2. Arrangements to protect student privacy in the administration of surveys that may 

request information about the personal beliefs and practices of students and their 
families 

 
3. The rights of parents/guardians to inspect the following, and any applicable 

procedures for granting reasonable access to the following in a reasonable period of 
time: 
 
a. Survey instruments requesting information about their personal beliefs and 

practices or those of their children 
 
b. Instructional materials used as part of their children's educational curriculum 

 
c. Instruments used in the collection of personal information for the purpose of 

marketing or sale 
 
4. Any nonemergency physical examinations or screenings that the school may 

administer 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committee) 
(cf. 1230 - School-Connected Organizations) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians of the adoption or continued 
use of the district's policy pertaining to the rights specified in items #1-4 above.  (20 USC 
1232h) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5022(c) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
49076.7  Privacy of student records; social security numbers 
49450-49458  Physical examinations 
49602  Confidentiality of personal information received during counseling 
51101  Parents Rights Act of 2002 
51513  Test, questionnaire, survey, or examination concerning personal beliefs 
51514  Nonremoval of survey questions pertaining to sexual orientation or gender identity 
51938    Sexual Health and HIV/AIDS Prevention Education Act; notice and parental excuse 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act 
1232h  Protection of pupil rights 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 
U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office: http://www.ed.gov/offices/OM/fpco 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Students AR 5022(a) 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS 
 
 
Surveys Requesting Information about Beliefs and Practices 
 
A student's parent/guardian, or a student who is an adult or emancipated minor, shall provide 
prior written consent before the student is required to participate in a survey inquiring about 
one or more of the following:  (Education Code 51513; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. Political affiliations or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian 
 
2. Mental or psychological problems of the student or his/her family 
 
3. Sexual behavior or attitudes or personal beliefs and practices in family life or 

morality 
 
4. Illegal, anti-social, self-incriminating, or demeaning behavior 
 
5. Critical appraisals of other individuals with whom the student has close family 

relationships 
 
6. Legally recognized privileged or analogous relationships, such as those of lawyers, 

physicians, or ministers 
 
7. Religious practices, affiliations, or beliefs of the student or his/her parent/guardian 
 
8. Income, except to the extent that income is required to be disclosed by law for 

participation in a program or for receiving financial assistance under such a program 
 
(cf. 3553 - Free and Reduced Price Meals) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
 
If a student participates in such a survey requesting information about personal beliefs and 
practices, school officials and staff members shall not request or disclose the student's 
identity. 
 
(cf. 6162.8 - Research) 
 
Notwithstanding the above requirements for prior written consent, the district may administer 
to students in grades 7-12 anonymous, voluntary, and confidential research and evaluation 
tools to measure student health risks and behaviors, including tests and surveys about student 
attitudes or practices related to sex as long as parents/guardians are provided written notice 
and given an opportunity to request, in writing, that their child not participate.  (Education 
Code 51938) 
 
If the district administers a voluntary survey that already includes questions pertaining to 
sexual orientation and/or gender identity, the Superintendent or designee shall not remove 
such questions.  (Education Code 51514) 



 AR 5022(b) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS  (continued) 
 
 
Parent/Guardian Access to Surveys and Instructional Materials 
 
The parent/guardian of any district student, upon his/her request, shall have the right to 
inspect:  (Education Code 51938; 20 USC 1232h) 
 
1. A survey or other instrument to be administered or distributed to his/her child that 

either collects personal information for marketing or sale or requests information 
about beliefs and practices 

 
2. Any instructional material to be used as part of his/her child's educational curriculum 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 
Within a reasonable period of time after receiving a parent/guardian's request, the principal or 
designee shall permit the parent/guardian to view the survey or other document he/she 
requested. A parent/guardian may view the document any time during normal business hours. 
 
(cf. 1340 - Access to District Records) 
 
No student shall be subject to penalty for his/her parent/guardian's exercise of any of the 
rights stated above. 
 
Health Examinations 
 
Authorized school officials may administer to any student any physical examination or 
screening permitted under California law. However, no student shall be subjected to a 
nonemergency, invasive physical examination without prior written notice to his/her 
parent/guardian, unless an applicable state law authorizes the student to provide consent 
without parent/guardian notification.  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
Invasive physical examination means any medical examination that involves the exposure of 
private body parts or any act during such examination that includes incision, insertion, or 
injection into the body, but does not include a properly authorized hearing, vision, or 
scoliosis screening.  (20 USC 1232h) 
 
(cf. 5131.61 - Drug Testing) 
(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions) 
(cf. 5141.3 - Health Examinations) 
(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry) 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
 
Notifications 
 
At the beginning of the school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify 
parents/guardians of:  (20 USC 1232h) 



 AR 5022(c) 
 
 
STUDENT AND FAMILY PRIVACY RIGHTS (continued) 
 
 
1. The district's policy regarding student privacy 
 
2. The process to opt their children out of participation in any activity described in this 

administrative regulation and the accompanying Board policy 
 
3. The specific or approximate dates during the school year when the following 

activities are scheduled: 
 
a. Survey requesting personal information 
 
b. Physical examinations or screenings 
 
c. Collection of personal information from students for marketing or sale 

 
Prior to administering any anonymous and voluntary survey regarding health risks and 
behaviors to students in grades 7-12, the district shall provide parents/guardians with written 
notice that the survey is to be administered.  (Education Code 51938) 
 
Parents/guardians shall also be notified of any substantive change to this policy and 
administrative regulation within a reasonable period of time after adoption of the change.  
(20 USC 1232h) 
 
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Students BP 5145.6(a) 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to promote effective communication between the school and 
the home and to keep parents/guardians informed regarding educational programs, school 
operations, and the legal rights of students and their parents/guardians. The Superintendent or 
designee shall send parents/guardians and students all notifications required by law and any 
other notifications he/she believes will promote parental understanding and involvement. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Notice of the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians as specified in Education Code 
48980 shall be sent at the beginning of each academic year and may be provided by regular 
mail, in electronic form when so requested by the parent/guardian, or by any other method 
normally used by the district for written communication with parents/guardians.  (Education 
Code 48981) 
 
No activity specified in Education Code 48980 shall be undertaken with respect to any 
particular student unless his/her parent/guardian has been informed of such action through 
the annual notification or other separate special notification. Such notice shall state the 
activity that will be undertaken and the approximate date on which the activity will occur.  
(Education Code 48983-48984) 
 
The annual notification shall include a request that the parent/guardian sign the notice and 
return it to the school or, if the notice is provided in electronic format, that the 
parent/guardian submit a signed acknowledgment of receipt of the notice to the school. The 
parent/guardian's signature is an acknowledgment of receipt of the information but does not 
indicate that consent to participate in any particular program has been given or withheld.  
(Education Code 48982) 
 
Whenever a student enrolls in a district school during the school year, his/her 
parents/guardians shall be given all required parental notifications at that time. 
 
Notifications shall be presented in an understandable and uniform format and, to the extent 
practicable, in a language that parents/guardians can understand. 
 
Whenever 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in a district school speak a single 
primary language other than English, as determined from the California Department of 
Education census data collected pursuant to Education Code 52164, all notices sent to the 
parent/guardian of any such student shall, in addition to being written in English, be written 
in the primary language, and may be responded to either in English or the primary language.  
(Education Code 48981, 48985) 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5145.6(b) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
Whenever an employee learns that a student's parent/guardian is unable to understand the 
district's printed notifications for any reason, he/she shall inform the principal or designee, 
who shall work with the parent/guardian to establish other appropriate means of 
communication. 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
221.5  Prohibited sex discrimination 
231.5  Sexual harassment policy 
234.7  Student protections relating to immigration and citizenship status 
262.3  Appeals for discrimination complaints; information regarding  availability of civil remedies 
310  Language acquisition programs 
313  Reclassification of English learners, parental consultation 
313.2  Long-term English learner, notification 
440  English language proficiency assessment; instruction in English language development 
8483  Before/after school program; enrollment priorities 
17288  Building standards for university campuses 
17611.5-17612  Notification of pesticide use 
32221.5  Insurance for athletic team members 
32255-32255.6  Right to refuse harmful or destructive use of animals 
32390  Fingerprint program; contracts; funding; consent of parent/guardian 
33479.3 The Eric Paredes Sudden Cardiac Arrest Prevention Act 
35160.5  Extracurricular and cocurricular activities 
35178.4  Notice of accreditation status 
35182.5  Advertising in the classroom 
35183  School dress codes; uniforms 
35186  Complaints concerning deficiencies in instructional materials and facilities 
35211  Driver training; district insurance, parent/guardian liability 
35256  School Accountability Report Card 
35258  School Accountability Report Card 
35291  Rules for student discipline 
37616  Consultation regarding year-round schedule 
39831.5  School bus rider rules and information 
44050  Employee codes of conduct, employee interactions with students 
44808.5  Permission to leave school grounds 
46010.1  Notice regarding excuse to obtain confidential medical services 
46014  Regulations regarding absences for religious purposes 
46600-46611  Interdistrict attendance agreements 
48000  Minimum age of admission 
48070.5  Promotion or retention of students 
48204  Residency requirements 
48205  Absence for personal reasons 
48206.3  Students with temporary disabilities; individual instruction; definitions 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 5145.6(c) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE  (continued) 
48207-48208  Students with temporary disabilities in hospitals 
48213  Prior notice of exclusion from attendance 
48216  Immunization 
48260.5  Notice regarding truancy 
48262  Need for parent conference regarding truancy 
48263  Referral to school attendance review board or probation department 
48301  Interdistrict transfers 
48350-48361  Open Enrollment Act 
48354  Option to transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48357  Status of application for transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
48412  Certificate of  proficiency 
48432.3  Voluntary enrollment in continuation education 
48432.5  Involuntary transfers of students 
48850-48859 Education of foster youth and homeless students 
48900.1  Parental attendance required after suspension 
48904  Liability of parent/guardian for willful student misconduct 
48904.3  Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts 
48906  Notification of release of student to peace officer 
48911  Notification in case of suspension 
48911.1  Assignment to supervised suspension classroom 
48912  Closed sessions; consideration of suspension 
48915.1  Expelled students; enrollment in another district 
48916  Readmission procedures 
48918  Rules governing expulsion procedures 
48929  Transfer of student convicted of violent felony or misdemeanor 
48980  Required notification at beginning of term 
48980.3  Notification of pesticide use 
48981  Time and means of notification 
48982  Parent signature acknowledging receipt of notice 
48983  Contents of notice 
48984  Activities prohibited unless notice given 
48985  Notices to parents in language other than English 
48987  Child abuse information 
49013  Use of uniform complaint procedures for complaints regarding student fees 
49063  Notification of parental rights 
49067  Student evaluation; student in danger of failing course 
49068  Transfer of permanent enrollment and scholarship record 
49069  Absolute right to access 
49070  Challenging content of student record 
49073  Release of directory information 
49073.6  Student records, social media 
49076  Access to student records 
49077  Access to information concerning a student in compliance with court order 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 



 BP 5145.6(d) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

EDUCATION CODE  (continued) 
49403  Cooperation in control of communicable disease and immunization 
49423  Administration of prescribed medication for student 
49451  Physical examinations: parent's refusal to consent 
49452.5  Screening for scoliosis 
49452.7  Information on type 2 diabetes 
49452.8  Oral health assessment 
49456  Results of vision or hearing test 
49471-49472  Insurance 
49475  Student athletes; concussions and head injuries 
49480  Continuing medication regimen for nonepisodic conditions 
49510-49520  Duffy-Moscone Family Nutrition Education and Services Act of 1970 
49557.5  Child Hunger Prevention and Fair Treatment Act of 2017; notice of negative balance in meal 
account 
51225.1 Exemption from district graduation requirements 
51225.2 Course credits; foster youth, homeless youth, former juvenile court school students and 
military-connected students 
51225.3  Graduation requirements; courses that satisfy college entrance criteria 
51229  Course of study for grades 7-12 
51513  Personal beliefs; privacy 
51938  HIV/AIDS and sexual health instruction 
52164  Language census 
52164.1  Census-taking methods; determination of primary language; assessment of language skills 
52164.3  Reassessment of English learners; notification of results 
54444.2  Migrant education programs; parent involvement 
56301  Child-find system; policies regarding written notification rights 
56321  Special education: proposed assessment plan 
56321.5-56321.6  Notice of parent rights pertaining to special education 
56329  Written notice of right to findings; independent assessment 
56341.1  Development of individualized education program; right to audio record meeting 
56341.5  Individualized education program team meetings 
56343.5  Individualized education program meetings 
56521.1  Behavioral intervention 
58501  Alternative schools; notice required prior to establishment 
60615  Exemption from state assessment 
60641  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
69432.9  Submission of grade point average to Cal Grant program 
CIVIL CODE 
1798.29  District records, breach of security 
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE 
1596.857  Right to enter child care facility 
104420  Tobacco use prevention 
104855  Availability of topical fluoride treatment 
116277  Lead testing of school drinking water 
120365-120375  Immunizations 
120440  Sharing immunization information 
124100-124105  Health screening and immunizations 

 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 



 BP 5145.6(e) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

PENAL CODE 
626.81  Notice of permission granted to sex offender to volunteer on campus 
627.5  Hearing request following denial or revocation of registration 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
852  Exemptions from state assessments 
863  Reports of state assessment results 
3052  Behavioral intervention 
4622  Notification of uniform complaint procedures 
4631  Uniform complaint procedures; notification of decision and right to appeal 
4702  Student transfer from school identified under Open Enrollment Act 
4917  Notification of sexual harassment policy 
11303  Reclassification of English learners 
11511.5  English language proficiency assessment; test results 
11523  Notice of proficiency examinations 
18066  Child care policies regarding excused and unexcused absences 
18094-18095  Notice of Action; child care services 
18114  Notice of delinquent fees; child care services 
18118-18119  Notice of Action; child care services 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 17 
2951  Hearing tests 
6040  Time period to obtain needed immunizations 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
1232g  Family Educational and Privacy Rights Act 
1232h  Privacy rights 
1415  Procedural safeguards 
6311  State plan 
6312  Local educational agency plans 
6318  Parent and family engagement 
7908  Armed forces recruiter access to students 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 
1758  Child nutrition programs 
11431-11435 McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 7 
245.5  Eligibility criteria for free and reduced-price meals 
245.6a  Verification of eligibility for free and reduced-price meals 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 5145.6(f) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
99.7  Student records, annual notification 
99.30 Disclosure of personally identifiable information 
99.34  Student records, disclosure to other educational agencies 
99.37  Disclosure of directory information 
104.32  District responsibility to provide free appropriate public education 
104.36  Procedural safeguards 
104.8  Nondiscrimination 
106.9  Dissemination of policy, nondiscrimination on basis of sex 
200.48 Teacher qualifications 
300.300  Parent consent for special education evaluation 
300.322  Parent participation in IEP team meetings 
300.502  Independent educational evaluation of student with disability 
300.503  Prior written notice regarding identification, evaluation, or placement of student with 
disability 
300.504  Procedural safeguards notice for students with disabilities 
300.508  Due process complaint 
300.530  Discipline procedures 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 40 
763.84  Asbestos inspections, response actions and post-response actions 
763.93  Asbestos management plans 

 
Management Resources: 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE PUBLICATIONS 
Unpaid Meal Charges: Guidance and Q&A, SP 23-2017, March 2017 
Civil Rights Compliance and Enforcement -- Nutrition Programs and Services, FNS Instruction 113-1, 
2005 
WEB SITES 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service: http://www.fns.usda.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Students E 5145.6(a) 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS 
 
 

Cautionary Notice:  Government Code 17581.5 releases districts from the obligation to perform specified 
mandated activities when the Budget Act does not provide reimbursement during that fiscal year. The 
Budget Act of 2017 (AB 97, Ch. 14, Statutes of 2017) extends the suspension of these requirements 
through the 2017-18 fiscal year. As a result, certain provisions of the following Exhibit related to scoliosis 
screening and bus safety instruction may be suspended. 

 
Note:  The following exhibit lists notices which the law explicitly requires be provided to parents/guardians. 
See the referenced Board policy, administrative regulation, or Board bylaw for further information about 
related program and notice requirements. For example, see AR 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures for 
the contents of the annual notice regarding uniform complaint procedures as mandated by 5 CCR 4622. 
 
The exhibit does not include other notices that are recommended throughout CSBA's sample policy manual 
but are not required by law. The district may revise the exhibit to reflect additional notifications provided by 
the district. 

 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 0410 Right to a free public 
year 234.7   education regardless of 
    immigration status or 
    religious beliefs 
 
Beginning of each school  Education Code BP 6142.2 Information on the district's 
year 310 AR 6174 language acquisition 
    programs 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 3514.2 Use of pesticide product, 
year 17611.5, 17612,   active ingredients, Internet 
 48980.3  address to access information, 
   and, if district has no web site 
   and uses certain pesticides, 
   integrated pest management 
   plan 
  
By February 1 Education Code  BP 0510 School Accountability 
 35256, 35258  Report Card provided 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5144 District and site discipline 
year 35291, 48980 AR 5144.1 rules 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 4119.21 Code of conduct addressing 
year 44050       4219.21 employee interactions with 
        4319.21 students 
 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(b) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5113 Absence for confidential 
year 46010.1  medical services 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5116.2 District policy authorizing 
year, if district has adopted 48929, 48980  transfer 
policy on involuntary transfer    
of students convicted of certain 
crimes when victim is enrolled 
at same school   
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  BP 6111 Schedule of minimum days 
year  48980  and student-free staff 
    development days 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5145.7  Copy of sexual harassment 
year 48980, 231.5;  policy as related to students 
 5 CCR 4917 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code  AR 5145.8 Right to refrain from harmful 
year 48980, 32255-  or destructive use of animals 
 32255.6 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5111.1  All statutory attendance 
year 48980, 35160.5,  AR 5116.1 options, available local 
 46600-46611,  AR 5117 attendance options, options for 
 48204, 48301,   meeting residency, form for 
 48350-48361   changing attendance, appeals 
    process 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5113 Absence for religious 
year, if Board allows 48980, 46014   exercises or purposes 
such absence 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5113 Excused absences; grade/credit 
year 48980, 48205 BP 6154 cannot be reduced due to 
    excused absence if work or test 

   has been completed; full text 
of Education Code 48205 

 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6183 Availability of home/hospital 
year 48980, 48206.3,  instruction for students with 
 48207, 48208  temporary disabilities 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5141.31 School immunization program 
year 48980, 49403   
 



 E 5145.6(c) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5141.21 Administration of 
year 48980, 49423,  prescribed medication 
 49480 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5141.3 Right to refuse consent to 
year 48980, 49451;  physical examination 
 20 USC 1232h 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 5143 Availability of 
year 48980, 49471,  insurance 
 49472 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 1312.3 Uniform complaint procedures, 
year 49013; 5 CCR  available appeals, civil law 
 4622  remedies 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125 Challenge, review, and 
year 49063 AR 5125.3 expunging of records 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125 Student records: inspect and 
year 49063, 49069;  review, access, types, location, 
 20 USC 1232g;  persons responsible, location 
 34 CFR 99.7  of log, access criteria, cost of 
   copies, amendment requests, 
   criteria to determine legitimate 
   educational interest, course 
   prospectus availability 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5125.1 Release of directory 
year 49063, 49073;  information 
 20 USC 1232g; 
 34 CFR 99.37 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 3553 Eligibility and application 
year 49520, 48980;  process for free and reduced- 
 42 USC 1758;  price meals 
 7 CFR 245.5   
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5022 Notice of privacy policy and 
year 51513; 20 USC BP 6162.8 dates of activities re: survey, 
 1232h  health examination, or 
   collection of personal 
   information for marketing; 
   process to opt out of such 
   activities; inspection rights 
   and procedures 



 E 5145.6(d) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
I.  Annually  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code BP 6164.4 Parental rights re: special 
year 56301  education identification, 
   referral, assessment, 
   instructional planning, 
   implementation and review, 
   and procedures for initiating 
   a referral for assessment 
 
Beginning of each school  Education Code AR 6181 Alternative schools 
year 58501, 48980 
 
Beginning of each school Health and Safety AR 5141.6 Availability of dental fluoride 
year Code 104855  treatment; opportunity to 
   accept or deny treatment 
 
Annually 5 CCR 852; AR 6162.51 Student's participation in state 
 Education Code  assessments; option to request 
 60615  exemption from testing 
 
Beginning of each school  20 USC 6312; BP 4112.2 Right to request information 
year, if district receives  34 CFR 200.48 AR 4222 re: professional qualifications 
Title I funds   of child's teacher and 
   paraprofessional 
 
Beginning of each school 34 CFR 104.8, BP 0410 Nondiscrimination 
year 106.9 BP 6178  
 
Beginning of each school 40 CFR 763.84, AR 3514 Availability of asbestos 
year to parent, teacher, and  763.93  management plan; any 
employee organizations or, in   inspections, response actions 
their absence, individuals   or post-response actions 
   planned or in progress 
 
Beginning of each school USDA SP-23-2017 AR 3551 District policy on meal 
year   payments 
 
II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career 
 
Beginning in grade 7,   Education Code BP 6164.2 Course selection and 
at least once prior to course 221.5, 48980  career counseling 
selection and career counseling 
 
Upon a student's enrollment  Education Code BP 6142.2 Information on the district's 
 310 AR 6174 language acquisition 
    programs 
 



 E 5145.6(e) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 

II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career (continued) 
 
When child first enrolls in a Education Code AR 5142.1 Fingerprinting program 
public school, if school offers 32390, 48980 
a fingerprinting program 
 
When participating in  Education Code  None Civil liability, insurance 
driver training courses under  35211  coverage 
the jurisdiction of the district 
 
Upon registration in K-6, if Education Code AR 3543 School bus safety rules and 
students have not previously 39831.5  information, list of stops, rules 
been transported   of conduct, red light crossing 
   instructions, bus danger zones, 
   walking to and from stops 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 5112.5 Open campus 
year for high school students, 44808.5, 48980 
if high school is open campus 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6146.1 How each graduation 
year in grades 9-12, if district 48980, 51225.3  requirement does or does not 
allows career technical education   satisfy college entrance a-g 
(CTE) course to satisfy   course criteria; district CTE 
graduation requirement   courses that satisfy a-g criteria 
 
Upon a student's enrollment Education Code AR 5125 Specified rights related to 
 49063 AR 5125.3 student records 
 
When students enter grade 7 Education Code AR 5141.3 Specified information on type 
 49452.7  2 diabetes 
 
When in kindergarten, Education Code AR 5141.32 Requirement for oral health 
or first grade if not previously 49452.8  assessment, explanation of 
enrolled in public school   law, importance of oral health, 
   agency contact, privacy rights 
 
Beginning of each school year  Education Code AR 6143 College admission 
for students in grades 9-12 51229, 48980  requirements, UC and CSU 
   web sites that list certified 
   courses, description of CTE, 
   CDE Internet address, how 
   students may meet with 
   counselors 
 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(f) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
II.  At Specific Times During the Student's Academic Career  (continued) 
 
Beginning of each school Education Code AR 6142.1 Sexual health and HIV 
year for students in grades  51938, 48980  prevention education, right to 
7-12, or at time of    view A/V materials, whether 
enrollment if after beginning   taught by district staff or 
of year   outside consultants, right to 
   request specific Education 

 Code sections, right to excuse 
 

Within 20 working days of Education Code AR 6162.51 Results of tests; test 
receiving results of standardized 60641; 5 CCR 863  purpose, individual score 
achievement tests or, if results   and intended use 
not available in school year, 
within 20 working days of start 
of next school year 
 
By October 15 for students in Education Code AR 5121 Forwarding of student's grade 
grade 12 69432.9 AR 5125 point average to Cal Grant 
   program; timeline to opt out 
 
When child is enrolled Health and Safety AR 5141.32 Health screening 
in kindergarten Code 124100,  examination 
 124105 
 
To students in grades 11-12, 5 CCR 11523 AR 6146.2 Notice of proficiency 
early enough to enable    examination provided 
registration for fall test   under Education Code 48412 
 
To secondary students, if 20 USC 7908 AR 5125.1 Request that district not release 
district receives Title I funds    name, address, phone number 
   of child to military recruiters 
   without prior written consent 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur 
 
In the event of a breach of Civil Code  BP 3580 Types of records affected, 
security of district records, 1798.29 date of breach, description of 
to affected persons incident, contact information 
 for credit reporting agencies  
 
Upon receipt of a complaint Education Code AR 1312.3 Civil law remedies 
alleging discrimination 262.3  available to complainants 
 
When determining whether an Education Code AR 6174 Description of reclassification 
English learner should be 313; 5 CCR 11303  process, opportunity for 
reclassified as fluent English   parent/guardian to participate 
proficient 



 E 5145.6(g) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When student is identified Education Code AR 6174 Reason for classification, level 
as English learner and district 313.2, 440;   of English proficiency, 
receives Title I or Title III 20 USC 6312  identification as long-term 
funds for English learner   English learner, description 
programs, not later than 30   of program(s), option to 
days after beginning of school   decline program or choose 
year or within two weeks of    alternate, option to remove 
placement if identified during    student from program at any 
school year   time, exit requirements of 
   program 
 
When homeless or foster youth Education Code AR 5148.2 Right to priority enrollment; 
applies for enrollment in 8483  how to request priority 
before/after school program   enrollment 
 
Before high school student Education Code None University campus buildings 
attends specialized 17288  may not meet Education Code 
secondary program on a   requirements for structural 
university campus   safety 
 
At least 72 hours before Education Code AR 3514.2 Intended use of pesticide 
use of pesticide product 17612  product 
not included in annual list 
 
To members of athletic Education Code AR 5143 Offer of insurance; no-cost and 
teams 32221.5  low-cost program options 
 
Annually to parents/guardians  Education Code AR 6145.2 Information on sudden 
of student athletes before they   33479.3  cardiac arrest 
participate in competition 
 
If school has lost its WASC Education Code BP 6190 Loss of status, potential 
accreditation status 35178.4  consequences 
 
 
When district has contracted Education Code BP 3312 Advertising will be used in the 
for electronic products or 35182.5   classroom or learning center 
services that disseminate 
advertising 
 
At least six months before Education Code AR 5132 Dress code policy requiring 
implementing uniform policy 35183   schoolwide uniform 
 
Before implementing a Education Code BP 6117 Public hearing on year-round 
year-round schedule 37616   schedule 
 



 E 5145.6(h) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When interdistrict transfer Education Code AR 5117 Appeal process 
is requested and not approved 46601 
or denied within 30 days 
 
Before early entry to Education Code AR 5111 Effects, advantages and 
kindergarten, if offered 48000  disadvantages of early entry 
 
When student identified as Education Code AR 5123 Student at risk of 
being at risk of retention 48070.5  retention 
 
When student excluded due to Education Code AR 5112.2 Student has been excluded 
quarantine, contagious or 48213 BP 5141.33 from school 
infectious disease, danger to 
safety or health 
 
Before already admitted  Education Code AR 5141.31 Need to submit evidence of 
student is excluded for lack  48216; 17 CCR   immunization or exemption 
of immunization 6040   within 10 school days; referral 
    to medical care 
 
When a student is Education Code AR 5113.1 Truancy, parental obligation, 
classified as truant  48260.5, 48262   availability of alternative 
    programs, student 
    consequences, need for 
    conference 
 
When a truant is referred Education Code AR 5113.1 Name and address of SARB 
to a SARB or probation 48263   or probation department and 
department    reason for referral 
 
When a school is identified on Education Code AR 5118 Student's option to transfer 
the state's Open Enrollment List 48354; 5 CCR   to another school 
 4702 
 
Within 60 days of receiving Education Code AR 5118 Whether student's transfer 
application for transfer out of  48357; 5 CCR    application is accepted or 
open enrollment school 4702   rejected; reasons for rejection 
 
When student requests to Education Code AR 6184 Copy of district policy and 
voluntarily transfer to 48432.3   regulation on continuation 
continuation school    education 
 
Prior to involuntary transfer Education Code AR 6184 Right to request meeting prior 
to continuation school 48432.5  to involuntary transfer to 
   continuation school 
 



 E 5145.6(i) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
To person holding educational Education Code AR 6173.1 Basis for the placement 
rights, prior to recommending 48853.5  recommendation 
placement of foster youth  
outside school of origin 
 
When student is removed from Education Code AR 5144.4 Parental attendance required; 
class and teacher requires 48900.1   timeline for attendance 
parental attendance at school 
 
Prior to withholding grades, Education Code AR 5125.2 Damaged school property 
diplomas, or transcripts 48904   
 
When withholding grades, Education Code AR 5125.2 Next school will continue 
diplomas or transcripts 48904.3   withholding grades, diplomas, 
from transferring student    or transcripts 
 
When student is released Education Code BP 5145.11 Release of student to peace 
to peace officer 48906   officer for the purpose of 
    removing minor from school, 
    unless taken into custody as 
    victim of suspected child abuse 
 
At time of suspension Education Code BP 5144.1 Notice of suspension 
 48911 AR 5144.1 
 
When original period of Education Code AR 5144.1 Extension of suspension 
suspension is extended 48911 
 
At the time a student is Education Code  AR 5144.1 The student's assignment to 
assigned to a supervised  48911.1   a supervised suspension 
suspension classroom    classroom 
 
Before holding a closed Education Code AR 5144.1 Intent to hold a closed session 
session re: suspension 48912   re: suspension 
 
When student expelled Education Code BP 5119 Hearing re: possible danger 
from another district for 48915.1,   presented by expelled 
certain acts seeks admission 48918   student 
 
When readmission is Education Code AR 5144.1 Reasons for denial; 
denied 48916   determination of assigned 
    program 
 
When expulsion occurs Education Code AR 5144.1 Readmission procedures 
 48916 
 



 E 5145.6(j) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
At least 10 calendar days  Education Code AR 5144.1 Notice of expulsion 
before expulsion hearing 48918   hearing 
 
When expulsion or Education Code AR 5144.1 Decision to expel; right to 
suspension of expulsion 48918   appeal to county board; 
occurs    obligation to inform new 
    district of status 
 
Before involuntary transfer of Education Code BP 5116.2 Right to request a meeting 
student convicted of certain 48929, 48980  with principal or designee 
crime when victim is enrolled 
at same school 
 
One month before the Education Code BP 6111 When minimum days are 
scheduled minimum day 48980   scheduled after beginning 
    of the school year 
 
When parents/guardians  Education Code AR 5141.4 Guidelines for filing 
request guidelines for filing 48987   complaint of child abuse 
complaint of child abuse    at a school site with local 
at a school site    child protective agencies 
 
When student in danger Education Code AR 5121 Student in danger 
of failing a course 49067  of failing a course 
 
When student transfers Education Code AR 5125 Right to receive copy of 
from another district or 49068  student's record and to 
private school   challenge its content 
 
When parent/guardian's Education Code AR 5125.3 If board sustains allegations, 
challenge of student record is 49070  the correction or destruction 
denied and parent/guardian   of record; if denied, right to 
appeals   submit written objection 
 
When district is considering Education Code BP 5125 Opportunity for input on 
program to gather safety-related 49073.6  proposed program 
information from students' 
social media activity 
 
When district adopts program Education Code AR 5125 Information is being gathered, 
to gather information from 49073.6  access to records, process for 
students' social media activity,   removal or corrections, 
and annually thereafter   destruction of records 
 
 
 



 E 5145.6(k) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
Within 24 hours of Education Code AR 5125 Release of student record to a 
release of information 49076  judge or probation officer for 
to a judge or probation   conducting truancy mediation 
officer   program or for presenting 
   evidence at a truancy petition 
 
Before release of Education Code AR 5125 Release of information 
information pursuant to 49077  pursuant to court order 
court order or subpoena   or subpoena 
 
When screening results in Education Code AR 5141.3 Scoliosis screening 
suspicion that student 49452.5 
has scoliosis 
 
When test results in Education Code AR 5141.3 Vision or hearing test results 
discovery of visual or 49456; 17 CCR 
hearing defects 2951 
 
Within 10 days of  Education Code AR 3551 Negative balance in meal 
negative balance in meal 49557.5  account; encouragement to 
account   apply for free or reduced- 
   price meals 
 
Annually to parents/guardians  Education Code AR 6145.2 Information on concussions 
of student athletes before their   49475  and head injuries 
first practice or competition 
 
Within 30 days of foster youth, Education Code BP 6146.1 Exemption from local 
homeless youth, former 51225.1 AR 6173 graduation requirements, effect 
juvenile court school student,   AR 6173.1 on college admission, option 
or child of military family  AR 6173.3 for fifth year of high school 
being transferred between 
high schools 
 
Before any test/survey Education Code AR 5022 Permission for test, survey 
questioning personal beliefs 51513  questioning personal beliefs 
 
At least 14 days before HIV Education Code AR 6142.1 Instruction in HIV prevention 
prevention or sexual health 51938   or sexual health by guest 
instruction, if arrangement   speaker or outside consultant 
made for guest speaker after 
beginning of school year    
 
Prior to administering survey Education Code AR 5022 Notice that the survey will 
regarding health risks and 51938  be administered 
behaviors to students in 7-12 



 E 5145.6(l) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 

III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
  
Within 30 calendar days Education Code AR 6174 Results of state test of 
of receipt of results of 52164.1,  English proficiency 
assessment or reassessment 52164.3; 
of English proficiency 5 CCR 11511.5 
 
When migrant education Education Code BP 6175 Parent advisory council 
program is established 54444.2 AR 6175 membership composition 
 
When child participates in Health and Safety AR 5148 Parent/guardian right to enter 
licensed child care and Code 1596.857   facility 
development program 
 
When district receives Health and Safety AR 3513.3 The district's tobacco-free 
Tobacco-Use Prevention Code 104420   schools policy and 
Education Funds     enforcement procedures 
 
When testing by community  Health and Safety AR 3514 Elevated lead level at school 
water system finds presence  Code 116277 
of lead exceeding specified 
level 
 
When sharing student Health and Safety AR 5125 Types of information to be 
immunization information Code 120440   shared, name and address of 
with an immunization    agency, acceptable use of the 
system    information, right to examine, 
    right to refuse to share 
 
At least 14 days prior to Penal Code 626.81 AR 1240 Dates and times permission 
sex offender coming on  BP 1250 granted; obtaining information 
campus as volunteer    from law enforcement 
 
When hearing is requested by Penal Code 627.5 AR 3515.2 Notice of hearing 
person asked to leave   
school premises 
 
When responding to complaint 5 CCR 4631 AR 1312.3 Findings, disposition of 
re: discrimination, special    complaint, any corrective 
education, or noncompliance    actions, appeal rights and 
with law    procedures 
 
When child participates in 5 CCR 18066 AR 5148 Policies re: excused and 
licensed child care and     unexcused absences 
development program 
 
Within 30 days of application 5 CCR 18094, AR 5148 Approval or denial of 
for subsidized child care or 18118 AR 5148.3 services 
preschool services 



 E 5145.6(m) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
Upon recertification or update 5 CCR 18095, AR 5148 Any change in service, such 
of application for child care 18119 AR 5148.3 as in fees, amount of service, 
or preschool services    termination of service 
 
Upon child's enrollment in 5 CCR 18114 AR 5148 Policy on fee collection 
child care program 
 
When payment of child care 5 CCR 18114 AR 5148 Notice of delinquent fees 
fees is seven days late 
 
When district substantively 20 USC 1232h AR 5022 Notice of any substantive 
changes policy on student    change in policy or regulation 
privacy rights 
 
For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6312 AR 4112.2 Timely notice to parent/ 
funds, when child has been    guardian of child's assignment 
assigned or taught for four or 
more consecutive weeks by a 
teacher who does not meet 
state certification requirements 
for the grade level/subject taught 
 
For districts receiving Title I 20 USC 6312 AR 6174 Reasons for placement, level 
funds, not later than 30 days    of proficiency, instructional 
after beginning of school year,    methods, how program meets 
to parents/guardians of English    child's strengths and teaches 
learners   English, exit requirements, 
   right to choose other program 
 
For schools receiving Title I 20 USC 6318 AR 6020 Notice of policy 
funds, upon development of  
parent involvement policy 
 
When household is selected 42 USC 1758; AR 3553 Need to submit verification 
for verification of eligibility 7 CFR 245.6a  information; any subsequent 
for free or reduced-price meals   change in benefits; appeals 
 
When student is homeless or 42 USC 11432; AR 6173 Educational and related 
unaccompanied minor Education Code  opportunities; transportation 
 48852.5  services; placement decision 
   and right to appeal 
 
When student transfers 34 CFR 99.34 AR 5125 Right to review records 
out of state and records are 
disclosed without consent 
pursuant to 34 CFR 99.30 



 E 5145.6(n) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
III.  When Special Circumstances Occur  (continued) 
 
When district receives  USDA FNS BP 3555 Rights and responsibilities, 
federal funding assistance Instruction 113-1  nondiscrimination policy, 
for nutrition program   complaint procedures 
 
IV.  Special Education Notices 
 
Prior to conducting initial Education Code BP 6159.1 Proposed evaluation plan, 
evaluation 56301, 56321, AR 6159.1 related parental rights, 
 56321.5, 56321.6,  AR 6164.4 prior written notice, 
 56329; 20 USC  procedural safeguards 
 1415(d); 34 CFR 
 300.502, 300.503 
 
Before functional behavioral Education Code AR 6159.4 Notification and consent 
assessment begins 56321 
 
24 hours before IEP Education Code AR 6159 Intention to audio-record 
when district intending to  56341.1  IEP meeting 
record 
 
Early enough to ensure Education Code AR 6159 Time, purpose, location, who 
opportunity for parent/ 56341.5;  will attend, participation of 
guardian to attend IEP meeting 34 CFR 300.322  others with special knowledge, 
   transition statements if 
   appropriate 
 
When parent/guardian orally Education Code AR 6159 Need for written request 
requests review of IEP 56343.5 
 
Within one school day of Education Code AR 6159.4 Emergency intervention 
emergency intervention or 56521.1 
serious property damage 
 
Whenever there is a proposal 20 USC 1415(c); AR 6159 Prior written notice 
or refusal to initiate or change 34 CFR 300.300,  AR 6159.1 
the identification, evaluation, 300.503 
placement, or FAPE, including 
when parent/guardian revokes 
consent for services 
 
Upon filing of state complaint 20 USC 1415(d); AR 6159.1 Procedural safeguards 
 34 CFR 300.504  notice 
 
When disciplinary measures 20 USC 1415(k); AR 5144.2 Decision and procedural 
are taken or change in 34 CFR 300.530  safeguards notice 
placement 



 E 5145.6(o) 
 
 
PARENTAL NOTIFICATIONS  (continued) 
 
 
 Education or Board Policy/  
When to Other Legal Administrative 
Notify Code Regulation #  Subject 
 
IV. Special Education Notices  (continued) 
 
Upon requesting a 20 USC 1415(k); AR 6159.1 Student's name, address, 
due process hearing 34 CFR 300.508  school, description of problem, 
   proposed resolution 
 
Eligibility for services 34 CFR 104.32, AR 6164.6 District responsibilities, district 
under Section 504 104.36  actions, procedural safeguards 
 
V.  Classroom Notices 
 
In each classroom in each Education Code AR 1312.4 Complaints re: sufficiency of 
school 35186 E 1312.4 instructional materials, teacher 
   vacancy or misassignment, 
 maintenance of facilities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: March 2018 



Instruction BP 6162.5(a) 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that student assessments are an important instructional and 
accountability tool.  To obtain the most accurate evaluation of student performance, the 
district shall use a variety of measures, including district, state, and/or national assessments. 
 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
Assessment data shall be used to help determine individual students' progress, mastery of 
academic standards, appropriate placement in district programs, and/or eligibility for 
graduation. In addition, summary data on student assessment results shall be used by the 
district to identify and review student achievement goals in the district's local control and 
accountability plan, evaluate district educational programs in order to identify needed 
improvements, and, as appropriate, evaluate staff performance. 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 4315 - Evaluation/Supervision) 
(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
In selecting or developing any district assessment, the Superintendent or designee shall 
examine evidence of its reliability, its validity for the intended purpose and for various 
student populations, and the extent to which it aligns with the material that is being taught. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that assessments are administered in accordance 
with law and test publisher's directions, and that test administration procedures are fair and 
equitable for all students. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 6162.54 - Test Integrity/Test Preparation) 
 
As appropriate, assessment results shall be disaggregated by student subgroup, classroom, 
grade level, and/or school site to allow for critical analysis of student needs. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide professional development as needed to assist 
administrators and teachers in interpreting and using assessment data to improve student 
performance and the instructional program. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 
 
 



 BP 6162.5(b) 
 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
When districtwide and school-level results of student assessments are published by the state, 
the Superintendent or designee may provide supplementary information to assist 
parents/guardians and the community in understanding test results. 
 
(cf. 0510 - School Accountability Report Card) 
 
Interim and Formative Assessments 
 
State interim and formative assessments may be used in combination with other sources of 
information to gain timely feedback about student progress in an effort to continually adjust 
instruction to improve learning. Results from interim and formative assessments shall not be 
used for any high-stakes purpose, including, but not limited to, teacher or other school staff 
evaluation, accountability, student grade promotion or retention, graduation, course or class 
placement, identification for gifted or talented education, reclassification of English learners, 
or identification as an individual with exceptional needs.  (Education Code 60642.6, 60642.7) 
 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6152 - Class Assignment) 
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education) 
(cf. 6172 - Gifted and Talented Student Program) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that teachers who administer interim and 
formative assessments have access to all functions and information designed for teacher use 
related to such assessments and student performance on the assessments.  (Education Code 
60642.6) 
 
Individual Record of Accomplishment 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each student, by the end of grade 12, has an 
individual record of accomplishment that includes the following:  (Education Code 60607) 
 
1. The results of the state achievement tests required and administered as part of the 

California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress, or any predecessor 
assessments, pursuant to Education Code 60640-60649 

 
2. The results of any end-of-course examinations taken 
 
3. The results of any vocational education certification examinations taken 
 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 
 



 BP 6162.5(c) 
 
 
STUDENT ASSESSMENT  (continued) 
 
 
No individual record of accomplishment shall be released to any person, other than the 
student's parent/guardian or a teacher, counselor, or administrator directly involved with the 
student, without the written consent of the student's parent/guardian, or the student if he/she 
is an adult or emancipated minor.  The student or his/her parent/guardian may authorize the 
release of the record of accomplishment to a postsecondary educational institution for the 
purposes of credit, placement, or admission.  (Education Code 60607) 
 
(cf. 5125 - Student Records) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
313  Assessment of English language development 
10600-10610  California Education Information System 
44660-44665  Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees (Stull Act) 
49558  Free and reduced-price meals; use of individual applications and records 
51041  Evaluation of educational program 
51450-51455  Golden State Seal Merit Diploma 
52052  Accountability; numerically significant student subgroups 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60600-60649  Assessment of academic achievement, especially: 
60640-60649  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
60800  Physical fitness testing 
60810-60812  Assessment of English language development 
60900  California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
850-864  California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
9622  National Assessment of Educational Progress 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education, Testing and Accountability: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ta 
Smarter Balanced Assessment Consortium:  http://www.smarterbalanced.org 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Instruction BP 6171(a) 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide a high-quality education that enables all students to 
meet challenging state academic standards. In schools with a large number or percentage of 
economically disadvantaged families, the district shall use Title I funds to provide services 
that strengthen the academic program and provide support to students at risk of failing to 
achieve academic standards. 
 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 
 
Title I funds shall be used to supplement, not supplant, funds available from state and local 
sources for the education of students participating in Title I programs.  (20 USC 6314, 6321) 
 
Descriptions of how the district will address the required components of the Title I local 
educational agency plan, as specified in 20 USC 6312, shall be included within the district's 
control and accountability plan (LCAP), the LCAP Federal Addendum, or another document. 
School-level strategies shall be aligned with the district's plan and be tailored to the specific 
needs of the students at the school. 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
In addition, the district and each school receiving Title I funds shall develop a written 
parent/guardian and family engagement policy in accordance with 20 USC 6318. 
 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
Comparability of Services 
 
In schools receiving Title I funds, state and local funds shall be used to provide services that, 
taken as a whole, are at least comparable to services in schools that are not receiving Title I 
funds or, if all district schools are receiving Title I funds, that are substantially comparable in 
each school. Comparability may be determined on a school-by-school basis or by grade span.  
(20 USC 6321) 
 
To demonstrate comparability of services among district schools, the district shall: 
 
1. Adopt and implement a districtwide salary schedule 
 
2. Ensure equivalence in teachers, administrators, and other staff, as measured by either 

or both of the following: 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(b) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 

 
a. The ratio of students to instructional staff at each Title I school within a grade 

span, which shall not exceed 110 percent of the average ratio for all non-Title 
I district schools within that grade span 

 
b. Salary expenditures for instructional staff at each Title I school, which shall 

be no less than 90 percent of the average salary expenditure across non-Title I 
district schools. 

 
3. Ensure equivalence in the provision of curriculum materials and instructional 

supplies, by determining whether the per-student expenditure of state and local funds 
for curriculum materials and instructional supplies in Title I schools is between 90 
and 110 percent of the districtwide average 

 
4. Determine whether the amount of state and local funds allocated per student for each 

grade span is between 90 and 110 percent of the per student average for each grade 
span in non-Title I schools 

 
(cf. 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials) 
 
In determining comparability, the district shall not include staff salary differentials for years 
of employment. The district also may exclude unpredictable changes in student enrollment or 
personnel assignments that occur after the beginning of the school year, state and local funds 
expended for language instruction educational programs, state and local funds expended for 
the excess costs of providing services to students with disabilities, and supplemental state or 
local funds expended in any school attendance area or school for programs that specifically 
meet the intent and purposes of Title I.  (20 USC 6321) 
 

The Superintendent or designee shall annually assess comparability in accordance with the 
above criteria and maintain records documenting the district's compliance.  If any instances 
of noncomparability are identified, the Superintendent or designee shall promptly implement 
adjustments as needed to ensure comparability. 
 
Participation of Private School Students 
 
The district shall provide or contract to provide special educational services, instructional 
services (including evaluations to determine the progress being made in meeting students' 
academic needs), counseling, mentoring, one-on-one tutoring, or other Title I benefits to 
eligible private school students residing in a participating school attendance area. Such 
services and benefits shall be provided on an equitable basis in comparison to services and 
other benefits for public school students.  (20 USC 6320, 7881) 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(c) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
Program Evaluation 
 
The Board shall regularly monitor the progress of economically disadvantaged and low-
achieving students in Title I schools. During the annual evaluation of the district's progress 
toward achieving each goal identified in the LCAP or other planning document addressing 20 
USC 6312, the Board shall review disaggregated data on academic achievement, school 
attendance, and other outcomes for such students and shall ensure that strategies are revised 
as necessary to support continuous improvement. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 6190 - Evaluation of the Instructional Program) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
11503  Parent involvement programs in Title I schools 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
54420-54425  State Compensatory Education 
64001  Single plan for student achievement, consolidated application programs 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20 
6301  Program purpose 
6311-6322 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students, including: 
6312  Local educational agency plan 
6313  Eligibility of schools and school attendance areas; funding allocation 
6314  Title I schoolwide programs 
6315  Targeted assistance schools 
6318  Parent and family engagement 
6320  Participation of private school students 
6321  Comparability of services 
6333-6335 Grants to local educational agencies 
6391-6399  Education for migrant students 
7881  Participation of private school students 
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34 
200.1-200.73 Improving basic programs for disadvantaged students 

 
 
 
Management Resources:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6171(d) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Frequently Asked Questions About Title I Schoolwide Programs 
Local Control and Accountability Plan Federal Addendum Template 
Meeting Title I, Part A Comparability Requirements, October 2017 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Fiscal Changes and Equitable Services Requirements Under the Elementary and Secondary Education 
Act of 1965 (ESEA), as Amended by the Every Student Succeeds Act, Non-Regulatory Guidance, 
November 21, 2016 
Title I Fiscal Issues, Non-Regulatory Guidance, February 2008 
Designing Schoolwide Programs, Non-Regulatory Guidance, March 22, 2006 
Title I Services to Eligible Private School Students, October 17, 2003 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: https://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/sw 
U.S. Department of Education: http://www.ed.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: March 2018 



Instruction AR 6171(a) 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS 
 
 
Schoolwide Programs 
 
A school may operate a Title I schoolwide program in order to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the school when at least 40 percent of the students in the school attendance area, 
or at least 40 percent of the students enrolled in the school, are from low-income families.  
(20 USC 6314; 34 CFR 200.25) 
 
A school that does not meet these criteria may operate a Title I schoolwide program if it 
receives a waiver from the California Department of Education.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
Any school operating a schoolwide program shall develop a comprehensive plan with the 
involvement of parents/guardians, other members of the community to be served, and 
individuals who will carry out the plan, including teachers, principals, other school leaders, 
paraprofessionals present in the school, administrators (including administrators of other 
federal education programs), the district, tribes and tribal organizations present in the 
community, and, if appropriate, specialized instructional support personnel, technical 
assistance providers, school staff, secondary school students as applicable, and other 
individuals determined by the school.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
 
The schoolwide program plan shall be based on a comprehensive needs assessment of the 
entire school and shall be incorporated into a single plan for student achievement which also 
incorporates the plans required for other categorical programs included in the state's 
consolidated application.  (Education Code 64001; 20 USC 6314) 
 
(cf. 0420 - School Plans/Site Councils) 
 
The plan shall describe the strategies that the school will implement to address school needs, 
including a description of how such strategies will:  (20 USC 6314) 
 
1. Provide opportunities for all students, including economically disadvantaged students, 

ethnic subgroups, students with disabilities, and English learners, to meet state 
academic standards 

 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
 
2. Use methods and instructional strategies that strengthen the school's academic 

program, increase the amount and quality of learning time, and help provide an 
enriched and accelerated curriculum, which may include programs, activities, and 
courses necessary to provide a well-rounded education 

 
(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs) 
(cf. 6111 - School Calendar) 
(cf. 6112 - School Day) 



 AR 6171(b) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6177 - Summer Learning Programs) 
 
3. Address the needs of all students in the school, but particularly the needs of those at 

risk of not meeting state academic standards, through activities which may include 
the following: 
 
a. Counseling, school-based mental health programs, specialized instructional 

support services, mentoring services, and other strategies to improve students' 
skills outside the academic subject areas 

 
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services) 
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services) 
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams) 
 

b. Preparation for and awareness of opportunities for postsecondary education 
and the workforce, which may include career and technical education 
programs and broadening secondary school students' access to coursework to 
earn postsecondary credit while still in high school 

 
(cf. 6141.4 - International Baccalaureate Program) 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6172.1 - Concurrent Enrollment in College Classes) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
 

c. Implementation of a schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address problem 
behavior, and early intervention services, coordinated with similar activities 
and services carried out under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 
d. Professional development and other activities for teachers, paraprofessionals, 

and other school personnel to improve instruction and use of data from 
academic assessments and to recruit and retain effective teachers, particularly 
in high-need subjects 

 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4222 - Teacher Aides/Paraprofessionals) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
 

e. Strategies for assisting preschool children in the transition from early 
childhood education programs to local elementary school programs 

 
(cf. 5148.3 - Preschool/Early Childhood Education) 
 
 



 AR 6171(c) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
The plan shall also include a description of any applicable federal, state, and local programs 
that will be consolidated in the schoolwide program.  (20 USC 6314; 34 CFR 200.27) 
 
The plan and its implementation shall be regularly monitored and revised as necessary based 
on student needs to ensure that all students are provided opportunities to meet state academic 
standards.  (20 USC 6314) 
 
Targeted Assistance Programs 
 
Any school that receives Title I funds but does not operate a schoolwide program shall use 
Title I funds to provide services to eligible students who are failing, or most at risk of failing, 
to meet state academic standards. Students shall be identified on the basis of multiple, 
educationally related, objective criteria, except that students in preschool through grade 2 
shall be selected solely on the basis of criteria, including objective criteria, established by the 
district and supplemented by the school.  (20 USC 6315) 
 
Eligible students include those who are economically disadvantaged; students with 
disabilities; migrant students, including those who participated in a migrant education 
program pursuant to 20 USC 6391-6399 in the preceding two years; English learners; 
students who participated in a Head Start or state preschool program in the preceding two 
years; students in a local institution for neglected or delinquent children and youth or 
attending a community day program for such students; and homeless students.  (20 USC 
6315) 
 
Any targeted assistance program shall:  (20 USC 6315) 
 
1. Use program resources to help participating students meet state academic standards, 

which may include programs, activities, and academic courses necessary to provide a 
well-rounded education 

 
2. Use methods and instructional strategies that strengthen the academic program, 

through activities which may include: 
 
a. Expanded learning time, before- and after-school programs, and summer 

programs and opportunities 
 
b. A schoolwide tiered model to prevent and address behavior problems, and 

early intervention services, coordinated with similar activities and services 
carried out under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act 

 
3. Coordinate with and support the regular education program, which may include 

services to assist preschool students in the transition to elementary school programs 
 



 AR 6171(d) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
4. Provide professional development to teachers, principals, other school leaders, 

paraprofessionals, and, if appropriate, specialized instructional support personnel and 
other school personnel who work with eligible students in Title I programs or in the 
regular education program. The professional development shall be provided using 
funds from Title I and, to the extent practicable, other sources. 

 
5. Implement strategies to increase the involvement of parents/guardians of participating 

students 
 
6. If appropriate and applicable, coordinate and integrate federal, state, and local 

services and programs, such as programs supported by the Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act, violence prevention programs, nutrition programs, housing programs, 
Head Start programs, adult education programs, career technical education programs, 
and comprehensive or targeted support and improvement activities under 20 USC 
6311 

 
7. Provide assurances to the Superintendent or designee that the program will: 

 
a. Help provide an accelerated, high-quality curriculum 
 
b. Minimize the removal of students from the regular classroom during regular 

school hours for instruction supported by Title I funds 
 
c. On an ongoing basis, review the progress of participating students and revise 

the targeted assistance program, if necessary, to provide additional assistance 
to enable such students to meet state academic standards 

 
Participation of Private School Students 
 
Teachers and families of participating private school students shall have an opportunity to 
participate, on an equitable basis, in parent/guardian and family engagement activities and 
professional development pursuant to 20 USC 6318.  (20 USC 6320, 7881) 
 
Each year the Superintendent or designee shall contact officials of private schools with 
students who reside within district boundaries, regardless of whether the private school they 
attend is located within the district or whether or not those officials have previously indicated 
any interest in program participation, and invite them to a meeting to discuss the intent of 
Title I and the roles of public and private school officials. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall consult with appropriate private school officials, in a 
meaningful and timely manner, during the design and development of the district's Title I  
 
 



 AR 6171(e) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
programs, with the goal of reaching agreement on how to provide equitable and effective 
programs for eligible private school students. Such consultation shall occur before the district 
makes any decision that affects the opportunities of eligible private school students to 
participate in Title I programs and shall include consultation on issues such as the following:  
(20 USC 6320, 7881; 34 CFR 200.56) 
 
1. How the needs of private school students will be identified 
 
2. What services will be offered 
 
3. How, where, and by whom the services will be provided 
 
4. How the services will be academically assessed and how assessment results will be 

used to improve those services 
 
5. The size and scope of the equitable services to be provided to eligible private school 

students, the proportion of funds to be allocated for such services, and how that 
proportion of funds is determined 

 
6. The method or sources of data that are used to determine the number of students from 

low-income families in participating school attendance areas who attend private 
schools 

 
7. How and when the district will make decisions about the delivery of services to such 

students, including a thorough consideration and analysis of the views of private 
school officials on the provision of services through a third-party provider 

 
8. How, if the district disagrees with the views of private school officials on the 

provision of services through a third-party provider, the district will provide to private 
school officials a written analysis of the reasons that the district has chosen not to use 
a contractor 

 
9. Whether the district will provide services directly or through a separate government 

agency, consortium, entity, or third-party contractor 
 
10. Whether to provide services to eligible private school students by pooling funds or on 

a school-by-school basis 
 
11. When services will be provided, including the approximate time of day 
 
 
 
 



 AR 6171(f) 
 
 
TITLE I PROGRAMS  (continued) 
 
 
12. Whether to consolidate and use funds provided under Title I with other funds 

available for services to private school students 
 
If the district disagrees with the views of private school officials with respect to any of the 
above issues, the district shall provide the officials, in writing, the reasons that the district 
disagrees.  (20 USC 6320) 
 
Meetings between district and private school officials shall continue throughout 
implementation and assessment of services.  (20 USC 6320) 
 
The district shall maintain, and shall provide to the CDE, a written affirmation signed by 
officials of each participating private school that consultation has occurred. The affirmation 
shall provide the option for private school officials to indicate their belief that timely and 
meaningful consultation has not occurred or that the program design is not equitable with 
respect to private school students. If private school officials do not provide the affirmation 
within a reasonable period of time, the district shall send documentation to the CDE 
demonstrating that the consultation has, or attempts at such consultation have, taken place.  
(20 USC 6320) 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall also maintain copies of program descriptions, notices, 
funding allocations, and other communications and records pertaining to the provision of 
services to private school students. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: March 2018 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.1 

Subject: Developer Fee Increase, Res. #04-18-18 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: Education Code section 17620 et seq. and Government Code section 65995, 
authorize the governing board of any school district to charge a fee to developers 
to help offset the impact of additional students that new construction or expansion 
of existing structures brings to the school district.   
 

Highlights: On January the State Allocation Board increased the maximum fee to $3.79 per 
square foot for residential development and to $0.61 per square foot for 
commercial/industrial development.   The current rates are $3.48 per square foot 
for residential and $.056 for commercial.    The District collects 70% of this fee 
and Santa Rosa City School District collects the remaining 30% as per a previous 
agreement. 

Challenges: The District uses the Developer Fees to Pay down the loan whose proceeds were 
originally used to build Austin Creek Elementary School.   

Analysis: The District needs to maximize our developer fee rates in order to continue to be 
eligible for state bond funding.   The increase will help continue to pay for the loan 
referenced above. 

Next Steps: Notice of this increase has been advertised twice in the Press Democrat, and has 
also been provided to both the City and County planning departments.  The 
increase will be effective 60 days after the resolution is passed. 

 
Attachments:  Developer Fee Resolution #04-18-18 
 Developer Fee Study 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

1 
 

In the Matter of Adopting Development  

Fees on Residential and Commercial and 

Industrial Development to Fund the 

Construction or Reconstruction of School 

Facilities 

) 

) 

) 

) 

RESOLUTION  

NO. 04-18-18 

 

WHEREAS, Education Code section 17620 et seq. and Government Code section 65995, 

authorize the governing board of any school district to levy a fee, charge, dedication, or other 

form of requirement (hereinafter “fee” or “fees”), in the maximum amounts specified therein, 

against residential, commercial and industrial development projects occurring within the 

boundaries of the district (hereinafter “development”), for the purpose of funding the 

construction or reconstruction of school facilities; and 

 WHEREAS, this Board has previously resolved to levy fees on development projects 

pursuant to this authority; and 

 WHEREAS, Government Code section 65995 provides that the maximum fees which 

may be levied on development projects shall be increased in 2000 and every two years thereafter 

according to the adjustment for inflation set forth in the statewide cost index for Class B 

construction as determined by the State Allocation Board “SAB” and to become effective at its 

January meeting; and 

 WHEREAS, the SAB at its January 24, 2018 meeting, set the maximum fee to $3.79 per 

square foot for residential development and to $0.61 per square foot for commercial/industrial 

development; and 

 WHEREAS, the new Fees are an increase of what is currently being collected by Rincon 

Valley Union School District.  A copy of the Study is attached hereto, marked Exhibit "A," and 

incorporated herein by this reference; and  

WHEREAS, in the judgment of this Board it is necessary and appropriate, and in the best 

interests of the District and its students, to levy fees for the purpose of funding the construction 

or reconstruction of school facilities necessary to serve the students generated by new 

development occurring within the District; 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

2 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, ORDERED AND FOUND by this Board as 

follows: 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

2. This Board approves and adopts the Study and recommendation of the District 

Superintendent, or designee, to levy fees in the maximum amounts authorized on new residential, 

commercial and industrial development that occurs within the District, and based upon the Study 

and recommendations, and upon all other written and oral information presented to this Board 

concerning this matter, makes the following findings: 

A. The purpose of the fees is to finance the construction and reconstruction of 

school facilities in order to provide adequate school facilities for the students of the District who 

will be generated by new residential and commercial/industrial development taking place in the 

District;  

B. The construction or reconstruction of school facilities is necessary to create 

updated, adequate, appropriate classroom space and academic support facilities for the following 

reasons: 

  (1) New residential and commercial and industrial development is 

projected to occur within the District within the next five years which will generate additional 

school-aged children; 

  (2) Additional students projected from new development will impact and 

increase the need of the District to create updated, adequate, appropriate classroom space and 

academic support facilities.   

  (3) Existing school facilities in the District are in need of, or will be in 

need of, reconstruction or modernization.  New development will generate students who will 

attend District schools and be housed in existing facilities.  These students cannot be housed 

without upgrading existing school facilities, ultimately making reconstruction or modernization 

of such facilities necessary; 

  (4) Both existing students and new students generated by future 

development occurring within the district will need to be housed and served in existing school 

facilities, as well as new and additional school facilities necessary to serve the projected student 

population. 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

3 
 

  (5) As commercial and industrial development occurs, new jobs are 

created.  Many of the people hired for these jobs move into the community, thereby increasing 

the need for residential development which generates additional students adding to the impact on 

the school facilities of the District.  The maximum fee that can be levied against residential 

development is insufficient to cover the full cost of the new or reconstructed school facilities 

needed by the district to house students generated from new residential development, and 

therefore justifies a separate fee against commercial and industrial development in the maximum 

amount allowed by law.  

C. Without the addition of new school facilities and/or the reconstruction and 

modernization of existing facilities, the District will be unable to adequately house and serve  

additional students generated by new development which will impair or adversely impact the 

normal functioning of educational programs and services of the District; 

D. The District has no, or limited revenue sources available for funding the 

construction or reconstruction of school facilities attributable to new development; 

E. The fees adopted herein bear a reasonable relationship to the need for, and 

the estimated cost of, the construction or reconstruction of school facilities attributable to the 

type of new development on which the fees will be imposed;  

F. The cost of providing for the construction and/or reconstruction of school 

facilities attributable to the type of new development occurring in the District will exceed the 

revenues reasonably anticipated from fees; 

G. Existing students will benefit from the use of developer fees for new school 

facilities.  Conversely, students generated from new development will occupy existing school 

facilities and will benefit from the use of fees to reconstruct or modernize those facilities.  

Therefore, it is appropriate to use developer fees for existing facilities to the extent of the 

estimated use of such facilities by students generated by new development.   

3. Based on the foregoing, this Board hereby determines: 

  A. To levy a fee on any new or on other residential development, as described 

in Education Code § 17620(a), occurring within the District, in the maximum amount currently 

authorized by law of $3.79 per square foot of assessable space as such space is defined in 

Government Code § 65995(b)(1). 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

4 
 

  B. To levy a fee on categories of new commercial or industrial development, 

as described in Education Code § 17620(a), occurring within the boundaries of the District, in 

the maximum amount currently authorized by law of $0.61 per square foot of chargeable covered 

and enclosed space as such space is defined in Government Code § 65995(b)(2), except for 

Rental Self-Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.03 per square foot. 

4. The fee provisions of this Resolution are not exclusive, and this Board 

specifically reserves authority to undertake other or additional methods to finance school 

facilities in partial or complete substitution for, or in conjunction with, the fee provisions set 

forth therein, as authorized by law.  This Board reserves the authority, in its discretion, to 

substitute the dedication of land or other form of requirement in lieu of fees to be levied pursuant 

to this Resolution. 

5. The District intends to utilize fees for new construction of school facilities, 

reconstruction or modernization of existing facilities, purchase, lease or lease-purchase of 

portable or relocatable classrooms and related facilities as interim school facilities to house 

students pending the construction of permanent facilities, or the purchase, lease or lease-purchase 

of land for school facilities.  This includes all associated costs to plan and execute school 

facilities projects including, but not limited to, architectural and engineering costs, testing and 

inspection costs, permits and plan checking, and other administrative costs related to the 

provision of school facilities.  Construction, reconstruction or modernization of school facilities 

includes, but is not limited to, classrooms and equipment and furnishings for classrooms, and all 

other reasonable and customary auxiliary, accessory, adjunct, or other supportive facilities for 

classrooms such as restrooms, gymnasiums, administrative offices, cafeterias, libraries, multi-

purpose rooms, maintenance and storage rooms, walkways, overhangs, parking lots, landscaping, 

and all other similar facilities.  Finally, fees may be used for studies and reports necessary to 

make the findings and determinations required by law for the collection of fees which may 

include the school facilities needs analysis described in Government Code section 65995.6, for 

reimbursement of administrative costs to collect fees, and for such other purposes consistent with 

the purpose and intent of this Resolution, or authorized by law, or deemed necessary or 

appropriate by this governing board. 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

5 
 

6. The Superintendent, or designee, is authorized to certify compliance of a 

particular development project with the fee or other requirement levied by this Board, or to 

certify where appropriate that a project is fully or partially exempt from fees in appropriate 

circumstances.  Any certification of compliance for a particular residential construction project is 

expressly conditioned upon the continued satisfaction by that project of the requirements for that 

certification and failure to meet those requirements in the future may result in the revocation of 

such certification and enforcement of the appropriate fee requirement for the project. 

7. Pursuant to Education Code § 17621(c), this board determines that the fee levied 

on residential development is not subject to the restrictions set forth in subdivision (a) of 

Government Code § 66007 and, pursuant to Education Code § 17620(b), shall be collected at the 

time of issuance of the building or similar permit required for a particular development project. 

8. Pursuant to Government Code section 66001(d), the Superintendent or the 

District’s designee shall review the Fund established pursuant to this Resolution for the fifth 

fiscal year following the first deposit of fees in the Fund, and every five years thereafter, and 

with respect to any portion of a fee remaining unspent five or more years after deposit, the 

Superintendent or the District’s designee shall report to this Board which shall either make the 

findings required by section 66001(d) for said unspent fees, or direct the refund of such fees in 

the manner provided in 66001(e) and (f). 

9. Pursuant to Government Code section 66001(e), the Superintendent or designee, 

shall advise this board whenever it appears sufficient fees have been collected to complete 

financing on incomplete public improvements that have been identified in the Study.  This board 

shall then make a determination whether or not sufficient fees have been collected for a 

particular project, and when a determination is made by this board that sufficient fees have been 

collected, this Board shall identify, within 180 days of the determination, an approximate date by 

which the construction of the public improvement will be commenced, or shall refund the fees as 

provided in said section, unless the provisions of section 66001(f) are deemed to apply. 

10. The fees adopted herein are effective sixty (60) days after the approval of this 

Resolution unless the School Board states this is an urgency due to the significant needs and 

impacts of the impending new housing developments and there is a 4/5ths majority vote, to cause 

that the imposition of fees shall take effect thirty (30) days after the date of this Resolution. 



BEFORE THE GOVERNING BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA 
 
 

6 
 

11. The Superintendent or the District’s designee is hereby authorized and directed to 

do the following: 

  A. As required by Government Code § 66006(a), to establish a separate 

capital facilities fund (herein “Fund”) into which the fees received by the District shall be 

deposited and shall not be commingled with other revenues and funds of the District.  The fees, 

and any interest earned thereon, shall be expended only for the purpose of funding the 

construction or reconstruction of school facilities or such other purposes as are permitted by law 

and authorized by this Board. 

  B. If applicable, negotiate agreements with other school district(s) with 

common territorial boundaries ensuring that the total fees collected by each school district does 

not exceed the maximum fees allowed by law for residential and commercial and industrial 

development and providing for an equitable division of the fees with such other school 

district(s).  As required by Education Code section § 17623(a), copies of such agreement(s) shall 

be transmitted to the State Allocation Board, and shall also be sent to any county or city planning 

agency which is calculating or collecting fees on behalf of the District. 

  C. Take such further action as is necessary or appropriate to carry out the 

purpose and intent of this Resolution. 

I, ________________, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union 

School District, do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was proposed by Board member 

_____________________, seconded by Board member ____________________, and was duly 

passed and adopted, by vote of said Board, at an official and public meeting thereof held on 

________________, 2018, as follows: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

 

Dated:             

       Secretary, Board of Trustees 



 

2018 DEVELOPER FEE JUSTIFICATION STUDY  
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
DR. TONY ROEHRICK, ED.D. 

SUPERINTENDENT 

SCHOOLWORKS, INC. 
8331 Sierra College Blvd., #221 

Roseville, CA 95661 

 
PHONE: 916-733-0402 

WWW.SCHOOLWORKSGIS.COM 
 
 

FEBRUARY 2018 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 Executive Summary ......................................................................................................1 

 
 Background ....................................................................................................................2 

 

 Purpose and Intent ........................................................................................................3 

  Burden Nexus .....................................................................................................3  

  Cost Nexus ..........................................................................................................3 

  Benefit Nexus ......................................................................................................3 

 

 Enrollment Projections .................................................................................................4 

  Student Generation Factor ..................................................................................5 

  New Residential Development Projections .........................................................6 

 

 Existing Facility Capacity .............................................................................................7 

  Classroom Loading Standards ...........................................................................7 

  Existing Facility Capacity ....................................................................................8 

  Unhoused Students by State Housing Standards ..............................................9 

 

 Calculation of Development’s Fiscal Impact on Schools .........................................10 

  School Facility Construction Costs .....................................................................10 

  Reconstruction/Modernization Costs ..................................................................11 

  Impact of Residential Development ....................................................................13 

  Impact of Other Residential Development ..........................................................14 

  Impact of Commercial/Industrial Development ...................................................14 

  Employees per Square Foot of Commercial Development ................................15 

  Students per Employee .......................................................................................15 

  School Facilities Cost per Student ......................................................................16 

  Residential Offset ................................................................................................16 

  Net Cost per Square Foot ...................................................................................17 

  Verifying the Sufficiency of the Development Impact .........................................17 

 
 District Map ....................................................................................................................18 

 

 Conclusion .....................................................................................................................19 

  Burden Nexus .....................................................................................................19  

  Cost Nexus ..........................................................................................................19 

  Benefit Nexus ......................................................................................................19 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018  

Appendices 

 

 SAB 50-01 -  Enrollment Certification/Projection 
 

 Census Data 
 

 Use of Developer Fees 
 

 Site Development Costs 
 

 Index Adjustment on the Assessment for Development – State Allocation Board 
Meeting of January 24, 2018 

 

 Annual Adjustment to School Facility Program Grants 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

 

Page 1 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 

This Developer Fee Justification Study demonstrates that the Rincon Valley Union School 

District requires its share of the full statutory impact fee to accommodate the impact from 

development activity. 

 

A fee of $3.48 per square foot for residential construction and a fee of $0.56 per square foot 

for commercial/industrial construction is currently assessed on applicable permits pulled in 

the District.  The new fee amounts are $3.79 per square foot for residential construction and 

$0.61* per square foot for commercial/industrial construction.  This proposed increase 

represents $0.31 per square foot and $0.05 per square foot for residential and 

commercial/industrial construction, respectively.  The Districts share of the developer fees is 

70%. 

 

The following table shows the impact of the new fee amounts: 

 

Table 1 

Rincon Valley Union

Developer Fee Collection Rates

Totals Previous New Change

Residential $3.48 $3.79 $0.31

Commercial/Ind. $0.56 $0.61 $0.05

District Share: 70.00%

Net Impact Previous New Change

Residential $2.44 $2.65 $0.21

Commercial/Ind. $0.39 $0.43 $0.04  

 

*except for Rental Self-Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.03 per square foot is justified. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 2 

 

 

Background 

 
Education Code Section 17620 allows school districts to assess fees on new residential and 

commercial construction within their respective boundaries.  These fees can be collected 

without special city or county approval, to fund the construction of new school facilities 

necessitated by the impact of residential and commercial development activity.  In addition, 

these fees can also be used to fund the reconstruction of school facilities to accommodate 

students generated from new development projects.  Fees are collected immediately prior to 

the time of the issuance of a building permit by the City or the County. 

 

As enrollment increases, additional school facilities will be needed to house the growth in the 

student population.  Because of the high cost associated with constructing school facilities 

and the District’s limited budget, outside funding sources are required for future school 

construction.  State and local funding sources for the construction and/or reconstruction of 

school facilities are limited. 

 

The authority sited in Education Code Section 17620 states in part “… the governing board 

of any school district is authorized to levy a fee, charge, dedication or other form of 

requirement against any development project for the construction or reconstruction of school 

facilities.”  The legislation originally established the maximum fee rates at $1.50 per square 

foot for residential construction and $0.25 per square foot for commercial/industrial 

construction.  Government Code Section 65995 provides for an inflationary increase in the 

fees every two years based on the changes in the Class B construction index.  As a result of 

these adjustments, the fees authorized by Education Code 17620 are currently $3.79 per 

square foot of residential construction and $0.61 per square foot of commercial or industrial 

construction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 3 

 

 

Purpose and Intent 

 

Prior to levying developer fees, a district must demonstrate and document that a reasonable 

relationship exists between the need for new or reconstructed school facilities and 

residential, commercial and industrial development.  The justification for levying fees is 

required to address three basic links between the need for facilities and new development.  

These links or nexus are: 

 

Burden Nexus:  A district must identify the number of students anticipated to be generated by 

residential, commercial and industrial development.  In addition, a district shall identify the 

school facility and cost impact of these students. 

 

Cost Nexus:  A district must demonstrate that the fees to be collected from residential, 

commercial and industrial development will not exceed the cost of providing school facilities 

for the students to be generated from the development. 

 

Benefit Nexus:  A district must show that the construction or reconstruction of school facilities 

to be funded by the collection of developer fees will benefit the students generated by 

residential, commercial and industrial development. 

 

The purpose of this report is to document if a reasonable relationship exists between 

residential, commercial and industrial development and the need for new and/or modernized 

facilities in the Rincon Valley Union School District. 

 

Following in this Study will be figures indicating the current enrollment and the projected 

development occurring within the attendance boundaries of the Rincon Valley Union School 

District.  The projected enrollment will then be loaded into existing facilities to the extent of 

available space.  Thereafter, the needed facilities will be determined and an estimated cost 

will be assigned.  The cost of the facilities will then be compared to the area of residential, 

commercial and industrial development to determine the amount of developer fees justified.   



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 4 

 

 

Enrollment Projections 

 

In 2017/2018 the District’s total enrollment (CBEDS) was 3,442 students.  The enrollment by 

grade level is shown here in Table 2. 

 

Table 2 
 

Rincon Valley Union

CURRENT ENROLLMENT

Grade 2017/2018

TK/K 472

1 424

2 433

3 443

4 446

5 423

6 494

TK-6 Total 3,135

7 141

8 166

7-8 Total 307

TK-8 Total 3,442  
 

 

This data will be the basis for the enrollment projections which will be presented later after a 

review of the development projections and the student generation factors. 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 5 

 

 

Student Generation Factor 

In determining the impact of new development, the District is required to show how many 

students will be generated from the new developments.  In order to ensure that new 

development is paying only for the impact of those students that are being generated by new 

homes and businesses, the student generation factor is applied to the number of new 

housing units to determine the development-related impact.   

 

The student generation factor identifies the number of students per housing unit and 

provides a link between residential construction projects and projections of enrollment.  The 

State-wide factor used by the Office of Public School Construction is 0.50 for grades TK-8.  

For the purposes of this Study we will use the local factors to determine the students 

generated from new housing developments.  This was done by comparing the number of 

housing units in the School District to the number of students in the School District as of the 

2010 Census.  Table 3 shows the student generation factors for the various grade groupings. 

 

Table 3 
 

Rincon Valley Union

STUDENT GENERATION FACTORS

Grades Students per Household

TK-6 0.1925

7-8 0.0188

Total 0.2113  
 

When using the Census data to determine the average district student yield rate, it is not 

possible to determine which students were living in multi-family units versus single-family 

units.  Therefore, only the total average yield rate is shown.  The Census data does indicate 

that 65.7% of the total housing units within the district boundaries are single family units.  It is 

reasonable to assume that the construction of new housing units would be similar to the 

current housing stock, which was confirmed by the various planning departments within the 

school district boundaries, and therefore the overall student generation rate will be used to 

determine student yields from the projected developments. 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 6 

 

 

New Residential Development Projections 

The Rincon Valley Union School District has experienced an average new residential 

construction rate of approximately 40 units per year over the past two years.  This was 

determined by reviewing the residential permits pulled and school development impact fees 

paid to the District.  After contacting the various city planning departments within the school 

district boundaries, it was verified that using the same average residential construction rate 

over the past four years for the next five years is a reasonable assumption.  Projecting the 

average rate forward, we would expect that 200 units of residential housing will be built 

within the District boundaries over the next five years. 

 

To determine the impact of residential development, an enrollment projection is prepared.  

Applying the student generation factor of 0.2113 to the projected 200 units of residential 

housing, we expect that 42 students will be generated from the new residential construction 

over the next five years.  This includes 38 elementary school students and 4 middle school 

students.   

 

The District is allowed to use this development-based enrollment projection for the purposes 

of this Study.  This is utilized as the cost basis for development impact throughout this Study, 

unless otherwise noted. 

 
Table 4 

 

Rincon Valley Union

FIVE YEAR ENROLLMENT PROJECTIONS

Current Development Projected

Grades Enrollment Projection Enrollment

TK to 6 3,135 38 3,173

7 to 8 307 4 311

Totals 3,442 42 3,484  
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 7 

 

 

Existing Facility Capacity 

 

To determine the need for additional school facilities, the capacity of the existing facilities must 

be identified and compared to current and anticipated enrollments.  The District’s existing 

building capacity will be calculated using the State classroom loading standards shown in 

Table 6.  The following types of “support-spaces” necessary for the conduct of the District’s 

comprehensive educational program, are not included as “teaching stations,” commonly known 

as “classrooms” to the public: 

Table 5 
 

List of Core and Support Facilities 
 

Library    Resource Specialist 
Multipurpose Room  Gymnasium 
Office Area   Lunch Room    
Staff Workroom  P.E. Facilities 
 
 

Because the District requires these types of support facilities as part of its existing facility and 

curriculum standards at its schools, new development’s impact must not materially or 

adversely affect the continuance of these standards.  Therefore, new development cannot 

require that the District house students in these integral support spaces.   

 

Classroom Loading Standards 

The following maximum classroom loading factors are used to determine teaching-station 

“capacity,” in accordance with the State legislation and the State School Building Program.  

These capacity calculations are also used in preparing and filing the baseline school capacity 

statement with the Office of Public School Construction.   

 
Table 6 

 

State Classroom Loading Standards 
 

TK/Kindergarten  25 Students/Classroom 

1st-3rd Grades  25 Students/Classroom 

4th-6th Grades  25 Students/Classroom 

7th-8th Grades  27 Students/Classroom 

Non-Severe Special Ed 13 Students/Classroom 

 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 8 

 

 

Existing Facility Capacity 

The State determines the baseline capacity by either loading all permanent teaching stations, 

plus a maximum number of portables, equal to 25% of the number of permanent classrooms or 

by loading all permanent classrooms and only portables that are owned or have been leased 

for over 5 years.  As allowed by law and required by the State, facility capacities are calculated 

by identifying the number of teaching stations at each campus.  All qualified teaching stations 

were included in the calculation of the capacities at the time the initial inventory was 

calculated.  To account for activity and changes since the baseline was established in 1998/99, 

the student grants (which represent the seats added either by new schools or additions to 

existing schools) for new construction projects funded by OPSC have been added.  Using 

these guidelines, the District’s current State calculated capacity is shown in Table 7. 

 

Table 7 
 

Rincon Valley Union

Summary of Existing Facility Capacity

Total State State Total

Permanent Portable Chargeable Chargeable Loading Funded State

School Facility Classrooms Classrooms Portables Classrooms Factor Projects Capacity

Grades TK-6 123 28 26 149 25 0 3,725

Grades 7-8 0 6 6 6 27 0 162

Special Ed 4 0 0 4 13 0 52

Totals 127 34 32 159 0 3,939  
 
 

This table shows a basic summary of the form and procedures used by OPSC (Office of Public 

School Construction) to determine the capacity of a school district.  There was a total of 127 

permanent classrooms in the District when the baseline was established.  In addition, there 

were 34 portable classrooms.  However, OPSC regulations state that if the number of 

portables exceeds 25% of the permanent classrooms, then the maximum number of portables 

to be counted in the baseline capacity is 25% of the permanent classrooms.  Therefore, the 

chart shows the chargeable portables as 32 which is 25% of the permanent classroom count.  

This results in a total classroom count of 159 and is referred to as the chargeable classrooms 

since it accounts for the fact that some of the portable were not included in the total.  This is 

done to account for the fact that portables are typically considered to be temporary, especially 

when the total number exceeds 25% of the permanent classrooms.   

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 9 

 

 

To determine the total capacity based on State standards, the capacity of the chargeable 

classrooms is multiplied by the State loading standards and then the capacity of the projects 

completed since 1998/99 (when the baseline was established) are added based on the State 

funded new construction projects. As Table 7 shows, the total State capacity of the District 

facilities is 3,939 students. 

 

Unhoused Students by State Housing Standards  

This next table compares the capacity with the space needed to determine if there is 

available space for new students from the projected developments.  The space needed was 

determined by reviewing the historic enrollments over the past four years along with the 

projected enrollment in five years to determine the maximum seats needed to house the 

students within the existing homes.  The seats needed were determined individually for each 

grade grouping.  The projected enrollment in this analysis did not include the impact of any 

new housing units.   

 

Table 8 
 

Rincon Valley Union

Summary of Available District Capacity

State Space Available

School Facility Capacity Needed Capacity

Grades TK-6 3,725 3,342 383

Grades 7-8 162 345 (183)

Special Ed 52 0 52

Totals 3,939 3,687 252  
 
 

The District capacity of 3,939 is more than the space needed of 3,687, assuming the existing 

facilities remain in sufficient condition to maintain existing levels of service.  The difference is 

252 students.  Since the enrollment space needed for grades 7-8 exceeds the District capacity, 

there is no excess capacity available to house those students from new development. 

 

 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 10 

 

 

Calculation of Development’s Fiscal Impact on Schools 

 

This section of the Study will demonstrate that a reasonable relationship exists between 

residential, commercial/industrial development and the need for adequate school facilities in 

the Rincon Valley Union School District.  To the extent this relationship exists, the District is 

justified in levying developer fees as authorized by Education Code Section 17620. 

 

School Facility Construction Costs 

For the purposes of estimating the cost of building schools, we have used the State School 

Building Program funding allowances.  These amounts are shown in Table 9.  In addition to 

the basic construction costs, there are site acquisition costs of $100,000 per acre and 

service-site, utilities, off-site and general site development costs which are also shown in 

Table 9. 

Table 9 
 

NEW CONSTRUCTION COSTS

Per Student

Grade Base Grant Fire Alarms Fire Sprinklers Total

TK-6 $23,134 $28 $388 $23,550

7-8 $24,468 $38 $460 $24,966

Site Acreage Needs Projected Equivalent Site

Typical Average Unhoused Sites Acres

Grade Acres Students Students Needed Needed

TK-6 10 600 0 0.00 0.00

7-8 20 800 4 0.01 0.10

TOTAL 0.10

General Site Development Allowance

Allowance/

Grade Acres Acre Base Cost % Allowance Added Cost Total Cost

TK-6 0.00 $37,654 $0 6% $0 $0

7-8 0.10 $37,654 $3,765 6% $5,992 $9,757

Totals 0.10 $9,757

Site Acquisition & Development Summary

Acres Site

To Be Land Total Development Site General Site Total Site

Grade Bought Cost/Acre Land Cost Cost/Acre Dev. Cost Development Development

TK-6 0.00 $100,000 $0 $248,896 $0 $0 $0

7-8 0.10 $100,000 $10,000 $234,162 $23,416 $9,757 $33,173

Totals 0.10 $10,000 $23,416 $9,757 $33,173

Note:  The grant amounts used are twice those shown in the appendix to represent the full cost of the facility needs

          and not just the standard State funding share of 50%.  



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 11 

 

 

Reconstruction/Modernization Costs 

In addition to any new facilities needed, there is also a need to reconstruct or modernize 

existing facilities in order to maintain the existing levels of service as students from new 

development continue to arrive in the District’s facilities.  In order to generate capacity, it may 

also be necessary to reopen closed school facilities. Such reopening often requires 

reconstruction in order to provide the District’s existing level of service.  For purposes of this 

report, the analysis of modernization/reconstruction includes the possible reopening and 

refurbishing of closed school facilities.   

 

California has made a significant investment in school facilities through grants provided to help 

extend the useful life of public schools. The State’s largest funding source for public school 

modernization projects, the School Facilities Program (SFP), requires a minimum local funding 

contribution of 40% of SFP-eligible costs.  The State may provide up to 60% of the eligible 

costs at those times that State funding is available.  However, SFP modernization grants 

frequently, if not usually, fall short of providing 60% of the actual costs for major 

modernizations.  In the best cases, developer fees can help meet the District’s required 40% 

local share.  In many cases, developer fees may be necessary to supplement both the State’s 

and the school district’s contribution to a project.   

 

Buildings generate eligibility for State reconstruction/modernization funding once they reach 

an age of 25 years old for permanent buildings and 20 years old for portables.   

 

The usable life of school facilities is an important consideration in determining district needs 

into the future.  The specific time when the projected residential developments will be built 

cannot be precisely predicted.  Some new homes may be immediately occupied by families 

with school aged children, while others may be immediately occupied who will have school-

aged children in five to ten years.  As a result of these variables, for each new home, the 

District must be prepared to house the students residing there for an extended period of 

time.  Students generated by the next five years of development will need to be 

accommodated in District schools for a significant amount of time that could exceed twenty 

years.  Thus, the District will need to ensure that it has facilities in place for future decades. 

 

As evidenced by the State Building program’s use of the criteria that buildings older than 

twenty-five years (and portables older than twenty years) are eligible for modernization 

funds, school buildings require reconstruction/modernization to remain in use for students 

beyond the initial twenty to twenty-five years of life of those buildings.  To the extent that the 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 12 

 

 

District has buildings older than twenty to twenty-five years old, the point will be reached 

without reconstruction/modernization that those buildings will no longer be able to provide 

the existing level of service to students, and may, in some circumstances, need to be closed 

entirely for health and safety reasons.  However, because of the new development, 

reconstruction/modernization must occur in order to have available school housing for the 

new students from development. 

 

The following table shows the District’s eligibility for modernization/reconstruction funding in 

the State Building program.   

 

Table 10 

Modernization Project Needs

State District Project

School Elem Middle Spec Ed Funding Share Total

Madrone Elementary 75 0 0 $390,570 $260,380 $650,950

Sequoia Elementary 97 0 1 $516,201 $344,134 $860,335

Binkley Elementary 185 0 0 $898,227 $598,818 $1,497,045

Whited Elementary 375 0 0 $1,754,670 $1,169,780 $2,924,450

TOTALS 732 0 1 $3,559,668 $2,373,112 $5,932,779

Eligible Modernization Grants

 
 

Table 11 

New Development Share of Modernization Costs

Eligible

Modernization

Grade Grants Students $/Student Amount

TK-6 732 38 $23,550 $894,900

7-8 0 0 $24,966 $0

Totals 732 38 $894,900

Includes students from new developments not housed in new facilities.

Amounts based on State OPSC budgets for new construction projects.

New Development

 
 

 

This data is used to show that there are significant needs within the school District to invest 

in its existing facilities.  Without modernizing its schools, the District could be forced to begin 

closing some of its buildings and schools. 

 

To accurately account for the amount of the modernization projects attributed to the impact 

of new developments, only the students from new developments that were not already 

housed in new facilities are included in the net needs for modernization projects.  As can be 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 13 

 

 

seen in the charts, the net modernization needs due to new development impact are much 

less than the total modernization needs. 

 

Impact of New Residential Development 

This next table compares the development-related enrollment to the available district 

capacity for each grade level and then multiplies the unhoused students by the new school 

construction costs to determine the total school facility costs related to the impact of new 

residential housing developments.   

 

In addition, the State provides that new construction projects can include the costs for site 

acquisition and development, including appraisals, surveys and title reports.  The District 

needs to acquire 0.1 acres to meet the needs of the students projected from the new 

developments.  Therefore, the costs for site acquisition and development of the land have 

been included in the total impact due to new development. 

 

Finally, the modernization needs are included for the students not housed in new facilities 

but who would be housed in existing facilities that are eligible for and need to be modernized 

to provide adequate housing and to maintain the existing level of service for the students 

generated by development.  

Table 12 
 

Rincon Valley Union

Summary of Residential Impact

Total

School Development Available Net Construction Cost Facility

Facility Projection Space Unhoused Per Student Costs

Elementary 38 383 0 $23,550 $0

Middle 4 0 4 $24,966 $99,864

Site Purchase:  0.1 acres $10,000

Site Development: $33,173

New Construction Needs: $143,037

Modernization Needs: $894,900

TOTAL NEEDS: $1,037,937

Average cost per student: $24,713  



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 14 

 

 

The total need for school facilities based solely on the impact of the 200 new housing units 

projected over the next five years totals $1,037,937.  To determine the impact per square 

foot of residential development, this amount is divided by the total square feet of the 

projected developments.  As calculated from the historic Developer Fee Permits, the average 

size home built has averaged 1,835 square feet.  The total area for 200 new homes would 

therefore be 367,000 square feet.  The total residential fee needed to be able to collect 

$1,037,937 would be $2.83 per square foot. 

 

Impact of Other Residential Development 

In addition to new residential development projects that typically include new single family 

homes and new multi-family units, the District can also be impacted by additional types of 

new development projects.  These include but are not limited to redevelopment projects, 

additions to existing housing units, and replacement of existing housing units with new 

housing units.   

 

These development projects are still residential projects and therefore it is reasonable to 

assume they would have the same monetary impact per square foot as the new residential 

development projects.  However, the net impact is reduced due to the fact that there was a 

previous residential building in its place.  Therefore, the development impact fees should 

only be charged for other residential developments if the new building(s) exceed the square 

footage area of the previous building(s).  If the new building is larger than the existing 

building, then it is reasonable to assume that additional students could be generated by the 

project.  The project would only pay for the development impact fees for the net increase in 

assessable space generated by the development project.  Education Code 17620(a) allows 

for an exemption from development impact fees for any additions to existing residential 

structures that are 500 square feet or less. 

 

Impact of Commercial/Industrial Development 

There is a correlation between the growth of commercial/industrial firms/facilities within a 

community and the generation of school students within most business service areas.  Fees 

for commercial/industrial can only be imposed if the residential fees will not fully mitigate the 

cost of providing school facilities to students from new development. 

  

The approach utilized in this section is to apply statutory standards, U.S. Census employment 

statistics, and local statistics to determine the impact of future commercial/industrial development 

projects on the District.  Many of the factors used in this analysis were taken from the U.S. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 15 

 

 

Census, which remains the most complete and authoritative source of information on the 

community in addition to the “1990 SanDAG Traffic Generators Report”.   

 

Employees per Square Foot of Commercial Development 

Results from a survey published by the San Diego Association of Governments “1990 San 

DAG Traffic Generators” are used to establish numbers of employees per square foot of 

building area to be anticipated in new commercial or industrial development projects.  The 

average number of workers per 1,000 square feet of area ranges from 0.06 for Rental Selt-

Storage to 4.79 for Standard Commercial Offices.  The generation factors from that report are 

shown in the following table. 

Table 13 
 

Commercial/Industrial Average Square Foot Employees Per Average

Category Per Employee Square Foot

Banks 354 0.00283

Community Shopping Centers 652 0.00153

Neighborhood Shopping Centers 369 0.00271

Industrial Business Parks 284 0.00352

Industrial Parks 742 0.00135

Rental Self Storage 15541 0.00006

Scientific Research & Development 329 0.00304

Lodging 882 0.00113

Standard Commercial Office 209 0.00479

Large High Rise Commercial Office 232 0.00431

Corporate Offices 372 0.00269

Medical Offices 234 0.00427

Source: 1990 SanDAG Traffic Generators report  

 

Students per Employee 

The number of students per employee is determined by using the 2008-2012 American 

Community Survey 5-Year Estimates for the District.  There were 16,412 employees and 

16,092 homes in the District.  This represents a ratio of 1.0199 employees per home. 

 

There were 3,400 school age children attending the District in 2010.  This is a ratio of 0.2072 

students per employee.  This ratio, however, must be reduced by including only the percentage 

of employees that worked in their community of residence (29.5%), because only those 

employees living in the District will impact the District’s school facilities with their children.  The 

actual ratio of students per employee in the District is 0.0611. 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 16 

 

 

School Facilities Cost per Student 

State costs for housing commercially generated students are the same as those used for 

residential construction.  The cost factors used to assess the impact from commercial 

development projects are contained in Table 12. 

 

Residential Offset 

When additional employees are generated in the District as a result of new 

commercial/industrial development, fees will also be charged on the residential units 

necessary to provide housing for the employees living in the District.  To prevent a commercial 

or industrial development from paying for the portion of the impact that will be covered by the 

residential fee, this amount has been calculated and deducted from each category.  The 

residential offset amount is calculated by multiplying the following factors together and dividing 

by 1,000 (to convert from cost per 1,000 square feet to cost per square foot). 

 Employees per 1,000 square feet (varies from a low of 0.06 for rental Selt-Storage to a 

high of 4.79 for office building). 

 Percentage of employees that worked in their community of residence (29.5 percent).  

 Housing units per employee (0.9805).  This was derived from the 2008-2012 ACS 5 

Year Estimates data for the District, which indicates there were 16,092 housing units 

and 16,412 employees. 

 Percentage of employees that will occupy new housing units (75 percent). 

 Average square feet per dwelling unit (1,835).  

 Residential fee charged by the District ($2.65 (70% of $3.79) per square foot).  

 Average cost per student was determined in Table 12. 

 

The following table shows the calculation of the school facility costs generated by a square foot 

of new commercial/industrial development for each category of development. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 17 

 

 

Table 14 

Rincon Valley Union

Summary of Commercial and Industrial Uses

Employees Students Students Average Cost Residential Net Cost

per 1,000 per per Cost per per offset per per

Type Sq. Ft. Employee 1,000 Sq. Ft. Student Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft. Sq. Ft.

Banks 2.83 0.0611 0.173 $24,713 $4.27 $2.99 $1.29

Community Shopping Centers 1.53 0.0611 0.094 $24,713 $2.31 $1.62 $0.69

Neighborhood Shopping Centers 2.71 0.0611 0.166 $24,713 $4.09 $2.86 $1.23

Industrial Business Parks 3.52 0.0611 0.215 $24,713 $5.32 $3.72 $1.60

Industrial Parks 1.35 0.0611 0.083 $24,713 $2.04 $1.43 $0.61

Rental Self Storage 0.06 0.0611 0.004 $24,713 $0.09 $0.06 $0.03

Scientific Research & Development 3.04 0.0611 0.186 $24,713 $4.59 $3.21 $1.38

Lodging 1.13 0.0611 0.069 $24,713 $1.71 $1.19 $0.51

Standard Commercial Office 4.79 0.0611 0.293 $24,713 $7.23 $5.06 $2.18

Large High Rise Commercial Office 4.31 0.0611 0.263 $24,713 $6.51 $4.55 $1.96

Corporate Offices 2.69 0.0611 0.164 $24,713 $4.06 $2.84 $1.22

Medical Offices 4.27 0.0611 0.261 $24,713 $6.45 $4.51 $1.94

 *Based on 1990 SanDAG Traffic Generator Report  

 

Net Cost per Square Foot 

Since the State Maximum Fee is now $0.61 for commercial/industrial construction, the District 

is justified in collecting the maximum fee for all categories with the exception of Rental Selt-

Storage.  The District will only be allowed to collect $0.03 per square foot of Rental Selt-

Storage construction.  The Districts 70% share is $0.43 per square foot. 

 

Verifying the Sufficiency of the Development Impact 

Education Code Section 17620 requires districts to find that fee revenues will not exceed the 

cost of providing school facilities to the students generated by the development paying the 

fees.  This section shows that the fee revenues do not exceed the impact of the new 

development. 

 

The total need for school facilities resulting from development totals $1,037,937.  The amount 

the District would collect over the five year period at the maximum rate of $3.79 for residential 

and $0.61 for commercial/industrial development would be as follows: 

$3.79 x 200 homes x 1,835 sq ft per home = $1,390,930 for Residential 

$0.61 x 30,000 sq ft per year x 5 years = $91,500 for Commercial/Industrial  

Total projected 5-year income:  $1,482,430  

The elementary share of 70% results in a net 5 year income of $1,037,701. 

The estimated income is less than the projected facility needs due to the impact of new 

development projects. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 18 

 

 

District Map 

 

The following map shows the extent of the areas for which development fees are applicable 

to the Rincon Valley Union School District. 

 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICTRINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT

Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd
Saint Helena Rd

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

State Hwy 12

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 19 

 

 

Conclusion 

 

Based on the data contained in this Study, it is found that a reasonable relationship exists 

between residential, commercial/industrial development and the need for adequate school 

facilities in the Rincon Valley Union School District.  The following three nexus tests required 

to show justification for levying fees have been met: 

 

Burden Nexus:  New residential development will generate an average of 0.2113 TK-8 grade 

students per unit.  Because the District does not have adequate facilities for all the students 

generated by new developments, the district will need to build additional facilities and/or 

modernize/reconstruct the existing facilities in order to maintain existing level of services in 

which the new students will be housed.   

  

Cost Nexus:  The cost to provide new and reconstructed facilities is an average of $2.83 per 

square foot of residential development.  Each square foot of residential development will 

generate $2.65 (70% of $3.79) in developer fees resulting in a shortfall of $0.18 per square 

foot. 

 

Benefit Nexus:  The developer fees to be collected by the Rincon Valley Union School 

District will be used for the provision of additional and reconstructed or modernized school 

facilities.  This will benefit the students to be generated by new development by providing 

them with adequate educational facilities. 

 

The District’s planned use of the fees received from development impact will include the 

following types of projects each of which will benefit students from new developments. 

  

1) New Schools:  When there is enough development activity occurring in a single 

area, the District will build a new school to house the students from new 

developments. 

 

2) Additions to Existing Schools:  When infill development occurs, the District will 

accommodate students at existing schools by building needed classrooms and/or 

support facilities such as cafeterias, restrooms, gyms and libraries as needed to 

increase the school capacity.  Schools may also need upgrades of the technology 

and telecommunication systems to be able to increase their capacity. 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study 
February 2018 

Page 20 

 

 

3) Portable Replacement Projects:  Some of the District’s capacity is in temporary 

portables and therefore may not be included in the State’s capacity calculations.  

These portables can be replaced with new permanent or modular classrooms to 

provide adequate space for students from new developments.  These projects 

result in an increase to the facility capacity according to State standards.  

In addition, old portables that have reached the end of their life expectancy, will 

need to be replaced to maintain the existing level of service.  These types of 

projects are considered modernization projects in the State Building Program. If the 

development impact did not exist, the old portables could be removed. 

 

4) Modernization/Upgrade Projects:  In many cases, students from new developments 

are not located in areas where new schools are planned to be built.  The District 

plans to modernize or upgrade older schools to be equivalent to new schools, so 

students will be housed in equitable facilities to those students housed in new 

schools.  These projects may include updates to the building structures to meet 

current building standards, along with upgrades to the current fire and safety 

standards and any access compliance standards.   

 

Per the District's agreement with the High School District, the elementary share of the 

developer fees collected is 70%.  The reasonable relationship identified by these findings 

provides the required justification for the Rincon Valley Union School District to levy the 

maximum fees of $2.65 (70% of $3.79) per square foot for residential construction and $0.43 

(70% of $0.61) per square foot for commercial/industrial construction, except for Rental Selt-

Storage facilities in which a fee of $0.03 per square foot is justified as authorized by Education 

Code Section 17620. 



 

 

Appendices 

2018 Developer Fee Justification Study  
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA STATE ALLOCATION BOARD
ENROLLMENT CERTIFICATION/PROJECTION OFFICE OF PUBLIC SCHOOL CONSTRUCTION
SAB 50-01 (REV 05/09)        Page  6 of 6 

SCHOOL DISTRICT FIVE DIGIT DISTRICT CODE NUMBER (see California Public School Directory )

COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL ATTENDANCE AREA (HSAA) OR SUPER HSAA ( if applicable )

Check one:        Fifth-Year Enrollment Projection       Tenth-Year Enrollment Projection    Part G.  Number of New Dwelling Units
HSAA Districts Only - Check one: Attendance Residency (Fifth-Year Projection Only)

Residency - COS Districts Only - (Fifth Year Projection Only)
Modified Weighting   (Fifth-Year Projection Only) Part H.  District Student Yield Factor
Alternate Weighting - (Fill in boxes to the right): (Fifth-Year Projection Only)

Part I. Projected Enrollment
   Part A. K-12 Pupil Data 1.  Fifth-Year Projection

7th Prev. 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Current Enrollment/Residency - (except Special Day Class pupils)
Grade / / / / / / / / K-6 7-8 9-12 TOTAL

K
1
2 Special Day Class pupils only - Enrollment/Residency
3 TOTAL
4 Non-Severe

5 Severe

6 TOTAL
7
8 2.  Tenth-Year Projection
9 Enrollment/Residency - (except Special Day Class pupils)

10 K-6 7-8 9-12 TOTAL
11
12

TOTAL Special Day Class pupils only - Enrollment/Residency
TOTAL

   Part B. Pupils Attending Schools Chartered By Another District Non-Severe

7th Prev. 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Current Severe

TOTAL

Part C. Continuation High School Pupils - (Districts Only)
Grade 7th Prev. 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Current

9
10
11
12

TOTAL

Part D. Special Day Class Pupils - (Districts or County Superintendent of Schools)
TOTAL

Non-Severe

Severe

TOTAL

Part E. Special Day Class Pupils - (County Superintendent of Schools Only)
7th Prev. 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Current NAME OF DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE (PRINT OR TYPE)

/ / / / / / / /
SIGNATURE OF DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE

Part F.  Birth Data - (Fifth-Year Projection Only) DATE TELEPHONE NUMBER

          County Birth Data         Birth Data by District ZIP Codes Estimate Estimate Estimate
8th Prev. 7th Prev. 6th Prev. 5th Prev. 4th Prev. 3rd Prev. 2nd Prev. Previous Current E-MAIL ADDRESS

3rd Prev. to 
2nd Prev.

2nd Prev.
 to Prev.

Previous to 
Current

SecondaryElementary

Elementary Secondary

Elementary Secondary

I certify, as the District Representative, that the information 
reported on this form and, when applicable, the High School 
Attendance Area Residency Reporting Worksheet attached, is 
true and correct and that: 
• I am designated as an authorized district representative by 
the governing board of the district.  
•  If the district is requesting an augmentation in the enrollment 
projection pursuant to Regulation Section 1859.42.1 (a), the 
local planning commission or approval authority has approved 
the tentative subdivision map used for augmentation of the 
enrollment and the district has identified dwelling units in that 
map to be contracted. All subdivision maps used for 
augmentation of enrollment are available at the district for 
review by the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC). 
•  This form is an exact duplicate (verbatim) of the form 
provided by the Office of Public School Construction. In the 
event a conflict should exist, then the language in the OPSC 
form will prevail.



DP04 SELECTED HOUSING CHARACTERISTICS

2008-2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject definitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Data and Documentation section.

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community
Survey website in the Methodology section.

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities and towns and
estimates of housing units for states and counties.

Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

HOUSING OCCUPANCY

    Total housing units 17,221 +/-434 17,221 (X)
  Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 93.4% +/-1.7
  Vacant housing units 1,129 +/-285 6.6% +/-1.7

  Homeowner vacancy rate 1.7 +/-1.0 (X) (X)
  Rental vacancy rate 3.5 +/-2.2 (X) (X)

UNITS IN STRUCTURE

    Total housing units 17,221 +/-434 17,221 (X)
  1-unit, detached 11,317 +/-452 65.7% +/-1.9
  1-unit, attached 1,487 +/-226 8.6% +/-1.3
  2 units 421 +/-150 2.4% +/-0.9
  3 or 4 units 913 +/-182 5.3% +/-1.1
  5 to 9 units 748 +/-234 4.3% +/-1.4
  10 to 19 units 589 +/-186 3.4% +/-1.1
  20 or more units 990 +/-180 5.7% +/-1.0
  Mobile home 699 +/-131 4.1% +/-0.8
  Boat, RV, van, etc. 57 +/-89 0.3% +/-0.5

YEAR STRUCTURE BUILT

    Total housing units 17,221 +/-434 17,221 (X)
  Built 2010 or later 0 +/-27 0.0% +/-0.2
  Built 2000 to 2009 1,648 +/-278 9.6% +/-1.6
  Built 1990 to 1999 1,861 +/-270 10.8% +/-1.5
  Built 1980 to 1989 2,629 +/-321 15.3% +/-1.9
  Built 1970 to 1979 5,179 +/-387 30.1% +/-2.2
  Built 1960 to 1969 3,137 +/-300 18.2% +/-1.7
  Built 1950 to 1959 2,124 +/-290 12.3% +/-1.6
  Built 1940 to 1949 350 +/-125 2.0% +/-0.7
  Built 1939 or earlier 293 +/-112 1.7% +/-0.6

ROOMS

    Total housing units 17,221 +/-434 17,221 (X)
  1 room 164 +/-75 1.0% +/-0.4
  2 rooms 554 +/-146 3.2% +/-0.8

1  of 5 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

  3 rooms 1,270 +/-238 7.4% +/-1.3
  4 rooms 2,880 +/-339 16.7% +/-1.9
  5 rooms 4,156 +/-348 24.1% +/-2.0
  6 rooms 3,401 +/-338 19.7% +/-1.9
  7 rooms 2,050 +/-277 11.9% +/-1.6
  8 rooms 1,504 +/-245 8.7% +/-1.4
  9 rooms or more 1,242 +/-203 7.2% +/-1.2
  Median rooms 5.4 +/-0.1 (X) (X)

BEDROOMS

    Total housing units 17,221 +/-434 17,221 (X)
  No bedroom 185 +/-79 1.1% +/-0.5
  1 bedroom 1,728 +/-273 10.0% +/-1.6
  2 bedrooms 5,039 +/-355 29.3% +/-2.0
  3 bedrooms 7,248 +/-443 42.1% +/-2.4
  4 bedrooms 2,667 +/-334 15.5% +/-1.8
  5 or more bedrooms 354 +/-117 2.1% +/-0.7

HOUSING TENURE

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  Owner-occupied 10,087 +/-485 62.7% +/-2.4
  Renter-occupied 6,005 +/-427 37.3% +/-2.4

  Average household size of owner-occupied unit 2.32 +/-0.07 (X) (X)
  Average household size of renter-occupied unit 2.40 +/-0.16 (X) (X)

YEAR HOUSEHOLDER MOVED INTO UNIT

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  Moved in 2010 or later 1,609 +/-292 10.0% +/-1.9
  Moved in 2000 to 2009 8,359 +/-468 51.9% +/-2.4
  Moved in 1990 to 1999 2,848 +/-364 17.7% +/-2.2
  Moved in 1980 to 1989 1,567 +/-233 9.7% +/-1.4
  Moved in 1970 to 1979 1,143 +/-226 7.1% +/-1.3
  Moved in 1969 or earlier 566 +/-158 3.5% +/-1.0

VEHICLES AVAILABLE

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  No vehicles available 735 +/-177 4.6% +/-1.1
  1 vehicle available 5,799 +/-412 36.0% +/-2.1
  2 vehicles available 6,723 +/-433 41.8% +/-2.4
  3 or more vehicles available 2,835 +/-326 17.6% +/-2.0

HOUSE HEATING FUEL

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  Utility gas 12,260 +/-510 76.2% +/-2.5
  Bottled, tank, or LP gas 593 +/-185 3.7% +/-1.1
  Electricity 2,749 +/-361 17.1% +/-2.2
  Fuel oil, kerosene, etc. 58 +/-49 0.4% +/-0.3
  Coal or coke 0 +/-27 0.0% +/-0.2
  Wood 341 +/-129 2.1% +/-0.8
  Solar energy 15 +/-24 0.1% +/-0.1
  Other fuel 30 +/-34 0.2% +/-0.2
  No fuel used 46 +/-42 0.3% +/-0.3

SELECTED CHARACTERISTICS

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  Lacking complete plumbing facilities 185 +/-133 1.1% +/-0.8
  Lacking complete kitchen facilities 248 +/-137 1.5% +/-0.8
  No telephone service available 276 +/-144 1.7% +/-0.9

2  of 5 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

OCCUPANTS PER ROOM

    Occupied housing units 16,092 +/-494 16,092 (X)
  1.00 or less 15,751 +/-512 97.9% +/-0.9
  1.01 to 1.50 290 +/-128 1.8% +/-0.8
  1.51 or more 51 +/-43 0.3% +/-0.3

VALUE

    Owner-occupied units 10,087 +/-485 10,087 (X)
  Less than $50,000 524 +/-129 5.2% +/-1.3
  $50,000 to $99,999 250 +/-84 2.5% +/-0.8
  $100,000 to $149,999 238 +/-112 2.4% +/-1.1
  $150,000 to $199,999 284 +/-77 2.8% +/-0.8
  $200,000 to $299,999 676 +/-151 6.7% +/-1.4
  $300,000 to $499,999 4,109 +/-364 40.7% +/-3.1
  $500,000 to $999,999 3,413 +/-340 33.8% +/-2.8
  $1,000,000 or more 593 +/-155 5.9% +/-1.5
  Median (dollars) 451,100 +/-13,138 (X) (X)

MORTGAGE STATUS

    Owner-occupied units 10,087 +/-485 10,087 (X)
  Housing units with a mortgage 6,644 +/-442 65.9% +/-2.7
  Housing units without a mortgage 3,443 +/-301 34.1% +/-2.7

SELECTED MONTHLY OWNER COSTS (SMOC)

    Housing units with a mortgage 6,644 +/-442 6,644 (X)
  Less than $300 18 +/-20 0.3% +/-0.3
  $300 to $499 123 +/-66 1.9% +/-1.0
  $500 to $699 44 +/-39 0.7% +/-0.6
  $700 to $999 291 +/-113 4.4% +/-1.7
  $1,000 to $1,499 791 +/-162 11.9% +/-2.4
  $1,500 to $1,999 928 +/-177 14.0% +/-2.5
  $2,000 or more 4,449 +/-375 67.0% +/-3.3
  Median (dollars) 2,597 +/-117 (X) (X)

    Housing units without a mortgage 3,443 +/-301 3,443 (X)
  Less than $100 40 +/-37 1.2% +/-1.1
  $100 to $199 133 +/-70 3.9% +/-2.0
  $200 to $299 379 +/-131 11.0% +/-3.5
  $300 to $399 539 +/-134 15.7% +/-3.9
  $400 or more 2,352 +/-268 68.3% +/-4.7
  Median (dollars) 531 +/-34 (X) (X)

SELECTED MONTHLY OWNER COSTS AS A
PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLD INCOME (SMOCAPI)
    Housing units with a mortgage (excluding units where
SMOCAPI cannot be computed)

6,584 +/-442 6,584 (X)

  Less than 20.0 percent 1,722 +/-261 26.2% +/-3.8
  20.0 to 24.9 percent 695 +/-145 10.6% +/-2.1
  25.0 to 29.9 percent 1,046 +/-203 15.9% +/-2.9
  30.0 to 34.9 percent 576 +/-128 8.7% +/-2.0
  35.0 percent or more 2,545 +/-358 38.7% +/-4.1

  Not computed 60 +/-39 (X) (X)

    Housing unit without a mortgage (excluding units
where SMOCAPI cannot be computed)

3,421 +/-300 3,421 (X)

  Less than 10.0 percent 1,431 +/-173 41.8% +/-4.5
  10.0 to 14.9 percent 614 +/-140 17.9% +/-3.7
  15.0 to 19.9 percent 405 +/-108 11.8% +/-3.0

3  of 5 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Estimate Margin of Error Percent Percent Margin of
Error

  20.0 to 24.9 percent 144 +/-67 4.2% +/-2.0
  25.0 to 29.9 percent 197 +/-82 5.8% +/-2.4
  30.0 to 34.9 percent 121 +/-68 3.5% +/-1.9
  35.0 percent or more 509 +/-168 14.9% +/-4.2

  Not computed 22 +/-27 (X) (X)

GROSS RENT

    Occupied units paying rent 5,569 +/-396 5,569 (X)
  Less than $200 178 +/-123 3.2% +/-2.2
  $200 to $299 102 +/-58 1.8% +/-1.0
  $300 to $499 141 +/-67 2.5% +/-1.2
  $500 to $749 96 +/-72 1.7% +/-1.3
  $750 to $999 656 +/-190 11.8% +/-3.4
  $1,000 to $1,499 2,279 +/-308 40.9% +/-4.8
  $1,500 or more 2,117 +/-320 38.0% +/-4.7
  Median (dollars) 1,311 +/-67 (X) (X)

  No rent paid 436 +/-190 (X) (X)

GROSS RENT AS A PERCENTAGE OF HOUSEHOLD
INCOME (GRAPI)
    Occupied units paying rent (excluding units where
GRAPI cannot be computed)

5,513 +/-390 5,513 (X)

  Less than 15.0 percent 468 +/-154 8.5% +/-2.8
  15.0 to 19.9 percent 850 +/-209 15.4% +/-3.8
  20.0 to 24.9 percent 749 +/-209 13.6% +/-3.7
  25.0 to 29.9 percent 638 +/-166 11.6% +/-2.8
  30.0 to 34.9 percent 603 +/-173 10.9% +/-3.1
  35.0 percent or more 2,205 +/-317 40.0% +/-4.6

  Not computed 492 +/-202 (X) (X)

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is
represented through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted
roughly as providing a 90 percent probability that the interval defined by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of
error (the lower and upper confidence bounds) contains the true value. In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to
nonsampling error (for a discussion of nonsampling variability, see Accuracy of the Data). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these
tables.

The median gross rent excludes no cash renters.

In prior years, the universe included all owner-occupied units with a mortgage. It is now restricted to include only those units where SMOCAPI is
computed, that is, SMOC and household income are valid values.

In prior years, the universe included all owner-occupied units without a mortgage. It is now restricted to include only those units where SMOCAPI is
computed, that is, SMOC and household income are valid values.

In prior years, the universe included all renter-occupied units. It is now restricted to include only those units where GRAPI is computed, that is, gross
rent and household Income are valid values.

The 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012 plumbing data for Puerto Rico will not be shown. Research indicates that the questions on plumbing
facilities that were introduced in 2008 in the stateside American Community Survey and the 2008 Puerto Rico Community Survey may not have been
appropriate for Puerto Rico.

Median calculations for base table sourcing VAL, MHC, SMOC, and TAX should exclude zero values.

Telephone service data are not available for certain geographic areas due to problems with data collection. See Errata Note #93 for details.

4  of 5 03/10/2016



While the 2008-2012 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally reflect the December 2009 Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
definitions of metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas; in certain instances the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in
ACS tables may differ from the OMB definitions due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities.

Estimates of urban and rural population, housing units, and characteristics reflect boundaries of urban areas defined based on Census 2000 data.
Boundaries for urban areas have not been updated since Census 2000. As a result, data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily
reflect the results of ongoing urbanization.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2008-2012 American Community Survey

Explanation of Symbols:

    1.  An '**' entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to
compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.
    2.  An '-' entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an
estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an
open-ended distribution.
    3.  An '-' following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.
    4.  An '+' following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.
    5.  An '***' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.
    6.  An '*****' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.
    7.  An 'N' entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.
    8.  An '(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.



S0802 MEANS OF TRANSPORTATION TO WORK BY SELECTED CHARACTERISTICS

2008-2012 American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates

Supporting documentation on code lists, subject definitions, data accuracy, and statistical testing can be found on the American Community Survey
website in the Data and Documentation section.

Sample size and data quality measures (including coverage rates, allocation rates, and response rates) can be found on the American Community
Survey website in the Methodology section.

Although the American Community Survey (ACS) produces population, demographic and housing unit estimates, it is the Census Bureau's Population
Estimates Program that produces and disseminates the official estimates of the population for the nation, states, counties, cities and towns and
estimates of housing units for states and counties.

Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Total Car, truck, or van -- drove alone Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Estimate Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error Estimate
Workers 16 years and over 16,412 +/-760 12,611 +/-691 1,738
AGE

  16 to 19 years 2.8% +/-0.9 2.3% +/-0.9 3.1%
  20 to 24 years 6.6% +/-1.4 6.0% +/-1.3 12.3%
  25 to 44 years 36.7% +/-2.3 36.6% +/-2.7 40.2%
  45 to 54 years 25.5% +/-2.4 26.4% +/-2.7 24.2%
  55 to 59 years 12.1% +/-1.8 12.5% +/-2.1 11.3%
  60 years and over 16.2% +/-2.0 16.3% +/-2.0 9.0%

Median age (years) 46.4 +/-1.3 47.0 +/-1.6 43.6

SEX

  Male 48.9% +/-1.8 50.1% +/-2.5 44.7%
  Female 51.1% +/-1.8 49.9% +/-2.5 55.3%

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN

  One race 98.5% +/-0.6 98.7% +/-0.6 97.4%
    White 88.5% +/-1.9 88.7% +/-2.2 83.9%
    Black or African American 1.2% +/-0.8 1.2% +/-0.8 1.2%
    American Indian and Alaska Native 0.9% +/-0.5 1.0% +/-0.6 1.4%
    Asian 4.1% +/-1.0 3.9% +/-1.2 5.1%
    Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander 0.6% +/-0.5 0.3% +/-0.4 3.1%
    Some other race 3.2% +/-1.3 3.6% +/-1.6 2.8%
  Two or more races 1.5% +/-0.6 1.3% +/-0.6 2.6%

Hispanic or Latino origin (of any race) 14.3% +/-2.4 12.9% +/-2.2 29.0%
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino 78.1% +/-2.7 80.3% +/-2.7 58.9%

NATIVITY AND CITIZENSHIP STATUS

  Native 84.8% +/-2.2 86.7% +/-2.2 68.3%
  Foreign born 15.2% +/-2.2 13.3% +/-2.2 31.7%
    Naturalized U.S. citizen 7.4% +/-1.6 7.4% +/-1.6 10.2%
    Not a U.S. citizen 7.8% +/-2.1 5.9% +/-1.8 21.5%

1  of 7 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Total Car, truck, or van -- drove alone Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Estimate Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error Estimate
LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME AND ABILITY TO
SPEAK ENGLISH
  Speak language other than English 18.0% +/-2.8 16.0% +/-2.6 37.1%
    Speak English "very well" 11.7% +/-2.3 11.4% +/-2.4 15.7%
    Speak English less than "very well" 6.2% +/-1.7 4.6% +/-1.3 21.3%

EARNINGS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS (IN 2012
INFLATION-ADJUSTED DOLLARS) FOR WORKERS
    Workers 16 years and over with earnings 16,394 +/-752 12,611 +/-691 1,738
  $1 to $9,999 or loss 12.4% +/-1.9 10.1% +/-2.0 18.8%
  $10,000 to $14,999 7.8% +/-1.7 7.4% +/-2.0 6.2%
  $15,000 to $24,999 11.6% +/-1.9 10.6% +/-2.0 13.2%
  $25,000 to $34,999 11.3% +/-2.0 12.3% +/-2.3 8.6%
  $35,000 to $49,999 14.5% +/-1.9 14.7% +/-2.2 17.4%
  $50,000 to $64,999 10.5% +/-1.6 10.3% +/-1.9 10.7%
  $65,000 to $74,999 6.1% +/-1.3 6.7% +/-1.6 5.3%
  $75,000 or more 25.8% +/-2.3 27.8% +/-2.6 19.8%

Median earnings (dollars) 42,419 +/-2,463 44,111 +/-2,662 36,335

POVERTY STATUS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS

    Workers 16 years and over for whom poverty status is
determined

16,412 +/-760 12,611 +/-691 1,738

  Below 100 percent of the poverty level 5.4% +/-1.6 3.6% +/-1.6 8.2%
  100 to 149 percent of the poverty level 4.0% +/-1.3 3.0% +/-1.4 8.1%
  At or above 150 percent of the poverty level 90.6% +/-1.9 93.5% +/-2.1 83.7%

Workers 16 years and over 16,412 +/-760 12,611 +/-691 1,738
OCCUPATION

  Management, business, science, and arts occupations 42.5% +/-2.5 41.9% +/-2.9 36.8%

  Service occupations 15.2% +/-2.4 14.6% +/-2.5 24.8%
  Sales and office occupations 26.1% +/-2.5 26.7% +/-3.1 19.2%
  Natural resources, construction, and maintenance
occupations

5.0% +/-1.3 5.1% +/-1.4 8.3%

  Production, transportation, and material moving
occupations

11.2% +/-2.0 11.7% +/-2.4 10.8%

  Military specific occupations 0.0% +/-0.2 0.0% +/-0.3 0.0%

INDUSTRY

  Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining 0.7% +/-0.5 0.8% +/-0.5 0.0%

  Construction 4.6% +/-1.1 4.1% +/-1.1 7.6%
  Manufacturing 11.5% +/-1.8 12.4% +/-2.0 15.2%
  Wholesale trade 2.6% +/-1.1 3.0% +/-1.3 0.5%
  Retail trade 14.1% +/-2.5 13.9% +/-2.8 11.2%
  Transportation and warehousing, and utilities 2.8% +/-0.8 3.2% +/-1.0 0.6%
  Information and finance and insurance, and real estate
and rental and leasing

9.1% +/-1.8 8.7% +/-1.8 3.6%

  Professional, scientific, management, and
administrative and waste management services

11.4% +/-1.7 9.9% +/-1.9 6.1%

  Educational services, and health care and social
assistance

25.5% +/-2.4 26.5% +/-2.4 30.1%

  Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and
accommodation and food services

8.0% +/-1.7 6.9% +/-1.8 13.0%

  Other services (except public administration) 4.6% +/-1.1 4.7% +/-1.2 7.5%
  Public administration 5.2% +/-1.1 5.9% +/-1.3 4.4%
  Armed forces 0.0% +/-0.2 0.0% +/-0.3 0.0%

CLASS OF WORKER

  Private wage and salary workers 71.9% +/-2.7 74.4% +/-3.2 70.8%
  Government workers 16.9% +/-2.5 18.2% +/-3.0 18.4%

2  of 7 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District, California

Total Car, truck, or van -- drove alone Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Estimate Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error Estimate
  Self-employed workers in own not incorporated
business

11.2% +/-1.6 7.4% +/-1.4 10.8%

  Unpaid family workers 0.1% +/-0.2 0.0% +/-0.3 0.0%

PLACE OF WORK

  Worked in state of residence 99.7% +/-0.3 99.9% +/-0.2 100.0%
    Worked in county of residence 89.7% +/-1.6 88.8% +/-1.7 89.4%
    Worked outside county of residence 10.0% +/-1.6 11.1% +/-1.7 10.6%
  Worked outside state of residence 0.3% +/-0.3 0.1% +/-0.2 0.0%

Workers 16 years and over who did not work at home 15,125 +/-744 12,611 +/-691 1,738

TIME LEAVING HOME TO GO TO WORK

  12:00 a.m. to 4:59 a.m. 4.0% +/-1.1 4.3% +/-1.2 2.4%
  5:00 a.m. to 5:29 a.m. 2.9% +/-1.2 1.8% +/-0.7 9.9%
  5:30 a.m. to 5:59 a.m. 3.9% +/-1.1 4.0% +/-1.4 3.3%
  6:00 a.m. to 6:29 a.m. 5.9% +/-1.3 5.7% +/-1.6 6.4%
  6:30 a.m. to 6:59 a.m. 9.2% +/-1.5 9.8% +/-1.7 1.5%
  7:00 a.m. to 7:29 a.m. 13.2% +/-1.9 13.1% +/-2.2 15.9%
  7:30 a.m. to 7:59 a.m. 15.2% +/-2.2 16.3% +/-2.2 12.9%
  8:00 a.m. to 8:29 a.m. 13.3% +/-1.8 12.9% +/-1.9 14.3%
  8:30 a.m. to 8:59 a.m. 8.3% +/-1.5 8.5% +/-1.7 7.5%
  9:00 a.m. to 11:59 p.m. 24.2% +/-2.5 23.6% +/-2.9 25.8%

TRAVEL TIME TO WORK

  Less than 10 minutes 11.0% +/-1.8 10.7% +/-2.1 7.3%
  10 to 14 minutes 18.5% +/-2.3 18.9% +/-2.3 18.8%
  15 to 19 minutes 20.9% +/-2.3 21.6% +/-2.4 20.8%
  20 to 24 minutes 19.0% +/-2.3 18.5% +/-2.4 23.1%
  25 to 29 minutes 5.7% +/-1.5 6.3% +/-1.7 3.3%
  30 to 34 minutes 9.3% +/-2.2 9.4% +/-2.2 11.9%
  35 to 44 minutes 3.0% +/-1.0 2.8% +/-1.0 4.8%
  45 to 59 minutes 4.8% +/-1.2 4.3% +/-1.3 2.8%
  60 or more minutes 7.8% +/-1.4 7.5% +/-1.6 7.1%
  Mean travel time to work (minutes) 23.3 +/-1.2 22.8 +/-1.2 24.5

Workers 16 years and over in households 16,291 +/-764 12,567 +/-691 1,698
HOUSING TENURE

  Owner-occupied housing units 61.1% +/-3.5 61.4% +/-3.9 56.8%
  Renter-occupied housing units 38.9% +/-3.5 38.6% +/-3.9 43.2%

VEHICLES AVAILABLE

  No vehicle available 1.4% +/-0.8 0.9% +/-0.6 3.2%
  1 vehicle available 19.9% +/-2.4 20.7% +/-3.0 17.6%
  2 vehicles available 48.3% +/-3.6 49.1% +/-3.6 44.5%
  3 or more vehicles available 30.4% +/-3.7 29.3% +/-4.1 34.7%

PERCENT IMPUTED

  Means of transportation to work 6.4% (X) (X) (X) (X)
  Time leaving home to go to work 11.9% (X) (X) (X) (X)
  Travel time to work 8.9% (X) (X) (X) (X)
  Vehicles available 2.0% (X) (X) (X) (X)

3  of 7 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District,
California

Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Public transportation (excluding
taxicab)

Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error
Workers 16 years and over +/-381 162 +/-85
AGE

  16 to 19 years +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5
  20 to 24 years +/-6.5 25.9% +/-28.4
  25 to 44 years +/-8.0 43.2% +/-28.0
  45 to 54 years +/-8.5 10.5% +/-12.8
  55 to 59 years +/-4.8 14.2% +/-18.4
  60 years and over +/-6.0 6.2% +/-9.6

Median age (years) +/-4.6 36.5 +/-6.0

SEX

  Male +/-9.2 63.0% +/-24.0
  Female +/-9.2 37.0% +/-24.0

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN

  One race +/-2.3 100.0% +/-20.5
    White +/-6.9 100.0% +/-20.5
    Black or African American +/-2.3 0.0% +/-20.5
    American Indian and Alaska Native +/-2.0 0.0% +/-20.5
    Asian +/-4.0 0.0% +/-20.5
    Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander +/-4.6 0.0% +/-20.5
    Some other race +/-2.6 0.0% +/-20.5
  Two or more races +/-2.3 0.0% +/-20.5

Hispanic or Latino origin (of any race) +/-10.6 19.8% +/-24.0
White alone, not Hispanic or Latino +/-11.6 80.2% +/-24.0

NATIVITY AND CITIZENSHIP STATUS

  Native +/-11.4 80.2% +/-24.0
  Foreign born +/-11.4 19.8% +/-24.0
    Naturalized U.S. citizen +/-6.5 0.0% +/-20.5
    Not a U.S. citizen +/-10.5 19.8% +/-24.0

LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME AND ABILITY TO
SPEAK ENGLISH
  Speak language other than English +/-11.7 15.4% +/-23.9
    Speak English "very well" +/-7.3 15.4% +/-23.9
    Speak English less than "very well" +/-9.8 0.0% +/-20.5

EARNINGS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS (IN 2012
INFLATION-ADJUSTED DOLLARS) FOR WORKERS
    Workers 16 years and over with earnings +/-381 162 +/-85
  $1 to $9,999 or loss +/-9.0 5.6% +/-9.2
  $10,000 to $14,999 +/-3.8 31.5% +/-30.3
  $15,000 to $24,999 +/-7.6 27.8% +/-25.6
  $25,000 to $34,999 +/-5.4 0.0% +/-20.5
  $35,000 to $49,999 +/-9.0 8.0% +/-12.0
  $50,000 to $64,999 +/-5.5 0.0% +/-20.5
  $65,000 to $74,999 +/-3.2 14.8% +/-19.2
  $75,000 or more +/-7.1 12.3% +/-15.8

Median earnings (dollars) +/-10,701 20,100 +/-11,483

POVERTY STATUS IN THE PAST 12 MONTHS

    Workers 16 years and over for whom poverty status is
determined

+/-381 162 +/-85

  Below 100 percent of the poverty level +/-5.9 5.6% +/-9.2

4  of 7 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District,
California

Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Public transportation (excluding
taxicab)

Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error
  100 to 149 percent of the poverty level +/-6.8 8.0% +/-12.0
  At or above 150 percent of the poverty level +/-9.0 86.4% +/-14.6

Workers 16 years and over +/-381 162 +/-85
OCCUPATION

  Management, business, science, and arts occupations +/-9.1 20.4% +/-21.6

  Service occupations +/-10.6 34.0% +/-30.1
  Sales and office occupations +/-7.7 12.3% +/-14.4
  Natural resources, construction, and maintenance
occupations

+/-5.9 0.0% +/-20.5

  Production, transportation, and material moving
occupations

+/-7.5 33.3% +/-29.1

  Military specific occupations +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5

INDUSTRY

  Agriculture, forestry, fishing and hunting, and mining +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5

  Construction +/-5.9 3.1% +/-7.9
  Manufacturing +/-7.5 2.5% +/-5.3
  Wholesale trade +/-0.8 0.0% +/-20.5
  Retail trade +/-7.4 35.2% +/-28.6
  Transportation and warehousing, and utilities +/-1.1 0.0% +/-20.5
  Information and finance and insurance, and real estate
and rental and leasing

+/-2.4 14.2% +/-14.5

  Professional, scientific, management, and
administrative and waste management services

+/-4.2 15.4% +/-20.9

  Educational services, and health care and social
assistance

+/-7.4 14.2% +/-15.8

  Arts, entertainment, and recreation, and
accommodation and food services

+/-7.6 15.4% +/-23.9

  Other services (except public administration) +/-5.2 0.0% +/-20.5
  Public administration +/-3.1 0.0% +/-20.5
  Armed forces +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5

CLASS OF WORKER

  Private wage and salary workers +/-8.7 100.0% +/-20.5
  Government workers +/-5.9 0.0% +/-20.5
  Self-employed workers in own not incorporated
business

+/-6.7 0.0% +/-20.5

  Unpaid family workers +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5

PLACE OF WORK

  Worked in state of residence +/-2.1 100.0% +/-20.5
    Worked in county of residence +/-6.3 81.5% +/-18.7
    Worked outside county of residence +/-6.3 18.5% +/-18.7
  Worked outside state of residence +/-2.1 0.0% +/-20.5

Workers 16 years and over who did not work at home +/-381 162 +/-85

TIME LEAVING HOME TO GO TO WORK

  12:00 a.m. to 4:59 a.m. +/-2.7 0.0% +/-20.5
  5:00 a.m. to 5:29 a.m. +/-7.7 8.0% +/-12.0
  5:30 a.m. to 5:59 a.m. +/-2.4 11.7% +/-14.0
  6:00 a.m. to 6:29 a.m. +/-4.5 8.6% +/-15.9
  6:30 a.m. to 6:59 a.m. +/-1.7 17.9% +/-17.6
  7:00 a.m. to 7:29 a.m. +/-7.2 3.1% +/-7.9
  7:30 a.m. to 7:59 a.m. +/-7.5 0.0% +/-20.5
  8:00 a.m. to 8:29 a.m. +/-7.7 15.4% +/-23.9
  8:30 a.m. to 8:59 a.m. +/-4.8 0.0% +/-20.5
  9:00 a.m. to 11:59 p.m. +/-10.4 35.2% +/-28.6

5  of 7 03/10/2016



Subject Rincon Valley Union Elementary School District,
California

Car, truck, or van
-- carpooled

Public transportation (excluding
taxicab)

Margin of Error Estimate Margin of Error
TRAVEL TIME TO WORK

  Less than 10 minutes +/-4.8 0.0% +/-20.5
  10 to 14 minutes +/-7.8 0.0% +/-20.5
  15 to 19 minutes +/-8.2 0.0% +/-20.5
  20 to 24 minutes +/-10.6 4.3% +/-6.9
  25 to 29 minutes +/-3.0 8.6% +/-15.9
  30 to 34 minutes +/-8.2 8.0% +/-12.0
  35 to 44 minutes +/-4.0 0.0% +/-20.5
  45 to 59 minutes +/-3.0 42.6% +/-27.5
  60 or more minutes +/-5.4 36.4% +/-28.1
  Mean travel time to work (minutes) +/-5.3 49.7 +/-8.8

Workers 16 years and over in households +/-376 153 +/-81
HOUSING TENURE

  Owner-occupied housing units +/-10.4 57.5% +/-27.2
  Renter-occupied housing units +/-10.4 42.5% +/-27.2

VEHICLES AVAILABLE

  No vehicle available +/-4.7 22.2% +/-26.8
  1 vehicle available +/-8.5 17.6% +/-19.3
  2 vehicles available +/-11.3 24.8% +/-21.5
  3 or more vehicles available +/-9.5 35.3% +/-29.6

PERCENT IMPUTED

  Means of transportation to work (X) (X) (X)
  Time leaving home to go to work (X) (X) (X)
  Travel time to work (X) (X) (X)
  Vehicles available (X) (X) (X)

Data are based on a sample and are subject to sampling variability. The degree of uncertainty for an estimate arising from sampling variability is
represented through the use of a margin of error. The value shown here is the 90 percent margin of error. The margin of error can be interpreted
roughly as providing a 90 percent probability that the interval defined by the estimate minus the margin of error and the estimate plus the margin of
error (the lower and upper confidence bounds) contains the true value. In addition to sampling variability, the ACS estimates are subject to
nonsampling error (for a discussion of nonsampling variability, see Accuracy of the Data). The effect of nonsampling error is not represented in these
tables.

Foreign born excludes people born outside the United States to a parent who is a U.S. citizen.

Workers include members of the Armed Forces and civilians who were at work last week.

Industry codes are 4-digit codes and are based on the North American Industry Classification System 2007. The Industry categories adhere to the
guidelines issued in Clarification Memorandum No. 2, "NAICS Alternate Aggregation Structure for Use By U.S. Statistical Agencies," issued by the
Office of Management and Budget.

While the 2008-2012 American Community Survey (ACS) data generally reflect the December 2009 Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
definitions of metropolitan and micropolitan statistical areas; in certain instances the names, codes, and boundaries of the principal cities shown in
ACS tables may differ from the OMB definitions due to differences in the effective dates of the geographic entities.

Estimates of urban and rural population, housing units, and characteristics reflect boundaries of urban areas defined based on Census 2000 data.
Boundaries for urban areas have not been updated since Census 2000. As a result, data for urban and rural areas from the ACS do not necessarily
reflect the results of ongoing urbanization.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2008-2012 American Community Survey

Explanation of Symbols:

6  of 7 03/10/2016



    1.  An '**' entry in the margin of error column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to
compute a standard error and thus the margin of error. A statistical test is not appropriate.
    2.  An '-' entry in the estimate column indicates that either no sample observations or too few sample observations were available to compute an
estimate, or a ratio of medians cannot be calculated because one or both of the median estimates falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an
open-ended distribution.
    3.  An '-' following a median estimate means the median falls in the lowest interval of an open-ended distribution.
    4.  An '+' following a median estimate means the median falls in the upper interval of an open-ended distribution.
    5.  An '***' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the median falls in the lowest interval or upper interval of an open-ended distribution. A
statistical test is not appropriate.
    6.  An '*****' entry in the margin of error column indicates that the estimate is controlled. A statistical test for sampling variability is not appropriate.
    7.  An 'N' entry in the estimate and margin of error columns indicates that data for this geographic area cannot be displayed because the number of
sample cases is too small.
    8.  An '(X)' means that the estimate is not applicable or not available.



SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8331 Sierra College Blvd., Suite 221 
Roseville, CA 95661 
916.733.0402 
 

 
 
 

Use of Developer Fees: 
 
A School District can use the revenue collected on residential and commercial/industrial 
construction for the purposes listed below: 
 

 Purchase or lease of interim school facilities to house students generated by new 
development pending the construction of permanent facilities. 

 Purchase or lease of land for school facilities for such students. 
 Acquisition of school facilities for such students, including: 

o Construction 
o Modernization/reconstruction 
o Architectural and engineering costs 
o Permits and plan checking 
o Testing and inspection 
o Furniture, Equipment and Technology for use in school facilities 

 Legal and other administrative costs related to the provision of such new facilities 
 Administration of the collection of, and justification for, such fees, and 
 Any other purpose arising from the process of providing facilities for students 

generated by new development. 
 
Following is an excerpt from the Education Code that states the valid uses of the Level 1 
developer fees.  It refers to construction and reconstruction.  The term reconstruction was 
originally used in the Leroy Greene program.  The term modernization is currently used in the 
1998 State Building Program and represents the same scope of work used in the original 
reconstruction projects. 
 
Ed Code Section 17620.  (a) (1) The governing board of any school district is authorized to levy 
a fee, charge, dedication, or other requirement against any construction within the boundaries of 
the district, for the purpose of funding the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, 
subject to any limitations set forth in Chapter 4.9 (commencing with Section 65995) of Division 
1 of Title 7 of the Government Code.  This fee, charge, dedication, or other requirement may be 
applied to construction only as follows: … 
 
The limitations referred to in this text describe the maximum amounts that can be charged for 
residential and commercial/industrial projects and any projects that qualify for exemptions.  
They do not limit the use of the funds received. 



REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2018 

INDEX ADJUSTMENT ON THE ASSESSMENT FOR DEVELOPMENT 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To report the index adjustment on the assessment for development, which may be levied pursuant to 
Education Code Section 17620. 

DESCRIPTION 

The law requires the maximum assessment for development be adjusted every two years by the change in 
the Class B construction cost index, as determined by the State Allocation Board (Board) at its January 
meeting. This item requests that the Board make the adjustment based on the change reflected using the 
RS Means index. 

AUTHORITY 

Education Code Section 17620(a)(1) states the following: “The governing board of any school district is 
authorized to levy a fee, charge, dedication, or other requirement against any construction within the 
boundaries of the district, for the purpose of funding the construction or reconstruction of school facilities, 
subject to any limitations set forth in Chapter 4.9 (commencing with Section 65995) of Division 1 of Title 7 of 
the Government Code.” 

Government Code Section 65995(b)(3) states the following: “The amount of the limits set forth in paragraphs 
(1) and (2) shall be increased in 2000, and every two years thereafter, according to the adjustment for
inflation set forth in the statewide cost index for class B construction, as determined by the State Allocation
Board at its January meeting, which increase shall be effective as of the date of that meeting.”

BACKGROUND 

There are three levels that may be levied for developer’s fees. The fees are levied on a per-square foot 
basis. The lowest fee, Level I, is assessed if the district conducts a Justification Study that establishes the 
connection between the development coming into the district and the assessment of fees to pay for the cost 
of the facilities needed to house future students. The Level II fee is assessed if a district makes a timely 
application to the Board for new construction funding, conducts a School Facility Needs Analysis pursuant to 
Government Code Section 65995.6, and satisfies at least two of the requirements listed in Government 
Code Section 65995.5(b)(3). The Level III fee is assessed when State bond funds are exhausted; the district 
may impose a developer’s fee up to 100 percent of the School Facility Program new construction project 
cost. 

A historical comparison of the assessment rates for development fees for 2014 and 2016 are shown below 
for information. According to the RS Means, the cost index for Class B construction increased by 8.78,  
during the two year period from January 2016 to January 2018, requiring the assessment for development 
fees to be adjusted as follows beginning January 2018: 

RS Means Index Maximum Level I Assessment Per Square Foot 

2014 2016 2018 

Residential  $3.36 $3.48 $3.79 
Commercial/Industrial $0.54 $0.56 $0.61 



SAB 01-24-2018 
Page Two 

 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Increase the 2018 maximum Level I assessment for development in the amount of 8.78 percent using the 
RS Means Index to be effective immediately. 
 

 
 



REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2018 

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

To adopt the annual adjustment in the School Facility Program (SFP) grants based on the change in construction 
costs pursuant to the Education Code (EC) and SFP Regulations. 

DESCRIPTION 

This item presents the State Allocation Board (Board) with the annual adjustment to the SFP grants based on the 
statewide cost index for Class B construction. Each year the Board adjusts the SFP grants to reflect construction cost 
changes. In January 2016, the Board adopted the RS Means index for 2016 and future years. This item presents the 
2018 annual adjustment to SFP grants based on the RS Means index. 

AUTHORITY 

See Attachment A. 

STAFF ANALYSIS/STATEMENTS 

At the January 2016 meeting, the Board adopted an increase to the SFP grants using the RS Means Construction 
Cost Index (CCI) as the statewide cost index for Class B construction. 

The current rate of change between 2017 and 2018 for the RS Means Class B CCI is 4.17 percent. The chart below 
reflects the amounts previously adopted for 2017 compared to the potential amount for the new construction base 
grants. 

RS Means 
4.17% 

Grade Level 
Regulation 

Section 

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil 
Effective 1-1-17 

Potential Grant Per 
Pupil Effective 1-1-18 

Elementary 1859.71 $11,104 $11,567 
Middle 1859.71 $11,744 $12,234 
High 1859.71 $14,944 $15,567 

Special Day Class 
– Severe

1859.71.1 $31,202 $32,503 

Special Day Class 
– Non-Severe

1859.71.1 $20,867 $21,737 



      SAB 01-24-18 
Page Two 

STAFF ANALYSIS/STATEMENTS (cont.) 

The following chart shows the amounts previously adopted compared to the potential amount for the modernization 
base grants. 

RS Means 
4.17% 

Grade Level 
Regulation 

Section 

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil 
Effective 1-1-17 

Potential Grant  
Per Pupil Effective 

1-1-18 

Elementary 1859.78 $4,228 $4,404 
Middle 1859.78 $4,472 $4,658 
High 1859.78 $5,855 $6,099 

Special Day Class 
– Severe

1859.78.3 $13,475 $14,037 

Special Day Class 
– Non-Severe

1859.78.3 $9,015 $9,391 

In addition, the CCI adjustment would increase the threshold amount for Government Code Section 66452.6(a)(2) for 
the period of one year commencing March 1, 2018. The following chart shows the amount previously adopted for 
2017 compared to the resulting threshold amount, upon approval of the proposed 2018 CCI adjustment: 

RS Means 
Effective 3-1-2017 

RS Means 
Potential 3-1-2018 

Resulting Amount $279,571 $291,229 

RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the increase of 4.17 percent for the 2018 SFP grants based on the RS Means Construction Cost Index as 
shown in Attachment B. 



Regulation 
Section

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil
Effective 1-1-17

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil
Effective 1-1-18

Elementary 1859.71 $11,104 $11,567

Middle 1859.71 $11,744 $12,234

High 1859.71 $14,944 $15,567

Special Day Class – Severe 1859.71.1 $31,202 $32,503

Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.71.1 $20,867 $21,737

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Elementary 1859.71.2 $13 $14

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Middle 1859.71.2 $18 $19
Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – High 1859.71.2 $30 $31

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Special Day Class – Severe 1859.71.2 $56 $58

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Special Day Class – Non-
Severe

1859.71.2 $39 $41

Automatic Sprinkler System – Elementary 1859.71.2 $186 $194

Automatic Sprinkler System – Middle 1859.71.2 $221 $230

Automatic Sprinkler System – High 1859.71.2 $230 $240

Automatic Sprinkler System – Special Day Class – Severe 1859.71.2 $588 $613
Automatic Sprinkler System – Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.71.2 $395 $411

Elementary 1859.78 $4,228 $4,404

Middle 1859.78 $4,472 $4,658

High 1859.78 $5,855 $6,099

Special Day Class - Severe 1859.78.3 $13,475 $14,037

Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.78.3 $9,015 $9,391

State Special School – Severe 1859.78 $22,460 $23,397

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Elementary 1859.78.4 $137 $143

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Middle 1859.78.4 $137 $143

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – High 1859.78.4 $137 $143

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Special Day Class – Severe 1859.78.4 $378 $394

Automatic Fire Detection/Alarm System – Special Day Class – Non-
Severe

1859.78.4 $253 $264

Over 50 Years Old – Elementary 1859.78.6 $5,874 $6,119

Over 50 Years Old – Middle 1859.78.6 $6,212 $6,471

Over 50 Years Old – High 1859.78.6 $8,132 $8,471

Over 50 Years Old – Special Day Class – Severe 1859.78.6 $18,721 $19,502

Over 50 Years Old – Special Day Class – Non-Severe 1859.78.6 $12,519 $13,041

Over 50 Years Old – State Special School – Severe 1859.78.6 $31,201 $32,502

ATTACHMENT B

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS
State Allocation Board Meeting, January 24, 2018

Grant Amount Adjustments

N
ew

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
M

od
er

ni
za

tio
n



Regulation 
Section

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil                      
Effective 1-1-17

Current Adjusted 
Grant Per Pupil
Effective 1-1-18

1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.77.3
1859.82 

1859.125 
1859.125.1   

$182 $190

1859.72 
1859.73.2 
1859.82 

1859.125 
1859.125.1   

$326 $340

1859.76 $14,120 $14,709

1859.76 $18,073 $18,827

1859.73.1 $6,791 $7,074

1859.83 $112,957 $117,667

1859.83 $20,333 $21,181

1859.78.2 $3,621 $3,772

1859.2 $362 $377

1859.2 $653 $680

1859.81 $37,231 $38,784

1859.163.1 $11,161 $11,626

1859.163.1 $11,816 $12,309

1859.163.1 $14,997 $15,622

1859.163.1 $31,351 $32,658

1859.163.1 $20,966 $21,840

1859.163.5 $94,131 $98,056

1859.163.5 $16,943 $17,650

ATTACHMENT B

Additional Stop 

Project Assistance (for school district with less than 2,500 pupils)

Project Assistance (for school district with less than 2,500 pupils)

Parking Spaces

ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT TO SCHOOL FACILITY PROGRAM GRANTS 

Toilet Facilities (per square foot)

Charter School Additional Stop

Charter School Elementary

Charter School Middle

Charter School High

Charter School Special Day Class - Severe

Current Replacement Cost - Toilets (per square foot)

Interim Housing – Financial Hardship (per classroom)

Charter School Two-stop Elevator

Charter School Facilities Program - Preliminary Apportionment Amounts

Current Replacement Cost - Other (per square foot)

General Site Grant (per acre for additional acreage being acquired)

Two-stop Elevator 

New Construction / Modernization / Joint-Use

Therapy/Multipurpose Room/Other (per square foot)

Charter School Special Day Class - Non-Severe

January 2018

Grant Amount Adjustments

New Construction Only

Modernization Only 

Facility Hardship / Rehabilitation



SchoolWorks, Inc. 
8331 Sierra College Blvd, Suite 221 
Roseville, CA  95661 
916.733.0402 

 

 

 

Determination of Average State allowed amounts for Site Development Costs

Elementary Schools Original 2009 Adjusted

OPSC Site Inflation Site Project 2009

District Project # Acres Development Factor Development Year Cost/Acre

Davis Jt Unified 3 9.05 $532,282 38.4% $1,473,469 2004 $162,814

Dry Creek Jt Elem 2 8.5 $516,347 46.2% $1,509,322 2002 $177,567

Dry Creek Jt Elem 5 11.06 $993,868 20.1% $2,387,568 2006 $215,874

Elk Grove Unified 5 12.17 $556,011 48.2% $1,648,316 2001 $135,441

Elk Grove Unified 10 11 $690,120 48.2% $2,045,888 2001 $185,990

Elk Grove Unified 11 10 $702,127 48.2% $2,081,483 2001 $208,148

Elk Grove Unified 14 10 $732,837 46.2% $2,142,139 2002 $214,214

Elk Grove Unified 16 9.86 $570,198 46.2% $1,666,733 2002 $169,040

Elk Grove Unified 17 10 $542,662 46.2% $1,586,243 2002 $158,624

Elk Grove Unified 20 10 $710,730 43.2% $2,034,830 2003 $203,483

Elk Grove Unified 25 10 $645,923 38.4% $1,788,052 2004 $178,805

Elk Grove Unified 28 10.03 $856,468 24.4% $2,130,974 2005 $212,460

Elk Grove Unified 39 9.91 $1,007,695 20.1% $2,420,785 2006 $244,277

Folsom-Cordova Unified 1 9.79 $816,196 20.1% $1,960,747 2006 $200,281

Folsom-Cordova Unified 4 7.5 $455,908 46.2% $1,332,654 2002 $177,687

Folsom-Cordova Unified 5 8 $544,213 46.2% $1,590,776 2002 $198,847

Folsom-Cordova Unified 8 8.97 $928,197 11.2% $2,063,757 2007 $230,073

Galt Jt Union Elem 2 10.1 $1,033,044 38.4% $2,859,685 2004 $283,137

Lincoln Unified 1 9.39 $433,498 46.2% $1,267,148 2002 $134,947

Lodi Unified 3 11.2 $555,999 46.2% $1,625,228 2002 $145,110

Lodi Unified 10 11.42 $1,245,492 46.2% $3,640,669 2002 $318,798

Lodi Unified 19 9.93 $999,164 11.2% $2,221,545 2007 $223,721

Lodi Unified 22 10 $1,416,212 7.7% $3,051,426 2008 $305,143

Natomas Unified 6 8.53 $685,284 46.2% $2,003,138 2002 $234,834

Natomas Unified 10 9.83 $618,251 43.2% $1,770,061 2003 $180,067

Natomas Unified 12 9.61 $735,211 24.4% $1,829,275 2005 $190,351

Rocklin Unified 8 10.91 $593,056 46.2% $1,733,548 2002 $158,895

Stockton Unified 1 12.66 $1,462,232 7.7% $3,150,582 2008 $248,861

Stockton Unified 2 10.5 $781,675 43.2% $2,237,946 2003 $213,138

Stockton Unified 6 12.48 $1,136,704 20.1% $2,730,703 2006 $218,806

Tracy Jt Unified 4 10 $618,254 46.2% $1,807,204 2002 $180,720

Tracy Jt Unified 10 10 $573,006 38.4% $1,586,202 2004 $158,620

Washington Unified 1 8 $446,161 46.2% $1,304,163 2002 $163,020

Washington Unified 4 10.76 $979,085 7.7% $2,109,575 2008 $196,057 2018

Adjustment

Totals 341.16 $68,791,833 Average $201,641 $248,896

Middle and High Schools Original 2009 Adjusted

OPSC Site Inflation Site Project 2009

District Project # Acres Development Factor Development Year Cost/Acre

Western Placer Unified 4 19.3 $5,973,312 24.4% $7,431,085 2005 $385,030

Roseville City Elem 2 21.6 $1,780,588 48.2% $2,639,311 2000 $122,190

Elk Grove Unified 4 66.2 $8,659,494 48.2% $12,835,704 2000 $193,893

Elk Grove Unified 13 76.4 $9,791,732 48.2% $14,513,986 2001 $189,974

Elk Grove Unified 18 84.3 $13,274,562 43.2% $19,002,626 2003 $225,417

Grant Jt Union High 2 24 $2,183,840 48.2% $3,237,039 2000 $134,877

Center Unified 1 21.2 $1,944,310 46.2% $2,841,684 2002 $134,042

Lodi Unified 2 13.4 $1,076,844 46.2% $1,573,849 2002 $117,451

Lodi Unified 6 13.4 $2,002,164 46.2% $2,926,240 2002 $218,376

Galt Jt Union Elem 1 24.9 $2,711,360 46.2% $3,962,757 2002 $159,147

Tahoe Truckee Unified 2 24 $2,752,632 43.2% $3,940,412 2003 $164,184

Davis Unified 5 23.3 $3,814,302 43.2% $5,460,199 2003 $234,343

Woodland Unified 3 50.2 $8,664,700 46.2% $12,663,792 2002 $252,267

Sacramento City Unified 1 35.2 $4,813,386 46.2% $7,034,949 2002 $199,856

Lodi Unified 4 47 $7,652,176 46.2% $11,183,950 2002 $237,956

Stockton Unified 3 49.1 $8,959,088 43.2% $12,824,996 2003 $261,202

Natomas Unified 11 38.7 $3,017,002 38.4% $4,175,850 2004 $107,903

Rocklin Unified 11 47.1 $11,101,088 24.4% $13,810,282 2005 $293,212 2018

Totals 679.3 $142,058,711 Average $209,125 Adjustment

Middle Schools: 260.7 $49,447,897 Middle $189,704 $234,162

High Schools: 418.6 $92,610,814 High $221,217 $273,060  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.2 

Subject: Contracts for Village and District Solar Projects, Res. #04-18-19 

Submitter:  Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent  

Background: After some of the challenges the District encountered with the Power Purchase 
Agreement the District entered into in June of 2016, it was determined that it 
would be wiser to finish the final photovoltaic system project with a more 
traditional construction delivery method, which provides better safe guards to the 
District for any issues that are encountered during the construction process.  
California Government Code section 4217.12 allows the District to engage in a 
design build contract for energy service.  In the spring of 2016 the District sent out 
an RFP for this project, and over the past few months has been in negotiation with 
Sun Light and Power, who presented an offer which was the best value for the 
District.  The attached energy service contract, which includes a Design Build 
Contract, Exhibit D to the contract, an Operations Maintenance Contract and a 
Performance Guarantee, along with a Resolution to approve the work, is being 
presented to the board for consideration at the best means in which to complete the 
District’s solar energy project.  
 

Highlights: When completed the project will reduce energy purchased from the utility for 
Village Elementary School and the District Office by approximately 80%.   The 
District is using $551,000 of Proposition 39 funding for the project and will 
contribute $297,000 of our own funds.   It is projected that the District contribution 
will be repaid from energy savings in approximately 7 years.  The contract 
documents also include a performance guarantee and a clause that we may break 
the contract of potential steel tariffs increase the price of the project to make it 
unaffordable.    

Challenges: Arntz Builders Incorporated will be completing Village Phase I and starting 
Village Phase II, while Sun Light and Power is installing this system.   
Coordination of trades will be essential.   

Analysis: This project will benefit the General Fund’s bottom line as well as produce clean 
energy.   It will also provide an opportunity for Village Elementary School to 
incorporate solar energy production more into the science curriculum.   

Next Steps: If the board approves the project, work will commence on June 4th and be 
substantially complete by early fall. 

 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 
Attachments: Design Build Agreement 

Exhibit D 
 Operations and Maintenance Agreement  
 Performance Guarantee Agreement 
  
 

Resolution 04-18-19 
  
Fiscal Impact: Total cost of $848,000 consisting of $551,000 in proposition 39 funds and 

$279,000 in local funds.   Local funds to be paid back in approximately 7 years 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
1 

AGREEMENT FOR  

DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING  

OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

 This Agreement for Design, Installation and Commissioning of Solar/Photovoltaic 

System (“Agreement”) is made as of April 10, 2018, between the Rincon Valley Union 

School District (“District”) and Sun Light & Power, a California corporation (“Contractor”) 

(together, “Parties”). 

1. Services.   

1.1. Contractor shall furnish to the District the labor, equipment, material, and services 

as described in the attached Exhibit “A” (“Services” or “Work”).  In the event of a 

conflict or ambiguity relating to the system, the scope of Work, or District or 

Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement, the language of the District’s 

Request for Proposals for a Solar Photovoltaic Project (dated 2/5/2018) (“RFP”) 

shall control, including RFP Attachments A1, A2, A3, A4.1-4.2, and A5.1-5.6, then 

the main body of this Agreement, then the terms of the Operations and Maintenance 

Agreement and Performance Guarantee Agreement, which are attached at 

Exhibit “B” and Exhibit “C,” then the Contractor’s proposal.  Contractor’s Work 

also comprises and is defined at RFP Attachments A1 (Scope of Work), A2 (Criteria 

and Codes), A3 (Submittals and Project Acceptance), A4.1-4.2 (Site Details), A5.1-

5.6 (Specifications), which are attached at Exhibit “D.”  

1.2. The Work will be performed at the following locations: 

 Village Elementary: 900 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

 District Office: 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405  

Each location is referenced as a “Site” and collectively, “Sites” and the systems to be 

installed at the Sites are collectively referenced as “System.”  

2. Term and Critical Dates.   

2.1. Contractor shall commence providing Services under this Agreement upon 

execution of the Agreement by both Parties, and will diligently perform such 

Services as required and will achieve “Final Completion” of the Services no later 

than October 31, 2018. 

2.2. “Completion of Disruptive Activities” means: (a) that all Site access and Work which 

would unduly disrupt, delay, or prevent students’ and staff’s ability to get to and 

from school and/or into and out of classrooms; or (b) which would disturb or 

interfere with the educational programs or other activities onsite by distraction or 

noise or environmental pollution; or (c) which would jeopardize the safety of the 

students or staff, are wholly completed.  Examples of Disruptive Activities include, 

but are not limited to underground work, demolition work, backfill, compaction, 

paving and striping, erection of canopy structures, and physical installation of 

modules. Completion of Disruptive Activities must be achieved by no later 

than August 3, 2018.  

2.3. “Substantial Completion” means: (a) that the Work is wholly installed and 

operational such that all requirements for Permission to Operate (“PTO”) have been 

completed; (b) Contractor’s heavy equipment and vehicles are no longer on-site; 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
2 

(c) DSA has provided sign off on the Work sufficient to achieve PTO; and (d) that 

PTO has been formally requested from the local utility company.  Substantial 

Completion must be achieved by no later than September 3, 2018. 

2.4. Commercial Operation Date (“COD”) means the date when the Work and the 

System: (a) is commissioned and wholly operational, having received PTO from the 

local utility company; (b) has been formally accepted by the District and its 

governing board, including the Agreements for Operations & Maintenance and 

Performance Guarantee; and (c) all punch list items have been completed to the 

satisfaction of the inspector(s) and District.  COD must be no later than October 

3, 2018, assuming the local utility company grants PTO within 30 days of 

Contractor’s initial request. 

2.5. “Final Completion” means that each of the following has been achieved in 

accordance with Prudent Industry Practices and the other requirements of the 

Contract Documents: (a) achievement of mechanical completion and all conditions 

thereto continue to be satisfied; (b) all of the electrical works and all other 

infrastructure necessary to achieve connection of the System to the utility’s 

electricity transmission system are fully energized; (c) successful testing of all 

systems comprising the Work in accordance with the requirements of the 

Agreement; (d) the System is capable of operating safely in accordance with 

Prudent Industry Practices and all applicable Laws; (e) all documentation has been 

delivered to the District and all contractual obligations have been completed and 

accepted by the District; and (f) final approvals have been obtained (i.e., the Work 

is certified and closed out with all authorities having jurisdiction over the Work).   

3. Liquidated Damages.  Time is of the essence for all Work under this Agreement  It is 

hereby understood and agreed that it is and will be difficult and/or impossible to ascertain 

and determine the actual damage that the District will sustain in the event of and by 

reason of Contractor's delay; therefore, Contractor agrees that it shall pay to the District 

the sum of ONE HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS ($150) per day, calculated as the District’s 

daily lost gross utility savings in the first year, as “Liquidated Damages” for each and 

every day’s delay beyond the Completion of Disruptive Activities date that Completion of 

Disruptive Activities is not achieved.  It is hereby understood and agreed that this amount 

is not a penalty.  In the event any portion of the Liquidated Damages is not paid to the 

District, the District may deduct that amount from any money due or that may become 

due the Contractor under this Agreement, the District may seek recovery of Liquidated 

Damages from the Contractor’s Performance Bond Surety and/or the District may seek 

recovery of Liquidated Damages from the Contractor or the Performance Bond Surety 

without having exhausted remedies against the other.  

4. Proposition 39 Compliance.  Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 

support and assist the District in finalizing the District’s Proposition 39 grant requirements, 

including providing pertinent information for any post-project reporting activities. 

[CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE.] 

  



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
3 

5. Contract Documents.  The following documents are collectively referred to as the 

“Contract Documents”: 

   X  Signed Agreement 

  Proposal 

   X  Notice to Proceed 

     Terms and Conditions to Contract 

   X  Noncollusion Declaration  

   X  Prevailing Wage and Related Labor 

Requirements Certification 

   X  Workers’ Compensation Certification 

   X  Iran Contracting Act Certification 

   X  Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

   X  Tobacco-Free Environment Certification 

   X  Hazardous Materials Certification 

   X  Lead-Based Materials Certification 

   X  Criminal Background Investigation 

 Certification 

      Roofing Project Certification 

   X  Insurance Certificates and 

Endorsements 

   X  Performance Bond 

   X  Payment Bond 

  Specifications 

   X  Plans 

   X  Project Schedule 

   X  Exhibit “A” (“Scope of Work”) 

   X  Exhibit “B” (Operations & 

Maintenance Agreement) 

   X  Exhibit “C” (Performance 

Guarantee Agreement) 

   X  Exhibit “D” (RFP Attachments A1, 

A2, A3, A4.1-4.2, and A5.1-5.6) 

      [Other] 

      [Other] 

 

The signed Agreement, certifications, bonds and insurance certificates and endorsements 

shall be presented to the District for approval within seven (7) days after execution of the 

Agreement. Contractor shall not commence the Work under this Agreement until the 

Contractor has submitted and the District has approved the performance bond, payment 

(labor and material) bond, the certificate(s) and affidavit(s), and the endorsement(s) of 

insurance required. 

6. Compensation.  As compensation for the Work, the District shall pay to the Contractor 

SEVEN HUNDRED THIRTY-THREE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED FIFTY-FIVE DOLLARS 

($733,155.00) (“Contract Price”).  Such amount shall not be increased without the express 

approval of the District’s governing board (“Board”), with the exception of adjustments 

made as a result of change orders submitted and approved in accordance with this 

Agreement.  The Contract Price is allocated to each Site as follows: 

 

Pricing fluctuations of photovoltaic system components can occur due to actions by third-

parties that are beyond the parties’ reasonable control (“Third-Party Changes”).  Third-

Party Changes include: import tariffs, taxes and quotas; changes in utility tariffs and 

regulations; mandatory prevailing wage rate increases; and other changes in law affecting 

price of the materials for the project.  Contractor established the Contract Price based on 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
4 

its current pricing when its proposal was submitted, including its pricing for specified 

carport structure materials. Contractor’s documented costs for carport structure materials 

is $113,000 or $0.671/Wp.  If Contractor’s documented costs increase at any time prior 

to the date that Contractor receives a confirmed order for the affected carport structure 

materials (“Order Date”) as a result of Third-Party Changes, Contractor may request a 

Change Order to increase the Contract Price by the documented increase in cost amount 

for carport structure materials, excluding any mark-ups and profit. Contractor shall 

provide clear documentation that such increase was due to a Third-Party Change.  In no 

event should this request for Change Order be later than five calendar days after DSA 

approval.  On the Order Date, if Contractor’s documented costs for carport structure 

materials materially increase, meaning an increase by more than 25% for the cost of 

materials due to a Third-Party Change, excluding any mark-ups and profit, District has 

the right to terminate further performance of the Agreement, and shall pay Contractor’s 

actual unpaid costs for Services incurred up to the Order Date, and for those materials 

already onsite and installed as of the Order Date.  Conversely, if on the Order Date, 

Contractor’s documented costs for carport structure materials decrease, the Parties agree 

that the District shall benefit from this price adjustment, and the Contract Price will be 

decreased by the documented decrease in cost amount for carport structure materials, 

excluding any mark-ups and profit. 

7. Expenses.  District shall not be liable to Contractor for any costs or expenses paid or 

incurred by Contractor in performing Services for District. 

8. Payment.  On a monthly basis, Contractor shall submit an application for payment based 

upon the estimated value for materials delivered or services performed under the 

Agreement as of the date of submission (“Application for Payment”).  Within thirty (30) 

days after District’s approval of the Application for Payment, Contractor shall be paid a 

sum equal to ninety-five percent (95%), a higher retention amount is required pursuant 

to Public Contract Code section 7201(b)(4), of the value of the Work performed (as verified 

by District’s designated representative and Inspector and certified by Contractor) up to 

the last day of the previous month, less the aggregate of previous payments and amount 

to be withheld.  The District may deduct from any payment an amount necessary to protect 

the District from loss because of: (1) any sums expended by the District in performing 

any of Contractor’s obligations under the Agreement which Contractor has failed to 

perform or has performed inadequately; (2) defective Work not remedied; (3) stop notices 

as allowed by state law; (4) reasonable doubt that the Work can be completed for the 

unpaid balance of the Total Contract Price or by the scheduled Final Completion date; (5) 

unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by Contractor; (6) unauthorized deviations from 

the Agreement; (7) failure of the Contractor to maintain or submit on a timely basis proper 

and sufficient documentation as required by the Agreement or by District during the 

prosecution of the Work; (8) erroneous or false estimates by the Contractor of the value 

of the Work performed; (9) any sums representing expenses, losses, or damages, as 

determined by the District, incurred by the District for which Contractor is liable under the 

Agreement; and (10) any other sums which the District is entitled to recover from 

Contractor under the terms of the Agreement or pursuant to state law, including section 

1727 of the Labor Code.  The failure by the District to deduct any of these sums from a 

progress payment shall not constitute a waiver of the District’s right to such sums.  The 

District shall retain five percent (5%) from all amounts owing as retention.  Retention 

shall be paid pursuant to Public Contract Code sections 7107 and 7200.  

9. Independent Contractor.  Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be 

and act as an independent contractor.  Contractor understands and agrees that he/she 

and all of his/her employees shall not be considered officers, employees, agents, partner, 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
5 

or joint venture of the District, and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature 

normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District's employees are 

normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or 

Worker's Compensation.  Contractor shall assume full responsibility for payment of all 

federal, state and local taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social 

security and income taxes with respect to Contractor's employees.  Contractor shall be 

liable for its own actions, including its negligence or gross negligence, and shall be liable 

for the acts, omissions, or errors of its agents or employees.   

10. Conflict of Interest.  Contractor represents that it has no existing interest and will not 

acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which could conflict in any manner of degree with 

the performance of the Work required under this Agreement and that no person having 

any such interest shall be employed by Contractor. 

11. Standard of Care.  Contractor's Services will be performed, findings obtained, reports 

and recommendations prepared in accordance with generally and currently accepted 

principles and practices of Solar Practices and all Applicable Law, including the applicable 

provisions of California Code of Regulations, Title 24, Pacific Gas and Electric, Co.’s 

applicable interconnection requirements (“PG&E”), DSA requirements, and the District’s 

Design Guides, Technical Specifications, and other requirements under the RFP.  

Contractor represents and warrants that it is fully experienced in projects of the nature 

and scope of Work, and that it is properly qualified, licensed and equipped to supply and 

perform the Work.  The Work completed herein must meet the approval of the District and 

shall be subject to the District’s general right of inspection and supervision to secure the 

satisfactory completion thereof. 

12. Originality of Services.  Contractor agrees that all technologies, formulae, procedures, 

processes, methods, writings, ideas, dialogue, compositions, recordings, teleplays and 

video productions prepared for, written for, or submitted to the District and/or used in 

connection with this Agreement, shall be wholly original to Contractor and shall not be 

copied in whole or in part from any other source, except that submitted to Contractor by 

District as a basis for such services.  

13. Ownership of Data.  Pursuant to Education Code section 17316, this Agreement creates 

a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the District to use, at its discretion, all plans 

including, but not limited to, record drawings, specifications, estimates and other 

documents that Contractor prepared or caused to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement.  

Contractor retains all rights to all copyrights over designs and other intellectual property 

embodied in the plans, record drawings, specifications, estimates, and other documents 

that Contractor prepares or causes to be prepared pursuant to this Agreement. 

In the event the District changes or uses any fully or partially completed documents 

without Contractor’s knowledge or participation or both, the District agrees to release 

Contractor of responsibility for such changes, and shall hold Contractor harmless from and 

against any and all claims on account of any damages or losses to property or persons, or 

economic losses, arising out of that change or use, unless Contractor is found to be liable 

in a forum of competent jurisdiction.  In the event that the District uses any fully or 

partially completed documents without Contractor’s full involvement, the District shall 

remove all title blocks and other information that might identify Contractor.  

14. Notice to Proceed. After the design of the System is approved by the District, the District 

shall provide a Notice to Proceed to Contractor at which time Contractor shall proceed with 

the construction Work. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
6 

15. Site Examination. Once Contractor conducts a thorough physical inspection of the Sites, 

examined the Sites, and certifies that it accepts all measurements, specifications and 

conditions affecting the Work to be performed at the Sites, Contractor warrants that it has 

made all Site examination(s) that it deems necessary as to the condition of the Sites, its 

accessibility for materials, workers and utilities, and Contractor’s ability to protect existing 

surface and subsurface improvements.  No claim for allowance of time or money will be 

allowed as to any other undiscovered condition on the Sites. 

16. Materials.  Contractor shall furnish, at its own expense, all labor, materials, equipment, 

supplies and other items necessary to complete the services to be provided pursuant to 

this Agreement. 

16.1. Anti-Trust Claim. Contractor and its subcontractor(s) agree to assign to the 

District all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action they may have 

under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act 

(Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business 

and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials 

pursuant to the Agreement or a subcontract. This assignment shall be made and 

become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor, 

without further acknowledgment by the Parties. 

16.2. Substitutions. No substitutions of material from those specified in the Work 

Specifications shall be made without the prior written approval of the District.  

16.3. Hazardous Materials.  If photovoltaic modules using hazardous materials are to 

be provided by Contractor, then the environmental impact of the hazardous material 

usage must be discussed, including any special maintenance requirements and 

proper disposal/recycling of the modules at the end of their useful life.  Modules 

containing hazardous materials must comply with the EPA Landfill Disposal 

Requirements.  Any additional costs and/or District responsibilities related to 

photovoltaic modules containing hazardous materials must be clearly identified. 

16.4. Photovoltaic Modules. Proposed photovoltaic modules must be 

(i) Monocrystalline or Polycrystalline, (ii) eligible under the California Solar Initiative 

(“CSI”) Program; (iii) in compliance with IEEE standards, including without 

limitation, IEEE 1262; (iv) UL listed; and (v) in compliance with the current National 

Electrical Code. 

16.5. Inverters.  Proposed inverters must be: (i) IEEE 929-2000 compliant; (ii) UL 1741 

compliant; and (iii) California Energy Commission eligible. 

17. Equipment and Labor.  Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, 

facilities, transportation, labor, and material necessary to furnish the services herein 

described, the services to be performed at such times and places as directed by and 

subject to the approval of the authorized District representative indicated in the Work 

specifications attached hereto. 

18. Warranty/Quality. Unless a longer warranty is called for elsewhere in this Agreement, 

the Contractor, manufacturer, or their assigned agents shall guarantee the workmanship, 

product or Services performed against defective workmanship, defects or failures of 

materials for a minimum period of one (1) year from filing the Notice of Completion with 

the county in which the Site is located.  All workmanship and merchandise must be 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
7 

warranted to be in compliance with applicable California energy, conservation, 

environmental, and educational standards. 

18.1. PV modules used in this Agreement shall have a twenty-five (25)-year product 

warranty from the date of sale. 

18.2. Power Conditioning Equipment, including inverter(s), shall have a ten (10)-year 

minimum product warranty from the date of sale. 

18.3. Contractor shall be responsible for providing no-cost repair and component 

replacement not covered by the manufacturers of the components of the System 

for a period of ten (10) years after the Final Completion Date on all equipment, 

systems and controls necessary to endure PV production at the performance level 

set forth in the Performance Guarantee.  This provision does not reduce any of 

Contractor’s obligations to the District required by the Operations and Maintenance 

Agreement or the Performance Guarantee Agreement.  

19. Correction of Errors. Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 

reimbursement from the District, any work necessary to correct errors or omissions which 

are caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply with the standard of care required herein. 

20. Trench Shoring. If this Agreement is in excess of Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars 

($25,000) and is for the excavation of any trench deeper than five (5) feet, pursuant to 

Labor Code section 6705, Contractor must submit and obtain District acceptance of, in 

advance of excavation, a detailed plan stamped by a licensed engineer retained by the 

Contractor, showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving ground 

during the excavation of such trench or trenches. 

21. Excavations Over Four Feet. If this Agreement includes excavations over four (4) feet, 

pursuant to Public Contract Code section 7104, Contractor shall promptly, and before the 

following conditions are disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any: (1) Material that 

the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 

25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class 

II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law; (2) Subsurface 

or latent physical conditions at the Sites differing from those indicated; or (3) Unknown 

physical conditions at the Sites of any unusual nature, different materially from those 

ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character 

provided for in the Agreement.   The District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and 

if it finds that the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and 

cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, 

performance of any part of the Work shall issue a change order under the procedures 

described in the Agreement.  In the event that a dispute arises between the District and 

the Contractor whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or 

cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance 

of any part of the work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled 

completion date provided for by the Agreement, but shall proceed with all Work to be 

performed under the Agreement. Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either 

by Agreement or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between 

the Parties. 

22. Lead-Based Paint.  Pursuant to the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act (Education Code 

section 32240 et seq.) and other applicable law, no lead-based paint, lead plumbing and 

solders, or other potential sources of lead contamination shall be utilized on this Project, 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
8 

and only trained and state-certified contractors, inspectors and workers shall undertake 

any action to abate existing risk factors for lead.  Contractor must execute the Lead-Based 

Paint Certification, if applicable. 

23. Change in Scope of Work.  Any change in the scope of the Work, method of 

performance, nature of materials or price thereof, or any other matter materially affecting 

the performance or nature of the Work shall not be paid for or accepted unless such 

change, addition, or deletion is approved in advance and in writing by a valid change order 

executed by the District.  Contractor specifically understands, acknowledges, and agrees 

that the District shall have the right to request any alterations, deviations, reductions, or 

additions to the Work, and the cost thereof shall be added to or deducted from the amount 

of the Contract Price by fair and reasonable valuations.  Contractor also agrees to provide 

the District with all information requested to substantiate the cost of the change order and 

to inform the District whether the Work will be done by the Contractor or a subcontractor.  

In addition to any other information requested, Contractor shall submit, prior to approval 

of the change order, its request for a time extension (if any), as well as all information 

necessary to substantiate its belief that such change will delay the completion of the Work.  

If Contractor fails to submit its request for a time extension or the necessary supporting 

information, it shall be deemed to have waived its right to request such extension.  If any 

change in the scope of the Work is due to, requested because of, or a result of Contractor’s 

design and planning of the Work, Contractor understands and agrees that it will absorb all 

costs and the Contract Price paid by the District will not be affected. 

[CONTINUES ON FOLLOWING PAGE.] 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
9 

For all approved changes in the scope of work that result in a net increase in costs to 

Contractor, the following format shall be used, supported by attached documentation. 

 WORK PERFORMED OTHER THAN BY CONTRACTOR  ADD  DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity & unit cost plus sales tax) $  

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours & rates, fully encumbered) $  

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice) $  

(d) Subtotal $  

(e) Add overhead and profit for any and all tiers of 

subcontractor, the total not to exceed ten percent (10%) of 

item (d) 

$  

(f) Subtotal $  

(g) Add Overhead and Profit for Contractor, not to exceed 

five percent (5%) of Item (f) 

$  

(h) Subtotal $  

(i) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed one and a half 

percent (1.5%) of Item (h) 

$  

(j) TOTAL $  

 

(k) Time (zero, unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted) ___ Calendar Days 

 

 WORK PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR  ADD  DEDUCT 

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity & unit cost plus sales tax)   

(b) Add Labor (attach itemized hours & rates, fully encumbered)   

(c) Add Equipment (attach suppliers’ invoice)   

(d) Subtotal   

(e) Add Overhead and Profit for Contractor, not to exceed 

fifteen percent (15%) of item (d). 

  

(f) Subtotal   

(g) Add Bond and Insurance, not to exceed one and a half 

percent (1.5%) of Item (f) 

  

(h) TOTAL   

 

(i) Time (zero, unless indicated; “TBD” not permitted) ___ Calendar Days 

  

24. Workers. Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 

employees and the employees of its subcontractors and shall not employ or work any unfit 

person or anyone not skilled in work assigned to him or her.  The District may evaluate 

the Contractor in any manner which is permissible under the law.  Any person in the 

employ of the Contractor or a subcontractor whom the District may deem incompetent or 

unfit shall be dismissed from the Site and shall not again be employed at any of the Sites 

without written consent from the District. 

25. Contractor Supervision. Contractor shall provide full-time competent supervision of 

personnel employed on the job site during execution of work and use of equipment, along 

with ensuring the quality of workmanship. 

26. Safety and Security.  Contractor is responsible for maintaining safety in the performance 

of this Agreement, including, conditions at the Work sites.  Contractor shall be responsible 

to ascertain from the District the rules and regulations pertaining to safety, security, and 

driving on campus grounds. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
10 

27. Clean Up.  Debris shall be removed from the Sites.  The Sites shall be in order at all times 

when work is not actually being performed and shall be maintained in a reasonably clean 

condition. 

28. Access to Work.  District representatives shall at all times have access to the Work 

wherever it is in preparation or in progress, including storage and fabrication.  Contractor 

shall provide safe and proper facilities for such access so that District representatives may 

perform their functions. 

29. Protection of Work and Property.  Contractor shall erect and properly maintain at all 

times, as required by conditions and progress of the Work, all necessary safeguards, signs, 

barriers, lights, and security persons for protection of workers and the public, and shall 

post danger signs warning against hazards created by the Work.  In an emergency 

affecting life and safety of life or of Work or of adjoining property, Contractor, without 

special instruction or authorization from District, is permitted to act at his discretion to 

prevent such threatened loss or injury. 

30. Occupancy. District reserves the right to occupy buildings at any time before formal 

project completion and such occupancy shall not constitute final acceptance or approval 

of any part of the Work covered by this Agreement, nor shall such occupancy extend the 

date specified for completion of the Work. 

31. No Disruption of Service.  Contractor shall ensure that the facilities at the Sites are not 

without power at any time while school or school-related activities are in session.  All Work 

must be coordinated with operations staff at the District and on-site to ensure continuity 

of service. 

32. Force Majeure.  Contractor shall be excused from performance hereunder during the 

time and to the extent that it is prevented from obtaining delivery, or performing by act 

of God, fire, strike, loss, or shortage of transportation facilities, lock-out, commandeering 

of materials, product, plant, or facilities by the government, when satisfactory evidence 

thereof is presented to the District, provided that it is satisfactorily established that the 

non-performance is not due to the fault or neglect of the Contractor.  This force majeure 

provision does not cover or apply to any tariffs affecting the materials necessary for 

completion and performance of the Work. 

33. Termination. 

33.1. For Convenience by District.  District may, at any time, with or without reason, 

terminate this Agreement and compensate Contractor only for Services 

satisfactorily rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by District shall 

be sufficient to stop further performance of services by Contractor.  Notice shall be 

deemed given when received by the Contractor or no later than three (3) days after 

the day of mailing, whichever is sooner.  In the event that District terminates this 

Agreement pursuant to this section, District shall compensate Contractor for work 

completed to date as a pro-rata amount of the full fees, costs, and expenses.  

33.2. With Cause by District.  District may terminate this Agreement upon giving of 

written notice of intention to terminate for cause.  Cause shall include: 

33.2.1. material violation of  this Agreement by the Contractor;  or   



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
11 

33.2.2. any act by Contractor exposing the District to liability to others for personal 

injury or property damage; or 

33.2.3. Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt, Contractor makes a general assignment 

for the benefit of creditors or a receiver is appointed on account of 

Contractor's insolvency. 

Written notice by District shall contain the reasons for such intention to terminate 

and unless within three (3) calendar days after that notice the condition or violation 

shall cease, or satisfactory arrangements for the correction thereof be made, this 

Agreement shall upon the expiration of the three (3) calendar days cease and 

terminate.  In the event of this termination, the District may secure the required 

services from another contractor.  If the expense, fees, and costs to the District 

exceed the cost of providing the service pursuant to this Agreement, Contractor 

shall immediately pay the excess expense, fees, and/or costs to the District upon 

the receipt of the District’s notice of these expense, fees, and/or costs.  The 

foregoing provisions are in addition to and not a limitation of any other rights or 

remedies available to District. 

33.3. Upon termination, Contractor shall provide the District with all documents produced 

maintained or collected by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement, whether or not 

such documents are final or draft documents. 

34. Indemnification.  For construction services, to the full extent permitted by California 

law, Contractor shall, at its sole expense, defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 

District, the State of California, and their agents, representatives, officers, consultants, 

employees, trustees, and volunteers (the “Indemnified Parties”) from any and all 

demands, losses, liabilities, claims, suits, and actions (the “claims”) of any kind, nature, 

and description, including, but not limited to, personal injury, death, property damage, 

and consultants and/or attorneys’ fees and costs, directly or indirectly arising out of, 

connected with, or resulting from the performance of the Agreement or from any activity, 

work, or thing done, permitted, or suffered by the Contractor under or in conjunction with 

this Agreement, unless the claims are caused wholly by the sole negligence or willful 

misconduct of the indemnified parties.   

For design services, to the full extent permitted by California law, Consultant shall 

indemnify and hold harmless the District, its Governing Board, agents, representatives, 

officers, consultants, employees, trustees, and volunteers (the “Indemnified Parties”) 

from any and all claims arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to the negligence, 

recklessness, or willful misconduct of Consultant.  Contractor shall, to the furthest extent 

permitted by California law, defend the Indemnified Parties at Contractor’s own expense, 

including attorneys’ fees and costs, from any and all claims arising out of, pertaining to, 

or relating to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of Contractor. The District 

shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Contractor proposes 

to defend the indemnified parties. 

35. Insurance.  

35.1. The Contractor shall procure and maintain at all times it performs any portion of 

the Services the following insurance: 

35.1.1. General Liability.  Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit 

per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage in 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
12 

the form of Comprehensive General Liability and Contractual Liability.  If 

Commercial General Liability or other form with a general aggregate limit is 

used, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to each 

project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required 

occurrence limit. 

35.1.2. Automobile Liability Insurance.  One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 

combined single limit per occurrence for any automobile that shall protect 

the Contractor and the District from all claims of bodily injury, property 

damage, personal injury, death, and medical payments arising performing 

any portion of the Services by Contractor. 

35.1.3. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  For all 

of the Contractor’s employees who are subject to this Agreement and to the 

extent required by the applicable state or federal law, Contractor shall keep 

in full force and effect, a Workers' Compensation policy. That policy shall 

provide employers' liability coverage with minimum liability coverage of One 

Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.  

Contractor shall provide an endorsement that the insurer waives the right 

of subrogation against the District and its respective elected officials, 

officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, trustees, and 

volunteers.  

35.1.4. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions).  One Million Dollars 

($1,000,000) for errors and omissions as appropriate to profession of 

engineer designing photovoltaic system, coverage to continue through 

completion of construction plus two (2) years thereafter. 

35.1.5. Builder's Risk Insurance.  On a replacement cost value basis, Contractor 

shall procure and maintain, during the life of this Agreement, Builder’s Risk 

(Course of Construction), or similar first party property coverage to insure 

against all risks of accidental physical loss and shall include without 

limitation the perils of vandalism and/or malicious mischief (both without 

any limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), theft, sonic disturbance, 

collapse, wind, fire, lightning, smoke.  Coverage shall include debris 

removal, demolition, and reasonable costs for engineering services and 

expenses required as a result of any insured loss upon the Work, including 

completed Work and Work in progress, to the full insurable value thereof. 

35.1.6. Umbrella or Excess Liability.  Four Million Dollars ($4,000,000) per 

occurrence to meet the policy limit requirements of the required policies if 

Contractor’s underlying policy limits are less than required.  There shall be 

no gap between the per occurrence amount of any underlying policy and 

the start of the coverage under the Umbrella Liability Insurance Policy.  Any 

Umbrella Liability Insurance Policy shall protect Contractor, District, State, 

and Project Manager(s) in amounts, and that complies with all requirements 

for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability and Employers’ 

Liability Insurance. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
13 

35.1.7. Other Insurance Provisions.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed 

to contain, the following provisions:  

35.1.7.1. For the general liability and automobile liability policies: 

35.1.7.1.1. The District, its representatives, consultants, 

trustees, officers, officials, employees, agents, and 

volunteers (“Additional Insureds”) are to be covered as 

additional insureds as respects liability arising out of 

activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; 

instruments of Service and completed operations of the 

Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by 

Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or 

borrowed by Contractor.  The coverage shall contain no 

special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the 

Additional Insureds. 

35.1.7.1.2. For any claims related to the Work, Contractor’s 

insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects 

the Additional Insureds.  Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of 

the Contractor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

35.1.7.1.3. Any failure to comply with reporting or other 

provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties 

shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional 

Insureds. 

35.1.7.2. Contractor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured 

against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect 

to the limits of the insurer's liability. 

35.1.7.3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed 

to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by 

either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) 

days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

has been given to the District. 

35.1.7.4. Contractor shall furnish the District with Certificates of Insurance 

showing maintenance of the required insurance coverage and 

original endorsements affecting coverage.  The endorsements are to 

be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage 

on its behalf.  All endorsements are to be received and approved by 

the District before Work commence. 

35.1.8. Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a 

current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable 

to the District. 

36. Payment Bond and Performance Bond.  Contractor shall not commence the Work until 

it has provided to the District, in a form acceptable to the District, a Payment (Labor and 

Material) Bond and a Performance Bond, each in an amount equivalent to one hundred 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
14 

percent (100%) of the Contract Price issued by a surety admitted to issue bonds in the 

State of California and otherwise acceptable to the District. 

37. Permits and Licenses.  Contractor and all Contractor's employees or agents shall secure 

and maintain in force, at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, such permits and licenses as 

are required by law in connection with the furnishing of materials, supplies, or services 

pursuant to this Agreement.  

38. Assignment.  The rights, burdens, duties, or obligations of Contractor pursuant to this 

Agreement shall not be assigned by the Contractor without the prior written consent of 

the District.  

39. Subcontractors.  Subcontractors, if any, engaged by the Contractor for any Service or 

Work under this Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the District.  Contractor 

agrees to bind every subcontractor by the terms of the Agreement as far as such terms 

are applicable to subcontractor’s work, including, without limitation, all indemnification, 

insurance, bond, and warranty requirements.  If Contractor shall subcontract any part of 

this Agreement, Contractor shall be fully responsible to the District for acts and omissions 

of its subcontractor and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by itself, 

including, subcontractor-caused project delays.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall 

create any contractual relations between any subcontractor and the District. 

40. Compliance with Laws.  Contractor shall observe and comply with all rules and 

regulations of the governing board of the District and all federal, state, and local laws, 

ordinances and regulations.  Contractor shall give all notices required by any law, 

ordinance, rule and regulation bearing on conduct of the Work as indicated or specified.  

If Contractor observes that any of the Work required by this Agreement is at variance with 

any such laws, ordinance, rules or regulations, Contractor shall notify the District, in 

writing, and, at the sole option of the District, any necessary changes to the scope of the 

Work shall be made and this Agreement shall be appropriately amended in writing, or this 

Agreement shall be terminated effective upon Contractor’s receipt of a written termination 

notice from the District.  If Contractor performs any work that is in violation of any laws, 

ordinances, rules or regulations, without first notifying the District of the violation, 

Contractor shall bear all costs arising therefrom. 

40.1. Contractor hereby acknowledges that the Project Manager(s), the Project 

Inspector(s), and the Division of the State Architect have authority to approve 

and/or suspend the Work if the Contractor’s Work does not comply with the 

requirements of the Contract Documents, Title 24 of the California Code of 

Regulations, and all applicable laws.  Contractor shall be liable for any delay caused 

by its non-compliant Work. 

40.2. Labor Compliance.  The Work under this Agreement is subject to labor compliance 

monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”) 

pursuant to Labor Code section 1771.4 and Title 8 of the California Code of 

Regulations.  Contractor specifically acknowledges and understands that it shall 

perform the Work of this Agreement while complying with all the applicable 

provisions of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1, of the Labor Code, including, without 

limitation, the requirement that the Contractor and all of its Subcontractors shall 

timely submit complete and accurate electronic certified payroll records as required 

by the Contract Documents, or the District may not issue payment.   



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
15 

40.3. Labor Code Requirements.  Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions 

of the Labor Code, Division 3, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1-5, including, without 

limitation, the payment of the general prevailing per diem wage rates.  Copies of 

the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file with the District.  In addition, the 

Contractor and each subcontractor shall comply with Chapter 1 of Division 2, Part 

7 of the Labor Code, beginning with Section 1720, and including Section 1735, 

1777.5 and 1777.6, forbidding discrimination, and Sections 1776, 1777.5 and 

1777.6 concerning the employment of apprentices by Contractor or subcontractors.  

Willful failure to comply may result in penalties, including loss of the right to bid on 

or receive public works contracts. 

40.4. Certified Payroll Records.  Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall keep 

accurate certified payroll records of employees.  Contractor shall upload, and shall 

cause each Subcontractor performing any portion of the Work under this Contract 

to upload, an accurate and complete certified payroll record (“CPR”) electronically 

using DIR’s eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering 

each record manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online on a weekly 

basis at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html or 

current application and URL, showing the name, address, social security number, 

work classification, straight-time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, 

and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or 

other employee employed by the Contractor and/or each subcontractor in 

connection with the Work.  Any delay in Contractor and/or its Subcontractor(s) 

providing CPRs to the DIR in a timely manner may directly delay Contractor’s 

payment. The CPRs enumerated hereunder shall also be provided directly to the 

requesting party, whether the District or DIR, within ten (10) days after receipt of 

each written request.  In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this 

section, Contractor shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to 

receipt of written notice specifying in what respects Contractor must comply with 

this section.  Should noncompliance still be evident after the ten (10) day period, 

Contractor shall, as a penalty to District, forfeit up to one hundred dollars ($100) 

for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker, until strict compliance is 

effectuated.  Upon the request of the Labor Commissioner, these penalties shall be 

withheld from progress payments then due. 

41. Audit.  Contractor shall establish and maintain books, records, and systems of account, 

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, reflecting all business 

operations of Contractor transacted under this Agreement.  Contractor shall retain these 

books, records, and systems of account during the Term of this Agreement and for three 

(3) years thereafter.  Contractor shall permit the District, its agent, other representatives, 

or an independent auditor to audit, examine, and make excerpts, copies, and transcripts 

from all books and records, and to make audit(s) of all billing statements, invoices, 

records, and other data related to the Services covered by this Agreement.  Audit(s) may 

be performed at any time, provided that the District shall give reasonable prior notice to 

Contractor and shall conduct audit(s) during Contractor’s normal business hours, unless 

Contractor otherwise consents. 

42. Non-Discrimination.  Contractor agrees not to discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, 

promotion, demotion, or termination practices on the basis of race, religious creed, 

national origin, ancestry, sex, age, or physical handicap in the performance of this 

Agreement and to comply with the provisions of the California Fair Employment and 

Housing Act as set forth in part 2.8 of division 3 of the California Government Code, 

commencing at section 12900; the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964, as set forth in Public 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
16 

Law 88-352, and all amendments thereto; Executive Order 11246; and all administrative 

rules and regulations found to be applicable to Contractor and subcontractor. 

43. Environmental Attributes and Financial Incentives.  District shall own all right, title, 

and interest associated with or resulting from the development, construction, installation 

and ownership of any facilities installed on the Work (“Generating Facilities”).  This 

ownership includes the production, sale, purchase or use of the energy output including, 

and includes without limitation: 

43.1. All Environmental Attributes associated in any way with the Generating Facilities.  

“Environmental Attributes” includes, without limitation, Tradable Renewable 

Certificates, green-e tags, allowances, reductions or other transferable indicia 

denoting carbon offset credits or indicating generation of a particular quantity of 

energy from a renewable energy source by a renewable energy facility attributed 

to the Energy during the Term created under a renewable energy, emission 

reduction, or other reporting program adopted by a Governmental Authority, or for 

which a registry and a market exists (which, as of the Effective Date are certificates 

issued by Green-e in accordance with the Green-e Renewable Electric Certification 

Program, National Standard Version 1.3 administered by the Center of Resource 

Solutions) or for which a market may exist at a future time. 

43.2. All Environmental Financial Incentives associated in any way with the Generating 

Facilities.  “Environmental Financial Incentives” shall mean each of the following 

financial rebates and incentives that is in effect as of the date of this Agreement or 

may come into effect in the future: (i) performance-based incentives, rebates and 

any other incentive programs offered by or in the State of California (or any political 

subdivision thereof) under the federal government’s, any municipality’s, any utility’s 

or any other state’s solar program or initiative, incentive tax credits (including 

investment tax credits arising under the Code) other tax benefits or grants in lieu 

thereof (including without limitation the monetization of tax benefits), and 

accelerated depreciation (collectively, “incentives”), howsoever named or referred 

to, with respect to any and all fuel, emissions, air quality, energy generation, or 

other environmental or energy characteristics, resulting from the construction, 

ownership or operation of the Generating Facilities or from the use of solar 

generation or the avoidance of the emission of any gas, chemical or other substance 

into the air, soil or water attributable to the sale of energy generated by the 

Generating Facilities; and (ii) all reporting rights with respect to such incentives. 

44. Limitation of District Liability.  Other than as provided in this Agreement, District’s 

financial obligations under this Agreement shall be limited to the payment of the 

compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 

Agreement, in no event, shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim is based 

on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, 

including, but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with 

this Agreement for the services performed in connection with this Agreement. 

45. Confidentiality.  Contractor and all Contractor’s agents, personnel, employee(s), and/or 

subcontractor(s) shall maintain the confidentiality of all information received in the course 

of performing the Services to the extent allowed by law.  This requirement to maintain 

confidentiality shall extend beyond the termination of this Agreement. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
17 

46. Claims Process.   

46.1. Performance during Dispute or Claims Process.  Contractor and its 

subcontractors shall continue to perform its Work under the Agreement and shall 

not cause a delay of the Work during any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or 

arbitration proceeding, except by written agreement by the District. 

46.2. Definition of a Claim.  Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204, the term 

“Claim” means a separate demand by the Contractor, sent by registered mail or 

certified mail with return receipt requested, for one or more of the following: 

46.2.1. A time extension, including without limitation, for relief of damages or 

penalties for delay assessed by the District under the Agreement; 

46.2.2. Payment by the District of money or damages arising from Work done 

by, or on behalf of, the Contractor pursuant to the Agreement and payment of 

which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which Contractor is not 

otherwise entitled to; or 

46.2.3. An amount of payment disputed by the District. 

46.3. Claims Presentation. 

46.3.1. If Contractor intends to apply for an increase in the Total Contract Price 

or contract time for any reason including, without limitation, the acts of District 

or its agents, Contractor shall, within thirty (30) days after the event giving 

rise to the Claim, give notice of the Claim in writing, including an itemized 

statement of the details and amounts of its Claim for any increase in the Total 

Contract Price or contract time, including a schedule analysis and any and all 

other documentation substantiating Contractor’s claimed damages.  

Otherwise, Contractor shall have waived and relinquished its dispute against 

the District and Contractor’s claims for compensation or an extension of time 

shall be forfeited and invalidated.  Likewise, failure to timely submit a claim 

and the requisite supporting documentation shall constitute a waiver of such 

claim.  

46.3.2. The Claim shall identify: 

46.3.2.1. The issues, events, conditions, circumstances and/or causes 

giving rise to the dispute, and shall show, in detail, the cause and effect 

of same; 

46.3.2.2. The pertinent dates and/or durations and actual and/or 

anticipated effects on the Total Contract Price, project schedule 

milestones and/or contract time adjustments;  

46.3.2.3. The line-item costs for labor, material, and/or equipment, if 

applicable; and 

46.3.2.4. A request by Contractor, if any, to waive the claims procedure 

under Public Contract Code section 9204 and proceed directly to the 

commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
18 

46.3.3. The Claim shall include the following certification by the Contractor: 

“The undersigned Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that the 

attached dispute is made in good faith; that the supporting data is 

accurate and complete to the best of my knowledge and belief; that 

the amount requested accurately reflects the adjustment for which 

Contractor believes the District is liable; and that I am duly authorized 

to certify the dispute on behalf of the Contractor.” 

46.3.4. Furthermore, Contractor understands that the value of the attached 

dispute expressly includes any and all of the Contractor’s costs and expenses, 

direct and indirect, resulting from the Work performed on the Sites, additional 

time required for the Work and/or resulting from delay to the Work.  Contractor 

may not separately recover for overhead or other indirect costs.  Any costs, 

expenses, damages, or time extensions not included are deemed waived. 

46.4. Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9204. 

46.4.1. STEP 1: 

46.4.1.1. Upon receipt of a Claim by registered or certified mail, return 

receipt  requested, including the documents necessary to substantiate 

it, the District shall conduct a reasonable review of the Claim and, 

within a period not to exceed forty-five (45) days, shall provide the 

Contractor a written statement identifying what portion of the Claim is 

disputed and what portion is undisputed.  Upon receipt of a Claim, the 

District and Contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the 

time period to provide a written statement. If the District needs 

approval from its governing body to provide the Contractor a written 

statement identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion 

of the Claim, and the governing body does not meet within the forty-

five (45) days or within the mutually agreed to extension of time 

following receipt of Claim sent by registered mail or certified mail, 

return receipt requested, the District shall have up to three (3) days 

following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the 

governing body after the forty-five (45)-day period, or 

extension, expires to provide Contractor a written statement 

identifying the disputed portion and the undisputed portion. 

Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall be 

processed and made within sixty (60) days after the District issues its 

written statement. Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required 

by this Section, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per annum. 

46.4.1.2. Upon receipt of a Claim, the Parties may mutually agree to waive, 

in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the commencement of a 

civil action or binding arbitration, as applicable.  In this instance, 

District and Contractor must comply with the sections, below, 

regarding Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq. and Government 

Code Claim Act Claims. 

46.4.1.3. If the District fails to issue a written statement, or to otherwise 

meet the time requirements of this section, this shall result in the Claim 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
19 

being deemed rejected in its entirety.  A Claim that is denied by reason 

of the District’s failure to have responded to a Claim, or its failure to 

otherwise meet the time requirements of this Section, shall not 

constitute an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the Claim or 

the responsibility or qualifications of Contractor. 

46.4.2. STEP 2: 

46.4.2.1. If Contractor disputes the District’s written response, or if the 

District fails to respond to a Claim within the time prescribed, 

Contractor may demand in writing an informal conference to meet and 

confer for settlement of the issues in dispute.  Upon receipt of a 

demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail, return 

receipt requested, the District shall schedule a meet and confer 

conference within thirty (30) days for settlement of the dispute.  Within 

ten (10) business days following the conclusion of the meet and confer 

conference, if the Claim or any portion of the Claim remains in dispute, 

the District shall provide the Contractor a written statement identifying 

the portion of the Claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is 

undisputed. 

46.4.2.2. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall be 

processed and made within sixty (60) days after the District issues its 

written statement.  Amounts not paid in a timely manner as required 

by this Section, shall bear interest at seven percent (7%) per annum. 

46.4.3. STEP 3: 

46.4.3.1. Any disputed portion of the Claim, as identified by Contractor in 

writing, shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District 

and Contractor sharing the associated costs equally. The District and 

Contractor shall mutually agree to a mediator within ten (10) business 

days after the disputed portion of the Claim has been identified in 

writing. If the Parties cannot agree upon a mediator, each party shall 

select a mediator and those mediators shall select a qualified neutral 

third party to mediate with regard to the disputed portion of the Claim. 

Each party shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective 

mediator in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If 

mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the Claim remaining in dispute 

shall be subject to applicable procedures outside this Section. 

46.4.3.2. For purposes of this Section, mediation includes any nonbinding 

process, including, but not limited to, neutral evaluation or a dispute 

review board, in which an independent third party or board assists the 

Parties in dispute resolution through negotiation or by issuance of an 

evaluation. Any mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in 

this Section. 

46.4.3.3. Unless otherwise agreed to by the District and Contractor in 

writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to this section shall excuse 

any further obligation under Public Contract Code section 20104.4 to 

mediate after litigation has been commenced. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
20 

46.4.4. STEP 4: 

If mediation under this Section does not resolve the Parties’ dispute, the 

District may, but does not require arbitration of disputes under private 

arbitration or the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program. 

46.5. Subcontractor Pass-Through Claims. 

46.5.1. If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal standing to 

assert a claim against a District because privity of contract does not exist, the 

contractor may present to the District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or 

lower tier subcontractor.  A subcontractor may request in writing, either on his 

or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier subcontractor, that Contractor 

present a Claim for work which was performed by the subcontractor or by a 

lower tier subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The subcontractor 

requesting that the Claim be presented to the District shall furnish reasonable 

documentation to support the Claim. 

46.5.2. Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of this written request from a 

subcontractor, Contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to 

whether the Contractor presented the Claim to the District and, if Contractor 

did not present the Claim, provide the subcontractor with a statement of the 

reasons for not having done so. 

46.5.3. The Contractor shall bind all its subcontractors to the provisions of this 

section and will hold the District harmless against Claims by subcontractors 

46.6. Government Code Claim Act.  If a Claim, or any portion thereof, remains in 

dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable dispute resolution requirements, the 

Contractor shall comply with all claims presentation requirements as provided in 

Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 

910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent 

to the Contractor’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes of 

those provisions, the running of the time within which a claim must be presented 

to the District shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits its written claim 

until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable meet 

and confer process. 

46.7. Claim Resolution pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20104 et seq.  

In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to performance of the Work, the 

interpretation of this Agreement, or payment or nonpayment for Work performed 

or not performed, the Parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute by those 

procedures set forth in Public Contract Code section 20104, et seq.  Pending 

resolution of the dispute, Contractor agrees it will neither rescind the Agreement 

nor stop the progress of the Work, but will allow determination by the court of the 

State of California, in the county in which the District’s administration office is 

located, having competent jurisdiction of the dispute.  All claims of over Three 

Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($375,000), which are outside the scope 

of Public Contract Code section 20104, et seq., may be determined by mediation if 

mutually agreeable, otherwise by litigation.  The demand for mediation of any claim 

over Three Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($375,000) shall be made 

within a reasonable time after written notice of the dispute has been provided to 

the other party, but in no case longer than ninety (90) days after initial written 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
21 

notice, and the demand shall not be made later than the time of Contractor’s 

submission of the request for final payment.   

47. Attorney Fees and Costs.  Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or 

provisions of this Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection 

expenses, witness fees, court costs, and attorney’s fees. 

48. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be 

deemed to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally 

delivered or deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage 

prepaid, return receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile 

transmission, addressed as follows: 

If to District: 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

ATTN: Deputy Superintendent 

1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

FAX: 

EMAIL: jpandolfo@rvusd.org 

PHONE: (707) 542-7375 

If to Contractor: 

Sun Light & Power 

ATTN: Gary Gerber 

1035 Folger Avenue 

Berkeley, CA 94710 

FAX: (510) 845-1133 

EMAIL: gary@sunlightandpower.com 

PHONE: (510) 812-7659 

Any notice personally given or sent by facsimile transmission shall be effective upon 

receipt.  Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day 

next following delivery thereof to the overnight delivery service.  Any notice given by mail 

shall be effective three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail.  A courtesy copy 

of the notice shall be sent by electronic mail.  

49. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and the rights, duties and 

obligations of the Parties shall be determined and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of California.  The Parties further agree that any action or proceeding brought 

to enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be maintained in county in 

which the District’s administrative offices are located. 

50. Severability.  If any term, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by a court of 

competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will 

nevertheless continue in full force and effect, and shall not be affected, impaired or 

invalidated in any way. 

51. Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition 

herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, condition, 

or any subsequent breach of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition herein 

contained. 

52. Captions and Interpretations.  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely 

for convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  

No provision of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that 

party of its legal representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be 

construed as if jointly prepared by the Parties. 

53. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits.  The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto 

are hereby incorporated herein by reference. 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
22 

54. Cooperation.  The Parties hereby agree to execute all such other documents and to take 

all such other action as may be reasonably necessary to effect the purposes of this 

Agreement. 

55. Binding Contract.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and upon their 

successors and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of said Parties and their successors 

and assigns. 

56. Authority to Bind Parties.  Neither party in the performance of any and all duties under 

this Agreement, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, has any authority to bind 

the other to any agreements or undertakings. 

57. No Rights in Third Parties.  This Agreement does not create any rights in, or inure to 

the benefit of, any third party except as expressly provided herein. 

58. Signature Authority.  Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and 

perform this Agreement, and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party 

has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 

59. Counterparts.  This Agreement and all amendments to it may be executed in 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.  A facsimile or electronic 

signature shall be deemed to be the equivalent of the actual original signature.  All 

counterparts so executed shall constitute one (1) document binding the Parties. 

60. Provisions Required By Law Deemed Inserted.  Each and every provision of law and 

clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted 

herein and this Agreement shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein. 

61. Entire Contract. This Agreement sets forth the entire contract between the Parties and 

fully supersedes any and all prior agreements, understanding, written or oral, between 

the Parties pertaining to the subject matter thereof.  This Agreement may be modified 

only in writing upon mutual consent. 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE.] 



 

  
AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM BETWEEN 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
23 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date indicated 

below. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

 
Date:     , 2018 

By:       

Print Name:      

Print Title:      

Address: 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
  Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

Telephone:      

Facsimile:      

E-Mail:       

SUN LIGHT & POWER 

 

 
Date:     , 2018 

By:       

Print Name: Gary T. Gerber 

Print Title: President 

License No.: 326203 

Address: 1035 Folger Ave  
 Berkeley CA 94710 

Telephone: (510) 845-2997 

Facsimile: (510) 845-1133 

E-Mail:  gary@sunlightandpower.com 

 

Information regarding Contractor: 

Proper Name: SUN LIGHT & POWER 

License No.: 326203 

Address:  1035 Folger Ave 

Berkeley CA 94710 

Telephone: (510) 845-2997 

Facsimile: (510) 845-1133 

E-Mail:  info@sunlightandpower.com 

Type of Business Entity: 

____ Individual    

____ Sole Proprietorship 

____ Partnership  

____ Limited Partnership 

   X   Corporation, State: California 

____ Limited Liability Company  

____ Other:        

94-235 7077:  

Employer Identification and/or Social 

Security Number 

 

NOTE:  Section 6041 of the Internal 

Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 6041) and 

Section 1.6041-1 of Title 26 of the 

Code of Federal Regulations (26 

C.F.R. 1.6041-1) requires the 

recipients of $600.00 or more to 

furnish their taxpayer information 

to the payer.  In order to comply 

with these requirements, the 

District requires the Contractor to 

furnish the information requested 

in this section. 

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER  
EXHIBIT “A” - PAGE 1 

Exhibit “A” 

 

Scope of Work 

 

 

 

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
EXHIBIT “B” 

Exhibit “B” 

 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement 

 

[See Attached.] 

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
EXHIBIT “C” 

Exhibit “C” 

 

Performance Guarantee Agreement 

 

[See Attached.] 

 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AND SUN LIGHT & POWER 
EXHIBIT “D” 

Exhibit “D” 

 

RFP Attachments  

 

[See Attached.] 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

PREVAILING WAGE AND RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 

PREVAILING WAGE AND 

RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:       between Rincon Valley Union 

School District (“District”) and Sun Light & Power (“Contractor”) (“Contract” or “Project”). 

I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract 

requirements regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours’ notice, 

payroll records, and apprentice and trainee employment requirements, for all work on the 

above Project, including, without limitation, labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by 

the Department of Industrial Relations.   

Date:              

Name of Contractor:  Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 

END OF DOCUMENT



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 

PROJECT/CONTRACT NO.:       between Rincon Valley Union 

School District (“District”) and Sun Light & Power (“Contractor”) (“Contract” or “Project”). 

Labor Code section 3700 in relevant part provides: 

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or 

more of the following ways: 

a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers 

duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state; and/or 

b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to 

self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the 

Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any 

compensation that may become due to his employees. 

I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer 

to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 

accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the work of this Contract. 

Date:              

Name of Contractor:  Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

(In accordance with Labor Code sections 1860 and 1861, the above certificate must be signed 

and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work under this Contract.) 

 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 

  



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CERTIFICATION 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

Solar Photovoltaic Project between Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) and 

Sun Light & Power (“Contractor”) (“Contract” or “Project”). 

1. Contractor hereby certifies that no asbestos, or asbestos-containing materials, 

polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state 

Environmental Protection Agency or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous 

material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal or state 

laws, rules, or regulations (“New Material Hazardous”), shall be furnished, installed, 

or incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or 

equipment used to affect any portion of Contractor’s work on the Project for District. 

2. Contractor further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the 

above-mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities. 

3. Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing 

but not limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and 

actinolite.  Any or all material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent 

(.1%) asbestos shall be defined as asbestos-containing material. 

4. Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous 

Material shall be settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized 

testing procedure, at the District’s determination.  The costs of any such tests shall 

be paid by Contractor if the material is found to be New Hazardous Material. 

5. All work or materials found to be New Hazardous Material or work or material 

installed with “New Hazardous Material” containing equipment will be immediately 

rejected and this work will be removed at Contractor’s expense at no additional cost 

to the District. 

6. Contractor has read and understood the document Hazardous Materials Procedures & 

Requirements, and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein.  Contractor 

certifies that it is knowledgeable of, and shall comply with, all laws applicable to the 

work, including, but not limited to, all federal, state, and local laws, statutes, 

standards, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the Project. 

Date:              

 

Name of Contractor:  Sun Light & Power 

 

Signature:             

 

Print Name:             

 

Title:              

 

END OF DOCUMENT



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION - PAGE 1 OF 3 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

 

Solar Photovoltaic Project between Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) and 

Sun Light & Power (“Contractor”) (“Contract” or “Project”). 

This certification provides notice to the Contractor that: 

(1) Contractor’s work may disturb lead-containing building materials. 

(2) Contractor shall notify the District if any work may result in the disturbance of 

lead-containing building materials. 

(3) Contractor shall comply with the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, if lead-

based paint is disturbed in a six-square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-

square-foot or greater area outdoors. 

1. Lead as a Health Hazard 

Lead poisoning is recognized as a serious environmental health hazard facing children today.  

Even at low levels of exposure, much lower than previously believed, lead can impair the 

development of a child's central nervous system, causing learning disabilities, and leading to 

serious behavioral problems.  Lead enters the environment as tiny lead particles and lead 

dust disburses when paint chips, chalks, peels, wears away over time, or is otherwise 

disturbed.  Ingestion of lead dust is the most common pathway of childhood poisoning; lead 

dust gets on a child’s hands and toys and then into a child’s mouth through common hand-

to-mouth activity.  Exposures may result from construction or remodeling activities that 

disturb lead paint, from ordinary wear and tear of windows and doors, or from friction on 

other surfaces. 

Ordinary construction and renovation or repainting activities carried out without lead-safe 

work practices can disturb lead-based paint and create significant hazards.  Improper removal 

practices, such as dry scraping, sanding, or water blasting painted surfaces, are likely to 

generate high volumes of lead dust. 

Because the Contractor and its employees will be providing services for the District, and 

because the Contractor's work may disturb lead-containing building materials, CONTRACTOR 

IS HEREBY NOTIFIED of the potential presence of lead-containing materials located within 

certain buildings utilized by the District.  All school buildings built prior to 1978 are presumed 

to contain some lead-based paint until sampling proves otherwise 

2. Overview of Law 

Education Code section 32240 et seq. is known as the Lead-Safe Schools Protection Act.  

Under this act, the Department of Health Services is to conduct a sample survey of schools in 

the State of California for the purpose of developing risk factors to predict lead contamination 

in public schools.  (Ed. Code, § 32241.) 

Any school that undertakes any action to abate existing risk factors for lead is required to 

utilize trained and state-certified contractors, inspectors, and workers. (Ed. Code, § 32243, 

subd. (b).)  Moreover, lead-based paint, lead plumbing, and solders, or other potential 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION - PAGE 2 OF 4 

sources of lead contamination, shall not be utilized in the construction of any new school 

facility or the modernization or renovation of any existing school facility.  (Ed. Code, § 32244.) 

Both the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (“Fed/OSHA”) and the 

California Division of Occupational Safety and Health (“Cal/OSHA”) have implemented safety 

orders applicable to all construction work where a contractor’s employee may be 

occupationally exposed to lead. 

The OSHA Regulations apply to all construction work where a contractor’s employee may be 

occupationally exposed to lead.  The OSHA Regulations contain specific and detailed 

requirements imposed on contractors subject to those regulations.  The OSHA Regulations 

define construction work as work for construction, alteration, and/or repair, including painting 

and decorating.  Regulated construction work includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

a. Demolition or salvage of structures where lead or materials containing lead are 

present; 

b. Removal or encapsulation of materials containing lead; 

c. New construction, alteration, repair, or renovation of structures, substrates, or 

portions thereof, that contain lead, or materials containing lead; 

d. Installation of products containing lead; 

e. Lead contamination/emergency cleanup; 

f. Transportation, disposal, storage, or containment of lead or materials 

containing lead on the Sites or location at which construction activities are 

performed; and 

g. Maintenance operations associated with the construction activities described in 

the subsection. 

Because it is assumed by the District that all painted surfaces (interior as well as exterior) 

within the District contain some level of lead, it is imperative that the Contractor, its workers 

and subcontractors fully and adequately comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations 

governing lead-based materials (including title 8, California Code of Regulations, section 

1532.1). 

Contractor shall notify the District if any work may result in the disturbance of lead-

containing building materials.  Any and all work that may result in the disturbance 

of lead-containing building materials shall be coordinated through the District.  A 

signed copy of this Certification shall be on file prior to beginning work on the 

Project, along with all current insurance certificates. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION - PAGE 3 OF 4 

3. Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, Section 402(c)(3) of the Toxic 

Substances Control Act 

The EPA requires lead safe work practices to reduce exposure to lead hazards created by 

renovation, repair and painting activities that disturb lead-based paint.  Pursuant to the 

Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule (RRP), renovations in homes, childcare facilities, and 

schools built prior to 1978 must be conducted by certified renovations firms, using renovators 

with training by a EPA-accredited training provider, and fully and adequately complying with 

all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials, including those rules 

and regulations appearing within title 40 of the Code of Federal Regulations as part 745 (40 

CFR 745). 

If failure to comply with these laws, rules, and regulations results in a Site or worker 

contamination, Contractor will be held solely responsible for all costs involved in any required 

corrective actions, and shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, pursuant to 

the indemnification provisions of the Contract, for all damages and other claims arising 

therefrom.  If lead disturbance is anticipated in the Work, only persons with appropriate 

accreditation, registrations, licenses and training shall conduct this Work. 

The RRP requirements apply to all contractors who disturb lead-based paint in a six-square-

foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot or greater area outdoors.  If a DPH-certified 

inspector or risk assessor determines that a home constructed before 1978 is lead-free, the 

federal certification is not required for anyone working on that particular building. 

4. Contractor’s Liability 

If the Contractor fails to comply with any applicable laws, rules, or regulations, and that failure 

results in a Site or worker contamination, the Contractor will be held solely responsible for all 

costs involved in any required corrective actions, and shall defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions of the Contract, for all 

damages and other claims arising therefrom. 

If lead disturbance is anticipated in the work, only persons with appropriate accreditation, 

registrations, licenses, and training shall conduct this work. 

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to properly dispose of any and all waste 

products, including but not limited to, paint chips, any collected residue, or any other visual 

material that may occur from the prepping of any painted surface.  It will be the responsibility 

of Contractor to provide the proper disposal of any hazardous waste by a certified hazardous 

waste hauler.  This company shall be registered with the Department of Transportation (DOT) 

and shall be able to issue a current manifest number upon transporting any hazardous 

material from any school site within the District. 

The Contractor shall provide the District with any sample results prior to beginning work, 

during the work, and after completion of the work.  The District may request to examine, 

prior to commencement of the work, the lead training records of each employee of the 

Contractor. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION - PAGE 4 OF 4 

THE CONTRACTOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT IT: 

1. HAS RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL LEAD-BASED MATERIALS ON THE 

DISTRICT’S PROPERTY; 

2. IS KNOWLEDGEABLE REGARDING AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, 

RULES, AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORK WITH, AND DISPOSAL, OF LEAD. 

THE UNDERSIGNED WARRANTS THAT HE OR SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF 

OF AND BIND THE CONTRACTOR.  THE DISTRICT MAY REQUIRE PROOF OF SUCH AUTHORITY. 

Date:              

Name of Contractor:   Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 

END OF DOCUMENT 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION CERTIFICATION 

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND INVESTIGATION CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned does hereby certify to the governing board of the District as follows:  

 

 That I am a representative of the Contractor under contract with the District;  

 That I am familiar with the facts herein certified; and  

 That I am authorized and qualified to execute this certificate on behalf of Contractor.  

 

Contractor certifies that it has taken at least one of the following actions with respect to the 

construction Project that is the subject of the Contract (check all that applies): 

 The Contractor has complied with the fingerprinting requirements of Education 

Code section 45125.1 with respect to all Contractor’s employees and all of its 

Subcontractors’ employees who may have contact with District pupils in the course 

of providing services pursuant to the Contract, and the California Department of 

Justice has determined that none of those employees has been convicted of a 

felony, as that term is defined in Education Code section 45122.1.  A complete and 

accurate list of Contractor's employees and of all of its subcontractors' employees 

who may come in contact with District pupils during the course and scope of the 

Contract is attached hereto; and/or  

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor has installed or will install, 

prior to commencement of Work, a physical barrier at the Work Site, that will limit 

contact between Contractor's employees and District pupils at all times; and/or  

 Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor certifies that all 

employees will be under the continual supervision of, and monitored by, an 

employee of the Contractor who the California Department of Justice has 

ascertained has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony.  The name and 

title of the employee who will be supervising Contractor's employees and its 

subcontractors' employees is 

 
Name:          

Title:           

 

 The Work on the Contract is at an unoccupied school site and no employee and/or 

subcontractor or supplier of any tier of Contract shall come in contact with the 

District pupils. 

 

Contractor’s responsibility for background clearance extends to all of its employees, 

Subcontractors, and employees of Subcontractors coming into contact with District pupils 

regardless of whether they are designated as employees or acting as independent contractors 

of the Contractor. 

 

Date:              

Name of Contractor:   Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

PERFORMANCE BOND - PAGE 1 OF 2 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

(100% of Contract Price) 

 

(Note:  Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) 

 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) 

and Sun Light & Power (“Principal”) have entered into a contract for the furnishing of all 

materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, convenient, and proper to perform 

the following project: 

 

Solar Photovoltaic Project 

(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated    , 2018, and all of the Contract 

Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and made a part 

hereof; and  

WHEREAS, said Principal is required under the terms of the Contract to furnish a bond for the 

faithful performance of the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and        (“Surety”) are held 

and firmly bound unto the Board of the District in the penal sum of Seven Hundred Thirty-

Three Thousand One Hundred Fifty-Five Dollars ($733,155.00), lawful money of the 

United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made we bind ourselves, our 

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns jointly and severally, firmly by these 

presents, to: 

- Promptly perform all the work required to complete the Project; and  

- Pay to the District all damages the District incurs as a result of the Principal’s failure 

to perform all the Work required to complete the Project. 

Or, at the District’s sole discretion and election, the Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for completing 

the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the District 

of the lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the District and 

make available as Work progresses sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the “balance 

of the Total Contract Price,” and to pay and perform all obligations of Principals under the Contract, 

including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the 

payment of liquidated damages.  The term “balance of the Total Contract Price,” as used in this 

paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable to Principal by the District under the Contract and 

any modifications thereto, less the amount previously paid by the District to the Principal, less any 

withholdings by the District allowed under the Contract.  District shall not be required or obligated 

to accept a tender of a completion contractor from the Surety for any or no reason. 

The condition of the obligation is such that, if the above bound Principal, its heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly 

keep and perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in the Contract and any alteration 

thereof made as therein provided, on its part to be kept and performed at the time and in the 

intent and meaning, including all contractual guarantees and warrantees of materials and 

workmanship, and shall indemnify and save harmless the District, its trustees, officers and agents, 

as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and 

remain in full force and virtue. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

PERFORMANCE BOND - PAGE 2 OF 2  

Surety expressly agrees that the District may reject any contractor or subcontractor which may be 

proposed by Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Principal.  Surety 

shall not utilize Principal in completing the Project nor shall Surety accept a Bid from Principal for 

completion of the Work if the District, when declaring the Principal in default, notifies Surety of the 

District’s objection to Principal’s further participation in the completion of the Work. 

As a condition precedent to the satisfactory completion of the Contract, the above obligation shall 

hold good for a period ending one year after the date of Final Completion during which time 

Surety’s obligation shall continue if Contractor shall fail to make full, complete, and satisfactory 

repair and replacements and totally protect the District from loss or damage resulting from or 

caused by defective materials or faulty workmanship.  The above obligation is separate from and 

does not affect to the obligations under the Performance Guarantee Agreement, the Operations 

and Maintenance Agreement, or any warranty obligations that are effective for any period longer 

than one year following the Final Completion date.  Nothing herein shall limit the District’s rights 

or the Contractor or Surety’s obligations under the Contract, law or equity, including, but not 

limited to, the District’s rights against Contractor under California Code of Civil Procedure section 

337.15 

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension of time, 

alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work to be performed thereunder or 

the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond.  The 

Surety also stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of 

this bond by any overpayment or underpayment by the District that is based upon estimates 

approved by the architect.  The Surety does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of 

time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the Contract or to the work or to the specifications. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall for 

all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and Surety 

above named, on the    day of    , 20___. 

  

PRINCIPAL SURETY 

BY BY 

 NAME OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 ADDRESS OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 TELEPHONE NO. OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety’s signatures and a 

Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety.  The California Department of 

Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety insurer. 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

PAYMENT BOND - PAGE 1 OF 2  

PAYMENT BOND 

Contractor’s Labor & Material Bond 

(100% of Contract Price) 

 

(Note: Contractor must use this form, NOT a surety company form.) 

 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) of the Rincon Valley Union School District 

(“District”), and      , (“Principal”) have entered into a contract 

for the furnishing of all materials and labor, services and transportation, necessary, 

convenient, and proper to perform the following project: 

 

Solar Photovoltaic Project 

(“Project” or “Contract”) which Contract dated    , 2018, and all of the 

Contract Documents attached to or forming a part of the Contract, are hereby referred to and 

made a part hereof; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to law and the Contract, the Principal is required, before entering upon 

the performance of the work, to file a good and sufficient bond with the body by which the 

Contract is awarded in an amount equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract price, 

to secure the claims to which reference is made in sections 9000 through 9510 and 9550 

through 9566 of the Civil Code, and division 2, part 7, of the Labor Code.  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Principal and      , (“Surety”) 

are held and firmly bound unto all laborers, material men, and other persons referred to in 

said statutes in the sum of Seven Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand One Hundred Fifty-

Five Dollars ($733,155.00), lawful money of the United States, being a sum not less than 

the total amount payable by the terms of Contract, for the payment of which sum well and 

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or 

assigns, jointly and severally, by these presents. 

The condition of this obligation is that if the Principal or any of its subcontractors, or the heirs, 

executors, administrators, successors, or assigns of any, all, or either of them shall fail to pay 

for any labor, materials, provisions, or other supplies, used in, upon, for or about the 

performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, 

or for amounts required to be deducted, withheld, and paid over to the Employment 

Development Department from the wages of employees of the Principal or any of its 

subcontractors of any tier under section 13020 of the Unemployment Insurance Code with 

respect to such work or labor, that the Surety will pay the same in an amount not exceeding 

the amount herein above set forth, and also in case suit is brought upon this bond, will pay a 

reasonable attorney's fee to be awarded and fixed by the court, and to be taxed as costs and 

to be included in the judgment therein rendered. 

It is hereby expressly stipulated and agreed that this bond shall inure to the benefit of any 

and all persons, companies, and corporations entitled to file claims under section 9100 of the 

Civil Code, so as to give a right of action to them or their assigns in any suit brought upon 

this bond. 

Should the condition of this bond be fully performed, then this obligation shall become null 

and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and affect. 



 

AGREEMENT FOR DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND COMMISSIONING OF SOLAR/PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM 

PAYMENT BOND - PAGE 2 OF 2  

And the Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change, extension 

of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of Contract or the specifications accompanying 

the same shall in any manner affect its obligations on this bond, and it does hereby waive 

notice of any such change, extension, alteration, or addition. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, two (2) identical counterparts of this instrument, each of which shall 

for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the Principal and 

Surety above named, on the    day of    , 20___. 

  

PRINCIPAL SURETY 

BY BY 

 NAME OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 ADDRESS OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 TELEPHONE NO. OF CALIFORNIA AGENT OF SURETY 

 

Contractor must attach a Notarial Acknowledgment for all Surety's signatures and 

a Power of Attorney and Certificate of Authority for Surety.  The California 

Department of Insurance must authorize the Surety to be an admitted surety 

insurer. 

 

 

END OF DOCUMENT 

 



ATTACHMENT A1: SCOPE OF WORK 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  

 

March 28, 2018 Attachment A-1 
 

Project Scope 
The project scope shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

I. DESIGN PHASE 

1. Preliminary design of the PV systems to meet the targeted electrical production or to the 
maximum system size limits allowed by the footprint available or to an agreed upon size with the 
District. Sizing shall include accurate and detailed modeling of system production for each specific 
site based on shading, available tariffs and other site constraints using industry standard modeling 
tools. Preliminary design shall include plans sufficient for presentation and discussion with the 
District. 

2. Detailed design and complete construction drawings of the PV systems and all ancillary work 
sufficient for permitting and construction. Drawings must fully describe all aspects of the 
construction work including fencing, directional boring/trenching, excavations, racking and 
mounting systems, electrical systems, signage, foundations, lighting, ADA, etc. Firm will provide 
Electrical, Structural and all other required engineers of record to provide a complete, stamped 
bid package as required to permit and construct a complete photovoltaic Project. The electrical 
construction drawings shall show and include all conduit below and above finished grade/finish. 
All plans and specifications must meet the approval of DSA, the District, the District’s 
representative, Local Fire Authority and/or any other agency deemed as having jurisdiction over 
Project. 

3. All permitting and permitting fees required to complete the project, including DSA, with the 
exception of CEQA. The District is the lead agency for CEQA permitting. Contractor must support 
the District in preparing CEQA documentation, adhere to CEQA requirements, and implement all 
CEQA mitigation identified by the District. 

II. CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

1. Installation of all equipment necessary for a complete, interconnected and operational solar PV 
system, including, but not limited to:  

▪ Solar PV modules 
▪ Inverters 
▪ All electrical switch gear modification necessary to interconnect the PV system 
▪ All electrical connectors, cabling & components necessary for a complete solar system 
▪ All mounting systems, including canopy structures, ground or roof mount as applicable 
▪ All monitoring equipment necessary to remotely access and download real-time and 

historical PV energy production, with capability to provide reporting sufficient for 
WREGIS REC registration, and to remotely access and download real-time and historical 
site energy consumption data. Historical data on 15-minute interval shall be readily 
available for the full operating history of the PV system. 

▪ Any balance of system items for a complete, interconnected and operational solar PV 
system 

 



ATTACHMENT A1: SCOPE OF WORK 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  

 

March 28, 2018 Attachment A-1 
 

2. Utility interconnection applications, including tariff change requests, processing costs and 
coordination with the local utility(ies) necessary to achieve interconnect and permission to 
operate. 

3. Coordinate and schedule weekly project meetings from Notice to Proceed (NTP) through project 
closeout with all stakeholders. Contractor to maintain formal meeting minutes and a project 
schedule and distribute to all attendees no later than the next scheduled project meeting. 
Frequency of meetings are allowed to change upon the stakeholder availability and approval from 
the District.  

4. Coordination with and support of inspectors, the District and their consultants during design, 
construction, commissioning and close-out. 

5. Any significant changes to District property (i.e. removal of trees, etc.) that are required as a result 
of the installation of the PV project, with the exception of ADA path of travel outside of canopy 
footprints as outlined in Item 6 above, are the sole responsibility of the Contractor.  

6. Project Commissioning, including all associated tasks and documentation related to successfully 
commissioning the system. Commissioning shall include assisting any third party commissioning 
agents/inspectors with their process and providing documentation as requested. 

7. Final PV system “as-built” Construction Documents clearly conformed with all changes during 
construction. 

8. Provision of a comprehensive Operations & Maintenance Manuals for each installed system, per 
requirements listed in Attachment A3 – Submittals and Project Acceptance.  

9. Conduct a training for District staff, with orientation to the Operations & Maintenance Manuals, 
systems and safety procedures. 

10. Secure storage facility at job Site for all PV system equipment and supplies, including any required 
security. 

11. Legal toilet and hand wash sink facilities at job Sites. 

12. Daily cleanup to “broom clean” conditions.  

13. Return disturbed areas to pre-construction conditions including repair of all pavement/concrete, 
restriping, landscape restoration, irrigation restoration, equipment track marks & scuffs on 
finished concrete surfaces and removal of USA markings. 

14. Installation of District approved project information signage and removal at completion of project. 

15. Project closeout, inclusive of obtaining DSA closed and certified status for all project associated 
DSA applications. 

III. OPERATIONAL PHASE 

For District-Owned projects, if Contractor is selected to provide O&M services, all terms outlined in the 
O&M term sheet provided in Attachment C 



ATTACHMENT A1: SCOPE OF WORK 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  

 

March 28, 2018 Attachment A-1 
 

IV. CONSTRUCTION MILESTONES  

(To be negotiated with selected Firm)  
 

Site 

Design 
Complete, DSA 

Package 
Submitted 

Completion of 
Disruptive 
Activities  

Commercial 
Operation 

Final 
Completion  

Village ES [TBD] August 3, 2018 September 30, 2018 [TBD] 

District Office [TBD] August 3, 2018 September 30, 2018 [TBD] 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-1

I. GENERAL CRITERIA

1. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations applicable to
any and all work, operations and sales of electrical energy related to the Proposal and any resulting
PV system(s). The following details are for informational purposes, only, and are not a
comprehensive or limiting list of legal compliance areas or measures.

2. All Project construction is to be completed by the dates specified in Table 1-1 of the RFP, Project
Schedule.

3. Contractor is responsible for obtaining, adhering to, and closing out all required permits. The District
will act as the lead agency for CEQA, Contractor is responsible for supporting the District with CEQA
documentation and implementing any mitigation requirements.

4. The Contractor is responsible for locating and protecting all underground utilities. Contractor shall
utilize Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) for all areas with underground construction. Purchaser to
assist by providing As-built information, as available.

5. The Contractor shall be responsible for DSA closeout and certification of all project-related DSA
applications.

6. The Contractor shall be responsible for specifying and conducting tree removal and/or trimming as
needed to meet production guarantee of PV system arrays. All tree stumps shall be ground or
removed to a minimum of 18 inches below grade. Disturbed area shall be repaired to match
surrounding area. Areas with trees eligible for removal or trimming will be identified with District
approval, or as noted in Attachment A2, and should be confirmed during the site walk. Trees to be
removed shall be identified on the Contractor’s proposal layouts and design drawings. The
operations & maintenance agreement must include any ongoing tree trimming as needed to ensure
the systems meet the performance guarantees.

7. The Contractor is responsible for maintaining fire lane access and clearances at all easements at all
times.

8. The Contractor shall coordinate site access through all phases of the project with key stakeholders
and District identified staff at least 24 hours prior to any personnel arriving on site. The Contractor
shall coordinate with and provide access and support to all inspectors, District staff or consultants
during testing and inspections of all systems. Exclusive of local ordinances, District shall not restrict
access to construction site during standard working hours (7 am – 5 pm, Monday-Friday). District
and Contractor shall provide 24/7 unrestricted access to existing electric utility meter and the utility
lockable disconnect location. No new access roads are planned; however, should the need arise,
District and Seller shall agree upon reasonable accommodations and compensation. District to
permit using on site water and power as available for construction at no charge to District, with the
exception of fire hydrants. District to permit use of a temporary diesel generator onsite during
construction activities, subject to local ordinances.

9. The Contractor shall coordinate closely with the District to ensure all construction activities
minimize impact on operations and events at the sites.

10. Access during regular weekday working hours.

11. Contractor is responsible for on-site installation supervision throughout the duration of the project.



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-2

12. All active work areas must be fenced off from start of work at that area until completion or until
area is safe for entry, whichever is longer. Temporary fencing and access control layouts shall be
submitted to the District and approved for each site prior to commencing construction. Temporary
fencing shall also be installed to protect trees and vegetation adjacent to work areas from
construction damage.

13. Storm Water Pollution Prevention (SWPPP), if applicable based on disturbance. - Contractor shall
ensure implementation and monitoring of a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the
purpose of preventing the discharge of pollutants from the construction site as required by the local
Authority(s) Having Jurisdiction (AHJs).

14. Contractor is to meet applicable codes and specifications with regard to dust during construction
and seek to minimize dust migration from the construction site.

15. Contractor acknowledges that adjacent facilities may remain in operation during all or a portion of
the Work, and it shall take all reasonable precautions to minimize noise as required by applicable
laws and the Contract Documents. Notice of proposed noisy operations, including without
limitation, operation of pneumatic demolition tools, concrete saws, and other equipment, shall be
submitted to District a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours in advance of their performance.
Contractor shall further prevent any of its employees or its Sub-Contractor employees from playing
any recorded music devices or radios or wearing any radio headphone devices for entertainment
while working on the project.

16. Drugs Tobacco, and Alcohol - Contractor shall take such steps as are reasonably necessary to ensure
that employees of Contractor or any of its Sub-Contractor’s employees do not use, consume, or
work under the influence of any alcohol, tobacco or illegal drugs while on the project. Likewise,
Contractor shall prevent its employees or Sub-Contractor’s employees from bringing any animal
onto the project. Contractor shall not violate any written school policies provided to Contractor.

17. Contractor is responsible for patching and repairing all building penetrations performed by the
Contractor during installation. Conduit installed on the exterior of District structures shall be painted
to match.

18. Contractor is responsible for all generated trash. District owned dumpsters and trash bins may not
be used for storage or disposal.

19. Contractor shall clean all work areas on a daily basis and equipment after project completion.
Contractor shall ensure that work areas are clear of construction debris, spoils and that all
demolition and repair has been completed prior to releasing work areas to public access.

20. All staff are to wear identifying clothing at all times when on-site.

21. All staff or Sub-Contractors are to wear District-provided badges during construction.

22. Driving on the Premises shall be limited to periods when students and public are not present. If
driving or deliveries must be made during the school hours, two (2) or more ground guides shall lead
the vehicle across the area of travel. In no case shall driving take place across playgrounds or other
pedestrian paths during recess, lunch, and/or class period changes. The speed limit on-the Premises
shall be five (5) miles per hour (maximum) or less if conditions require. District shall designate a
construction entry point to each site.



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-3

23. During the operational phase, all staff or Sub-Contractors must check in at the office of the
respective school upon arrival at the site.

II. SOLAR PV CRITERIA

1. System area and sizing as shown in Attachment A is generally larger than necessary to allow for
maximum design flexibility. Designs shall meet the production targets specified in Attachment A3 of
the RFP, utilizing the preferred areas first. Should a site have insufficient area identified to meet
production targets, the additional array areas may be recommended.

2. All homerun routes identified in Attachment A are preliminary. The Contractor shall be responsible
for identifying the appropriate conductor route in coordination with the District. Contractor shall
adhere to the number of tie-ins at each site as required in the RFP. Any change from a physical tie-in
to a NEM-A arrangement must be approved in writing by the District.

3. Contractor is responsible for all interconnection applications and work required to achieve Permission
to Operate (PTO) with the local utility.

4. The Contractor shall work with the District as-needed to provide visualizations of proposed systems
and assessment of potential glare or reflectivity issues.

5. Warranties - The Contractor shall be required to provide the following minimum warranties consistent
with Net Energy Metering requirements and the California Public Utility Code 387.5(d)(4), the
Contractor shall provide a warranty of not less than 10 years to protect against defects and more than
a 15% degradation of electrical generation output that may occur as a result of faulty installation.
Standard warranty coverage should be at least twenty-five (25) years for any PV modules, at least ten
(10) years for all inverters, or consistent with current Net Energy Metering Requirements for PV
System warranty requirements, whichever is greater. Meters must have a 1-year warranty to ensure
against defective workmanship, system or component breakdown, or degradation in electrical output
of more than 15% from their originally rated electrical output during the warranty period. For meters
that are integrated into the inverter, the meter warranty period must be 10 years.

III. GENERAL CODES, GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS

The Contractor shall be required to comply with all applicable California public works and project
requirements including, but not limited to:

1. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).
2. American National Standards Institute (ANSI).
3. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
4. California Building Code (CBC).
5. California Electrical Code (most recent).
6. California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).
7. California Fire (CalFire) Solar Photovoltaic Installation Guidelines.
8. California Geological Survey (CGS).
9. California Labor Code
10. California Title 20 and 24.
11. Federal Communications Commission (FCC).
12. Department of State Architects (DSA).



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-4

13. Local and State Fire Code.
14. Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE) 1547: Standard for Interconnecting

Distributed Resources with Electric Power Systems.
15. International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) Technical Committee 82 (TC82).
16. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA), National Electric Code (NEC), Including NFPA 70

and NEC Article 690
17. National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA).
18. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (CAL-OSHA).
19. Local Utility requirements including Net Energy Metering Rules, Interconnection

Requirements and Tariffs.
20. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP).
21. Underwriters Laboratories (UL) Standards, including 1703: Flat-plate Photovoltaic Modules

and Panels and 1741: Standard for Inverters, Converters, Controllers, and Interconnection
System Equipment for Use with Distributed Energy Resources.

22. Uniform Solar Energy Code – ICC.
23. All applicable State and Local Codes and Ordinances.
24. District Specifications and Requirements.
25. DSA IR-16-8 (most recent) Guidelines.
26. DSA PL 07-02 (most recent) Guidelines.

Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all tax law compliance, including, without limitation,
compliance with the requirements related to any use of the Investment Tax Credit. District shall not
make, or cause to be provided any legal guidance or opinions related to taxation matters.

IV. EQUIPMENT AND INSTALLATION STANDARDS

All system design, equipment and installation must conform to the following codes, standards and rating
methodologies.

1. All design, equipment and workmanship must comply with the requirements of the local
electrical utility. The Contractor must ensure all proposed equipment is acceptable to the local
electrical utility and meets the interconnection and code requirements.

2. If any equipment using hazardous materials (i.e. Cadmium or other hazardous materials) are
included in the Project, then the environmental impact of the hazardous material usage must be
discussed, including any special maintenance requirements and proper disposal/recycling of the
equipment at the end of its useful life. Equipment containing hazardous materials must comply
with the EPA Landfill Disposal Requirements. Any additional costs related to equipment
containing hazardous materials must be clearly identified.

3. CPUC approved Electric Rule 21 – Generating Facility Interconnections.

4. UL1741 (Inverters, Converters and Controllers for Independent Power Systems).

5. UL1703 (Standard for Flat Plate Photovoltaic Modules and Panels).

6. IEEE 929 (2000) – Recommended Practice for Utility Interface of Photovoltaic (PV) Systems.

7. IEEE 1262 (1995) – Recommended Practice for Qualifications of Photovoltaic (PV) Modules.



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-5

8. NEC Article 690.

9. All applicable Utility Guidelines and Standards for PV Systems, electrical utility systems and
metering requirements, including net energy metering requirements.

10. Conform to the Utility’s Distribution Interconnection Handbook

11. Wind uplift requirements per the American Society of Civil Engineers Standard for Minimum
Design Loads for Buildings and Other Structures (ASCE 7), and must be able to withstand
applicable design wind speeds for that location (at least 85 mph or 105 mph, as applicable (3-
second gusts).

12. All other applicable codes.

V. CALIFORNIA PUBLIC WORKS COMPLIANCE

The Contractor shall be required to comply with all applicable California public works and project
requirements including, but not limited to:

1. Department of Industrial Relations Notice and Registration. This project subject to compliance
monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR):

a. No Contractor or Sub-Contractor may perform any work in relation to a Proposal or resulting
PPA unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code
section 1725.5 [with limited exceptions from this requirement for bid purposes only under
Labor Code section 1771.1(a)].

b. No Contractor or Sub-Contractor may perform any work in relation to a Proposal or resulting
PPA unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code
section 1725.5 throughout the time such Contractor or Sub-Contractor performs any work.
The District is required to, and shall have the right to terminate any agreement in the event
of non-compliance with this requirement, or require termination of any Contractor or Sub-
Contractor not in compliance with this requirement.

c. Every Contractor or Sub-Contractor performing any work in relation to a Proposal or resulting
PPA will be required to comply with all certified payroll recording and reporting requirements,
including, without limitation, entering certified payroll reports directly into the DIR electronic
eCPR system for any “new” projects awarded after the effective date, April 1, 2015.

2. Prevailing Wages. Pursuant to Section 1720.6 and Section 1771 of the Labor Code, the Project is
subject to the payment of prevailing wages. The Director of Industrial Relations has determined
the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality in which this work is to be performed
for each craft or type of worker needed to execute the Contract which will be awarded to the
Contractor, copies of which are on file and will be made available to any interested party upon
request at the District’s Records Management Department at or online at
http://www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr. A copy of these rates shall be posted by the Contractor at the job
site. The Contractor and all Sub-Contractors under him, shall comply with all applicable Labor
Code provisions, which include the payment of not less than the required prevailing rates to all
workers employed by them in the execution of the Contract and the employment of apprentices.



ATTACHMENT A2: CRITERIA & CODES
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

1/30/2018 A2-6

3. Ineligible Contractors. Pursuant to Public Contract Code § 6109, a Contractor, who is ineligible to
perform work on the public works project pursuant to Section 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the Labor Code,
may not perform any work on this Project.

4. Contractor License. Each Contractor providing any work on the public works project shall be
properly licensed pursuant to the Business and Professions Code and shall be licensed in the
following appropriate classification(s) of Contractor’s license(s), for the Project, and must
maintain the license(s) throughout the duration of the Project: Class B.

5. Non-Collusion Declaration. Contractors shall execute the “Non-Collusion Declaration” included in
Attachment C.

6. Bonding. The Contractor will be required to furnish the District with a Payment and Performance
Bond equal to 100% of the installation contract price, prior to commencement of project work for
all financing options. All bonds are to be secured from a surety that meets all of the State of
California bonding requirements, as defined in Code of Civil Procedure Section 995.120. Proposals
shall include the cost of obtaining such bonds.

7. Fingerprinting Requirements. The Contractor, all of its employees and Sub-Contractors shall
comply with the applicable requirements of California Education Code Section 445125.2 with
respect to fingerprinting of employees who may have contact with the District’s students. In no
event shall any employees of the Contractor or any of its Sub-Contractors come into contact with
the District’s students before complying with the fingerprinting requirements of California
Education Code section 45125.2.

The Contractor shall ensure the safety of the pupils by one or more of the following methods:

a. The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with pupils. None of
Contractor’s or Sub-Contractors’ personnel may interact or converse with students.

b. Submission to the California Department of Justice of fingerprints of all employees of the
Contractor and Sub-Contractors who will have more than limited contact with the students.

c. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the Contractor and its Sub-
Contractors by an employee of the Contractor whom the Department of Justice has
ascertained has not been convicted of a violent or serious felony. For purposes of this
paragraph, an employee of the Contractor or its direct Contractor may submit his or her
fingerprints to the Department of Justice pursuant to subdivision (a) of Education Code
Section 45125.1 and the Department shall comply with subdivision (d) of Section 45125.1.
Prior to allowing worker contact with students, the Contractor or its direct Contractor shall
receive a determination from the Department of Justice that the employee has not been
convicted of a violent or serious felony as defined in Education Code section 45122.1.

8. DSA Approval. The Contractor shall comply with all provisions of the Field Act, Education Code
sections 17280 et seq., including, without limitation, the mandate that no construction, or
alteration of any school building, commence prior to the receipt of the written approval of the
plans by DSA.

9. All other applicable California Public Works Code requirements.



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-1 
 

I. DESIGN PHASE 

A. The District shall review and approve design documentation based on the requirements 
specified in this document and in the RFP. The design drawings and associated documents shall 
represent 100% of the intended and agreed upon scope for the PV project. The Contractor shall 
be solely responsible for providing complete design and engineering, compliant with all 
applicable laws and the requirements of this RFP and any resulting Contract, by and through 
appropriately licensed design professionals, including, without limitation, licensed architects 
and registered professional engineers employed or under direct contract with Contractor.  The 
design professionals so engaged shall serve as the Architect or Engineer of Record and the 
Design Professional in General Responsible Charge of all construction in accordance with the 
Field Act, Education Code sections 17280 et seq.   

B. Upon Contract Execution, Contractor will be given Notice to Proceed (NTP) for the design phase 
of the project. Upon NTP, Contractor may begin due diligence and site discovery in close 
coordination with District staff for site access and scheduling. 

C. The Contractor shall conduct design review meetings, maintain and distribute formal meeting 
minutes for each stage of the process, which shall include, at a minimum, the following design 
stages: 

 

Design Stage Time from Contract Execution 

50% Submittal within 4 weeks 

90% Final Design within 8 weeks 

 
D. The Contractor shall submit an electronic submittal package for each Design Stage including, 

but not limited to the items outlined in Table 1 on the following page. 

E. The Contractor shall submit the design stage package no less than five (5) business days prior to 
the design review meeting. The Contractor shall address all District comments in writing no 
more than five (5) business days from the date formal District comments have been received.  
District comments shall be incorporated into each successive stage of the design review. 
Comment responses shall be provided for each phase of design review. 

F. The District will formally approve, in writing, each phase of the design upon the District’s 
determination that the design is progressing at or beyond the percentage completion expected 
at stage.  The Contractor shall not enter a subsequent design phase without the approval of the 
District.  The Contractor is solely responsible for obtaining approvals from the District and all 
other Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJs).   

 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-2 
 

Table 1 – Design Submittal Packages 

Submittal Requirement 

5
0

%
 D

es
ig

n
 

9
0

%
 F

in
al

 

1. Cover Sheet, with Content, Project Details, Directory, etc. X X 

2. PV System Sizes & Production Estimates (see Item F, below) X X 

3. Overall Site Plan with PV Array Names, Interconnection IDs, Conduit 
Routes, Tree/Light Removal, etc. 

X X 

4. Interconnection Equipment Assessment (see Item G, below) X X 

5. Interconnection Plan  X 

6. Electrical Site Plan Drawings, incl. Balance of System X X 

7. Electrical Single Line Diagrams X X 

8. DC String Wiring Plans  X 

9. Demolition Plans  X 

10. Structural Drawings  X 

11. Equipment Pad and Mounting Details  X 

12. Signage, Trenching, Installation, and Grounding Details  X 

13. Monitoring System Details  X 

14. Lighting Plan, Details and Photometric Plans  X 

15. Complete Design Package Sufficient for DSA or AHJ Review  X 

16. All specifications related to the Scope of Work (see Item I, below) X X 

17. Geotechnical Reports and Associated Drawings X X 

18. Equipment Manufacturer’s Cut Sheets and Details X X 

19. Interconnection Application & Any Utility Correspondence X X 

20. Complete list of all Subcontractors, incl. specialty X X 

21. Contractor’s Commissioning Protocol (see Section III below)  X 

22. Construction Schedule Prelim Detailed 

 

G. The Contractor shall submit a System Size Spreadsheet showing all system sizes by site, year 
one production (kWh), and associated yields (kWh/kWp) per item 2 in Table 1.  The 
spreadsheet shall be submitted at each phase of design as noted above and prior to 
construction. All final system designs shall be within 5% of contracted target production and 
must receive written approval from customer before submittal to the AHJ. Along with the 
System Size Spreadsheet, the Contractor shall submit updated PV modeling and shade analysis 
prior to construction and post construction phase using approved modeling software and 
assumptions. 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-3 
 

H. The Contractor shall conduct an interconnection equipment assessment for each 
interconnection site.  Any issues with existing District or Utility equipment that may prevent 
the system from interconnection to the Utility must be identified at the time of the 50% Design 
submittal. Costs for any upgrades shall be per B2 Cost Proposal Form. 

I. The Contractor shall submit a complete specification packet as part of the 90% Submittal. 
Specification Divisions that shall be included, if they are part of the Scope of Work for the 
Project, are: 

• Cutting and Patching  

• Subsurface Investigation  

• Concrete Forming, Reinforcing, and Finishing  

• Structural Steel Framing  

• Metal Fabrications  

• Roof Patch and Repair 

• Painting and Coating  

• Signage 

• Testing and Commissioning 

• Vegetation Clearing and Control 

• Fencing and Gates 
 

J. The Contractor shall submit complete electronic copies of all Final Approved Permit Set 
drawings prior to Construction.  

K. The Contractor shall coordinate community outreach meetings with the District.   

 

II. CONSTRUCTION PHASE 

A. District shall provide formal NTP for construction upon receipt of acceptable 100% Design Plan 
Set with all necessary AHJ approvals and all required proof of bonding. 

B. Prior to beginning construction, Contractor shall: 

1. Provide a comprehensive onsite Construction Management and Safety Plan for the 
construction of the Project in accordance with all applicable laws, policies and OSHA 
compliant safety practices. Plan should include, at a minimum, address of local emergency 
medical facilities, project directory, information on Sub-Contractors, coordination with 
District staff during specific construction tasks, and communication protocols.  

2. Provide an updated Detailed Construction Schedule and a three week look-ahead. 

3. Obtain all required permits and approvals from the AHJ(s) and the Utility(ies) prior to 
starting Construction, in coordination with the District, and shall make copies available to 
the District of all permit applications and approvals. 

C. The Contractor shall provide Manufacturers' Installation Manuals for major project components, 
including, but not limited to: PV modules, inverters, racking or mounting structure, monitoring 
systems, other major electrical equipment.. When approved by the District, recommended 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-4 
 

installation standards shall become the basis for commissioning, inspecting and accepting or 
rejecting actual installation procedures used on the work.  

D. Prior to ordering equipment and materials, the Contractor shall verify all measurements at each 
project site, and notify the District in writing on any discrepancies between the drawings and 
site measurements. 

E. Any proposed changes to design shall be submitted in writing to the District for approval before 
any changes are made. Submittal for changes shall contain all necessary details of the proposed 
changes and an updated system size and production spreadsheet.  

F. CONSTRUCTION SUBMITTALS:  The following documents and schedules shall be provided by the 
Contractor as listed: 

1. Construction Management & Safety Plan; submitted no later than 15 days prior to site 
mobilization. 

2. Construction Schedule; three week look-ahead updated and submitted weekly, detailed 
schedule minimum of every two weeks 

3. Manufacturers' Installation Manuals; submitted no later than 5 days after construction 
kickoff meeting. 

4. Weekly Meeting minutes; submitted no later than the day prior to the following scheduled 
project meeting. 

5. Test Reports; submitted as available 
6. Factory Tests; submitted as available 
7. Field Tests; submitted as available 
8. All deviations in designs during construction shall be accurately and legibly detailed by the 

Contractor, then presented to the District and its consultants in the form of an RFI. Any 
changes shall be recorded on as-builts.  

9. Proposed change orders shall be formally submitted and approved prior to commencing 
construction on any changed work. 
 

III. COMMISSIONING PHASE 

A. The Contractor shall notify the District and District representatives prior to commencing 
commissioning. 

B. Contractor shall provide electricians and support to District and District representative for 
verification of commissioning and workmanship, including providing reasonable notice prior to 
conducting commissioning activities so District representatives may observe. 

C. A detailed/comprehensive Commissioning Report; submitted 15 days after commissioning has 
been completed on a site-by-site basis. 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-5 
 

D. Commissioning shall proceed per the approved commissioning plan submitted during the Design 
Phase. At a minimum, system commissioning protocol shall include: 

1. Conductors 
1.1. AC & DC conductor inspection / megger testing 
1.2. Wire management check 
1.3. DC string VocIsc testing and recording 
1.4. Confirm all conduits & junction boxes are installed properly/watertight 

2. Inspection of DC fusing and disconnects  
3. Inspection of AC components: AC Disconnect, Main Switch Board, AC Combiner Panel 

Boards, Breakers, Fuses, Terminations, Phasing, OCPD operation, etc. 
4. Grounding & bonding system inspection & continuity testing 
5. Inverters 

5.1. Inverter inspections & tests per manufacturer instructions 
5.2. Inverter start-up & confirm proper inverter settings 
5.3. Inverter output tests - Confirm PV system AC output as expected based on design, 

insolation and inverter readings 
6. IV Curve Trace, Performance testing and recording  
7. Thermal Imaging 

7.1. Check all electrical components while systems are energized 
7.2. Spot check, Modules, Inverters, Disconnects, AC system etc. 

8. Torque spot check on mechanical and electrical terminations 
9. Inspection of corrosion control measures  
10. Workmanship evaluation 
11. Inspection of DAS / CT metering and monitoring equipment 
12. Weather station component inspection and performance audit 
13. Confirm web-based monitoring interface operations 
14. Commissioning of any other major electrical infrastructure installed on the project per 

manufacturer requirements 
15. Commissioning of any other major electrical infrastructure installed on the project per 

manufacturer requirement 
 

IV. CLOSEOUT PHASE 

A. Contractor shall submit complete digital as-builts for all sites for review and approval 

B. The Contractor shall submit documentation of Punch List Completion for items under control of 
the Contractor within 30 days of the District issuing the Final Punch List. The document must be 
signed and show proof of completion of each item. 

C. The Contractor shall submit executed Performance Guarantee (PeGu) Agreement amendment(s) 
within 30 days of PTO at all sites. All performance tables and commercial operation dates must 
be updated with the final as-built statistics. 

D. Contractor shall provide DSA closed and certified documentation for all projects. 

E. Any other Project documentation required by the District. 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-6 
 

F. The Contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive Operations and Maintenance (O&M) 
Manual for each system, within 30 days of the Utility granting Permission to Operate (PTO) for 
that system. O&M manuals shall consist of three (3) hard copy and (3) soft copies on USB flash 
drive in PDF format, provided as a single, bookmarked PDF document. The document shall be a 
well-organized, comprehensive and custom document created for each site which includes, but is 
not limited to: 

1. System Description and Overview 
2. Simplified site plan that shows array naming convention, inverter locations, and 

disconnects 
3. Predicted performance data, including expected production over time 
4. Safety Details, including shut down procedures 
5. Contact information for the system installer and maintenance personnel 
6. As-built drawings. During construction, Contractor shall incorporate all information on 

all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications, and prepare one set of final Record 
Drawings for the District.  The Record Drawings shall incorporate onto one set of 
electronic drawings, all changes from all As-Builts, sketches, details, and clarifications.  
The Contractor shall deliver the Record Drawings to the District at completion of the 
construction. Locations of work buried under or outside each building, including, 
without limitation, all utilities, plumbing and electrical lines and conduits. All 
deviations from the sizes, locations and other features of installations shown in Issue 
for Construction (IFC) plan sets and contract documents. 

7. Complete material list of all items furnished and installed, including but not limited to 
the following:  PV Modules, inverters, wiring, combiner boxes, panelboards, switch 
gear, optimizers, disconnects, boxes, metering and DAS equipment, etc. PV System 
operation details 

8. System testing and commissioning documentation 
9. PTO and any other pertinent Utility documentation 
10. Maintenance information, including schedules and responsibilities for ongoing 

maintenance 
11. Troubleshooting and repair, including responses to typical issues 
12. All warranties, cut sheets and manuals for major equipment 
13. Performance guarantee details, including schedule of performance reporting and 

example format 
14. Monitoring system login and operation details 
15. Any other information that may be required for the District to easily and safely 

interact with, confirm performance, troubleshoot, maintain and/or service the 
materials and equipment installed under this Contract. 

16. CAD (electronic format) "as-built" files of all drawings, provided as a separate files 
from the Manual PDF 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A3: SUBMITTALS & PROJECT ACCEPTANCE 

Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project  
 

March 30, 2018  A3-7 
 

V. Submittal Dates  
(To be negotiated with selected Contractor)  

 

Submittal Item Date 

50% Design Submittal [TBD] 

90% Design Submittal [TBD] 

Final Approved Permit Set, Submitted to DSA  [TBD] 

Construction Management Plan [TBD] 

Construction Schedule Submittal [TBD] 

Commissioning Reports [TBD] 

O&M Manual, All Sites [TBD] 

Punch List Completion Documents, All Sites [TBD] 

As Built – Record Drawings [TBD] 

O&M Contract Agreement Amendment(s) [TBD] 

PeGu Agreement Amendment(s) [TBD] 

 



 
Site Details: Village ES 

 

1/28/2018       Attachment A2 

Rincon Valley USD Solar PV Project  

Site Address 
Site Village ES 

Address 900 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

Electrical Service 

No/Name SAID Meter No Voltage Amps Phases 
Hist. Ann. 

Usage 
Current 

Tariff 
PV 

Tariff 

Main 9637695957 1009542579 208/120V 1200 3 149,000 A-10S A-6 

Preliminary Target Production 
Preliminary Target Production 142,000 kWh 

Site Details 
PV Description - Canopy over parking and field 

Siting 
Preferences/ 
Constraints 

- T-structure canopy – overhanging single row parking stalls and overhanging field 
- Significant campus modernization occurring contemporaneously – requires coordination with 
general contractor (GC) for modernization 
- Minimum clear height of 14’ 
 

Shading/Trees - Minimal potential shading issues from District owned trees 
- All tree trimming on District owned trees must be approved by District 

 

Main Service - Outdoor cabinet on concrete pad 
- Located adjacent to building at opposite end of campus from array 
- Significant foliage in proximity to cabinet 
 

Homerun - Very long homerun 
- PV vendor responsible for trenching/boring homerun path 
- Coordination with GC of modernization project required on trenching/boring plan and execution 
to ensure trenching/boring occurs prior to paving of campus 
- GC of modernization project responsible for paving of campus after boring/trenching 
 

ADA  
 

- No ADA issues expected 

Lighting - Under canopy LED lighting required 

Other Notes            

- Spare conduit for future EV charging station to be installed at canopy 

- Spare conduit for future security cameras to be installed at canopy 

- DSA approved campus modernization drawings provided 

- Interconnection applications submitted for TOU Grandfathering prior to 12/31/17 deadline 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Solar Array Location (C-Canopy, R-Roof, GM-Groundmount)

Main Electrical Service Preliminary Conduit Routes

DRAFT

Village ES
Rincon Valley USD Phase 2 Solar PV RFP 

Rev. 2018/1/31 

C1







 
Site Details: District Office 

 

2/12/2018       Attachment A2 

Rincon Valley USD Solar PV Project  

Site Address 
Site District Office 

Address 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

Electrical Service 

No/Name SAID Meter No Voltage Amps Phases 
Hist. Ann. 

Usage 
Current 

Tariff 
PV 

Tariff 

Main 4855830124 1010034886 208/120V 400 3 144,000 A-10S A-1 TOU 

Preliminary Target Production 
Preliminary Target Production 110,000 kWh 

Site Details 
PV Description - Canopy over parking 

Siting 
Preferences/ 
Constraints 

- T-structure canopy – overhanging double row parking stalls 
- Significant campus modernization occurring contemporaneously – requires coordination with 
general contractor (GC) for modernization 
- Minimum clear height of 14’ 
 

Shading/Trees - Minimal potential shading issues from District owned trees 
- All tree trimming on District owned trees must be approved by District 

 

Main Service - Indoor service in electrical closet 
- Zinsco panel 
 

Homerun - Very short homerun 
- PV vendor responsible for trenching/boring homerun path 
- Coordination with GC of modernization project required on trenching/boring plan and execution 
to ensure trenching/boring occurs prior to paving of campus 
- GC of modernization project responsible for paving of campus after boring/trenching 
 

ADA  
 

- May require re-striping 

Lighting - Under canopy LED lighting required 
- Light standard removal as-needed to avoid conflict or shading of canopies 

Other Notes            

- Spare conduit for future EV charging station to be installed at canopy 

- Spare conduit for future security cameras to be installed at canopy 

- DSA approved campus modernization drawings provided 

- Interconnection application has not been submitted 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Solar Array Location (C-Canopy, R-Roof, GM-Groundmount)

Main Electrical Service Preliminary Conduit Routes

District O�ce
Rincon Valley USD Phase 2 Solar PV RFP 

Rev. 2018/2/12  

C1



X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

XX

X

X

X

X

X

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

OFF
DROP

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

G
E

O
M

E
T

R
Y

 I
S

 E
V

E
R

Y
W

H
E

R
E

C
IR

C
U

M
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

E
R

E
H

W
Y

R
E

V
E

 S
I Y

R
T

E
M

O
E

G

C
IR

C
U

M

FERENCE

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

TANGENT

TANGENT

X

OFF

LOOP

LOOP

DROP

PAR
KIN

G
NO

FIRE
LANE

X

X
X

X
X

PARKING
NO

VILLAGE PHASE 2
& DISTRICT

SCHOOL DISTRICT
1000 YULUPA AVENUE
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 95405

IDENTIFICATION STAMP
DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

OFFICE OF REGULATION SERVICES

AC               

DATE                                                       

FLS               SS               

APPL:

FILE:

PTN:

 

 

70896-58

Copyright © 2017  Dan Hardin Architect Inc

REV # DATE DESCRIPTION

dan hardin
architect  inc

#C31756

136 massimo circle

santa rosa ca 95404
707.688.6106
danhardin@sonic.net

49-101

01-117051

DATE
OCTOBER 25, 2017

PROJECT
#1608

RINCON VALLEY UNION

BUS YARD
900-1000 YULUPA AVENUE
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 95405

A14
ENLARGED SITE PLAN

CREEK DR

Y
U

LU
PA

 A
V

EN
U

E

VILLAGE
SCHOOL

CAMPUS

DISTRICT
OFFICE

MAINTENANCE BLDG

BUS
YARD

EXISTING PRIVATE BLDG

EXISTING

SOUTH

SPRING

ENLARGED SITE PLAN - SOUTH1

ENLARGED SITE PLAN NOTES

SCALE:  1" = 20'

1

(N) CONCRETE PAVING, S.C.D.2

5 (N) PEDESTRIAN SWING GATE, SEE 15/A16.  PROVIDE FENCE PANEL ABOVE GATE.

6 (N) TRAFFIC STRIPING, TYPICAL, S.C.D. 

8

9

10 (N) STANDARD-MOUNTED SITE LIGHT, S.E.D.

11 (N) ASPHALT PAVING, S.C.D.

12

13

14

15 (N) 8' HIGH BLACK "NO CLIMB" CHAIN LINK FENCING, SEE 19/A16

16 (N) 8' HIGH ORNAMENTAL STEEL ROLLING GATE, SEE 12/A17

17 (N) 8' HIGH ORNAMENTAL STEEL FENCING, SEE 20/A16

ROUGH-IN FOR (n) O.F.O.I. POST-MOUNTED CAMERA, S.E.D.  RUN CONDUIT FOR

1

1

6

8

(N) GRAVEL PATH w/REDWOOD HEADERS TO CONNECT w/(E) PATH, S.C.D.

9

2

11

(N) 6' HIGH CHAINLINK FENCING 12" INSIDE (E) RESIDENTIAL FENCE LINE

12

15

15

17
11

16

17

DISTRICT
I.T. BLDG

EXISTING

2

(E) ELECTRICAL VAULT TO REMAIN

(E) TRANSFORMER, GAS METER AND ENCLOSURE TO REMAIN

13

14

S P R I N G   C R E E K

22 (N) ELECTRICAL OUTLET IN W.P. ENCLOSURE MOUNTED LOW ON FENCE POST, S.E.D.

23 (N) ELECTRICAL OUTLET IN W.P. ENCLOSURE MOUNTED LOW ON WALL, S.E.D.

23

22

24 (N) EXTERIOR LIGHTING, S.E.D.  RUN POWER CONDUITS INSIDE BUILDING TO J-BOX LOC.

24

2424

25 (E) OIL CONTAINMENT CONCRETE CURB TO REMAIN

26 (E) CONCRETE PAD TO REMAIN

25

26

10

10

10

10

15

15

±
1

0
'

27 (E) GRAVEL PATH (PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY) TO REMAIN

27

8
'-0

"

8
'-0

"

20

A17

THIS SHEET

SEE A13

PRIVATE

BLDG

SIGNAL CABLES ON BUS YARD SIDE OF FENCE POST.

#1 CAM

#2 CAM

5

6

TYP.

SEE CIVIL AND LANDSCAPE PLANS FOR WORK AT PLAY FIELD



X

SS

SS

FP

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

F
P

FP

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

S

D

X X X X X X X X X X X X

X

X

X

X

X

THROUGH

NO
STOPPING

LANE

PARKING
NO
OFF
DROP

ONLY

PAR
KIN

G
NO

DRO
POFF

OFF
DROP

X

X

X

X

COMPACT

V A N PARKING
NO

G
EO

M
E

T
R

Y
 I

S
 E

V
E

R
Y

W
H

E
R

E

C
IR

C
U

M
F

E
R

EN
C

E

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

E
R

E
H

W
Y

R
E

V
E

 S
I Y

R
T

E
M

O
E

G

C
IR

C
U

M

FERENCE

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

TANGENT

TANGENT

G
EO

M
E

T
R

Y
 I

S
 E

V
E

R
Y

W
H

E
R

E

C
IR

C
U

M
F E

R
E N

C
E

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

E
R

E
H

W
Y

R
E

V
E

 S
I Y

R
T

E
M

O
E

G

C
IR

C
U

M

FERENCE

RADIUS

D
IA

M
ET

ER

TANGENT

TANGENT

LAN
ESTO
PPI

NG

THR
OUG

HNO

CLEAR
KEE

P

OFF

LOOP

LOOP

DROP

PAR
KIN

G
NO

PARKING
NOV A N

FIRE
LANE

FIRE
LANE

FIRE
LANE

FIRE
LANE

X
X

PARKING
NO

VILLAGE PHASE 2
& DISTRICT

SCHOOL DISTRICT
1000 YULUPA AVENUE
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 95405

IDENTIFICATION STAMP
DIV. OF THE STATE ARCHITECT

OFFICE OF REGULATION SERVICES

AC               

DATE                                                       

FLS               SS               

APPL:

FILE:

PTN:

 

 

70896-58

Copyright © 2017  Dan Hardin Architect Inc

REV # DATE DESCRIPTION

dan hardin
architect  inc

#C31756

136 massimo circle

santa rosa ca 95404
707.688.6106
danhardin@sonic.net

49-101

01-117051

DATE
OCTOBER 25, 2017

PROJECT
#1608

RINCON VALLEY UNION

BUS YARD
900-1000 YULUPA AVENUE
SANTA ROSA, CALIFORNIA 95405

A10
OVERALL

OVERALL SITE PLAN1

OVERALL SITE PLAN NOTES

SCALE:  1" = 40'

1

2

20' WIDE EMERGENCY VEHICLE ACCESS w/30' INSIDE TURN RADII, TYP.

CREEK DR

Y
U

LU
PA

 A
V

EN
U

E

VILLAGE
SCHOOL

CAMPUS

DISTRICT
OFFICE

MAINTENANCE BLDG*

BUS
YARD

EXISTING

EXISTING

EXISTING

SITE PLAN

EXISTING

N.I.C.

N.I.C.

N.I.C.

SEE SHEETS

A11, A13

SEE SHEETS

A12, A14

ACCESSIBLE ROUTE OF TRAVEL AS INDICATED ON PLAN IS A BARRIER FREE

ACCESS ROUTE WITHOUT ANY ABRUPT LEVEL CHANGES EXCEEDING 1/2" BEVELED

AT 1:2 MAX. SLOPE, OR VERTICAL LEVEL CHANGES EXCEEDING 1/4" MAX., AND AT

LEAST 48" IN WIDTH.  SURFACE IS STABLE, FIRM, AND SLIP RESISTANT.  CROSS

SLOPE DOES NOT EXCEED 2% AND SLOPE IN THE DIRECTION OF TRAVEL IS LESS

THAN 5%, UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED.  ACCESSIBLE ROUTE OF TRAVEL SHALL

BE MAINTAINED FREE OF OVERHANGING OBSTRUCTIONS TO 80" MINIMUM, AND

PROTRUDING OBJECTS GREATER THAN 4" PROJECTION FROM WALL AND ABOVE

27" AND LESS THAN 80".  ARCHITECT HAS VERIFIED THAT THERE ARE NO BARRIERS

IN THE ROUTE OF TRAVEL.

ACCESSIBLE ROUTES OF TRAVEL 

PATH OF TRAVEL NOTE
THE PATH OF TRAVEL IDENTIFIED IN THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS IS

COMPLIANT WITH THE CURRENT APPLICABLE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE

ACCESSIBILITY PROVISIONS FOR PATH OF TRAVEL REQUIREMENTS FOR

ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND STRUCTURAL REPAIRS.  AS PART OF THE DESIGN OF

THIS PROJECT, THE PATH OF TRAVEL WAS EXAMINED AND ANY ELEMENTS,

COMPONENTS OR PORTIONS OF THE PATH OF TRAVEL THAT WERE DETERMINED TO

BE NON-COMPLIANT 1) HAVE BEEN IDENTIFIED AND 2) THE CORRECTIVE WORK

NECESSARY TO BRING THEM INTO COMPLIANCE HAS BEEN INCLUDED WITHIN THE

SCOPE OF THIS PROJECT'S WORK THROUGH DETAILS, DRAWINGS AND

SPECIFICATIONS INCORPORATED INTO THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. ANY

NON-COMPLIANT ELEMENTS, COMPONENTS OR PORTIONS OF THE PATH OF TRAVEL

THAT WILL NOT BE CORRECTED BY THIS PROJECT BASED ON VALUATION

THRESHOLD LIMITATIONS OR A FINDING OF UNREASONABLE HARDSHIP ARE SO

INDICATED IN THESE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS.

DURING CONSTRUCTION, IF PATH OF TRAVEL ITEMS WITHIN THE SCOPE OF THE

PROJECT REPRESENTED AS CODE COMPLIANT ARE FOUND TO BE

NONCONFORMING BEYOND REASONABLE CONSTRUCTION TOLERANCES, THEY

SHALL BE BROUGHT INTO COMPLIANCE WITH THE CBC AS PART OF THIS PROJECT

BY MEANS OF A CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DOCUMENT.

EXISTING ACCESSIBLE ROUTES AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SERVING FACILITIES

AND BUILDINGS THAT ARE OPERATIONAL DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL REMAIN

UNOBSTRUCTED, SAFE AND USABLE BY PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES

ACCESSIBILTY DURING
CONSTRUCTION

PHASE 1 WORK

PHASE 2 WORK

DSA 01-115745

THIS PROJECT

APPROVED 12-7-2016

SPRING

1

EXISTING TOW-AWAY SIGN PER CBC 11B-502.8

2

LEGEND

DENOTES PRIVATE BLDG per TITLE 24 Section 4-310

NEW CONCRETE FLATWORK, S.C.D.

NEW or RESURFACED ASPHALT PAVING, S.C.D.

LANDSCAPE AREA O.F.O.I. DISTRICT'S VENDOR

EXISTING FIELD AREA TO REMAIN

NEW RUBBERIZED SURFACE RUNNING PATH 

ACCESSIBLE ROUTE OF TRAVEL

DSA APP. #01-106558

CERTIFIED 7/21/2008

DSA APP. #01-106556

BLDG B

BLDG C

BLDG D

BLDG E

BLDG F

DISTRICT
OFFICE BLDG.

DSA APP. #11564

DSA APP. #55432
DSA APP. #55432

DSA APP. #55432DSA APP. #55432

CERTIFIED 2/26/2010

EXISTING

EXISTINGEXISTING

EXISTING

BLDG KBLDG J
EXISTING

BLDG H
EXISTING

VILLAGE CAMPUS SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION

OCCUPANCY

CONSTRUCTION

TYPE

BUILDING BLDG A

ADMIN

B

VB

BLDG B

CLASSROOMS

E

VB

BLDG C

CLASSROOMS

E

VB

BLDG D

MULTI-PURP.

A2

VA

BLDG E

CLASSROOMS

E

VB

BLDG F

CLASSROOMS

E

VB

ACTUAL AREA 4,152 SF 3,289 SF 3,289 SF

4,836 SF 5,188 SF

4,780 SF

BLDG A
DSA APP. #01-106005

EXISTING

BLDG K

CLASSROOMS

E

VB

5,937 SF

CERTIFIED 2/25/2016

DESCRIPTION

OCCUPANCY

CONSTRUCTION

TYPE

BUILDING BLDG J

KINDERGARTEN

E

VB

BLDG H

LIBRARY

E

VB

ACTUAL AREA 3,936 SF 2,922 SF

DSA APP. #01-115745

UNDER CONSTRUCTION

BLDG

N.I.C.

OFFICE

DISTRICT

(E)

PROPERTY BOUNDARY

(E) ALL WEATHER SURFACE FIRE ACCESS (EVA)

ALL BUILDINGS ALSO UNDER DSA APP #01-115745

3 20' MIN. ACCESSIBLE LOADING ZONE w/FLUSH CURB THIS PROJECT

3

2

PARKING ANALYSIS
TOTAL SPACES

82

ACCESSIBLE STALLS REQUIRED
4

ACCESSIBLE STALLS PROVIDED 
5

4 (E) ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALL(S) TO REMAIN w/ASPHALT SEAL COAT AND RESTRIPE

FOR REFERENCE ONLY - EXISTING ACCESSIBLE PARKING STALLS FROM DSA #01-112096

QKA ARCHITECTS PROJECT 1095.01 - CERTIFIED 7/11/2013

5 (E) PARKING STALLS PER #01-112096 TO REMAIN.  SEE ABOVE REFERENCE DETAIL

4

6

*

(E) BUILDING

*

DISTRICT

1

1

DSA APP. #113122

NO DSA #

NO DSA #

NO DSA #

5

ALL BUILDINGS EXISTING - NO WORK THIS APPLICATION

BLDG M

BLDG P

BLDG N

DISTRICT OFFICE

DESCRIPTION

OCCUPANCY

CONSTRUCTION

TYPE

BUILDING BLDG M

DISTRICT OFFICE

B

VB

BLDG N

IT OFFICE

B

VB

BLDG P

MAINTENANCE

U

VB

ACTUAL AREA 4,721 SF 960 SF 7,172 SF

ALL BUILDINGS EXISTING

* *

6 (N) ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGNAGE PER 6/A16

7 RETRIPED (E) PARKING & AISLE w/FLUSH CURB, S.C.D.

7

EXTERIOR LIGHTS ONLY THIS PROJECT









ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

SECTION 26 00 00: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. The Contract documents.

B. Section 26 60 00: Photovoltaic System Specifications

C. Section 05 90 02: PV Mounting Specifications

1.02 GENERAL

This specification defines the general electrical work required for complete and fully functioning
photovoltaic systems at each site. The design and installation shall conform to all
requirements as defined by the applicable codes, laws, rules, regulations and standards as
specified in the Contract.

B. The Contractor shall include all items and all work reasonably inferred by these specifications
and the RFP. If the Contractor is in doubt as to the intent of any portion of these specifications
and the RFP, or necessary information is omitted, the Contractor shall notify the Owner in
writing for clarifications or corrections to be provided by addendum.

C. All design documents, cut sheets, and technical specifications shall be submitted, reviewed and
accepted by the Owner per the guidelines specified in RFP Attachment A1-Submittals and
Project Acceptance.

1.03 WORK INCLUDED

A. The work shall include the design of the electrical system, materials, equipment, fabrication,
installation and tests in conformity with applicable codes and professionally recognized
standards.

B. The electrical design shall be fully developed, including but not limited to the following:

1. Description and supportive calculations for all power and grounding systems.
2. Location and layout of all system equipment.
3. Site plans, elevations, schedules, equipment arrangement and detailed drawings
4. All items of a given type shall be the products of the same manufacturer.
5. Single line diagrams including local utility system tie-ins.
6. Evaluation of existing switchgear and Utility transformers for interconnection

compatibility.
7. All other drawings, calculations, details, and schedules required for the system design.

C. All required construction documents and compliance documentation.

D. Temporary power and lighting as required for construction.

E. All required incidental work directly related to the construction of the System, such as
excavating, directional boring, backfilling, roof flashing, fire stopping, waterproofing, pavement
repair, striping, and testing.

F. Any other electrical work as might reasonably be implied as required to fulfill the contracted



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

scope, even though not specifically mentioned herein or shown on the drawings

G. Design and construction coordination with all other disciplines and trades.

H. All other utilities, labor, materials, apparatus, tools, equipment, transportation, and special or
occasional services as required to fulfill the contracted scope.

1.09 CONDITIONS AT SITE:

A. Contractor is responsible for familiarizing themselves with all discernible site conditions. No
extra payment will be allowed for work required because of these conditions, whether
specifically mentioned or not.

B. Lines of other services that are damaged as a result of this work shall promptly be repaired at
no expense to the Owner and to the complete satisfaction of the Owner.

1.10 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. General:
1. Construction Documents shall be designed and signed by a validated, registered

professional engineer in the State of California.

B. Conformance:
1. All equipment and accessories to be the product of a manufacturer regularly engaged in

its manufacture.
2. Supply all new equipment and accessories free from defects and listed by Underwriter’s

Laboratories, Inc., or bearing its label or label of a Nationally Recognized Testing
Laboratory (NRTL).

3. All items of a given type shall be the products of the same manufacturer.
4. If after contract is awarded, minor changes and additions are required by aforementioned

authorities, they shall be included at Contractor’s expense.

C. Coordination:
1. Contractor shall become familiar with the conditions at each job site and plan the

installation of the electrical work to conform with the existing conditions so as to provide
the commercially reasonable assembly of the combined work of all trades within the
Contractor’s scope.

D. Coordination Drawings for electrical installation:
1. Prepare Coordination Drawings, to scale. Detail major elements, components and

systems of electrical equipment and materials in relation to each other and to other
systems, installations, and building components. Indicate locations and space
requirements for installation, access and working clearances. Show where sequence and
coordination of installations are important to the efficient flow of the Work. Indicate the
following:
a. Provisions for scheduling, sequencing, moving and positioning large equipment in or

on the site or buildings during construction.
b. Plans, elevations and details including the following:

1) Clearances to meet safety requirements and for servicing and maintaining
equipment, including space for equipment disassembly required for periodic
maintenance.

2) Equipment support details.



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

3) Exterior wall, roof and foundation penetrations of cable and raceway; and their
relation to other penetrations and installations.

4) Fire-rated wall and roof penetrations by electrical installations.
5) Sizes and locations of required concrete pads and bases.
6) Grounding system details.

1.12 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING

A. Protection: Use all means necessary to protect the materials of this Section before, during,
and after installation and to protect the work and materials of all trades.

B. Delivery and Storage: Deliver all materials to the job site in their original containers with all
labels intact and legible at time of use. Store in strict accordance with approved
manufacturers' recommendations. All deliveries are to be made to the Contractor’s job trailer
or approved storage location. Under no circumstances shall owner be responsible for
accepting deliveries.

C. Replacements: In the event of damage, immediately make all repairs and replacements
necessary to the approval of the Owner and at no additional cost to the Owner.

D. Contractor shall personally, or through an authorized representative, check all materials upon
receipt at jobsite for conformance with approved shop drawings and/or plans and
specifications.

1.13 SCHEDULING/SEQUENCING

A. Contractor shall coordinate all schedules and sequencing of electrical work with Owner.

B. Place orders for all equipment in time to prevent any delay in construction schedule or
completion of project. If any materials or equipment are not ordered in time, additional
charges made by equipment manufacturers to complete their equipment in time to meet the
construction schedule, together with any special handling charges, shall be borne by the
Contractor.

1. Contractor shall coordinate production and delivery schedule for all Owner-supplied
equipment with the equipment suppliers to ensure that all Owner-supplied equipment is
delivered to site in coordination with the construction schedule and in such a manner as
to cause no delays in completion of the Contract as scheduled.

1.14 WIND LOADING AND SEISMIC DESIGN

A. Comply with all applicable codes and standards and provide wind load restraints for all
equipment installed under this contract that requires restraint. The photovoltaic array wind
loading restraint shall be designed as required by the Authorities Having Jurisdiction (AHJs).

B. The photovoltaic system shall be designed for the appropriate seismic zone and to meet all
seismic design requirements of the AHJs. Where applicable, the photovoltaic array shall be
designed to accommodate lateral displacement in the event of an earthquake based on a
nonlinear response-history seismic analysis for the appropriate seismic zone.

1.15 PERMITS AND INSPECTIONS

A. Contractor shall obtain all required permits and arrange for all required inspections, including
utility company requirements, inspections, and sign-offs.



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

B. Do not allow or cause any of the work to be covered or enclosed until it has been tested
and/or inspected.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. Materials of the same type or classification, used for the same purpose, shall be the product of
the same manufacturer.

2.02 POSTED OPERATING INSTRUCTIONS

A. Furnish approved operating instructions for systems and equipment where indicated in the
technical sections for use by operation and maintenance personnel. The operating
instructions shall include wiring diagrams, control diagrams, and control sequence for each
principal system and equipment. Print or engrave operating instructions and frame under
glass or in approved laminated plastic. Post instructions as directed. Attach or post operating
instructions adjacent to each principal system and equipment including startup, proper
adjustment, operating, lubrication, shutdown, safety precautions, procedure in the event of
equipment failure, and other items of instruction as recommended by the manufacturer of
each system or equipment. Provide weather-resistant materials or weatherproof enclosures
for operating instruction exposed to the weather. Operating instruction shall not fade when
exposed to sunlight and shall be secured to prevent easy removal or peeling.

2.03 CATALOGED PRODUCTS / SERVICE AVAILABILITY

A. Materials and equipment shall be current products by manufacturers regularly engaged in the
production of such products. Specified product models shall have been in satisfactory
commercial or industrial use for a minimum of 2 years prior to design. The 2-year period shall
include applications of equipment and materials under similar circumstances and of similar
size. The 2-year period shall be satisfactorily completed by a product for sale on the
commercial market through advertisements, manufacturers' catalogs, or brochures. Products
having less than a 2-year field service record will be acceptable if a certified record of
satisfactory field operation for not less than 6,000 hours, exclusive of the manufacturers'
factory or laboratory tests, is furnished. The equipment items shall be supported by service
organizations which are reasonable convenient to the equipment installation in order to
render satisfactory service to the equipment on a regular and emergency basis during the
warranty period of the contract.

2.03 Intentionally Omitted

2.04 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS

A. Materials shall be of make mentioned elsewhere in this specification. All materials shall be
new and approved by the Underwriters' Laboratories or an NRTL.

2.05 BASIC ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

A. Inverters and PV Modules – See Specification 26 60 00.

B. AC Panelboards:
1. As manufactured by Cutler-Hammer, Square D, General Electric, Siemens, IEM, or to

match existing equipment at each Site, wherever possible. Similar products may be



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

submitted for considerations and formal approval. Equipment shall at a minimum be
NEMA 3R outdoors or NEMA 1 for surface mount in unfinished interior locations and flush
mounted in finished and occupied spaces. Provide housekeeping pads for all floor or slab
mounted equipment.

2. Enclosures: code gauge galvanized sheet steel with welded full flange end pieces,
stretcher- leveled steel trim, back pan and door or painted steel or powder coated steel.
All surface mounted panels to have enclosures painted in gray enamel. All flush mounted
panels to have cover painted to match adjacent surface.

3. Phase and ground bussing of copper with silver-plated or tin-plated or nickel plated
contact surfaces.

4. Trims on surface-mounted cabinets secured with nickel-plated screws with cup washers,
bottom of all trims to have lugs for resting on cabinet flange.

5. Panels shall be 20 inches minimum in width, provided with approved gutter space,
barriers and adjustable supports. Doors mounted with concealed hinges provided with
combination spring latch and lock. Doors and trims and surface mounted cabinets primed
and finished with one coat baked on gray enamel.

6. Each panel shall be equipped with a copper ground bus.
7. All panels shall be fully bussed to accept future circuit breakers.

C. Distribution Low Voltage Dry-Type Transformers (120/208V and 277/480V):
1. Ventilated type, NEMA 3R where used outdoors.
2. Transformer shall be 3 phase, 60 Hertz. Primary winding shall be Delta connected and

secondary winding shall be Wye connected. The temperature rise at rated voltage and
full load shall not exceed 150 degrees C with a 220 degrees C U.L. Component Recognized
Insulation System. The windings shall be Aluminum or Copper.

3. The higher voltage winding shall have quantity (6) 2.5% taps - (2) FCAN and (4) FCBN. Set
secondary voltage for 120/208V.

4. Transformer terminals shall be front connected for ease of installation and maintenance.
5. Where the transformers are installed outdoors provide weatherproof drip cover, rodent

screen and a NEMA 3R rating of the enclosure.
6. Transformers shall be suitable to carry the PV load characteristics and in the direction of

power flow required for the PV system power production.

D. Circuit Breakers:
1. Circuit breakers shall be molded case rated 250 or 480 volt, multiple or single pole with

amperage ratings as required for each circuit. All breakers to be bolt on, manually
operated with "de-ion" arc chutes. Plug-in breakers are not acceptable.

2. Circuit breakers shall be rated to interrupt the available short circuit current at the point
of application.

E. Raceways and Conduit Bodies: Only the raceways specified below shall be utilized on these
projects. Substitutions shall be pre-approved in writing:
1. Rigid Type - hot dip galvanized or sherardized steel, to be used at all exterior locations,

below grade, or in concrete slab, and to 18" on either side of structural expansion joints in
floor slabs, with completely watertight, threaded fittings throughout.
a. All rigid steel conduit couplings and elbows in soil or concrete or under membrane to

be ½ lap wrapped with Scotch #50 tape and threaded ends coated with T&B #S.C.40
rust inhibitor prior to installation of couplings.



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

b. ½ lap wrap all rigid steel conduit stub-ups from slab or grade to 6" above finished
grade level with Scotch #50 tape.

c. In lieu of rigid steel conduit for power and control raceways and branch circuit
conduits in soil or concrete slabs, "Schedule 40" PVC with Schedule 80 PVC conduit
elbows and stub-ups may be used with code size (minimum No. 12) ground wire. A
“stub-up” is considered to terminate 6" above the finished surface.
1) Schedule 80 PVC conduit shall be used in all concrete footings or foundations

and to 18" of either side of footings or foundation walls.
2) Schedule 80 PVC conduit shall be used in all concrete masonry unit (CMU) walls

or columns.
2. Conduit installed using horizontal directional boring (HDB) shall include tracer tape or

traceable conduit. Minimum depth of the conduit shall be per NEC 2011 Article 300.5. The
Contractor is responsible for demonstrating that all conduits installed utilizing horizontal
boring meets the minimum depth requirement and is solely responsible for any
remediation costs and schedule impacts if the specification is not met. Contractor shall
provide documentation of final depth and routes of all conduit installed in horizontal
bores.

3. Conduit buried underground shall be suitable for the application and compliant with all
applicable codes. PVC shall be constructed of a virgin homopolymer PVC compound and
be manufactured according to NEMA and UL specifications. All PVC conduit feeders shall
contain an appropriate copper grounding conductor sized per NEC requirements and
continuity shall be maintained throughout conduit runs and pull boxes. Minimum conduit
size shall be ¾”. A metallic tracing/caution tape shall be installed in the trench over all
buried conduit. All underground conduits placed in trenches, buried under roadways, or
swales shall be encased with red dyed concrete slurry cap.

4. All conduit runs in concrete floor slabs (where allowed) shall be installed to comply with
all applicable UBC and structural codes to maintain the structural integrity of the floor
slab. Where conflicts occur, alternate routing shall be provided at no additional cost to
the Owner.

5. Electrical Metallic Tubing (EMT) shall only be exposed in electrical and mechanical rooms
and in unfinished spaces and in concealed and furred spaces, made up with steel
watertight or steel set screw type fittings and couplings. Set screws shall have hardened
points. Cast fittings are unacceptable. EMT may be used in exterior installations where
allowed by NEC, DSA, City code and any other applicable code. All exterior fittings shall be
watertight. EMT may not be installed in areas subject to severe physical damage,
including in any carport location with potential for vehicle strike or within 8’ of grade.

6. All exposed conduits on sides of buildings, or in other visible areas, shall be painted to
match adjacent finishes, after complete installation.

7. Fasten conduits securely to boxes with locknuts and bushings to provide good electrical
continuity.

8. To facilitate pulling of conductors, install junction boxes as required.
9. If any empty conduits are provided as part of the projects, they shall be provided with a

pull-wire.
10. If conduits are to pass through structural expansion joints in floor slab, rigid galvanized

conduit shall be used 18" on either side of joint, complete with Appleton expansion
couplings and bonding jumpers, or equal. All above grade expansion joint crossings shall
also utilize expansion joint couplings or flex conduit transitions as required for each



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

particular installation. No solid conduits shall be allowed to cross expansion joints
without proper provisions for building and seismic movement. Expansion joints only refer
to contiguous structures, not the overhead space between adjacent, separate canopies.
Under no circumstance shall conduits/conductors pass overhead between separate
canopies.

11. Provide thermal expansion fittings or provisions, per NEC 300.7(b), for all raceways
subject to high temperatures in direct exposure to sunlight. Provide expansion provisions
where more than 0.25" of expansion is calculated.10.

12. Provide a minimum cover of 36 inches for all conduits in ground outside of buildings,
unless otherwise noted.

13. Provide and install exterior wall conduit seals and cable seals in the locations listed below.
Coordinate installation and scheduling with other trades:
a. Conduit seals through exterior wall or slab (below grade): O.Z. Gedney series “FSK"

in new cast in concrete locations, series "CSM" in cored locations.
b. Conduit seals through exterior wall or slab (above grade): O.Z. Gedney series

"CSMI."
c. Cable seals at first interior conduit termination after entry through exterior wall or

slab: O.Z. Gedney series "CSBI." Coordinate quantity of conductors at each location.

F. Junction Boxes / Pull Boxes:
1. One piece steel knockout type drawn j-boxes, unless otherwise noted, sized as required

for conditions at each location.
2. J-boxes for wet locations, cast aluminum FS or FD type with cast aluminum gasketed

spring lid cover. Weatherproof “Bell” type boxes are not acceptable.
3. Pull boxes to be NEMA 1 (indoor) or NEMA 3R (outdoor), sized per code, with grey enamel

finish, steel construction, and screw-on covers.
4. All connectors from conduit to junction or outlet boxes shall have insulated throats.

Connectors shall be manufactured with insulated throats as integral part. Insertable
insulated throats are unacceptable.

5. Conduit Bodies: Malleable iron type, with lubricated spring steel clips over edge of
conduit body, O-Z/Gedney type EW, or equal.

G. Site Pull boxes: All site pull boxes shall be flush in-ground concrete, with engraved covers
identifying service use (i.e. electrical, communications, etc.). Boxes shall be NEMA 250, Type 6,
outside flanged, with recessed cover for flush mounting, by Christy or equal, with required
depth to provide box and conduit depths shown or required.
1. Provide concrete covers for all boxes in planted or paved areas (up to available concrete

cover size).
2. Provide galvanized steel covers for all larger boxes (when concrete is not available), or in

traffic areas. No cast iron covers.
3. Provide bolted covers and slab bottoms (with grouted perimeter) or vault type boxes for all

electrical distribution and signal system pull boxes used for site distribution, to prevent
rodent entry. No collar type boxes with dirt or gravel bottoms.

4. Provide drain hole at bottom of all vault type boxes, with loose aggregate base below, for
proper drainage.

5. All covers to be completely flush with finished adjacent surfaces.
6. Provide galvanized steel H20 rated covers and installation of box rated for H20 in all traffic

areas.



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

I. Wire and Cable:
1. 600 or 1,000-volt class (as required for system design), insulation color coded, minimum

No. 12 AWG for DC string circuits or AC circuits.
2. All conductors shall be copper.
3. Insulation type:

a. Standard locations: Conductors shall be Type PV or THWN or THWN-2 or RHH, RHW-
2, USE-2 for wet and dry locations. All AC wire sizes used shall be based on a 75
degree insulation rating, unless specifically used with 90 degree rated devices. For
wires/cables with 90 deg C insulation, the 90 deg C ampacity ratings shall be used for
cable sizing before conditions of use de-rates are applied per NEC. All DC wire sizes
shall be based on 90 degree insulation rating, when used with 90 degree rated PV
equipment and components.

b. All conductors shall be stranded.
c. Install all wiring (low voltage and line voltage) in conduit, except PV string wiring at

modules, which may be run outside of raceway per Exhibit A, Section 2.
d. Do not pull conductors into conduit until raceways and boxes have been thoroughly

cleaned and swabbed as necessary to remove water and debris.
e. Approximately balance all AC circuits about the neutral conductors in AC collector

panels.
f. All wire and cable shall bear the Underwriters' Label or equivalent NRTL label,

brought to the job in unbroken packages.
g. The equipment grounding conductor shall be insulated or bare copper; where it is

insulated, the insulation shall be colored green.
h. Install all circuits in one continuous section unless splices are approved by Purchaser.

Exercise care in pulling to avoid damage or disarrangement of conductors, using
approved grips. No cable shall be bent to smaller radius allowed by NEC code or
manufacturer recommendations. Color code feeder cables at terminals. Provide
identifying linen tags in each pull box

J. Fire stopping: as manufactured by 3M Fire Protection Products or equal.
1. Fire-rated and smoke barrier construction: Maintain barrier and structural ceiling fire and

smoke resistance ratings including resistance to cold smoke at all penetrations,
connections with other surfaces or types of construction, at separations required to
permit building movement and sound vibration absorption, and at other construction
gaps.

2. Systems or devices listed in the UL Fire Resistance Directory under categories XHCR and
XHEZ may be used, providing that it conforms to the construction type, penetration type,
annular space requirements and fire rating involved in each separate instance, and that
the system be symmetrical for wall penetrations. Systems or devices must be asbestos
free.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 INSPECTION

A. Examine the areas and conditions under which the work of this Section will be installed.
Correct conditions detrimental to the proper and timely completion of the Work. Do not
proceed until unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected.



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

3.02 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL

A. All workmanship shall be first class and carried out in a manner satisfactory to and approved
by the Owner.

B. This Contractor shall personally, or through an authorized and competent representative,
constantly supervise the work and so far as possible keep the same foreman and workmen on
the job throughout.

3.03 INSTALLATION/APPLICATION/ERECTION

A. All cutting, repairing and structural reinforcing for the installation of this work shall be done by
the General Contractor in conformance with the Owner's requirements.

B. Excavate and trench or directional bore as necessary for the electrical installation, and when
the work has been installed, inspected and approved, backfill all excavations with clean earth
from excavation, or imported sandy soil in maximum 8" (eight-inch) layers, moisten and
machine tamp to 95% compaction, and restore the ground and/or paving or floor surfaces to
their original condition.

C. Floor Mounted Inverter Installation: Provide mounting channels for grouting into floor or slab.
Channels shall be properly drilled to receive the equipment placed flush in floor, leveled and
secured in place prior to pouring of floor, of length as required for switchboard. Bolt or weld
switchboard to channels.

D. Furnish and install all disconnect switches as required by code (AC and DC).

3.04 EARTHQUAKE RESISTANT INSTALLATION & FASTENING:

A. All electrical equipment and raceways shall be designed to withstand forces generated by
earthquake motions. As a minimum, equipment and equipment frames shall be designed to
withstand a force of 25% of the weight of the equipment and frame acting at its center of
gravity. Anchorage of the equipment and/or frame to the structure shall be for a force of 50%
gravity also acting at the center of gravity.

B. For floor mounted inverters and switchboards / distribution panels, the above values shall be
doubled. Design stresses in either case may be increased 1/3 over normal allowable stresses
but never beyond yield.

3.05 ADJUSTING AND CLEANING

A. All electrical equipment, including existing equipment not "finish painted" under other
sections, shall be touched up where finished surface is marred or damaged.

B. All equipment shall be left in clean condition, with all shipping and otherwise unnecessary
labels removed there from.

3.06 IDENTIFICATION

A. Inverters, combiner boxes, pull boxes, switchboards, panel boards, distribution circuit
breakers, disconnect switches, and related electrical enclosures shall be properly identified by
means of engraved laminated plastic descriptive nameplates mounted on apparatus using
stainless steel screws or permanent epoxy adhesive where set screws are not feasible.
Standard adhesives alone are not acceptable. Nameplates shall have white letters with black



ATTACHMENT A5-1: GENERAL ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATION
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 Attachment A5-1

background. Cardholders in any form are not acceptable.

B. Provide all required safety and identification placards as required by code.

3.07 PAINTING OF EQUIPMENT

A. Factory Applied: Electrical equipment shall have factory-applied painting systems which shall,
as a minimum, meet the requirements of NEMA ICS 6 corrosion-resistance test, except
equipment specified to meet requirements of ANSI C37.20 shall have a finish as specified in
ANSI C37.20.

B. Field Applied: Paint electrical equipment as required to match finish or meet safety criteria.

3.08 TESTING

A. General:
1. All inspections and tests shall be in accordance with the International Electrical Testing

Association - Acceptance Testing Specifications ATS-2009 (referred to herein as NETA ATS-
2009).

2. Final test and inspection may be conducted in presence of Owner: Tests shall be
conducted at the expense of and by the Contractor at a mutually agreed time. Submit
written test reports.

3. The electrical installation shall be inspected and tested to ensure safety to building
occupants, operating personnel, conformity to code authorities, and final Construction
Shop Drawings.

4. Final Inspection Certificates: Prior to final payment approval, deliver to the Owner, with a
copy to the Owner, signed certificates of final inspection by the appropriate inspection
authority.
a. Grounding System:

1) All ground connections shall be checked and the entire system shall be checked
for continuity. The resistance of the ground system at each site shall be
measured using a 3 point fall-of-potential method. The maximum ground
resistance shall be three ohms.

2) Ground tests shall meet the requirements of the National Electric Code, Article
250.

3) All PV system grounding shall meet the requirements of NEC Article 690.

END OF SECTION



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

SECTION 26 60 00: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. The Contract documents.

B. Section 26 00 00: General Electrical Specifications

C. Section 05 90 02: PV Mounting Specifications

1.02 GENERAL

A. The project includes the design and construction of complete Photovoltaic Systems (PV),
including all AC and DC components. The design and installation shall conform to all
requirements as defined by the applicable codes, laws, rules, regulations and standards as
specified in the RFP.

B. The Contractor shall include all items and all work reasonable required to complete the System
in accordance with the Agreement. If the Contractor is in doubt as to the intent of any portion
of these specifications, or necessary information is omitted, the Contractor shall notify the
District in writing for clarifications or corrections to be provided by addendum.

C. All design documents, cut sheets, and technical specifications shall be submitted, reviewed and
accepted by the Owner per the guidelines specified in RFP Attachment A3 – Submittals and
Project Acceptance.

1.03 WORK INCLUDED

A. The work shall include the design, engineering, materials, labor, equipment, installation,
testing, services, and incidentals necessary to install complete Photovoltaic (PV) Systems in
conformity with applicable codes and professionally recognized standards.

B. PV systems shall consist of arrays of framed photovoltaic modules, mounting hardware,
terminal boxes, combiner boxes, quick-connect electrical connectors, DC wiring, DC
disconnects, utility interactive inverters, AC disconnects, AC feeders, AC circuit breakers, AC
panel boards / switchgear, and complete data acquisition and monitoring systems.

C. The PV systems shall be utility grid connected. The Contractor shall be responsible for all
required utility company coordination, applications, inspections, permits, and final approval
for the complete interconnection of the PV systems with the utility company grid, including bi-
directional utility meters at each location.

D. The Contractor shall ensure adequate clearance and equipment space within the allotted areas
and existing building and site conditions. All equipment and sizes / clearances shall be
coordinated with the District prior to rough-in.

E. The Contractor shall be provide for the disconnection, disposition and proper disposal of all
existing equipment to be replaced.

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. All equipment shall be listed to Underwriters’ Laboratories (UL) standards as applicable.



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

B. Installer Qualifications – The installing contractor shall be familiar with the equipment to be
installed and have the necessary training to install in the equipment.

1.05 MATERIALS, DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

A. All materials shall be delivered new, undamaged and without defects.

B. All equipment and panels shall be handled with care so as not to damage the delivered
products. All equipment shall be installed in new and neat condition.

C. Appropriate protective clothing shall be worn when handling the equipment.

D. All materials stored on the roof shall be distributed so as not to overload the roof at any point.
All materials stored on roof shall follow the guidelines of the roofing system manufacturer
including protection boards, pallets and/or mats to prevent damage to the roof system and
insulation assemblies. All roof top construction, construction related traffic and staging areas
shall have protection boards in place to prevent damage to the roofing system and insulation
assemblies.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

2.01 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS

A. Acceptable system manufacturers/vendors shall be as specified in other sections of this RFP.
Manufacturers shall provide their latest line of equipment, meeting all current industry
standards and all performance criteria set forth in this RFP. The Owner seeks equipment from
proven, industry leading manufacturers in solid financial standing, producing tier-one
equipment.

B. Contractor proprietary products shall have an ICC report or a testing report stamped and
signed by a licensed California engineer.

2.02 EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

A. All PV Modules shall meet the following specifications:

1. Module manufacturer that has produced no less than 250MW of modules in the prior year.
2. Modules are from a field-tested product line that has been commercially available for no less

than three years.
3. Module manufacturer shall provide a 25-year warranty on the solar modules with at least 80

percent power output guaranteed at 25 years.
4. Have a minimum 25-year design life, designed for normal, unattended operation.
5. UL 1703 listed.
6. UL listed for the specified voltage (typically 1000 V-DC).
7. Meet IEC 61215 (crystalline silicon PV modules) or IEC 61646 (thin film PV modules)

standards.
8. Project costs shall include all known and future duties, tariffs, export tariffs, customs,

demurrage, and shipping costs.
9. Meet California SB1 Guidelines for Eligibility.

B. No substitution for contracted equipment shall be made without the written consent of
District. Such consent will not to be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld.

B. All Inverters shall meet the following requirements:



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

1. String-type inverters.
2. Integrated AC and DC disconnects
3. Include a 10-year warranty.
4. Manufacturer produced no less than 250 MWp of inverters in the prior fiscal year.
5. Field-tested product line that is commercially available for no less than 2 fiscal years.
6. UL 1741 listed and Comply with IEEE 1547, including testing to IEEE 1547.1 and IEEE C62.45.

Regulatory standards compliance shall also include IEEE C62.41.2 and CSA107.1-01.1.
7. Incorporate disconnect switch for main DC power disconnect in compliance with applicable

codes and utility requirements.
8. Sized as required to support the PV module production load within the rating of the

equipment, together with all other components.
9. CEC approved, Rule 21 compliant and shall be utility line interactive type.
10. Capable of producing reactive power to operate between a power factor of 0.9 lagging to 0.9

leading (as adjusted on the inverter equipment).
11. Meet the following requirements:

a) Nominal AC Voltage (Three-phase, + 10%): 208, 240, or 480 VAC (as required per site)
b) Nominal AC Frequency (+ 0.5 Hz): 60 Hz
c) Line Power Factor (Above 20% rated power): >0.99
d) AC Current Distortion (At rated power): <5% THD
e) Maximum Open Circuit Voltage DC: 1,000 VDC
f) Maximum Ripple Current (% of rated current): <5%
g) Minimum Inverter Efficiency: >96%
h) Temperature Range Ambient: -4º F to 122º F (-20º C to 50º C)
i) Enclosure Environmental Rating (minimum): NEMA 3R
j) Relative Humidity (non-condensing): 0-95%
k) Sound level: <85 dBa
l) Protective Functions: Standard wakeup voltage, wakeup time delay, shutdown power,

shutdown time delay, AC over / under voltage and time delays, AC over / under
frequency and time delays, ground over current, over-temperature, AC and DC over
current, DC over voltage

m) User Display: Standard-LCD with on/off capability
n) DC Disconnect: 1,000 VDC load break rated
o) Isolation Transformer (if applicable): High efficiency type, supplied by the manufacturer

of the Inverter Systems, mounted within same enclosure or directly adjacent, with
factory designated wiring provisions.

p) Zone 4 Seismic Rating (free standing) or wall mounted
q) Internal combiner panel option to allow connections of sub-arrays at the Inverter

without the use of additional equipment.

G. Upon connection of the new PV systems, provide a placard on the respective Main
Switchboard to identify the two sources of power feeding the equipment.

H. Combiner boxes (where used) shall be NEMA 3R rated (minimum) and shall include fuses for
string inputs and a bus bar to combine the strings into sub-arrays, for input into the Inverter
system. Minimum combiner box output bus ampacity shall be 156% of the rated short circuit
current available to be carried on the bus (the sum from all strings to the bus).]

I. All AC interconnecting feeders shall be sized to NEC Table 310.16 (75 degree column) based on



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

associated disconnect amperage. Conduit fill to 40% max. Include temperature derating as
required for the ambient temperatures and roof conditions per NEC. Provide equipment
grounding conductor in each conduit.

J. All roof and exterior mounted raceways shall be designed and installed to accommodate
expansion and contraction due to heating affects, including adequate cable length and listed
expansion couplings. All expansion couplings or installations shall include grounding bonding
jumpers as required by code.

K. All AC circuits to be 3-wire or 4-wire + ground. All grounding per NEC 690, Part V.

L. All DC circuits and feeders sized to NEC table 310.16 (90 degree column) based on associated
disconnect amperage. Minimum ampacity shall be 156% of the rated short circuit current
available to be carried on the specific conductor. Conduit fill to 40% max. Include temperature
derating as required for the ambient temperatures and roof conditions per NEC. Provide
equipment grounding conductor in each conduit.

M. All DC circuits to be 2-wire + ground.

N. All AC and DC wiring in conduit to be RHW-2, PVWIRE, THWN-2, or XHHW-2 (90 degree) wet
rated for use with 90 degree listed terminals on PV equipment.

O. All exposed DC wiring to be USE-2, PVWIRE, or SE (90 degree) wet rated and sunlight resistant
or PV Wire.

P. Above ground exposed conduit shall be rigid galvanized steel with threaded fittings except
where DSA and other applicable codes specifically allow for the use of EMT conduit. All conduit
shall meet NEC Code, DSA Guidelines and any applicable standards. Exterior installations shall
have watertight fittings. All conduit shall be rated for exposed installation and a minimum
design life equivalent to the solar panels. Paint all visible exposed raceways and boxes to
match adjacent surface finish after installation. Colors to be selected and approved by the
Owner, such approval not to be unreasonably conditioned, delayed, or withheld.

Q. All conduits and stub-ups under array canopies shall be encased within concrete caissons or
piers or, protected from parking traffic with appropriately sized bollards if protection is
required by electrical engineer.

R. All interior conduit to be EMT with steel set-screw fittings (no cast fittings).

2.03 WIRE MANAGEMENT

A. All inter-array wiring methods must meet or exceed current industry standards for wire
management, strain relief and fastening.

B. All inter-array wire management shall use stainless steel or galvanized steel cable clips, Heyco
or similar. UV rated cable ties shall be used minimally and only in locations where the use of
cable clips are impossible.

C. Where exposed, wires, cables and conductors shall be managed in a neat and orderly manner.
Where exposed to environmental conditions e.g. sunlight, rain, wind etc. and visible from below,
wires shall be fastened in a uniform and discrete fashion.

D. All conductors and conduits between separate arrays shall be routed underground. Wiring shall
be routed down columns, encased in piers/caissons, routed underground between arrays or



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

carports, and up the nearest column on the adjacent array. Under no circumstance will circuits,
conduits, or chaseways be mounted overhead between separate structures, including seismic
gaps).

E. Strain relief and drip loops shall be utilized at all entrances to and from conduit bodies, junction
boxes, weather heads, switchgear, inverters and panelboards etc. Conductors shall be strapped
with strain relief as not to stress panel leads, home runs or mechanically crimped connections
within the array.

2.04 MISC. SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

A. All exterior equipment to be sunlight and UV resistant as well as rated for elevated
temperatures at which they are expected to operate (on roofs in hot sunlight).

B. No dissimilar metals are allowed to contact each other (use plastic or rubber washers) with the
exception of anodized aluminum module frames in contact with galvanized carport purlins. Best
practices shall be used to avoid corrosion.

C. No aluminum in contact with concrete or masonry materials.

D. Bolted connections shall be non-corrosive and include locking devices designed to prevent
twisting over the design life of the PV system.

E. Environmental impact of system equipment containing hazardous materials shall be disclosed,
as well as maintenance and disposal instructions for equipment at the end of its useful life.

2.05 SYSTEM ELECTRICAL

A. The modules shall be interconnected using cable assemblies. The pigtails shall be quick-connect
electrical wiring connections rated for the application (90 degree rated).

B. Raceway system shall be installed in a manner that prevents water from draining into electrical
equipment.

C. Full specifications of the inverter shall be supplied as part of the system submittal.

D. All major components of the systems and the installation procedures shall meet National
Electrical Code requirements, including Article 690.

E. The PV system shall be designed to automatically drop offline when normal utility power is lost
to avoid unintentional islanding effects as required by the local utility.

F. All electrical system equipment shall be properly rated to withstand and interrupt (in the case of
over current protection devices) the available fault current at the point of use.

G. The system shall be capable of producing reactive power to operate between a power factor of
0.9 lagging to 0.9 leading (as adjusted on the inverter equipment).

H. All required overcurrent protection and electrical bussing sizes per NEC 690.

I. Means of system grounding to be approved by professional Electrical Engineer of record and
GFCI protection shall be in accordance with latest NEC requirements.

2.06 MONITORING

A. A Data Acquisition and Monitoring System (DAS) shall be provided for all points of interconnect.



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

The system shall include, but not be limited to, the measurement, calculation, display, and
reporting of the following items:

1. PV production in 15-min reporting intervals.
2. Energy consumption in 15-min reporting intervals.
3. Weather data in 15-min reporting intervals
4. System electrical functions (instantaneous and accumulated power output (kW and kWh),

AC and DC system voltage and amperage, and peak value tracking with associated time
stamps).

5. Pounds of CO2 emissions avoided from the generation of PV energy at the site (compared to
local utility fuel mix electric carbon content).

6. Generation data in the Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System (WREGIS)
format.

7. Lifetime access to data reported by DAS.
8. DAS shall allow customer or customer’s third party designee to programmatically download

data through Application Program Interface (“API”). This data shall, at a minimum, include
PV production data, energy consumption data, weather station and/or satellite data, and
alarm status readings. All data shall be available over multiple timescales, ranging from 15-
min intervals to annual intervals and shall include both real-time and historic data.

B. Cellular data shall be used for communications with the DAS and metering systems. In the
absence of cellular service availability, the District may, at its own discretion, provide internet
connections on a site by site basis.

C. Separate consumption meters shall be provided for each utility account. Consumption meters
shall include a web-enabled interface and 15-min reporting intervals to be synced with PV
meter production intervals. Consumption meter standard assumption is 480V POI, assumption
for anything above 480V POI without a storage component will be monitored at additional
cost.

D. Contractor shall load software (as applicable) on District provided computers and train District
in operation and maintenance of software or cloud based systems and related monitoring
functions.

E. A weather station shall be provided at one site in the District’s portfolio of Systems, located
geographically to best provide coverage for the portfolio of sites being considered. The station
shall provide at a minimum: solar irradiation (coplanar and horizontal), ambient temperature,
wind speed and any other data relevant to weather correction of solar PV system
performance.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 REQUIRED PLACARDS

A. All placards shall be machine generated phenolic type with red background and white
lettering, affixed to equipment with stainless steel screws or with permanent adhesive where
set screws are not feasible. Minimum lettering size to be 1/4" unless otherwise noted or
required for legibility.

B. Provide a placard clearly visible at each main service panel to identify both sources of power,
with the following wording in 1/4" high lettering per NEC 690.64(B)(4): “Warning - This Service



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

Is Fed By Two Sources Of Power – The Utility Service Main Disconnect And The PV System Main
Disconnect – Both Services Must Be Disconnected To Remove Power From The Switchboard”.

C. Provide a placard on each PV system input circuit breaker (where used) at the main panel with
the following wording in 1/4" high lettering per NEC 690.64(B)(7): “Warning – Inverter Output
Connection – Do Not Relocate This Overcurrent Device”.

D. Provide a placard on all disconnects with the following wording in 1/4" high lettering per NEC
690.17: "Warning - Electric Shock Hazard - Do Not Touch Terminals - Terminals On Both The
Line and Load Sides May Be Energized In The Open Position".

E. Provide a placard on the Main PV System Disconnect (adjacent to each main service panel)
with the following information in 1/4" high lettering per NEC 690.53: "Photovoltaic Power
Source Disconnect - Operating Current: X Amps; Operating voltage: XX VAC; Maximum System
Voltage: XX VAC; Short-Circuit Current: XXX Amps", where X is the operating current, XX is the
system voltage, and XXX is the maximum short circuit current contribution of the generating
facility at the point of interconnection with the utility system.

F. Provide a placard at each Main Switchboard with the following information in 1/4" High
lettering per NEC 690.54: "Caution - Possible Backfeed From Photovoltaic Power System – X
VAC, XX Amps", where X is the system voltage and XX is the maximum AC amperes of the
installed system.

G. Provide a placard on each PV System Inverter with the following information in 1/4" high
lettering: "Photovoltaic Power Source Inverter Rating - Operating Current: XX Amps; Operating
voltage: XXX VDC; Maximum System Voltage: 1,000 VDC; Short-Circuit Current: XXXX Amps",
where XX is the maximum DC amperes of the installed system, XXX is the operating voltage DC,
and XXXX is the short circuit current that the Inverter can provide (from all strings in parallel).

H. Provide utility-required System Directory placard and utility safety switch Identification placard
as required by local utility company, to identify all system components.

I. Provide a placard for all Combiner Boxes to read: “DC Combiner Box [XXX]– [System Voltage]
VDC Maximum”.

3.02 UTILITY INTERCONNECTION

A. The Contractor shall complete the submissions for the utility interconnection agreement with
the Owner’s approval. The Contractor shall submit the required authorization form with the
utility to act on behalf of the Owner.

B. The PV system at each Site shall not be interconnected with the Utility’s distribution facilities
until written authorization from the Utility Company has been obtained. Unauthorized
interconnections may result in injury to persons and damage to equipment or property for
which the installing contractor may be liable.

3.03 INSTALLATION STANDARDS

A. System Installation shall conform to the equipment manufacturers Installation Manual(s) and
requirements or guidelines.

B. All Local, State, and NEC codes shall be observed, including all industry standards related to the
installation, operation, and maintenance of photovoltaic power systems.



ATTACHMENT A5-2: PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

12/15/2017 RFP Attachment A5-2

3.04 TESTING

A. Photovoltaic modules shall be tested in the factory for design performance and results shall be
included in the Operation and Maintenance manuals.

B. Inverters shall be factory tested for performance and the results shall be included in the
Operation and Maintenance manuals.

C. System testing of the installed photovoltaic array shall be performed on all system strings and
recorded in commissioning documentation and the Operation and Maintenance manuals.

D. Commissioning of PV Systems at a minimum shall include:
1. Conductors

1.1. AC & DC conductor inspection / megger testing
1.2. Wire management check
1.3. DC string VocIsc testing and recording
1.4. Confirm all conduits & junction boxes are installed properly/watertight

2. Inspection of DC fusing and disconnects
3. Inspection of AC components: AC Disconnect, Main Switch Board, AC Combiner Panel

Boards, Breakers, Fuses, Terminations, Phasing, OCPD operation, etc.
4. Grounding & bonding system inspection & continuity testing
5. Inverters

5.1. Inverter inspections & tests per manufacturer instructions
5.2. Inverter start-up & confirm proper inverter settings
5.3. Inverter output tests - Confirm PV system AC output as expected based on design,

insolation and inverter readings
6. IV Curve Trace, Performance testing and recording
7. Thermal Imaging

7.1. Check all electrical components while systems are energized
7.2. Spot check, Modules, Inverters, Disconnects, AC system etc.

8. Torque spot check on mechanical and electrical terminations
9. Inspection of corrosion control measures
10. Confirm signage and placards meet plans
11. Workmanship evaluation
12. Inspection of DAS / CT metering and monitoring equipment
13. Weather station component inspection and performance audit
14. Confirm web-based monitoring interface operations
15. Lighting Controls

15.1. Confirm canopy lighting levels match photometric design
15.2. Verify component installations
15.3. Confirm lighting controls function as specified

16. Commissioning of any other major electrical infrastructure installed on the project per
manufacturer requirements

E. Testing to be performed per CPUC Electric Rule 21 testing procedures and requirements. All
testing to be done on “no-cloud” days to avoid system fluctuation by passing clouds. Installer
to provide all testing and certification / commissioning.

F. System start-up procedure shall be as outlined by the Manufacturer’s Installation Manual and
the Inverter Manual.

END OF SECTION



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-1

SECTION 05 90 02: STRUCTURAL PHOTOVOLTAIC SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATION

PART 1 – GENERAL

1.01 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. The RFP and all Attachments.

B. Section 26 00 00: General Electrical Specifications

C. Section 26 60 00: Photovoltaic System Specifications

1.02 GENERAL

A. This project may include the design and construction of Structural Photovoltaic Shade Canopies
(PV Canopies). The design and installation shall conform to all requirements as defined by the
applicable codes, laws, rules, and standards as specified in the RFP.

B. The Contractor shall include all items and all work reasonable inferred by these specifications
and the RFP for compliance with all applicable structural codes. If the Contractor is in doubt as
to the intent of any portion of these specifications and the RFP, or necessary information is
omitted, the Contractor shall notify the Site Owner/Host in writing for clarifications or
corrections to be provided by addendum.

C. All design documents, cut sheets, and technical specifications shall be submitted, reviewed and
accepted by the Site Owner/Host per the guidelines specified in the RFP.

D. General Specifications as described in Section 26 00 00: General Electrical Specifications, are
referred to herein and shall apply to this specification. Section 26 00 00 shall be deemed to
supersede this specification in the case of conflicts.

1.03 WORK INCLUDED

A. The work shall include the design and construction of the structural systems, in conformity with
applicable codes and professionally recognized standards.

B. The structural design shall be fully developed, including descriptions and calculations for all
structural components. The site, plans, elevations, schedules and detail drawings must be
sufficiently developed to reflect the overall design per the RFP and as described in Section 26 00
00, Photovoltaic System Specifications.

C. Contractor shall provide all materials, labor, equipment, services, and incidentals necessary to
install the structures at each Site as shown on the design drawings and as specified hereinafter.

D. Contractor shall provide temporary power and lighting as required for construction.
Additionally, contractor must provide sufficient temporary facility lighting in place of removed
existing lighting during construction phase until under canopy lighting is fully operational.

E. Contractor responsible for location of all underground utilities and infrastructure with the use
of Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) or equivalent technology.

F. Contractor shall be responsible for prompt removal and disposal of spoils from all related
construction activities.



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-2

1.04 COATINGS AND CORROSION CONTROL

A. Each canopy system and associated components must be designed and selected to withstand the
environmental conditions of the site (e.g., temperatures, winds, rain, flooding, etc.) to which they
will be exposed. The design life shall be a minimum of 25-years.

B. All structural members and racking installed outdoors shall be hot dipped galvanized steel.

1. All galvanized materials cut during construction shall be field coated with a long lasting rust
inhibiting coating, color matched and intended for coating hot-dipped galvanized metal in
outdoor settings.

2. All galvanized materials shall be in compliance with ASTM 123/A-02 Standard Specification
for Zinc (Hot-Dipped Galvanized) Coatings on Iron and Steel Products.

3. All purlin framing members shall be G90 galvanized steel. If structure is in close proximity to
coastal conditions (within 1 mile), G120 galvanized steel or higher shall be installed per
Engineer of Record’s specification.

C. Particular attention shall be given to the prevention of corrosion at the connections between
dissimilar metals.

1.05 GEOTECHNICAL STUDY AND ANALYSIS

A. A geotechnical analysis shall be provided by Contractor and performed by a qualified geotechnical
engineering contractor. The results of the analysis shall be used when designing the foundations
for the structures on the Site.

B. At a minimum, the following should be included in the analysis:

1. Review publicly available geotechnical information. This may include soils and geologic maps
and literature, photographs, hydroelectric reports, groundwater reports, and water well data.

2. Coordination and mobilization of the geotechnical services team for subsurface exploration
of the Site. This should include working with the local utilities to mark any existing
underground utilities (such as cables, gas lines, piping, etc.).

3. Study the Site to determine the presence of faults, ground fissures, and other potential
geologic hazards that could affect the structural design and construction of the Facility.

4. Drilling or digging of exploratory borings and pits. The amount and depth shall be determined
by the Contractor.

5. Performance of cone penetration tests. The amount and depth shall be determined by the
Contractor.

6. Laboratory testing of collected soil samples from the borings and test pits. An evaluation of
the in-place moisture content and dry density, gradation, plasticity, consolidation
characteristics, collapse potential, expansivity, shear strength, resistivity, chloride content,
sodium sulfate content, and solubility potential (total salts) should be conducted.

7. Analyze the corrosivity of the soil upon determination of a professional engineer. Include a
recommendation for the type of cement to be used in concrete foundations. Also include
recommendations for corrosion protection for underground steel, including rigid metal
conduit (such as the need for polyvinyl chloride [PVC] coating).



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-3

C. A detailed report shall be provided outlining the tasks performed and the results of the testing.
Included in the report should be any recommendations for the foundation designs, structural
support designs, corrosion protection, pile drive frequency, minimum pile size, and any geologic
conditions that may prevent the development of the project. For ground mount systems, an
opinion on the viability of driven piles as the PV racking supports should be provided.

PART 2 – PRODUCTS

2.01 SOLAR CANOPY STRUCTURES

A. Canopies shall have a minimum clear height of 12 foot at the lowest point of any structure. Clear
heights shall be verified by the Contractor with the Site Owner/Host and increased as needed.

B. All structural system components shall be designed and constructed to withstand the
environmental conditions of the site to which they will be exposed. The mounting systems shall
be designed and installed to resist dead load, live load, corrosion UV degradation, wind loads, and
seismic loads appropriate to the geographic area over the expected life of the PV system, a
minimum 25-years.

C. The PV Canopies shall consist of interconnected columns and truss chords/beams with solar
modules installed in either portrait or landscape orientation connected to the purlins. Columns
shall be located between parking stall spaces with truss chords cantilevered to either side of the
column for both dual entry (aisle) and single entry (perimeter) parking structures.

D. All materials shall conform to the requirements, tolerances, etc. of the latest editions of the AISC
Manual of Steel Construction, AISI Specifications for the Design of Cold Formed Steel Members,
ASTM Standard Specifications for General Requirements for rolled steel plates, shapes, sheets and
bars for structural use.

E. All canopy bolts, nuts and washers, unless otherwise noted, shall be hot dip galvanized or stainless
steel.

F. Purlins shall be mounted between the truss top chords/beams unless otherwise noted. Top of
purlins shall be flush with the top of the upper truss chord to provide a flat plane for uniform
mounting of solar panel and integrated racking system.

G. Purlins shall be bolted to clips on truss top chords/beams with zinc plated Grade 5 bolts, unless
otherwise specified by the Structural Engineer of Record. Number of purlins and purlin spacing
shall be determined by solar module and integrated rack layout. Mounting holes for the racking
system and solar module installation shall be pre-located and pre-drilled prior to finishing and
coating operations.

H. Canopies placed in parking lots shall be clearly labeled with max clearance for vehicles at the low
points. Labels shall be rated for long-term UV exposure with lifetime to match warranties specified
for PV panels in Section 26 60 00. Minimum labeling of one every 50 feet of carport on the long
axis and one at every exterior corner of each array within a parking lot. Label should be easily
visible from a vehicle.

I. Structural caissons/foundations for canopies in parking lots shall extend a minimum height of 30
inches above grade.

J. Electrical conduits extending from the canopy to grade are to be encased in the foundations, not
mounted on the outside of finished piers. All electrical connections between separate structures
shall be underground. Overhead “jumpers” between structures shall not be permitted.

K. For canopies located in parking lots, a minimum of two three-inch (3”) spare conduits shall be



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-4

installed from the main electrical service to one array that covers ADA parking stalls. Conduits
shall originate at the main service cabinet and follow the PV AC homerun conduits to the point
designated on the Site Detail Sheets. In the absence of a designated termination point at the
canopies, conduit shall terminate at the first column of a designated carport or centered between
the closest ADA and standard parking stalls closest to the AC panel board. The spare conduit shall
terminate in a Christy box (hand hole). Spare conduit shall include a minimum of two sufficiently
rated pull strings or wires inside conduit for future wire pull. Additional spare conduits may be
required as specified in the Site Detail sheets.

L. All framing material shall be drained or have provisions to prevent water pooling on or within the
framing member (weep holes).

M. All canopies to be co-planer and in alignment horizontally and vertically with adjacent arrays. Top
of column heights shall be shown in design drawings.

N. All anchor bolts shall be double nutted or ‘staked’ (threading irreversibly altered) to protect from
structural compromise and vandalism.

O. All structural connections at the flanged base of columns shall be outfitted with metal pole skirts
coated to match columns. Pole skirts shall have rounded corners.

P. All canopies shall be designed to meet ADA requirements per the relevant AHJs. Contractor shall
be responsible for all ADA improvements within the footprint of the canopy. Path of travel outside
the footprint shall be the responsibility of the Site Owner/Host.

Q. Canopies shall have a minimum tilt of five degrees (5°) and maximum tilt of ten degrees (10°).

2.02 LIGHTING SYSTEMS

A. Canopy lighting systems shall be designed to meet the Illuminating Engineering Society of North
America (IESNA) requirements for parking lot areas, to meet or exceed minimum values and
maximum uniformity ratios as listed in the IESNA criteria.

B. Lighting shall meet all Title 24 requirements for installations in California.

C. All lighting sources shall be LED type.

D. Lighting control system shall be connected to the existing lighting controls in each area. If tie-in
with existing circuits is not feasible, Contractor shall establish new circuit and controls.

E. Lighting design on canopies shall insure cut-off light control to limit spill light or glare to
adjoining areas as-needed. Design and install custom shielding or other mitigation measures to
avoid light pollution and glare to neighbors.

F. Existing pole mounted lighting in areas of new carport canopies shall be removed. Modify other
existing lighting to coordinate with the new work and design, including reconnection of any
existing downstream circuiting and controls to remain. Foundations of existing pole mount
lighting are to be completely removed a minimum of 6-inchs below grade, with grade restored
to surrounding condition.

G. New design shall cover all areas of the parking lots (in the area of the work) to leave no dark
spots and meet IESNA and requirements for all areas previously covered by light standards
removed under this contract. Contractor shall install new pole mounted luminaires if canopy
lighting does not provide sufficient lighting in all areas previously covered by removed or altered
light standards. Existing fixtures may remain, if not in direct conflict with canopies or causing
shading of new canopies.



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-5

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.01 SITE PREPARATION AND INSPECTION

A. Contractor shall direct, oversee and inspect all site work related to structural installation. Site
preparation shall be in accordance with final drawings and specifications provided by
manufacturer.

3.02 INSTALLATION

A. Erect/Stand structural steel with proper equipment and qualified installers.

B. Actively cooperate with other trades and provide incidental welding, connections, etc. for
securement of work of others to structural steel framing.

C. Erect/Stand temporary flooring, planking, and scaffolding necessary in connection with erection
of structural steel or support of erection machinery. Use of temporary floors shall be as required
by municipal or state laws and governing safety regulations. Hoist metal deck onto structural
frame.

D. After erection, clean connections and abrasions to shop coat and spot paint with same primer
used in shop.

E. Installation of the structural system and all components shall be in strict accordance with
manufacturer’s recommendations.

F. Post installation, Contractor shall provide the materials and labor to grout the base of the
column to produce a finished joint.

3.03 ERECTION TOLERANCES

A. Erection tolerances for structural steel work shall be in accordance with latest AISC “Code of
Standard Practice for Steel Buildings and Bridges”.

3.04 BOLTING

A. High strength steel bolts shall be used where indicated. Fabrication and erection shall be in strict
accordance with the latest edition of “Specifications for Assembly of Structural Joints Using
High-Strength Steel Bolts”, as approved by the Research Council on Riveted and Bolted
Structural Joints of the Engineering Foundation. Load indicator washer shall be used. Use
beveled washers on sloping surfaces.

3.05 WELDING

A. Welding and welded joints shall be in accordance with AWS standards. Work shall be performed
by operators who have been qualified by test in accordance with AWS D1.1, “Structural Welding
Code – Steel”, to perform type of work required for this project.

B. All methods, sequence, qualifications and procedures, including preheating, postheating, etc.
shall be detailed in writing and submitted to Architect for review by the testing laboratory.
Provisions shall be made in detailing of lengths of members for dimensional changes as a result
of shrinkage stresses so as to provide specified finished dimensions.

C. Remove all runoff tabs, and bottom backing bars. Top backup bars to be removed or have
continuous fillet weld to column.

3.06 ANCHOR BOLTS



ATTACHMENT A5-3: SHADE CANOPY SPECIFICATIONS
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project

2/2/2018 A5.3-6

A. Provide at site, for others to install, all anchor bolts, bearing plates, and templates to be
embedded in concrete.

B. Provide necessary steel or wood templates and diagrams for setting and securing of such anchor
bolts in concrete forms.

C. Be jointly responsible with others for proper locating and installing, and make good any
deficiencies and errors.

D. Setting of anchor bolts in hardened concrete necessitates drilled holes solidly grouted in place
with epoxy grout. Submit materials and methods for review and approval.

END OF SECTION



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:1 

 

 
SECTION 31 2316.13 

TRENCHING FOR SITE UTILITIES 

 
 

PART 1  GENERAL 
 

1.01    SECTION INCLUDES 

A.    Trenching, backfilling and compacting for utilities as indicated or necessary. 
 

1.02    RELATED REQUIREMENTS 
 

A.    Division 26:  Pertinent sections specifying work requiring trenching. 
 

1.03    REFERENCES 
 

A.    ASTM C136 - Standard Test Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates. 
 

B.     ASTM D698 - Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using 
Standard Effort (12,400 ft-lbf/ft3 (600 kN-m/m3)). 

 

C.    ASTM D1556 - Standard Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone 
Method. 

 

D.    ASTM D1557 - Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using 
Modified Effort (56,000 ft-lbf/ft3 (2,700 kN m/m3)). 

 

E.     ASTM D 2922 - Standard Test Methods for Density of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear 
Methods (Shallow Depth). 

 

F.     ASTM D3017 - Standard Test Method for Water Content of Soil and Rock in Place by Nuclear Methods 
(Shallow Depth). 

 

1.04    DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 
 

A.    When necessary, store materials on site in advance of need. 
 

B.     When fill materials need to be stored on site, locate stockpiles where directed by Owner. 
1.     Separate differing materials with dividers or stockpile separately to prevent intermixing. 
2.     Prevent contamination. 
3.     Protect stockpiles from erosion and deterioration of materials. 

 

C.    Do not excavate with power driven equipment within two feet of known existing buried utilities. 
Work immediately adjacent to existing utilities and piping shall be excavated by hand. 

 

D.    Support uncovered utilities and other work affected by excavation until approval for backfill is granted.  
Report damage to buried utilities or other work to Project Inspector immediately. 

 

E.     Verify that survey bench marks and intended elevations for the Work are as indicated. F.     

Protect plants, lawns, rock outcroppings, trees, and other features to remain. 

G.    Protect bench marks, survey control points, existing structures, fences, sidewalks, paving, and curbs from 
excavating equipment and vehicular traffic. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS 
 

2.01    FILL MATERIALS 
 

A.    General Fill:  Subsoil excavated on-site. 
1.     Free of lumps larger than 3 inches, rocks larger than 2 inches, organic material and debris. 

 



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:2 

 

B.     Concrete for Fill:  Lean concrete. 
 

 
C.    Granular Fill:  Pit run washed stone; free of shale, clay, friable material and debris. 

1.     Graded in accordance with ASTM C136, within the following limits: 
a.     3 inch sieve:  100 percent passing. 

b.     No. 4 sieve:  40 to 100 percent passing. 
 

D.    Sand-Fill Type A:  Conforming to State of California Highway Department standard. 
 

2.02    ACCESSORIES 
 

A.    Warning Tape:  Polyethylene plastic/metallic laminate, three inches wide, bearing legend of 
"CAUTION BURIED                          PIPE", where the blank shall represent the type of buried utility. 

 
 
 

3.01    TRENCHING 
 

A.    Notify Architect of unexpected subsurface conditions and discontinue affected Work in area until notified 
to resume work. 

 

B.     Saw-cut existing pavements where necessary for new trenching. 
 

C.    Side of the trench shall be cut vertical  Conform to OSHA requirement for excavation and trenching shoring. 
 

D.    Do not interfere with 22.5 degree bearing splay of foundations.  Zone of influence is considered to begin 
not less than nine inches above the footing bottom. 

 

E.     Cut trenches wide enough to allow inspection of installed utilities. 
 

F.     Remove large stones and other hard matter which could damage piping or impede consistent 
backfilling or compaction to an overdepth of 6 inches minimum.. 

 

G.    Remove lumped subsoil, boulders, and rock up to 1/3 cu yd measured by volume. H.    

Remove excavated material that is unsuitable for re-use from site. 

I.      Remove excess excavated material from site. 
 

3.02    PREPARATION FOR UTILITY PLACEMENT 
 

A.    Cut out soft areas of subgrade not capable of compaction in place.  Backfill with general fill. 
 

B.     Compact subgrade to density equal to or greater than requirements for subsequent fill material. 
 

C.    Grade trench bottom to provide uniform bearing and support in undisturbed soil for each section of pipe or 
conduit. 

 

D.    Provide a layer of sand in the trench bottom and around the pipe for suitable bedding. E.     

Backfill over-excavations with sand to the proper grade, prior to placement of utilities. 

 
 

3.03    BACKFILLING 
 

A.    Fill up to subgrade elevations unless otherwise indicated. 
 

B.     Employ placement and compaction methods that do not disturb or damage the work. 
 

C.    Systematically fill to allow maximum time for natural settlement.  Do not fill over porous, wet, or spongy 
subgrade surfaces. 



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:3 

 

 

D.    Maintain optimum moisture content of fill materials to attain required compaction density. 
 

E.     Granular Fill:  Place and compact materials in equal continuous layers not exceeding 8 inches 
compacted depth. 

 

F.     Soil Fill:  Place and compact material in equal continuous layers not exceeding 8 inches compacted depth. 
 

G.    Install warning tape above utilities, twelve inches below finish grade. H.    

Correct areas that are over-excavated. 

I.      Compaction must be performed by mechanical methods only utilizing vibratory equipment whenever necessary 
to obtain required compaction.  Ponding, jetting, or excessive amounts of water will not be allowed. 

 

J.      Compaction Density Unless Otherwise Specified or Indicated: 
1.     Under paving, slabs-on-grade, and similar construction:  95 percent of maximum dry density. 
2.     At landscaped areas:  85 percent of maximum dry density. 
3.     At other locations:  95 percent of maximum dry density. 

 

K.    Reshape and re-compact fills subjected to vehicular traffic. 
 

3.04    BEDDING AND FILL 
 

A.    Use general fill in non-paved areas only. 
 

B.     Trenches under all paving and hard-surfaces areas:  Utility Piping and Conduits and other trenches: 
1.     Bedding:  Use sand. 
2.     Cover with Granular Backfill. 
3.     Fill up to subgrade elevation. 
4.     Compact in maximum 8 inch lifts to 90 percent of maximum dry density. 
5.     Compaction within 12 inches of subgrade shall be not less than 95 percent relative compaction. 

 

3.05    TOLERANCES 
 

A.    Top Surface of General Backfilling:  Plus or minus 1 inch from required elevations. 
 

B.     Top Surface of Backfilling Under Paved Areas:  Plus or minus 1 inch from required elevations. 
 

3.06    FIELD QUALITY CONTROL 

A.    See Section 01 4000 - Quality Requirements, for general requirements for field inspection and testing. B.     

Perform compaction density testing on compacted fill in accordance with ASTM D1556, ASTM D2167, 
ASTM D2922, or ASTM D3017. 

 

C.    Evaluate results in relation to compaction curve determined by testing uncompacted material in accordance 
with ASTM D698 ("standard Proctor"), ASTM D1557 ("modified Proctor"), or AASHTO T 
180. 

 

D.    If tests indicate work does not meet specified requirements, remove work, replace and retest. 
 

E.     Frequency of Tests:  each lift. 
 

3.07    CLEANING 
 

A.    Remove unused stockpiled materials, leave area in a clean and neat condition.  Grade stockpile area to prevent 
standing surface water. 

END OF SECTION 



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:1 

 

 
SECTION 31 2316.13 

TRENCHING FOR SITE UTILITIES 

 
 

PART 1  GENERAL 
 

1.01    SECTION INCLUDES 

A.    Trenching, backfilling and compacting for utilities as indicated or necessary. 
 

1.02    RELATED REQUIREMENTS 
 

A.    Division 26:  Pertinent sections specifying work requiring trenching. 
 

1.03    REFERENCES 
 

A.    ASTM C136 - Standard Test Method for Sieve Analysis of Fine and Coarse Aggregates. 
 

B.     ASTM D698 - Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using 
Standard Effort (12,400 ft-lbf/ft3 (600 kN-m/m3)). 

 

C.    ASTM D1556 - Standard Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone 
Method. 

 

D.    ASTM D1557 - Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using 
Modified Effort (56,000 ft-lbf/ft3 (2,700 kN m/m3)). 

 

E.     ASTM D 2922 - Standard Test Methods for Density of Soil and Soil-Aggregate in Place by Nuclear 
Methods (Shallow Depth). 

 

F.     ASTM D3017 - Standard Test Method for Water Content of Soil and Rock in Place by Nuclear Methods 
(Shallow Depth). 

 

1.04    DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 
 

A.    When necessary, store materials on site in advance of need. 
 

B.     When fill materials need to be stored on site, locate stockpiles where directed by Owner. 
1.     Separate differing materials with dividers or stockpile separately to prevent intermixing. 
2.     Prevent contamination. 
3.     Protect stockpiles from erosion and deterioration of materials. 

 

C.    Do not excavate with power driven equipment within two feet of known existing buried utilities. 
Work immediately adjacent to existing utilities and piping shall be excavated by hand. 

 

D.    Support uncovered utilities and other work affected by excavation until approval for backfill is granted.  
Report damage to buried utilities or other work to Project Inspector immediately. 

 

E.     Verify that survey bench marks and intended elevations for the Work are as indicated. F.     

Protect plants, lawns, rock outcroppings, trees, and other features to remain. 

G.    Protect bench marks, survey control points, existing structures, fences, sidewalks, paving, and curbs from 
excavating equipment and vehicular traffic. 

PART 2  PRODUCTS 
 

2.01    FILL MATERIALS 
 

A.    General Fill:  Subsoil excavated on-site. 
1.     Free of lumps larger than 3 inches, rocks larger than 2 inches, organic material and debris. 

 



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:2 

 

B.     Concrete for Fill:  Lean concrete. 
 

 
C.    Granular Fill:  Pit run washed stone; free of shale, clay, friable material and debris. 

1.     Graded in accordance with ASTM C136, within the following limits: 
a.     3 inch sieve:  100 percent passing. 

b.     No. 4 sieve:  40 to 100 percent passing. 
 

D.    Sand-Fill Type A:  Conforming to State of California Highway Department standard. 
 

2.02    ACCESSORIES 
 

A.    Warning Tape:  Polyethylene plastic/metallic laminate, three inches wide, bearing legend of 
"CAUTION BURIED                          PIPE", where the blank shall represent the type of buried utility. 

 
 
 

3.01    TRENCHING 
 

A.    Notify Architect of unexpected subsurface conditions and discontinue affected Work in area until notified 
to resume work. 

 

B.     Saw-cut existing pavements where necessary for new trenching. 
 

C.    Side of the trench shall be cut vertical  Conform to OSHA requirement for excavation and trenching shoring. 
 

D.    Do not interfere with 22.5 degree bearing splay of foundations.  Zone of influence is considered to begin 
not less than nine inches above the footing bottom. 

 

E.     Cut trenches wide enough to allow inspection of installed utilities. 
 

F.     Remove large stones and other hard matter which could damage piping or impede consistent 
backfilling or compaction to an overdepth of 6 inches minimum.. 

 

G.    Remove lumped subsoil, boulders, and rock up to 1/3 cu yd measured by volume. H.    

Remove excavated material that is unsuitable for re-use from site. 

I.      Remove excess excavated material from site. 
 

3.02    PREPARATION FOR UTILITY PLACEMENT 
 

A.    Cut out soft areas of subgrade not capable of compaction in place.  Backfill with general fill. 
 

B.     Compact subgrade to density equal to or greater than requirements for subsequent fill material. 
 

C.    Grade trench bottom to provide uniform bearing and support in undisturbed soil for each section of pipe or 
conduit. 

 

D.    Provide a layer of sand in the trench bottom and around the pipe for suitable bedding. E.     

Backfill over-excavations with sand to the proper grade, prior to placement of utilities. 

 
 

3.03    BACKFILLING 
 

A.    Fill up to subgrade elevations unless otherwise indicated. 
 

B.     Employ placement and compaction methods that do not disturb or damage the work. 
 

C.    Systematically fill to allow maximum time for natural settlement.  Do not fill over porous, wet, or spongy 
subgrade surfaces. 



ATTACHMENT A5.4: TRENCHING SPECIFICATIONS 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 

 

     

 

3/30/2018   RFP Attachment A5.4:3 

 

 

D.    Maintain optimum moisture content of fill materials to attain required compaction density. 
 

E.     Granular Fill:  Place and compact materials in equal continuous layers not exceeding 8 inches 
compacted depth. 

 

F.     Soil Fill:  Place and compact material in equal continuous layers not exceeding 8 inches compacted depth. 
 

G.    Install warning tape above utilities, twelve inches below finish grade. H.    

Correct areas that are over-excavated. 

I.      Compaction must be performed by mechanical methods only utilizing vibratory equipment whenever necessary 
to obtain required compaction.  Ponding, jetting, or excessive amounts of water will not be allowed. 

 

J.      Compaction Density Unless Otherwise Specified or Indicated: 
1.     Under paving, slabs-on-grade, and similar construction:  95 percent of maximum dry density. 
2.     At landscaped areas:  85 percent of maximum dry density. 
3.     At other locations:  95 percent of maximum dry density. 

 

K.    Reshape and re-compact fills subjected to vehicular traffic. 
 

3.04    BEDDING AND FILL 
 

A.    Use general fill in non-paved areas only. 
 

B.     Trenches under all paving and hard-surfaces areas:  Utility Piping and Conduits and other trenches: 
1.     Bedding:  Use sand. 
2.     Cover with Granular Backfill. 
3.     Fill up to subgrade elevation. 
4.     Compact in maximum 8 inch lifts to 90 percent of maximum dry density. 
5.     Compaction within 12 inches of subgrade shall be not less than 95 percent relative compaction. 

 

3.05    TOLERANCES 
 

A.    Top Surface of General Backfilling:  Plus or minus 1 inch from required elevations. 
 

B.     Top Surface of Backfilling Under Paved Areas:  Plus or minus 1 inch from required elevations. 
 

3.06    FIELD QUALITY CONTROL 

A.    See Section 01 4000 - Quality Requirements, for general requirements for field inspection and testing. B.     

Perform compaction density testing on compacted fill in accordance with ASTM D1556, ASTM D2167, 
ASTM D2922, or ASTM D3017. 

 

C.    Evaluate results in relation to compaction curve determined by testing uncompacted material in accordance 
with ASTM D698 ("standard Proctor"), ASTM D1557 ("modified Proctor"), or AASHTO T 
180. 

 

D.    If tests indicate work does not meet specified requirements, remove work, replace and retest. 
 

E.     Frequency of Tests:  each lift. 
 

3.07    CLEANING 
 

A.    Remove unused stockpiled materials, leave area in a clean and neat condition.  Grade stockpile area to prevent 
standing surface water. 

END OF SECTION 



ATTACHMENT A5.6: CONCRETE PAVING SPECIFICATION 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 
 

 

3/30/2018  RFP Attachment A5.6-1 

 

CONCRETE REPAIR 
 

PART 1  GENERAL 
 

1.01    SECTION INCLUDES SECTION 32 1313 

CONCRETE PAVING 

A.    Repair of existing concrete sidewalks, integral curbs, and gutters, 
including the following; 

1.     Aggregate base course 
2.     Concrete paving 

 

1.02    RELATED REQUIREMENTS 
 

A.    Section 31 2316.13 - Trenching for Site Utilities. 
 

1.03    REFERENCE STANDARDS 
 

A.    California Building Code (CBC), Title 24, Part 2. 
 

B.     ACI 304R - Guide for Measuring, Mixing, Transporting, and Placing Concrete; American Concrete 
Institute International. 

 

C.    ACI 305R - Hot Weather Concreting; American Concrete Institute International. D.    ACI 

306R - Cold Weather Concreting; American Concrete Institute International. 

E.     ASTM A497/A497M - Standard Specification for Steel Welded Wire Reinforcement, Deformed, for 
Concrete; 2007. 

 

F.     ASTM A615/A615M - Standard Specification for Deformed and Plain Carbon-Steel Bars for Concrete 
Reinforcement. 

 

G.    ASTM C33/C33M - Standard Specification for Concrete Aggregates. 
 

H.    ASTM C94/C94M - Standard Specification for Ready-Mixed Concrete. I.      

ASTM C150/C150M - Standard Specification for Portland Cement. 

J.      ASTM C309 - Standard Specification for Liquid Membrane-Forming Compounds for Curing Concrete. 
 

1.04    SUBMITTALS 
 

A.    See Section 01 3300 - Submittals, for submittal procedures. 
 

B.     Product Data:  Provide data on admixtures and curing compound. 
 

C.    Samples:  Submit two sample panels, 48 x48 inch in size illustrating exposed aggregate finish. 
 

D.    Design Data:  Submit Mix Design, indicate design concrete strength and compliance with specified 
parameters. 

 

1.05    QUALITY ASSURANCE 
 

A.    Obtain cementitious materials from same source throughout. 
 

1.06    ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

A.    Do not place concrete when base surface temperature is less than 40 degrees F, or surface is wet or frozen. 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A5.6: CONCRETE PAVING SPECIFICATION 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 
 

 

3/30/2018  RFP Attachment A5.6-2 

 

 
PART 2  PRODUCTS 

 

2.01    FORM MATERIALS 
 

A.    Wood form material, profiled to suit conditions. 
 

B.     Joint Filler:  Preformed; non-extruding bituminous type (ASTM D 1751).  Provide with plastic bond breaker 
"zip-strip" at joints receiving sealant. 
1.     Thickness:  3/4 inch. 

 

2.02    REINFORCEMENT 
 

A.    Reinforcing Steel:  ASTM A615/A615M Grade 80 (80,000 psi); deformed billet steel bars; unfinished finish. 
 

B.     Steel Welded Wire Fabric: Do not use. 
 

C.    Dowels:  ASTM A 615/A 615M Grade 40 (280); deformed billet steel bars; unfinished. 
 

2.03    ACCESSORIES 
 

A.    Curing Compound:  ASTM C 309, Type 1, Class A. 
 

2.04    CONCRETE MIX DESIGN 

A.    Proportioning Normal Weight Concrete:  Comply with ACI 211.1 recommendations and the following. B.     

Concrete Properties: 
1.     Compressive Strength, when tested in accordance with ASTM C39/C39M at 28 days:  2500 psi. 
2.     Fly Ash Content:  Maximum 35 percent of cementitious materials by weight. 
3.     Water-Cement Ratio:  Maximum 40 percent by weight. 
4.     Total Air Content:  4 percent, determined in accordance with ASTM C173/C173M. 
5.     Maximum Slump:  3 inches. 
6.     Maximum Aggregate Size:  3/4 inch. 

 

2.05    MIXING 
 

A.    Transit Mixers:  Comply with ASTM C94/C94M. 

PART 3  EXECUTION 
 

3.01    EXAMINATION 
 

A.    Verify compacted subgrade is acceptable and ready to support paving and imposed loads. B.     

Verify gradients and elevations of base are correct. 

3.02    SUBBASE 
 

A.    See pertinent sections of Division 31 for construction of base course for work of this Section. 
 

3.03    PREPARATION 
 

A.    Moisten base to minimize absorption of water from fresh concrete. 
 

B.     Coat surfaces of manhole and other insert frames with oil to prevent bond with concrete pavement. C.    

Notify Architect minimum 24 hours prior to commencement of concreting operations. 

3.04    FORMING 
 

A.    Place and secure forms to correct location, dimension, profile, and gradient. 
 



ATTACHMENT A5.6: CONCRETE PAVING SPECIFICATION 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 
 

 

3/30/2018  RFP Attachment A5.6-3 

 

B.     Assemble formwork to permit easy stripping and dismantling without damaging concrete. 

C.    Place joint filler vertical in position, in straight lines.  Secure to formwork during concrete placement. 
 

3.05    REINFORCEMENT 
 

A.    Place reinforcement as indicated. 
 

B.     Interrupt reinforcement at contraction and expansion joints. 
 

C.    Provide doweled joints at interruptions of concrete with one end of dowel set in capped sleeve to allow 
longitudinal movement. 

 

3.06    PLACING CONCRETE 
 

A.    Place concrete in accordance with ACI 304R. 
 

B.     Ensure reinforcement, inserts, embedded parts, formed joints and other elements are not disturbed during 
concrete placement. 

 

C.    Place concrete continuously over the full width of the panel and between predetermined construction joints.  
Do not break or interrupt successive pours such that cold joints occur. 

 

3.07    JOINTS 
 

A.    Align curb, gutter, and sidewalk joints. 
 

3.08    FINISHING 
 

A.    Match finishes of adjacent concrete paving as closely as possible. 
 

B.     Place curing compound on exposed concrete surfaces immediately after finishing.  Apply in 
accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 

 

3.09    TOLERANCES 
 

A.    Maximum Variation of Surface Flatness:  1/4 inch in 10 ft. 
 

B.     Surfaces shall not vary  more than 0.02 foot from staked grades and shall be free from blemishes and defects. 
 

C.    Adjust all new or existing boxes, irrigation controllers or other service  castings within the limits of this work, to 
exact grade at the same time the concrete paving is constructed. 
1.     Maintain these appurtenances to true and exact grade until concrete is set. 

 

3.10    PROTECTION 
 

A.    Immediately after placement, protect pavement from premature drying, excessive hot or cold 
temperatures, and mechanical injury. 

 

B.     Do not permit vehicular traffic over pavement for 7 days minimum after finishing. 
 

C.    Protect concrete pavement subject to construction traffic from damage until final acceptance.  Provide 
pavement free from: 
1.     Cracks 
2.     Chips 
3.     Wheel marks or other vehicle damage. 
4.     Discoloration or staining from foreign materials 
5.     Cementitious slag from plaster, masonry or other similar materials. 

 

 



ATTACHMENT A5.6: CONCRETE PAVING SPECIFICATION 
Rincon Valley USD RFP for Solar Photovoltaic Project 
 

 

3/30/2018  RFP Attachment A5.6-4 

 

D.    Replace damaged, defective or non-conforming pavement with new work Repairs shall be made by removing 
and replacing the entire section between scoring joints or lines 

END OF SECTION 



 

 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT  

 

 

THIS OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this 10th day of April, 2018 (“Effective Date”), by and between Sun Light & 

Power (“Contractor”) and Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”). 

1. Scope of Work:  

1.1. The Contractor shall furnish all operations and maintenance services for the 

District’s alternative energy systems, which include monitoring and performance reporting, 

as described in the attached EXHIBIT A (“Services” or “Work”).  

1.2. Contractor shall perform the Services at the following locations: 

 Village Elementary: 900 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

 District Office: 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, CA 95405  

Each location is referenced as a “Site” and collectively as “Sites.” 

1.3. Contractor shall perform the Services covering all components of the net-

metered solar photovoltaic canopy systems, designed, permitted, built, and commissioned in 

accordance with the terms of the Agreement for Design, Installation and Commissioning of 

Solar/Photovoltaic System entered into by the parties on April 10, 2018 (“ESA”).  Details on 

each system located at the Sites are set forth in the attached EXHIBIT B.  For purposes of 

this Agreement, the systems detailed at EXHIBIT B are collectively referenced as “System.” 

1.4. Any “Extra Services” beyond the scope of work provided at EXHIBIT A shall 

only be provided by Contractor if so agreed in writing by and between the Contractor and 

District specifying the scope of such Extra Services and the terms upon which Contractor shall 

provide such Extra Services.  Contractor’s fees for Extra Services are provided at EXHIBIT C. 

2. Term and Termination:   

2.1. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall remain 

effective, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, for 

an initial term of five (5) years.  The initial term shall automatically renew for an additional 

five (5) year term (i.e., the renewal term) unless the District provides written notice of 

termination prior to the end of the initial term.  At the conclusion of the renewal term, a 

minimum of three (3) additional five (5) year terms shall be offered to the District and District 

will accept the additional terms at its sole discretion.  The initial term, renewal term, and any 

additional term thereafter are collectively referenced as “Term.” 

2.2. Either District or Contractor may immediately terminate this Agreement, by 

providing the other party with written notice, upon occurrence of any of the following events: 

2.2.1. Failure of either party to perform any material obligation under this 

Agreement, which failure remains uncured after receipt of written notice specifying a default 

and providing an opportunity to cure other than any Force Majeure event. 

2.2.2. Either party ceasing to carry on business or disposing of all or 

substantially all of its undertaking or assets. 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power Page 2 

2.3. District may, at any time, with our without reason, terminate this Agreement 

with thirty (30) days’ notice, and compensate Contractor only for Services satisfactorily 

rendered to the date of termination.  Written notice by District shall be sufficient to stop 

further performance of Services by Contractor.  Notice shall be deemed given when received 

by the Contractor or no later than three (3) calendar days after the date of mailing, whichever 

is sooner. 

2.4. The expiration or termination of this Agreement do not affect Contractor’s 

obligation to perform on the warranties as provided under the ESA.   

3.  Fee and Payment:  

3.1. In consideration of the Services performed by Contractor under this Agreement 

during the initial five-year term of this Agreement, District shall pay the Contractor a total 

not to exceed fee of Forty Four Thousand Seven Hundred Eighty Two and 56/100 Dollars 

($44,782.56) (“Fee”).  The Fee represents full consideration for the Services for the initial 

term of the Agreement, calculated based on a first year cost of Eight Thousand Four Hundred 

Thirty-Five Dollars ($8,435.00) with a three percent (3%) annual escalator for a duration of 

the Term.  Contractor shall pay and bear all costs associated with the performance of Services 

under this Agreement. 

3.2. Contractor shall bill District for the Services rendered on an annual basis and 

shall ensure that each payment application contains the dates and specific Services rendered, 

along with the maintenance reports and annual performance review report described in 

EXHIBIT A.  The District shall pay all undisputed sums due to Contractor within sixty (60) 

days after receipt of the payment application. 

3.3. Contractor shall not charge additional fees for standard payment methods 

including check, ACH, or credit card. 

3.4. Any charges for Extra Services shall be paid by the District only to the extent 

that the claimed Extra Services were authorized as indicated herein and that the Extra 

Services have been satisfactorily completed to the District’s approval.  If any service is 

performed by Contractor without prior written authorization by District, District will not be 

obligated to pay for such service.   

4. This Agreement incorporates by this reference the attached Terms and Conditions.  

Contractor, by executing this Agreement, agrees to comply with all the attached Terms 

and Conditions. 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power Page 3 

5. This Agreement incorporates by this reference the Contract Documents attached 

hereto.  Contractor, by executing this Agreement, agrees to comply with all obligations set 

forth in the Contract Documents.  The Contract Documents include only the following 

documents, as indicated: 

 

____ Notice to Bidders 

____ Instructions to Bidders 

____ Bid Form and Proposal 

____ Bid Bond 

_√__Terms and Conditions to Contract 

____ Non-collusion Declaration  

____ Designated Subcontractors List 

____ Request for Proposals 

____ Notice to Proceed 

_√__ Prevailing Wage and Related Labor 

Requirements Certification 

_√__ Workers’ Compensation Certification 

____ Drug-Free Workplace Certification 

____ Tobacco-Free Environment 

Certification 

_√__ Hazardous Materials Certification 

_√__ Lead-Based Materials Certification 

____ Roofing Project Certification 

_√__ Insurance Certificates and 

Endorsements 

____ Performance Bond 

____ Payment Bond 

_√__ Specifications 

____ Plans 

_√__ Exhibit A (Scope of Work) 

_√__ Exhibit B (System Descriptions) 

_√__ Exhibit C (Fees for Extra Services)  

____      [Other] 

 

6. Contractor shall not commence the Services under this Agreement until the Contractor 

has submitted and the District has approved the certificate(s) and affidavit(s), and the 

endorsement(s) of insurance required under the Terms and Conditions. 

7. Inspection and acceptance of the Work shall be performed by the District and a 

representative from the District’s consultant, Sage Renewables.   

8. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed 

to have been given, served, and received if given in writing and either personally delivered or 

deposited in the United States mail, registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, return 

receipt required, or sent by overnight delivery service, or facsimile or email, addressed as 

follows: 

 

District 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

ATTN: Joseph Pandolfo Ed.D. 

1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

FAX: 

EMAIL: jpandolfo@rvusd.org 

PHONE: 707-542-7375 

Contractor 

 

Sun Light & Power 

ATTN: Gary Gerber 

1035 Folger Avenue 

Berkeley, CA 94710 

FAX: 

EMAIL: gary@sunlightandpower.com 

PHONE: 510-812-7659 

 

Any notice personally given or sent by email shall be effective upon receipt.  Any notice sent 

by overnight delivery service shall be effective the business day next following delivery to 

the overnight delivery service.  Any notice given by mail shall be effective three (3) days 

after deposit in the United States mail.  



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power Page 4 

9. Contractor shall guarantee all labor and material used in the performance of this 

Agreement for a period of one (1) year from the date of Contractor’s performance of the Work 

relating thereto.  In the event of a breach of warranty during the applicable warranty term, 

Contractor shall, upon reasonably prompt notice from the District of a valid warranty claim, 

at Contractor’s sole option and expense, either repair or replace any defective parts and/or 

repair or re-perform any defective Work.  Contractor shall have reasonable access to the 

Sites, subject to District’s onsite rules and policies for visitors, and as necessary to perform 

its warranty obligations under this Agreement.  Contractor’s warranty obligations set forth 

herein do not reduce any of Contractor’s warranty obligations under the ESA or Contractor’s 

obligations to the District required by the Performance Guarantee Agreement.   

10. Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, 

and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been properly authorized 

and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 

11. By signing this Agreement, Contractor certifies, under penalty of perjury, that all the 

information provided in the Contract Documents is true, complete, and correct. 

 

[SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE.] 

 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power Page 5 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED on the date indicated below:  

 

Dated:      , 2018 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

 
Signature:        

Print Name:        

Print Title:        

Address:  1000 Yulupa Avenue 
  Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

Telephone:        

Facsimile:        

E-Mail:        

 

Dated:     , 2018 

Sun Light & Power 

 
Signature:        

Print Name: Gary T. Gerber 

Print Title: President 

License No.: 326203 

Registration No.:       

Address: 1035 Folger Ave  
 Berkeley CA 94710 

Telephone: (510) 845-2997 

Facsimile: (510) 845-1133 

E-Mail: gary@sunlightandpower.com 

Information regarding Contractor: 

 

Type of Business Entity: 

____ Individual 

____ Sole Proprietorship 

____ Partnership 

____ Limited Partnership 

   X   Corporation, State: California 

____ Limited Liability Company 

____ Other:        

 

94-235 7077: 

Employer Identification and/or  

Social Security Number 

 

NOTE: Section 6041 of the Internal 

Revenue Code (26 U.S.C. 6041) and 

Section 1.6041-1 of Title 26 of the 

Code of Federal Regulations (26 

C.F.R. 1.6041-1) requires the 

recipients of $600.00 or more to 

furnish their taxpayer information 

to the payer.  In order to comply 

with these requirements, the 

District requires the Contractor to 

furnish the information requested 

in this section. 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 1 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS TO CONTRACT 

 

1. STANDARD OF CARE:  Contractor shall perform, diligently prosecute and complete the Work in a 

good and workmanlike manner, and in strict conformity with all Contract Documents.   

2. SITE CONDITIONS:  District has provided to Contractor the Site Documents, as defined in the 
ESA.  Contractor has made a reasonable visual examination of the Site and has relied on such visual 
examination and the Site Documents in defining the Scope of Work.  If any variations to the Scope 
of Work become necessary due to a change in Site conditions or due to Site conditions not 
reasonably known or foreseeable to Contractor based on such visual examination or from the Site 
Documents, Contractor shall be entitled to a change order to equitably adjust the Fee in light of the 

changed or unknown conditions.   

3. PERMITS, LICENSES AND REGISTRATION:  Contractor and all of its employees, agents, and 
subcontractors shall secure and maintain in force, at Contractor’s sole cost and expense, all licenses, 
registration and permits as are required by law, in connection with the furnishing of materials, 

supplies, or services herein listed.  At least two (2) weeks before any work by an employee is to be 
performed, Contractor will provide the District with the name and DIR registration number, and any 

other information necessary to fill out a PWC-100 form, for the Contractor and all subcontractors of 
all tiers.  Contractor has an ongoing obligation to update the District should any information change.  

4. LABOR, MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT: Contractor shall furnish all tools, equipment, apparatus, 
facilities, transportation, labor, and material necessary to furnish the services herein described, the 
services to be performed at such times and places as directed by and subject to the approval of the 
authorized District representative indicated in the Work specifications attached hereto.  Unless 
otherwise specified, all materials shall be new and previously unused, and of the manufacturer’s 

latest model or the best of their respective kinds and grades as noted or specified, and workmanship 
shall be of good quality.  

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS:  While engaged in carrying out the Services of this 
Agreement, the Contractor is an independent contractor, and not an officer, employee, agent, 
partner, or joint venture of the District.  Contractor shall be solely responsible for its own Workers’ 

Compensation insurance, taxes, and other similar charges or obligations.  Contractor shall be liable 
for its own actions, including its negligence or gross negligence, and shall be liable for the acts, 

omissions, or errors of its agents or employees. 

6. CONTRACTOR SUPERVISION: Contractor shall provide competent supervision of personnel 
employed on the job Site, use of equipment, and quality of workmanship.  

7. WORKERS: Contractor shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good order among its 
employees and the employees of its subcontractors and shall not employ or work any unfit person 
or anyone not skilled in work assigned to him or her.  Any person in the employ of the Contractor 

or a subcontractor whom the District may deem incompetent or unfit shall be dismissed from the 
Site and shall not again be employed at Site without written consent from the District. 

8. SUBCONTRACTORS: Subcontractors, if any, engaged by the Contractor for any Service or Work 
under this Agreement shall be subject to the approval of the District.  Contractor agrees to bind 
every subcontractor by the terms of the Agreement as far as such terms are applicable to 
subcontractor’s work, including, without limitation, all registration, indemnification, insurance, and 

bond requirements, if applicable.  If Contractor shall subcontract any part of this Agreement, 

Contractor shall be fully responsible to the District for acts and omissions of its subcontractor and 
of persons either directly or indirectly employed by itself.  Nothing contained in the Contract 
Documents shall create any contractual relations between any subcontractor and the District. 

9. SAFETY AND SECURITY: Contractor is responsible for maintaining safety in the performance of 
this Agreement.  Contractor shall be responsible to ascertain from the District the rules and 
regulations pertaining to safety, security, and driving on school grounds, particularly when children 
are present. 

10. OWNERSHIP OF DATA: This Agreement creates a non-exclusive and perpetual license for the 
District to use, at its discretion, all documents that Contractor prepares or causes to be prepared 
pursuant to this Agreement. 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 2 

11. AUDIT: Contractor shall establish and maintain books, records, and systems of account, in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, reflecting all business operations of 
Contractor transacted under this Agreement.  Contractor shall retain these books, records, and 
systems of account during the Term of this Agreement and for five (5) years thereafter.  Contractor 

shall permit the District, its agent, other representatives, or an independent auditor to audit, 
examine, and make excerpts, copies, and transcripts from all books and records, and to make 
audit(s) of all billing statements, invoices, records, and other data related to the Services covered 
by this Agreement.  Audit(s) may be performed at any time, provided that the District shall give 
reasonable prior notice to Contractor and shall conduct audit(s) during Contractor’s normal business 
hours, unless Contractor otherwise consents. 

12. LEAD-BASED PAINT: Pursuant to the requirements of the Federal Occupational Safety and Health 

Administration (“Fed/OSHA”) and the California Division of Occupational Safety and Health 
(“Cal/OSHA”) and other applicable law, no lead-based paint, lead plumbing and solders, or other 
potential sources of lead contamination shall be utilized on this Work, and only trained and state-
certified contractors, inspectors and workers shall undertake any action to abate existing risk factors 

for lead. Contractor must execute the Lead-Based Paint Certification, if applicable.  

13. CLEAN UP: Debris shall be removed from the Site.  The Site shall be left in a reasonably clean 

condition.   

14. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY:  Contractor shall erect and properly maintain at all 
times, as required by conditions and progress of the Work, all necessary safeguards, signs, barriers, 
lights, and security persons for protection of workers and the public, and shall post danger signs 
warning against hazards created by the Work.  In an emergency affecting life and safety of life or 
of Work or of adjoining property, Contractor, without special instruction or authorization from 
District, is permitted to act at his discretion to prevent such threatened loss or injury.  

15. FORCE MAJEURE: The Contractor shall be excused from performance hereunder during the time 
and to the extent that it is prevented from obtaining delivery, or performing by act of God, fire, 
strike, loss, or shortage of transportation facilities, lock-out, commandeering of materials, products, 
plants, or facilities by the government, when satisfactory evidence thereof is presented to the 
District, provided that it is satisfactorily established that the non-performance is not due to the fault 

or neglect of the Contractor. 

16. CORRECTION OF ERRORS: Contractor shall perform, at its own cost and expense and without 

reimbursement from the District, any work necessary to correct errors or omissions which are 
caused by the Contractor’s failure to comply with the standard of care required herein.   

17. DISTRICT’S RIGHT TO PERFORM WORK:   If the Contractor should neglect to prosecute the 
Work properly or fail to perform any provisions of this Agreement, the District, after FORTY-EIGHT 
(48) hours’ written notice to the Contractor, may make good such deficiencies, without prejudice 
to any other remedy it may have, including but not limited to the District hiring its own forces or 

another contractor to replace the Contractor’s nonconforming Work, in which case the District shall 
either issue a deductive Change Order, a Construction Change Directive, or invoice the Contractor 
for the cost of that work.  Contractor shall pay any invoices within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
same or District may withhold those amounts from payment(s) to Contractor. 

18. SITE ACCESS: The District shall provide Contractor with reasonable access to the Sites and the 
System for purposes of Contractor’s performance of the Work under this Agreement.  The District 

has the right to oversee Contractor’s Work at any time. 

19. OCCUPANCY: District reserves the right to occupy the Sites at any time before formal completion 
and such occupancy shall not constitute final acceptance or approval of any part of the Work covered 
by this Agreement, nor shall such occupancy extend the date specified for completion of the Work. 

20. CHANGE IN SCOPE OF WORK: Any change in the scope of the Work, method of performance, 
nature of materials or price thereof, or any other matter materially affecting the performance or 
nature of the Work shall not be paid for or accepted unless such change, addition, or deletion is 
approved in advance and in writing by a valid change order executed by the District.  Contractor 

specifically understands, acknowledges, and agrees that the District shall have the right to request 
any alterations, deviations, reductions, or additions to the Project or Work, and the cost thereof 
shall be added to or deducted from the amount of the Contract Price by fair and reasonable 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 3 

valuations.  Contractor also agrees to provide the District with all information requested to 

substantiate the cost of the change order and to inform the District whether the Work will be done 
by the Contractor or a subcontractor.  If Contractor fails to submit its request for a time extension 
or the necessary supporting information, it shall be deemed to have waived its right to request such 

extension. 

21. INDEMNIFICATION:   

21.1. To the furthest extent permitted by California law, Contractor shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the District, its agents, representatives, officers, consultants, employees, and 
volunteers (the “Indemnified Parties”) from any and all demands, losses, liabilities, claims, 
suits, and actions (the “claims”) of any kind, nature, and description, including, but not 
limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs, directly or indirectly arising from, arising out of, 

connected with, or resulting from the performance of this Agreement unless the claims are 
caused wholly by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified 
Parties.   

21.2. Contractor shall also, to the furthest extent permitted by California law, defend the 
Indemnified Parties at Contractor’s own expense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, from 
any and all claims directly or indirectly arising from, arising out of, connected with, or 

resulting from the performance of this Agreement unless the claims are caused wholly by 
the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnified Parties.  The District 
shall have the right to accept or reject any legal representation that Contractor proposes to 
defend the District.   

21.3. Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201, the District shall provide timely notification 
to Contractor of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to this Agreement.  The District 
shall be entitled to recover its reasonable costs incurred in providing said notification. 

21.4. The District may retain so much of the moneys due the Contractor as shall be considered 
necessary, until disposition of any such suit, claims or actions for damages or until the 
District has received written agreement from the Contractor that it will unconditionally 
defend the Indemnified Parties, and pay any damages due by reason of settlement or 
judgment.  

21.5. The defense and indemnification obligations hereunder shall survive the completion of Work, 
including the warranty/guarantee period, and/or the termination of the Agreement. 

22. [RESERVED.] 

   

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 

 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 4 

23. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE:   

23.1. Insurance Requirements.  The Contractor shall procure and maintain at all times it 
performs any portion of the Services the following insurance with minimum limits equal to 
the amount indicated below.   

 

TYPE OF COVERAGE MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENT 

Commercial General Liability Insurance, including Bodily Injury, 

Personal Injury, Property Damage, Advertising Injury, and Medical 
Payments 

Each Occurrence 
General Aggregate 

 

 
 
$ 2,000,000 
$ 4,000,000 

Automobile Liability Insurance -  Any Auto 
Each Occurrence 

General Aggregate 

 
$ 1,000,000 

$ 1,000,000 

Workers’ Compensation Statutory Limits 

Employer’s Liability $ 1,000,000 

23.1.1. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance.  
Commercial General Liability Insurance and Any Auto Automobile Liability Insurance 
that shall protect the Contractor, the District, and the State from all claims of bodily 
injury, property damage, personal injury, death, and medical payments arising 
performing any portion of the Services.  (Form CG 0001 and CA 0001, or forms 
substantially similar, if approved by the District.) 

23.1.2. Workers’ Compensation and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  Workers’ 

Compensation Insurance and Employers’ Liability Insurance for all of its employees 
performing any portion of the Services. In accordance with provisions of section 
3700 of the California Labor Code, the Contractor shall be required to secure 
workers’ compensation coverage for its employees.  If any class of employee or 
employees engaged in performing any portion of the Services under this Agreement 

are not protected under the Workers’ Compensation Statute, adequate insurance 
coverage for the protection of any employee(s) not otherwise protected must be 

obtained before any of those employee(s) commence performing any portion of the 
Services. 

23.2. Proof of Insurance.  The Contractor shall not commence performing any portion of the 
Services until all required insurance has been obtained and certificates indicating the 
required coverage have been delivered in duplicate to the District and approved by the 
District.  Certificates and insurance policies shall include the following: 

23.2.1. A clause stating:  “This policy shall not be canceled or reduced in required limits of 
liability or amounts of insurance until notice has been mailed to the District, stating 
date of cancellation or reduction.  Date of cancellation or reduction shall not be less 
than thirty (30) days after date of mailing notice.” 

23.2.2. Language stating in particular those insured, extent of insurance, location and 
operation to which insurance applies, expiration date, to whom cancellation and 

reduction notice will be sent, and length of notice period. 

23.2.3. An endorsement stating that the District and its Governing Board, agents, 
representatives, employees, trustees, officers, consultants, and volunteers are 
named additional insured under all policies except Workers’ Compensation 
Insurance, and Employers’ Liability Insurance.  An endorsement shall also state that 
Contractor’s insurance policies shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance 
maintained by District.  An endorsement shall also state that there shall be a waiver 
of any subrogation. 

23.2.4. All policies except the Workers’ Compensation Insurance, and Employers’ Liability 
Insurance Policies shall be written on an occurrence form. 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 5 

24. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best’s 

rating of no less than A: VII, unless otherwise acceptable to the District.  

25. WARRANTY/QUALITY: Unless a longer warranty is called for elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents, the Contractor, manufacturer, or their assigned agents shall guarantee the 

workmanship, product or service performed against defective workmanship, defects or failures of 
materials for a minimum period of one (1) year from filing the Notice of Completion with the county 
in which the Site is located.  All workmanship and merchandise must be warranted to be in 
compliance with applicable California energy, conservation, environmental, and educational 
standards. 

26. CONFIDENTIALITY: Each Party shall maintain the confidentiality of all information, documents, 
programs, procedures, and all other items received from the other Party that is marked or otherwise 

designated as confidential.  This requirement shall be ongoing and shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  The Parties understand that the District is subject to compliance 
with the California Public Records Act and Brown Act open meeting requirements, and both Parties 
are subject to compliance with any valid subpoena/discovery requests properly served upon such 

Party.  In the event a Party is served with a subpoena or discovery request in litigation which seeks 
production of the other Party’s confidential information, the Party receiving such subpoena or 

discovery request shall promptly notify the other Party so as to allow such other Party to seek a 
protective order in the underlying litigation. 

27. LIMITATION OF DISTRICT LIABILITY:  District’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall 
be limited to the payment of the compensation provided in this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of this Contract, in no event shall District be liable, regardless of whether any claim 
is based on contract or tort, for any special, consequential, indirect or incidental damages, including, 
but not limited to, lost profits or revenue, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement for the 

Services performed. 

28. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinance, 
rules and regulations bearing on conduct of the Work as indicated or specified.  If Contractor 
observes that any of the Work required by this Agreement is at variance with any such laws, 
ordinance, rules or regulations, Contractor shall notify the District, in writing, and, at the sole option 

of the District, any necessary changes to the scope of the Work shall be made and this Agreement 
shall be appropriately amended in writing, or this Agreement shall be terminated effective upon 

Contractor’s receipt of a written termination notice from the District.  If Contractor performs any 
work that is in violation of any laws, ordinances, rules or regulations, without first notifying the 
District of the violation, Contractor shall bear all costs arising therefrom.  

29. LABOR CODE REQUIREMENTS:  The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of the 
California Labor Code, Division 3, Part 7, Chapter 1, Articles 1 – 5, including, without limitation, the 
payment of the general prevailing per diem wage rates for public work projects of more than one 

thousand dollars ($1,000).  Copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file with the 
District or available online at http://www.dir.ca.gov/.  In addition, the Contractor and each 
subcontractor shall comply with Chapter 1 of Division 2, Part 7 of the California Labor Code, 
beginning with Section 1720, and including Section 1735, 1777.5 and 1777.6, forbidding 
discrimination, and Sections 1776, 1777.5 and 1777.6 concerning the employment of apprentices 
by Contractor or subcontractors.  Willful failure to comply may result in penalties, including loss of 
the right to bid on or receive public works contracts. 

29.1. Registration:  Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall be registered with the Department 
of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 and in accordance with Labor 
Code section 1771.1. 

29.2. Certified Payroll Records: Contractor and its subcontractor(s) shall upload certified 
payroll records (“CPR”) electronically using California Department of Industrial Relations’ 
(DIR) eCPR System by uploading the CPRs by electronic XML file or entering each record 
manually using the DIR’s iform (or current form) online on a weekly basis and within ten 

(10) days of any request by the District or Labor Commissioner at 
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html or current application 
and URL, showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight 
time, and overtime hours worked each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 6 

to each journeyman, apprentice, worker, or other employee employed by the Contractor 

and/or each subcontractor in connection with the Work. 

29.3. Labor Compliance:  Contractor shall perform the Work of the Project while complying with 
all the applicable regulations, including section 16000, et seq., of Title 8 of the California 

Code of Regulations and is subject to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by the 
Department of Industrial Relations. 

30. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION:  It is the policy of the District that in connection with all work performed 
under its contracts there be no discrimination against any employee engaged in the work because 
of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religious creed, physical disability, medical condition, marital 
status, sexual orientation, gender, or age and therefore the Contractor agrees to comply with 
applicable Federal and California laws including, but not limited to the California Fair Employment 

Practice Act beginning with Government Code Section 12900 and Labor Code Section 1735.  In 
addition, the Contractor agrees to require like compliance by all its subcontractor(s). 

31. ANTI-TRUST CLAIM: Contractor and its subcontractor(s) agree to assign to the District all rights, 

title, and interest in and to all causes of action they may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act 
(15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 16700) of 
Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, 

or materials pursuant to the Agreement or a subcontract. This assignment shall be made and 
become effective at the time the District tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further 
acknowledgment by the Parties. 

32. DISPUTES:  If a claim, or any portion thereof, remains in dispute upon satisfaction of all applicable 
dispute resolution requirements, the Contractor shall comply with all claims presentation 
requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 900) and Chapter 2 (commencing 
with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of Government Code as a condition precedent 

to the Contractor’s right to bring a civil action against the District.  For purposes of those provisions, 
the running of the time within which a claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from 
the time the Contractor submits its written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any 
time utilized by any applicable meet and confer process. Pending resolution of the dispute, 
Contractor and its subcontractors shall continue to perform the Work under the Agreement and shall 

not cause a delay of the Work during any dispute, claim, negotiation, mediation, or arbitration 
proceeding, except by written agreement of the District. 

33. ATTORNEY FEES/COSTS:  Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions of 
this Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, witness fees, 
court costs, and attorney’s fees.  

34. ASSIGNMENT:  Contractor shall not assign or transfer in any way any or all of its rights, burdens, 
duties, or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the District. 

35. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE: Time is of the essence in the performance of and compliance with each 

of the provisions and conditions of this Agreement. 

36. CALCULATION OF TIME:  For the purposes of this Agreement, “days” refers to calendar days 
unless otherwise specified. 

37. GOVERNING LAW: This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of California with venue of any action in a County in which the District 

administration office is located. 

38. BINDING CONTRACT:  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and upon their successors 

and assigns, and shall inure to the benefit of said Parties and their successors and assigns. 

39. DISTRICT WAIVER:  District's waiver of any term, condition, covenant or waiver of a breach of 
any term, condition or covenant shall not constitute the waiver of any other term, condition or 
covenant or the waiver of a breach of any other term, condition or covenant. 

40. CAPTIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS:  Paragraph headings in this Agreement are used solely for 
convenience, and shall be wholly disregarded in the construction of this Agreement.  No provision 
of this Agreement shall be interpreted for or against a party because that party or its legal 

representative drafted such provision, and this Agreement shall be construed as if jointly prepared 
by the Parties. 



  

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power 

Terms & Conditions Page 7 

41. INVALID TERM:  If any provision of this Agreement is declared or determined by any court of 

competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable, the legality, validity or enforceability 
of the remaining parts, terms and provisions shall not be affected thereby, and said illegal, 
unenforceable or invalid part, term or provision will be deemed not to be a part of this Agreement.  

42. PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED: Each and every provision of law and 
clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall be deemed to be inserted herein and 
this Agreement shall be read and enforced as though it were included therein. 

43. ENTIRE CONTRACT:  This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the Parties and fully 
supersedes any and all prior agreements, understandings, written or oral, between the Parties 
pertaining to the subject matter thereof. 

44. NO ORAL MODIFICATIONS:  No oral agreement or conversation with any officer, agent, or 

employee of District, either before or after execution of Agreement, shall affect or modify any of the 
terms or obligations contained in any of the documents comprising the Agreement.  

 

[END OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS.] 

  

 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power EXHIBIT A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Contractor shall provide the following Services at the Sites.  District may be referenced as the 

“Customer” in the descriptions.   

Maintenance Services 

Contractor shall perform the following Maintenance Services in accordance with the 

Agreement, applicable laws, and such standard of care and performance as is reasonably 

expected of a contractor providing same or substantially similar services with respect to a 

photovoltaic power system.  District must be notified at least 48 hours in advance should a 

System shutdown be required. 
 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION 
SERVICE 

FREQUENCY 

1. Customer Service Support: 
a. Provide Technical support contact (12 hours per day, 5 days per 

week, from 6 am to 6pm Pacific time). 
b. Support technicians specialized in remote troubleshooting and 

providing step-by-step diagnosis instructions. 

Continuous 

2. Preventative Maintenance, Inspections & Testing: 
a. Array 

i. Inspect photovoltaic (PV) modules for damage, discoloration or 
delamination. 

ii. Inspect mounting system for damage or corrosion. 
iii. Visual inspection of torque markings. 
iv. Spot check 10% of structural bolts for torque. 

b. Inverter 

i. Clean all filters and fans. 

ii. Inspect inverter pad and container. 
iii. Tighten wire terminations inside inverter. 
iv. All other preventive maintenance required by original 

equipment manufacturer (OEM) warranty. 
c. Electrical Balance of System (BOS) 

i. Inspect ground braids, electrodes and conductors for damage. 

ii. Perform thermo-graphic analysis of combiner boxes, inverters, 
transformers, and conductor connections to buses, breakers or 
disconnects. 

iii. Test and record all circuits, open circuit voltage and short 
circuit current and repair any fault circuits. 

iv. Inspection of all terminal connections for torque. 
d. Meteorological Station (if present) 

i. Inspect weather measurement equipment for damage. 

ii. Clean pyranometers and reference cells. 
e. Site Conditions 

i. Inspect drainage conditions. 
ii. Inspect vegetation for array shading or fire hazards, and 

remove any obstructions causing shade or hazard issues, 
including ongoing tree trimming as needed. 

iii. Inspect safety conditions and proper signage. 
f. Maintenance Reporting 

i. Record results of all inspections. 
ii. Take photographs of any damage or defects identified. 
iii. Inform Customer and warranty providers of all deficiencies 

identified. 

iv. Provide Customer with recommendations for corrective action. 

Annual 
(unless otherwise 

noted) 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power EXHIBIT A-2 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION 
SERVICE 

FREQUENCY 

g. Sensor Calibration 

i. Every twenty-four (24) months, O&M Contractor will have the 
pyranometer calibrated by the manufacturer of each sensor. 

ii. Field comparison of pyranometers and reference cells to 
calibrated sensor. 

iii. Adjust field sensor to within ±3% of calibrated sensor and 
record changed parameters. 

iv. O&M Contractor may replace pyranometers in lieu of field 

calibration. 

3. Module Cleaning: 
a. Minimum once per year, in June or July. 
b. As-needed to meet Performance Guarantee. 
c. Surface washing of all modules. 

d. Pressure washer settings not to exceed 1,500 PSI or manufacturer’s 

recommendation, whichever is less. 
e. Before and after photographs shall be provided. 

Annual, or as 

needed 

4. Corrective Maintenance includes: 
a. On-site troubleshooting & diagnostics of all system components. 
b. Inverter and Data Acquisition System resets. 
c. Processing of OEM warranty claims on behalf of Customer and 

verification of replaced equipment. 
d. Full scope repair and replacement of equipment throughout the ESA 

warranty term and any additional years where the Performance 
Guarantee Agreement is in effect. 

As needed 

 

 

 

 

 

[CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE.] 

  



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power EXHIBIT A-3 

Monitoring and Performance Reporting 

Contractor shall perform the following Monitoring and Performance Reporting in accordance 

with the Agreement, applicable laws, and such standard of care and performance as is 

reasonably expected of a contractor providing same or substantially similar services with 

respect to a photovoltaic power system. 

SERVICE DESCRIPTION 
SERVICE 

FREQUENCY 

1. Performance Monitoring Website: 
a. Separate PV production and consumption meters to measure PV 

system production and on-site consumption of electricity (separate 
from net consumption). 

b. Customer website updated every 15 minutes with operational 
performance from the beginning of operation. 

c. Cellular data connection or other data connection maintained by the 

Contractor. System may not use Customer’s internet connection. 
d. Internet-based monitoring and reporting portal with full data access to 

Customer, including weather parameters. 
e. Synchronized clock intervals for all site meters, including production 

and consumption meter. Clock intervals shall be synchronized with 
utility meters where feasible. 

f. All site data must be able to be downloaded to Customer’s computer in 
Microsoft Excel format. 

g. Customer will be provided with login credentials for use during the 

term of the O&M Agreement. 
h. All fees for monitoring software and cellular/data fees included under 

this scope. 

Continuous 

2. Daily Performance Monitoring and Notification: 
a. Daily monitoring of Customer’s System via experienced solar 

monitoring technicians. 
b. Operational status (inverter and system on/off) and performance 

alerts (actual vs. expected performance) monitored daily by O&M 
Contractor. 

c. Monitoring technicians identify and respond to system alerts including 
contacting Customer’s system administrator as appropriate. 

Daily 

3. Performance Review and Reports: 
a. Actual vs. expected performance of the System for the period. 
b. Environmental benefits will be estimated and included. 
c. Weather adjustment calculations. 
d. Optional custom reports can be supplied, upon Customer request, at 

added cost. 

e. Review of the following System performance data with an O&M 
Contractor performance engineer and proposal of a recommended 
action plan where applicable: 

i. Expected vs. Actual system production (kWh) 
ii. System Availability 
iii. Recoverable Degradation 
iv. Performance Index 

v. Operation and Maintenance Records 
vi. Safety, Accidents and Environmental Reporting 
vii. Proposal of Recommended Actions 

f. Annual Performance Review Report provided to Customer within sixty 
(60) days of each anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date 
(COD) as defined in the ESA. 

g. O&M Records must be provided to Customer upon request. 

Annual 

 [END OF EXHIBIT A.] 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 

SYSTEM DESCRIPTIONS 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 

[END OF EXHIBIT B.] 
 

 
  
 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power EXHIBIT C 

EXHIBIT C 

FEES FOR EXTRA SERVICES 

 

 

 

[END OF EXHIBIT C.] 

 

 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 1 

PREVAILING WAGE AND  

RELATED LABOR REQUIREMENTS CERTIFICATION 

 

 

I hereby certify that I will conform to the State of California Public Works Contract 

requirements regarding prevailing wages, benefits, on-site audits with 48-hours’ notice, 

payroll records, and apprentice and trainee employment requirements, for all Work on the 

above Project, including, without limitation, labor compliance monitoring and enforcement by 

the Department of Industrial Relations. 

 

 

Date:              

Proper Name of Contractor:  Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 2 

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION CERTIFICATION 

 

Labor Code section 3700 in relevant part provides: 

 

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or 

more of the following ways: 

 

a. By being insured against liability to pay compensation by one or more insurers 

duly authorized to write compensation insurance in this state. 

 

b. By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to 

self-insure, which may be given upon furnishing proof satisfactory to the 

Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any 

compensation that may become due to his employees. 

 

I am aware of the provisions of section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer 

to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to undertake self-insurance in 

accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before 

commencing the performance of the Work of this Agreement. 

 

 

Date:              

Proper Name of Contractor:  Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              

 

(In accordance with Labor Code sections 1860 and 1861, the above certificate must be signed 

and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any Work under this Agreement.) 

 

  



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 3 

HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 

 

1. Contractor hereby certifies that no asbestos, or asbestos-containing materials, 

polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any material listed by the federal or state 

Environmental Protection Agency or federal or state health agencies as a hazardous 

material, or any other material defined as being hazardous under federal or state laws, 

rules, or regulations, (“New Hazardous Material”), shall be furnished, installed, or 

incorporated in any way into the Project or in any tools, devices, clothing, or equipment 

used to affect any portion of Contractor's work on the Project for District. 

2. Contractor further certifies that it has instructed its employees with respect to the 

above-mentioned standards, hazards, risks, and liabilities. 

3. Asbestos and/or asbestos-containing material shall be defined as all items containing 

but not limited to chrysotile, crocidolite, amosite, anthophyllite, tremolite, and 

actinolite.  Any or all material containing greater than one-tenth of one percent (0.1%) 

asbestos shall be defined as asbestos-containing material. 

4. Any disputes involving the question of whether or not material is New Hazardous 

Material shall be settled by electron microscopy or other appropriate and recognized 

testing procedure, at the District’s determination.  The costs of any such tests shall be 

paid by Contractor if the material is found to be New Hazardous Material. 

5. All Work or materials found to be “New Hazardous Material” or Work or material 

installed with equipment containing “New Hazardous Material” will be immediately 

rejected and this Work will be removed at Contractor's expense at no additional cost 

to the District. 

6. Contractor has read and understood the document titled Hazardous Materials 

Procedures & Requirements, and shall comply with all the provisions outlined therein. 

Contractor certifies that it is knowledgeable of, and shall comply with, all laws 

applicable to the Work, including, but not limited to, all federal, state, and local laws, 

statutes, standards, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the Work.  

 

Date:              

 

Name of Contractor:   Sun Light & Power 

 

Signature:             

 

Print Name:             

 

Title:              

 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 4 

LEAD-BASED MATERIALS CERTIFICATION 
 

This certification provides notice to the Contractor that: 

(1) Contractor's work may disturb lead-containing building materials. 

(2) Contractor shall notify the District if any work may result in the disturbance of 

lead-containing building materials. 

(3) Contractor shall comply with the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, if lead-

based paint is disturbed in a six-square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-

square-foot or greater area outdoors. 

1. Overview of Law 

Both the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration ("Fed/OSHA") and the 

California Division of Occupational Safety and Health ("Cal/OSHA") have implemented 

safety orders applicable to all construction work where a contractor's employee may 

be occupationally exposed to lead. 

The OSHA Regulations apply to all construction work where a contractor's employee 

may be occupationally exposed to lead.  The OSHA Regulations contain specific and 

detailed requirements imposed on contractors subject to those regulations.  The OSHA 

Regulations define construction work as work for construction, alteration, and/or 

repair, including painting and decorating.  Regulated construction work includes, but 

is not limited to, the following: 

a. Demolition or salvage of structures where lead or materials containing lead are 

present; 

b. Removal or encapsulation of materials containing lead; 

c. New construction, alteration, repair, or renovation of structures, substrates, or 

portions thereof, that contain lead, or materials containing lead; 

d. Installation of products containing lead; 

e. Lead contamination/emergency cleanup; 

f. Transportation, disposal, storage, or containment of lead or materials 

containing lead on the site or location at which construction activities are 

performed; and 

g. Maintenance operations associated with the construction activities described in 

the subsection. 

Because it is assumed by the District that all painted surfaces (interior as well as 

exterior) within the District contain some level of lead, it is imperative that the 

Contractor, its workers and subcontractors fully and adequately comply with all 

applicable laws, rules and regulations governing lead-based materials (including title 

8, California Code of Regulations, section 1532.1). 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 5 

Contractor shall notify the District if any Work may result in the disturbance 

of lead-containing building materials.  Any and all Work that may result in the 

disturbance of lead-containing building materials shall be coordinated 

through the District.  A signed copy of this Certification shall be on file prior 

to beginning Work on the Project, along with all current insurance 

certificates. 

2. Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule, Section 402(c)(3) of the Toxic 

Substances Control Act 

The EPA requires lead safe work practices to reduce exposure to lead hazards created 

by renovation, repair and painting activities that disturb lead-based paint.  Pursuant 

to the Renovation, Repair and Painting Rule (RRP), renovations in homes, childcare 

facilities, and schools built prior to 1978 must be conducted by certified renovations 

firms, using renovators with training by a EPA-accredited training provider, and fully 

and adequately complying with all applicable laws, rules and regulations governing 

lead-based materials, including those rules and regulations appearing within title 40 

of the Code of Federal Regulations as part 745 (40 CFR 745). 

The RRP requirements apply to all contractors who disturb lead-based paint in a six-

square-foot or greater area indoors or a 20-square-foot or greater area outdoors.  If 

a DPH-certified inspector or risk assessor determines that a home constructed before 

1978 is lead-free, the federal certification is not required for anyone working on that 

particular building. 

3. Contractor’s Liability 

If the Contractor fails to comply with any applicable laws, rules, or regulations, and 

that failure results in a site or worker contamination, the Contractor will be held solely 

responsible for all costs involved in any required corrective actions, and shall defend, 

indemnify, and hold harmless the District, pursuant to the indemnification provisions 

of the Agreement, for all damages and other claims arising therefrom. 

If lead disturbance is anticipated in the Work, only persons with appropriate 

accreditation, registrations, licenses, and training shall conduct this Work. 

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to properly dispose of any and all waste 

products, including, but not limited to, paint chips, any collected residue, or any other 

visual material that may occur from the prepping of any painted surface.  It will be the 

responsibility of the Contractor to provide the proper disposal of any hazardous waste 

by a certified hazardous waste hauler.  This company shall be registered with the 

Department of Transportation (DOT) and shall be able to issue a current manifest 

number upon transporting any hazardous material from any school site within the 

District. 

The Contractor shall provide the District with any sample results prior to beginning 

Work, during the Work, and after the completion of the Work.  The District may request 

to examine, prior to the commencement of the Work, the lead training records of each 

employee of the Contractor. 



 

O&M Agreement – Sun Light & Power  

Certifications / Declarations Page 6 

THE CONTRACTOR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES, UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY, THAT IT: 

 

1. HAS RECEIVED NOTIFICATION OF POTENTIAL LEAD-BASED MATERIALS ON THE 

OWNER'S PROPERTY; 

2. IS KNOWLEDGEABLE REGARDING AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS, 

RULES, AND REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORK WITH, AND DISPOSAL, OF LEAD. 

THE UNDERSIGNED WARRANTS THAT HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF 

AND BIND THE CONTRACTOR.  THE DISTRICT MAY REQUIRE PROOF OF SUCH AUTHORITY. 
 

Date:              

Name of Contractor:   Sun Light & Power 

Signature:             

Print Name:             

Title:              



 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power) 1 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT 

This Performance Guarantee Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by the parties listed 

below (each a “Party” and collectively the “Parties”) as of the date signed by Contractor below 

(“Effective Date”).   

 DISTRICT CONTRACTOR 

 Rincon Valley Union School 

District 

Sun Light & Power 

Address 1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

1035 Folger Avenue 

Berkeley, CA 94710 
Phone (707) 542-7375 (510) 845-2997 
E-mail jpandolfo@rvusd.org gary@sunlightandpower.com 

This Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions of a performance guarantee for the solar 

photovoltaic system (collectively, “System”) provided by Contractor in conjunction with the 

Agreement for Design, Installation and Commissioning of Solar/Photovoltaic System by and 

between Contractor and District dated April 10, 2018 (“ESA”), and in conjunction with the 

Operations and Maintenance Agreement by and between Contractor and District of even date 

herewith (“O&M Agreement”).  Unless otherwise defined in this Agreement, all capitalized 

terms used hereunder shall have the meanings given such terms in the ESA and the O&M 

Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be concurrent with the term of the O&M 

Agreement. 

For the performance guarantee of Contractor under this Agreement, the Parties agree the 

District will be paying ZERO Dollars ($0.00) using initial value of energy calculated at 

$0.10/kWh, with a three percent (3%) annual escalator for the duration of the term of the 

Agreement.   

 

1. Guarantee.  Contractor guarantees that during the period of the O&M Agreement, the 

System will generate the guaranteed kilowatt-hours (kWh) (“Guaranteed kWh”) of energy set 

forth as follows: 

(a) Contractor shall provide the following minimum performance guarantee with 

the O&M Agreement, for the following true-up period: 

TRUE-UP TERM MINIMUM GUARANTEE 

5 Years 90% 

 

(b) Commencing on the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, 

and each successive sixty (60) month anniversary thereof during the term of this Agreement, 

if the Cumulative Actual kWh is greater than the Guaranteed kWh during any sixty (60) month 

period, the surplus will not be carried over and may not be used to offset any deficits that 

may occur in the next True-Up Term. 

The Parties agree that no Guarantee Payment Refund Check for a System shall be issued until 

the end of each True-Up Term.  Contractor will make that payment within thirty (30) days 

after providing their True-Up Report to the District notifying the District of an under 

production.  

 



 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power) 2 

(c) Reimbursement for the full value of loss of energy production should 

guaranteed performance not be met.  Duration covering the full term of the O&M Agreement.  

Compensation for energy value loss is calculated as the kWh generated during the True-Up 

Term less than guaranteed true-up period production multiplied by the Guaranteed Energy 

Price for that True-Up Term.  This calculation is meant to approximate energy avoided cost 

savings vs. purchasing electricity from the local electrical utility: 

Refund Check = 

(Guaranteed Performance kWh – Actual Performance kWh) x Guaranteed Energy Price/kWh 

(d) “Guaranteed Performance kWh” means the electricity guaranteed to be 

produced by the System per Site in kilowatt-hours as provided in TABLE 1, below.   

(e) “Actual kWh” means the AC electricity produced by the System in kilowatt-

hours measured and recorded by Contractor during each successive sixty (60) month 

anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date.  To measure the Actual kWh we will use the 

designated monitoring service, or to the extent such services are not available, Contractor 

will estimate the Actual kWh by reasonable means, subject to review by the District’s 

consultant.   

(f) “Guaranteed Energy Price per kWh” means the dollar value per kWh as stated 

in TABLE 1, below. 

TABLE 1 

TRUE UP TERM GUARANTEED ENERGY PRODUCTION 
(kWh) 

GUARANTEED ENERGY PRICE 
($/kWh) 

 VILLAGE ELEMENTARY DISTRICT OFFICE VILLAGE ELEMENTARY DISTRICT OFFICE 

Years 1-5 655,198 445,960 0.1062 0.1062 

Years 6-10 630,994 429,486 0.1231 0.1231 

 

(g) There shall be an assumed 0.75% degradation loss per year. 

(h) The Annual Report details annual performance during that year for the System.  

The report shall also detail previous annual performance for each year the System has been 

operational.  Weather adjustment calculations shall be clearly shown and detailed, and such 

weather adjustment calculations shall be reviewed and reasonably approved by District.  

Other than when a True-Up Report is provided, all Annual Reports shall be provided within 

thirty (30) days of the annual anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, and for the 

years within the current True-Up Period.  Although this report will show production on an 

annual basis, a True-Up Report showing whether a Refund Check shall be issued will only be 

provided at the end of each True-Up Period. 

(i) All True-Up Reports shall be provided within thirty (30) days of the sixty (60) 

month anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date. 

2. Exclusions.  The Guarantee does not apply to any repair, replacement or correction 

required due to the following: 

(a) Someone other than Contractor or its approved service providers installed, 

removed, re-installed or repaired the System; 



 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power) 3 

(b) Destruction or damage to the System or its ability to safely produce energy not 

caused by Contractor or its approved service providers while servicing the System (e.g., a 

tree falls on the System); 

(c) District’s failure to perform, or breach of, District’s obligations under the ESA 

or the O&M Agreement (such as if District modifies or alters the System); 

(d) District’s breach of this Agreement including being unavailable to provide 

access or assistance to Contractor in diagnosing or repairing a problem; 

(e) Any Force Majeure Event (as defined below); 

(f) A power or voltage surge caused by someone other than Contractor; 

(g) Any System failure not caused by a System defect (e.g., such as making roof 

repairs); or 

(h) Theft or vandalism of the System. 

3. Force Majeure Event.  “Force Majeure Event” means any event, condition or 

circumstance beyond the control of and not caused by Contractor’s fault or negligence.  It 

shall include, without limitation, failure or interruption of the production, delivery or 

acceptance of electricity due to: an (i) act of god; (ii) war (declared or undeclared), sabotage, 

riot, insurrection, civil unrest or disturbance, military or guerilla action, terrorism, economic 

sanction or embargo, civil strike, work stoppage, slow-down, or lock-out; (iii) explosion or 

fire; (iv) earthquake, extraordinary weather conditions or actions of the elements such as 

hurricane, flood, lightning, wind, drought that cause the System, or a portion thereof, to 

materially fail to produce power; (v) the binding order of any governmental authority 

(provided that such order has been resisted in good faith by all reasonable legal means) or 

the failure to act on the part of any governmental authority that stops or materially reduces 

production of power (provided that such action has been timely requested and diligently 

pursued); (vi) unavailability of electricity from the utility grid or the utility’s equipment, 

supplies or products, and failure of equipment not utilized by Contractor or under its control; 

(vii) failure of the utility to accept the full kWh production of the System; and/or 

(viii) significant reduction of electricity from the System due to a manufacturer’s defect during 

the initial warranty period where the manufacturer is either insolvent or does not resolve 

warranty claim within two (2) months of notification of equipment failure.   

If Contractor is unable to perform all or some of its obligations under this Agreement because 

of a Force Majeure Event, Contractor will be excused from whatever performance is affected 

by the Force Majeure Event, provided that: 

(a) Contractor shall, as soon as is reasonably possible after the occurrence of the 

Force Majeure Event, give District written notice describing the particulars of the Force 

Majeure Event, which shall include reasonable information and evidence that (1) the non-

performance is not due to Contractor’s fault or neglect, if the claimed Force Majeure Event is 

included in subsections (iii), (v) or (vi) of the definition of Force Majeure Event above and (2) 

the claimed Force Majeure Event materially affected the performance under this Agreement; 

(b) Contractor’s suspension of performance shall be of no greater scope and of no 

longer duration than is required by the Force Majeure Event as supported by the documents 

submitted to the District; and 



 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power) 4 

(c) No Contractor obligation that arose before the Force Majeure Event that could 

and should have been fully performed before such Force Majeure Event is excused as a result 

of such Force Majeure Event. 

4. Notices. 

If to District: 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

ATTN: Joseph Pandolfo Ed.D. 

1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA 95405 

FAX: 

EMAIL: jpandolfo@rvusd.org 

PHONE: (707) 542-7375 

If to Contractor: 

Sun Light & Power 

ATTN: Gary T. Gerber 

1035 Folger Avenue 

Berkeley, CA 94710 

FAX: 

EMAIL:  

PHONE: (510) 845-2997 

 

All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be by personal delivery,  

electronic mail, overnight courier, or regular, certified, or registered mail, return receipt 

requested, and shall be deemed received upon personal delivery, acknowledgment of receipt 

of electronic transmission, the promised delivery date after deposit with overnight courier, or 

three (3) days after deposit in the mail.  Notices shall be sent to the party identified in this 

Agreement at the address set forth above or such other address as either party may specify 

in writing.  Each party shall deem a document faxed or sent by electronic mail to it as an 

original document. 

 

5. Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement 

without giving effect to conflict of laws principles.  If a dispute, or any portion thereof, remains 

in dispute after the Parties informally meet to resolve the dispute, the Contractor shall comply 

with all claims presentation requirements as provided in Chapter 1 (commencing with section 

900) and Chapter 2 (commencing with section 910) of Part 3 of Division 3.6 of Title 1 of 

Government Code as a condition precedent to the Contractor’s right to bring a civil action 

against the District.  For purposes of those provisions, the running of the time within which a 

claim must be presented to the District shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits its 

written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized by any applicable 

meet and confer process.  Should litigation be necessary to enforce any terms or provisions 

of this Agreement, then each party shall bear its own litigation and collection expenses, 

witness fees, court costs, and attorney’s fees. 

6. Assignment and Transfer of this Agreement.  Contractor may not assign its rights 

or obligations under this Agreement to a third party without the consent of the District, which 

consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  Notwithstanding the 

foregoing, without the need for consent, Contractor may upon written notice transfer or assign 

this Agreement to any person or entity succeeding to all or substantially all of Contractor’s 

assets or to a successor entity in a merger or acquisition transaction, provided, however, that 

any such assignee shall agree to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof.  This 

Agreement protects only the party that hosts the System.  District’s rights and obligations 

under this Agreement will be automatically transferred to any party to whom District properly 

transfers the ESA and the O&M Agreement. 

7. Entire Agreement, Changes.  This Agreement contains the Parties’ entire agreement 

regarding the matters set forth herein. Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement are 

separate and distinct from the obligations of the Contractor or its assigns under the ESA and 

the O&M Agreement. No breach of this Agreement shall affect District’s obligations under the 

ESA or the O&M Agreement.   An assignment of the ESA or the O&M Agreement, as provided 



 

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE AGREEMENT (Sun Light & Power) 5 

in each, does not require an assignment of Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement. 

Any change to this Agreement must be in writing and signed by both Parties.  

8. Severability.  If any portion of this Agreement is determined to be unenforceable, the 

remaining provisions shall be enforced in accordance with their terms or shall be interpreted 

or re-written so as to make them enforceable.  Provisions that should reasonably be 

considered to survive termination of this Agreement shall survive. 

9. Waiver.  The waiver by either party of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition 

herein contained shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same 

or any other term, covenant, or condition herein contained. 

10. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, and 

all such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same Agreement.   

DISTRICT: 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 

DISTRICT 

 
Date:     , 2018 

By:       

Print Name:      

Print Title:      

CONTRACTOR: 

SUN LIGHT & POWER 

 

 
Date:     , 2018 

By:       

Print Name: Gary T. Gerber 

Print Title: President 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
DWK DMS 3232042v4 

RESOLUTION NO. 04-18-19 
 

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT TO ENTER INTO AN ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT 

 
 WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 4217.12(a)(1), authorizes a school 
district to enter into an energy service contract (“Contract”) with respect to an energy 
conservation facility if its governing body determines, at a regularly scheduled public hearing, 
public notice of which is given at least two weeks in advance, that the anticipated cost to the 
district for the alternative energy project will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the 
district of electrical energy that would have been consumed by the district in the absence of 
such energy project; and 

WHEREAS, the Rincon Valley Union School District (“District”) desires to design and 
install additional solar photovoltaic generating facilities at its main office located at 1000 
Yulupa Avenue in Santa Rosa, and at Village Elementary School located at 900 Yulupa Avenue 
in Santa Rosa, in order to generate energy cost savings and reduce its carbon footprint (“Solar 
Project”); and 

 WHEREAS, the District requested proposals from qualified contractors to design and 
build the Solar Project and, based on the overall proposed Solar Project cost and cost-savings, 
among other factors, selected Sun Light & Power (“Contractor”), to design and install the 
Solar Project; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code sections 4217.10, et seq., on March 
20, 2018, the District published notice of a public hearing at which the Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) would consider this Resolution, and has held the public hearing and provided an 
opportunity for public comment; and 

 WHEREAS, Sage Renewables (“Sage”) has provided the District with analysis showing 
the benefits of constructing the Solar Project including the reduction in consumption of or 
demand for nonrenewable energy that will result in net cost savings to the District, and Sage’s 
analysis (“Analysis”) is attached as EXHIBIT A and made part hereof by this reference; and 

 WHEREAS, based on the Analysis, the anticipated cost to the District for solar energy 
that is generated by the Solar Project will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the 
District of thermal, electrical, or other energy that would have been consumed by the District 
in the absence of the Solar Project; and 

 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into the Contract with Contractor, through 
which Contractor would provide, design, and install the Solar Project pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of the Contract. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the District’s Board does hereby determine, resolve, and order 
as follows: 

Section 1. That pursuant to California Government Code sections 4217.10, et seq., 
all of the recitals set forth above are true and correct. 

Section 2. That the Resolution is adopted following a public hearing at a regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Board for which a minimum of two weeks public notice has been 
duly given. 



 

Page 2 of 4 
DWK DMS 3232042v4 

Section 3. That pursuant to Government Code section 4217.12, and based on all 
available information, including, but not limited to the data provided in the Analysis, the cost 
of the Solar Project contemplated by the Contract with Contractor will be offset and will be 
less than the anticipated marginal cost to District of thermal, electrical or other energy that 
would have been consumed by District if such Solar Project was not completed, and that it is 
in the best interests of the District to enter into the Contract with Contractor. 

Section 4. That the District Superintendent or designee is hereby authorized to do 
all things that are necessary or proper to carry out or give effect to this Resolution and the 
Contract, including but not limited to, negotiating any further changes to the Contract with 
such changes not to be inconsistent with the intent of this Resolution, and to take all steps 
and perform all actions necessary to finalize and enter into the Contract with the Contractor, 
and to take any actions deemed necessary to protect the best interests of the District.   

Section 5. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of April, 2018, by the following vote of the 
Board: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 
 

SIGNED:    
 

      
Cynthia Evers, 
President, Board of Trustees   

 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Jeff Gospe, 
Clerk, Board of Trustees 
   
  



 

Page 3 of 4 
DWK DMS 3232042v4 

EXHIBIT A 

Energy Savings Analysis and Summary 

The cost for the Engineering, Procurement, and Construction of solar PV canopy projects at 
the District Office and Village Elementary is $733,000. Estimated Project Development Costs 
factoring in soft costs and contingencies are an additional $115,000, resulting in Total Project 
Costs of $848,000. The District has received Proposition 39 grants of $551,000 for this 
project, resulting in Net Project Costs to the District of $297,000. 

A 25-year cash flow analysis shows that the project will result in savings of $849,000 in 
nominal dollars and $593,000 in Net Present Value assuming a Discount Rate of 2%. 

 

Table A-1:  Project Costs 

 

 

 

Table A-2:  Project Financial Estimates 

 

 
[CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE] 

Project Size, kWp 168

Project Cost $733,000

Project Development Costs $115,000

Total Project Costs $848,000

Proposition 39 Allocation $551,000

Net Project Costs $297,000

Simple Payback 7.2

Project IRR 14%

Savings, Nominal $ $849,000

Net Present Value @ 2% D.R. $593,000



 

Page 4 of 4 
DWK DMS 3232042v4 

Table A-3:  Project 25-Year Cash Flow Estimates 

 
 

Year

Resid Energy 

Cost

Development 

& Operating 

Costs

Total Annual 

Energy Cost 

With Solar

Utility Energy 

Costs without 

Solar Annual Savings

Cumulative 

Cash Flow

0 297,000$           (297,119)$         (297,119)$        

1 16,976$             11,303$             28,279$             60,000$             43,024$             (254,095)$        

2 19,294$             11,558$             19,294$             61,800$             42,506$             (211,589)$        

3 20,503$             11,821$             20,503$             63,654$             43,151$             (168,438)$        

4 21,760$             12,092$             21,760$             65,564$             43,804$             (124,634)$        

5 23,067$             12,372$             23,067$             67,531$             44,463$             (80,171)$           

6 26,157$             12,662$             26,157$             69,556$             43,399$             (36,772)$           

7 27,599$             12,960$             27,599$             71,643$             44,044$             7,273$               

8 29,096$             13,268$             29,096$             73,792$             44,697$             51,969$            

9 32,380$             13,586$             32,380$             76,006$             43,626$             95,596$            

10 34,023$             13,914$             34,023$             78,286$             44,264$             139,859$          

11 35,728$             14,252$             35,728$             80,635$             44,907$             184,766$          

12 37,497$             14,601$             37,497$             83,054$             45,557$             230,324$          

13 39,332$             14,961$             39,332$             85,546$             46,214$             276,538$          

14 41,235$             15,332$             41,235$             88,112$             46,877$             323,415$          

15 43,209$             15,715$             43,209$             90,755$             47,547$             370,962$          

16 45,256$             16,110$             45,256$             93,478$             48,222$             419,184$          

17 47,378$             16,518$             47,378$             96,282$             48,905$             468,089$          

18 49,578$             16,938$             49,578$             99,171$             49,593$             517,682$          

19 51,858$             17,371$             51,858$             102,146$           50,288$             567,970$          

20 54,222$             17,818$             54,222$             105,210$           50,989$             618,958$          

21 63,553$             18,279$             63,553$             108,367$           44,813$             663,771$          

22 66,211$             18,754$             66,211$             111,618$           45,407$             709,178$          

23 68,962$             19,244$             68,962$             114,966$           46,004$             755,182$          

24 71,810$             19,749$             71,810$             118,415$           46,605$             801,787$          

25 74,758$             20,269$             74,758$             121,968$           47,209$             848,996$          

Total 1,041,441$       678,447$          1,052,744$       2,187,556$       848,996$          848,996$         



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.3 

Subject: Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Application Renewal 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: On March 13, 2018, the Governing Board was presented with a draft renewal 
application for the Spring Creek-Matanzas School charter.  The current charter 
expires on June 30, 2018.  The renewal is valid from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 
2023.   
 

Highlights: The document before the Governing Board has been amended since last month to 
include new permissible language that outlines a dismissal process for students.  
This section begins on page 29 of the document and continues through page 30.   
The purpose of this language is to provide the school with the greatest flexibility 
under current law to address the needs of the school. 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis:   

Next Steps: The renewal application will be filed with the California Department of Education. 

 
Attachments:  Spring Creek-Matanzas Charter Petition Charter Renewal 2018-2023 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 



	

	

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

 
Spring Creek-Matanzas 

Charter School 
 

Renewal Application 
 

For the Term   
July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2023 

 
Approved by the RVUSD Governing Board on  

April 10, 2018 
 
 
 
 
 

 



	

	

Table of Contents 
 
 

Affirmations…………………………………………………………………………. 1 
 
Charter Renewal Criteria…………………………………………………………….... 

 
3 

 
Element 1: Educational Program…………………………………………………….... 

 
7 

 
Element 2: Measurable Pupil Outcomes……………………………………………… 

 
18 

 
Element 3: Methods to Assess Progress Towards Meeting Outcomes……………….. 

 
21 

 
Element 4: Governance Structure of the School……………………………………… 

 
23 

 
Element 5: Employee Qualifications………………………………………………….. 

 
26 

 
Element 6: Health and Safety Procedures…………………………………………….. 

 
27 

 
Element 7: Means to Achieve Racial/Ethnic Balance Reflective of the Rincon Valley  
Union School District…………………………………………………………………. 

 
 

28 
 
Element 8: Admission Requirements…………………………………………………. 

 
29 

 
Element 9: Financial Audit…………………………………………………………… 

 
31 

 
Element 10: Pupil Suspension and Expulsion………………………………………… 

 
32 

 
Element 11: Retirement Systems……………………………………………………... 

 
33 

 
Element 12: Attendance Alternatives…………………………………………………. 

 
34 

 
Element 13: Description of Employee Rights………………………………………… 

 
35 

 
Element 14: Dispute Resolution Process……………………………………………... 

 
36 

 
Element 15: Closure Procedures……………………………………………………… 

 
37 

 
Miscellaneous Clauses………………………………………………………………... 
 
Budget………………………………………………………………………………… 

 
39 

 
41 

 
 

 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 1 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

AFFIRMATIONS 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is committed to the following affirmations: 
 

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall meet all statewide standards and 
conduct the student assessments required, pursuant to Education Code Section 60605, 
and any other statewide standards authorized in statute, or student assessments applicable 
to students in non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(1)] 

• The Rincon Valley Union School District declares that it shall be deemed the exclusive 
public school employer of the employees of Charter School for purposes of the 
Educational Employment Relations Act.  [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(b)(6)] 

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its programs, 
admission policies, employment practices, and all other operations. [Ref. Education Code 
Section 47605(d)(1)]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code 
Section 47605(d)(1)]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will not discriminate against any pupil on the 
basis of the characteristics described in Education Code Section 220 (actual or perceived 
disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, 
religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition 
of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an 
individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics). [Ref. Education Code 
Section 47605(d)(1)]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will admit all pupils who wish to attend the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, subject only to capacity. If the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School receives a greater number of applications than there are spaces 
for students, admission shall be determined through a public random drawing process. 
Except as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2), admission to the Spring 
Creek Matanzas Charter School shall not be determined according to the place of 
residence of the student or his or her parents within the State. Preference in the public 
random drawing shall be given as required by Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B). In 
the event of a drawing, the chartering authority shall make reasonable efforts to 
accommodate the growth of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School in accordance 
with Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(C). [Ref. Education Code Section 
47605(d)(2)(A)-(C)] 

• The Meetings of the Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education for the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be held in accordance with the Brown Act.	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with the Individuals with 
Disabilities Education Improvement Act (“IDEA”), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act 
("Section 504 "), and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”).	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with the Public Records Act 
and the Federal Educational Privacy Rights Act (“FERPA”).	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall continually strive for a healthy, 
collaborative, synergistic relationship with the District and surrounding Districts.	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall offer, at a minimum, the same number 
of minutes of instruction set forth in Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(l)(A)-(D) for the 
appropriate grade levels. 	



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 2 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will develop a conflicts of interest code in 
accordance with the conflicts code of the District.	

• If a pupil is expelled or leaves the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School without 
graduating or completing the school year for any reason, the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil's last 
known address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide that school district with a 
copy of the cumulative record of the pupil, including a transcript of grades or report card 
and health information. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(3)]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall meet all requirements for employment 
set forth in applicable provisions of law, including, but not limited to credentials, as 
necessary. [Ref. Title 5	

o California Code of Regulations Section 11967.5.l(f)(5)(C)].	
• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall ensure that teachers in the Spring Creek 

Matanzas Charter School hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate, 
permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools are 
required to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will be given to non-core, non-college 
preparatory teachers. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(l)]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with all applicable portions of 
the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (“ESEA”), as reauthorized and amended by 
the Every Student Succeeds Act (“ESSA”).	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall meet or exceed the legally required 
minimum number of school days. [Ref. Title 5 California Code of Regulations Section 
11960]	

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous 
written records that document all pupil attendance and make these records available for 
audit and inspection. [Ref. Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)] 

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall, on a regular basis, consult with its 
parents and teachers regarding the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School's educational 
programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)] 

• The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with all laws establishing the 
minimum and maximum age for public school enrollment. [Ref. Education Code Sections 
47612(b) and 47610] 

 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 3 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

 
CHARTER RENEWAL CRITERIA 

 
1. Education Code Section 47607(b) requires that a charter school must meet at least one of 

the following renewal criteria prior to receiving a charter renewal: 
1.1. Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the prior year or 

in two of the last three years, both school-wide and for all groups of pupils served 
by the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 

1.2. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in two of the 
last three years. 

1.3. Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically comparable 
school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

1.4. The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic performance of 
the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is at least equal to the academic 
performance of the public schools that the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School 
pupils would otherwise have been required to attend, as well as the academic 
performance of the schools in the school district in which the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School is located, taking into account the composition of the 
pupil population that is served at the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 

1.5. Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to subdivision (h) 
of Education Code Section 52052. 

 
2. Education Code Section 47607(a)(3): (A) The authority that granted the charter shall 

consider increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of pupils served by the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School as the most important factor in determining 
whether to grant a charter renewal.  (B) For purposes of this section, “all groups of pupils 
served by the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School” means a numerically significant 
pupil subgroup, as defined by paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 52052.  
 
Education Code Section 52052(a)(3):  (A) For purposes of this section, a numerically 
significant pupil subgroup is one that consists of at least 30 pupils, each of whom has a 
valid test score. (B) Notwithstanding subparagraph (A), for a subgroup of pupils who are 
foster youth or homeless youth, a numerically significant pupil subgroup is one that 
consists of at least 15 pupils.  Potential subgroups include: 
2.1. Ethnic subgroups. 
2.2. Socioeconomically disadvantaged pupils. 
2.3. English learners. 
2.4. Pupils with disabilities. 
2.5. Foster youth. 
2.6. Homeless youth. 

 
The following shall serve as documentation confirming that the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School meets the statutory criteria required for renewal set forth in Education Code Section 
47607(b). 
 
Assembly Bill 484 amended Education Code section 52052(e)(4) to allow schools that do not 
have an API calculated to use one of the following criteria to meet legislative and/or 
programmatic requirements: 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 4 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

• The most recent API calculation; 
• An average of the three most recent annual API calculations; or 
• Alternative measures that show increases in pupil academic achievement for all groups of 

pupils school-wide and among significant groups. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School meets the charter renewal criteria established in 
Education Code Section 47607(b) by utilizing “the most recent API calculation” as allowed per 
Education Code Section 52052(e)(4)(A), as further specified below. 
 
Analysis of Most Recent API Calculation 
 

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER RENEWAL 
Education Code Section 47607(b) – Charter School Must Meet at Least ONE  

Criteria for Renewal 

Renewal Criteria Criteria Met 

Attained its Academic Performance Index (API) growth target in the 
prior year or in two of the last three years, both school wide and for 
all groups of pupils served by the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10, inclusive, on the API in the prior year or in 
two of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

Ranked in deciles 4 to 10 inclusive, in the API for a demographically 
comparable school in the prior year or in two of the last three years. 

Yes; see table 
below 

The entity that granted the charter determines that the academic 
performance of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is at least 
equal to the academic performance of the public schools that the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School pupils would otherwise have 
been required to attend, as well as the academic performance of the 
schools in the school district in which the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School is located, taking into account the composition of the 
pupil population that is served at the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School. 

Not Applicable 

Has qualified for an alternative accountability system pursuant to 
subdivision (h) of Education Code Section 52052 

Not Applicable 

(Source: CDE DataQuest, accessed November 6, 2017) 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School had the following API scores: 
 

Year API Ranking Similar School 
Ranking 

API Scores API Growth 
Target (Actual 

Growth) 
2007-08 8 8 850 A (+11) 
2008-09 8 8 874 A (+39) 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 5 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

2009-10 9 9 838 A (-30) 
2010-11 7 7 806 A (-32) 
2011-12 5 2 833 A (+26) 
2012-13 7 6 840 A (+7) 

“A” means the school or subgroups scored at or above the statewide performance target of 800. 
(Source: CDE website, accessed November 6, 2017) 
 
Additional Justification for Charter Renewal: Analysis of Student Subgroup Academic 
Achievement (Education Code Section 47607(a)(3)) 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School has the following significant subgroups:  Socio-
economically Disadvantaged Pupils, Pupils with Disabilities, English Learners, Hispanic, and 
White students.  The following table outlines the CAASPP performance for ELA and Math for 
these significant subgroups. 
 

Years Subgroup ELA % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

Math % Meeting/ 
Exceeding 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Socio-Econ 

33 
29 
28 

16 
15 
17 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Disabilities 

30 
8 
9 

18 
4 
7 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

English 
Learner 

7 
4 
8 

5 
2 
8 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
Hispanic 

N/A 
27 
26 

N/A 
10 
17 

2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 

 
White 

46 
51 
57 

31 
37 
41 

 
The Spring 2017 California Dashboard compares the 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17 school 
years and sets the following performance levels for the significant subgroups present at the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School: 

• Socio-economically Disadvantaged Pupils: ELA = Orange; Math = Orange 
• Pupils with Disabilities: ELA = Red; Math = Red 
• English Learners: ELA = Orange; Math = Orange 
• Hispanic: ELA = Orange; Math = Orange 
• White Students: ELA = Yellow; Math = Yellow 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 6 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

Evidence that Pupil Academic Achievement for all Groups of Pupils Served by the Charter 
School are at Least Equal to the Public School that the Pupils Would Otherwise Have Attended 
 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is housed on two sites.  Spring Creek serves students in 
grades TK – third.  Matanzas serves students in grades fourth – sixth.  Prior to converting to a 
charter school, the campuses were regular district schools that served the same grade levels.  As 
a charter, the campuses continue to primarily serve their former attendance areas.  Therefore, 
there is no public school the students would otherwise have attended.  However, students from 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School attend Herbert Slater Middle School (HSMS) in Santa 
Rosa City Schools.  There are four other elementary schools that make-up the HSMS attendance 
area.  These include Village Charter School (Rincon Valley Union School District), Yulupa (K-
3) and Strawberry (4-6) schools (Bennett Valley Union School District), Brookhill Elementary 
School (Santa Rosa City Schools), and Kawana Springs School (Bellevue Union School 
District).  A comparison of these schools is provided below.  
 
Spring 2017 CAASPP Smarter Balanced Assessment results for English Language Arts (ELA) 
and Mathematics are provided below for each of the schools and further broken down by 
significant subgroups.  Note that the demographics of the various schools are similar with the 
exception of the Bennett Valley Schools that represent a much higher socio-economic profile and 
a significantly lower number of English learners than the other schools.  SC Matanzas student 
perform in the middle of this comparison group.  SC Matanzas outperforms Brookhill and is 
even with Kawana and Village; outperforming in some areas and below these schools in others.  
All schools are well below the Bennett Valley schools, but as noted, the demographics for this 
district vary significantly from the other schools.  The data demonstrates that the academic 
performance of SC Matanzas students is at least equal to the academic performance of the public 
schools that the charter school pupils would otherwise have been required to attend, as well as 
the academic performance of the schools in the school district in which the charter school is 
located, taking into account the composition of the pupil population that is served at the charter 
school as required by Education Code 47607(4)(A). 
 
 

Percent of Students Meeting or Exceeding Standards  
Spring 20017 CAASPP  

 English Language Arts Mathematics 
 All EL SED DIS All EL SED DIS 
SC-Matanzas 45.77 7.89 27.78 8.93 32.39 7.89 17.49 7.15 
Village 50.82 9.30 35.52 9.09 42.11 6.38 24.11 9.09 
Bennett Valley 64.62 N/A 46.37 41.67 57.22 N/A 36.36 15.00 
Brook Hill 22.18 4.30 19.00 6.25 12.50 4.93 12.22 0.00 
Kawana 37.39 19.63 37.09 8.00 27.98 18.35 31.20 4.00 
Source: https://caaspp.cde.ca.gov/sb2017/Search  accessed on December 4, 2017 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 7 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 1. 
  EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 

 
Governing Law: The educational program of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, 
designed, among other things, to identify those whom the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School 
is attempting to educate, what it means to be an "educated person" in the 21st century, and how 
learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program shall include the objective of enabling 
pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong learners. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(A)(i). 
 
The annual goals for the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School for all pupils and for each 
subgroup of pupils identified pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as 
described in subdivision (d) of Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the 
nature of the program operated, by the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, and specific 
annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may identify additional school 
priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual actions to achieve those 
goals. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
The Spring Creek and Matanzas Charter School is a site-based, traditional calendar charter 
school for approximately 600 elementary age students. Spring Creek will house the transitional 
kindergarten through third grade students while the Matanzas campus will house the fourth 
through sixth grade students. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will foster a learning 
environment where all students can achieve excellence in academics while involving themselves 
in a community of kindergarten through sixth grade learners. Students will develop socially and 
emotionally within a safe and nurturing environment where they will feel supported in their 
development as young learners. 
 
VISION 
 
The vision of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is to provide an educational program 
for students who are interested and committed to participating in a rigorous core academic 
program, based upon the California state content standards and local key standards, with an 
educational experience that will include technology, fine arts and support the intellectual, 
physical, social, and emotional development of a student of the 21st century. 
 
MISSION 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School pursues excellence in elementary school education 
where students are educated to be self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners who hold 
themselves to high academic and personal standards within a student-centered environment 
emphasizing a challenging core curriculum. 
 
WHOM THE SCHOOL IS ATTEMPTING TO EDUCATE: 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School education program provides expanded opportunities 
for students attending school first in a primary school where differentiation of the curriculum 
will specifically meet the needs of first through third graders, and then provides an educational 
program with choice and opportunities for fourth through sixth graders on an intermediate 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 8 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

campus in the Rincon Valley community. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School offers 
school settings with focused attention on each grade level configuration with curriculum and 
instruction designed for the age span, strong student support, and parent involvement.  Informal 
data gathered from parents and teachers indicate that a number of elementary grade students’ 
families currently seek schools with a primary/intermediate configuration. In addition, these 
families desire a rigorous academic program with access to technology and the fine arts. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School serves students in transitional kindergarten through 
sixth grades whose families have an interest in and dedication to the school’s philosophy and 
vision.  
 
THE ATTRIBUTES OF AN EDUCATED PERSON IN THE 21ST CENTURY INCLUDE: 
 

• Confidence to be challenged and inspired by learning 
• Ability to read and interpret complex texts 
• Ability to communicate and collaborate effectively with the peers and beyond 
• Ability to foster intellectual, personal, and social-emotional development 
• Ability to apply broad scientific and mathematical practices to analyze and solve a 

variety of real-world problems 
• Demonstration of a growth mindset where risk-taking and reflection is valued 
• Ability to think critically, creatively, analytically, and logically and apply that 

thinking to real-world situations 
• Ability to gather and organize information 
• Ability to critically assess and analyze data 
• Ability to gather and synthesize information from a variety of sources and 

perspectives to make well-informed decisions and value diverse viewpoints 
• Ability to act in an ethical manner, to discern right from wrong, and demonstrate the 

characteristics of a positively contributing citizen 
 
HOW LEARNING BEST OCCURS: 
 
Students learn best when they are: 
 

• Feeling safe and in an environment that values them as learners, thinkers, and 
complex people 

• Actively involved in their learning 
• Intellectually engaged in problem-solving and meaning making 
• Given opportunities to think critically about their own learning 
• Exposed to activities that are meaningful and relevant to their own lives 
• Exposed to a variety of learning models and methods of problem-solving 
• Appropriately supported at their zone of proximal development 
• In a setting where learning is rigorous and students have the confidence and support 

to engage in productive struggle  
• Given many opportunities for divergent thinking where questioning and different 

perspectives push their thinking to the next level 
• Learning is differentiated, and the needs of each (and all) students are met 
• Aware that the school-home-community connection is an important component of 

success 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 9 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

• Are aware of the high expectations of the adults around them, and when they have 
high expectations for themselves 

• Recognized as valuable contributing members of their school and larger community 
 
METHODS OF INSTRUCTION: 
 
Instruction is most effective when purposeful, differentiated, culturally responsive, and when 
adults are aware of and sensitive to the unique needs of each student. Instruction is high-quality 
and effective when it encompasses specific purpose, classroom/school culture, structure, 
assessment, and pedagogy. The Spring Creek Matanzas instructional program provides for 
differentiation, flexible grouping, continuous progress-monitoring, intellectual peer interaction, 
and consistency. 
 
Instructional approaches may include: 
 

• Utilizing strategies that emphasize critical thinking, complex reasoning, and 
differentiated instruction. 

• Providing students opportunities for feedback and choice that shape their learning 
experience. 

• Providing students with interactive learning opportunities that are relevant and 
meaningful. 

• Providing opportunities for students to engage in multiple levels of questioning and 
thinking. 

• Providing a variety of settings: direct instruction, guided practice, productive group work, 
and independent practice.  

• Utilizing technology to ensure that students become empowered learners, digital citizens, 
creative communicators, and effective collaborators. 
 

CURRICULUM 
 

Curriculum adheres to State and district standards and meets the needs of a diverse learning 
population. Adopted curriculum provides standards-based, high-quality instruction in all core 
academic areas.  Curriculum is designed to integrate with the social-emotional learning and 
development of students by fostering responsibility to self and others. Curriculum also fosters 
students’ creativity, confidence, perseverance and critical-thinking, problem-solving, and self-
reflective skills. 
 
Curriculum in all content areas is demanding, relevant, and is taught through a variety of 
researched-based strategies, such as, whole-class instruction, productive group work, teacher-
directed small group instruction, and individual instruction based on progress monitoring of 
individual student needs as measured by ongoing assessment. Curriculum is approached via a 
gradual release of responsibility model, which encompasses focus lessons, guided practice, 
student collaboration, and independent practice. 
 
 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 10 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ASPECTS OF THE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM: 
 
The standard is for high quality student work enhanced and enabled by excellent teaching within 
a supportive school culture.  
 
At Spring Creek Matanzas, teachers: 
 

• See the development of foundational and academic literacy for all students as the 
highest priority in the school. 

• Possess demonstrable professional competence. 
• Provide caring emotional support for all students to develop positive educational 

values. 
• Maintain emotionally and physically safe learning environments. 
• Implement standards-based education in all core areas of the curriculum. 
• Use curriculum materials and assessment practices that are aligned with the standards. 
• Provide content standards that are clearly articulated at each grade level for all 

parents and students. 
• Provide differentiated instruction. 
• Provide opportunities for students to apply learning, knowledge, and skills in relevant 

ways. 
• Engage students in tasks requiring complex reasoning that are expressed in speech or 

writing or in experiments, projects, artwork, models, or other appropriate means. 
• Assign relevant homework that is truly independent practice and that is linked to 

content standards and unit themes. 
• Use support personnel effectively, including aides, tutors, and adult volunteers. 
• Regularly plan, implement, and evaluate school-based initiatives focused on 

intervention and gifted programs for students. 
• Inform students, parents, and the community about the basic and special efforts of the 

school to help all students make at least one year’s worth of growth in all areas. 
• Teachers partner with all stakeholders in advocating for the success and safety of 

students. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School engages families in the education of students by 
communicating with families about the school program and students’ progress, and providing 
several family opportunities to support the learning process at home and at the school.  
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School teaches students and recognizes students in the 
importance of becoming productive, caring citizens. The school promotes shared social values, 
such as responsibility, honesty, kindness, and respect for others through a strong character 
education program. 

 
Learning Opportunities 
 

• Students will participate in research-based and well-structured social-emotional learning 
programs. 

• Students will participate in conflict resolution lessons and activities to foster positive peer 
and community relationships  



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 11 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

• School activities will promote social responsibility and recognition of respectful 
behaviors. 

• All students, including subgroups, will have the opportunity to participate in-school and 
evening events that promote inclusion, community, diversity, academic learning, and the 
importance of home/school partnership. 

• Student progress will be monitored via a multi-tiered support system, including 
attendance awareness, and social/emotional and behavior data points to target students for 
support services or alternative learning opportunities. 

• Technology is seamlessly integrated into all aspects of the curriculum and instruction, 
including teaching students to navigate a variety of digital interfaces and good cyber-
citizenship. 

• Students learn to discern information from misinformation by analyzing a variety of 
sources and questioning and validating the quality and integrity of the content. 

• Students participate in a physical fitness program that teaches the foundations of team 
work, life-long fitness, nutrition, and healthy habits. 

• Students participate in visual and performing arts opportunities both as a participant and a 
spectator to emphasize the importance of a well-rounded education. 

• Throughout each aspect of the curriculum, students will employ critical thinking, 
technology, creativity, and complex problem-solving skills.  

 
MULTI-TIERED SYSTEMS OF SUPPORT (FORMERLY KNOWN AS RESPONSE TO 
INTERVENTION) 
 
Multi-tiered Systems of Support (MTSS), formerly known as Response to Intervention (RTI) is 
implemented “as a practice of providing high-quality instruction and interventions matched to 
student need, monitoring progress frequently to make decisions about changes in instruction or 
goals and applying child response data to important educational decisions.” (NASDSE, 2006) 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL GOALS AND ACTIONS TO ACHIEVE THE EIGHT STATE 
PRIORITIES  
 
Please see the section “Goals, Actions and Measurable Outcomes Aligned with the Eight State 
Priorities” in Element 2 of the Charter for a description of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School’s annual goals to be achieved in the Eight State Priorities school-wide and for all pupil 
subgroups, as described in Education Code Section 52060(d), and specific annual actions to 
achieve those goals, in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii). 
 
ENGLISH LEARNERS 
 
Of special importance is the idea that English-language development instruction should continue 
for students at all levels of English language proficiency. The State ELD Standards are taught 
through the state English/Language Arts Common Core State Standards to ensure that English 
language learners develop proficiency in both the English language and the concepts and skills 
contained in the State standards. 
 
All English learners are supported with specially-designed academic instruction in English 
(SDAIE) to help develop their English skills and simultaneously address grade-level content in 
the core curriculum. Students new to US schools (known as newcomers) receive additional 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 12 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

support from a classified or certificated staff member to acquire basic English language quickly. 
English learners who have not been designated as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP) after 6 years 
of instruction are classified as Long Term English Learners (LTEL). These students receive 
intensive intervention from a certificated teacher, using instructional materials from the state-
approved list. All teachers hold an English learner authorization (CLAD or equivalent). 
 
Home Language Survey 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will administer the home language survey upon a 
student’s initial enrollment into the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School (on enrollment 
forms).   
 
English Language Proficiency Testing 
 
All students who indicate that their home language is other-than-English will be administered a 
California English language proficiency test within thirty days of initial enrollment and at least 
annually thereafter re-designated as fluent English proficient. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will notify all parents of its responsibility for English 
language proficiency testing and of those test results within thirty days of receiving results from 
publisher. The California English Language Proficiency Test (CELDT) will be used through Fall 
2017. Beginning Spring 2018 the English Language Proficiency Assessment for California 
(ELPAC) will be used to fulfill the requirements under the Every Student Succeeds Act for 
annual English proficiency testing 
 
SPECIAL EDUCATION STUDENTS/SECTION 504/ADA 
 
Public School of the District 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with all applicable State and Federal 
Laws in serving students with disabilities, including, but not limited to, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act ("Section 504"), the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act ("IDEA"). The Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School shall be deemed a public school of the District pursuant to Education Code 
Section 4764l(b). 
 
A Charter School that is deemed to be a public school of the local educational agency that 
granted the charter shall participate in state and federal funding in the same manner as any other 
public school of the granting agency. Further, a child with disabilities attending the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School shall receive special educational instruction or designated instruction 
and services, or both, in the same manner as a child with disabilities who attends another public 
school of that district. The District shall ensure that all children with disabilities enrolled in the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School receive special education and designated instruction and 
services in a manner that is consistent with their individualized education program and in 
compliance with the IDEA. 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 13 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

Non-Discrimination 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall not deny nor discourage any student from 
enrollment due to a disability or due to the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School's concerns 
about its ability to provide appropriate services. The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School will 
comply with all provisions of federal law and implementing regulations related to the rights of 
students with disabilities and their parents (20 U. S.C. Chapter 33, the IDEA). The Spring Creek 
Matanzas	Charter School facility shall not present physical barriers that would limit an eligible 
student's full participation in the educational and extracurricular program offered by the Spring 
Creek Matanzas Charter School. 
 
In-Service on Referral System  
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall designate a representative to attend an in-
service conducted by the District or the SELPA on the referral system and criteria. 
 
Services 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School will be treated as any other public school in the 
District with respect to the provision of special education services, including the allocation of 
duties between on-site staff and resources and the District staff and resources. All individuals 
providing services to the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be appropriately 
credentialed under California and Federal law. 
 
The District and the School agree to allocate responsibility for the provisions of services 
(including but not limited to identification, evaluation, I.E.P. development and modification, and 
educational services) in a manner consistent with their allocation between the District and its 
local public school sites. Where particular services are generally provided by staff at the local 
school site level, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will be responsible for providing 
said staff and programming; where particular services are provided to the school by the central 
District office, those services will be made available to the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School in a similar fashion. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School and the District intend that they will jointly ensure 
that all students entitled to services under the IDEA and California Education Code Section 
56000, et seq., will receive those services. 
 
The District shall be responsible for providing all services under this Charter to all students of 
the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School regardless of their school district of residence. 
 
If needed due to limited special education staff, the District may seek out contracts with other 
school districts, or companies, or organizations to serve Charter School students. The Spring 
Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall assist the District in procuring such services. 
 
Identification and Referral 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall have the same responsibility as any other 
public school in the District to work cooperatively with the District in identifying and referring 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 14 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

students who have or may have exceptional needs that qualify them to receive special education 
services. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will develop, maintain, and implement 
policies and procedures to ensure identification and referral of students who have, or may have, 
such exceptional needs. These policies and procedures will be in accordance with California law 
and District policy. As between the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School and the District, the 
Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School is solely responsible for obtaining the cumulative files, 
prior and/or current Individualized Education Plan ("IEP") and other special education 
information on any student enrolling from a non-District school. A pupil shall be referred for 
special education instruction and services only after the resources of the regular education 
program have been considered and where appropriate utilized and exhausted. 
 
The District shall provide the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School with any assistance that it 
generally provides its other public schools in the identification and referral processes. The 
District will ensure that the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School is provided with notification 
and relevant files of all students transferring to the School from a District school, who have an 
existing IEP, in the same-manner that it ensures the forwarding of such information between 
District schools. All records and files will be released with the signed permission of the 
parent/guardian. 
 
Assessment 
 
The District and Charter School shall make the determination as to what assessments are 
necessary, including assessments for all referred students, annual assessments and tri-annual 
assessments, in accordance with the District's general practice and procedure and applicable law. 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall not conduct unilateral independent assessments 
without prior written approval of the District. 
 
Individualized Education Plan (“IEP”) 
 
Responsibility for arranging necessary IEP meetings shall be allocated in accordance with the 
District’s general practice, procedure and applicable law. The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter 
School shall be responsible for having the designated representative of the Spring Creek 
Matanzas	Charter School in attendance at the IEP meetings in addition to representatives who are 
knowledgeable about the regular education program at the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter 
School. 
 
Decisions regarding eligibility, goals/objectives, program placement and exit from special 
education shall be the decision of the IEP team. Team membership shall be in compliance with 
state and federal law and shall include the designated representative of the Spring Creek 
Matanzas	Charter School (or designee) and the designated representative of the District (or 
designee) (when appropriate). Services and placements shall be provided to all eligible Charter 
School students in accordance with the policies, procedures and requirements of the District and 
of the Local Plan for Special Education. 
 
For students who enroll in the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School with a current IEP, the 
District and the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall conduct an IEP meeting in 
accordance with applicable law. The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall notify the 
District immediately of students who may fall into this category. The District will provide 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 15 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

consultative assistance to Charter School to help transition the student. 
 
To the extent that the agreed upon IEP requires educational or related services to be delivered by 
staff other than the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School staff, the District shall provide and/or 
arrange for such services in the same manner that it would be legally obligated to provide to the 
students at its other District schools. District services shall include consultative services by 
District staff to Charter School staff in the same manner that District staff consults with staff at 
other District schools. 
 
Concerns/Complaints 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall instruct Parents/Guardians to raise concerns 
regarding special education services, related services and rights to the Spring Creek Matanzas	
Charter School staff. The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School staff shall then in turn consult 
with the designated representative of the District regarding such concerns. The District 
representative in consultation with the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School's designated 
representative shall respond to and address the parent/guardian concerns. 
 
In consultation with the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School, the District shall 
address/respond/investigate all complaints received under the Uniform Complaint procedure 
involving special education. 
 
In consultation with the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School, the District may initiate a due 
process hearing on behalf of a student enrolled in the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School as 
the District determines is legally necessary to meet a school agency's responsibilities under 
federal and state law. The District and the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall work 
together to defend any due process hearing brought by a student enrolled in the Spring Creek 
Matanzas	Charter School. 
 
In the event that the District determines that legal counsel representation is needed, the District/ 
Charter School shall be jointly represented by legal counsel, unless there is a conflict of interest. 
In the case separate counsel is needed by the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School, the Spring 
Creek Matanzas	Charter School shall be responsible for the separate costs of its legal counsel. 
 
SELPA Representation 
 
The District Superintendent or designee shall represent the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter 
School at all SELPA meetings as it represents the needs of all schools in the District. Reports to 
the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School regarding SELPA decisions, policies, etc. shall be 
communicated to the Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School as they are to all other schools 
within the District. To the extent that the District and/or SELPA provide training opportunities 
and/or information regarding special education to site staff, such opportunities/information shall 
be made available to Charter School staff. To the extent that District site staff have the 
opportunity to participate in committee meetings of the SELPA as representatives of their 
district, such opportunities shall be made available to Charter School staff. To the extent services 
are offered SELPA-wide, such services will also be available to students at the Spring Creek 
Matanzas	Charter School. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 16 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

The Spring Creek Matanzas	Charter School agrees to adhere to the policies, procedures, and 
requirements of the Local Plan for Special Education and to District policies. 
 
Funding 
 
The parties agree that, pursuant to the division of responsibilities set forth in this Agreement, the 
School has elected the status of any other public school in the District for the purposes of special 
education services and funding, and the District has agreed to provide special education services 
for the School, consistent with the services it provides at its public schools.  Consistent with this 
division of responsibility, The District shall retain all state and federal special education funding 
allocated for Charter School students through the SELPA.  
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall owe the District a pro-rata share of the 
District’s unfunded special education costs (“encroachment”). 
 
At the end of each fiscal year, the District shall calculate the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School’s pro-rata share of the District-wide encroachment for that year as calculated by the total 
unfunded special education costs of the District (including those costs attributable to the Spring 
Creek Matanzas Charter School) divided by the total number of District ADA (including Charter 
School students) and multiplied by the total number of Charter School ADA.  Charter School 
ADA shall include all students, regardless of home district.  Adjustments will be made to 
include, on a pro-rated basis, students who enroll after the student-enrollment calculation is 
made.  No prorated adjustment will be made for students who leave during the academic year. 
This amount shall be calculated at the end of the fiscal year and paid in monthly installments 
throughout the following fiscal year. 
 
The District will pay for all of Spring Creek Matanzas’ Charter School's special education 
costs.   Spring Creek Matanzas Charter will transfer most of its ending fund balance at the end of 
every fiscal year to the District to pay for these Special Education costs as well as other costs the 
district incurs but cannot or does not directly charged to the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School.  There may be a small amount of fund balance left remaining in the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School Fund for cash flow purposes. 
 
Discipline 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall follow the requirements of State and Federal law 
in regard to the suspension or expulsion of special education students including but not limited to 
the requirement that a manifestation determination be made prior to any change of placement. 
 
Dispute Resolution 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School and the District agree to follow the dispute 
resolution procedure outlined by Element 14 of this charter in the case of a dispute regarding 
special education services or funding.  The SELPA Director shall be included as applicable and 
necessary in the dispute resolution process. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 17 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

 
Section 504 / Americans with Disabilities Act 
 
The District shall be responsible for Charter School compliance with Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act (“Section 504”) and the Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) with 
respect to eligible students. 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 18 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 2. 
MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES 

 
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil 
outcomes,” for purpose of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school 
demonstrate that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the 
school’s educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in 
pupil academic achievement both school wide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter 
school, as that term is defined in subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 
47607. The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of 
Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by 
the charter school.  Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B). 
 
It is the philosophy of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School to foster high academic 
expectations through the use of a rigorous application of the state and district content standards. 
It is the goal of the school for all students to make at least a year’s worth of academic growth in 
all subject areas as measured by State and district assessments. In addition, it is the goal to 
support the student physically, socially and emotionally. The desired outcome is the development 
of a student who is on the road to becoming a lifelong learner. The desired outcome that the 
educational process outlined in this charter will allow children to recognize and achieve their full 
individual potential. 
 
CHARTER OUTCOMES 
 
It is the goal of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School that students achieve the following 
outcomes: 
 
Anticipated Outcomes 
 
Students will demonstrate the following upon completion of sixth grade: 
 

• Overall scores on the CAASPP that demonstrate annual student progress both school-
wide and for all numerically significant student subgroups served by the Charter School 
(as defined by Education Code Section 52052(a)(3)). 

• Mastery K-6 content standards. 
• Strong scholarly attributes. 
• Good citizenship. 

 
Academic Content Outcomes 
 
English Language Arts 
 

Students will demonstrate grade-level appropriate reading, writing, listening, speaking, and 
presentation skills, which they can apply using multiple forms of expression (e.g., written, 
oral, multimedia) as is appropriate to the setting, purpose, and audience.  Students will be 
able to develop and defend an argument or position based on text evidence, analysis, and 
interpretation. Students will be able to compare and contrast content from a variety or genres 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 19 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

and texts. Students will read a broad range of literature and informational text with varying 
levels of text complexity. 

 
Mathematics 
 
Student will develop an understanding of mathematical concepts and use mathematical reasoning 
to solve problems. Students will develop fluency in basic computational and procedural skills. 
They will employ the eight mathematical practices as appropriate to analyze, solve, and explain 
complex, real-world problems. Development of these skills will enable students to apply 
mathematics to everyday life and develop an interest in pursuing advanced studies in 
mathematics. 
 
History/Social Studies 
As per the California History-Social Science Framework, students will acquire core knowledge 
in history and social science. Students understand common and complex themes throughout 
history, making connections among their own lives, the lives of the people who came before 
them, and the lives of those to come. Students will to apply new knowledge as they solve a 
problem, analyze a situation, understand a perspective, or evaluate alternatives.  Students at 
Spring Creek Matanzas will acquire these skills by involvement in leading, facilitating, acting, 
singing, discussing, drawing, making decisions, presenting, and critiquing and interacting with 
the social studies content. 
 
Science 
 
Students will develop an in-depth understanding of science content through the study of 
disciplinary core ideas and cross-cutting concepts. The Next Generation Science Standards 
(NGSS) performance expectations will be our guide. Students will participate in hands-on, 
interactive learning experiences that incorporate appropriate technology tools in lab and garden 
settings. Students will satisfy their natural curiosity through scientific inquiry and will use 
scientific evidence, reasoning, and ideas to solve everyday problems. 
  
Visual and Performing Arts 
Students will have opportunities to participate in music and the arts each year. 
 
Physical Education 
Students will understand the value of teamwork and good sportsmanship. Students will develop 
gross motor skills and understand the benefits of lifelong physical activity. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will continue to evaluate and refine its list of desired 
outcomes over time to reflect the school’s vision and mission and any changes to the state or 
local standards that support the mission. 
 
GOALS, ACTIONS AND MEASURABLE OUTCOMES ALIGNED WITH THE EIGHT 
STATE PRIORITIES  
 
Pursuant to Education Code Sections 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii) and 47605(b)(5)(B), the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School’s annual goals, actions and measurable outcomes, both schoolwide and 
for each subgroup of pupils, which address and align with the Eight State Priorities as described 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 20 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

in Education Code Section 52060(d), can be found in the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School’s Local Control Accountability Plan (“LCAP”). Each of these goals addresses the unique 
needs of all students attending the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, including our 
numerically significant student subgroups. The metrics associated with these goals help the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School to ensure that these specific subgroups are making 
satisfactory progress, and are provided with necessary additional supports made possible by 
additional funds from the Local Control Funding Formula.  
 
The current LCAP is on file with the District. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall 
annually update and develop the LCAP in accordance with Education Code Section 47606.5 and 
shall use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of Education. The Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School reserves the right to establish additional and/or amend school-specific 
goals and corresponding assessments throughout the duration of the charter through the annual 
LCAP update. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall submit the LCAP to the District 
and County Superintendent of Schools annually on or before July 1, as required by Education 
Code Section 47604.33.  



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 21 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 3. 
METHODS TO ASSESS PUPIL PROGRESS 

TOWARDS MEETING OUTCOMES 
 

Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is to be 
measured. To the extent practicable, the method for measuring pupil outcomes for state 
priorities shall be consistent with the way information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C). 
 
Student progress will be based on how well students have met the measurable student outcomes 
outlined by the charter. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall utilize the following 
methods of measurement to assess the achievement of student outcomes. 
 
Performance Based Assessment 
 
Performance assessments will require students to structure and apply information learned by 
actively constructing, organizing and producing/exhibiting a specific project. Assessments will 
be used to measure higher levels of student thinking and creative problem solving. Written 
products, both draft and final, and oral presentations students do as a part of their class 
assignments will be scored and used to determine progress toward understanding of standards. 
 
Formative Assessments 
 
Teachers will develop on-going assessments to support the diagnostic need of meeting individual 
student learning. The use of common assessments will be integral to the instructional process. 
Formative assessments will be developed for each of the core curriculum areas and be 
administered on a regularly scheduled basis coinciding at a minimum with the report of progress 
to parents and students. Formative assessments will be used to inform instruction. 
 
Benchmark Assessments 
 
Assessments based upon identified state and local performance standards will be developed and 
formalized to provide a uniform basis for measuring student progress on standards at least once 
during the course of the year. The student results will be used by the school as a performance 
indicator and as part of the data used in establishing a performance level for the student. 
Assessments will be used to inform instruction. 
 
Summative Assessments 
 
The California Assessments for Student Progress and Performance (CAASPP) system will be 
used for program analysis and public accountability. It will provide trend data about general 
performance that can guide school programs.  
 
 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 22 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

California School Dashboard 
 
The California School Dashboard provides the school with status and change metrics for its 
entire and subgroup populations.  The California School Dashboard provides trend data used to 
guide programmatic decisions. 
 
Annual Performance Reporting 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School and/or District staff will compile and provide to the 
Rincon Valley Union School District Board of Education on-going reports of performance on all 
indicators used for the District’s other charter and non-charter programs. 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 23 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 4. 
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE OF THE SCHOOL 

 
Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, 
the process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(D). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is governed by the Rincon Valley Union School 
District Board of Education (“Governing Board”). The Governing Board is ultimately in charge 
of the Charter School’s operation and governance. The Principals, appointed by the Governing 
Board, is responsible for execution of daily management duties at the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School on behalf of the Governing Board. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions 
policies, employment practices, and all other operations; shall not charge tuition; and shall not 
discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Section 220 (actual or perceived 
disability, gender, gender expression, gender identity, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, 
sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set 
forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code or association with an individual who has any of the 
aforementioned characteristics).  The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be governed 
by the District Board of Education. 

 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will comply with all applicable federal, state, and 
local laws that are applicable to public charter schools. It will retain its own legal counsel when 
necessary. It will purchase and maintain as necessary general liability, automotive liability, 
errors and omissions, officers and directors, property, workers compensation, and unemployment 
insurance policies, in amounts commensurate with the recommendations of the District’s insurers 
for a school of similar type, size, and location. 
 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT GOVERNING BOARD 
 
All duties and operations regarding the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be 
considered a duty of the Board of the District.  These duties include but are not limited to: 
 

1) Development and adoption of policies and procedures related to the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School. 

2) Approval of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School budget. 
3) Management of Charter School personnel including, but not limited to evaluation, 

discipline, hiring, collective bargaining and grievances. 
4) All special education services. 
5) Provision and management of Charter School facilities. 
6) Transportation of Charter School students. 
7) Food services for Charter School students. 
8) Maintenance and operations for the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 

 
The District Board may delegate its authority to any advisory committees as needed. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 24 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

The District shall have supervisory oversight of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School.  
Such duties may include, but are not necessarily limited to, review and renewal of the charter, 
review and approval of amendments, revocation, review of annual audits and STRS/PERS 
reporting. 
 
The District shall manage all day-to-day administration of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School through the Superintendent and the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School Principals. 
 
PARENT INVOLVEMENT  
 
An essential tenet of the philosophy of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is that 
students are best able to reach their full potential when there is a high level of involvement by 
their parents in their education.  Moreover, research has shown that stakeholder involvement is 
important to the success of a program and to the satisfaction of the participants. Excellence in the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School can be better accomplished and maintained if those 
parents/guardians available to Charter School students participate in the governance of the 
school. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School parents will be encouraged to participate on 
the school site council. 
 
Diversity in the parent population is a great strength that improves the educational program for 
all.  Parents have different philosophies and approaches to their involvement in their children’s 
education.  Likewise, parents may contribute in many different ways to the collective 
responsibility of running the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School and making its educational 
program a success.  Recognizing that each parent, like each child, is unique in terms of 
background, experience, and ability, parents will be encouraged to contribute to the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School’s success by volunteering their skills, time, and resources to the extent 
that they are able.  To that end, the Principal of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall 
meet bi-annually with parents to determine what contribution they may make to the school given 
their individual time, abilities, and resources. 
 
Parents will be asked to attend parent meetings throughout the school year, and trimester 
parent/teacher/student evaluation.  
 
SUPERINTENDENT 
 
The Superintendent of the District shall serve as a liaison between the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter Schools and the District.  
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
The Chief Financial Officer of the District shall also serve as the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 
 
PRINCIPALS 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School Principals will communicate directly with the 
District Superintendent and Board of Trustees as necessary.  The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 25 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

School Principals are fully responsible for the daily administration of the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School.   
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 26 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 5. 
EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS 

 
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the charter 
school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(E). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Schools will retain or employ faculty who hold appropriate 
California teaching certificates, permits, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in 
other schools would be required to hold in accordance with Education Code Section 47605(l). 
These teachers will teach the core academic classes and shall be “highly qualified” in accordance 
with the requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act, as applicable to charter schools. These 
teachers will be responsible for overseeing the students' academic progress and for monitoring 
grading and matriculation decisions.  As intended by the Legislature, flexibility in credentialing 
will be given to noncore, noncollege-preparatory teachers. 
 
All other employee qualifications shall align with the like positions of the District. 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 27 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 6. 
HEALTH AND SAFETY PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow are to ensure the health and 
safety of pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of 
the charter school furnish it with a criminal record summary as described in Section 44237. 
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall comply with all health and safety policies of 
the District including the policy establishing that the School functions as a drug, alcohol, and 
tobacco free workplace and the requirement that each employee of the school submit to a 
criminal background check and furnish a criminal record summary as required by Education 
Code section 44237 as well as a requirement to seek the criminal background check of vendors 
as required by Education Code Section 45125.1. 
 
These policies will be reviewed on an ongoing basis in the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School and District’s ongoing development efforts. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 28 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 7. 
MEANS TO ACHIEVE RACIAL/ETHNIC BALANCE 

REFLECTIVE OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT 

 
Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve racial and ethnic balance among 
its pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of 
the school district to which the charter petition is submitted. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(G). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will strive to achieve a racial and ethnic balance 
amongst its student population that is reflective of population of the territorial jurisdiction of the 
District.  First, a student recruitment strategy aimed at attracting a broad base of students and 
second, providing services for Charter School students that would serve a broad base of students.  
 
As such, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall implement a student recruitment 
strategy, which shall include, but is not necessarily limited to, the following elements or 
strategies: 
 

• An enrollment process that is scheduled and adopted to include a timeline that allows 
for a broad-based recruiting and application process. 

• The development of promotional and informational material that appeals to all of the 
various racial and ethnic groups represented in the District. 

• The appropriate development of promotional and informational materials in 
languages other than English to appeal to limited English proficient populations. 

• Outreach meetings in several areas of the District to reach prospective students and 
parents. 

• The distribution of promotional and informational materials to a broad variety of 
community groups and agencies that serve the various racial, ethnic, and interest 
groups represented in the District. 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 29 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 8. 
ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS 

 
Governing Law: Admission requirements, if applicable. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(H) 

 
The Governing Board shall have the sole authority to determine the capacity, location, and 
facilities of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. The determination of these factors shall 
be based on the School's academic program, the School’s fiscal viability, the educational needs 
of currently enrolled students, the capacity of the School site, and the level of interest shown by 
students who want to attend the School. 
 
There shall be no admission criteria, testing, or other evaluation required of any applicant. The 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall not charge an application fee nor shall it charge 
tuition. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be nonsectarian in its admission and 
enrollment policies and shall not discriminate against any student on the basis of ethnicity, 
national origin, gender, gender expression, gender identity, or disability or any other 
characteristic described in Education Code Section 220. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall admit and enroll all students who wish to 
attend the School provided that the School's capacity is not exceeded. Should more students wish 
to enroll than space allows, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will hold the public 
random drawing in stages, according to enrollment preferences as follows: 
 

1. Students residing within the former attendance boundaries of Spring Creek and Matanzas 
2. Students residing within the Rincon Valley Union School District attendance boundaries 
3. Siblings of existing students of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School 
4. Students residing outside the Rincon Valley Union School District attendance boundaries 

 
STUDENT DISMISSAL PROCESS 
 
A student may be dismissed from Rincon Valley Charter School by the Principal for any of the 
following reasons: 
 

1. Unsatisfactory academic performance at Rincon Valley Charter School.  Unsatisfactory 
academic performance is defined as failure to meet grade level minimum academic 
expectations. 

 
2. Unsatisfactory attendance at Rincon Valley Charter School.  Unsatisfactory attendance is 

defined by the School’s attendance policy and procedures. 
 

3. Providing incomplete, false or misleading information on the enrollment application. 
 
If the Rincon Valley Charter School Principal determines that any of the above conditions have 
been met, the Principal may place the student on a contract to correct the issue for the next thirty 
(30) calendar days.  If the issue has not been corrected at the end of the thirty-day period, the 
Principal may dismiss the student.  If the student has made some progress towards correcting the 
issue, the Principal may choose to extend the contract for an additional period at his or her 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 30 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

discretion.  If the student and/or the student’s parent/guardian does not agree to such a contract, 
the Principal may dismiss the student. 
 
No student may be involuntarily removed for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the 
student has been provided written notice of Rincon Valley Charter School’s intent to remove the 
student no less than five (5) schooldays before the effective date of the action.1 The written 
notice must: 
 

1) Be in the native language of the student or the student’s parent or guardian or, if the 
student is a foster child or youth or a homeless child or youth, the student’s educational 
rights holder, and 
 

2) State the right of the parent/guardian/educational rights holder to request a hearing 
adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days, at which the student 
may present testimony, evidence, and witnesses, confront and cross-examine adverse 
witnesses, and bring legal counsel or an advocate.  
 

If the student’s parent, guardian, or educational rights holder requests a hearing, the student will 
remain enrolled and will not be removed until Rincon Valley Charter School issues a final 
decision.  
 
If a student is dismissed from Rincon Valley Charter School, the Principal will notify the 
student’s district of residence. The student’s parent/guardian/educational rights holder has the 
right to appeal the decision to the District Superintendent for further consideration.  An appeal 
must be submitted in writing to the District Superintendent on or before the fifth business day 
following the date of the Notice of Dismissal, or the right to appeal shall be deemed waived.  The 
decision of the District Superintendent regarding student dismissal from Rincon Valley Charter 
School shall be final.  
 

                                                
1 For purposes of this provision, “involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, 
but does not include suspensions or expulsions for disciplinary reasons. 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 31 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 9. 
FINANCIAL AND PROGRAMMATIC AUDIT 

 
Governing Law: The manner in which an annual, independent, financial audit shall be 
conducted, which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in 
which audit exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering 
authority. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I). 
 
FISCAL AUDIT 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will utilize the external auditors of the District for an 
annual independent audit of the school’s financial affairs if available or shall contract for the 
same from a third-party provider.   
 
The audit will verify the accuracy of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School’s financial 
statements, attendance and enrollment accounting practices, and review the school's internal 
controls. The audit will be conducted in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles applicable to the school and in accordance with the K-12 audit guide as applicable to 
charter schools. To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be 
expanded to include items and processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and 
Budget Circulars. The administration will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies and report 
to the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School’s School Site Council and the District Board with 
recommendations on how to resolve them. The District Board, with input from the School Site 
Council, determines the manner by which the exceptions and deficiencies will be resolved to the 
satisfaction of the District.  
 
The audit shall be submitted to the District, the County Office of Education, the State Controller, 
and the California Department of Education in accordance with Education Code Section 
47605(m). Audit appeals or requests for summary review shall be submitted to the Education 
Audit Appeals Panel (“EAAP”) in accordance with applicable law. 
 
The independent financial audit of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is public record to 
be provided to the public upon request. 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 32 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 10. 
   PUPIL SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION 

 
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled. Education Code 
Section 47605(b)(5)(J). 

 
As a dependent charter, the Charter School follows and adheres to the RVUSD Governing Board 
adopted policy and practices that govern pupil discipline, which includes student suspension and 
expulsion. 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 33 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 11. 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 
Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by 
the State Teachers' Retirement System, the Public Employees' Retirement System, or federal 
social security. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K). 
 
The full-time non-certificated staff at the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall participate 
in the federal social security system and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).  The 
certificated staff shall participate in the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS).  The Spring 
Creek Matanzas Charter School will also make contributions for workers compensation 
insurance, unemployment insurance, and any other payroll obligations of public school 
employer.  The District shall create any reports required by STRS or PERS for Charter School 
employees.  The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall inform all applicants for positions 
within the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School of the retirement system options for staff at the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School.   
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 34 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 12. 
ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES 

 
Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school 
district that choose not to attend charter schools. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(L). 
 
No student may be required to attend the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. Students who 
opt not to attend the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School may attend other schools within 
their school district of residence or pursue an inter-district transfer in accordance with existing 
enrollment and transfer policies of their district or county of residence. 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 35 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 13. 
DESCRIPTION OF EMPLOYEE RIGHTS 

 
Governing Law: The rights of an employee of the school district upon leaving the employment of 
the school district to work in a charter school and of any rights of return to the school district 
after employment at a charter school. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(M). 
  
No public school district employee shall be required to work at the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School. All employees of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be considered 
employees of the District and shall retain the right to return and gain seniority through the 
District, pursuant to any applicable collective bargaining agreements or District policy. 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 36 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 14. 
DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the 
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. Education Code Section 
47605(b)(5)(N). 
 
In the event that the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School Site Council and the District Board 
have disputes regarding the terms of this charter both parties agree to follow the process outlined 
below. 
 
The principal at the direction of the School Site Council and the Superintendent, or designee at 
the direction of the Board, agree to first frame the issue in written format. 
  
The Principal and Superintendent, or designees, shall informally meet and confer in a timely 
fashion to attempt to resolve the dispute.  In the event that this informal meeting fails to resolve 
the dispute, both parties shall identify two members from their respective council/board to meet 
to resolve the dispute.  If this joint meeting fails to resolve the dispute, the Superintendent and 
the Principal shall meet to jointly identify a neutral, third party mediator.  The format of the 
mediation session shall be developed jointly by the Superintendent and the Principal.  The cost of 
mediation shall be split evenly between the District and the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 37 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

ELEMENT 15. 
CLOSURE PROCEDURES 

 
Governing Law: The procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The procedures shall 
ensure a final audit of the charter school to determine the disposition of all assets and liabilities 
of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the maintenance 
and transfer of pupil records. Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(O). 
 
Closure of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will be documented by official action of 
the Board of Directors. The action will identify the reason for closure. The official action will 
also identify an entity and person or persons responsible for closure-related activities. 
 
The Board of Directors will promptly notify parents and students of the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School, the District, the Sonoma County Office of Education, the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School’s SELPA, the retirement systems in which the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 
School’s employees participate (e.g., Public Employees’ Retirement System, State Teachers’ 
Retirement System, and federal social security), and the California Department of Education of 
the closure as well as the effective date of the closure. This notice will also include the name(s) 
of and contact information for the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries may be made 
regarding the closure; the pupils’ school districts of residence; and the manner in which 
parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil records, including specific information on 
completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements. 
 
The Board will ensure that the notification to the parents and students of the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School of the closure provides information to assist parents and students in 
locating suitable alternative programs. This notice will be provided promptly following the 
Board's decision to close the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 
 
The Board will also develop a list of pupils in each grade level and the classes they have 
completed, together with information on the pupils’ districts of residence, which they will 
provide to the entity responsible for closure-related activities.  
 
As applicable, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will provide parents, students and the 
District with copies of all appropriate student records and will otherwise assist students in 
transferring to their next school. All transfers of student records will be made in compliance with 
the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”) 20 U.S.C. § 1232g. The Spring 
Creek Matanzas Charter School will ask the District to store original records of Charter School 
students. All records of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall be transferred to the 
District upon Charter School closure.  If the District will not or cannot store the records, the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall work with the County Office of Education to 
determine a suitable alternative location for storage. 
 
All state assessment results, special education records, and personnel records will be transferred 
to and maintained by the entity responsible for closure-related activities in accordance with 
applicable law. 
 
As soon as reasonably practical, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will prepare final 
financial records. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will also have an independent 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 38 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

audit completed within six months after closure. The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will 
pay for the final audit. The audit will be prepared by a qualified Certified Public Accountant 
selected by the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School and will be provided to the District 
promptly upon its completion. The final audit will include an accounting of all financial assets, 
including cash and accounts receivable and an inventory of property, equipment, and other items 
of material value, an accounting of the liabilities, including accounts payable and any reduction 
in apportionments as a result of audit findings or other investigations, loans, and unpaid staff 
compensation, and an assessment of the disposition of any restricted funds received by or due to 
the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will complete and file any annual reports required 
pursuant to Education Code section 47604.33. 
 
On closure of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, all assets of the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School, including but not limited to all leaseholds, personal property, 
intellectual property and all ADA apportionments and other revenues generated by students 
attending the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School, shall revert to the District. except that the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall return of any grant funds and restricted categorical 
funds to their source in accordance with the terms of the grant or state and federal law, as 
appropriate, which may include submission of final expenditure reports for entitlement grants 
and the filing of any required Final Expenditure Reports and Final Performance Reports, as well 
as the return of any donated materials and property in accordance with any conditions established 
when the donation of such materials or property was accepted.   
 
On closure, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall remain solely responsible for all 
liabilities arising from the operation of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School.  
 
As the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is operated as a non-profit public benefit 
corporation, should the corporation dissolve with the closure of the Spring Creek Matanzas 
Charter School, the Board will follow the procedures set forth in the California Corporations 
Code for the dissolution of a non-profit public benefit corporation and file all necessary filings 
with the appropriate state and federal agencies. 
 
As specified by the Budget in the Appendix, the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School will 
utilize the reserve fund to undertake any expenses associated with the closure procedures 
identified above. 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 39 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

 MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 
RENEWAL TERM 
 
The term of this charter shall begin on July 1, 2018 and expire June 30, 2023.  
 
AMENDMENTS 
 
Any amendments to this charter shall be made by the mutual agreement of the Spring Creek 
Matanzas Charter School Site Council and the District.  Material revisions and amendments shall 
be made pursuant to the standards, criteria, and timelines in Education Code Sections 47605 and 
47607. 
 
RENEWAL 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School may submit its charter for renewal to the District any 
time during the final year of its five-year term. 
 
Renewals shall be governed by the standards and criteria in Education Code Sections 47605 and 
47607. Any renewal shall be for a five (5) year term. 
 
POTENTIAL CIVIL LIABILITY EFFECTS 
 
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the school and upon the school 
district. Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall work diligently to assist the District in meeting 
any and all oversight obligations under the law, including monthly meetings, reporting, or other 
District-requested protocol to minimize any risk of liability to the District for the operation of the 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School.   
 
The District will institute appropriate risk management practices and shall maintain appropriate 
insurance policies for the operational of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School. 
 
FACILITIES 
 
Governing Law: The facilities to be utilized by the school. The description of the facilities to be 
used by the charter school shall specify where the school intends to locate. Education Code 
Section 47605(g). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall utilize District facilities during the term of the 
charter. The Spring Creek campus (grades K-2) is located at 4675 Mayette Ave, Santa Rosa, CA 
95409.  The Matanzas campus (grades 3-6) is located at 1687 Yulupa Ave., Santa Rosa, CA 
95409. 
 
 
 



   

SPRING CREEK MATANZAS CHARTER PETITION PAGE 40 OF 40 
CHARTER RENEWAL: 2018 – 2023   

BUDGET 
 
Governing Law: The petitioner or petitioners shall also be required to provide financial 
statements that include a proposed first year operational budget, including startup costs, and 
cash flow and financial projections for the first three years of operation. Education Code Section 
47605(g). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School’s operational budget, cash flow and financial 
projections are attached as an Appendix. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 
Governing Law: The manner in which administrative services of the school are to be provided. 
Education Code Section 47605(g). 
 
The Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School shall use all centralized services of the District 
unless otherwise approved by the District Board. 
 



District:  Rincon Valley Fund 03  Multi-Year ProjectionReporting Period: 2017/18  CHARTER BUDGET

FUND: 03
 Base Year  Budget Year  Projection  Projection 

Object Codes  2016/17  2017/18  2018/19  2019/20 

Revenue 
Description: 8XXX
LCFF 8010-8099 4,459,514        4,560,527           4,550,393        4,532,444        
Federal Revenues 8100-8299
State Revenues 8300-8599 359,528           204,711              277,570           113,022           
Local Revenues 8600-8799 10,667             4,500 4,500               4,500               
Total Revenue 4,829,709      4,769,738         4,832,463        4,649,966      

Expenditures
Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,943,472        1,966,804           1,976,343        2,005,989        
Classified Salaries 2000-2999 468,403           479,605              481,931           489,160           
Employee Benefits

STRS 3100-3102 247,606           281,808              321,749           363,686           
STRS on Behalf 3101 - - - - 
PERS 3200-3202 61,028             69,843 85,302             97,832             
Health & Welfare 3400-3499 324,853           324,468              340,691           357,726           
Other Statutory Benefits 3300-3399,3501-3699 124,943           113,667              114,219           115,932           
Other Employee & Retiree Benefits 3700-3799;3900-3998 - - - - 

Books and Supplies 4000-4999 144,022           88,190 89,954             91,753             
Services, Other Operating Expenses 5000-5999 12,260             260,175              12,651             12,651             
Capital Outlay 6000-6999 - - - - 
Other Outgo 7100-7499 - 9,901 - - 
Total Expenditures 3,326,585      3,594,462         3,422,839        3,534,728      

Excess (Deficiency) 1,503,123      1,175,276         1,409,624        1,115,238      

Transfers In 8910-8929 - - - - 
Transfers Out (enter as negative) 7610-7629 (1,435,799)       (1,152,701)          (1,409,624)       (1,115,238)       
Other Sources 8930-8979 - - - - 
Other Uses (enter as negative) 7630-7699 - - - - 
Total Transfers/Other Uses (1,435,799)     (1,152,701)        (1,409,624)       (1,115,238)     

Net Increase (Decrease) 67,324           22,575              - -
Fund Balance
Beginning Balance 210,101           277,425              300,000           300,000           
Audit Adjustment(s)
Net Ending Balance 277,425         300,000            300,000           300,000         

Spring Creek-Matanazas Charter



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
 

Meeting Date: April 10, 2018 

Agenda Item: Action Item 15.4 

Subject: Safe Schools Plans 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Each school, through their Site Councils, annually review their Safe Schools plan 
and revise the document as needed.  Once approved at the site level, plans are 
brought to the Board for your approval.   
 

Highlights: It’s important to distinguish between a safe school plan and an emergency 
response plan.  Safe school plans are limited in scope to ensure schools are 
thoughtful about certain structures that support student safety.  Emergency 
response plans, on the other hand, are comprehensive documents that outline the 
various practices, procedures, and protocols for handing a myriad of emergencies 
that could occur on any given school site.  Safe school plans may reference an 
emergency response plan, but is not one. 

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: The Safe School Plans presented meet the requirements of California Education 
Code Sections 32281, 32282 (1), 32284, and 32288. 

Next Steps: These plans will be reviewed by each school’s Site Council next and amended as 
necessary. 

 
Attachments:  Safe School Plan for the following schools: 
 Austin Creek, Madrone, Sequoia/RVCS-Sequoia, Spring 

Creek/Matanzas/RVCS-Matanzas, Village, and Whited 
 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 

























 
 
 
 
 

MADRONE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN  
2018-2019 

 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

1. DISTRICT AND SCHOOL MISSION STATEMENTS, DATA 
SOURCES 

 
2. COMPONENT #1 THE SCHOOL CLIMATE – PEOPLE AND 

PROGRAMS 
 

3. COMPONENT #2 SAFE AND ORDERLY ENVIRONMENT 
 

4. RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
COMMUNICATIONS PLAN 
 

5. SCHOOL BOARD ADOPTED PROCEDURES AND POLICIES 
COMPLYING WITH CALIFORNIA LEGISLATURE SB187 (Ed 
code sections 35294, Statutes of 1998) 
 



 
 DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT 

 
The Rincon Valley Union School District pursues excellence in education within a 

challenging curriculum by providing an academic foundation, which emphasizes the mastery 
of basic skills and by promoting the development of positive character traits, which enable 

students to make responsible decisions. 
 
 
 

MADRONE VISION STATEMENT 
 

Madrone School dedicates itself to providing a physically and emotionally safe learning 
environment supported by trust, respect, and humor to ensure clear communication, 

exploration, and academic excellence for its community of learners. 
 
 
DATA SOURCES 
   Staff Meetings 
   School Site Council Meetings 
   ELAC Meetings 
   Parent Survey 
   Student Survey 
   PTA Meetings 
   District Policies 
    
CONCLUSIONS FROM DATA 

The school climate and learning environment are positive and there 
appears to be an improvement in the positive culture being promoted 
at the school.  Our school student survey was just recently completed 
and the results show a large majority of the students feel safe at 
school and enjoy coming to school at Madrone.  Due to the recent 
school violence in the media some students shared a concern they 
have about school safety.  We have continued our focus this year on 
our Madrone Scholars Attributes and the 3 C’s….Connect, Commit, 
Care.    

 
 
COMMNICATION PLAN 

 Review at SSC, PTA, AND Faculty Meetings 
 

 Plan Available in School Office and on the RVUSD Website 
 
EVALUATION 
 The comprehensive school safety plan shall be evaluated and 

amended as needed, by the school safety planning committee no less 
than once a year.   

 
 



 
 
 
COMPONENT #1 The School Climate – People and Programs 
 
 
GOAL #1 Madrone will utilize “Toolbox” a researched based social and 

emotional learning curriculum by Dovetail Learning.   This program 
will serve as an instructional mechanism that provides the necessary 
tools for students to succeed socially and academically.  The 
curriculum teaches twelve personal and social tools through a 
common language: self –management, relationship skill, and 
responsible decision making are a few of the focused skills.   

 
All TK-6 students will receive instruction based on the Toolbox 
Curriculum.  In addition, students will be formally and informally 
recognized for positive behavioral choices and overall contributions 
to the school. 
 
Teachers in grades 4th-6th will be trained in Restorative Practices, 
learning how to implement circles in the classroom.  Teachers will 
implement circles in the classroom to build on classroom culture. 
Other grade levels have the opportunity to have circles done in the 
classroom as well.  We will also implement Kimochis in grade levels 
where teachers feel it is appropriate.   
 
The teachers will recognize students at morning assemblies who are 
displaying our Scholar Attributes.  These attributes will be discussed 
ahead of time at assemblies and students will be encouraged to 
display these in the classroom.   
 

 
OBJECTIVE 
 By school staff observation, students will be familiar with and 

practice conflict resolution and anger management strategies as 
outlined in the adopted curriculum. 

 
 Students will have a desire to show good work habits and be a 

Madrone Scholar and this will create a positive school environment.  
 
RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 Role-playing scenarios 
 Discussions using situational prompts 
 School Counselor teaching lessons in the classroom  
 Communication with parents 
 School-wide focus and discussion  
 Student incentive program - Student Store 
 Buddy classes 
 First Four Days Team Building 
 Friendship groups with counselor 
 Activities in the classroom promoting Toolbox 



 
RESOURCES  

 Toolbox posters in classroom 
 Toolbox curriculum 
 Utilize school counselor time 
 Planning time for teachers 
 Restorative Practices training 
 Kimochis Curriculum 

  
 
 
 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE  

 School Counselor 
 School Psychologist 
 Noon Duty Supervisors 
 Classroom Teachers 
 Principal 

 
TIMELINE 2017 - 2018 School Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
GOAL #2 Implement new programs and maintain existing programs intended to 

promote a caring, supportive and connected school climate for the 
Madrone students and community. 

 
OBJECTIVE 
 To implement programs and activities to promote a positive, caring, 

supportive, and connected school community.  
 
RELATED ACTIVITIES 

 School-wide Implementation of Toolbox Curriculum 
 Monday Morning Assemblies 
 Lunchtime Computer Lab Usage 
 Lunchtime Library Activities 
 Lunchtime structured activities 
 After School Enrichment Classes and Clubs 
 Tutoring Sessions 
 Music Program 
 Drama Productions  
 After School Basketball and Volleyball Leagues 
 Madrone Mentors Program 
 Fine Arts Day 
 Math Day/Night 



 
 Parent / Student Conferences 
 Student Leadership 
 Cross Age Buddies 
 6th Grade Community Service 
 Before and After School Day Care Program 
 School Counseling & Support Groups 
 Family Night Events (STEAM Fair, Walkathon, Open House, 
Movie Nights, Pasta Feed) 
 School Recycling Program 
 6th Grade Camp 
 Peer Mediators 
 

RESOURCES 
 School and District Staff 
 Parent and Community Volunteers 
 PTA 

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 

 Principal 
 Teachers 
 Classified Personnel 
 Counselor 
 Students 
 Parents 

 
TIMELINE  2017 - 2018 School Year 
 
 
 
 
 
COMPONENT #2 Safe and Orderly Environment 
 
GOAL #1 Maintain and improve a positive physical environment, which 

promotes school pride, and ensures social/emotional and academic 
success. 

 
OBJECTIVE 
 The Student Council, PTA, and School Site Council will continue to 

work with the Madrone principal, staff and faculty to plan activities 
that support a positive and safe school environment.  

 
 Noon Duty personnel will focus on keeping a safe playground by 

promoting students to be involved in games, teaching them the rules 
to play appropriately on a school playground.     

 
 Student Leadership, faculty, and staff will help develop school-wide 

programs and activities that focus on creating a positive school 
climate.  Monthly Toolbox Themes are highlighted and discussed 
school-wide as well as in classrooms. 



 
 

Faculty, students, and staff will monitor the incidents of misbehavior 
at school and develop strategies for reducing behavioral incidents. 
 
Faculty and principal, with district office support, will continue with 
the use of the Foundations materials from the Safe and Civil Schools 
Series to support school-wide behavior management strategies. 

 
 The Student Leadership will continue to plan school spirit days and 

school-wide events to improve the school and community 
environment. 

 
RELATED ACTIVITIES 
 

       Continued Implementation of the Playworks 
       Yearly review / modification of school emergency plan 
       Focus on monthly school-wide focus areas in the  

classrooms and throughout the school 
       Office bulletin boards will reflect monthly toolbox tool   
       School rules and procedures clearly outlined, understood, 

communicated, applied and enforced 
       Student Leadership “Spirit Days” 
       6th grade community service 
       Ongoing inspection of school grounds to ensure facilities 

are safe 
       School Security Cameras  
       School weekly Newsletter 
       Monthly School Calendar 
       Monthly school-wide emergency drills  

(Fire, Lockdown, Earthquake) 
       Electronic gates and electronic keys for new building  

 
 
 
 
 

RESOURCES 
       Student Leadership 
       Faculty, Staff & Principal 
       PTA & Parent Volunteers 
      School Site Council 
      District Maintenance Department 
      School Safety Committee 

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 
 

      Principal 
      Student Council 
      PTA Volunteers 
      Faculty & Staff 



 
      School District Office Staff 
      School Site Council 

 
TIMELINE  2017-2018 School Year 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Component #3     Communication Plan 
 
GOAL #1 Maintain a clear and concise framework for communicating with the 

school and the community.  
 
OBJECTIVE  The objective is to improve internal and external communications 

systems with the specific goal with the specific goal of creating open, 
two-way communication between the Board of Education, 
administration, staff, students, parents, and the Rincon Valley Union 
School District Communities.   

 
RELATED ACTIVITES 

      Refer to RVUSD communication plan  
 
 
RESOURCES 

      Refer to RVUSD communication plan 
 
 

PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 
      Refer to RVUSD Communication Plan 

 
TIMELINE 2017-2018 School Year 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SSC Approved Date:   
 
 
Principal: ______________________________________________ 
 
Vice Chair: _________________________________________________ 
 



 
Identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high 
level of school safety and address the school procedures for complying with existing laws 
related to school safety, to include: 
 
A. Child abuse reporting procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9/5141.4 
 
B. Disaster procedures, routine and emergency 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 3514 
b. RVUSD Board Policy 3514.1 
c. RVUSD Board Policy 3515 
d. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.2 
e. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.5 
f. RVUSD Board Policy 3516 
g. RVUSD Board Policy 3520 

 
C. Suspension and expulsion policies 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144.1 
 
D. Procedures to notify teacher of dangerous pupils 
 
E. Sexual harassment policy 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5145.7, 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 
 

F. Provisions of any school wide dress code prohibiting “gang-related apparel” 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 – Refer to Section 6 “Dress” 
 
G. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, students, and school employees to and 

from school 
 

a. Fire Evacuation Maps 
(See attached copy of Emergency Site Map) 

 
H.   A safe and orderly environment conducive of learning 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 – School rules 
(See attached copy of Common Area Procedures and Leveled Behavior Chart) 

 
I. School discipline rules and procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144 – School rules 
 

 



SPRING CREEK MATANZAS 

CHARTER SCHOOL 

& RVCS MATANZAS 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN 

2018-2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. District and School Mission Statement, Safe Schools Planning Committee, data sources

2. Component #1 The School Climate – People and Programs

3. Component #2 Safe and Orderly Environment



Page 1 

4. School Board adopted procedures and policies complying with Calif. Legislature sb187 (Ed code 

sections 35294, Statutes of 1998) 

 

 

Discussed and input given at School Site Council Meeting held on January 26, 2018. 

 

Discussed and approved/not approved at School Site Council Meeting held on March 16, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. District and School Mission Statement, Safe Schools  

Planning Committee, Data Sources 

 

DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT 

 
The Rincon Valley Union School 

District pursues excellence in 
education through a differentiated 

curriculum focusing on rigor, 
relevance, and relationships. The 



Page 2 

District provides a solid foundation for every student through the development of critical thinking, communication, 
collaboration, and creativity. 

 

 

DISTRICT VISION STATEMENT 

 
Rincon Valley Union School 

District provides all students an 
exemplary 

academic education and the 
foundation to become productive citizens of their community. 

 
 
Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School’s Purpose  
The purpose of the Spring Creek Matanzas Charter School is to provide an educational program for students who are interested and committed to 
participating in a rigorous core academic program, based upon the California state content standards and local key standards, with an educational 
experience that will include science, technology, fine arts and support the intellectual, physical, social, and emotional development of a student of 
the 21st century. 

 
 
RVCS Matanzas Mission Statement 
The purpose of Rincon Valley Charter School (RVCS) is to provide an excellent and challenging technology-empowered academic program in a 
small school setting. We provide a student-centered, project-based learning environment in which technology, fine arts, inquiry, and service learning 
are the foundational components. We differentiate our instruction to meet the academic needs of all students. We strive to develop a 21st century 
learner by building relationships, using critical thinking, and engaging curriculum to meet academic standards. To ensure the success of our purpose, 
we will measure and evaluate our efforts using state, district, and school standards. We are here to inspire students to be self-motivated, competent, 
lifelong learners, and exemplary citizens with the help and guidance of the entire school community. 

 
SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL (SPRING CREEK MATANZAS)/EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (RVCS) 

Simona Hoyos Parent 
Mercy Chaudron Parent 



Page 3 

Tess Kofoid Parent 
Suzanne Wheeler Parent 
Carolyn Torre Teacher 
Tawni Vrabel Teacher 
Jennie Harriman Teacher  
Julie Galante Classified 
Joan Boyce Principal – Spring Creek Campus 
Kate Westrich Principal – Matanzas Campus 
Sandra Lemus RVCS Parent Michael Futch

Teacher-RVCS  
Erin Conrad Teacher-RVCS 
Hannah Bates Vice Principal-RVCS  
Amy Wiess Vice Principal-RVCS 
 

DATA SOURCES 
Staff and Parent Organization Meetings 
Spring Creek Matanzas 2017-2018 School Accountability Report Card 
Spring Creek Matanzas 2017-2018 Single Plan for Student Achievement 
Matanzas Student Survey – Spring 2016 
Behavioral Data 
Attendance Rates 

 
CONCLUSIONS FROM DATA 

In analyzing our data sources, we have determined that there has been a significant decrease in office referrals and suspensions at all 
campuses with the implementation of Restorative Practices, the BEST program, and Kimochis. We have also determined from the data that 
when the counselor is on campus, there are even fewer occurrences of office referrals and suspensions. In reviewing our attendance and 
truancy data, we have found that with the office clerks and counselors following up with families regarding reasons for absences and 
offering support to help get students to school every day and on time, we have seen tardies and truancies decrease in the last two years. 
Student survey data informs us that students feel safe at school and most feel that they have a trusted adult on campus that they can seek 
help from. Data from the student survey also showed that the majority of students reported that they would like to be treated with more 
respect by fellow students. 

 
COMMUNICATION PLAN 
 



Page 4 

⇒ Review at SSC and PTA 
 

⇒ School Newsletters 
 

⇒ Plan available in school office 
 
EVALUATION: The comprehensive school safety plan shall be evaluated and amended as needed, by the school safety planning committee no 

less than once a year. 
 
  



Page 5 

2. COMPONENT #1: The School Climate – People & Programs 

 
GOAL: Our school is a place where students and staff build strong relationships, and demonstrate respect for each other and 

our surroundings.  
 
OBJECTIVE #1: Students will increase their skills in communication, learning and implementing conflict resolution strategies based on 

Restorative Practices/Circles model.  
 
OBJECTIVE #2: Students will increase their use of pro-social skills and reduce conflict on the playground.  
 
ACTION STEP #1 The Toolbox Project and Kimochis will continue to be used weekly in all grade levels at the Spring Creek campus. At the 

Matanzas and RVCS campuses, we are in full implementation of Restorative Practices to resolve conflict and create 
community. 

  
ACTION STEP #2     Teachers, administrators, and staff will model appropriate behavior. 

Maintain a safe and positive school environment for staff, students, and parents. 
 

ACTION STEP #3 At Matanzas, the Peer Mediation Program is in place; sixth grade students will model social responsibility and facilitate 
conflict resolution during lunch recess with training and support from the school counselor. 8th grade service-learning interns 
will also help facilitate and actively support elementary recess games. 

 
ACTION STEP #4 Special school activities will promote social responsibility and recognition of respectful behaviors, including character trait of 

the month, GRIT, scholars of the month/week, Diligent Dolphins, Cheetah Chirps, among others. 
 
ACTION STEP #5 Increase involvement and inclusion of all EL students and families as well as special education students whose classes are on 

our campuses. For example, Latino family literacy nights, multi-cultural festival, outreach via bi-lingual family liaison, and 
expanded English Learner Advisory Community outreach. 

 
ACTION STEP #6 Involvement of school counselor and other adults on campus via multi-tiered supports, restorative circles, and attendance 

awareness, to target students for support services, and ensuring that every student feels comfortable going to an adult on 
campus when they need help. 

 
ACTION STEP #7 Continued implementation of a multi-tiered system of support at all sites, consisting of regular meetings with principal, 

counselor, school psychologist, student support coordinator and other experts as needed. The objective of these meetings is to 



Page 6 

provide individualized support for students and progress monitor them over time to ensure that these supports and 
accommodations are successful. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 ACTIVITIES: 
 

Spring Creek Campus Matanzas Campus 
● Garden Program 
● Canned Food Drive 
● Parent / Student Conferences 
● Student Recognition 
●  “Cheetah Chirps” – Principal recognition at 

Wednesday assemblies 
● Bucket Filling 
● Counseling Program 
● Toolbox Training for staff and parents 
● ELAC meetings biweekly 
● Latino Family Literacy Project and potluck 

events for EL families 
● Wednesday School Spirit Day 
● Walk and Roll to School 
● Lunch Bunch: lunch with the principal 
● Community Building: Parent Nights, Color 

Run, Valentine Social 

● Stewardship: School Recycling, Peer Mediator 
Program, Spare Change Drive for Leukemia 
and Lymphoma Society, 6th Grade Community 
Service, flag stewards 
 

● Positive Recognition of Student Leadership: 
Weekly Student Recognition, Class Awards, 
Diligent Dolphins recognized, character trait of 
the month implemented (including student 
recognition), student council 

 

● Community Building: Friday School Spirit 
Days, Thanksgiving Feast, Multicultural Night, 
Spring Creek/Matanzas Buddies, restorative 
circles and discussions, bi-monthly assemblies, 
6th grade camp, Dolphin DJ, Fine Arts Day, 
field trips, Math Day/Night, interactive 
assemblies, color run, Family Science Night, 
Literacy Night 



Page 7 

RVCS Matanzas Campus 
● Wacky Wednesdays-Activities taught by 

teachers and parents, student choice, 
opportunity to work with teachers on 
specific assignments 

● GRIT Awards and Assemblies-awards for 
growth, resilience, integrity, tenacity, 
student performances, student presentations, 
guest speakers, school wide information 

● Science Challenge 
● Counseling Program 
● Student Led Conferences 
● Portfolio Creation and Presentation 
● Team building field trips, including Four 

Winds and Wikiup 
● Friday Fun Days 
● Game Nights/Dances 
● Haiku-grades, work submission, parent 

communication 

 

● Explicit Instruction: Teach-To’s, character 
education, restorative circles and discussions, 
and district-wide sports 
 

● Staff implementation: Restorative Practices 
program, Time to Teach, HQI model of 
support and instruction 

 

● School-to-Home Communication: Parent / 
Student Conferences, Principal Chats, 
newsletters, emails 

 

● Counseling Program: one-on-one support, 
small group support, conflict resolution skills, 
whole class discussion, friendship groups 
 

 
 
 
 
 
RESOURCES NEEDED 

 
District supported Time to Teach and Restorative Practices Implementation 
District supported parent education events 

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
 

● School Counselor 
● All Staff Members 
● Parents  



Page 8 

● Students 
● Community Members 
 

TIMELINE                 2016-2017 SCHOOL YEAR AND BEYOND 
 
3. COMPONENT #2 Safe and Orderly Environment  

 
GOAL: #1 Continue to create and maintain a positive physical environment, which promotes school pride, social, and academic 

success.  
 
OBJECTIVE: Maintain the physical appearance of the school and restrooms. 
 
ACTION STEP #1 Pick up trash daily/weekly. Recycling program. 

 
ACTION STEP #2 Students and staff maintain garden areas.  
 
ACTION STEP #3 Staff/student/parents will report areas of need to the principal.  
 
ACTION STEP #4 Yearly review / modification of crisis response plan 
 
ACTION STEP #5 Wednesday Assembly and Campus Clean-up  
 
ACTION STEP #6 Bulletin boards in cafeteria and office promoting school pride and Character Education themes 
 

ACTION STEP #7 School Rules and emergency drills clearly outlined, understood and applied 
 
ACTION STEP #8 All school employees are required and have complied with mandated reporter training to ensure that any suspected abuse of a 
child is reported to the appropriate authorities.  
 
GOAL #2: Students are engaged in well-supervised and self-disciplined play activities on a safe campus.  
 
OBJECTIVE: Increase awareness and knowledge of playground rules/safety and equipment use.  
 



Page 9 

ACTION STEP #1 Develop a better understanding of the causes and occurrences that directly result in playground 
accidents. 
 

ACTION STEP #2 Meet and discuss with staff and students the topic of playground safety. 
 

ACTION STEP #3 Increase structured positive playground activities via Playground Coordinator  
 
ACTION STEP #4 Train adults and students on playground safety.  Create a noon supervisor handbook and training module.  Run learning 

stations for students to clearly understand expectations. 
 
ACTION STEP #5 Train students during first 20 days of instruction regarding classroom, school, playground procedures. 
 
ACTION STEP #6 Implement expectation stations 3 times a year with entire school community. 
 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 

District maintains surveillance system 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 

● All Staff Members 
● Parents 
● Students 
 

TIMELINE 2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR AND BEYOND 
 
Spring Creek Campus Activities Matanzas Campus Activities 

● Yearly review / modification of 
school disaster plan. 

● BEST Training and continued team 
implementation 

● School rules and procedures clearly 
outlined, understood, and applied. 

● Yearly review / modification of school disaster 
plan. 

● School-wide playground training events 

● School rules and procedures clearly outlined, 
understood, and applied. 

● Involve Student Council in positive playground 
safety solutions (Public Service Announcements 



Page 10 

● New playground structure procedures 
and guidelines reviewed and 
monitored regularly. 

● Regular communication with families 
via newsletter and email regarding 
health and safety procedures and 
policies. 

 

and student-created survey about current safety 
reality) 

● Clearly defined boundaries of play and snack areas 
and in hallways.  

● Regular communication with families via 
newsletter and email regarding health and safety 
procedures and policies. 

RVCS Matanzas Campus Activities 

● School announcements via Leadership, including school safety, campus clean up and school rules 
reminders 

● School rules rubric with outlined rules, explanation, and consistent staff-wide application 
● Yearly review/modification of school disaster plan 

 
 



Page 11 

4. School Board adopted procedures and policies complying with Calif. Legislature 

sb187 (Ed code sections 35294, Statutes of 1998) 

 
Identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a high level of school safety and address the 
school procedures for complying with existing laws related to school safety, to include: 
 
A. Child abuse reporting procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9/5141.4 
 
B. Disaster procedures, routine and emergency 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 3514 
b. RVUSD Board Policy 3514.1 
c. RVUSD Board Policy 3515 
d. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.2 
e. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.5 
f. RVUSD Board Policy 3516 
g. RVUSD Board Policy 3520 

 
C. Suspension and expulsion policies 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144.1 
 
D. Procedures to notify teacher of dangerous pupils 
E. Sexual harassment/bullying policy/hate speech or crime 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5145.7 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1/5131.2 
 

F. Provisions of any school wide dress code prohibiting “gang-related apparel” 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 – Refer to Section 6 “Dress” 
 
G. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, students, and school employees to and from school and Crisis Response Plan  
 



Page 12 

a. See School Disaster Plan and Emergency Resources Plan 
 
H.   A safe and orderly environment conducive of learning 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131  
 
I. School discipline rules and procedures; hate speech/crime  
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144  
b. School Discipline Plan (attached) 

 
 
1/22/18, KW, JB, HB 
  



Page 13 

     

General Misbehaviors  Verbal Behavior  Nonverbal & Physical Behavior 
Playground/Yard Behaviors 

Consequences 

• Unprepared for learning 
• Classroom disruptions, for 

example: 
• Blurting out 
• Inappropriate noises or 

gestures 
• Wandering around 

classroom 
• Talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate comments 
• Throwing objects 

• Disrespect of property 
• Gum-chewing 
• Not following school rules 

• Passing notes 
• Gossiping 
• Starting or spreading rumors 
• Teasing/taunting about 

possessions, clothes, looks, etc. 
• False reporting (in regard to 

other’s behaviors) 
• Name-calling 
• Inappropriate language 
• Mocking 

• Making threatening or insulting 
gestures 

• Dirty looks 
• Ignoring or excluding others 
• Hiding items from others 
• In others’ space purposefully  
• Blocking other’s path 
• Inappropriate use of technology 
• Disrupting the learning environment 
• Accessing inappropriate websites 

• Overly aggressive game play 
• Ignoring an adult’s instructions 
• Purposefully interfering with others’ 

games 
• Taking another’s equipment 
• Not “taking a knee” when the bell 

rings 
• Barging in on another’s game 
• Not taking turns 
• Not following game rules 
• Piggy-back rides 
• Wrestling 
• Taking (or attempting) another’s 

possessions (hat, jacket, food) 
• Littering/throwing food 
• Eating on the playground 
• Randomly kicking a ball across the 

playground 

Teacher/Student/Parent Level* 
1. Warnings 
2. Refocus/In-class time out 
3. Out-of-class time out 
4. Loss of yard privileges/community service 
5. Parent contact 
6. In-school detention 
7. After-school detention 
 

*Teacher will contact parent regarding Level 1 
behaviors via email or phone call 
 

• Continued misbehavior, same day 
• Behavior that disrupts entire 

group 
• Leaving the classroom without 

permission 
• Intentionally throwing objects on 

the roof, over fence, etc. 
• Inappropriate language or tone 

with an adult or peer 
• Cheating/lying/plagiarism 
• Rough play - chasing, pushing, 

shoving, spitting 
• Violating another’s privacy (desk, 

backpack, physical privacy, etc.) 
• Flagrant outburst or disrespect 
• Disrespecting a Guest Teacher 
• Public display of affection 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Profanity 
• Ongoing harassment through 

notes, email, phone, or other 
forms of communication 

• Insults based on size, gender, 
race, ability, religion, athletic 
ability, intelligence, ethnicity 

• Fight words 
• Intimidation through continued 

gossiping, teasing, or destructive 
“humor” (using “I was just 
kidding” or “It was just a joke” as 
an excuse)  

• Threats of aggression against 
property or possessions 

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Defacing property 
• Playing tricks to embarrass others 
• Stealing 
• Threatening physical harm 
• Threatening to start a fight 
• Purposeful scratching, headlocks, 

biting, tripping, etc. 
• Other physical altercations 
• Cyberbullying 
• Using technology to bully other 

students 
• Engaging in any technological 

behavior on or off campus that results 
in a disruption of the school learning 
environment  

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Purposefully tripping, kicking, 
pushing, and so on 

• Purposefully throwing a ball at 
another’s face or body 

• Throwing another to the ground 
• Physically restraining another 

student 
• Stomping bags, milk cartons, 

“poppers” to create a loud noise or 
mess 

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

Teacher/Site Administrative Level 
1. Office referral** (Teacher) 
2. Student conference 
3. Office detention 
4. Phone call home 
5. Loss of yard privileges (one or more 

days)/community service 
6. Alternate classroom placement for the 

period/day 
7. Parent meeting with student and 

administrator 
8. Behavioral Intervention Plan 
9. Parents shadow student in class 
**Three or more referrals in a trimester may 
result in loss of participation in school events, 
including sports teams, for the rest of that 
trimester 



Page 14 

• Fighting (mutual)  
• Leaving school grounds without 

being signed out by a parent 
• Drugs/weapons 
• “Pantsing” 
• Continued insubordination 
• Throwing dangerous objects 
• False reporting (i.e., fire alarm) 
• Any illegal activity  
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Prolonged harassment 
• Continued threats of aggression 

or physical violence 
• Encouraging total group 

exclusion of someone by 
threatening others if they don’t 
comply 

• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Arson/destroying property 
• Plan/participate in public 

humiliation 
• Graffiti with a bias against 

someone 
• Making repeated graphic threats 
• Practicing extortion 
• Threatening to keep someone 

silent 
• Physical cruelty/assault 
• Repeated acts of violence 
• Assault with a weapon 
• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• See other Level 3 behaviors 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 

Site/District 
Administrative Level 

1. In-school suspension 
2. Out-of-school suspension 
3. Law enforcement involvement 
4. Expulsion 

 p 
 

General Misbehaviors  Verbal Bully Behavior  Nonverbal & Physical Bully 
Behavior 

Technology Behaviors 
Consequences 

• Unprepared for class (no 
supplies) 

• Classroom disruptions, for 
example: 

• Blurts out/talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate noises or 

gestures 
• Wandering around 

classroom 
• Talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate comments 
• Throwing objects 

• Disrespect of property 
• Not following school rules 

• Passing notes 
• Gossiping 
• Starting or spreading rumors 
• Teasing about possessions, clothes, 

looks, etc. 
• False reporting (in regard to other’s 

behaviors) 
• Name calling 
• Inappropriate language 

• Making threatening or insulting 
gestures 

• Dirty looks 
• Ignoring or excluding others 
• Hiding items from others 
• Pushing/shoving/poking/kickin

g 
• In others’ space 
• Blocking others’ path 

• Use of personal electronics during 
school hours 

• Using another student’s laptop 
• Playing games, using email or chat 

applications 
• Storage of non-school related files 

on laptop or server 
• Turning off Airport or using 

unauthorized internet connections 
• Using laptop to disrupt the 

learning environment 
• Violations of Acceptable Use 

agreement 

Teacher/Student Level 
8. Warning 
9. Refocus/In-class time out 
10. Out-of-class time out 
11. Loss of yard privileges  
12. Parent contact 
13. In-school detention 
14. After-school detention 
15. Office referral* 
16. Temporarily loss of computer 

*Three or more referrals in a trimester results in 
loss of participation in school events, including 
sports teams, for the rest of that trimester 



Page 15 

• Continued misbehavior, same day 
• Behavior that disrupts entire 

group 
• Profanity 
• Intentionally throwing objects on 

the roof, over fence, etc. 
• Inappropriate language or tone 

with an adult or peer 
• Cheating/lying/plagiarism 
• Rough play - chasing, pushing, 

shoving, spitting 
• Leaving school grounds 
• Flagrant outburst or disrespect 
• Disrespecting a Guest Teacher 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Ongoing harassment through notes, 
email, phone, or other forms of 
communication 

• Insults based on size, gender, race, 
ability, religion, athletic ability, 
intelligence, ethnicity 

• Fight words 
• Intimidation through continued 

gossiping, teasing, or destructive 
humor 

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Defacing property 
• Playing tricks to embarrass 

others 
• Stealing 
• Threatening physical harm 
• Starting fight 
• Purposeful scratching, 

headlocks, biting, tripping 
• Other physical altercations 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Cyberbullying 
• Using laptop to bully other 

students 
• Accessing inappropriate websites 
• Defacing laptop 
• Taking another’s laptop  
• Chronic violations of Acceptable 

Use agreement  
• Engaging in any technological 

behavior on or off campus that 
results in a disruption of the school 
learning environment  

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

Site Administrative Level 
10. Student conference 
11. Office detention 
12. Phone call home 
13. Loss of yard privileges (one or more 

days)/community service 
14. Alternate classroom placement for the 

period/day 
15. Parent meeting with student and 

administrator 
16. Individual behavior plan 
17. Parents shadow student in class 
18. Loss of computer for extended period 
19. Computer re-imaged  

• Fighting (mutual) 
• Drugs/weapons 
• “Pantsing” 
• Continued insubordination 
• Throwing dangerous objects 
• False reporting (i.e., fire alarm) 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Prolonged harassment 
• Encouraging total group exclusion of 

someone by threatening others if they 
don’t comply 

• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Arson/destroying property 
• Plan/participate in public 

humiliation 
• Graffiti with a bias against 

someone 
• Making repeated graphic 

threats 
• Practicing extortion 
• Threatening to keep someone 

silent 
• Physical cruelty/assault 
• Repeated acts of violence 
• Assault with a weapon 
• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Level 3 behavior in any other 
category involving the use of 
technology  

• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 

Site/District 
Administrative Level 

5. In-school suspension 
6. Out-of-school suspension 
7. Computer revocation  
8. Law enforcement contacted 
9. Expulsion 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

SEQUOIA ELEMENTARY 
& RVCS SEQUOIA 

 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN  
2018-2019 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1. District and School Mission Statement, Safe Schools Planning 
Committee, data sources 

 
2. Component #1 The School Climate – People and Programs 

 
3. Component #2 Safe and Orderly Environment 

 
4. School Board adopted procedures and policies complying with 

Calif. Legislature sb187 (Ed code sections 35294, Statutes of 
1998) 

 
 

Discussed and approved unanimously at School Site Council Meeting held 
on 2/13/18. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 

1. District and School Mission Statement, Safe Schools  
Planning Committee, Data Sources 

 
DISTRICT MISSION STATEMENT 

 
The Rincon Valley Union School District pursues excellence in education 

through a differentiated curriculum focusing on rigor, relevance, and 
relationships. The District provides a solid foundation for every student through 

the development of critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and 
creativity. 

 

 
DISTRICT VISION STATEMENT 

 
Rincon Valley Union School District provides all students an exemplary 

academic education and the foundation to become productive citizens of their 
community. 

 
 
Sequoia Elementary School’s Purpose  
Sequoia School's vision is to create a community of young scholars who have the academic and 
social skills necessary to effect positive change in the 21st century. 

A commitment to excellence and a strong community base contribute to Sequoia's rich educational 
tradition. The school environment fosters high academic and behavioral expectations for each 
student. A knowledgeable, dedicated staff works diligently to ensure student success, and test scores 
reflect high student achievement. The active involvement of parents as partners in their children's 
education contributes to a strong sense of community. Students and staff feel safe in an attractive, 
well-maintained facility, nestled in the rolling hills of Rincon Valley. 

 
 
RVCS Sequoia Mission Statement 
The purpose of Rincon Valley Charter School (RVCS) is to provide an excellent and challenging 
technology-empowered academic program in a small school setting. We provide a student-centered, 
project-based learning environment in which technology, fine arts, inquiry, and service learning are 
the foundational components. We differentiate our instruction to meet the academic needs of all 
students. We strive to develop a 21st century learner by building relationships, using critical thinking, 
and engaging curriculum to meet academic standards. To ensure the success of our purpose, we will 
measure and evaluate our efforts using state, district, and school standards. We are here to inspire 
students to be self-motivated, competent, lifelong learners, and exemplary citizens with the help and 
guidance of the entire school community. 

 
SCHOOL SITE COUNCIL (SEQUOIA)/EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (RVCS) 

Jenean Thom    Parent 
Suzy Tribbey     Parent 



Page 2 
Nicole Rosaschi   Parent 
Jamie Lopez    Teacher 
Sheleen Craig    Teacher 
    

   Brooklynn Clark   Principal – Sequoia 
   Amy Wiese    Director – RVCS 

Hannah Bates    Director-RVCS 
   Cynthia Roe    RVCS Parent 

Dina Dethlefsen   RVCS Parent 
Jarmila Romanova   RVCS Parent 
Kate Westrich    RVCS Parent 
Michael Futch    Teacher-RVCS  

   Erin Conrad    Teacher-RVCS 
     
    
    
DATA SOURCES 
   Staff and Parent Organization Meetings 
   Sequoia 2017-2018 School Accountability Report Card 
   Sequoia 2017-2018 Single Plan for Student Achievement 

RVCS 2017-2018 School Accountability Report Card 
   RVCS 2017-2018 Single Plan for Student Achievement 
   Sequoia Student Survey – Spring 2017 
   RVCS Student Survey –Spring 2017 
   Behavioral Data 
   Attendance Rates 
 
CONCLUSIONS FROM DATA 

 In analyzing our data sources, we have determined that there has been a significant decrease 
in office referrals and suspensions at all campuses with the implementation of Restorative 
Practices, Toolbox, and Kimochis. We have also determined from the data that when the 
counselor is on campus, there are even fewer occurrences of office referrals and 
suspensions. In reviewing our attendance and truancy data, we have found that with the 
office clerks and counselors following up with families regarding reasons for absences and 
offering support to help get students to school every day and on time, we have seen tardies 
and truancies decrease in the last year. Student survey data informs us that students feel safe 
at school and most feel that they have a trusted adult on campus that they can seek help 
from.  

 
COMMUNICATION PLAN 
 

 Review at SSC/Executive Committee and PTA/PA 
 

 School Newsletters 
 

 Plan available in school office 
 
EVALUATION: The comprehensive school safety plan shall be evaluated and amended as 

needed, by the school safety planning committee no less than once a year. 
  



Page 3 

2. COMPONENT #1: The School Climate – People & 
Programs 

 
GOAL:  Our school is a place where students and staff build strong relationships, 

and demonstrate respect for each other and our surroundings.  
 
OBJECTIVE #1: Students will increase their skills in communication, learning and implementing 

conflict resolution strategies based on Restorative Practices/Circles model.  
 
OBJECTIVE #2: Students will increase their use of pro-social skills and reduce conflict on the 

playground.  
 
ACTION STEP #1 The Toolbox Project and Kimochis will continue to be used weekly in all grade 

levels at the Sequoia campus. At the Sequoia and RVCS campuses, we are in 
full implementation of Restorative Practices to resolve conflict and create 
community. 

                             
ACTION STEP #2     Teachers, administrators, and staff will model appropriate behavior. 

Maintain a safe and positive school environment for staff, students, and parents. 
  

 
ACTION STEP #3 Special school activities will promote social responsibility and recognition of 

respectful behaviors, including character trait of the month and scholars of the 
month. 

 
 
ACTION STEP #4 Involvement of school counselor and other adults on campus via multi-tiered 

supports, restorative circles, and attendance awareness, to target students for 
support services, and ensuring that every student feels comfortable going to an 
adult on campus when they need help. 

 
ACTION STEP #5 Creation of a multi-tiered system of support at all sites, consisting of weekly 

meetings with principal, counselor, school psychologist, student support 
coordinator and other experts as needed. The objective of these meetings is to 
provide individualized support for students and progress monitor them over 
time to ensure that these supports and accommodations are successful. 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 



Page 4 
ACTIVITIES: 
 

      

 
 
 
 
 
RESOURCES NEEDED 
  
 District supported Time to Teach and Restorative Practices Implementation 
 District supported parent education events 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
 

 School Counselor 
 All Staff Members 
 Parents  

Sequoia  
 Garden Program 

 Food and Clothing Drive 
 Parent / Student Conferences 
 Student Recognition 
  “Lil Giants” – Principal/Staff recognition   
 Counseling Program 
 Toolbox Training for staff and parents 
 Friday School Spirit Day 
 Walk and Roll to School 
 Community Building: Movie Nights, Bingo 

Nights, Walk-A-Thon, 6th Grade Camp, 
STEAM Night, Cross grade level buddies 

 

RVCS Sequoia Campus 
 Wacky Wednesdays-Activities taught by 

teachers and parents, student choice, 
opportunity to work with teachers on specific 
assignments 

 Character Awards and Assemblies-awards for 
teamwork, appreciation, action, honesty, 
respect, courtesy, responsibility, self-
discipline, student performances, student 
presentations, guest speakers, school wide 
information 

 Science Challenge 
 Math Counts Challenge 
 Lego Robotics 
 Counseling Program 
 Student Led Conferences 
 Portfolio Creation and Presentation 
 Team building field trips, including Four 

Winds and Wikiup 
 Friday Fun Days 
 Game Nights/Dances 
 Haiku-grades, work submission, parent 

communication 
 Illuminate Gradebook 
 Middle School Sports League 

 

 



Page 5 
 Students 
 Community Members 
 

TIMELINE                 2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR AND BEYOND 
 

3. COMPONENT #2 Safe and Orderly Environment  
 
GOAL: #1 Continue to create and maintain a positive physical environment, which 

promotes school pride, social, and academic success.  
 
OBJECTIVE: Maintain the physical appearance of the school and restrooms. 
 
ACTION STEP #1 Pick up trash daily/weekly. Recycling program. 
  
ACTION STEP #2 Students and staff maintain garden areas.  
 
ACTION STEP #3 Staff/student/parents will report areas of need to the principal.  
 
ACTION STEP #4 Yearly review / modification of crisis response plan 
 
ACTION STEP #5 Monday/Wednesday Assembly  
 

ACTION STEP #6 School Rules and emergency drills clearly outlined, understood and applied 
 
ACTION STEP #7 All school employees are required and have complied with mandated reported 

training to ensure that any suspected abuse of a child is reported to the 
appropriate authorities.  

 
GOAL #2:  Students are engaged in well-supervised and self-disciplined play activities 

on a safe campus.  
 
OBJECTIVE:  Increase awareness and knowledge of playground rules/safety and equipment 

use.  
 

ACTION STEP #1  Develop a better understanding of the causes and occurrences that directly  
   result in playground accidents. 
 

ACTION STEP #2  Meet and discuss with staff and students the topic of playground safety. 
 

ACTION STEP #3  Increase structured positive playground activities via Playground Coordinator  
 

ACTION STEP #4  Implement Playworks. 
 
ACTION STEP #5 Train adults and students on playground safety.  Create a noon supervisor 

handbook and training module.  Run learning stations for students to clearly 
understand expectations. 

ACTION STEP #6 Train students during first 20 days of instruction regarding classroom, school, 
playground procedures. 

 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 
    District maintains surveillance system 
 



Page 6 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE 

 All Staff Members 
 Parents 
 Students 
 

TIMELINE 2017-2018 SCHOOL YEAR AND BEYOND 
 
Sequoia Elementary Activities   RVCS Campus Activities 

 Yearly review / modification of 
school disaster plan. 

 Toolbox, Kimochi’s and Restorative 
Practices continued team 
implementation 

 School rules and procedures clearly 
outlined, understood, and applied. 

 New playground structure  
procedures and guidelines reviewed 
and monitored regularly. 

 Regular communication with families 
via newsletter and email regarding 
health and safety procedures and 
policies. 

 

 Yearly review / modification of school disaster 
plan. 

 School rules and procedures clearly outlined, 
understood, and applied. 

 Involve Student Council in positive playground 
safety solutions (Public Service Announcements 
and student-created survey about current safety 
reality) 

 Clearly defined boundaries of play and snack areas 
and in hallways.   

 Regular communication with families via 
newsletter and email regarding health and safety 
procedures and policies. 

RVCS Sequoia Campus Activities 

 School announcements via Leadership, including school safety, campus clean up and school rules 
reminders 

 School rules rubric with outlined rules, explanation, and consistent staff-wide application 
 Yearly review/modification of school disaster plan 

 



Page 7 

4. School Board adopted procedures and policies complying 
with Calif. Legislature sb187 (Ed code sections 35294, 
Statutes of 1998) 

 
Identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will provide or maintain a 
high level of school safety and address the school procedures for complying with 
existing laws related to school safety, to include: 
 
A. Child abuse reporting procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9/5141.4 
 
B. Disaster procedures, routine and emergency 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 3514 
b. RVUSD Board Policy 3514.1 
c. RVUSD Board Policy 3515 
d. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.2 
e. RVUSD Board Policy 3515.5 
f. RVUSD Board Policy 3516 
g. RVUSD Board Policy 3520 

 
C. Suspension and expulsion policies 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144.1 
 
D. Procedures to notify teacher of dangerous pupils 
E. Sexual harassment/bullying policy/hate speech or crime 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5145.7 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1/5131.2 
 

F. Provisions of any school wide dress code prohibiting “gang-related apparel” 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 – Refer to Section 6 “Dress” 
 
G. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, students, and school employees to and from 

school and Crisis Response Plan  
 

a. See School Disaster Plan and Emergency Resources Plan 
 
H.   A safe and orderly environment conducive of learning 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131  
 
I. School discipline rules and procedures; hate speech/crime  
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5144  
b. School Discipline Plan (attached) 

 
 
2/13/18, BC, AW 



 p 

Honor Code and Discipline Rubric 
Behavior is appropriate when students are diligent in study, careful with school property, courteous,  

and respectful toward their teachers, other staff, students, and volunteers. 

General Misbehaviors Verbal Behavior Nonverbal & Physical Behavior Playground/Yard Behaviors Consequences 

• Unprepared for learning 
• Classroom disruptions, for 

example: 
• Blurting out 
• Inappropriate noises or 

gestures 
• Wandering around classroom 
• Talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate comments 
• Throwing objects 

• Disrespect of property 
• Gum-chewing 
• Not following school rules 

• Passing notes 
• Gossiping 
• Starting or spreading rumors 
• Teasing/taunting about 

possessions, clothes, looks, etc. 
• False reporting (in regard to 

other’s behaviors) 
• Name-calling 
• Inappropriate language 
• Mocking 

• Making threatening or insulting 
gestures 

• Dirty looks 
• Ignoring or excluding others 
• Hiding items from others 
• In others’ space purposefully  
• Blocking other’s path 
• Inappropriate use of technology 
• Disrupting the learning environment 
• Accessing inappropriate websites 

• Overly aggressive game play 
• Ignoring an adult’s instructions 
• Purposefully interfering with others’ 

games 
• Taking another’s equipment 
• Barging in on another’s game 
• Not taking turns 
• Not following game rules 
• Piggy-back rides 
• Wrestling 
• Taking (or attempting) another’s 

possessions (hat, jacket, food) 
• Littering/throwing food 
• Eating on the playground 
• Randomly kicking a ball across the 

playground 

Teacher/Student/Parent Level* 
1. Warnings 
2. Refocus/In-class time out 
3. Out-of-class time out 
4. Loss of yard privileges/community service 
5. Parent contact 
6. In-school detention 
7. After-school detention 
 

*Teacher will contact parent regarding Level 1 
behaviors via email or phone call 
 

• Continued misbehavior, same day 
• Behavior that disrupts entire group 
• Leaving the classroom without 

permission 
• Intentionally throwing objects on 

the roof, over fence, etc. 
• Inappropriate language or tone 

with an adult or peer 
• Cheating/lying/plagiarism 
• Rough play - chasing, pushing, 

shoving, spitting 
• Violating another’s privacy (desk, 

backpack, physical privacy, etc.) 
• Flagrant outburst or disrespect 
• Disrespecting a Guest Teacher 
• Public display of affection 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Profanity 
• Ongoing harassment through 

notes, email, phone, or other 
forms of communication 

• Insults based on size, gender, 
race, ability, religion, athletic 
ability, intelligence, ethnicity 

• Fight words 
• Intimidation through continued 

gossiping, teasing, or destructive 
“humor” (using “I was just kidding” 
or “It was just a joke” as an 
excuse)  

• Threats of aggression against 
property or possessions 

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Defacing property 
• Playing tricks to embarrass others 
• Stealing 
• Threatening physical harm 
• Threatening to start a fight 
• Purposeful scratching, headlocks, 

biting, tripping, etc. 
• Other physical altercations 
• Cyberbullying 
• Using technology to bully other 

students 
• Engaging in any technological 

behavior on or off campus that results 
in a disruption of the school learning 
environment  

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Purposefully tripping, kicking, 
pushing, and so on 

• Purposefully throwing a ball at 
another’s face or body 

• Throwing another to the ground 
• Physically restraining another student 
• Stomping bags, milk cartons, 

“poppers” to create a loud noise or 
mess 

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

Teacher/Site Administrative Level 
1. Office referral** (Teacher) 
2. Student conference 
3. Office detention 
4. Phone call home 
5. Loss of yard privileges (one or more 

days)/community service 
6. Alternate classroom placement for the 

period/day 
7. Parent meeting with student and 

administrator 
8. Behavioral Intervention Plan 
9. Parents shadow student in class 
**Three or more referrals in a trimester may 
result in loss of participation in school events, 
including sports teams, for the rest of that 
trimester 

• Fighting (mutual)  
• Leaving school grounds without 

being signed out by a parent 
• Drugs/weapons 
• “Pantsing” 
• Continued insubordination 
• Throwing dangerous objects 
• False reporting (i.e., fire alarm) 
• Any illegal activity  
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Prolonged harassment 
• Continued threats of aggression or 

physical violence 
• Encouraging total group exclusion 

of someone by threatening others 
if they don’t comply 

• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Arson/destroying property 
• Plan/participate in public 

humiliation 
• Graffiti with a bias against someone 
• Making repeated graphic threats 
• Practicing extortion 
• Threatening to keep someone 

silent 
• Physical cruelty/assault 
• Repeated acts of violence 
• Assault with a weapon 
• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• See other Level 3 behaviors 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 

Site/District 
Administrative Level 

1. In-school suspension 
2. Out-of-school suspension 
3. Law enforcement involvement 
4. Expulsion 

 
 
 

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

 
L

E
V

E
L

 T
W

O
 

L
E

V
E

L
 T

H
R

E
E

 



Page 1 

 

Firebird Honor Code and Discipline Rubric 
Behavior is appropriate when students are diligent in study, careful with school property, courteous,  

and respectful toward their teachers, other staff, students, and volunteers. 

General Misbehaviors Verbal Bully Behavior Nonverbal & Physical Bully 
Behavior 

Technology Behaviors Consequences 

• Unprepared for class (no supplies) 
• Classroom disruptions, for 

example: 
• Blurts out/talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate noises or 

gestures 
• Wandering around classroom 
• Talking out of turn 
• Inappropriate comments 
• Throwing objects 

• Disrespect of property 
• Not following school rules 

• Passing notes 
• Gossiping 
• Starting or spreading rumors 
• Teasing about possessions, clothes, 

looks, etc. 
• False reporting (in regard to other’s 

behaviors) 
• Name calling 
• Inappropriate language 

• Making threatening or insulting 
gestures 

• Dirty looks 
• Ignoring or excluding others 
• Hiding items from others 
• Pushing/shoving/poking/kicking 
• In others’ space 
• Blocking others’ path 

• Use of personal electronics during 
school hours 

• Using another student’s laptop 
• Playing games, using email or chat 

applications 
• Storage of non-school related files 

on laptop or server 
• Turning off Airport or using 

unauthorized internet connections 
• Using laptop to disrupt the learning 

environment 
• Violations of Acceptable Use 

agreement 

Teacher/Student Level 
8. Warning 
9. Refocus/In-class time out 
10. Out-of-class time out 
11. Loss of yard privileges  
12. Parent contact 
13. In-school detention 
14. After-school detention 
15. Office referral* 
16. Temporarily loss of computer 

*Three or more referrals in a trimester results in 
loss of participation in school events, including 
sports teams, for the rest of that trimester 

• Continued misbehavior, same day 
• Behavior that disrupts entire group 
• Profanity 
• Intentionally throwing objects on 

the roof, over fence, etc. 
• Inappropriate language or tone 

with an adult or peer 
• Cheating/lying/plagiarism 
• Rough play - chasing, pushing, 

shoving, spitting 
• Leaving school grounds 
• Flagrant outburst or disrespect 
• Disrespecting a Guest Teacher 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Ongoing harassment through notes, 
email, phone, or other forms of 
communication 

• Insults based on size, gender, race, 
ability, religion, athletic ability, 
intelligence, ethnicity 

• Fight words 
• Intimidation through continued 

gossiping, teasing, or destructive humor 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Defacing property 
• Playing tricks to embarrass 

others 
• Stealing 
• Threatening physical harm 
• Starting fight 
• Purposeful scratching, 

headlocks, biting, tripping 
• Other physical altercations 
• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

• Cyberbullying 
• Using laptop to bully other students 
• Accessing inappropriate websites 
• Defacing laptop 
• Taking another’s laptop  
• Chronic violations of Acceptable 

Use agreement  
• Engaging in any technological 

behavior on or off campus that 
results in a disruption of the school 
learning environment  

• Chronic Level 1 behaviors 

Site Administrative Level 
10. Student conference 
11. Office detention 
12. Phone call home 
13. Loss of yard privileges (one or more 

days)/community service 
14. Alternate classroom placement for the 

period/day 
15. Parent meeting with student and 

administrator 
16. Individual behavior plan 
17. Parents shadow student in class 
18. Loss of computer for extended period 
19. Computer re-imaged  

• Fighting (mutual) 
• Drugs/weapons 
• “Pantsing” 
• Continued insubordination 
• Throwing dangerous objects 
• False reporting (i.e., fire alarm) 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Prolonged harassment 
• Encouraging total group exclusion of 

someone by threatening others if they 
don’t comply 

• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Arson/destroying property 
• Plan/participate in public 

humiliation 
• Graffiti with a bias against 

someone 
• Making repeated graphic 

threats 
• Practicing extortion 
• Threatening to keep someone 

silent 
• Physical cruelty/assault 
• Repeated acts of violence 
• Assault with a weapon 
• Sexual harassment 
• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 

• Level 3 behavior in any other 
category involving the use of 
technology  

• Chronic Level 2 behaviors 
 

Site/District 
Administrative Level 

5. In-school suspension 
6. Out-of-school suspension 
7. Computer revocation  
8. Law enforcement contacted 
9. Expulsion 

 
 
 
 

L
E

V
E

L
 O

N
E

 
L

E
V

E
L

 T
W

O
 

L
E

V
E

L
 T

H
R

E
E

 



 
 
 
 
 

VILLAGE ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 
 
 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN 2017-2018 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 

1. DISTRICT AND SCHOOL MISSION STATEMENTS, SAFE 
SCHOOLS PLANNING COMMITTEE, DATA SOURCES 

 
2. COMPONENT #1 THE SCHOOL CLIMATE – PEOPLE AND 

PROGRAMS 
 

3. COMPONENT #2 SAFE AND ORDERLY ENVIRONMENT 
 

4. SCHOOL BOARD ADOPTED PROCEDURES AND POLICIES 
COMPLYING WITH CALIF. LEGISLATURE SB187 (Ed code 
sections 35294, Statutes of 1998) 



Page 1 

  
DISTRICT Vision and Mission 

 
 

 
Rincon Valley Union School District provides all students an exemplary academic education 
and the foundations to become productive citizens of their community. 
 
The Rincon valley Union school district pursues excellence in education through a 
differentiated curriculum focusing on rigor, relevance, and relationships.  The District 
provides a solid foundation for every student through the development of critical thinking, 
communication, collaboration, and creativity. 

 
 

 Village Elementary  
 
 
Believes: 
Students are learners who can develop the essential skills needed to become 
a productive, contributing citizen to a global society. 
 

 
Students will 

 Make connections among ideas and people which build relationships that 
result in a greater understanding of the world around them 

 Be provided with a rigorous course of study and effective researched based 
instruction by highly qualified teachers 

 Demonstrate a growth mindset and understand that success is a direct result 
of hard work and best effort 

 Understand the importance of inquiry-based and self-directed learning 
 Develop critical thinking and logical reasoning strategies and apply them 
 Be supported by a positive school climate and the involvement of a 

responsive and dedicated community and committed staff who respects and 
values diversity and nurtures everyone's self-esteem 

 Integrate technology to enhance learning 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Suzanna Jayansi Office Manager 
Shane Karres   Teacher 

   Tina Valencia  Classified 
   Kristy Boblitt   Parent 

Caitlyn Zita  Counselor 
Custodian                    Dustin Boyce    

   Cecilia Franco Holt Principal 
       
 
 
 
 
 
 
Data Sources: 
 
 
   Healthy Kids Survey  
   Parent Survey   
   ELAC   

   Site Council  
   Student Survey   
   Parent’s Club  
   Staff Meetings 
   District Policies 
 
 
Conclusions  The Village Elementary School Plan will include further 

implementation and development of programs, training and 
activities that promote safe, responsible and respect behavior.  
Village Elementary will continue the shift to Restorative 
Practices.  This program along with Toolbox curriculum in 
grades K-3, Foundations Curriculum, (Creating a Safe and Civil 
School, and Time to Teach/Toolbox refocus process will be 
incorporated into our Safe School Plan, which addresses both 
the School Climate and Safe and Orderly Environment.   



Page 3 
COMMUNICATION PLAN 

 REVIEW AT SSC AND PARENT’S CLUB MEETINGS 
 

 SCHOOL NEWSLETTER—Village Voice  
 

 PLAN AVAILABLE IN SCHOOL OFFICE 
 

 PLAN AVAILABLE ON WEBSITE AS PART OF SARC 
 

 STAFF MEETINGS 
 
 
 
EVALUATION 
 The comprehensive school safety plan shall be evaluated and 

amended as needed, by the school safety planning committee 
no less than once a year. 

 
 
 
COMPONENT #1 The School Climate – People and Programs 
 
 
GOAL #1  
 

 Put into place District-wide Emergency Operations Plan, 
including Purchase of Classroom Emergency Rolling 
Suitcases containing Emergency Supplies 

 
 Systematic In-service and Use of Emergency 2-way 

Radios for noon duty supervisors 
 

 Use of school wide intercoms and phone speaker 
system in all classrooms.  

 
 Continued District-Wide and School-Wide Disaster Drills 

(Twice a year) 
 

 Toolbox-Tools for Learning-Tools for Life by Dovetail 
Learning are fully implemented.  

 
 Restorative Practices are implemented grades 4-6 2015-

16  
 

 Restorative Practice will be implemented in grades K-3 
2016-17 

 
 Specific lessons/presentations by the Village Elementary 

counselors that address issues such as: making friends, 
developing empathy, developing self-esteem, conflict 



Page 4 
resolution, and addressing transitioning into successful 
middle school students for sixth grade students are 
delivered through-out the school year.  

 
 Soaring to Success groups developed to promote and 

build community. 
 

 School Counselor will continue the implementation the 
Peer Mediation Program. 

 
  
OBJECTIVE: 
 
 By teacher observation, students will be familiar with and practice 

relationship skills, self-management, self-awareness, perspective taking and 
empathy, and problem solving. 

 
 Survey responses by students will indicate that they feel safer at school and 

have developed skills that promote problem solving and resiliency.  Surveys 
for students and parents will be conducted in the Spring and Fall of 2016 
respectively.  

 
 
RELATED ACTIVITIES: 

Direct instruction to teach social-emotional and resiliency skills, 
role-playing, communication to parents. 
 
Restorative Practices implemented along with the use of 
classroom and community circles 
 
Staff attends a three-day training on Restorative Practices and 
receives on site coaching from RP trainers  
 
 
  

 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 
 Toolbox curriculum 
 
 Restorative Practices Materials 
  
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION: 
 

 School Counselors 
 
 Classroom Teachers 

 
 School Principal 

 



Page 5 
 Peer tutors 

 
 
 
 
TIMELINE: 
  
 2015-2016 School Year (Training and Year 1 implementation of 

Restorative Practice Grades 4-6) 
 
 2017-2018 School Year (Implement Restorative Practice -

whole school) 
 
BUDGET: None  
  

GOAL #2   
 Improvement of school-wide student behavior, including common 

areas, classrooms and playground 
 Reduction of aggressive conflict and bullying 
 Increase in ability of students to show compassion and demonstrate 

conflict management skills 
 Focus on playground activities that promote Foundations (Be safe, be 

respectful, Be responsible). 
 
  
OBJECTIVE: 
 Refine Village School’s Common Area Procedures for all common areas 

including playground, classrooms, cafeteria, media center and hallways 
 Implementation of Restorative Practices 
 Implementation of Play works recommendations  
 Yard Duty 2 provides all students during lunch time recess supervised games 

utilizing Playworks.org resources 
 Implementation of S2S groups (Soaring to Success) cross-age groups 
 Use classroom circles to build community (Restorative Practice) 
 Parent / student survey results will be used to monitor program effectiveness 

and need for change / modification. 
 Reorganize Recesses for greater supervision and to reduce student conflict 
 Implement new arrival procedure 

 
 
 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 
 

 FOUNDATION materials 
 Survey Monkey  
 Toolbox Curriculum and materials 
 Play works Equipment and Resources 
 Restorative Practice Curriculum and Resources 

 
BUDGET NEEDED:  



Page 6 
 None 
 District 

 
 

GOAL #3  
 
Maintain programs intended to promote a caring, supportive and connected 
school climate for the Village students and community 
 

 
ACTIVITIES 

 Bi-Weekly Wednesday Assembly 
 Enrichment  

o Chess Club 
o Noon Leagues (intramurals) 
o Art at Lunch 
o Lunch time dance 
o Lunch time Play works 

Games  
 Art Docent Program 
 Assemblies 
 Music Program 
 Dance Docent Program 
 After School Basketball and Volleyball leagues 
 Family Fun Night 
 Parent / Student Conferences 
 Cross Age Buddies 
 Reading Incentive Program 
 Breakfast Program 
 6th Grade Community Service 
 Foundations Character Development/Bullying Prevention/ 

School-wide Behavior Program 
 Monthly S2S groups (Soaring to Success) 
 Student Council  
 Peer Mediation 
 Counselor grade level lessons 
 Kindness Challenge 
 Before and after school day care program 
 Movie Nights 
 Family Dance Jam 
 Family Literacy Project 
 Safe Routes for Schools 

o Bike Rodeo 
o 4th and 5th grade lessons on 

riding and Walking to school 
safely  

 Family Math Night 
 Multi-cultural Events 
 Student Recognitions 



Page 7 
o Attendance (Daily, Trimester, 

Yearly) 
o Soaring Students (monthly) 
o Eagle Awards=Spirit Store 

(citizenship, daily)  
 

 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 
 
  
  Site Budget 
 Parent’s Club 
 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: 
 

 Principal 
 Teachers 
 Parents 
 Classified Personnel 
 Students 
 Multicultural Educational Committee 

 
TIMELINE: 
 2017-2018 School Years 
  
 
 
COMPONENT #2 Safe and Orderly Environment 
 
GOAL #1 
 Continue to create and maintain a positive physical 

environment, which promotes school pride, social, and 
academic success. 

 
  
  

 Continued refinement and standardization of the 
Foundations -School-Wide Procedures 

 Expand Student Recognitions and Incentives 
 
RELATED ACTIVITIES: 
 

 Yearly review / modification of crisis response plan 
 Wednesday Assemblies/S2S Groups 
 Enrichment –Lunch time opportunities each trimester 
 Electives for 5th and 6th Grades 
 Focus on Foundations, Recognitions, incentives – for 

essential attributes and attendance 
 School Rules and procedures clearly outlined, understood 

and applied 



Page 8 
 Continued refinement and standardization of the 

Foundations -School-Wide Procedures 
 
 

 
RESOURCES NEEDED: 
 

 School Site Council 
 Parents Club 
 Staff 

 
PERSONS RESPONSIBLE: 
 

 School Site Council 
 Student Council 
 Parent Club Volunteers 
 Staff 
 School District 

 
TIMELINE: 
 
   2017-2018 School years 
 



Page 9 
4. Identification of appropriate strategies and programs that will provide 
or maintain a high level of school safety and address the school procedures 
for complying with existing laws related to school safety, to include: 
 
A. Child abuse reporting procedures 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9/5141.4 
 
B. Disaster procedures, routine and emergency, including earthquakes, fire, and lockdown. 
 

a. RVUSD Board Policy 3514/3514.1/3515/3515.2/3515.5/3516/3520 
 
C.  Procedures to allow a public agency to use school buildings, rounds, and equipment for       
mass care and welfare shelter during an emergency, which affects public health or welfare.   
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 1330 b #8 
 
D. School discipline rules and procedures 
 
 a.    RVUSD Administration Regulation 5144.1/5144.2 

b.  School Discipline Plan 
 
E. Procedures to notify teacher of dangerous pupils 
  

a. RVUSD Board Policy 5131/5131.7 
 
F. Policy prohibiting discrimination, harassment, intimidation, and bullying.  
 
 a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5131.2/5145.3 
 
G. Provisions of any school wide dress code prohibiting “gang-related apparel” 
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5132 – Refer to Section 6 “Dress”/ 5132 
 
H. Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, students, and school employees to and 
from school 
 

a. RVUSD Administration Regulation 5142/5142.1/5142.2 
 
I. A safe and orderly environment conducive of learning 
 
 a.    RVUSD Administrative Regulation 5131 
 b.    RVUSD Board Policy 5137 
 
J. Access to the school campus (visitors).  
 

a. RVUSD Administrative Regulation 1240/1250 
 
 
 



Page 10 
 
K. Suspension and expulsion policies 
 
 a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5144.1 
 
L. Crisis Response Plan 
 
 a.   RVUSD Administrative Regulation 3516/3516.5 
 
M. Sexual harassment policy 
 
 a.    RVUSD Board Policy 5145.7/4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN 
Whited Elementary Charter School 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

2017 - 2018 
 

Whited School Site Council ~ School Safety Committee 
 

Alison McLeod, Teacher 
Amy Nouguier, Teach/ Parent 

Katie Prather, Counselor 
Amy Kraus-Dudley, Parent 
Deanna Olivarez, Parent 
Govinda Crozat, Parent 
Beth Acosta, Principal 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 

 



 
Table of Contents 

 
Section 1 

District Mission Statement 
Whited Vision Statement 

School Site Council 
Data Sources 

Conclusions from Data 
Evaluation 

 
Section 2 

Component # 1:  The School Climate ~ People and Programs 
Goals 

Objectives 
Activities 

Dress Code 
Resources 

 
Section 3 

Component # 2:  Safe and Orderly Environment 
Goal 

Objective 
Activities 
Resources 

 
Section 4 

Comprehensive School Safety Plan 
Status of School Crime 

Procedures for Compliance with School Safety Laws, Policies, & Regulations 
Earthquake Procedures  

Organization Chart 
Evacuation Map 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

2 

 



Section 1 
 

District Mission Statement 
The Rincon Valley Union School District pursues excellence in education within a challenging 
curriculum by providing an academic foundation which emphasizes the mastery of basic skills and 
by promoting the development of positive character traits which enable students to make 
responsible choices. 
 

Whited Vision Statement 
The Whited School Community dedicates itself to facilitating the growth of lifelong learning 
potential and a global awareness in a safe, responsible, and respectful environment. 
 

Data Sources 
Student Surveys 
Parent Surveys 
Staff Meetings 

Parent Meetings 
 

Conclusions From Data 
 

During March of 2016, students in grades 3 – 6 participated in a student survey that asked a 
myriad of questions regarding student safety, feeling of belonging and inclusion, as well as 
academic progress and support. The survey was structured in a way as to allow students to 
respond to prompts by if they felt the statement was true. The following are conclusions gathered 
from the survey as determined by the Whited School Site Council.  
 

89% of 3 – 6 grade students believe that they are safe and belong at Whited.  85% of the students 
like and feel comfortable at the school. 94% of the students feel that their teachers respect and 
cares about them.  
87% of the students believe that their teacher believes in them and that they can learn. 78% of the 
students in grades 3 – 6 understand what it is expected to get good grades. 
 
 

A family survey will be administered later in the spring to obtain further information regarding 
student feelings of behavior and academic issues. Data collected will be used to develop goals 
involving school climate.  
Generally, the data is considered positive, with acknowledged areas of improvement. 
The School Site Council, staff, and community stakeholders will analyze the data and develop a 
strategic plan to meet areas of growth. Anticipating these need areas the school staff implemented 
a Student Advocate Program, which began in the fall of 2015. Teacher leaders met to prepare a 
strategic plan to implement by November of 2018. In addition, a review of the Whited Counseling 
program will be reviewed in April – May by the School Site Council with recommendations for the 
2018 – 2019 school year.  

3 

 



 
 
 

Evaluation 
The Comprehensive School Safety Plan shall be evaluated and amended as needed by the School 
Safety Plan Committee, as a part of the School Site Council, and meets no less than once a year. 
This plan was reviewed and approved in March, 2018.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

4 

 



Section 2 
 

Component #1 
 

The School Climate:  People and Programs 
 
 
Objective:  
Staff will maintain programs and activities intended to promote a caring and connected school 
climate.  Program effectiveness will be monitored and changed and / or modified, as needed. 
 
Related Activities: 
PTA / ELAC Programs GATE (Lego Robotics) 
Toolbox Program Restorative Practices 
Kimochis Music Program 
Monday Morning Assemblies Reading Incentive Events 
Basketball and Volleyball Leagues 4th Grade Coloma Program 
6th Grade Community Service Projects Eagle Award Slips 
6th Grade Science Camp Business Partnerships 
Perfect Attendance Awards Family Nights 
Read Across America Event Community Projects 
Student Council Day Care Programs 
Parent Student Conferences Time to Teach Program 
Walk-a-Thon Before & After School Tutoring 
Development and Regular review of School Plan EL Literacy Program 
School Recycling Program Multicultural Programs 
Peer Mediation Program School-wide assemblies 
Advocate Program  
 
Student Dress Code: 
The following dress code is printed in the school handbook and shared with parents and students: 
“Students need to be dressed in a manner that is safe, healthy, and respectful towards others. 
Students are expected to wear clothing that is appropriate to a learning environment and clothes 
should be neat, tidy, and worn properly. Hats and visors may not be worn indoors or worn 
backwards. Clothing which has printed messages of a profane nature, is gang related, or has 
messages related to substance abuse, alcohol, tobacco, and / or of a sexual nature is not 
acceptable. Student dress that distracts from the learning environment is not acceptable. Backless 
tops need to be covered by a shirt or sweater. Footwear should be of a type that can be worn safely 
on the playground and during PE which includes flip flops. Makeup is not appropriate at the 
elementary school level.” 
 
 

5 

 



 
Resources Needed 
PTO to support funding for school assemblies, family nights, diversity, and student focus areas, 
such as homework, parenting skills, communication, and organization. 
 
Responsibilities: 
Students 
Principal 
Teachers 
Parents 
Classified Staff 
 
 
Timeline 
2017 - 2018 School Year 
 
 

 

6 

 



Section 3 
Component #2  
 

Safe and orderly Environment 
 
Goal:  
 Continue to create and maintain a positive physical environment, which promotes school pride, 
social, and academic success. 
 
Objective: 
Staff reviews the Time to Teach protocols 
Review school protocols with all staff 
Review Tool Box Program monthly 
Implementation of Kimochis 
Implementation of Restorative Practices 
 
Related Activities: 
Yearly review and modification of crisis response plan 
Monday Morning Assemblies with Monthly Theme 
Classroom banner in cafeteria promoting school pride 
School Rules and Procedures clearly outlined, understood, and applied (positively). 
 
Resources Needed: 
School Site Council 
Staff 
PTO 
 
Timeline 
2017 - 2018 School Year 
 
Additional Safety Procedures: 
All visitors must sign-in with the school office. Campus gates are closed and locked from 8:30 am 
to 2:30 pm daily except Wednesday 8:30 to 1:40 pm. This information is communicated with 
families at Back to School Night, in the Parent - Student Handbook, and throughout the year by 
way of the school newsletter. 
 
Campus supervisors and the custodian carry walkie-talkies in order to communicate with the 
office in the event of any safety related issue.  
 
 
School Rules 
Safe 
Responsible 

7 

 



Respectful 
Scholarly 
Teachers introduce or review these rules each year to determine what this looks like based on the 
grade level. Rules are reviewed in classes regularly. Positive rewards are given to students through 
the Blue Eagle Slips and Monday Morning Assemblies and Time to Teach. 
 

Section 4 
 

Status of School Climate 
 
The Santa Rosa School Police Procedure Handbook describes actions to be taken by school officials 
and police officers in situations involving violations of the law. 
 
Whited Elementary Charter School is equipped with surveillance cameras. These cameras are 
regularly monitored. This system has drastically reduced incidents of graffiti and other facilities 
related crime on campus.  
 
Procedures for Compliance with School Safety Laws, District Policies, Regulations 
District policies, regulations, and procedures are kept in binders in the school office. Many can be 
accessed through the RVUSD website. The following are also included with this plan: 

▪ Community Relations – Volunteer Assistance AR 1240(a) 
▪ Use of School Facilities AR 1330(a) 
▪ Business and Non-instructional Operations ~ Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan 

AR 3516(a) 
▪ Student - Conduct BP 5131(a) 
▪ Students - Dress and Grooming AR 5132(a) 
▪ Students - Positive School Climate BP 5137(a) 
▪ Students - Safety AR 5142(a) 
▪ Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting AR 5141 .4(a) 
▪ Students - Discipline AR 5144(a) 
▪ Suspension and Expulsion Due Process AR 5144.1(a) 
▪ Students - Hate Motivated Behavior BP 5145.9(a) 
▪ Students - Student Wellness BP 5030(a) 

 
 
 
AGREEMENTS REGARDING LOCKDOWNS, FIRE, AND EARTHQUAKE DRILLS 
All teachers review procedures regarding Lockdown, Fire, and Earthquake Drills with their class. 
Fire drills are held monthly, and lockdown and earthquake drills are held at least twice per year.  
 
Consumables in emergency yellow suitcases are inventoried on an annual basis and were replaced 
in January, 2016.  
 

8 

 



Provide yard supervisors, PE, and itinerant district staff with training protocols, ie.  
counselors, psychologists, speech and language pathologists, librarians, computer techs. 
 
Annually, emergency lines will be inspected and repainted as needed. 
 
Annually review staff protocol for early release from site due to personal hardship, i.e.  
elder care, infant children, and / or medical care.  
 
 
 
Lockdown  
 
CODE RED announced on the intercom means we are going into Lockdown. Students will be 
informed as to whether to go directly to THEIR classrooms or to NEAREST CLASSROOM if out on 
the playground. 
 
ALL TEACHERS will email principal and office manager with their last name and either “red” or 
“green” in the subject line. Green signals that the teacher has all students with her/him. Red 
signals that there are missing students and in the body of the email, the teacher will list those 
student names. 
 
Teachers in Room 1 and Room 7 will “yell” to any students in the bathrooms to go to a classroom. 
 
 Band, Speech, PE, Computers, Science Lab, Library, RSP, EL, Counseling, Office agree to keep the 
students in their rooms during a lockdown drill. They also will escort students to the playground 
during a fire drill if they have classes or individuals.  
 
The school Office Manager will go to the Nurses office during a lockdown. The Principal will be in 
the office during a lockdown. If children are missing, the agreement is to call the NURSES office to 
inform the Office Manager @ extension 4912 if email is not available. If children are missing on 
campus the principal will look for them. 
 
Retain the private cell phone list in a safe, but accessible location. This list is to be used if one 
teacher seeks to call another teacher during an emergency drill to check on students. This list will 
be distributed and updated as needed.  
 
Teachers will take out yellow suitcases to the playground for evacuation (Fire and Earthquake) 
drills. If a teacher is not in their classroom during a drill they will go directly to their emergency 
line without their emergency yellow suitcase.  
 
 
 

9 

 



Earthquake Procedures 
 
DUCK – COVER – HOLD 
Teachers will quickly face away from the windows and tell students to take cover under desks or 
tables. 60 seconds after the shaking has stopped, students should be instructed to carefully check 
for injuries and dangerous objects before moving and standing up.  
 
Teachers will assess classroom situation – PLACE SIGN ON DOOR 

GREEN SIGN = ALL OKAY 
RED SIGN = ASSISTANCE NEEDED 

 
Teachers will lead students out of the building using the recommended route, while exiting 
with student emergency information and yellow safety case. Survivors and walking wounded 
will be evacuated first. The seriously injured student must be left for the school’s designated 
Search and Rescue Team. When exiting, leave chair in door opening so door remains open. 
 
Once out of the building, teachers will lead students to the emergency assembly area, or closest 
safe area if emergency area cannot be reached. Teachers will take student attendance. Walking 
wounded students should be sent with a student buddy to the First Aid Station. Students and 
staff will remain on the field until instructed otherwise.  
 
IMPORTANT 
If a secondary earthquake or aftershock occurs, student / staff should cover.  
PLACE HEAD CLOSE TO KNEES, CLASP HANDS BEHIND NECK, COVER SIDE OF HEAD WITH 
ARMS) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

10 

 



Appendix A 
 

Whited Elementary Charter School Student Survey 2017 – 2018 
Grades 3 – 6 ( N = 242) 

 
Answer the following questions about the school: 

 YES % 
 

1. I belong 86 
2. I am safe 91 
3. I have fun learning 80 
4. I like this school 87 
5. I am comfortable attending school 84 
6. There are expectations for student behavior 76 
7. I have choices in what I learn 71 
8. My teacher treats me with respect 94 
9. My teacher cares about me 94 
10. My teacher thinks I will be successful 88 

 
11. My teacher listens to my ideas 81 
12. My principal cares about me 77 
13. My teacher is a good teacher 82  
14. My teacher believes I can learn 87 
15. I am recognized for good work and / or accomplishments 68 
16. I am challenged by the work my teacher asks me to do 72 
17. The work I do in class make me think 73 
18. I know what I am supposed to be learning in my class 84 
19. I am a good student 77 
20. I can be a better student 77 

 
21. My teacher and principal have high expectations for me 76 
22. I learn important things that will help me when I grow up 80  
23. Students are treated fairly by teachers 95 
24. Students are treated fairly by the principal 85 
25. I understand what is expected to get good grades 88  
26. Students at my school treat me with respect 64 
27. Students at my school are friendly 64 
28. I have lots of friends 74 
29. When I need it, my family helps me with my homework 66  
30. My family believes I can do well in school 61 

 
31. Are you often teased in a mean way by another student ? 16 
32. Have you ever been physically bullied by another student 13 
33. here at school….hit, kicked, or punched would be examples.  
34. Are you bullied while riding the bus ? .07 

11 

 



35. Have you ever bullied another student here at school / bus ? .09 
 
 
 
 

12 

 


	Board Agenda 4-10-18
	Board Minutes 3-13-18
	Wm Quarterly  District
	COC Resignation - Ruppe
	1609 CHANGE ORDER _2 Revised
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	RVUSD DeveloperFee Notice (2)
	Final Notice of Public Hearing - Solar
	DianaCavallero
	K Warren Employee of the Month
	Info. Item 14.1 Food Services  Report
	2018 Board Report Executive Summary PDF
	Business Review 2018 PDF
	Info. Item 14.2a Summer School Plan
	Info. Item 14.2b Curriculum Committee
	Info. Item 14.3a Behavior Committee
	Info. Item 14.3b Student Survey
	Student  Survey Summary for Board report  2018
	Info. Item 14.4 District Budget Committee Update
	Info. Item 14.5 LCAP Update
	Draft LCAP 4-10-18
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps
	Increased or Improved services

	Budget Summary

	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 5
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 6
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 5
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 6
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Budget Summary

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	Info. Item 14.6 Policy Updates
	3-18 Guidesheet (1)
	3-18 Packet w-o notes
	Action Item 15.1Developer Fee Increase - Res. 04-18-18
	Developer Fee Resolution Rincon Valley Union (1)
	Rincon Valley Union Dev Fee Study 2018
	Action Item 15.2 Solar Contract - Res. 04-18-19
	1. Final Design Build Solar Contract - Sun Light & Power at RVUSD_3228868_11(DMS)
	2. Exhibit D to Sun Light Power Contract - RFP Attachments_3237996_2(DMS)
	Insert from: "5.pdf"
	Binder1.pdf
	District Office Site Detail Sheet 2018-2-13
	RVUSD Ph2 PV RFP District Office 2018-2-12 DRAFT
	A14 - Enlarged Site Plan - South
	Sheets and Views
	A14 - Enlarged Site Plan - South-Plotting Sheet
	pall
	OLE1



	A10 - Overall Site with Fire Marshall
	Sheets and Views
	A10 - Overall Site Plan-Plotting Sheet
	pall
	OLE1




	2015-03-18 District Office04.pdf
	2015-03-18 District Office05.pdf
	2015-03-18 District Office03.pdf

	Insert from: "4.pdf"
	Village ES Site Detail Sheet 2018-2-1
	RVUSD Ph2 PV RFP Village ES 2018-1-31 DRAFT
	Village ES Overall Site Plan A10
	Created with MetaPrint
	01-117051_003.pdf

	Village ES Enlarged Site Plan South A14
	Created with MetaPrint
	01-117051_023.pdf



	3. Final Solar Operations and Maintenance Agreement - Sun Light & Power_3230567_8(DMS) (2)
	4. Final  Solar Performance Guarantee Agreement - Sun Light & Power_3230782_9(DMS) (3)
	Final - Board Resolution GC 4217.12 - Sun Light & Power at Rincon Valley (3.29.18)_3232042_4(DMS)
	Action Item 15.3 Spring Creek Matanzas Charter Renewal
	Spring Creek Matanzas Charter 2018-2023_Final
	Action Item 15.4 Safe Schools Plan
	2017-18 SSP Austin Creek
	Safe Schools Plan Madrone 2017-18
	Safe Schools Plan, SC Mtz
	RVCS-S & Sequoia Safe Schools Plan, Update February 2018
	Village SAFE SCHOOLS PLAN 18-19
	_Whited Safe Schools Plan 2017-2018.docx (1)
	Personnel

	DistName: Rincon Valley Union
	County: Sonoma
	DistCode: 70896
	HSAA: 
	chkP0: Yes
	chkP1: Off
	chkR0: Off
	chkR1: Off
	chkR2: Off
	chkW1: Off
	chkW2: Off
	Weight3: 
	Weight2: 
	Weight1: 
	y7S: 
	y7F: 
	y6S: 
	y6F: 
	y5S: 
	y5F: 
	y4S: 
	y4F: 
	y3S: 2014
	y3F: 2015
	y2S: 2015
	y2F: 2016
	y1S: 2016
	y1F: 2017
	y0S: 2017
	y0F: 2018
	EgKy7: 
	Eg1y7: 
	Eg2y7: 
	Eg3y7: 
	Eg4y7: 
	Eg5y7: 
	Eg6y7: 
	Eg7y7: 
	Eg8y7: 
	Eg9y7: 
	Eg10y7: 
	Eg11y7: 
	Eg12y7: 
	Ey7: 
	EgKy6: 
	Eg1y6: 
	Eg2y6: 
	Eg3y6: 
	Eg4y6: 
	Eg5y6: 
	Eg6y6: 
	Eg7y6: 
	Eg8y6: 
	Eg9y6: 
	Eg10y6: 
	Eg11y6: 
	Eg12y6: 
	Ey6: 
	EgKy5: 
	Eg1y5: 
	Eg2y5: 
	Eg3y5: 
	Eg4y5: 
	Eg5y5: 
	Eg6y5: 
	Eg7y5: 
	Eg8y5: 
	Eg9y5: 
	Eg10y5: 
	Eg11y5: 
	Eg12y5: 
	Ey5: 
	EgKy4: 
	Eg1y4: 
	Eg2y4: 
	Eg3y4: 
	Eg4y4: 
	Eg5y4: 
	Eg6y4: 
	Eg7y4: 
	Eg8y4: 
	Eg9y4: 
	Eg10y4: 
	Eg11y4: 
	Eg12y4: 
	Ey4: 
	EgKy3: 544
	Eg1y3: 466
	Eg2y3: 457
	Eg3y3: 518
	Eg4y3: 451
	Eg5y3: 468
	Eg6y3: 438
	Eg7y3: 129
	Eg8y3: 161
	Eg9y3: 0
	Eg10y3: 0
	Eg11y3: 0
	Eg12y3: 0
	Ey3: 3632
	EgKy2: 520
	Eg1y2: 446
	Eg2y2: 462
	Eg3y2: 460
	Eg4y2: 510
	Eg5y2: 437
	Eg6y2: 468
	Eg7y2: 148
	Eg8y2: 120
	Eg9y2: 0
	Eg10y2: 0
	Eg11y2: 0
	Eg12y2: 0
	Ey2: 3571
	EgKy1: 514
	Eg1y1: 436
	Eg2y1: 441
	Eg3y1: 437
	Eg4y1: 461
	Eg5y1: 479
	Eg6y1: 439
	Eg7y1: 182
	Eg8y1: 163
	Eg9y1: 0
	Eg10y1: 0
	Eg11y1: 0
	Eg12y1: 0
	Ey1: 3552
	EgKy0: 472
	Eg1y0: 424
	Eg2y0: 433
	Eg3y0: 443
	Eg4y0: 446
	Eg5y0: 423
	Eg6y0: 494
	Eg7y0: 141
	Eg8y0: 166
	Eg9y0: 0
	Eg10y0: 0
	Eg11y0: 0
	Eg12y0: 0
	Ey0: 3442
	ECy7: 
	ECy6: 
	ECy5: 
	ECy4: 
	ECy3: 0
	ECy2: 0
	ECy1: 0
	ECy0: 0
	ECHg9y7: 
	ECHg10y7: 
	ECHg11y7: 
	ECHg12y7: 
	ECHy7: 
	ECHg9y6: 
	ECHg10y6: 
	ECHg11y6: 
	ECHg12y6: 
	ECHy6: 
	ECHg9y5: 
	ECHg10y5: 
	ECHg11y5: 
	ECHg12y5: 
	ECHy5: 
	ECHg9y4: 
	ECHg10y4: 
	ECHg11y4: 
	ECHg12y4: 
	ECHy4: 
	ECHg9y3: 0
	ECHg10y3: 0
	ECHg11y3: 0
	ECHg12y3: 0
	ECHy3: 0
	ECHg9y2: 0
	ECHg10y2: 0
	ECHg11y2: 0
	ECHg12y2: 0
	ECHy2: 0
	ECHg9y1: 0
	ECHg10y1: 0
	ECHg11y1: 0
	ECHg12y1: 0
	ECHy1: 0
	ECHg9y0: 0
	ECHg10y0: 0
	ECHg11y0: 0
	ECHg12y0: 0
	ECHy0: 0
	ESDCNSgK6: 0
	ESDCSevgK6: 0
	ESDCgK6: 0
	ESDCNSg712: 0
	ESDCSevg712: 0
	ESDCg712: 0
	ESDCNS: 0
	ESDCSev: 0
	y4SF: 
	y3SS: 2014
	y3SF: 2015
	y2SS: 2015
	y2SF: 2016
	y1SS: 2016
	y1SF: 2017
	y0SS: 2017
	y0SF: 2018
	chkB0: Off
	chkB1: Off
	chkEst2: Off
	chkEst1: Off
	chkEst0: Off
	BRy8: 
	BRy7: 
	BRy6: 
	BRy5: 
	BRy4: 
	BRy3: 
	BRy2: 
	BRy1: 
	BRy0: 
	PgK6y5: 2339
	Pg78y5: 246
	Pg912y5: 0
	Py5: 2585
	ESDCy7: 
	ESDCy6: 
	ESDCy5: 
	ESDCy4: 
	ESDCy3: 
	ESDCy2: 
	ESDCy1: 
	ESDCy0: 
	PSDCNSgK6y5: 0
	PSDCNSg712y5: 0
	PSDCNSy5: 0
	PSDCSevgK6y5: 0
	PSDCSevg712y5: 0
	PSDCSevy5: 0
	PSDCgK6y5: 0
	PSDCg712y5: 0
	PgK6y10: 
	Pg78y10: 
	Pg912y10: 
	Py10: 
	DwellingUnits: 200
	YieldFactor: 0.21128511
	PSDCNSgK6y10: 
	PSDCSevgK6y10: 
	PSDCgK6y10: 
	PSDCNSg712y10: 
	PSDCSevg712y10: 
	PSDCg712y10: 
	PSDCNSy10: 
	PSDCSevy10: 
	DistrictRep: 
	Date: 
	TelephoneNumber: 
	email: 
	y7SS: 
	y7SF: 
	y6SS: 
	y6SF: 
	y5SS: 
	y5SF: 
	y4SS: 


